
Form 11208 
Department al the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

U.S. Income Tax Return for an S Corporation 
.... Do not file this lorm unless the corporation has filed or is 

attaching Form 2553 to elect to be an S corporation. 
EXTENSION GRANTED TO 09/15/08 

For calendar year 2007, or tax year beginning d d , an en ing 
A S election effective date Name 

09/01/2006 Use 
the IRS 

B Business activity label. LIC HOLDINGS INC 
code number Other- Number, street, and room or suite no_ If a P.O. box, see instructions. (see instruction& 

52429 wise, 950 PENINSULA CORP. CIR., SUITE 3010 
c 

print 
City or town, state, and ZIP code Check if Sch. M-3 or type. 

attached I][] BOCA RATON FL 33487 

OMB No. 1545-0130 

2007 
D Employer identification number 

20-5290314 
E Date incorporated 

09/01/2006 
F Total assets _(see inslructions) 

$ 10,509,513. 
G Is the corporation electing to be an S corporation beginning with this tax year? LJ Yes LXJ No If ''Yes," attach Form 2553 if not already filed 

H Check if: (1) D Final return (2) D Name change (3) D Address change (4)00 Amended return (5) D Selection termination or revocation 
Enter the number of shareholders in the corporation at end of the tax year .. . . .. . . . . .... 13 
Caution: Include only trade or business income and expenses on lines 1 a through 21. See the instructions tar more information. 
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1 a 
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Gross receipts 0r sales 3 8 , 41 9 , 6 6 7 • b Less returns and allowances C Bal 
~~~~~~~~~ 

3 
4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Cost of goods sold (Schedule A, line 8) 

Gross profit. Subtract line 2 from line 1 c 
Net gain (loss) from Form 4797, Part 11, line 17 (attach Form 4797) 

Other income [loss) fattacn statement) 

Total income (loss\. Add lines 3 through 5 
Compensation of officers 

Salaries and wages (less employment credits) 

Repairs and maintenance 
Bad debts 

Rents 
Taxes and licenses 

Interest 

Depreciation not claimed on Schedule A or elsewhere on return (attach Form 4562) 

Depletion (Do not deduct oil and gas depletion.) 

Advertising 

Pension, profit-sharing, etc., plans 

Employee benet1t programs 
Other deductions (attach statement) 

Total deductions. Add lines 7 through 19 
Ordinary business income (loss). Subtract line 20 from line 6 

22 a Excess net passive income or LIFO recapture tax (see instructions) .. 

b Tax from Schedule D (Form 1120S) 
c Add lines 22a and 22b 

23 a 2007 estimated tax payments and 2006 overpayment credited to 2007 

b Tax deposited with Form 7004 
c Credit for federal tax paid on fuels (attach Form 4136) 

d Add lines 23a through 23c 

24 Estimated tax penalty (see instructions). Check if Form 2220 is attached 

S'I,'ATEMEN.T 1 

STATEMENT 2 ...... - .... 

. $TATE?ofEN.T ) 

S.TATEMENT .. 4 

22a 

22b 

23a 

23b 
23c 

25 Amount owed. If line 23d is smaller than the total of lines 22c and 24, enter amount owed 

26 Overpayment. If line 23d is larger than the total of lines 22c and 24, enter amount overpaid 

.... 1c 
2 

3 
4 

.... 6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
12 

13 

14 

15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

..... 20 

21 

22c 

26 

27 Enter amount from line 26 Credited to 2008 estimated tax .... I Refunded .... 27 

Sign 

Under penallies of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return. including accompanying schedules and statements. and to lhe best of my knowledge and 
belief, it is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (olher than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Here ~ --------~!----~ 
Signature of officer Date Tille 

Paid 
Preparer's ..,_ 
signature II"' 
Firm's.name (or GOLDSTEIN LEWIN & co. 

'

Check if 
self­
employed 

Preparer's 
Use Only yours 1f self- lrrrrrrri.... 

:;'J;~f:.d~~d 11"'1675 N. MILITARY TRAIL, FIFTH FLOOR 

D 
EIN 

38,419,667. 

38,419,667. 
<1,520.> 
58,945. 

38,477,092. 
5,498,526. 
4,103,690. 

20 I 041. 

201,637. 
167,695 . 
118,560. 

61,587. 

106' 971. 

20,350. 
16,576,999. 
26,876,056. 
11,601,036. 

May the IRS .discuss 
this retum with the 

g~~g:rr~~h~~~.>7 
00Yes0No 

Preparer's 
SSNorPTIN 

P00127193 

59-2147155 
ZIP code BOCA RATON / FL 33486 Phone no. (561)994-5050 

JWA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. 
711701 
12-28-07 

1 

Form 11205 (2007) 

TS002419 

BATES NO. EIB 000191 
02/27/2017



LIC HOLDINGS INC 

FORM 1120S OTHER INCOME 

DESCRIPTION 

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 5 

FORM 1120S COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS 

TIME 

NAME OF OFFICER 

SOCIAL 
SECURITY 

NUMBER 
DEVOTED TO PCT OF 

BUSINESS STOCK 

SIMON BERNSTEIN 
TED BERNSTEIN 
WILLIAM STANSBURY 

TOTAL COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS 

371-32-5211 
319-64-1912 
212-54-9407 

LESS: COMPENSATION CLAIMED ELSEWHERE 
EMPLOYMENT CREDIT REDUCTION 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 7 

FORM 1120S 

DESCRIPTION 

TAXES- PAYROLL 
TAXES- PROPERTY 
LICENSES & PERMITS 
LICENSES & PERMITS 

TAXES AND LICENSES 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 12 

FORM 1120S 

DESCRIPTION 

ALARM & GUARD SERVICE 
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 
AUTOMOBILE EXPENSE 
BANK SERVICE CHARGES 
COMMISSION EXPENSE 

OTHER DEDUCTIONS 

33.00% 
45.00% 
10.00% 

20-5290314 

STATEMENT 1 

AMOUNT 

58,945. 

58,945. 

STATEMENT 

AMOUNT OF 
COMPENSATION 

2 

404,199. 
2,719,935. 
2,374,392. 

5,498,526. 

5,498,526. 

STATEMENT 3 

AMOUNT 

164,314. 
750. 

2,165. 
466. 

167,695. 

STATEMENT 4 

AMOUNT 

6,154. 
559. 

18,152. 
3,316. 

2,831,110. 

16 STATEMENT(S) 1, 2, 3, 4 

TS002420 

BATES NO. EIB 000192 
02/27/2017



U.S. Income Tax Return for an S Corporation OMB No. 1545-0130 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Hevenue Service (77) 

.... Do not file this form unless the corporation has filed or is 

attaching Form 2553 to elect to be an S corporation. 

EXTENSION GRANTED TO 09/15/09 
For calendar year 2008 or tax year beginning and ending 
A Selection effective date Name 

09/01/2006 Use 
the IRS 

B Business activity label. LIC HOLDINGS INC 
code number Other- Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. (see instructions) 

524290 wise·, 950 PENINSULA CORP. CIR. I SUITE 3010 print 
c Check if Sch_ M-3 or type. City or town, state, and ZIP code 

attached 00 BOCA RATON FL 33487 

2008 
D Employer identification number 

20-5290314 
E Date incorporated 

09/01/2006 
F Total assets (see instructions) 

$ 4,151,405. 
G Is the corporation electing to be an S corporation beginning with this tax year? LJ Yes LXJ No If "Yes," attach Form 2553 if not already filed 

H Check if: (1) D Final return (2) D Name change (3) D Address change (4)0 Amended return (5) D Selection termination or revocation 

Enter the number of shareholders who were shareholders during any part of the tax year .... 13 
Caution· Jnclude only trade or business income and expenses on lines 1a through 27 See the instructions for more information 

1 a Gross receipts or sales 3 9 1 4 21 1 3 0 6 . b Less retums and allowances C Bal .... 1c 39,421,306 . 
2 Cost of goods sold (Schedule A, line 8) 2 

QI 
3 Gross profit Subtract line 2 from line le 3 39,421,306. E 

0 
4 u Net gain poss) from Form 4797, Part 11, line 17 (attach Form 4797) 4 

E 
5 Other income (loss) (attach statement) STATEMENT 1 5 150,154. 
6 Total income (loss). Add lines 3 throuoh 5 .... ... 6 39,571,460. 

'ii) 7 Compensation of officers ST,ATE:MENT 2 7 9,402,142. 
c: 6 Salaries and wages (less employment credits) 8 5,391,007. 0 ., 

4,295. s 9 Repairs and maintenance 9 

~ 10 Bad debts 10 
~ 11 Rents 11 350' 691. J2 
"' 12 Taxes and licenses STAT~l>iENT 3 12 505,672. c: 

.!2 13 Interest 13 22,222. !) 
::i 14 Depreciation not claimed on Schedule A or elsewhere on return (attach Form 4562) 14 113,751. .:> 
"' 15 Depletion (Do not deduct oil and gas depletion.) 15 .!: 
II> 16 Advertising 16 194,719. QI 

!Q. 17 Pension, profit-sharing, etc., plans 17 103 f 791. 
"' c: 16 Employee benefit programs 18 
~ 
u 19 Other deductions (attach statement) . STATEMENT ... 4 19 21, 637 I 874 • 
:i 
"C 20 Total deductions. Add lines 7 through 19 .... 20 37,726,164. II> 
c 21 Ordinary business income (loss). Subtract line 20 tram line 6 21 1,845,296. 

22 a Excess net passive income or LIFO recapture tax (see instructions) .. 22a jBI b Tax from Schedule D (Form 1120S) 22b 

c Add lines 22a and 22b 22c 

"' 23 a 2008 estimated tax payments and 2007 overpayment credited to 2008 23a 
.... · 

c: 
b Tax deposited with Form 7004 23b 

iti 
II> 
E 

Credit for federal tax paid on fuels (attach Form 4136) 23c >. c ., 
a.. d Add lines 23a through 23c 23d 
"C ..... 

[j c: 24 Estimated tax penalty (see instructions). Check 1f Form 2220 is attached .... 24 ., 
)( 25 Amount owed. If line 23d is smaller than the total of lines 22c and 24, enter amount owed 25 ., 

...... 
26 Overpayment. If line 23d is larger than the total of lines 22c and 24, enter amount overpaid 26 

27 Enter amount from line 26 Credited to 2009 estimated tax .... I Refunded .... 27 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements. and to the best of my knowledge and 

Sign 
belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

May tne IA:;; discuss 

I 
this return with the 

Here ~ Signature of officer ~Title 
g~~g!'(~e~t~~fr .J? 

Date CXJvesDN~ 

Preparer's ~ 'Date rheck If Preparer's 

Paid self- SSN or PTIN 
signature employed D P00127193 

Prepare r's 
Flrm"sname(or GOLDSTEIN LEWIN & co. 

Use Only ~~~~i~'Ji'.'- ~167 5 N. MILITARY TRAIL FIFTH FLOOR 
EIN 

59-2147155 address. and: , 
ZIP code BOCA RATON / FL 33486 Phone no (561)994-5050 

JWA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. 
811701 

Form 1120S (2008) 
12-31-08 

1 

TS002421 

BATES NO. EIB 000193 
02/27/2017



LIC HOLDINGS INC 

FORM 1120S OTHER INCOME 

DESCRIPTION 

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 5 

FORM 1120S COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS 

TIME 

NAME OF OFFICER 

SOCIAL 
SECURITY 

NUMBER 
DEVOTED TO PCT OF 

BUSINESS STOCK 

SIMON BERNSTEIN 
TED BERNSTEIN 
WILLIAM STANSBURY 

TOTAL COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS 

371-32-5211 
319-64-1912 
212-54-9407 

LESS: COMPENSATION CLAIMED ELSEWHERE 
EMPLOYMENT CREDIT REDUCTION 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 7 

FORM 1120S 

DESCRIPTION 

TAXES PAYROLL 
LICENSES & PERMITS 

TAXES AND LICENSES 

TOTAL TO FORM 1120S, PAGE 1, LINE 12 

FORM 1120S 

DESCRIPTION 

ALARM & GUARD SERVICE 
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 
AUTOMOBILE EXPENSE 
COMMISSION EXPENSE 
COMPUTER SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 
CONSULTING 
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 

OTHER DEDUCTIONS 

33.00% 
45.00% 
10.00% 

20-5290314 

STATEMENT 1 

AMOUNT 

150,154. 

150,154. 

STATEMENT 

AMOUNT OF 
COMPENSATION 

2 

3,756,299. 
5,225,825. 

420,018. 

9,402,142. 

9,402,142. 

STATEMENT 3 

AMOUNT 

498,819. 
6,853. 

505,672. 

STATEMENT 4 

AMOUNT 

1,487. 
600. 

53,167. 
4,469,172. 

91,204. 
302,540. 

50, 591. 

12 STATEMENT(S) 1, 2, 3, 4 

TS002422 

BATES NO. EIB 000194 
02/27/2017



LIC HOLDINGS INC 

EDUCATION & TRAINING 
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
FEES - SERVICE FEE 
FEES- ADMIN MANAGER 
FEES- APPLICATION 
FEES- CONTROL AGREEMENT 
FEES- LETTER OF CREDIT 
FEES- LOAN UTILIZATION 
FEES- LOAN UTILIZATION 2ND YEAR 
FEES- LOAN UTILIZATION 3RD YEAR 
FEES- LOAN UTILIZATION SUBSEQUE 
FEES- NOTE STRUCTURE 
FEES- PLACEMENT 
FEES- TRUSTEE 
FEES- WIRE TRANSFER 
FORFEITED DEPOSITS 
INSURANCE 
INTERNET FEES 
LEGAL & ACCOUNTING 
MEALS - IN HOUSE 
MEALS AND ENTERTAINMENT 
MEDICAL UNDERWRITING 
MOVING 
OFFICE EXPENSE & SUPPLIES 
PAYROLL FEE 
POSTAGE & DELIVERY 
PRINTING & REPRODUCTION 
RECRUITMENT 
TELEPHONE 
TRAVEL 
UTILITIES 

TOTAL TO FORM 11208, PAGE 1, LINE 19 

13 

20-5290314 

162,085. 
4,300. 

24,936. 
9,485. 

834,000. 
17,300. 

650. 
8,604,753. 
1,038,954. 

45,334. 
155,387. 

1,897,500. 
763,318. 

43,703. 
15,835. 

878,111. 
273,689. 
34,617. 

594,873. 
108,779. 

16 I 211. 
335,873. 

100. 
171,555. 

6,804. 
43,456. 
49,806. 

3 I 011. 
88,795. 

424,575. 
21,318. 

21,637,874. 

STATEMENT(S) 4 

TS002423 

BATES NO. EIB 000195 
02/27/2017
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CONTACTS 
Private Client Advisor: 

()WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Relationship Summary 

CARECE M. RUFE 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 
Rodney Square North 
1100 North Market Street 
Wilmington DE 19890-0001 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION 
On July 1, 2012, Wilmington Trust converted to a new trust and investment management system. 
This statement is produced from our new system which reflects information in a slightly different 
format. Please note that year to date fields will include cumulative data with a start date of 
July 1, 2012, but will not include data or totals from the first six months of 2012. If you have 
any questions, please contact your relationship team. 

For clients invested in the Wilmington Trust Common Trust Funds, audited financial reports are 
prepared annually for the funds and are available to you at no charge. If you would like to receive 
copies of these reports, please contact your Relationship Manager. Wilmington Trust receives an 
administration fee from the common trust funds equal to 0.10% annually of the market value of the 
common trust funds held in client accounts. 

I llllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll 111111111111111111111111111111111 

088949-000 TT /SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 

302-651-8248 cruje@wilmingtontrust.com 

877-836-9206 www.wilmingtontrust.com 

1602671 02 AT 0.744 .. AUTO 9 1 4704 33496 000023999 OOOlN I 

'1111·'·'·1··'··l1·''·1'·1l11ld'l• 11••'11··'1'·1'l'·····l'l1llll 
SIMON L BERNSTEIN 
7020 LIONS HEAD LANE 
BOCA RATON FL 33496-5931 

) 
/ 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB1602671 0001 0001130206 000023999 00001500 088949-000 H 
BATES NO. EIB 000196 

02/27/2017
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/ 0 WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Market Value Summary 088949-000 TT/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 

ASSET ALLOCATION 
CURRENTRELATIONSHIPMARKETVALUE: $2,829,962 

W] Equity 

g Fixed Income 

[fil Inflation Hedges 

• Hedged Strategies 

~ Cash & Currency 

D Other Assets 

MARKET VALUE (MIV) 
As of 7/31/20U 

NET CONTRIBUTIONS 
(WITIIDRAW ALS) 

TOTAL PRINCIPAL 
TOTAL INCOME 

TOTAL 

Net contribution/withdrawal figures include fees. Market value figure; include occruals. 

52,842,462 
($12,500) 

S2 829 962 

so 
so 

so 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

100% 

MARKET VALUE (M/V) 
CHAi"lGE 

so 
so 

so 

MARKET VALUE (M/V) 
As of 8/31/20U 

$2,842,462 
($12,500) 

$2 829 962 

Page 1 of 7 

I llllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll llll llll 
2012-09-0600001123100000 M5Bl602671 0001 0001130206 000023998 00001500 088949-000 H 

BATES NO. EIB 000197 
02/27/2017
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TOTAL PRINCIPAL 
TOTAL INCOME 

TOTAL 

WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Income Summary 

From 7/31/2012 
TAXABLE 

so 
so 

$0 

088949-000 TT/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 Page 2 of 7 

through 8/31/20U Calendar Year to Date 
TAX EXEMPT TAXABLE TAX EXEMPT 

so $0 so 
so so so 

so $0 $0 

Realized Gain/(Loss) Summary 

TOTAL PRINCIPAL 

TOTAL 

Re:ilizerl girin/(loss) figures do not include currency gain/(loss). 

From 7 /31/2012 through 8/31/20U Calendar Year to Date 
SHORT TERlVI LONG TERM SHORT TERM LONG TERM 

so $0 $0 so 

$0 $0 $0 $0 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB1602671 0001 0001130206 000023998 00001500 oar -noo H 

BATES NO. EIB 000198 
02/27/2017
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INVESTMENT CATEGORY 

PRINCIPAL PORTFOLIO(S) 
Cash &. Currency 

Uninvested Cash 

0 WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Summary of Investments 

TOTAL Cash & Currency 

Other Assets 
Privately Held Partnerships 

TOTAL Other Assets 

TOTAL PRINCIPAL PORTFOLIO(S) 

INCOME PORTFOLIO(S) 
Cash &. Currency 

Uninvested Cash 

TOTAL Cash & Currency 

TOTAL INCOME PORTFOLIO(S) 

GRAND TOTAL(S) 

11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

088949-000 TT/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 

MARKET VALUE (MIV) % OF MARKET VALUE (MIV) 
As of 713112012 M/V As of 8/31/2012 

(S729.06) (0.03) ($729.06) 

(729.06) (0.03) (729.06) 

2,843,190.72 100.03 2,843,190.72 

2,843,190.72 100.03 2,843,190.72 

2,842,461.66 100.00 2,842,461.66 

(12,500.00) 100.00 (12,500.00) 

(12,500.00) 100.00 (12,500.00) 

(12,500.00) 100.00 (12,500.00) 

2,829,961.66 2,829,961.66 

~\ 

) 

Page 3 of 7 

% OF 
MN 

(0.03) 

(0.03) 

100.03 

100.03 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB 1602671 0001 0001130206 000023997 00161000 088949-000 H 
BATES NO. EIB 000199 

02/27/2017
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PRINCIPAL 

WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Summary of Activity 

OPENING CASH & CASH MANAGEMENT BALANCES: 

RECEIPTS 

:-;fo activity during this period 

DISBURSEMENTS 

No activity during this period 

CLOSING CASH & CASH MANAGEMENT BALfu'\fCES: 

INCOME 
OPENING CASH & CASH MANAGEMENT BALAt'\lCES: 

RECEIPTS 

No activity during this period 

DISBURSEMENTS 

No activity during this period 

CLOSING CASH & CASH MAi'IAGEMENT BALA.t'ICES: 

088949-000 IT/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

August 1, 2012 through August 31, 2012 Page 4 of 7 

AMOUNT 

(S729.06) 

(729.06) 

(12,500.00) 

(12,500.00) 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB16D2671 0001 0001130206 000023997 00163000 osr noo H 

BATES NO. EIB 000200 
02/27/2017
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QYANTITY 
DESCRIPTION 

PRINCIPAL PORTFOLIO(S) 

Cash & Currency 
(729.0600) 
CASH 

TOTAL Cash & Currenc;t 
Other Assets 

0 WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Investment Detail 

MARKET VALUE (M/V) 

MARKET UNIT PRICE 

(5729.06) 
1.0000 

(729.06) 

2,843,190.72 
BERNSTEIN FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LLLP 
(49.5% INTEREST) 
CUSIP 99W764AB3 

TOT AL Other Assets 2,843,190.72 

TOTAL PRINCIPAL PORTFOLIO~S) 218421461.66 

INCOME PORTFOLIO(S) 
Cash & Currency 

(12,500.0000) (12,500.00) 
CASH 1.0000 

TOTAL Cash & Currenc;t (12,500.00) 

TOTAL INCOME PORTFOLIO(S) (121SOO.OO) 

GR.AND TOTAL~S~ 218291961.66 

I llllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll lllll llll llll 

%MN 

(0.03) 

(0.03) 

100.03 

100.03 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

100.00 

i' 
\ ) 

088949-000 TT/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 Page 5 of 7 

FEDERAL TAX COST UNREAUZED ACCRUED ESTIMATED YIELD(%) 

AVERAGE UNIT COST GAIN/(LOSS) INCOME ANNUAL INCOME YIM(%) 

($729.06) S0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 
1.00 

(729.06) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,915,456.39 927,734.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,915,456.39 927,734.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 

119141727.33 9271734.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(12,500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1.00 

(12,500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

~121500.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

119021227.33 927z734.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB1602671 0001 0001130206 000023996 00161500 088949-000 H 

BATES NO. EIB 000201 
02/27/2017
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DATE TYPE 

PRINCIPAL 

':~2 WILMINGTON 
·~TRUST 

Activity Detail 

OPENING CASH & CASH MANAGEMENT BALAi.'l!CES: 

Cash balances are invested on a dailv basis. 

No activity during this period 

CLOSING CASH & CASH MAi.'llAGEMENT BALAi.'\lCES: 

INCOME 
OPENING CASH & CASH MANAGEMENT BALANCES: 

Cash balances are invested on a dailv basis. 

No activity during this period 

CLOSING CASH & CASH MAi.'\lAGEMENT BALAi.'\lCES: 

\ 

088949-000 TT /SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

August 1, 2012 through August 31, 2012 Page 6 of 7 

Q.UAi'\ITilY DESCRIPTION Ai'\10UNT 

(S729.06) 

(729.06) 

(12,500.00) 

(12,500.00) 

2012-09-0600001123100000 MSB1602671 0001 0001130206 000023996 00163500 OB,!" '1JO H 

_/ BATES NO. EIB 000202 
02/27/2017
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0 WILMINGTON 
TRUST 

Other Information 

The market value and estimated income information contained in this statement reflect market 
quotations at the close of your statement period and may not reflect current values. This statement 
should not be used to prepare tax documents. Information for tax reporting purposes will be 
reflected in your annual Wilmington Trust Tax Information Letter. Please contact your relationship 
manager if you have any questions. 

088949-000 TI/SIMON L BERNSTEIN IRREVTR 

As of August 31, 2012 

The Estimated Annual Income (EAl) has been provided for comparison purposes only. EAl may be based 
on historical information for equities and commingled vehicles such as funds and private placements. 

You have 180 days from your receipt of this report to notify Wilmington Trust in writing of your 
objection to or disapproval of any item set forth in this report. If you do not deliver a written 
objection or disapproval to Wilmington Trust within the time period stated above, the matters 
contained in this report shall be deemed to be approved by you and you will be prevented from later 
asserting any objection or disapproval. 

If you do make an objection or disapproval of any item set forth in this report your claim will be 
limited to the applicable state statute of limitations and will begin to run on the date that you 
received this report. A claim may be precluded earlier by adjudication, release, consent, limitation 
or otherwise.We suggest that you consult with your attorney concerning limitation periods that may 
affect your rights to bring a claim. 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA, IN AND 
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

IN RE:      Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN, 

Deceased. 

________________________________/ 

MOTION IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO (i) APPROVE 
COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT, (ii) APPOINT A TRUSTEE FOR THE TRUSTS 

CREATED FOR D.B., JA.B. AND JO.B., AND (iii) DETERMINE COMPENSATION 
FOR GUARDIAN AD LITEM (2) CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE 

 
1. I am an “interested person” and named beneficiary in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein and 

Simon Bernstein and contrary to the filings and positions of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose, I do in fact have “Standing” to be heard in all of these cases and am a 

named beneficiary in the dispositive documents and Object to all of these motions which 

require evidentiary hearings to be heard at a UMC hearing and respectfully request that 

proper Special Set Hearings be calendared after Dec. 15, 2016 as I remain under Medical 

Care as all the parties are aware.  See attached Exhibit 1 - MD Note.  

2. There is no Order issued on the “standing” issue in the case of the Estate of Shirley 

Bernstein and Simon Bernstein despite the misleading claims of Alan Rose to this Court 

in his pleading in further attempts to obstruct justice. 

3. I file these Objections for all 3 cases in which Ted Bernstein and attorney Alan Rose have 

recently moved this Court for relief on November 22, 2016 improperly moved for relief 

at UMC Hearings under Case Numbers: 

a. Case # 502012CP004391XXXXSB – Simon Bernstein Estate 

Filing # 49176982 E-Filed 11/21/2016 07:13:30 PM
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b. Case # 502011CP000653XXXXSB – Shirley Bernstein Estate 

c. Case # 502014CP003698XXXXNB – Shirley Trust Construction 

4. Both Ted Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose are well aware of the Serious Medical 

conditions I am under and have been provided copies on multiple occasions from a 

Florida Licensed Doctor of Doctor’s Instructions to Avoid Stress, which could result in 

life threatening injury.  Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose have known this for many weeks 

now as this condition has been raised in filings at the 4th District Court of Appeals.  

5. I made a written request by email and asked attorney Alan Rose to voluntarily 

Reschedule these motions off the Nov. 22nd calendar based on the ongoing Medical 

treatment and instructions until after December 15th, 2016 but Mr. Rose has refused to do 

so. Proof of the Medical Treatment and Ongoing Care was attached to my request.  See 

Attached Exhibit 2 - Email to Rose re Reschedule Hearings.  

6. I reserve the right to file more detailed Objections to all of the relief requested by Ted 

Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose in these 3 cases and seek an Extension of Time and 

/ Or Continuance to do so based upon Serious Medical conditions and the failure to be 

properly served in these matters.  

7. This Court is notified that virtually every Order in all of the cases of prior Judges Colin 

and Phillips are subject to being vacated under Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 1.540(b) 

on Fraud grounds but because of my medical conditions and the limited amount of time I 

can dedicate each day that it will take me 30 days to prepare and file proper motions for 

each case, which is subject to schedule change as in addition to repeated “sharp 

practices” by multiple attorneys including Alan Rose for Ted Bernstein and Steve Lessne 

for the Oppenheimer Trust case I am regularly faced with having to respond to 
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improperly Noticed motions and hearings and then subject to “tag teaming” motions in 

the 15th Judicial Court cases timed to coincide with Appeal deadlines at the 4th DCA.  

For example on this day, Nov. 22, 2016, I am hit with 3 hearings in this Court and 3 

briefs due at the 4th DCA and all while all parties have full notice of the dangers of stress 

medically to me at this time.  

8. Further, that both attorney Alan Rose and his client Ted Bernstein have mislead the prior 

Courts and are now misleading this Court under newly Assigned Judge Scher  through an 

elaborate evolving “storyline” that changes over time but will not withstand proper 

Evidentiary hearings after proper Discovery.  

9. Unraveling the multi-year elaborate scheme takes time which is further why I request an 

Extension and Continuance to file further Objections as in some instances there are 

contradictory statements from Ted Bernstein, Alan Rose and others from statements 

made to the PBSO, in some instances the statements are contradictory to prior Testimony 

in the cases, in other instances contradictory to other filings and so on.   

10. In the Notice of Administration document filed in the Shirley Bernstein case, I am in fact 

listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are nowhere Noticed or listed in this 

Document. Attached Exhibit 3- Shirley Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

11.  In the Notice of Administration document sworn to and filed by attorneys Tescher & 

Spallina in the Estate of Simon Bernstein under Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXSB, 

once again I am listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are never Noticed or 

mentioned.  Attached Exhibit 4 - Simon Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

12. In addition to “Standing” having never been determined by any Order in the Shirley 

Bernstein Estate case, the “Standing” issues were never determined by Judge Phillips at 
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any Evidentiary Hearing or after any Construction hearing, as none has ever been held, 

but instead was determined at a Non-evidentiary UMC Hearing and my “standing” was 

removed in several of the cases based on the fact that I could not quote the proper Statute 

section during a UMC hearing despite my stating that I was a named beneficiary in the 

documents, an interested party and guardian for my children.  

13. The alleged “Validity Trial” which is on Appeal to the 4th District Court of Appeals not 

only was Ordered in an improper case after Judge Phillips was mislead or just went along 

with Alan Rose, but even the “Validity” trial hearings held were not hearings on the 

“construction” of the alleged documents and no standing hearing occurred nor any 

construction hearing.  

14. This Court is Noticed that just one of the misleading acts of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose is failing to notify Judge Phillips at an alleged Guardianship hearing 

conducted improperly without proper Recordings and procedure that the Dead body of 

one Mitchell Huhem, age 45, was found at one of the very properties from these Estate 

and Trust cases being the primary residence of my parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein 

at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl shortly after moving into the home after a 

contested Probate Sale, being allegedly found on or around FEB. 23rd,  2015 after 

discovering likely Felony Fraud in the Incorporation and setup of a Land Trust to transfer 

this property by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose and that the Dead body was allegedly from 

Gunshot wounds to the head so gruesome that allegedly Mitchell Huhem’s wife Debra 

Huhem did not even look at the body.  

15.  This improperly conducted Guardianship hearing with Judge Phillips came after a 

Motion Hearing the same day in the US District Court of Illinois in relation to litigation 
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over “missing” Life Insurance policies of Simon Bernstein and missing Trusts where I 

had filed a Motion for Injunctive relief under the All Writs Act in the federal Court due to 

the extensive and pervasive fraud in the cases, Missing Discovery, Missing Documents 

and Missing “Millions” unaccounted for in these cases where it was known several days 

before to parties involved with Mitch Huhem that I would be reporting the fraud 

discovered in the Incorporation of the Land Trust to federal authorities and into the 

federal court.  

16. That home furnishings in the home where all property of Shirley Bernstein’s Estate when 

she died and none are listed on the Shirley Bernstein Inventory and therefore as it was her 

Personal Property it should have been inventoried at her death. 

17.  Despite the All Writs act Injunction Petition showing the Missing “Millions” and 

Missing documents and evidence in the related cases which also notified the Federal 

Court of the newly discovered fraud in the Incorporation of the Land Trust allegedly used 

to improperly transfer Trust and Estate property to Mitchell Huhem and his wife 

Deborah, neither Ted Bernstein nor the attorneys acting for him on this day notified the 

Federal Court that Mitchell Huhem’s dead body had just been found at the Lions Head 

lane property allegedly 2 days before the Court hearing in federal Court.  

18. While the US District Court did not grant the immediate Injunctive relief sought in that 

Court, it also did not strike the Petition and issued a Minute Order denying to strike the 

Petition from the federal court proceeding.  

19. Yet, later the same day, Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose show up at Judge Phillip’s Court 

for the improperly heard Guardianship proceeding failing to Notify the State Court that 

one of the parties that Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose were doing Estate and Trust property 
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business with alleged as fraudulent by myself was now Dead allegedly by Gun Wounds 

to the head at the very same property.  

20. Attached as Exhibit 5 is the All Writs Act injunction Petition which I incorporate herein 

by reference and can be used as a roadmap to this Court on the extensive frauds, conflicts 

of interests, Missing Documents, Missing evidence, Missing records and Missing 

“Millions” such that all motions by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose should be denied at this 

time and a continuance or extension granted to file completed motions with this Court 

and schedule necessary Evidentiary hearings after Discovery and even Depositions.  

21.  This Court is further notified that Ted Bernstein’s sworn Petition attempting to close this 

Estate conflicts in part with prior Hearings even with Judge Colin and an extension 

granted for further motions to be filed herein.  

22. Upon information and belief, the source being documents and information obtained 

through the Freedom of Information laws of Florida from the Palm Beach County 

Sheriff’s Office (“PBSO”) and Palm Beach County Medical Examiner’s Office in the 

Mitch Huhem Death case at the Lions Head Lane property, Ted Bernstein is the ONLY 

Central witness who apparently Refused to have his Statement Recorded by the PBSO 

in the Huhem Investigation despite allegedly being Scheduled to Meet with Mitch Huhem 

on the day in question when the Dead body was Discovered with the gruesome Gun Shot 

wounds to the head.  

23. In fact, despite being scheduled for a Business Meeting with Mitch Huhem on the very 

day in question, Ted Bernstein’s “statement” was not taken by the PBSO until several 

months after the body was found. See, Attached Exhibit 6 - Ted Bernstein Statement 

Huhem PBSO Homicide Investigation..  
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24. While thus far the PBSO has ruled the death a Suicide, there are Open Internal Affairs 

investigations not only relating to the crimes alleged in these Estate and Trust cases by 

Ted Bernstein and others but also an Open part in relation to the Huhem investigation 

where upon information and belief there are contradictory records and statements about 

when the body was first discovered and by who and the time of death and other.  

25.  This Court is also notified that Ted Bernstein has testified at the Validity Trial to never 

having seen or been in possession of any ORIGINALS of the Dispositive Documents in 

these cases while attorney Alan Rose is mixed up in the chain of custody of other certain 

“originals” and should be conflicted out as a Witness at this time.  See Attached Exhibit 5 

-  All Writs.  

26. The Court should further be aware that there have already been Admissions to fraud and 

forgery in the Shirley Estate case by Tescher & Spallina employee and Notary Kimberly 

Moran. 

27. Further, that lead Partner Donald Tescher on the Simon and Shirley Estates and Trusts 

plans admitted in Depositions that other frauds were discovered in the case committed by 

his Partner Robert Spallina but his firm kept silent for nearly a year on their wrongdoing, 

Spallina even denying knowledge of further misconduct to this Court while knowing of 

frauds he committed. See Attached Exhibit 7 - Deposition Tescher1  

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709TescherDepositionAndE
xhibits.pdf  

28. This Court is further Notified that attorneys Tescher and Spallina entered into Consent 

Orders with the SEC in relation to improper Fiduciary conduct in an Insider Trading case 

which upon information and belief still has an Open FBI Investigation to one of the 

                                                 
1 Donald Tescher Deposition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20E
xhibits.pdf  
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central Fiduciaries from these Estate and Trust cases. See, Attached Exhibit 8 - SEC 

Consent Orders for Robert Spallina, Esq. and Donald Tescher, Esq.  

29.  Further, that serious Due process issues are also raised in relation to the improperly held 

“Validity” Trial which includes but is certainly not limited to Missing Discovery and 

absence of standard Pre-Trial and improperly limiting such Trial to preclude necessary 

Witnesses such as Donald Tescher and Kimberly Moran and others.  

30. I make reference to a series of Filings that have not been properly heard in these 

proceedings and that related to the widespread fraud alleged and already proven in certain 

instances and that these should be considered for further Scheduling in all of these cases: 

a. May 2013 Emergency Hearing Fraud Simon and Shirley Estate and Trust Cases - 

Injunction 

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20S

IGNED%20Petition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf  

b. All Writs Motion on Judge Colin’s Disqualification and as a Necessary Material 
Fact Witness 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20R
EDO%20All%20Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%2
0Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20ST
AMPED%20COPY.pdf  

c. Disqualification Motion Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTARIZED%20Disqualification%20of%20Florida%20Circuit%20
Court%20Judge%20John%20L%20Phillips%20ECF%20STAMPED.pdf  
Notice of Corrections to Phillips Disqualification 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20141204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTICE%20OF%20CORRECTIONS%20DISQUALIFICATION%
20JUDGE%20PHILLIPS.pdf  
Motion for New Trial Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20E
SIGNED%20MOTION%20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTI
ON%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
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31. In the Dec 15, 2015 hearing Spallina admits further new frauds regarding the estate and 

trusts of Shirley Bernstein, including federal mail fraud and fraudulent creation of a 

Shirley Trust Agreement and dissemination of the document to my minor children’s 

counsel, Christine C. Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott law firm. 

32. The April 09, 2012 Petition for Discharge is fraudulent and already exposed as fraudulent 

by Colin, who proffered at the time, in a September 13, 2013 hearing upon discovery that 

the April 09, 2012 document was deposited with the Court fraudulently POST MORTEM 

for Simon Bernstein by Ted Bernstein’s counsel, Tescher & Spallina, PA and therefore 

was  yet another not legally valid document, constituting enough evidence at the time of 

fraud on the court and fraud on the beneficiaries for Colin to state he had enough 

evidence from their admissions to read Ted Bernstein, Robert Spallina, Donald Tescher 

and Mark Manceri their Miranda rights.   

33. Colin made this statement regarding Miranda’s twice in that hearing, once in regard to 

the Moran six fraudulently notarized and forged filings for six separate parties, including 

my father Post Mortem and once in regard to the April 09, 2012 document fraud in 

attorney Spallina filing documents using my father’s identity to close the estate of my 

mother at a long after he was dead, without noticing the Court or properly electing a 

successor PR to have filed closing documents legally.  This was all part of an ongoing 

fraud that continues in this renewed effort to close the Shirley estate through further false 

and misleading pleadings where it was the frauds and forgeries that led to my mother’s 

estate being reopened. 

34. The estate cannot be reclosed at this time as no objections to accountings and inventories 

have been heard that are filed and it is now known that approximately $1,000,000.00 or 

BATES NO. EIB 000212 
02/27/2017



more of assets was not included in Shirley’s inventory (a fully paid for Bentley, a 

$250,000.00 wedding ring and furnishings, art and more)  and these items have not been 

amended to Shirley’s inventory, despite Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being made fully 

aware of their existence for several years. 

35. Eliot Bernstein does not waive any rights to accountings in any of these 3 cases and 

believes a full audited Final Accounting starting from the date of death forward must be 

completed. 

36. Eliot Bernstein was not properly noticed of this hearing and all parties could not have 

consented to the Motion proposed, as I, Eliot Ivan Bernstein have not, nor have my 

children. 

37. No Guardian was appointed in this case and thus Diana Lewis acting as Guardian in this 

matter to give consent to the Motion filed by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose is invalid and 

deserving of sanctions and criminal legal action for attempted financial exploitation of a 

minor.  Diana Lewis should be instantly removed from this case and all cases and cease 

any illegal interference and obstruction. 

38. On information and belief, Joshua Ennio Zander Bernstein is an adult and no legal 

guardianship has ever been obtained for him as such and therefore he also has not granted 

consent to any Motion filed to Reclose the Estate of his grandmother Shirley Bernstein.  

Diana Lewis is aware that Joshua was an adult when an improper guardianship was 

issued to her representing him falsely as a minor to the Court and again this may be 

further criminal misconduct. 

39. That the Court has an obligation under Judicial Canons and Law to report these alleged 

serious felony acts of Obstruction, fraudulent and misleading pleadings of attorneys, 
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guardians and judges involved in these matters and more to the proper state ethical and 

criminal authorities. 

40. It is respectfully submitted that a Case Management Conference is proper for each case 

so that Hearings can be scheduled after Discover is opened and Depositions of Ted 

Bernstein, Donald Tescher, Robert Spallina, Kimberly Moran, Alan Rose and others are 

completed,  

Wherefore, it is respectfully prayed for an Order denying the Motions filed by Ted 

Bernstein and Alan Rose in each of these 3 cases and denying said relief at a UMC Hearing and 

granting and extension and or continuance as appropriate for Eliot Bernstein to file complete 

objections and motions to vacate as appropriate and who further seeks reimbursement of all court 

costs including $120.00 for Court Call that they said could not be waived for indigent parties.  

Due to Fraud on the Court in these cases proven and further alleged, Pro Se Indigent Eliot 

Bernstein is seeking an Order of this Court to VideoTape or Audio Record and Transcript all 

hearings, UMC, Evidentiary, etc. to prevent and preclude further sharp practices and violations 

of law without record.  Since the Fraud has taken place on and in the Court by Court Appointed 

Officers (Attorneys and Fiduciaries) it should be on the Court’s own motion to ensure the 

preclusion of further fraud and protect the litigants. 

Dated: November 21th, 2016 

 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished to counsel of 

record and the proper parties on the attached Service List via the Court's e-portal system or 

Email Service on this 21st day of November, 2016. 

. 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
  

SERVICE LIST 

Theodore Stuart Bernstein 
Life Insurance Concepts 
950 Peninsula Corporate Circle, Suite 
3010 
Boca Raton, Florida 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.co
m 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald 
& Rose, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, 
Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
33401 
(561) 355‐6991 
arose@pm‐law.com  
and 
arose@mrachek‐law.com  

John J. Pankauski, Esq. 
Pankauski Law Firm PLLC 
120 South Olive Avenue  
7th Floor  
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 514‐0900 
courtfilings@pankauskilawfirm.co
m 
john@pankauskilawfirm.com  
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Robert L. Spallina, Esq.,  
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
rspallina@tescherspallina.com  
kmoran@tescherspallina.com 
ddustin@tescherspallina.com 

Irwin J. Block, Esq. 
The Law Office of Irwin J. 
Block PL 
700 South Federal 
Highway 
Suite 200 
Boca Raton, Florida 
33432 
ijb@ijblegal.com  
lamb@kolawyers.com  

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., and 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.,  
2929 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 702 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 
mrmlaw@comcast.net  
mrmlaw1@gmail.com 

Donald Tescher, Esq., Tescher & 
Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com  

Peter Feaman, Esquire 
Peter M. Feaman, P.A. 
3695 W. Boynton Beach 
Blvd. 
Suite #9 
Boynton Beach, FL 33436 
Tel:  561.734.5552 
Fax: 561.734.5554 
pfeaman@feamanlaw.co
m  
service@feamanlaw.com 
mkoskey@feamanlaw.co
m 

Benjamin Brown, Esq., 
Thornton B Henry, Esq., and 
Peter Matwiczyk 
Matwiczyk & Brown, LLP 
625 No. Flagler Drive 
Suite 401 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
bbrown@matbrolaw.com  
attorneys@matbrolaw.com 
bhenry@matbrolaw.com  
pmatwiczyk@matbrolaw.com  

William H. Glasko, Esq. 
Golden Cowan, P.A. 
1734 South Dixie Highway 
Palmetto Bay, FL 33157 
bill@palmettobaylaw.com  
eservice@palmettobaylaw.com  
tmealy@gcprobatelaw.com  

Alexandra Bernstein 
3000 Washington Blvd, 
Apt 424 
Arlington, VA, 22201 
alb07c@gmail.com  

Kimberly Moran 
kmoran@tescherspallina.com  
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Michael Bernstein 
2231 Bloods Grove Circle 
Delray Beach, FL 33445 
mchl_bernstein@yahoo.com  

John P Morrissey. Esq.  
John P. Morrissey, P.A. 
330 Clematis Street 
Suite 213  
West Palm Beach, FL 
33401 
john@jmorrisseylaw.com  

Joshua, Jacob and Daniel 
Bernstein, Minors 
c/o Eliot and Candice Bernstein, 
Parents and Natural Guardians 
2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 
iviewit@iviewit.tv  

Julia Iantoni, a Minor 
c/o Guy and Jill Iantoni, 
Her Parents and Natural Guardians 
210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Carley & Max Friedstein, 
c/o Jeffrey and Lisa 
Friedstein 
Parents and Natural 
Guardians 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 6003 
Lisa@friedsteins.com   
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 

Molly Simon 
1731 N. Old Pueblo Drive 
Tucson, AZ 85745 
molly.simon1203@gmail.com 

Brian M. O'Connell, Esq. 
Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell 
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561‐832‐5900‐Telephone 
561‐833‐4209 ‐ Facsimile 
Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com; 
ifoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com; 
service@ciklinlubitz.com; 
slobdell@ciklinliibitz.com 

Pamela Beth Simon 
950 N. Michigan Avenue 
Apartment 2603 
Chicago, IL 60611 
psimon@stpcorp.com 

Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 
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Lisa Sue Friedstein 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

   

EXHIBITS 
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EXHIBIT 1 - MD NOTE 

BATES NO. EIB 000219 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000220 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000221 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000222 
02/27/2017



 

EXHIBIT 2 - Email to Rose re Reschedule Hearings 
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1

Eliot Bernstein

From: Eliot Bernstein <iviewit5@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2016 1:05 PM
To: Alan B. Rose Esq. (mchandler@mrachek-law.com); Alan B. Rose Esq. @ Mrachek, 

Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A. (arose@mrachek-law.com); Brian M. 
O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell   
(boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com); Don Tescher; Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ 
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. (dtescher@tescherspallina.com); Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ 
Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & 
O'Connell (jfoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com); Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A. (mrmlaw@comcast.net); Peter Feaman (mkoskey@feamanlaw.com); Peter Feaman, 
Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A. (pfeaman@feamanlaw.com); Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
(rspallina@tescherspallina.com); Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A.  (steven.lessne@gray-robinson.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. 
(eservice@gunster.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. (jhoppel@gunster.com); Steven A. 
Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. (slessne@gunster.com)

Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ 
Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein 
(tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock-It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 
'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc R. 
Garber Esq.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP'

Subject: Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose Reply - RE: CORRECTION OF DATE - Voluntary Request to 
Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

Mr. Rose and Ted Bernstein,  
 
Your fraud and the frauds of all of cases you both are involved in will be fairly heard and determined.  
 
The Damages and Harm you and your Client and others have caused to the Estates and Trusts and proper Beneficiaries 
will be fairly heard and fully determined.  
 
Your words are and have been basically meaningless, except of course where you have demonstrated fraud and other 
misconduct, those words will prove to have serious meaning.  
 
Do you or your client currently Own any real property as I believe that Homestead will not be protected for fiducial 
violations, if so please attach the addresses of each?  
 
I notice and make a record on this Friday, November 11, 2016, that you continue to FAIL to provide copies of any of the 
alleged Trusts and originals you speak about.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Eliot Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot Bernstein as POA for Josh Bernstein Eliot Bernstein as Trustee for the Eliot Bernstein Family Trust 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek‐law.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 11:45 PM 
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To: 'Eliot Ivan Bernstein'; Marie Chandler; 'Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell '; 'Don 
Tescher'; 'Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit 
Technologies, Inc.'; 'Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell'; 'Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.'; 'Peter Feaman'; 'Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.'; 'Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Robert Spallina'; 'Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A. '; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & 
Stewart, P.A.' 
Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein (tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It 
Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc 
R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: RE: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
You have been determined to lack standing, and are in no position to object to a settlement between the 
trustees/beneficiaries of trusts, including the court‐appointed Guardian ad Litem.  
 
You have caused lengthy delays.  I already reset this for Mr. Feaman, and we intend to proceed on the settlement 
motion as set. 
 
I also am not inclined to move the status conference, but will confer with Mr. O'Connell and let you know if we are 
willing to move that hearing. 
 
 
 
    Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
    arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 
    561.355.6991 
 
 
    505 South Flagler Drive 
    Suite 600  
    West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
    561.655.2250 Phone 
    561.655.5537 Fax 
                                                           
      
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY PRIVILEGED AND 
CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS 
MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR 
COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E‐MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service (Circular 
230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments), unless 
otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the 
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue Code or (2) promoting, marketing or 
recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If you 
have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat Reader, 
available at: http://www.adobe.com 
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‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Eliot Ivan Bernstein [mailto:iviewit11@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 10:31 PM 
To: Marie Chandler; Alan Rose; Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell ; Don Tescher; 
Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; 
Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell; Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A.; Peter Feaman; Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.; Robert L. Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney 
at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ GrayRobinson, P.A. ; Steven A. 
Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
Cc: Kevin R. Hall; Barbara Stone; JoAnne M. Denison Esq.; Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline 
Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; iviewit@gmail.com; 'Marc R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster 
Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Please note the date in the subject line of the email had an incorrect date for the hearing at issue which is corrected to 
Nov 22, 2016.  Thank You, Eliot 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
 
Subject:  Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2015 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Mr. Alan Rose,  
 
I am requesting that your office voluntarily reschedule and remove from the Nov. 22, 2016 calendar your Motion in 
CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH until after Dec. 15, 2016.   
 
I have attached an updated Medical Instruction from a proper Dr. in Florida prescribing avoiding all stress until Dec. 
15th, 2016 and follow‐up care.  Your office is more than aware of this situation from the motions filed at the 4th District 
Court of Appeals.  
 
I am certain that Peter Feaman, Esq. will consent and agree on behalf of William Stansbury.  
 
Your continued "sharp practices" in general were noted and observed in your recent actions in the presently separate 
William Stansbury case under Case NO. 50 2012 CA 013933 MB AN where you filed late and improper Notice on a Friday 
afternoon for a Hearing on the following Monday and proper corrective efforts for that case are underway as well.  
 
A proper Motion in CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH will be made in the absence of your voluntary rescheduling.  
All acts of fraud will be addressed.  Eventually the wheel always comes around.  
 
Further, please provide copies of Any and All Trusts referred to in your recent motion together with a statement under 
oath as a currently licensed Florida attorney on the entire chain of custody leading to your office having possession of 
such Trust documents with an entire time line and each link in the chain of custody addressed.   
 
Thank you.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
Eliot I. Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot I. Bernstein, POA Josh Bernstein  
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL 

IN RE: EST A TE OF PROBATE DIVISION 

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, FileNo. 6'DdOll (!fOa?{p-:; 3X)(X'X~ 

Deceased. 

PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATION 
(testate Florida resident) 

Petitioner, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, alleges: ?.;~ ·-· 

::i:=. 

I . Petitioner has an interest in the above estate as the named personal repres~ntative uncer the 
co 

decedent's Will. The Petitioner's address is 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and.ftie name 
a 

and office address of petitioners attorney are set forth at the end of this Petition. 

2. Decedent, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, whose last known address was 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton, Florida 33496, whose age was 71, and whose social security number is xxx-x.x-9749, died on 

December 8, 20 I 0, at her home at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and on the date of 

death decedent was domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

3. So far as is known, the names of the beneficiaries of this estate and of decedent 's surviving 

spouse, if any, their addresses and relationship to decedent, and the dates of birth of any who are minors, are: 

NAME ADDRESS RELA TIONSHI BIRTH DATE 
p (if Minor) 

Simon L. Bernstein 7020 Lions Head Lane husband adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33496 

Ted S. Bernstein 880 Berkeley Street son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 

Pamela B. Simon 950 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 2603 daughter adult 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Eliot Bernstein 2753 NW 34th St. son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

8J.t fotm t:o. J>.).0100 

C Florid.1 Uvo~cn Stipp0n Scn"ica. 11:11::. 
Rn~'Cd Oaobc:1 I. 1991 

- I -
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Jill lantoni 

Lisa S. Friedstein 

210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 

2142 Churchill Lane 
highland Park, IL 60035 

daughter adult 

daughter adult 

4. Venue of this proceeding is in this county because decedent was a resident of Palm Beach 

County at the time of her death. 

5. Simon L. Bernstein, whose address is listed above, and who is qualified under the laws of 

the State of Florida to serve as personal representative of the decedent's estate is entitled to preference in 

appointment as personal representative because he is the person designated to serve as personal 

representative under the decedent's Will. 

6. The nature and approximate value of the assets in this estate are: tangible and intangib le 

assets with an approximate value of less than $_·Ti~ ..... 8~b _____ _ 
7. This estate will not be required to file a federal estate tax return. 

8. The original of the decedent's last will, dated May 20, 2008, is being filed simultaneously 

with this Petition with the Clerk of the Court for Palm Beach County, Florida. 

9. Petitioner is unaware of any unrevoked will or codicil of decedent other than as set forth in 

paragraph 8 . 

Petitioner requests that the decedent's Will be admitted to probate and that Simon L. 

Bernstein be appointed as personal representative of the estate of the decedent. 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing Petition for 

Adm;n;strnt;on, and the facts all~ are tru{j to the best 071nowledge and behef. 

Signed on re!] Z f I 
~ ~ ct~ 

Anomey for Pe1i1ioncr 
Florida Bar No. 0497381 
4855 Technology Way, Ste. 720 
Boca Ralon, FL 33431 
561-997-7008 

S:at Fonn No. p .. J.0100 
e F1orid:.t l..w')aJ Soppon .SC,,.ica., lot. 

Rn~al Octottr I. 1991 

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Petitioner 

- 2 -
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EXHIBIT 5 - All Writs Act Injunction Petition 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
  

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE  ) 
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,         ) 
                                                                     ) 
Plaintiff,                                                       )        Case No. 13 cv 3643 

                                                                     )        Honorable John Robert Blakey 

v.                                                                  )        Magistrate Mary M. Rowland 

                                                                     ) 
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE ) 
COMPANY, Eliot I. Bernstein,   ) 
Individually, and on behalf of the Minor ) 
Children JEZB, JNAB, and DEAOB, ) 
ET AL.                                 ) 
                                                                     )          

)        PETITION-MOTION FOR 

) INJUNCTION:  
)        Under the All Writs Act ( AWA ),       
)        Anti-Injunction Act ( AIA ) and Other  
)        relief  
)  
)          Third-Party Plaintiffs / Counter- 
)        Plaintiffs-Petitioners Eliot I. Bernstein,  
)         Individually and On behalf of Minor 

)         Children 

)         
)         
)         
)               

) 
                                                                     )        Filers: 

       )        Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Third-Party  
) Defendant and Counter-Plaintiff. 

 
 
 

Comes now Eliot Ivan Bernstein, being duly sworn, declares and says under oath and 
penalties of perjury as follows, on information and belief:  
 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 1 of 132 PageID #:3635
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INTRODUCTION  
 

1. I am over the age of 18 years and reside at 2753 NW 34th St, Boca Raton, Florida 33434, and 

am acting pro se herein.  

2. I make this Affidavit-Petition in good faith in support of an Emergency Motion for Injunctive 

Relief against all parties this District Court presently has jurisdiction over and for at least 

temporarily restraining the Florida Probate Court of Judge John Phillips by an appropriately 

tailored Order under the Anti-Injunction Act and All Writs Act under 28 USC Sec. 2283 and 28 

USC Sec. 1651(a) respectively until such time as this Court holds a Hearing and or Conference 

where Orderly Production of Discovery, Preservation of evidence, documents, records is 

obtained and where other issues such as the conflicts of interest and potential misconduct by the 

parties before this Court can be determined, determination of “side agreements” impacting the 

integrity of this Court’s litigation such as discussed in Winkler v Eli Lilly can be heard, and 

such other matters as to this Court seems just and proper.  

3. As this Court will see, with the newly discovered fraudulent company Lions Head Land Trust, 

Inc., with at least Ted Bernstein and his counsel Alan Rose who appeared for Ted Bernstein at a 

Deposition held for this Court just being discovered last week Feb. 18, 2016 as another vehicle 

of fraud to hide and secret away the transfer of assets valued in the millions is present, along 

with a series of orchestrated proceedings in the parallel litigation in the State Court including 

but not limited to attorneys Alan Rose and Steven Lessne submitting motions at a 5 Minute 

UMC motion calendar for attorneys fees in the hundreds of thousands without submitting any 

Billing statements to support, and being a flurry of motions to “wrap up” the Probate cases 

despite literally millions of dollars in assets never being accounted for there is a very real and 

imminent danger that the critical evidence, documents, records and Discovery necessary in aid 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 2 of 132 PageID #:3636
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of this Court’s own jurisdiction and integrity of this Court’s own proceedings will be 

permanently lost thus requiring this Court to now act with an appropriately tailored injunctive 

Order herein against parties already under this Court’s jurisdiction. 

4. I am specifically seeking to enjoin the parties under this Court’s jurisdiction, Ted Bernstein, 

Brian O’Connell and the Estate of Simon Bernstein, Alan Rose as Ted Bernstein’s attorney who 

represented him at a federal court Deposition herein and remains his Palm Beach attorney, 

Pamela Simon, David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein and Florida State 

Probate Judge John Phillips of the North Branch of Palm Beach County temporarily pending 

further Order of this Court and at least until proper evidence, documents and Discovery are both 

preserved and produced, until this Court sorts out conflicts of interest as set out herein and 

exercises its inherent powers to probe “side deals” compromising the integrity of this Court’s 

Jurisdiction and that such injunction should specifically include but not be limited to enjoining 

proceedings before Judge Phillips in Palm Beach County this Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 

PM Est and as this Court further deems proper.  

5. I further assert in good faith that this Court should find sufficient cause for such extra-ordinary 

exercise of the injunctive powers at least by the time it reaches that part of this complaint that 

describes  the new fraudulent company Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose are involved in secreting 

and hiding from the public record secreting multi-million dollar asset listed at $3.4 million 

allegedly sold for $1.1 Million by recent deed transfer to a false company titled Lions Head 

Land Trust, Inc, although there are further sections which describe with specificity and by  

“piece-meal” discovery the Millions in assets presently unaccounted for by these parties herein 

further justifying injunctive relief to schedule Orderly and proper discovery proceedings. 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 3 of 132 PageID #:3637
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6. Just one “piece-meal” disclosed item of documentary evidence shown later herein documents 

approximately $2.8 Million in just one of Simon Bernstein’s accounts at the time of his passing 

which to this day has never been accounted for which also does not include millions from 

other accounts and the millions of worth of Shirley Bernstein where in 5 years there has never 

been an accounting yet the core parties who brought this original action to your Court try to 

portray my parents as virtual paupers where all their records and financials and critical 

documents are “lost” which is a fraud itself.  

7. As shown throughout this complaint, the Discovery Abuses in the parallel State proceedings 

which justify exercise of this Court’s injunctive powers at this time are such that there has never 

been any coherent, complete disclosure of “Original” Trusts, Wills and related instruments nor 

any coherent presentation of the Estates and how these were managed despite sophisticated 

lawyers working in these cases Billing hundreds of thousands of dollars a clip.  

8. I submit that the naked human eye upon reviewing the piece-meal production of “copies” and 

magically timed surfacing of alleged “duplicate Originals” of the operative Trusts and other 

instruments herein can detect multiple signatures that appear “too identical’, “too evenly 

placed” on the page and multiple “identical” “Initials” such as “SB” that appear to be too 

perfectly aligned such that preservation of Original documents and all evidence becomes even 

more important in a case where proven, admitted to, documented fraud and forgery of important 

instruments in the Florida Court has already been established yet instead of the Court notifying 

any investigative authorities I am retaliated against for seeking truth and integrity in these 

proceedings.  

9. Because the amount and level of fraud is so pervasive and complex that is alleged to take place 

in and upon the Florida Court by Court Officers, Fiduciaries and Counsel and can not be stated 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 4 of 132 PageID #:3638
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in a few sentences and takes painstaking time to address, the remaining sections provide of this 

case while also supporting the motion for use of the Injunctive powers of this court also further 

provides background facts to the depth of the assets at stake, the depth of the fraud and claims 

and part of the basis upon which I will respectfully seek further Leave of this Court to amend 

my counter-cross complaints filed herein September 22, 2013 and further leave to Add parties 

but due to the continuing nearly daily distractions by the sharp, abuse of process practices in the 

Probate Court my proposed Amendments to my Cross-counterclaims are presently only in draft 

form and I respectfully seek leave of this Court to file and submit a proposed Amended 

Counter-cross complaint which not only seeks to add claims such as claims under 42 USC Sec. 

1983 but also parties as well.  

10. I ask this Court to note, however, that even in the process of submitting this Motion-Petition-

Complaint herein, I have experienced significant “downtime” at my website where the host 

Service provider that always responded timely in the past now does not respond sometimes for 

days and where the basic internet services into my home have been “down” at critical times 

where deadlines are in play and thus even this submission has been significantly delayed.  

11. I further point out that Ted Bernstein who is the one that suggested at the hospital that our father 

Simon Bernstein may have been poisoned and murdered also said he would be handling things 

with the authorities and had friend attorneys to do so and was on calls with a lawyer both from 

Greenberg Traurig and Robert Spallina and where Ted’s “storyline” of how and why he is “in 

charge” as “Trustee” has changed from day one while the delay denial of operative documents 

began day one in a case where my father’s body goes “missing” for a week allegedly out for 

autopsy at one location and where Simon Bernstein’s home computer containing years of 

valuable business records alone is found “wiped clean” on the night of his passing and where 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 5 of 132 PageID #:3639
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the Coroner’s Report comes back on a 113 yr old male while certainly Simon Bernstein was not 

that age at the time of passing. See, Email of Ted’s Calls Sept 14, 20121.  

12. As referenced later in this complaint herein, Greenberg Traurig has been publicly identified as 

being in the middle of major lawsuits for involvement in the multi-Billion Stanford Ponzi 

scheme where Stanford monies and accounts exceeding a Million dollars for my parents is just 

one of many items Unaccounted for where Discovery abuse has further occurred.  

13. I have attempted to organize this complex set of facts in the most logical and orderly manner 

under these emergency circumstances where my family grows in increasing imminent danger as 

described herein.     

14. I have read the Local Rules and believe I have complied in good faith and provided advance 

Notice of this Emergency Application to the involved parties Electronically by Email on Friday, 

Feb. 19, 2016 as follows:  

Service Case #13-cv-03643 - Notice per Local Rule of Application on Emergency 
Motion / Injunction US District Court Hon. John Robert Blakey 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
  
Parties, Attorneys and To Whom It May Concern: 
  
I am writing to give you all as current parties and / or attorneys and representatives for 
current parties in the Illinois federal court litigation and other parties to be added to the 
federal court litigation as much advance reasonable notice as possible that I intend to 
contact  Judge Blakey’s Courtroom Deputy, Gloria Lewis, at (312) 818-6699, to make a 
request to set a hearing on an emergency motion which will seek Injunctive relief 
against all parties currently under jurisdiction of the District Court of Illinois with a 
further request to enjoin at least temporarily all proceedings in the Court of Probate 
Judge John Phillips and also add other parties to the action and other relief. 
 
I will be requesting that this application be heard no later than this Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016 Motion Calendar in Judge Blakey's Court and since my actual filings may not be 
electronically uploaded until later today and over the weekend that such request be 
deemed an Emergency and thus appropriate to hear as soon as practical. 

                                                 
1September 14, 2012 Emails Ted Tescher Spallina and Greenberg Traurig’s Jon Swergold  
www.iviewit.tv/20120914SpallinaTescherTedGreenbergTraurigSwergoldDayAfterSimonDies.pdf  
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Please advise of your availability to hear this motion for this coming Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016. 
 
Eliot I. Bernstein 
Inventor 
Iviewit Holdings, Inc. – DL 
2753 N.W. 34th St. 
Boca Raton, Florida  33434-3459 
(561) 245.8588 (o) 
(561) 886.7628 (c) 
(561) 245-8644 (f) 
iviewit@iviewit.tv 
http://www.iviewit.tv  
 

15. I assert in good faith that hearing this Motion on an Emergency basis is proper due to a series of 

extortive, abusive, orchestrated actions of continued abuse of process in the Florida Probate 

Courts and by the Florida Probate Courts in conspiracy and or acting in concert with fiduciaries, 

counsel and others that are interfering and threaten to further interfere with this Court’s 

jurisdiction and the ability to orderly decide the claims before it as there is a real and serious 

imminent threat and danger that critical evidence, documents, records, Discovery and real and 

personal properties will be permanently lost imminently preventing this Court from properly 

adjudicating claims before it while these parties are simultaneously hiding millions of dollars of 

assets as shown later herein wholly Unaccounted for  and retaliating against and threatening 

myself with the Baker Act, Jail, Contempt and now a Guardianship on my children simply for 

seeking my inheritance, seeking the truth, reporting crimes as discovered against the fiduciaries 

and counsel primarily and now the Florida Courts are in high gear retaliating against the 

exercise of my First Amendment rights to suppress my whistleblowing that has uncovered and 

proven massive frauds against me committed on and by the Florida courts and its officers, 

fiduciaries and others.  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 7 of 132 PageID #:3641

BATES NO. EIB 000240 
02/27/2017



Page 7 of 132 

16. I respectfully remind this Court and Your Honor that it is my original fingerprint on the 

February 2009 Petition to the White House, White House Counsel’s Office2. USAG, FBI and a 

other investigative agencies and further that I have been interviewed with federal agents 

including but not limited to now “missing” FBI Agent Stephen Luchessi originally out of West 

Palm Beach FBI in Florida who went missing with the Iviewit case files causing my case to be 

elevated to the former Inspector General of the Department of Justice Glenn A. Fine who 

assigned a Miami field agent to my case, Harry I, Moatz the former Director of the Office of 

Enrollment of the US Patent Office who had me file charges of Fraud on the US Patent Office 

committed by my IP counsel that were members of the Federal Patent Bar that have led to a 

multi year suspension of my Intellectual Properties while investigations continue) and other 

federal agents like Ron Gardella out of the US Attorney’s Office in the SDNY ( now retired, I 

believe ), others in the SDNY US Attorney’s offices and other investigative bodies as well.  

17. The purpose for reminding Your Honor of these matters is to demonstrate that I have never been 

charged by any of these federal authorities for making a false frivolous statement or received 

adverse treatment yet in the Palm Beach County Probate proceedings I am being vilified and 

retaliated against just for pursuing my rights and those of my children of our inheritance herein 

and Technology rights while certain parties under this Court’s jurisdiction have attempted to 

have CPS take my children on a false report that came back unfounded which was initiated on 

the same day I notified this Court last May 2015 of threats against my life and this Court 

referred me to 9/11 services,  attempted through threat to Baker Act me for reporting/discussing 

fraud and crime to a “Mediator” out of Judge Phillips Court, and now are seeking to jail me and 

impose Guardianship against me this Thursday for topics like the Car bombing of my Mini-Van 

                                                 
2 February 13, 2009 Letter to Honorable President Barrack Obama 
http://www.scribd.com/doc/255176532/February-13-2009-Iviewit-Letter-to-Barrack-Obama-to-Join-Us-
Attorney-Eric-Holder-in-Iviewit-Federal-RICO-Shira-Scheindlin#scribd  
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in 2005 which was reported to the FBI and other authorities and other matters that have been 

reported to federal authorities thus retaliating against me being a Whistleblower of the Fraud on 

the Court and Fraud by the Court and its officers et al. and exercising First Amendment rights.  

18.   There have also been threats to take the home that my parents provided for my wife and 

children under a specific agreement to relocate to Boca Raton, Fl from California to be close to 

my parents and thus it is not unreasonable to suggest if I am falsey Baker acted or jailed the 

likely next moves are to take the home while I am cast away leaving my wife and children alone 

while I somehow have lost my “standing” at a 5 Minute UMC hearing in the State Court where 

no Construction Hearing has ever occurred on any of the operative documents and has elevated 

to even being blocked from filing responses to the motions in the Florida Probate Court, 

meanwhile literally years of no Accountings and Abusive discovery and “lost” items from 

sophisticated parties continues.  

Emergency: Imminent Permanent Loss of Critical Evidence. Documents, Discovery 
Necessary in Aid of this Court’s Jurisdiction: 

Status in the District Court, New and Recent Discovery of Undisclosed Conflicts of 
Interest, Feb. 18, 2016 Discovery of Fraudulent “Shell” Company to Hide Assets-Owner 

etc.  
19. While the parties are awaiting determination from this Court on the Summary Judgement 

motions filed by Plaintiffs, at least 2 scheduled Court Conferences with this Court have been re-

scheduled, yet still remaining before this Court even aside from the Summary Judgment 

motions are Petitioner Eliot Bernstein’s Answer and Counterclaims filed September 22, 2013 

asserting causes of action in Fraud, Fraud upon the Beneficiaries and Court, Abuse of Legal 

Process, Civil Conspiracy and Breach of Fiduciary Duties amongst others.  

20. On Jan. 13, 2014 in Docket Entry 71, prior Judge St. Eve issued a Minute Entry Order which 

provided in part as follows, “Discovery is hereby stayed until the proper Trustee is determined” 

thus acknowledging that determination of a “proper Trustee” is an issue in the case, which 
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remains disputed. The Trustee/Trust/Beneficiaries/Policy issues remains undetermined presently 

and this Court’s jurisdiction is imminently threatened by the permanent loss of evidence, 

documents and discovery by the parties orchestrating proceedings in Florida where this 

evidence and the parties in possession of such evidence should be enjoined herein.  

21. This Court itself, Hon. John G. Blakey, presiding, issued a Minute Entry Order on May 22, 

2015 under Docket Entry 185 that further provided in part as follows, “Bernstein's 

representations to the contrary notwithstanding, at this time the Court is unable to say that 

anyone has a clear right to the proceeds deposited by Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, 

let alone what each interested party's share should be.“ 

22. The same core parties and nucleus of operative facts are present in this US District Court 

litigation as the Probate matters in Florida and I further seek leave to file for Declaratory relief 

herein on the Trusts and Operating companies which are non-probate, and suggest judicial 

economy in this complex case with parties from multiple jurisdictions will ultimately be served 

by this Court taking jurisdiction over the Construction and validity of all the Trusts herein 

which are non-probate anyway and for Construction and Validity of the operative Wills as will 

be shown if I am granted leave to Amend my cross-counter complaint.   

23. As will be shown, just on Discovery abuses alone where Discovery and the Denial of Discovery 

has been used as a “weapon”  by the Plaintiffs and other parties in the related proceedings in the 

State Probate Court of Florida, there is a real and imminent danger that the Integrity of this 

Court’s judgment and path to judgment will be fundamentally impaired by the permanent loss 

of evidence and discovery materials justifying the exercise of the extra-ordinary relief under the 

All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act. 
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24. This evidence and documents and Discovery which “should answer” the outstanding questions 

before this Court of where the Original Trusts are, where the Original Policies are, where the 

Original records and where business records are that go along with Simon Bernstein’s life who 

made millions per year in the Insurance industry for decades and all items are directly relevant 

to the Life Insurance claim and  my counter-crossclaims.  

25. Instead, in the Florida Probate Court Simon Bernstein is falsely being portrayed as nearly a 

“pauper” with virtually no assets left and “Missing” and “losing” all ( or substantially all )  

Business documents and dispositive documents meticulously kept for Decades, at least 

according to Plaintiffs and the counsels working with Plaintiffs.  

26. Yet proper Discovery and Depositions would and should prove the contrary which is why this 

Court must act to preserve this evidence in the hands of multiple parties and some unknown 

parties where Discovery is necessary to specify the appropriate party and entity.  

27. Further, that sufficient evidence will be shown to justify this Court exercising its inherent 

powers to make inquiry of the parties and respective counsels about“side agreements” and other 

“agreements” outside the record of any proceedings impairing the integrity of proceedings in 

this Court similar to the inquiry discussed in Winkler v. Eli Lilly & Co., 101 F.3d 1196, 1202 

(7th Cir. 1996).  

28. This Court should be well aware of the “missing” and “lost” Trusts and Policies and business 

records which surround the original claim filed in this Court by the core party Plaintiffs and 

attorneys acting on their behalf which itself cut out Eliot Bernstein and his children as named, 

necessary parties tortiously attempting to deprive and deny rights of inheritance and expectancy 

to Eliot Bernstein and his children without their knowledge, which will be established as a 

pattern and practice that started the minute Simon Bernstein passed.  
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29. The need for proper Discovery and production and depositions should be plain and obvious to 

further aid this Court in it’s own exercise of  jurisdiction rendering a properly tailored 

Injunction under the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act proper at this time.  

Florida Probate Proceedings Scheduled for Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016, Judge Phillips at 3:15 
PM EST on Guardianship, Gag Orders, Jail-Contempt against Eliot etc Should be 

Temporarily Enjoined under All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act 
30. While I respectfully assert to this Court that ultimately the entirety and or virtual entirety of 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts are part of an orchestrated series of abusive and 

Constitutionally defective set of actions including continuing and ongoing Discovery abuse, this 

immediate appearance before Judge John L. Phillips in the North Branch of Palm Beach County 

should now be at least temporarily enjoined for all the reasons set forth herein until further 

Order of this Court.  

31. As will be shown herein, the entirety of these parallel proceedings in the Florida State Probate 

Court has been ripe with Discovery Abuse each step of the way, where documents, discovery 

and evidence are either completely denied and ignored, substantially delayed for years, 

fraudulently altered and forged and entered into the record and turned over in a “piece-meal” 

orchestrated fashion thwarting and frustrating any fair justice where, like in this District Court 

with the same core parties  where “magical” draft trust documents appear at critical times yet 

No Originals turned over for inspection or comparison and no law firms can be identified to 

have produced them.  

32. It is further noted that the original Curator attorney Ben Brown of the Simon Bernstein Estate 

never received Original productions from resigning attorneys Tescher & Spallina except for 

documents on Eliot Bernstein’s home and Ben Brown specifically complained about the piece-

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 12 of 132 PageID #:3646

BATES NO. EIB 000245 
02/27/2017



Page 12 of 132 

meal fashion records were turned over such as records from JP Morgan etc. and unsigned tax 

returns.   See, Ben Brown emails on Production and missing TPP.3  

33. Tescher & Spallina did turn over 7,000+ ( seven-thousand ) plus pages Bate Stamped copies of 

alleged documents but these were copies on a Zip drive turned over to the Curator at least 

according to Spallina after Judge Colin orchestrated for them to have at least 10 months to 

create / fabricate/ forge, redact records and evidence after my original May 6, 2013 Emergency 

Motion4 to seize all Records was filed after a series of fraudulent documents were discovered in 

the Estate of my mother Shirley Bernstein. The Emergency Motion of May 2013 was 

incorporated by reference in my September 2013 Answer and Cross-Counter claims in this 

District Court where I specifically pleaded for Discovery5.    

34. Many of these documents were “fluff” pages where the actual Account Statements were 

missing, not in sequential order etc and where several instances of irregularities in the Bates 

Stamps numbers themselves exist.  

35. Further, that Ben Brown had claimed to have obtained IRS Certified Returns he ordered months 

earlier for Simon Bernstein as Curator in 2014 and then suddenly died at a young age of 50 after 

resigning as Curator and to this day, successor PR Brian O’Connell’s office has Never obtained 

or Disclosed such IRS records from Ben Brown or independently obtained these from the IRS 

despite claiming they had ordered them months ago upon his getting his Letters as these records 

are critical as shown herein, just another example of Discovery Abuse throughout this case 

justifying use of the All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act at this time.  
                                                 
3Ben Brown Emails Re TPP, JP Morgan and Production  
www.iviewit.tv/BenBrownEmailsForFedInjunctionBlakey.pdf  
4May 06, 2013 Emergency Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20Petition%20F
reeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20LOW.pdf  
5September 22, 2013 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130922%20Eliot%20Answer%20and%20Cross%
20Claim%20Northern%20District%20Illinois%20Simon%20v%20Heritage%20Jackson%20Insurance.pdf  
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36. Such records are critical for a variety of reasons and it is asserted such Discovery will help 

show the manipulation and frauds upon even this District Court by the core parties herein under 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

New Conflicts of Interest emerge showing prior Judge Colin with substantial business 
interests with La Salle Bank-Trust who should be added to the District Court action and 
further Undisclosed Conflicts with PR Brian O’Connell for the Simon Bernstein Estate 

who is already under this Court’s Jurisdiction  
37. New evidence has only recently been discovered in these last weeks January-February 2016 as a 

result of investigations by the Palm Beach Post and Investigative Reporter John Pacenti6 into 

conflicts of interest and improper seizing of persons and property under Guardianship / Probate 

programs run by Palm Beach Judges Martin Colin and David French7 in other cases also 

involving Brian O’Connell and a former attorney for Ted named John Pankauski alleging a host 

of criminal and civil misconduct, which have revealed Judicial Financial Disclosures of Judge 

Martin Colin demonstrating a long term financial business relationship during all relevant years 

herein and involving several hundred thousand dollars of Loans with LaSalle Bank / LaSalle 

Trust which were never Disclosed in the underlying Probate cases related herein. 

38. La Salle Bank -Trust and-or whoever is the proper “successor” is directly implicated in the 

actions presently before this federal Court where I have raised in Summary Judgement that La 

Salle should be added as a party and Discovery is needed with respect to the original Life 

Insurance policy on the breach of contract action as La Salle is named as the Primary 

                                                 
6 January 14, 2016 “Judge’s finances show history of unpaid debt, IRS liens, foreclosures” By John 
Pacenti - Palm Beach Post Staff Writer 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/news/news/judges-finances-show-history-of-unpaid-debt-irs-li/np4rH/  
7Guardianship Series - Guardianship a Broken Trust http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-
colin-savitt/  
and Guardianship Probate Series Palm Beach Post Compiled PDF 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Pacenti%20Articles%20Compiled%20as%20of%20Feb%2002%202016L.pdf (Large 
and Sun Sentinel re Colin and wife Savitt 
http://www.sun-sentinel.com/opinion/editorials/fl-editorial-guardianship-law-20160129-
story.html#ifrndnlocgoogle  
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Beneficiary of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy owned by deceased Simon Bernstein 

brought to this Court by the same operative parties who have conveniently left LaSalle out of 

these federal proceedings in the same manner I and my minor children were left out as 

necessary parties in the action before this federal court. See, Summary Judgement Eliot 

Bernstein8.  

39. I note that the carrier Jackson in this Court suggested that Bank of America was the proper 

“successor” in interest in this case and information shows Bank of America is the entity that 

acquired LaSalle Bank where Judge Colin is shown by his own Financial Disclosures to have 

hundreds of thousands in Loans with La Salle at least for years 2008 to the end of 2014 thus 

during all relevant times herein.  

40. In the recent weeks leading up to the present, a series of Investigative Journal articles have been 

published by the Palm Beach Post showing a widespread abuse in the Palm Beach Court system 

specifically involving Judge Martin Colin where allegations of Double-billing by “inside” law 

firms, the “taking” of Guardian’s Assets “prior to Court approval”, and Undisclosed conflicts 

of interest are alleged.  

41. The allegations by the Palm Beach Post are remarkably similar to claims I have made for years 

while orchestrated Discovery abuses have occurred from the first days after my father Simon 

Bernstein’s passing.  

“The savings of incapacitated seniors flow into the household of Palm Beach 
County Circuit Judge Martin Colin. This occurs courtesy of Colin’s wife — 
Elizabeth “Betsy” Savitt. She serves as a professional guardian, appointed by 
judges to make decisions for adults who no longer can take care of themselves. . . 
. . . . . . . Savitt has taken money from the elderly people whose lives she 
controls without first getting a judge’s approval as well as double-billed their 
accounts, a Palm Beach Post investigation has uncovered in court records. 

                                                 
820150608 Amended Redo Summary Judgement 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150608%20FINAL%20AMENDED%20REDO%2
0Response%20to%20Summary%20Judgement%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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Families of some of the seniors say the judge’s wife and her attorneys drum up 
unnecessary litigation that runs up fees, benefiting herself, the judge and her 
lawyers. Savitt doesn’t appear before her husband, but Judge Colin does oversee 
other guardianship cases where he is responsible for safeguarding the finances 
and well-being of these “wards” of the court. Colin’s colleague, Circuit Judge 
David French who lunches with him regularly, has overseen almost two-thirds of 
Savitt’s cases. Some lawyers who have opposed Savitt in Judge French’s 
courtroom say he didn’t disclose that Savitt is the wife of a fellow judge or his 
social connections to the couple. . . . . . . . .The lawyers Savitt has hired to 
represent her also practiced before her husband in other cases, where he had the 
power to approve their fees. A former Florida Supreme Court chief justice and a 
law professor say this constitutes, at minimum, an appearance of impropriety and 
should be investigated. 
“This conflict puts the whole courthouse under a cloud because it raises so many 
questions and there are no answers forthcoming. And that is why we have a 
judicial canon on the appearance of impropriety, so there are no questions like 
this,” Nova Southeastern law Professor Robert Jarvis said.” See,  

“His wife’s job as a professional guardian leaves Judge Colin compromised, 
handcuffing him from fully doing his job, The Post found. He’s recused himself 
from 115 cases that involve his wife’s lawyers in the last six months of 2015 
after The Post started asking questions in its investigation. 

“When you have a judge suddenly recuse himself of so many cases, it certainly 
sends up a red flag,” Jarvis said. “How did a judge allow himself to be put in 
such a position? I have never heard of a judge doing such a thing.” 

“Savitt often hires attorneys Hazeltine, Ellen Morris and John Pankauski  prolific 
practitioners in elder law. They or members of their firms practiced in front of 
Colin before he began recusing himself from their cases last year. From 2009 to 
2014, Colin’s recusals totaled 30. Since the beginning of July, he’s taken himself 
off 133 cases — 115 involving his wife’s lawyers. 

Hazeltine, Morris and Pankauski or their firms — as well as the guardians they 
represent — have had fees in non-Savitt cases repeatedly approved by Judge 
Colin, The Post found.” 

“Judge Colin and his wife have socialized with one of the judges she appears in 
front of regularly, The Post has learned. 

Colin and Circuit Judge David French eat lunch together nearly every day. Colin 
and French co-hosted a trivia night9 in May for the South Palm Beach Bar 
Association. The event was co-sponsored by Pankauski’s firm. French did not 
return repeated attempts for comment.10” 

                                                 
9 Trivia Night Invatation https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/2623271-trivia-night.html and 
http://www.bellersmith.com/blog/4th-annual-trivia-night  
10  February 02, 2016 Palm Beach Post Series “Guardianship a Broken Trust” by Reporter John Pacenti 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin/   

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 16 of 132 PageID #:3650

BATES NO. EIB 000249 
02/27/2017



Page 16 of 132 

http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin  

42. In this case, BOTH Judges Colin and French were involved in the underlying Estates with Judge 

Colin “assigned” to the Shirley Bernstein case and Judge French originally “assigned” to the 

Estate of Simon Bernstein case and where later the French case was improperly assigned to 

Colin by Colin with no necessary hearing to transfer had by French, as it was scheduled on the 

day before Christmas when the court was closed, leaving Eliot and Candice at an empty court 

building and then when rescheduled Colin appeared in French’s stead and ruled for French to 

transfer the case to himself.  

43. In another blatant conflict, I consulted extensively with attorney Pankauski also mentioned in 

the Post articles as involved in cases with Judge Colin’s wife Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine 

regarding the estate and trust cases and was in the process of trying to raise a Retainer when 

Pankauski turned around and showed up at a Hearing with Ted Bernstein and continued to 

represent Ted Bernstein in front of Judge Colin for several months. Judge Colin had denied a 

motion to Disqualify attorney Pankauski written by attorney Peter Feaman, Pankauski being 

prominently mentioned above in the Palm Beach articles11.   

44. Even more important is that when I first filed my original May 6, 2015 “Emergency Motion” 

after first learning of the extensive Fraudulent documents being used in the Shirley Bernstein 

Estate case involving attorneys Tescher & Spallina and their paralegal Kimberly Moran, Judge 

Colin who was only “assigned” to Shirley Bernstein’s case simultaneously came in and Denied 

the Motion as an Emergency in both the Shirley Bernstein case and then “stepped over” to 

                                                 
11 June 23, 2014 Motion Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140623%20FINAL%20SINGED%20PRINTED%2
0Motion%20to%20Remove%20Rose%20Theodore%20and%20Pankauski%20Low.pdf  
and 
June 30, 2014 Motion to Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140630%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0MOTION%20TO%20REMOVE%20JOHN%20PANKAUSKI%20ESQ.pdf  
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Judge French’s case for Simon Bernstein and issued the Order denying this Motion12 as an 

Emergency in the Simon Bernstein case.  

45. Despite filing this Emergency Motion in May of 2013 in the State Probate Court in Florida to in 

part seize and obtain the DISCOVERY and DOCUMENTS in the case to be secured for 

forensic review, over 3.5 years later the Documents and Records and evidence have not been 

fully produced or seized or disclosed and to this day there are named Trusts in existing Trusts 

that I have never seen before and Trusts for my children created on the day my father died that I 

am being sued as Trustee of in the Shirley Trust case under which I have never seen nor have 

they ever been produced.   

46. This Emergency Motion of May 2013 was incorporated by reference into my Answer and 

Counterclaims13 filed with this US District Court in September of 2013 and the evidence and 

documents therein are necessary in aid of this Court’s jurisdiction and my counter-cross claims 

expressly plead for Discovery in this Court which is in jeopardy of being permanently lost from 

the actions of the State actors and courts.   

47. This relationship between Judge Colin and French and Judge Colin “stepping over” into Judge 

French’s case to Deny my Emergency is directly relevant to proceedings herein as it relates to 

when Judge Colin had “knowledge” that Simon Bernstein was Deceased which relates to the 

Fraud exposed in his court committed by Tescher & Spallina and their legal assistant and notary 

public Kimberly Moran with Ted Bernstein involved with Tescher & Spallina at all times 

relevant therein and Spallina and Tescher acting as his counsel in his alleged roles as fiduciary 

                                                 
12May 08, 2013 Order Denying Emergency in Simon Estate signed by wrong Judge Colin instead of 
French and Order Denying Emergency in Shirley Estate 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130508%20Order%20Denying%20Petition
%20and%20Amended%20Order%20Denying%20Petit.pdf 
13September 21, 2013 Answer and Cross Claim Illinois Federal Court Judge Amy St, Eve 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130921%20FINAL%20Eliot%20Answer%20Jack
son%20Natl%20Simon%20Estate%20Heritage%20Spallina188287%20HIGH.pdf  
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in Shirley’s estate and trust and also being big clients of each other, where Ted brought Spallina 

and Tescher to Simon Bernstein in order to secure life insurance clients in return from Tescher 

and Spallina.  

Undisclosed Conflicts of PR Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta involved in cases with 
Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and Savitt’s attorney Hazeltine at same time 

O’Connell is Recommended as Successor PR by Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman 

48. Recent records obtained as a result of the Palm Beach Post Investigation show that attorneys 

Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta where Brian O’Connell became appointed in the Simon 

Bernstein Estate as the new PR upon recommendation of Creditor William Stansbury’s attorney 

Peter Feaman on or around June of 2014 now show that Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta 

were involved in that same time frame with at least one case involving Judge Martin Colin’s 

wife Elizabeth Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine in the Probate Case of Albert Vasallo14,  CASE 

N0.:502014MH001432XXXXSB .  

49. Said conflicts of interest were never Disclosed by Judge Martin Colin, Brian O’Connell, Joielle 

Foglietta nor Creditor attorney Peter Feaman, Esq., IF Mr. Feaman knew of this which is 

presently unknown.   

50. As this District Court is or should be aware, attorney Brian O’Connell is under this Court’s 

jurisdiction having been granted Intervenor status in the Illinois Life Insurance Litigation on 

behalf of the Estate of Simon Bernstein.  

51. Yet instead of taking diligent action to secure and obtain Original records, documents, evidence 

and Discovery by Brian O’Connell which was Ordered by Judge Colin Feb. 18, 2014, and 

despite the issues in the Illinois litigation involving the “Missing” Trusts, “Missing” Insurance 

policies, and “Missing” business records that would or should show or lead to the truth of 

                                                 
14 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
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matters, the O’Connell office has sat silent obtaining virtually no Discovery and records while 

acting as PR, denying Eliot production requests and opposing motions for discovery and all the 

while stating he has been working on a voluminous production request to send from the day he 

was commissioned and which remains incomplete as of this day and never sent out to the 

parties.  

52. O’Connell also failed to do a court ordered inventorying of Simon’s office possessions at his 

office location and it was later learned that Ted had been evicted and was found loading trucks 

in the night by the landlord and nothing remains at that site and the items of Personal Property 

are now missing with Alan Rose turning over to O’Connell two boxes of plaques of Simon’s 

claiming that was all there was after 3 years that no one had ever inventoried his businesses, his 

computer files, records and personal properties for multiple companies.  I am aware of several 

items of personal property that are missing and were not inventoried that were in Simon’s 

office, including but not limited to, gifts from me and William Stansbury to Simon. 

53. Meanwhile, as shown in the Summary Judgment process before this Court, LaSalle Bank where 

it is now newly Discovered that Judge Colin has hundreds of thousands of dollars in business-

mortgage loans, was allegedly never contacted in the Life Insurance process despite being 

named as Primary Beneficiary all the while Judge Martin Colin “controlled” actions in the 

Probate Court somehow forcing Creditor William Stansbury to pay for the costs of Illinois 

litigation on behalf of the Estate, which could or should be a Conflict situation from the start, 

while simultaneously playing some “sham” of a game that Stansbury otherwise has no 

“Standing” to be in the Florida Probate cases and file petitions to remove Ted as an unqualified 

not validly serving trustee based on alleged criminal misconduct, major breaches of fiduciary 

duties and more.  
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54. A flurry of motions were filed in the State Court to discontinue William Stansbury’s obligation 

to pay for the Estate’s federal Illinois counsel and enter into a new “top-loaded” retainer by the 

Estate for the federal Illinois litigation right around the times this Court’s was about to hold a 

Scheduled conference reflective of some form of undisclosed “agreement” between the 

O’Connell firm, Peter Feaman, the Illinois counsel and likely Alan Rose-Ted Bernstein (again 

wholly excluding Eliot on any proposed settlements or other agreements) while the same 

attorneys were orchestrating other State Court proceedings so that a “Validity” Trial would 

proceed with no licensed attorney to challenge Alan Rose and Ted Bernstein despite the fact 

that Peter Feaman had written to O’Connell in Aug. 201415 advising him of his “absolute duty” 

to move the court to Remove Ted Bernstein as trustee for waste of assets, unaccounted for 

assets and other. See Feaman and O’Connell Motions on Payment of Illinois Litigation.  

55. Yet, attorney Feaman never took any follow-up with O’Connell to this date some 19 Months 

later and O’Connell failed to participate in an orchestrated “one-day” “Validity” trial on 

Simon’s Estate documents leaving the Estate without representation and failing to prosecute the 

already filed Answer to the Trust Construction/Validity Complaint  stating Ted Bernstein. was 

not a validly serving Trustee under the Simon Trust, as stated,  

“AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE 

1. First Affirmative Defense- Lack of Standing- Ted Bernstein lacks the 
requisite standing as he is not validly serving as Trustee of the Simon Trust, is 
not a beneficiary of the Simon Trust, and is not representing any minor child 
that is a beneficiary of the Simon Trust.16”  
 

                                                 
15 August 29, 2014, Feaman Letter to O’Connell Regarding Ted 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140829%20Feaman%20Stansbury%20Letter%2
0to%20Brian%20O'Connell.pdf  
16 February 17, 2015 O’Connell Answer Affirmative Defense Ted is not a validly serving Trustee 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150217%20Answer%20%20Affirmative%20Defe
nses%20O'Connell%20States%20Ted%20is%20NOT%20VALID%20TRUSTEE.pdf  
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56. Ted was allegedly appointed Successor Trustee by Spallina and Tescher after they resigned after 

admitting fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust that benefited Ted directly and while acting as 

Ted’s counsel and where the Shirley Trust Successor provision Tescher and Spallina drafted 

states that the Successor can not be related to the issuer Simon and where further the Trust 

states that TED IS PREDECEASED FOR ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 

TRUST.  

57. These facts alone fundamentally compromise and call into question the actions of the parties 

and attorneys before this US District Court justifying use of the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act injunctive powers and the Inherent Powers doctrine to at minimum Enjoin the 

parties and Florida case until Orderly proceedings and Conference and Inquiry made be made 

by this District Court.  

Discovery Abuse - Tescher & Spallina Records never properly turned over in excess of 2 
years with no action taken by O’Connell, Foglietta  

 

58.  Despite Judge Colin having actual knowledge of Fraud upon his Court involving Spallina and 

Tescher in the Shirley Bernstein case and having to have Actual knowledge that Simon 

Bernstein was Deceased at least as of May 2013 when Judge Colin “steps into” Judge French’s 

shoes to Deny my Emergency Motion in the Simon Bernstein case where Judge French was the 

assigned Judge, Judge Colin fails to Order for several months any Inquiry of the Attorneys and 

parties before his Court and denies further motions by Eliot Bernstein until finally it becomes 

known that Tescher & Spallina paralegal and employee Kimberly Moran is under investigation 

and has made admissions about the forgery and fraud17 and finally Orders a hearing for Sept. 

13, 2013.  

                                                 
17September 04, 2013 Motion to Freeze et al.  
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59. Yet the bulk of the Hearing is a sham where Judge Colin “dances” around the issue of when it 

becomes known that Simon Bernstein had been Deceased at the time the fraudulent filings were 

made, dances around who filed what and why and proceeds to let Robert Spallina off the hook 

from answering virtually any direct questions of his involvement in the fraud of using  

Deceased Simon Bernstein to act in the present to Close the Estate of Shirley Bernstein while 

simultaneously permitting Ted Bernstein to appear as a “Trustee” for Shirley Bernstein on this 

date. 

60. Yet Judge Colin had to have knowledge that Ted Bernstein knew of the Fraud or learned of the 

fraud since Ted Bernstein had not signed ANY Waiver prior to the April 9, 2012 date when 

Robert Spallina fraudulently creates a Petition for Discharge allegedly signed by Simon 

Bernstein on that date which could not have been possible or true since the Petition references 

Waivers being obtained as Signed Waivers that clearly that had not yet been signed (one not 

until after Simon passed) and Ted also knew that he had never notarized the Waiver that 

Kimberly Moran had fraudulently notarized and forged in his name and yet Judge Colin took no 

action to even inquire of Ted Bernstein and permits him to continue to act as “Trustee” and 

even after stating he had enough evidence of fraud to read Ted and his counsel Tescher and 

Spallina their Miranda Warnings at the first hearing, and then promotes Ted after to Personal 

Representative in the Shirley Estate which was reopened by Colin due to the fraud committed 

by Ted’s counsel and which fraud benefited Ted and his family directly.  Ted had been acting  

without Letters from the Court as PR at the time his mother’s estate was closed by his deceased 

father illegally and acting without letters from September 12, 2012 until October 2013 when 

Letters of Administration were issued and when he found out what his attorneys did in forging 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130904%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINT
ED%20FILED%20Motion%20to%20Freeze%20Estates%20of%20Shirley%20Due%20to%20Admitted%
20Notary%20Fraud.pdf  
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and fraudulently notarizing documents and submitting them to the Court as part of a Fraud on 

the Court, Ted took no actions to report the matters or seize all pertinent and relevant 

documents for analysis and to this day claims never to have the original trusts and wills he 

operates under and that he did nothing to validate the authenticity of them.  See Dec. 15, 2015 

Transcript18. 

61. Ted is close personal friends and business associates with Tescher and Spallina who brought his 

counsel Tescher and Spallina into the Bernstein family in order to get insurance business clients 

from them.  

62. Yet all of this begs the question and should have forced Judge Colin to question that IF Ted 

Bernstein was in Fact the Trustee and PR of Shirley’s Estate after Simon Bernstein passed 

shown by some proper Original operative document, then Why wasn’t Ted Bernstein acting 

after Simon passed with the Tescher Spallina firm to “close” the Estate or take whatever action 

was necessary instead of fraudulently using Deceased Simon Bernstein on documents to do so?  

63. It is noted for this US District Court that on or about Nov. 5, 2012, the same day an Ex Parte 

communication from Judge Colin is memorialized to attorney Robert Spallina’s office regarding 

filings in the Shirley Bernstein Estate, my attorney Christine Yates was attempting to get 

Documents from Robert Spallina’s Office relating to the Trusts, Wills, standard documents that 

Beneficiaries are entitled to19 yet Christine Yates is told by Spallina’s Office that there was no 

Bernstein case or client?  

                                                 
18 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
19November 06, 2012 Christine Yates Letter Stating Spallina claimed he did not know Bernstein despite 
several months of meetings with Bernstein family. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121106%20Yates%20letter%20re%20Spallina%
20claiming%20he%20does%20not%20know%20Bernstein.pdf  
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64. It is noted for this US District Court that this is an ongoing pattern and practice to deny me Eliot 

Bernstein and my children Counsel of our choice as each time I have had an attorney such as 

Yates there is Discovery Abuse in getting documents to review and handle the case with Yates 

being so bullied by the Spallina office that she later resigned or where such as Pankauski I end 

up consulting with an attorney that ends up working for and with Ted Bernstein or as with 

Branden Pratt who attends an evidentiary hearing regarding the fraudulent documents of Moran 

and states he and others do not want to put Moran on the stand despite her being present as they 

did not want to throw her under the bus, the exact opposite strategy Pratt had recommended 

immediately prior to and in preparation for the hearing.  

65. A similar event happened with Steven Lessne himself who is now pursuing a Guardianship 

against me with Alan Rose before Judge Phillips on February 25, 2016 at 3:15pm where Lessne 

obtained confidential valuable information from myself when we first spoke without fully 

disclosing who he was really working for and in fact concealing and lying about his 

representation of my family and ended up being counsel to Janet Craig, Manager of BFR for 

Oppenheimer and Trustee for the children’s trusts, all of these attorneys whom should be added 

to the District Court case on an amended complaint for good and just cause.  

66. That part of the improper basis for Guardianship itself is the fact that I have refused for myself 

and children to take funds which are Part of a Fraud such as funds from the sale of the Shirley 

Condo when Ted Bernstein had not been approved as any Trustee at the time of sale and not 

only had Original documents never been turned over but no proper Validity hearing had ever 

occurred and still has never occurred and thus imposed reasonable conditions on any funds that 

I would accept that neither I nor my children would be immersed in nor further fraud nor would 

we be liable as a result for accepting such funds. Yet for this type of action the parties are now 
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trying to take further control and block me off from Any ability to file and get Discovery by 

seeking a Guardianship and denying me standing and attempting to now claim I am not a 

beneficiary with no hearings to determine such and where I am clearly a beneficiary in the 

Shirley IRREVOCABLE Trust.   

67. This Ex Parte Communication of Nov. 5, 2012 was somehow not Docketed with Judge Colin’s 

Court until Nov. 6, 2012 as prominently noted in my May 2015 Motion for Mandatory 

Disqualification of Judge Colin20 and voiding of his Orders in part due to Fraud On and Fraud 

By his court, which was denied as legally insufficient by Colin but then leading to the sua 

sponte “Recusal” within 24 hours that further entails Judge Colin “steering” the Transfer and 

Re-Assignment of the case to the North Branch of Palm Beach County after his recusal.  

68. As shown in the mandatory Disqualification Motion against Judge Colin, Colin had proceeded 

for 2 years since my original May 2013 Emergency Motion, never holding Validity hearings, 

never requiring Accountings which to this day have never occurred in the Shirley Bernstein case 

and are incomplete missing years of accounting in Simon, never addressing Ted Bernstein’s 

involvement and knowledge  in the Tescher Spallina frauds while meanwhile using what now 

appears as the Standard Modus Operandi by attempting to “Force” me to take Distributions 

from the improper Sale of Shirley’s Condo sold by Ted Bernstein even before the Sept. 2013 

hearing, thus the standard M.O. of “taking” and “disposing” of the assets first, then trying to 

retroactively “approve” by Court order.  This occurred even where what is claimed as the 

Shirley Bernstein Trust specifically states that Ted is considered PREDECEASED FOR ALL 

PURPOSES OF DISPOSITIONS of the trust.  

                                                 
20 May 14, 2015 Mandatory Disqualification Motion Judge Martin Colin 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150514%20FINAL%20Motion%20for
%20Disqualification%20Colin%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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69. I thereafter filed a Petition for All Writs in the nature of Prohibition and Mandamus21 about 

these actions of Judge Colin in improperly “steering” the case as a Material Fact Witness and 

Potential Counter Defendant which ultimately lead to the case going to one Judge Coates who 

not only happened to be a former Proskauer Rose partner but later file review shows that as a 

Proskauer Partner Coates himself had “Billed22” as part of the original Iviewit - Proskauer 

“Billing case before Judge Labarga” whereby Coates billed to Eliot’s companies for time 

relating to SEC work after learning the Iviewit technologies had been deemed the “Holy Grail” 

and “Priceless” worth billions upon billions of dollars, claimed by by leading engineers at a 

company, Real 3D, Inc. (Intel, Lockheed and Silicon Graphics owned) that Proskauer 

introduced Iviewit to for a technology review.  

70. Before this, however, several more months passed by after Colin held the sham Sept. 2013 

hearings knowing of serious fraud in his court where six counts of forgery occur where Tescher 

& Spallina are allowed by Colin to remain in Custody and Control of all of the Documents, 

Originals, Evidence of Simon and Shirley Bernstein after Spallina claimed in the September 13, 

2013 hearing that he knew of no other frauds in the estates and trusts than the forgeries and 

fraudulent notarizations that Moran did.  

                                                 
21 ORIGINAL ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf   
REDO OF ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%20Writs%2
0Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20D
isqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
22 Judge Coates Billing Iviewit as Proskauer Rose Partner for Securities Work and Estate Planning of 
Stock 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Coates%20Billing%20Iviewit%20Holdings%20as%2
0Proskauer%20Partner%20on%20Iviewit%20Clean.pdf  
and  
Proskauer notes referring to Coates involvement with Iviewit 
www.iviewit.tv/ProskauerCoatesTriggs.pdf  
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71. Yet Spallina concealed from the Hearing Record on Sept. 13, 2013  other frauds he had done 

and that were later admitted to by Spallina to the Palm Beach Sheriff’s23 where he admits 

having fraudulently altered Shirley’s Trust to benefit Ted’s family and for months moved the 

court and retaliated against Eliot in pleading after pleading and finally under PBSO 

investigation admitted his felony alteration and creation of a Fraudulent Shirley Trust.   

72. Despite having admitted to fraudulently altering a Trust document and being directly involved 

with fraudulent documents filed in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein before Judge Colin through 

his law firm, ultimately in January of 2014 Judge Colin simply lets Tescher & Spallna “resign” 

after they admitted to the Bernstein family that they had fraudulently altered the Shirley Trust 

document and mailed it to Eliot’s minor children’s counsel24 (making fraudulent changes to 

include Ted’s children as beneficiaries despite Ted and his lineal descendants being considered 

Predeceased for all purposes of the Shirley Trust) . 

73. On February 18, 2014 Judge Colin issues an Order for Tescher & Spallina as follows: “By 

March 4, 2014 the resigning co-Personal Representatives shall deliver to the successor 

fiduciary all property of the Estate, real, personal, tangible or intangible, all of the documents 

and records of the Estate and all records associated with any property of the Estate, 

                                                 
23 PBSO Sheriff Report Page 1-8 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140912%20Sheriff%20and%20Coroner%20Repo
rts.pdf 
24 Attorney Christine Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott had to be hired by Eliot to get Estate and Trust 
Documents from Tescher and Spallina due to their refusal to give such documents to Beneficiaries or 
Interested Parties from day one and when they were finally forced months later by Yates to turn over 
records they sent documents that have been proven and admitted to be forged and fraudulently 
notarized by their offices and some of those submitted to the Florida probate court as part of an 
elaborate fraud on the court to seize Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts of Simon and 
Shirley, fraudulently alter documents and begin to loot the estates of millions upon millions of dollars, in 
complex legal frauds and all the while refusing documents, losing documents, stealing documents from 
the estate, no transparency and no accountings.  . 
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regardless of whether such property has been previously distributed, transferred, abandoned, 

or otherwise disposed of.” ( emphasis added ) See, Feb. 18, 2014 Order of Judge Colin25.    

74. It is clear from the Vasallo records herein26 that Brian O’Connell was already working closely 

with Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and attorney Hazeltine by the time Brian O’Connell 

was appointed successor PR by Judge Colin over Simon Bernstein’s Estate in July of 2014 or at 

least on or about the same time. 

O’Connell, Foglietta Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses intertwined with Alan Rose 
and Steven Lessne, also Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses; Intertwined with 

Spallina, Colin fraud and the Stanford Ponzi fraud; Orchestration to avoid Discovery and 
Original Documents before Judge Phillips 

75. It is clear that compliance with the Feb. 2014 Order against Tescher & Spallina was never 

determined by the time O’Connell was appointed as PR and to this very day there still has been 

no Compliance hearing on this Discovery tantamount to continuing Discovery Abuse and 

Discovery as a Weapon justifying exercise of powers under the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act.  

76. I have made and filed multiple requests for Discovery27 and production throughout the Florida 

State Court litigation which has been denied to such an extent as to be Abuse of Discovery. 

                                                 
25February 18, 2014 Order Judge Colin Tescher and Spallina to turn over ALL records. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20PETITION%20F
OR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP004391XXXXSB%20SIMO
N.pdf  
26 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
27November 01, 2013 Production Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf 
and 
November 01, 2013 Interrogatories Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN%92S%20FI
RST%20SET%20OF%20INTERROGATORIES%20PRPONDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20BERNST
EIN.pdf  
and 
May 12, 2014 Production Request Benjamin Brown Curator 
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While the proceedings before this US District Court were in essentially a hold pattern with the 

submissions of the Summary Judgement motions and while my Petition for All Writs at the 

Florida Supreme Court was pending regarding Judge Colin as a Necessary and Material Fact 

witness which further sought a Stay by the Florida Supreme Court and preservation of evidence, 

documents and discovery, after Judge Coates who worked at Proskauer and had billed Iviewit 

on SEC matters Recused from the Florida case after the improper Transfer from Colin whereby 

he gained confidential court records while initially denying he had conflicts or knew of Eliot or 

Iviewit, the case was then assigned to the current Probate Judge John Phillips.  

77. The Petition for All Writs28 at the Florida Supreme Court further brought up for review the very 

process by which Judge Colin “poisoned” the transfer and steered the case to the North Branch 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140512%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN'S%20FffiST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20BENJAMIN%20BROWN.pdf  
and 
January 20, 2015 Motion for Production from Brian O’Connell 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150120%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Request%20for%20Production%20Brian%20O'Connell%20ECF%20COPY.pdf  
and 
February 27, 2015 Motion in Opposition to Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150227%20Motion%20in%20Opposition%20to%
20PR%20Motion%20to%20Strike%20Production%20ECF%20Copy.pdf  
and 
November 09, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. request to Spallina and Tescher for Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20120909%20Letter%20Yates%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Information%20Request.pdf 
and 
December 21, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. to Spallina 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121221%20Yates%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Simon%20Shirley%20Estate%20info.pdf  
and 
June 13, 2013 Letter Marc Garber, Esq. to Christine Yates re Spallina and Tescher 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130613%20Marc%20Garber%20Letter%20re%2
0Christine%20Yates%20termination%20Spallina%20etc.pdf  
28 June 10, 2015 All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
and 
July 01, 2015 Amended All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%2
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in his Sua Sponte Recusal29 just one day after denying a Mandatory Disqualification based in 

part on Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court.  

78. Joielle Foglietta of the O’Connell firm then filed for a Status Conference30 which was held on 

July 15, 2015 during which time I raised the pending Writ with Judge Phillips who indicated 

twice on the record I would “be heard” on this at the next appearance.  

79. While I had written to Joielle Foglietta by email to ascertain the proposed Schedule of 

proceedings, none was forthcoming however the O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta team filed for 

a Case Management Conference in the SIMON Bernstein Case which was scheduled and held 

Sept. 15, 2015.  

80. After close of business hours on the Eve of the Conference, attorney Alan Rose on behalf of 

Ted Bernstein submitted a filing seeking to co-opt the Conference and impose a Guardianship 

on me before Judge Phillips at that time without disclosing that hearings had already been held 

and even Judge Colin had denied this repeated demand for guardians, contempt hearings, 

requests for gag orders and arrest of Eliot.  

81. As shown by the Transcript of Conference of Sept. 15, 2015 and my subsequent Motions for 

Mandatory Disqualification of Judge Phillips, Phillips fundamentally denied me a Due Process 

Opportunity to be heard on this day despite saying my Writ application would be addressed 

cutting me off at each attempt to be heard yet allowing Alan Rose to begin moving Judge 

Phillips to schedule a Trial in the Shirley Bernstein case which was NOT Noticed for the 

Conference that day and ultimately Judge Phillips Ordered a Pre-determined, prejudged “One-
                                                                                                                                                         
0Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Ma
rtin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
29May 19, 2015 Colin Sua Sponte Recusal and Steering of the Cases 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150519%20Colin%20Recusals%20Clerk%20Rea
ssigns.pdf  
30August 03, 2015 Case Management Conference Notice of Hearing in SIMON ESTATE ONLY  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150803%20Notice%20of%20Hearing%20for%20
Sept%2015%202015%20930am%20Case%20Management.pdf  
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day” Validity Trial for Dec. 15, 2015 in a case not even Noticed for Conference that day. See 

Sept. 15, 2015 Transcript31.  

82. Licensed attorneys O’Connell acting as PR for Simon’s estate, Foglietta and Creditor attorney 

Peter Feaman sat by idly watching as this occurred without raising any questions on Discovery, 

production or standard pre-trial issues as the record reflects they barely said a word at a hearing 

both have vested interest in.   

83. It should be noted that this occurred after Judge Phillips “pre-judged” any matters relating to 

Judge Colin expressing his “love” for Judge Colin on the Record and his friendships with all the 

attorneys and stating I was the only one he knew nothing of in an angry tone and indicating he 

would not find Colin had done anything wrong without even having the Due process 

Opportunity to make or state a case while falsely representing he had no powers to do so when 

Florida law allows for prior Orders to be vacated. See, Transcript of Case Management 

Conference Sept. 15, 201532.  

84. Florida Rules of Civil Procedure provide in part:  

RULE 1.200. PRETRIAL PROCEDURE (a) Case Management Conference. At 
any time after responsive pleadings or motions are due, the court may order, or a 
party, by serving a notice, may convene, a case management conference. The 
matter to be considered shall be specified in the order or notice setting the 
conference. At such a conference the court may: (1) schedule or reschedule the 
service of motions, pleadings, and other papers; (2) set or reset the time of trials, 
subject to rule 1.440(c); (3) coordinate the progress of the action if the complex 
litigation factors contained in rule 1.201(a)(2)(A)–(a)(2)(H) are present; (4) limit, 
schedule, order, or expedite discovery; (5) consider the possibility of obtaining 
admissions of fact and voluntary exchange of documents and electronically stored 
information, and stipulations regarding authenticity of documents and 
electronically stored information; (6) consider the need for advance rulings from 

                                                 
31 September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
32September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
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the court on the admissibility of documents and electronically stored information; 
(7) discuss as to electronically stored information, the possibility of agreements 
from the parties regarding the extent to which such evidence should be preserved, 
the form in which such evidence should be produced, and whether discovery of 
such information should be conducted in phases or limited to particular 
individuals, time periods, or sources; (8) schedule disclosure of expert witnesses 
and the discovery of facts known and opinions held by such experts; (9) schedule 
or hear motions in limine; (10) pursue the possibilities of settlement; March 16, 
2015 Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 36 (11) require filing of preliminary 
stipulations if issues can be narrowed; (12) consider referring issues to a 
magistrate for findings of fact; and (13) schedule other conferences or determine 
other matters that may aid in the disposition of the action.  
 

85. Yet, despite knowing that this Rule provides, “The matter to be considered shall be specified in 

the order or notice setting the conference”, licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta and 

Feaman took no action during or after to correct the pre-judged “one day” Validity Trial 

scheduled in the wrong case, Shirley Bernstein, which was Not noticed for Conference on this 

date.  

86. Such attorneys further took No Action to raise DISCOVERY COMPLIANCE prior to to the 

Trial despite the outstanding Order of Judge Colin of Feb. 2014 nor was I allowed a Due 

Process opportunity to raise Discovery issues, the need for Experts due to the fraud already 

determined in dispositive documents nor the need for a longer trial period based upon multiple 

Witnesses needed nor the need for Pre-Trial Depositions and the record will reflect that as I 

tried to make claims I was rudely shut down repeatedly by rude and angry Judge Phillips.  

87. To backtrack slightly which shows the continuing pattern of Discovery Abuse in the State 

Court, by the time of the Sept. 13, 2013 Hearing33 after the fraud and forgeries in Judge Colin’s 

Court were Discovered, over 3 Years Ago now Judge Colin had been notified on the Record 

during that Sept. 2013 hearing that as of a Year After my father Simon Bernstein passed away I 

                                                 
33 September 13, 2013 (one year to the date of Simon’s passing Colin Hearing 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130913%20TRANSCRIPT%20Emergency%20H
earing%20Colin%20Spallina%20Tescher%20Ted%20Manceri.pdf  
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still had NO proper Documents on the Trusts and Wills  including the Oppenheimer Trusts yet 

attorney Steven Lessne is now seeking a Guardianship against me before Phillips even though 

Lessne represents Oppenheimer who is a “Resigned” Trustee with no standing.  I notified Judge 

Colin on the Record  as follows from the September 13, 2013 hearing footnoted herein:  

Page 06 
12 THE COURT: Okay. So the bills that they 
13 were paying for you were what bills? 
14 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
15 THE COURT: All the bills. 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Health insurance, 
17 electricity, water, food, clothing, everything, 
18 100�percent. 
19 THE COURT: When did the emergency take 
20 place? 
21 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: On August 28th. 
22 They told me if I didn't sign releases that 
23 Robert wanted me to sign and turn the money 
24 over to my brother, the remaining corpus of the 
25 trust, that they were going to shut the funds 
Page 7 
1 off as of that day. 
2 THE COURT: And they did? 
3 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: I'm not 100�percent 
4 sure, because then I asked them for their 
5 operating documents that Mr. Spallina had sent 
6 them, and once again we've got un�notarized 
7 documents �� 
8 THE COURT: We'll talk about the notary 
9 thing in a second. 
10 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay. Then we have 
11 new improperly notarized documents authorizing 
12 the trust to operate, and they sent me 
13 incomplete documents which are unsigned on 
14 every page of the trust agreement, so they're 
15 telling me and I've asked them three times if 
16 they have signed copies and three times they've 
17 sent me unsigned copies. 
18 THE COURT: Okay, but what bills today �� 
19 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
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88. Previously in this Hearing Judge Colin is further shown how Spallina was Not Notifying certain 

banks such as Legacy that Simon Bernstein had passed away and is “moving” funds around 

from different accounts as follows;  

Page 05 
13 THE COURT: Okay. So tell me how that �� 
14 what evidence is there that this is an 
15 emergency along those lines? 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay, the estate 
17 representatives when my parents died told us 
18 that they were understanding the special 
19 circumstances me and my three children are in, 
20 and that funds had been set aside and not to 
21 worry, there would be no delay of paying their 
22 living costs and everything that my father and 
23 mother had been paying for years to take care 
24 of them, and then they were paying that out of 
25 a bank account at Legacy Bank. 
1 THE COURT: Who is they? 
2 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Mr. Spallina had 
3 directed Rachel Walker to pay the expenses of a 
4 Legacy bank account. It was being paid. And 
5 then Mr. Spallina stated that I should or that 
6 Rachel should �� she was fired, she should now 
7 turn the accounts over to my wife to start 
8 writing checks out of an account we've never 
9 seen. 
10 So I said I didn't feel comfortable 
11 writing checks out of an account, especially 
12 where it appeared my dad was the signer, so I 
13 called Legacy Bank with Rachel and they were 
14 completely blown away that checks had been 
15 being written out of a dead person's account. 
16 Nobody had notified them that Simon had 
17 deceased. And that no �� by under no means 
18 shall I write checks out of that account, and 
19 so then Mr. Spallina told me to turn the 
20 accounts over to Janet Craig of Oppenheimer, 
21 and Oppenheimer was going to pay the bills as 
22 it had been done by Rachel in the past. And so 
23 we sent her the Legacy account. We thought all 
24 that was how things were being done and, you 
25 know, he doesn't give us any documents 
1 whatsoever in the estate, so we don't know, you 
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2 know, what he's operating out of, but 
3 Oppenheimer then started to pay the things �� 
4 first they said, wait a minute, these are 
5 school trust funds �� well, they actually said 
6 that after they started paying, and they were a 
Page 06 
7 little hesitant that these funds were being 
8 used for personal living expenses of everybody, 
9 which the other Legacy account had been paying 
10 for through an agreement between and my 
11 parents. And then what happened was 
12 Mr. Spallina directed them to continue, stating 
13 he would replenish and replace the funds if he 
14 didn't get these other trusts he was in the 
15 process of creating for my children in place 
16 and use that money he would replenish and 
17 replace it. 
18 So the other week or two weeks or a few 
19 week ago Janet Craig said that funds are 
20 running low and she contacted Mr. Spallina who 
21 told her that he's not putting any money into 
22 those trusts and that there's nothing there for 
23 me, and that basically when that money runs out 
24 the kids' insurance, school, their home 
25 electricity and everything else I would 
1 consider an emergency for three minor children 
2 will be cut off, and that was not �� 

 

STEVEN LESSNE DISQUALIFIED AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS 

89. Thus it is clear that the Oppenheimer Trusts are just another set of Trusts and Documents and 

evidence where Discovery Abuse has occurred and huge delays in getting Any proper Operative 

documents has occurred which continues to this day, yet Lessne is moving for Guardianship 

against me before Phillips for a second time after law of the case was established in virtually an 

identical filing whereby Guardianship was denied and it was determined that after Lessne 

finished an accounting, if the Successor Trustee wanted to bring such charges they could but 

that he had no standing.   
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90. Mr. Lessne becomes a Material Fact Witness in the Chain of Custody of documents and 

Originals involving various Trusts and what the Trusts should say or provide where he claims as 

an Attorney in a sworn Filing before Judge Colin filed June 20, 2014 as follows:  

“Oppenheimer's Appointment, Service and Resignation As Trustee  
5. Gerald R. Lewin was the initial trustee of the Trusts. 6. On September 5, 2007,  
Mr. Lewin resigned as trustee and appointed Stanford Trust Company as his successor 
pursuant to Section 5 .3 of the Trusts. “ 
Lessne filing June 20, 201434.  
 

91. This sworn Statement, however, is contradicted by Multiple other documents and filings herein, 

however, demonstrating exactly why Injunctive relief for preservation and Orderly Production 

of Discovery is Necessary for this US District Court in furtherance of its jurisdiction.  

92. In what was Allegedly Filed in the Palm Beach County Courthouse by Robert Spallina claimed 

to be filed on July 7, 2010 is an alleged Petition to Appoint Successor Trustee dated June 18, 

201035 which claims one TRACI KRATISH and not Gerry Lewin as Lessne claims was the 

TRUSTEE of the Children’s Trusts who allegedly Resigned Sept. 12, 2007 whereupon it claims 

the STANFORD TRUST took over and then purports to be a Petition of me and my wife 

Candice authorizing OPPENHEIMER to take over as Trustee from Stanford yet this document 

appears to have Robert Spallina’s signature on it yet where my wife and Candice Bernstein have 

Reported this Document as Fraud and a Forgery to the Court and Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 

as not only had we never signed this document but had never even met Robert Spallina as of 

2010 and this was Reported to Judge Colin during the June 2014 hearings with Oppenheimer 

                                                 
34June 20, 2014 Oppenheimer Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140620%20Oppenheimer%20v.%20Eliot%20Can
dice%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20Daniel%20Case%20No%20502104cp00281xxxxsb%20Summon
s%20and%20Complaint%20Eliot%20Service%20Low.pdf  
35June 19, 2010 Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20100619AllegedForgedEliotCandicePetitiontoAppo
intSuccessorTrusteeJoshuaJacobandDaniel.pdf  
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and Lessne, yet fell on deaf ears.  See, Petition under Spallina’s Signature in 2010 alleged as 

Fraud to Palm Beach Sheriff and Court  by Eliot and Candice Bernstein.  

93. Thus Lessne is a material fact witness as to who the Real Trustee is and what the operative 

documents actually say.  

94. Further, there is a significant issue as to whether Trusts were Transferred from Oppenheimer to 

JP Morgan where Lessne, Oppenheimer and Janet Craig of Oppenheimer all should be 

witnesses thus making the Discovery Abuse as a Weapon even more harmful since there is 

never any clear, orderly picture of what is taking place when and by who.  

ALAN ROSE AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS  

95. To further complicate the frauds in what should make Alan Rose a Material Fact Witness, in 

May of 2015 Alan Rose magically comes out with an alleged ORIGINAL of the Trusts which 

he allegedly “Finds” left at the 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca Raton, Fl St. Andrew’s Home of 

Simon Bernstein after his passing yet by this point in time the ENTIRETY of the St. Andrews’s 

Home had already been Seized and Inventoried by Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta’s 

Offices as of March 2015, several months before and before that by Benjamin Brown the 

Curator.  

96. Alan Rose somehow amazingly tries to claim after allegedly finding and removing from the 

Estate without authorization from O’Connell who has custody over them, 3 “Originals” of my 

Children’s Trusts that somehow these were Unimportant and Discounted and “Overlooked” by 

the O’Connell Foglietta team who are fully aware of the problems with the trusts in the 

Oppenheimer case and who Already had allegedly Fully Inventoried and seized Custody of all 

these items at the St. Andrews Home in March 2015 two months before in a case where 
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substantial Document fraud had already been demonstrated and Discovery abuses going on 

continually, Emailing on May, 20, 201536 as follows:  

From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek-law.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 2:14 PM 
To: Lessne, Steven; Eliot Ivan Bernstein; Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
Cc: Ted Bernstein; O'Connell, Brian M.; Foglietta, Joy A 
Subject: Original signed "Oppenheimer" Trusts 
  
Mr. Lessne and Mr. Eliot Bernstein: 
  
I am writing to advise that we located some files in drawers in Simon’s private office in 
his home at Lions Head, as we were trying to assess the complexity of things that must 
happen between now and the closing of Lions Head.  My primary reason was to visually 
inspect  the  three chandeliers  that have been  the subject of PR emails  in  the past  few 
days. 
  
In  any  event,  and  although  these  files  likely  were  examined  and  discounted  as 
unimportant by the PRs after Simon’s death and likely meant nothing if and when they 
were  catalogued  or  viewed  during  the  O’Connell  as  PR  re‐appraisal/re‐inspection,  I 
noticed a folder marked as the jake bernstein trust.   Looking more closely, there were 
three green folders labeled with Eliot’s childrens names and inside are what appear to 
be the original signed Irrevocable Trust Agreements for the Trusts which Oppenheimer 
formerly  served.  These  may  be  relevant  or  important  to  the  ongoing  Oppenheimer 
case,  so  I  bring  them  to  your  attention.    There  also  are  what  appears  to  some  tax 
returns and Stanford Account Statements.  Simply because I have attended some of the 
Oppenheimer hearings, I understand that Eliot claims at least one of the Trusts does not 
exist.    As  an  officer  of  the  court,  and  because  these  may  be  relevant,  I  have  taken 
temporary custody of  the documents.    I will hold  them pending  joint  instructions or a 
court  order,  but  would  prefer  to  deliver  them  to  Steve  Lessne  as  Oppenheimer’s 
counsel.  These have no economic value and have no bearing on the estate, so I doubt 
Brian O’Connell would want them, but  I did not want to see them lost or discarded  in 
the impending move.  To facilitate your review, I have scanned the first and last page of 
each trust, and scanned the first page of the ancillary documents, and attach that in .pdf 
format.  
  
I am sure that people have looked through these files before, and there did not appear 
to be anything else of significance.  (I did notice a few folders with other grandchildrens 
names,  not  Eliot’s  kids,  but  left  those  papers  in  place  because  I  understand  that 
everyone  except  Eliot  has  fully  cooperated  with  Oppenheimer  in  resolving  these 
matters.) 

                                                 
36May 20, 2015 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter re Finding New Documents and removing them illegally from 
Simon’s Estate and whereby the records were in the custody of Brian O’Connell at that time and Rose 
took them from the Estate without authorization. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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I also have had occasion to re‐look through a small box of trust documents which I have 
been holding, which came from  Simon’s former work office.  Inside file folders in a desk 
drawer, Simon retained duplicate originals of the trust agreements relevant to my cases.  
When  I  was  looking  to  reexamine  these  documents  –  duplicate  originals  of  the  2008 
Trusts and the 2012 Trust (the true originals remain with Tescher & Spallina who drafted 
them)  –  I  noticed  a  copy  of  the  three  separate  irrevocable  trust  documents.    Again, 
these would not have caught my eye originally because I would have never guessed that 
Eliot would claim the trusts were not valid.  I only recently had occasion to notice these 
in looking for the duplicate trust originals for Simon and Shirley.  The three Irrevocable 
Trusts appear to be signed and witnessed on page 17, but the individual pages are not 
initialed.  Again, these were only copies, but now having looked at the originals included 
in the attached scan, I note (although not a handwriting expert) that the attached copies 
appear to be absolutely identical to the originals just found in Simon’s personal office. 
  
These copies include IRS forms under which Traci Kratish PA, as Trustee appears to have 
applied  for  and  obtained  a  Taxpayer  ID  number  for  each  trust,  and  obviously  she 
provided these to Simon.  Each of the Trust documents is signed by Simon Bernstein, as 
Settlor, and by Traci Kratish PA as the initial Trustee, and the signatures are witnessed 
by  two  people.    Simon’s  is  witnessed  by  Jocelyn  Johnson  and  someone  else.    I  am 
advised  that  Jocelyn  was  an  employee  of  Simon’s,  as  presumably  was  the  second 
witness  and  also  the  initial  Trustee,  Traci  Kratish,  who  was  in  house  counsel  for  the 
companies Simon owned part of. 
  
Although  this  was  long  before  any  involvement  on my  part,  Traci  Kratish  appears  to 
have been the initial trustee (there is a typo elsewhere naming Steven Greenwald).   I do 
not  know  Steven  Greenwald,  but  I  have  confirmed  that  that  these  trusts  were  not 
created by Tescher & Spallina.  If they had been, I’m sure they would have retained the 
original and given Simon duplicate originals as they did for all of the trust documents for 
the 2008 and 2012 Trusts  they prepared.    I do not know  if Greenwald prepared these 
and made a typo leaving his name on a later section, or if Kratish prepared these from a 
boilerplate Greenwald form and made the typo.  Either way, and it does not matter to 
me, the fact that this was a simple and ordinary typo should be obvious to all. 
  
Eventually,  Traci  Kratish  left  the  employ  as  the  in‐house  counsel  for  the  companies.  
Sometime before or  at  the  time of her  leaving,  she  resigned and appointed  someone 
else,  and  eventually  these  trusts  accounts  along with  similar  trusts  for  Simon’s  other 
seven  grandchildren  and much  of  Simon’s  personal wealth,  were moved  to  Stanford.  
After Stanford’s collapse amid word that it was a Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon lost upwards of 
$2 million of his own funds in the Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon directed the transfer of the his 
and these trust accounts to Oppenheimer.  Simon selected Oppenheimer; paid Tescher’s 
firm to do the necessary documents to appoint Oppenheimer as successor trustee; took 
the documents  from Tescher  and had  them  signed  by  all  children,  including  Eliot  and 
Candice; and returned the documents to Tescher for filing.   I presume that Simon paid 
all  of  these  legal  fees,  because  that  is  the  right  thing  to  do  from  an  estate  planning 
strategy and as a favor to his grandkids.    I now have seen copies of the filed Petitions, 
and again without being a handwriting expert, it certainly looks like Eliot’s and Candice’s 
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signature on them, regardless of whether they had ever met Tescher or Spallina before 
their parents’ deaths. 
  
Eliot and Candice reaped the benefits of Oppenheimer’s services, and in any event there 
is no reason to believe that Candice and Eliot did not sign these Petitions for the benefit 
of their children.  If Eliot now suggests that his and his wife’s signatures do not appear 
on  the  June  2010  Petitions  appointing  Oppenheimer  2010  allegation,  which  is  highly 
doubtful  just  looking at the three sets of signatures, that would mean Eliot  is accusing 
Simon of being a forger.  Eliot already is supportive of Bill Stansbury, who accuses Simon 
of committing a fraud on Stansbury.  I would be shocked by any accusation that Simon 
did  not  obtain  from  Eliot  and  Candice  their  genuine  signatures  on  the  June  2010 
Petitions, and particularly shocked that Eliot, who received so much of his father’s (and 
mother’s)  largesse  during  their  lifetimes,  would  now malign  Simon’s  name  in  such  a 
manner.  
  
Anyway,  I’m not sure  if either of you needs these any  longer, but  if you do, here they 
are. 
  
  

  Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 

      561.355.6991 
 505 South Flagler Drive 
 Suite 600 
     West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
     561.655.2250 Phone 
     561.655.5537 Fax 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY 
NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE 
HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPYING OF THIS 
COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E-MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service 
(Circular 230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any 
attachments), unless otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, 
by any taxpayer for the purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue 
Code or (2) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed 
herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If 
you have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat 
Reader, available at:http://www.adobe.com 

 

97. Thus, Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta, Alan Rose and Steven Lessne are all Material Fact 

Witnesses on this Chain of Custody alone which all is critical evidence for this Court as it 

relates to the production of Valid and Original Trusts and documents at issue and my Cross-

Counterclaims  and thus Injunctive relief should now issue.   
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98. Lessne, nor Rose (a Counter Defendant in the Stayed Counter Complaint in the Oppenheimer 

case), has yet to turn these alleged new documents into the Court and where since the lawsuit 

was based on other documents filed this would seem to materially affect the whole case. 

99. It should be noted that in the days and weeks leading up to this “magical” Discovery by Alan 

Rose that the O’Connell and Foglietta team had issued substantial billings for communications 

with Alan Rose37 even though O’Connell had filed an Answer claiming Alan Rose’s client Ted 

Bernstein was Invalid as a Trustee although the Petition had not been heard.  

100. Alan Rose and Brian O’Connell are again tied up as material fact witnesses just a few weeks 

later when Judge Coates briefly came into the case wherein Alan Rose now “magically” has 

“Originals” of the Shirley Trust and related documents that he allegedly scanned onto a CD and 

while his Letter indicates he was “Transferring” this CD to me in person at Court he actually 

used Brian O’Connell to “pass me” the CD.  

101. Rose claims these are “Originals” or “Duplicate Originals” scanned onto the CD but provides 

No Chain of Custody of how, when, where or why these come into his possession making him a 

Material Fact Witness on the Chain of Custody of documents. See, Alan Rose Letter of June 4, 

201538.  As noted, here is where “Originals” appear to be signed in Different Color Ink from the 

“Original” Originals and where the naked human eye can detect too many identical signatures 

identically or virtually identically placed in the some place on the documents and too many 

initials placed in the same place.  

                                                 
37Ciklin/O’Connell Billing Statements 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
and 
Rose and O’Connell billing excerpts from Ciklin bills 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf  
38 June 04, 2015 Rose Letter Regarding CD of Newly Discovered Estate and Trust documents 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150604%20Rose%20Letter%20with%20CD%20
of%20Simon%20Shirley%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20Will%20Documents.pdf  
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102. Yet, on or about August 11, 2015, I physically appeared and went to the O’Connell law office 

per arrangements with Joielle Foglietta and was directed to some Staff member I will call “Jane 

Doe” for now, although other records may disclose her name, whereupon I was supposed to be 

able to finally “view” and “inspect” all of Simon’s Business Records, Documents, etc that the 

O’Connell firm had obtained and am shocked to be placed into a Conference Room with 4 

Banker Boxes that were half-full for my father who had been a successful Insurance business 

person for Decades with multiple bank accounts, corporations, trust companies and tons of other 

personal records.  One of the boxes had allegedly been dropped off by Alan Rose and only had 

a few miscellaneous “wall hangings” from his Business Office and the other 3 boxes are 

allegedly what the O’Connell firm had taken out of the St. Andrew’s home.  

103. Yet these were partially filled boxes and the Jane Doe staff member indicated she had retrieved 

“everything”, “everything” from the St. Andrew’s home on or around June 4, 2015 which 

contradicts what Joielle Foglietta had claimed in March 2015 about taking custody of the 

Business documents and files and further contradicts what Alan Rose “finds” in May of 2014, 

thus rendering all of these individuals Material Fact Witnesses on Chain of Custody and 

possession. Miraculously these documents appear days before Sheriff deputies are contacting 

Kratish regarding the prior documents and allegations of fraud in the prior documents. 

104. This item further ties up Judge Colin, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, Gerry LEWIN, 

SPALLINA and TESCHER as more intertwined in the fraud.  

105. Both Judge Colin and the PBSO are aware that Eliot and his wife Candice have claimed they 

never signed a Petition that SPALLINA “Witnessed” in 2010 relating to the Trust which 
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SPALLINA apparently deposited with Colin’s court in June of 201039 and that Colin is alleged 

to have signed.  

106. The Document provided by ROSE as an “original” however, purports to be a Trust signed Sept. 

7, 2006 and allegedly witnessed by one Traci Kratish.  

107. However, in her statement to the PBSO40, Traci Kratish, a lawyer and accountant, says she did 

not begin work with Eliot’s father until Sept. 10, 2006 and was not brought in Pre-Stanford 

Trust and has no independent recollection of signing this Trust which is further ripe with errors 

such as referring to Traci Kratish as a “he” instead of “she”, having a different trustee Steven 

Greenwald identified later in the document as the “Trustee,” no reference to the law firm who 

allegedly prepared the Trusts, missing initials on the pages and other obvious errors.  

108. Still further, LEWIN prepares and has Tax documents ( copies, not Originals )  saying the Trust 

was created on Sept. 1, 2006, not Sept. 7th and further that Stanford was the Trustee from the 

beginning and not Traci Kratish as alleged by SPALLINA in the June 2010 Petition claiming 

the Trusts went from Kratish to Stanford and then Oppenheimer with this Petition allegedly 

signed by Eliot and his wife which they have denied signing or seeing prior to it being produced 

in the matters to the the PBSO and COLIN and reported as fraud41.  

109. Despite the PBSO and PANZER knowing all the fraud admitted to date and SPALLINA who 

was not forthcoming in his first interview, PBSO illegally steers this part of the fraud and 

criminal investigation away from following up with Spallina and the involved parties and 

                                                 
39July 08, 2010 Alleged Forged Petition for Children’s Trusts Oppenheimer @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Exhibit%20E%2020100619%20Alleged%20Eliot%2
0Candice%20Petition%20to%20Appoint%20Successor%20Trustee%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20D
aniel.pdf  
40 May 21, 2015 Traci Kratish PBSO Interview statements @ 
www.iviewit.tv/Simon and Shirley Estate/Kratish Statements to PBSO.pdf 
41 May 20, 2015 Alan Rose Email Claiming to have found New Trust Documents @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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attempted to close the case in a rush with admitted felony crimes of Spallina not being 

prosecuted and thus committing misprision of felony and aiding and abetting the fraud by 

failure to report the admitted crime to prosecutors and which is currently under a second 

Internal Affairs review, the first review after Judge Colin interfered with the criminal 

investigations and had them close the case of Fraud on the Court stating he would handle those 

and forcing Eliot to IA to have the cases reopened due to the improper interference, which led to 

subsequent interviews where Spallina confessed to Felony misconduct..  

110. By TESCHER SPALLINA Bates42 No. TS000815 Spallina falsely writes to Christopher Prindle 

of Wachovia/Stanford/Oppenheimer/JP Morgan on July 1, 2010 who is intimately involved in 

the Financial Accounts of Simon Bernstein claiming he has:  “certified Final Orders on 

Petitions to Appoint Successor Trustee designating Oppenheimer Trust Company as 

Successor Trustee of the following trusts: 1. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 2. Carly Esther Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 3. Jake 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 4. Max Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 5. Julie Iantoni Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 6. Joshua Z. 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 “ all as of July 1, 2010. 

                                                 
42 Tescher & Spallina Bates Numbered Court Ordered Production  
It should be noted that while the documents are bates stamped they were never tendered by Spallina 
and Tescher to the court and no document originals were tendered to successors despite court order to 
turn over “ALL” records, whereby all copies of alleged documents in the Tescher and Spallina production 
are therefore alleged fraudulent and part of an ongoing fraud to cover up and maintain the prior frauds 
they have been caught in and further continue the frauds. 
***FOR ALL FURTHER REFERENCES HEREIN of SPALLINA and TESCHER Bates Stamped 
Documents please refer to the following link which contains the entire file of Bates stamped documents 
Total Pages 7,202 with gaps in the bates numbering and search for the Bates numbers listed in this 
filing. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140602%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUME
NTS%20SIMON%20ESTATE%20BY%20COURT%20ORDER%20TO%20BEN%20BROWN%20CURA
TOR%20DELIVERED%20BY%20TESCHER%20AND%20SPALLINA.pdf  (File is large and takes time 
to download) 
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111. Yet on the same date of July 1, 2010, by  TS000831  SPALLINA writes to Margaret Brown at 

Baker Botts saying:  

From: Robert Spallina [mailto:rspallina@tescherspallina.com]  
Sent: Thursday, July 01, 2010 9:14 AM  
To: Brown, Margaret  
Subject: Bernstein  
Dear Margaret - we finally received the last of the signed petitions for the minor 
grandchildren and will be walking through the petitions next week to get the 
orders designating Oppenheimer as successor Trustee to Stanford. Attached are 
copies of the signed petitions we are filing for your records.  
 

112. The close relationship with SPALLINA and COLIN is shown by the casual manner SPALLINA 

is simply going to “walk through” over at the Court to get the Orders he has told key Financial 

person Christopher Prindle he already has in Certified form as of the same date.  

113. The alleged Orders do appear to be “Certified” and signed by COLIN but not until July 8, 2010, 

a week after he tells Prindle these are done by the Court already which SPALLINA writes to 

Margaret Brown again about on July 8, 2010, see TESCHER SPALLINA PRODUCTION 

Bates No.TS000829. 

114. This pattern and practice of false information even shown by the TESCHER SPALLINA 

production is further reason to Enjoin and Restrain the parties and the evidence in further aid of 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

115. Moreover, because there are NO Accountings from TESCHER SPALLINA in the year and half 

plus of their involvement as fiduciaries (NO accountings in Shirley for FIVE years and 

INCOMPLETE ACCOUNTING FOR SIMON ONLY RECENTLY TURNED OVER after 

almost three years after Simon’s Passing) where millions were likely moved between accounts 

or converted without any accounting, Records and accounts of Christopher Prindle, Stanford, JP 

Morgan and Oppenheimer should further be enjoined when the Court has proper jurisdiction 

over these parties.  
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116. Note that the Curator Ben Brown of the Estate of Simon Bernstein purported to have obtained 

actual signed Tax returns from the IRS herein for Simon’s Estate and quietly died at a young 

age shortly thereafter upon information and belief before turning them over and according to 

O’Connell he never received them and immediately ordered new ones immediately after gaining 

Letters of Administration but still has not received them to the best of my belief and certainly 

has not turned them over to me as promised.  

117. Yet, current PR of the Simon Bernstein Estate Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta of the 

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell law firm have Never obtained or provided any Signed Tax 

Documents or actual originals in the 18 months in the case yet repeatedly bills the Estate for 

calls with Alan Rose, including many redacted Billing entries43and44.  

118. The 2007-2008 LIC Tax statements where Simon Bernstein was 45 % owner shows 2 

consecutive years of revenue exceeding $30 Million per year and where Renewals on insurance 

should still be coming in but where TED, ROSE and the PRs claim estates and trusts virtually 

empty while denying discovery and production45, with Simon taking several million dollars in 

income in just these years prior to his death.  

119. Yet, the O’Connell and Foglietta team claim the Estate is out of money and even proceeded to 

demand a payment of $750 approximately from myself to obtain copies of the bare records in 3 

partially filled boxes the PRs have obtained to date that they stated copies would be ready for 

me to pick up when I went to their offices and were not, then later when I was forced to 

                                                 
43 Alan B. Rose and Brian O’Connell Billing Excerpts from Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Bills @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf 
44 O’CONNELL and Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Billing Statements @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
45 2007-2008 Unsigned Tax Returns LIC prepared by Gerald Lewin CPA 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/tax%20returns%202007%202008%
20LIC.pdf  
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repeatedly ask for them to be sent they changed their tune demanding payment for the meager 

records they had obtained and further have repeatedly denied access to even visually Inspect 

the alleged Storage unit where all the TPP allegedly is.  

120. As will be shown later herein, Millions remain Unaccounted for in the cases further justifying 

an Injunction at this time.  

“Orchestration” of the “One-day” “Validity” Trial by the Fiduciaries, Lawyers and Judge 

Phillips 

121. Despite this tortured background, the licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta, Rose and Feaman 

allow matters to proceed along course to a “one-day” Validity Trial with Judge Phillips held 

Dec. 15, 2015.  

122. In the weeks before this, Creditor attorney Peter Feaman expressly stated in a phone call with 

myself, William Stansbury and others that there was a deliberate “conspiracy” against me by the 

parties with money and connections or words to that effect.  

123. Attorney Peter Feaman also acknowledged that Florida Courts do have traditional Pre-Trial and 

Trial procedures, none of which were followed.  

124. No pre-trial Discovery compliance was ever determined, no Pre-trial Depositions were 

determined, and I was provided no Due Process opportunity to speak about the Necessary 

Witnesses that should be at Trial which would make the Trial go beyond one day and the 

importance of having the hearings to remove Ted first to determine if he would even be able to 

conduct validity hearings, especially where there was document fraud with the documents being 

validated committed by his attorneys representing him as fiduciary and where the fraud directly 

benefited Ted’s family, slight conflicts that should have forced Ted from holding the hearings.  

Ted also being considered Predeceased for ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 
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SHIRLEY TRUST certainly could not hold a validity hearing as it regards disposition of the 

trust.  Yet, Phillips refused both Feaman and my request to have that hearing first.  

125. Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman had previously in August of 2014 written a specific letter to 

Brian O’Connell indicating he had an “absolute duty” to take up the baton to remove Ted 

Bernstein noting the waste of assets, lack of accountings, conflicts of interest and other items, 

although attorney Feaman would take no action to prevent or participate in the “Validity Trial” 

despite the fact that the only 2 Witnesses that were called, Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

(both involved in the Fraudulent Documents submitted to the court and others) were Both 

parties that Creditor William Stansbury had sued although that case was before a separate 

Judge.  

126. Despite the Fraud shown with Colin who should be a Material fact witness and should have 

disqualified once he knew there was Fraud Upon His Court and he was involved in the matters, 

Feaman took no action to assert and re-argue if necessary Stansbury’s “standing” which had 

been denied in the case by Colin although Stansbury was “in the case” for purposes of Paying 

for the Illinois litigation before Your Honor which all appears to be part of “orchestration” 

where Stansbury and Feaman are “in” on some issues but not in on others.  

127. Feaman had “confirmed” that O’Connell as the PR was going to Participate at the one day 

Validity Trial as O’Connell had filed an Answer to remove Ted Bernstein at Trial as an Invalid 

Trustee yet “at the last minute” it was announced O’Connell and Ted Bernstein’s attorney Alan 

Rose had some form of “consultation” deal where it was decided O’Connell would not 

participate in the Validity Trial despite the fact that his Office had been Billing the Estate for 

nearly 2 years based upon Ted as Trustee including many billings with Alan Rose on behalf of 
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Ted Bernstein all of which is compromised if a proper Trial showed the documents to be invalid 

and/or Ted Bernstein should be removed.  

128. When Feaman brought O’Connell into the cases after being denied standing to remove Ted, 

Feaman had Eliot withdraw a hearing to remove Ted that day telling him that he spoke to 

O’Connell and O’Connell would file the motion Feaman filed that was denied for standing and 

that I would have a much better chance of success with O’Connell filing.  To this date, despite 

being given Feaman’s filing to put his name on and repeatedly stating he would file it, 

O’Connell has failed to file despite knowing Ted is “not a validly serving Trustee” or in other 

words that Ted and Alan are committing a Fraud knowing Ted cannot be Trustee but pulling yet 

another Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Creditor. 

129. Thus, the Estate of Simon Bernstein was Unrepresented and did not participate in the Phillips 

“Validity” Trial of the Simon documents and where the Governor Rick Scott’s office already 

found defects in the notarizations of Simon’s Estate and Trust documents that O’Connell was 

made aware of prior and where if they were not validated as Rose wanted them, O’Connell 

could have been knocked out and Stansbury could have become the Successor as was the case 

only a few weeks before Simon died when allegedly new improperly notarized documents are 

said to have been signed.  

130. Alan Rose was motioned by my counsel Candice Schwager of Texas who was seeking to come 

into Florida pro hac vice46 for a 30 day Continuance47 and to get the Documents necessary to be 

able to represent my children properly and determine if any conflicts existed that prevented her 

                                                 
46December 12, 2015 Candice Schwager Pro Hac Vice Letter to Court and Alan Rose, Esq. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151212%20Candice%20Schwager%20Pro%20H
ac%20Vice%20ECF%20Filing%20Stamped%20Copy.pdf  
4720151215 Motion for Stay  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20ESIGNED%20Phillips%20Trial%20St
ay%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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from representing both myself and my children but both Rose and Judge Phillips denied the 

continuance and denied her access to documents48 leaving my children unrepresented at the 

Validity “trial” as well.  

131. The notice and motion further indicated Alan Rose should be Disqualified as a Material fact 

witness for the reasons set out above.  

132. Thus the Trial was orchestrated so no Attorneys were present to Cross-examine the only 2 

Witnesses produced by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

himself.  

133. It is noted that there were no Pre-Trial Depositions allowed of Robert Spallina or Ted Bernstein 

and thus acting Pro Se I did all I could do at the Trial which still revealed remarkable 

information and confessions of new crimes, including federal mail fraud by Spallina, who also 

violated his SEC consent order by misrepresenting his SEC consent deal and further 

misrepresented his standing with the Florida Bar as the record reflects.  Spallina also admitted 

to using a deceased Simon acting as PR to close Shirley’s Estate and depositing further 

fraudulent documents with the court, while admitting he had not to that date told anyone about 

these crimes, while Phillips ignored all these admissions and since has done nothing to notify 

proper authorities of these new and damning admissions of crimes and violations of SEC 

consent orders, despite repeated requests by myself for him to do so.  

134. It is further noted that no Inspection or Comparison of the “duplicate” and other alleged 

“originals” was allowed pre-trial or during trial as these Documents and evidence simply were 

                                                 
48January 06, 2016 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter to Attorney for Minor Children and Eliot denying access to file 
or even to speak despite her being retained counsel in need of documents to evaluate cases. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160106%20Rose%20Denying%20to%20talk%20
or%20give%20information%20to%20Attorney%20Schwager.pdf  
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not produced or made available at the hearing for inspection and have never been forensically 

examined.  

135. It is respectfully asserted to this Court that not only would proper production and Discovery be 

reflective of actual value and worth of assets at stake, but further relevant to Undue influence 

and pressures that were on Simon Bernstein at all relevant times herein.  The potential for undue 

influence should have been clear just by the April 9, 2012 fraudulent Petition for Discharge 

allegedly signed by Simon on this date and Witnessed by Spallina since if this is Simon’s 

signature he  absolutely knew the Waivers referenced in the Petition had not even been received 

by some of the parties by this date much less Signed and returned and signing such a document 

falsely would have been totally out of character and practice for the decades he had been in 

business.  This Court should now issue an Injunction.  

No Concern for Original Documents, Rose, Spallina, Ted Bernstein or Judge Phillips  

136. I believe the following passage from the Validity “Trial” makes clear that an Injunction should 

issue since no one seems to know where the Originals are, and the many Duplicate originals and 

Ted Bernstein claims to have only seen “copies” of the Trusts although it is noted for this US 

District Court there are other Trusts that are referenced in the produced Trusts where copies 

have been provided that not only were the other referenced Trusts never “Served” with Process 

for the Validity hearing but these referenced Trusts  have never been produced to this day such 

as: 

Page 137 of linked PDF document @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20P
hillips%20Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
 
Transcript Page 121 
Spallina Witness ‐ Eliot Cross Examining 
 
4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ In the chain of custody of these 
∙5∙ ∙documents, you stated that there were three copies made? 
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∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Do you have those three original trust copies 
∙8∙ ∙here? 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I do not. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Does anybody? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Do you have any other questions of 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the witness? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah.∙ I wanted to ask him 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ some questions on the original documents. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ Keep going. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So the original documents aren't in the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't have them. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your firm is not in possession of any of the 
21∙ ∙original documents? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure.∙ I'm not at the firm anymore. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙When you left the firm, were there documents 
24∙ ∙still at the firm? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes, there were. 
 
Page 122 
‐1‐ Q.∙ ∙Were you ordered by the court to turn those 
∙2∙ ∙documents over to the curator, Benjamin Brown? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Can he clarify the 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ question, which documents?∙ Because I believe the 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ curator was for the estate, and the original will 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ was already in file, and the curator would have no 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ interest in the trust ‐‐ 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Which documents?∙ When you say 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ "those documents," which ones are you referring to? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Any of the trusts and estate 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ That's been clarified. 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙You can answer, if you can. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe that he was given ‐‐ I 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ believe all the documents were copied by 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Mr. Pollock's office, and that he was given some 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ type of zip drive with everything.∙ I'm not sure, 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ though.∙ I couldn't ‐‐ 
20∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did the zip drive contain the original 
22∙ ∙documents? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Did not.∙ I believe the original documents 
24∙ ∙came back to our office.∙ Having said that, we would 
25∙ ∙only have ‐‐ when we made and had the client execute 
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 Page 123 
∙1∙  three documents, two originals of those documents would 
∙2∙ ∙remain with the client, and then we would keep one 
∙3∙ ∙original in our file, except ‐‐ including, most of the 
∙4∙ ∙time, the original will, which we put in our safe 
∙5∙ ∙deposit box.∙ So we would have one original of every 
∙6∙ ∙document that they had executed, including the original 
∙7∙ ∙will, and they would keep two originals of everything, 
∙8∙ ∙except for the will, which we would give them conformed 
∙9∙ ∙copies of, because there was only one original will. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ I asked a specific question.∙ Did your 
11∙ ∙firm, after the court order of Martin Colin, retain 
12∙ ∙documents, original documents? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Sorry.∙ I should have 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ let him finish. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ ‐‐ original documents? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe ‐‐ 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Relevance and misstates the ‐‐ 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ there's no such order. 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, the question is, Did your 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ firm retain the original documents? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Is that the question? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yes, sir. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Answer, please. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe we had original 
 
Page 124 
∙1∙ documents. 
∙2∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙After the date you were court ordered to 
∙4∙ ∙produce them to the curator? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Object ‐‐ that's the part I object 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ to. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
∙9∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙To your knowledge ‐‐ so, to your knowledge, 
11∙ ∙the documents can't all be here since they may be at 
12∙ ∙your firm today? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't practice at the firm anymore, so I'm 
14∙ ∙not sure where the documents are. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ And you said you made copies of all the 
16∙ ∙documents that you turned over to the curator?∙ Did you 
17∙ ∙turn over any original documents as ordered by the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Same objection. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ There's no court order requiring an original 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ document be turned over. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ What order are you referring to? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Judge Colin ordered when they 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ resigned due to the fraudulent alteration of the 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents that they turn over – 
  
Page 125 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ I just said, what order are you 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ referring to? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ It's an order Judge Colin 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ordered. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ All right.∙ Well, produce that 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ order so I can see it, because Judge Colton's [sic] 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ been retired for six or seven years. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay.∙ I don't have it with 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ me, but... 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, Judge Colton's a retired 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ judge.∙ He may have served in some other capacity, 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ but he doesn't enter orders, unless he's sitting as 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ a replacement judge.∙ And that's why I'll need to 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ see the order you're talking about, so I'll know if 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ he's doing that.∙ Okay.∙ Thanks.∙ Next question. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Has anyone, to the best of your 
18∙ ∙knowledge, seen the originals while you were in custody 
19∙ ∙of them? 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Who? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I believe Ken Pollock's firm was ‐‐ Ken 
23∙ ∙Pollock's firm was the firm that took the documents for 
24∙ ∙purposes of copying them. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did anybody ask you, refer copies to inspect 
  
Page 126 
1∙ ∙the documents? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Other than Ken Pollock's office, I don't 
∙3∙ ∙recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did I ask you? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Perhaps you did. 
  
 Page 170 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙But it does say on the document that the 
15∙ ∙original will's in your safe, correct? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙For your mother's document, it showed that. 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Oh, for my father's ‐‐ where are the originals 
18∙ ∙of my father's? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Your father's original will was deposited in 
20∙ ∙the court.∙ As was your mother's. 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙How many copies of it were there that were 
22∙ ∙original? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Only one original.∙ I think Mr. Rose had 
24∙ ∙stated on the record that he requested a copy from the 
25∙ ∙clerk of the court of your father's original will, to 
  
  
Page 171 
∙1∙ ∙make a copy of it. 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Certified? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure if he said it was certified or 
∙4∙ ∙not. 
  
 TED BERNSTEIN WITNESS ‐ ELIOT BERNSTEIN CROSS EXAM 
  
Page 209 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah. 
24∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you seen the original will and trust of 
  
Page 210 
1∙ ∙your mother's? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you define original for me? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙The original. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙The one that's filed in the court? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Original will or the trust. 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I've seen copies of the trusts. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you done anything to have any of the 
∙8∙ ∙documents authenticated since learning that your 
∙9∙ ∙attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10∙ ∙documents that you were in custody of? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Relevance. 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I have not. 
14∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16∙ ∙validate these documents; is that correct? 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Correct. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Why is that? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not an expert on the validity of 
20∙ ∙documents. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you contract a forensic analyst? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm retained by counsel, and I've got counsel 
23∙ ∙retained for all of this.∙ So I'm not an expert on the 
24∙ ∙validity of the documents. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙You're the fiduciary.∙ You're the trustee. 
  
Page 211 
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∙1∙ ∙You're the guy in charge.∙ You're the guy who hires your 
∙2∙ ∙counsel.∙ You tell them what to do. 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙So you found out that your former attorneys 
∙4∙ ∙committed fraud.∙ And my question is simple.∙ Did you do 
∙5∙ ∙anything, Ted Bernstein, to validate these documents, 
∙6∙ ∙the originals? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ That's already been answered in 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the negative.∙ I wrote it down.∙ Let's keep going. 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
10∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙As you sit here today, if the documents in 
12∙ ∙your mother's ‐‐ in the estates aren't validated and 
13∙ ∙certain documents are thrown out if the judge rules them 
14∙ ∙not valid, will you or your family gain or lose any 
15∙ ∙benefit in any scenario? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you repeat that for me, please?∙ I'm not 
17∙ ∙sure I'm understanding. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙If the judge invalidates some of the documents 
19∙ ∙here today, will you personally lose money, interest in 
20∙ ∙the estates and trusts as the trustee, your family, you? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I will not. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your family? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙My ‐‐ my children will. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So that's your family? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
  
Page 212 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So do you find that as a fiduciary to 
∙2∙ ∙be a conflict? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ No. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ I think it calls for a legal 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ conclusion. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
  
Page 215 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original will 
22∙ ∙of your father or mother that were in the Tescher & 
23∙ ∙Spallina vaults? 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I have no access, no. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original 
  
Page 216 
∙1∙ ∙copies of the trusts that Mr. Spallina testified were 
∙2∙ ∙sitting in their firm's file cabinets or vaults? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did not. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Now, did you find in your father's possessions 
∙5∙ ∙the duplicate originals of the trusts of him and your 
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∙6∙ ∙mother that we've talked about? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙And do you have any reason to believe that 
∙9∙ ∙they aren't valid, genuine and signed by your father on 
10∙ ∙the day that he ‐‐ your father and your mother on the 
11∙ ∙days that it says they signed them? 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙None whatsoever. 
  

Predetermined Trial, Missing Witnesses, Missing Originals and Discovery:  

137. Trial Transcript makes it crystal clear the Result of the “Trial” was predetermined by Phillips as 

alleged in post-trial motions49 and motions for Disqualification50. 

138. Missing Witnesses include Traci Kratish who gives contradictory statements to the Palm Beach 

Sheriff’s from the alleged Oppenheimer Trusts produced by Alan Rose and Steven Lessne and 

further contradicting filed documents by Robert Spallina in 2010 which are claimed as frauds, 

see above.  Kratish is allegedly also a Witness to certain operative Trusts/Wills/Instruments so 

an adverse inference against the core parties and in favor of this Petition should be drawn by the 

failure to produce Traci Kratish at the alleged Validity trial.  

139. Phillips made it clear, however, that he was not going to go beyond his “one day” trial thus fully 

prejudging the case and denies me from calling Alan Rose as a witness with 11 minutes 

remaining despite his direct involvement in the break of the chain of custody of dispositive 

documents and more and where Rose is also a served Counter Defendant in the Counter 

Complaint51 stayed by Colin in the Shirley Trust case and where Colin is also listed as a 

Material and Fact Witness and Potential Counter Defendant in the Party Heading in the case.  

                                                 
49 December 31, 2015 Motion for New Trial Stay Injunction 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20MOTION%
20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTION%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20CO
PY.pdf  
50 December 28, 2015 2nd Petition for Disqualification of Phillips  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151228%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20NOTARIZED
%20Second%20Disqualification%20of%20Judge%20Phillips%20after%20Validity%20Hearing%20on%2
0December%2015,%202015%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
51September 02, 2014 Stayed Counter Complaint 
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140. Other missing witnesses include: Kimberly Moran (arrested for 6 Fraudulent Notarizations and 

Admitted to 6 Forgies of Estate documents), Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, Diana Banks 

and others, who were all parties to various of the Estate and Trust documents. 

141. According to Peter Feaman and William Stansbury, Donald Tescher was “seen” at the 

Courthouse on Trial day but never called as a Witness.  

142. Spallina admits under oath at the hearing to having worked with Alan Rose in preparation for 

the trial. 

·3· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times have you spoken with 
·5· ·Alan Rose in the last three months? 
·6· · · · A.· ·Twice. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Did you prepare for this hearing in any way 
·8· ·with Alan Rose? 
·9· · · · A.· ·I did. 
10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Was that the two times you spoke to 
11· ·him? 
12· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
13· · · · Q.· ·Do you see any other of the parties that would 
14· ·be necessary to validate these trust documents in the 
15· ·court today? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Cumulative. 
17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 
December 15, 2015 Hearing Transcript Page 14952 

 

 , See Post‐Trial Motions and Disqualifications of Judge Phillips; see pending 4th DCA Writ of Prohibition 

appealing Original Phillips Denial of Disqualification53;  

 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140902%20Final%20Signed%20Printed%20Cou
nter%20Complaint%20Trustee%20Construction%20Lawsuit%20ECF%20Filing%20Copy.pdf 
52 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
53  
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Tescher‐Spallina Prosecuted by the SEC, yet Phillips, Rose, O’Connell, Foglietta, Ted 

Bernstein have left critical Originals, documents and evidence in their possession, thus this 

Court must now act:   

143. Other new evidence and facts have emerged during the relevant time this federal action has been 

waiting to come back on the calendar where the Estate Planning attorneys for my now deceased 

parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein, being attorneys Tescher & Spallina of Boca Raton, have 

been charged by the SEC with violations of federal Insider Trading and breaches of fiduciary 

duties to other clients and now entered into formal Consent Orders with the SEC54, and yet the 

involved judicial actors of the Florida Probate Courts, attorney Alan Rose, Ted Bernstein, and 

the PR attorneys Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta for the Simon Bernstein Estate have 

permitted years of “ORIGINAL” documents and business records relevant to this action to 

remain in the possession of Tescher and Spallina despite their being Court Ordered 

approximately 2 years ago to turn over “ALL”55 records upon their removal after admitting to 

fraudulently creating a Shirley Trust, thus creating an imminent danger that further vital 

Original documents and evidence relevant to this federal action will also go “ permanently lost” 

or be destroyed further justifying the need for an immediate injunction herein.  
                                                 
54 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER TRADING 
CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
AND 
September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
AND 
October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 2015 and 
TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
55 February 18, 2014 Order Demanding ALL TESCHER and SPALLINA records be turned over to the 
Replacement Curator Benjamin Brown 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20
PETITION%20FOR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP
004391XXXXSB%20SIMON.pdf  
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144. As this Court may recall from the Summary Judgment filings herein, attorney Robert Spallina 

sought to have the proceeds of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy paid to his office by 

signing a Death Benefit Claim as the Trustee of a Trust also “lost” and which he claims in 

testimony and other parole evidence obtained that he had nothing to with the trust or insurance 

policy, including stating this in his recent testimony at the Validity hearing and further he was 

being addressed in communications over several months by Heritage Union Life Insurance as 

“Trustee” of the “La Salle Trust” and yet the parties kept LaSalle out of this federal case where 

Financial Disclosures of Florida Probate Judge Martin Colin now publicly available due to the 

Palm Beach Post Investigative series show Judge Colin has had an ongoing financial business 

relationship with La Salle for all relevant years and yet never Disclosed this on the record 

despite knowing and having actual knowledge that La Salle was a Defendant in a counter-

complaint56 filed by myself in his Court as of July, 2014 in relation to an Oppenheimer Trust 

instigated lawsuit against Eliot’s children that Colin immediately stayed57 despite knowing of 

the conflict this represented as a potential Counter Defendant and as a Material and Fact 

Witness to certain fraud in and on and by his court.  

145. This Court must now act and use its Injunctive powers over the parties currently within its 

jurisdiction to restrain. obtain, produce and preserve the critical evidence, documents and 

records and Discovery necessary from all parties including the probate court files in aid of it’s 

own jurisdiction.  

Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose involved with New Fraud Company to hide Ownership of 
Assets at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl ; Further Need for Injunctive Relief  

                                                 
56July 30, 3014 Answer and Counter Complaint Oppenheimer lawsuit v Eliot Minor Children 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140730%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Answer%20and%20Counter%20Oppenheimer.pdf 
57 August 06, 2014 Oppenheimer Counter Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140806%20REFILED%2020140730%20PRINTE
D%20SIGNED%20ECF%20STAMPED%20Counter%20Complaint%20Oppenheimer%20Lawsuit-2.pdf  
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146. On Feb. 18, 2016 I had a personal conversation with one Leilani Ochoada of Orlando, Florida 

after discovering information at the Florida Secretary of State website www.sunbiz.org 

regarding a false company set up as 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc., shown on a Deed 

purportedly signed and transferred by Ted Bernstein of the property at 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton which was my parent’s St. Andrews home. See, Deed signed by Ted Bernstein and 

Alan Rose58.  

147. The sunbiz.org website showed this 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc. company had a False and 

Inactive ( Dissolved ) company listed as it’s Registered Agent which according to Melanie 

Sellers at the Florida Division of Corporations should not have made it through the Secretary of 

State’s Office to be filed as the Registered Agent must be a valid and active company. See  

Document Number P15000049545 filed 6/4/15 which is the reference number on the Lions 

Head Land Trust Inc. filing.  See Document Number P1500004954559  

148. The Registered Agent is listed as ISL, Inc. with an address at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 which is also the address listed as the Principal Place of Business 

for Lions Head Land Trust, Inc.  

149. According to www.sunbiz.org  the ISL, Inc. company listed as Registered Agent by Lions Head 

Land Trust Inc. has been INACTIVE and Dissolved since 1997 according to Secretary of State 

Document Number P96000079975 and this has been confirmed by staff at the Division of 

                                                 
58 DEED 
www.iviewit.tv/DEEDLIONSHEADLANDTRUSTINC7020LIONSHEADLANEBOCARATONFLSALE.pdf  
 
59 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545Articles.pdf - Articles of Incorporation 

    www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545DetailsCorp.pdf - Detail of Corp 
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Corporations who were initiating inquiry and investigation. See, Document Number 

P9600007997560 

150. Upon information and belief, the actual licensed business at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 is Incorporating Services, LTD and the person at phone number 

(850) 656-7956 says there is no ISL, Inc. at that address and no company like Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc. has principal offices at the 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

address.  

151. Upon speaking to Leilani Ochoada who is listed as the “Incorporator” of Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc., using an Address on the Articles of Incorporation as 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca 

Raton, Fl 33496 Leilani says she will come forward with an Affidavit for federal and state court 

and Investigators as follows upon information and belief: 1) She has no knowledge of Lions 

Head Land Trust, Inc. at all ; 2) She never authorized anyone to use her name as an 

Incorporator; 3) Until Feb. 18th 2016 had no knowledge any entity was incorporated by filings 

at the Fla Secretary of State under her name and had no involvement with any land transaction 

involving 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, F; 4) She initially believed it was some form of 

identity theft when she got the call and looked into it further; 5) She  never lived at any Boca 

Raton, Fl address in general and never at 7020 Lions Head Land Trust Inc. and is from Orlando, 

Fl; 6) She found out an attorney that had an Office building where her company rented space in 

Orlando used her name as this Incorporator  without permission and never knew about any land 

deal with Mitch Huhem/ Laurence Pino or anything related to this property with Laurence Pino 

being the attorney who apparently did this expressly stating he was trying to hide Mitch Huhem 

from the public record as part of this transaction; 7) She knew absolutely nothing about the 

Articles of Incorporation and the addresses and companies named there using her name; 8) 
                                                 
60 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP96000079975.pdf - Details of Corp 
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Attorney Laurence Pino never had Leilani's permission to incorporate any entity using her name 

as an Incorporator either by signed document or Electronically ; 9)  Pino has not been able to 

produce any written document that she allegedly signed with his office; 10)  Pino's Exec 

Assistant Cathy can not find Any document signed by Leilani after reviewing the files 

supporting Leilani’s version of the events that she had no knowledge and no involvement.   

152. Thus, Ted Bernstein and Attorney Alan Rose knew and had to know by the most basic due 

diligence reviewing the company's data of Lion Head Land Trust, Inc. as the alleged “buyer” in 

this Real Estate transaction which was never approved or authorized by myself that the 

Company was False and Fraudulent as Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose knew and had to know 

Leilani Ochoada had never met them before and surely did not have an address at 7020 Lions 

Head Lane, Boca Raton Fl 33467 and thus Ted and Alan are again in the middle of fraud this 

time in a direct manner to SECRET away and HIDE ASSETS and this Court must now use its 

Injunctive powers herein.  

153. This US District Court clearly has jurisdiction over Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose has 

“appeared” in the federal case as Attorney for Ted Bernstein at a Deposition and thus this Court 

should also have proper power under the All Writs Act and Anti Injunction Act to reach Alan 

Rose as well until such time he is formally served with a Summons and Amended Complaint 

where he is among several parties I am seeking to add to this action herein and should now be 

enjoined until further Order of this Court from all actions on behalf of Ted Bernstein and related 

to the matters herein.   

Sharp, Fraudulent practices and Abuse of Process, sham hearings, Alan Rose, Steven Lessnee, Judge 
Phillips wherein this Court should at least Temporarily Enjoin proceedings before Judge Phillips 
specifically including a Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 proceeding this week at 3:15 PM EST until further 

Order of this Court:  
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In addition to the grounds set forth above where Alan Rose and Steven Lessne both should be Disqualified 

from representation as Material fact witnesses in the Stanford-Oppenheimer-JP Morgan Trust documents 

involving Gerald Lewin, Traci Kratish and others, both attorneys have engaged in Sharp and abusive practices 

by:  

1. filing motions with minimal Notice during times I have Noticed as Unavailable for medical reasons;  
2. seeking to hear at 5 Minute UMC Motion dates complex matters knowingly requiring Hearings;  
3. seeking to have Ordered at such Motion dates hundreds of thousands of dollars in attorneys fees 

without providing ANY Billing statements;  
4. Falsely presenting to the Florida Courts knowing misrepresentations of claimed Injunctions against 

me by SDNY Judge Shira Scheindlin and directly misrepresenting the truth and actual language;  
5. pursuing Guardianship as a retaliatory tool against seeking truth and disclosure and justice.  

 
This Court should now Enjoin and Restrain Alan Rose who is under this Court’s jurisdiction as having 

appeared in a federal court deposition for Ted Bernstein who is under the Court’s jurisdiction,  or at least 

enjoining Ted Bernstein and the Probate Court of Judge Phillips at least temporarily.  

 
“Side-Deals” and “Agreements” Thwarting and Impairing this Court’s Jurisdiction  

 
It is expressly known that “some form” of side deal - agreement is in place where somehow Creditor William 

Stansbury has some “settlement” with Ted Bernstein yet the terms are completely unknown and should be 

fully disclosed and while William Stansbury has been very helpful to myself and my family in many ways the 

actions of his attorney Peter Feaman in not pursuing avenues of relief combined with the orchestrated actions 

of O’Connell and Rose demand this Court exercise it’s injunctive and inherent powers to determine how such 

off record agreements are manipulating the integrity of both federal and state proceedings and the court 

should further act upon and resolve the conflicts of interests of the attorneys and for those not under the 

Court’s jurisdiction I pray for leave to Amend to add parties and claims herein.  

 

Piece-Meal Documentary Proof of “Missing Millions” and “Missing Files-Records”  
 

154. While it is presently unknown to Eliot when COLIN first gained knowledge of the sizable 

holdings of Simon and Shirley Bernstein or when COLIN first had involvement in Bernstein 

family matters inside or outside the Courthouse, Court records and documentary evidence show 

COLIN becoming involved in both the Estate cases of Shirley and Simon Bernstein in at least 
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2010 for Shirley Bernstein and 2012 for Simon Bernstein when he took over his Estate case 

from FRENCH. 

155. From the minimal records and Discovery obtained by Eliot via Court Ordered Production of 

Tescher & Spallina, PA upon their removal, Simon Bernstein had assets and holdings of over 

$13 Million plus in Investments Accounts, Private Banking Accounts, checking accounts, 

retirement accounts etc since 2008 when Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA 

were doing Estate Family Planning for Simon and Shirley Bernstein plus over $5 Million in real 

estate based upon Listings of the properties weeks prior to Simon’s passing.   

156. That the Tescher & Spallina PA, production documents which are Not Originals are not 

transferred to the replacement Curator, Benjamin Brown, Esq. until on or about June 02, 2014, 

nearly a year after Eliot first reported to the COLIN court that Fraud Upon the Court had taken 

place and approximately nine months since the September 13, 2013 hearing before COLIN 

where he had admissions from the lawyers and fiduciaries that Fraudulent Documents had been 

submitted to the Court by Tescher & Spallina PA.   

157. The failure of COLIN to seize the records of all parties involved that committed Fraud Upon his 

court allowed the parties involved to begin to prepare further alleged fraudulent documents to 

attempt to cover up for the crimes exposed in Eliot’s May 2013 pleading, subsequent pleadings 

and criminal complaints they were then being investigated in. 

158. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the multitude 

of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 

c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 
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d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years,  

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was tendered to the 

Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s children’s home that 

was never filed with the courts. 

159. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction and despite Eliot being allowed to be 

present at any inventory of the office, Eliot was never contacted to appear. 

160. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records. 

161. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters home for lighting issue and alleges to have 

discovered and then removed documents and trust documents included from the home, despite 

that he had no legal authority to remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

162. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 
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representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was virtually no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

163. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS001503-TS001506, by Letter 

dated June 25, 2013 from Grant Thornton, under Primary Express Account 309513, Payee 

Bernstein Family Investments LLP, regarding a claim against Stanford Bank International 

Limited ( “the Company”), a Claim was allowed for $1,062,734.50 in the Antiguan Estate.  

The Letter references that there may be “more letters of notification in order to 

incorporate all CDs.” Where the CD’s my father held on information and belief were only 

a small fraction, one to two percent of his holdings. 

164. However, by Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS003734 the STANFORD Simon & 

Shirley Bernstein Valuations as of 5/28/2008 reflect a Net Worth for that Statement at    

$6, 928,933.52 ( Million ) with $839,362.12 in Cash Available.  

165. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS004808 by Statement dated 

Aug. 31, 2012 (two weeks before Simon’s death) in the Wilmington Trust Investment 

Details for 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrev TR the Grand Total $2,829,961.66, thus 

this nearly $3 Million remains wholly Unaccounted for and according to William 

Stansbury this value may be doubled to Over $6 Million when Shirley Bernstein’s 49% of 

this account is factored in, which also remains Unaccounted for.   
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166. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production already exhibited herein TED allegedly settled 

Simon’s $2,000,000.00 of CD’s with Stanford with Grant Thornton for $1,062,734.50. There is 

no complete accounting.  

167. From Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS005459 Simon Bernstein BankOne checking 

activity Acct MI/FL/Ga Checking XXXX7231 $67,402.08 was the available Balance in that 

account as of 10/15/12 just after Simon Bernstein’s passing with $109,456.67 available as of 

Sept. 7, 2012 just a short time before his passing for that account.   

168. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS005478 JP Morgan Bernstein Family 

Investment LLP Acct. W32635000 showed $1,872,810.91 for a 49.5% interest in the total 

Market Value with Accruals with $807,289.79 Cash included for Statement covering 

8/1/12-8/31/12 just weeks before Simon Bernstein’s passing.  

169. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004765 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Account No. 

000000849197231 showing Total Payments & Transfers of $97,793.74 for the period 8/10/12 to 

9/12/12 up to Simon’s passing.  

170. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004820 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Trust Robert 

M. Spallina Donald L. Tescher Trustees Primary Account 000000478018083 Dec. 20, 2013 

Balance $150,177.17 with an “Internal Transfer” of $100,000.00 on Dec. 20, 2015. It is 

unknown what this “Internal Transfer” was for that occurred over a year after Simon’s passing. 

171. By email dated Feb. 8, 2013 Victoria Roraff, Registered Client Service Associate of 

OPPENHEIMER of the Boca Raton, Florida office writing to SPALLINA she admits she does 

not have a File on all of the STANFORD Accounts but provides how some of the accounts 
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air without any distribution at all to Eliot and his family who are beneficiaries under any 

beneficiary scenario asserted by any party and they have provided No accountings that show the 

total holdings from the date of the decedents’ deaths to date, in violation of Probate Rules and 

Regulations and fail to show where the vanished holdings have gone in 2.5 years justifying a 

preliminary injunction at this time.   

173. These numbers from the minimal bare discovery obtained to date do not include and are without 

any accounting for the value of Simon’s holdings in the Intellectual Properties of “Iviewit” 

which propels the Estate and Trust to one of the largest in the country when royalties are finally 

monetized. 

174. The value of the VEBA which is already part of this federal litigation involving the Illinois life 

insurance is but one of many unknown assets in this case and it is unknown what happened to 

the VEBA assets once the VEBA was unwound as alleged by Counter-Defendants and Third-

Party Defendants.  

175. Certain documentary evidence shows the VEBA may have been worth $50 Million or more 

with Simon and Shirley as primary plan participants, yet this asset and these funds have also 

allegedly disappeared and vanished according to Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants PAMELA, TED, D. SIMON, A. SIMON and other defendants and again with no 

accountings and no records provided to beneficiaries or this Court.61  Where the VEBA Trust 

Trustee LASALLE is according to all parties the named PRIMARY BENEFICIARY of the 

missing insurance policy underlying this action. 

S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A 

Employer Identification Number (EIN) 363479122

                                                 
61 S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A Information 
http://www.nonprofitfacts.com/IL/S-B-Lexington-Inc-Death-Benefit-Plan-United-Bank-Of-
Illinois-N-A.html  
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Name of Organization S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A

Address 120 W State St, Rockford, IL 61101-1125 
Subsection Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (Non-Govt. Emps.)

Foundation All organizations except 501(c)(3) 
Organization Corporation

Exempt Organization Status Unconditional Exemption 
Tax Period 2009

Assets $50,000,000 to greater 
Income $10,000,000 to $49,999,999 

Filing Requirement 990 - Required to file Form 990-N - Income less than $25,000 per year

Asset Amount $0

Amount of Income $0

Form 990 Revenue Amount $0

 

176. On or about September 2012, Eliot discovered that his father Simon Bernstein’s home office 

computers had been virtually wiped clean of data, dispositive documents removed from the 

home by a one Rachel Walker minutes after Simon died causing reasonable and great suspicion 

when considering the sudden and alleged suspicious manner of passing, the allegations of 

Simon’s being poisoned made by his brother TED and others and the millions of dollars in 

holdings Simon Bernstein had after decades of being in business thus beginning a continuing 

and ongoing pattern of missing documents, missing information, missing trusts, missing IRA 

beneficiaries, missing insurance policies and missing evidence which now must be halted and 

enjoined. 

177. Thus, the destruction and loss of vital business records and account records began by the time of 

Simon’s passing in 2012 if not earlier. 

178. On or about Nov. 1, 2013 and Dec. 10, 2013 Eliot pro se filed a motion to Produce against TED 

as the Personal Representative in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein yet no such production has 

been forthcoming by TED to date. 
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179. That Eliot also filed an extensive production request of O’Connell the Personal Representative 

of the Estate of Simon now and O’Connell challenged the routine request and the court has not 

yet made determination, thereby further denying Eliot necessary documentation of the Estate of 

Simon and making it impossible to have Validity or Construction hearings without either 

obtaining the records or having a statement as to where they are. 

180. The Court should note that despite having a court order from COLIN to inventory Simon’s 

home and office business records and produce the inventory to beneficiaries and interested 

parties, despite reassurances from O’Connell that the documents and records would be 

inventoried, no such inventory was produced.  It was later learned that O’CONNELL nor his 

office inventoried Simon’s business address for records as court ordered and by the time this 

was learned it was also learned that TED had been evicted from the office and removed all the 

records from that address before the court ordered inventorying could be done. 

181. The Court should note that COLIN ordered a re-inventorying of assets as it was learned that 

Personal Property from the Shirley Condo sale was missing and where TED claimed it was 

moved to the garages of his father’s primary home and months later when the re-inventorying 

was done it was found that all these items were missing and the garages were empty.  Despite 

learning of this O’CONNELL has taken no action to report the missing Personal Property that is 

in his custody to the proper authorities and further took possession of remaining items and 

moved them to an undisclosed location. 

182. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the 

multitude of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 
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c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 

d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, 

Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon 

owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years, 

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was 

tendered to the Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s 

children’s home that was never filed with the courts. 

183. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction. 

184. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records 

and he failed to inventory all of the Personal Property as required, stating they were out of time. 

185. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters the home for alleged lighting issues and alleges to 

have discovered and then removed illegally documents and trust documents included from the 
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home which were under the custody of O’Connell, despite that he had no legal authority to 

remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

186. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 

representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

187. That Simon had almost a fifty year career in the insurance industry and had multiple active 

companies, including having had multiple trust companies for various of his products he 

invented and Simon was a meticulous record keeper and had massive office space housing 

records prior to his death.  Simon had computer records dating back 20 years and all these 

records and data now appear missing.   

188. Mail from the day he died and prior to his death appears missing, including bank statements, 

insurance records for home, life and property insurances, insurance commission checks, 

insurance policy records, credit card statements and virtually all of his mail is unaccounted for.  

Years of personal finance records of his many Private Banking Accounts and Statements all 

missing from his records for accounts held at Oppenheimer, Stanford, JP Morgan, Sabadell 

Bank, Legacy Bank, Wilmington Trust, Wells Fargo, etc.  Tax Returns missing. Trust 

Documents Missing. Insurance Policies Missing for both he and Shirley. IRA account histories 

missing.  Pension account information missing.  According to O’Connell Simon and Shirley’s 

business and personal finance records were in less than three banker boxes.  No hard drives 
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have been recovered and data from them produced.  All records of his 17 year involvement with 

the Iviewit Technology Companies, including his stock in the companies and copies of 

Intellectual Property Filings and more, which I had seen at his office only a few months prior to 

his death are all missing, including thousands of emails regarding the companies and other 

pertinent information that Simon was safekeeping after it was seized from the companies on or 

about 2000-2001.  Overall the contents of Simon’s home and office records should have 

amounted to over 100 banker boxes filled and gigabytes of data. 

Ted Bernstein, Greenberg Traurig, Stanford Trust, Robert Spallina, Proskauer Rose  

189. TED is the oldest son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, now deceased.  

190. Simon Bernstein passed away in Sept. of 2012, having predeceased his wife Shirley Bernstein 

who passed away in Dec. 2010.  

191. Ted was the last person in possession of my Mini-van before it was turned over to the body 

company where it was burglarized with wires taken out and a PD report generated and then 

taken to another company where it was Car-bombed.  

192. While Ted Bernstein had been asked to come forward to the FBI about the circumstances of the 

Car-bombing he has never done so to my knowledge.  

193. TED was living in the home of Simon Bernstein pulling his life together prior to the Car-

bombing of Eliot’s family vehicle in 2005.  

194. TED soon thereafter was commingling with PROSKAUER, LEWIN and Greenberg Traurig  

and suddenly gets a Multi-million dollar home on the intra-coastal waters.62 TED has other 

insurance business relationships with Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA right 

                                                 
62 Zillow Listing TED Home @ http://www.zillow.com/homes/880-Berkeley-St-Boca-Raton-FL-
33487_rb/?fromHomePage=true&shouldFireSellPageImplicitClaimGA=false  
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from the outset of their involvement in Simon and Shirley’s Estate Planning and TED brings 

them to his father claiming they will be a rich source of referrals for him.  

195. Greenberg Traurig (“GT”) who was involved with the Iviewit IP and Iviewit Bar Complaints 

and Federal RICO and ANTITRUST lawsuit of Eliot, also represented TED personally in the 

lawsuit that also involves the Estates and Trusts of Simon and Shirley with Stansbury - GT main 

defendant with PROSKAUER in the STANFORD litigation. 

196. TESCHER under deposition can not remember why he gets checks of $55k twice from one of 

TED companies.63  

197. STANFORD is one fund that Simon Bernstein invested substantial monies in and eventually  

STANFORD broke open as a major Ponzi scheme on or about Feb. 2009 and is claimed as a $7 

Billion plus ponzi scheme, See, SEC public Announcement Feb. 17, 2009: 

“ SEC Charges R. Allen Stanford, Stanford International Bank for Multi-
Billion Dollar Investment Scheme FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 2009-26: 
Washington, D.C., Feb. 17, 2009 — The Securities and Exchange Commission 
today charged Robert Allen Stanford and three of his companies for 
orchestrating a fraudulent, multi-billion dollar investment scheme centering on 
an $8 billion CD program.64”   
 

198. According to the SEC public statement,  

“Rose Romero, Regional Director of the SEC's Fort Worth Regional Office, 
added, "We are alleging a fraud of shocking magnitude that has spread its 
tentacles throughout the world.”  
 

                                                 
63 July 09, 2014 Tescher Deposition by Florida counsel Peter Feaman on behalf of William 
Stansbury 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20
Exhibits.pdf  
64 February 07, 2009 SEC PRESS REPORT ALLEN STANFORD PONZI 
https://www.sec.gov/news/press/2009/2009-26.htm 
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199. According to public articles, PROSKAUER and GREENBERG TRAURIG are centrally 

involved in the Stanford Ponzi and are being sued for the entire scheme65.   

200. Upon information and belief, William Stansbury has not able to get info on the Retirement 

Plans from TED even as a Co-Trustee and Stansbury’s lawyer Peter Feaman has no response 

from ROSE .  

201. According to Stansbury, approximately $6500 or so per each minor child that should have been 

paid out and not gone through Estate. 

202. Further, upon information and belief,  TED is under Dept of Labor Investigation and has been  

non responsive to beneficiaries and again with no accountings the numbers seem strikingly low.  

Simon Bernstein’s “Missing Iviewit Shares, Proskauer Iviewit Files and Iviewit”, “Missing Estate 

Planning” from Proskauer Rose and Foley Lardner 
 

203. Eliot is the natural son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, who both resided in Boca Raton, Florida 

within Palm Beach county at relevant times herein.  

204. Shortly after the birth of their first son in California, Joshua, Eliot and Candice Bernstein were 

about to move into a new home with their child. 

205. That Simon and Shirley however had taken ill at the time and traveling to California was 

burdensome at the time and Eliot and Candice proposed moving to Florida and Candice would 

move from her hometown of Newport Beach/Corona Del Mar where her and her family lived 

and where she had met and married Eliot.  Candice willing to give up everything to be with 

Eliot’s parents and have her baby with them and so they moved. 

                                                 
65 July 27, 2015 Proskauer Rose, Greenberg Traurig and Chadbourne sued in STANFORD PONZI 
Judge refuses to dismiss 
http://www.americanlawyer.com/id=1202732467400/Judge-Declines-to-Dismiss-Claims-Against-
Proskauer-and-Chadbourne?slreturn=20151101125935  
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206. Simon and Shirley were elated to have their son, his wife and grandson close to them and they 

gave Eliot and Candice a $100,000.00 wedding gift as a deposit at a Condominium on Mizner 

Boulevard in Boca Raton and where decorating it prior to Eliot and Candice’s arrival. 

207. Where the owner of the building, a one James Cohen was a client of Simon’s and so it was a 

spectacular deal on a brand new trio of buildings in the heart of Boca, which property had 

fantastic growth in a short time. 

208. Life was great in Boca working with Simon for the first time in his life in the same city, every 

week like clockwork Eliot, Candice and the children had brunch on Sunday, dinner at least once 

a week with them and then golf or a movie.  A second son was born, JNAB.  

209. At all relevant times herein, since on or about 1998, Eliot is the actual and true Owner and 

Inventor of Intellectual Properties ( hereinafter referred to as “IP” ) and the technologies 

hereinafter referred to as the “Iviewit” technologies were technologies heralded by leading 

experts as the “Holy Grail” of the Internet, being backbone technologies used around the globe 

for digital imaging, having major and significant “government” uses such as used on the Hubble 

Space telescope, for a mass of defense applications such as, Space and Flight Simulators, 

Drones, Medical Imaging applications and much much more.      

210. Once the technologies were discovered Simon and Eliot formed companies and secured 

Intellectual Properties through LEWIN and PROSKAUER, raised seed capital from H. Wayne 

Huizenga, Crossbow Ventures and many other seed investors, had a Private Placement with 

Wachovia and already had Goldman Sachs referring clients and getting the companies ready for 

an IPO that some claimed would make the companies larger than Microsoft, as the IP would 

become the backbone technologies to virtually all digital imaging and video content creation 

and distribution software and hardware and more. 
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211. The “Iviewit” technologies were tested used and validated by leading engineers and companies 

including but not limited to Gerald Stanley of Real3d Inc., engineers at Lockheed Martin, the 

Intel Corporation, Silicon Graphics, Inc., AOLTW ( America Online-Time Warner), Sony and 

Warner Bros., with the IP having been valued in the Billions to Trillions of dollars over the life 

of the IP.  

212. Hundreds of signed Non-Disclosure Agreements, Licensing and Strategic Alliance Agreements 

were obtained on behalf of the technologies involving Fortune 500 companies, financial 

institutions and others such as Lockheed Martin, the Intel Corporation Inc., Goldman Sachs, 

Wachovia, JPM, Chase, IBM, AT&T, Warner Bros, Sony, Inc., Dell Inc, and many others, all 

currently and since that time using Inventor Bernstein’s Scaling Technologies IP without paying 

royalties to the true and proper inventors and violating their contracts.  

213. The Internet would not have rich video or imaging and cable television would have 75% less 

channel bandwidth available without these technologies. 

214. Simon L. Bernstein was a lifelong successful Life Insurance salesman growing many businesses 

and gaining substantial wealth during his lifetime, earning millions in income yearly such that 

he was a “Private Banking” client of leading US and International Banks, and he and his wife 

had a fully paid multi-million dollar home in Boca Raton, Fl, at the leading country golf club 

Saint Andrews and a fully paid multi-million dollar beachfront Condominium on Ocean Blvd. 

in Boca Raton, Fl. with their own private floor and elevator.   

215. On or about 1997, Simon L. Bernstein an original seed capital investor in Counter Plaintiff’s 

novel technologies and IP, which later became known as the “Iviewit” technologies and Simon 

Bernstein became a 30 percent shareholder of company stock issued for operational and holding 

companies for the Intellectual Properties and 30 percent owner of the Intellectual Properties and 
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he also became the Chairman of the Board, all companies originally formed by PROSKAUER 

and accountant LEWIN.  

216. PROSKAUER and LEWIN were both not only intimately involved in the “Iviewit” Company 

operations and were stockholders on gifts Eliot gave Proskauer and Lewin’s family, but further 

provided Estate and Family Planning advice to Simon who had now become a 30% shareholder 

in the Iviewit IP and Iviewit companies.  

217. PROSKAUER prepared Wills, Trusts and other Estate Planning instruments for Simon and 

Shirley Bernstein while PROSKAUER was simultaneously acting as Counsel, including 

Intellectual Property Counsel for the Iviewit companies.  

218. With the “Iviewit” Technologies having been valued by leading Experts in the billions of 

dollars by Proskauer referred technology companies, since on or about 2001 to the present, Eliot 

and his wife Candice and their minor children have experienced an ongoing pattern and practice 

of extortionate actions, threats, death threats so real as to include but not be limited to the car-

bombing of the family mini-van in Boynton Beach, Florida on or about March 14, 2005.  

  

This image cannot currently be displayed.

This image cannot currently be displayed.
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courts and fraudulent documents sent to private institutional banking and trust companies, 

fraudulent creation of similarly named companies and similarly named IP in efforts to move the 

IP into other people’s names, one patent attorney, Raymond Joao, who misrepresented himself 

with his partner Kenneth Rubenstein as being partners of PROSKAUER when actually at that 

time they were with Meltzer, Lippe, Goldstein, Wolf & Schlissel, P.C. and where Joao put 90+ 

patents in his own name66 and when this was discovered he left his law firm and went to work 

for New York Senator Dean Skelos’ law firm Ruskin, Moscou, Evans & Faltischek and where 

Skelos and his son are currently on trial in NY with charges of corruption by US Attorney Preet 

Bharara), all combined to further the fraud and maintain control of the IP for the perpetrators. 

222. Joao further worked after Iviewit with the now infamous Ponzi schemer Marc Stuart Dreier, 

sentenced to 20 years by the Department of Justice at the law firm Dreier & Barritz LLP.   

223. The Perpetrators of the frauds alleged herein are primarily composed of criminals with law 

degrees acting in concert and Misusing the law while acting as Private and Public Attorneys at 

Law in their various capacities.   

224. That the reason Eliot’s complaints are full of Attorneys at Law and Judges is that the crimes 

alleged in both the Probate Court and those regarding the IP crimes are both sophisticated legal 

crimes that require a legal degree and bar association license to commit and involve misusing 

the Courts and Government Agencies to implement the crimes,  Then to protect the alleged 

criminals from prosecution the victims are then further victimized through denial of due process 

and where legal process appears controlled by the criminals and infiltrate at will through 

conflicts and more, and finally claiming that because of their legal positions they are “immune” 

from their criminal and civil acts because they are acting as Attorneys at Law or Judges.  Where 

                                                 
66 April 22, 2002 Article Iviewit Patent Attorney Raymond Joao, Esq. has 90+ patents in his name 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Joao%20Article%2090%20patents%20clean.pdf  
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in fact it should be the opposite to protect the public and where those who violate their ethics 

should be charged with treble damages instead. 

225. Since on or about 1999 Eliot has consistently and diligently reported criminal actions relating to 

the crimes committed against the Iviewit shareholders, investors, patent interest owners, himself 

and his family relating to their IP rights, crimes committed primarily by lawyers, to a host of 

federal, state and local authorities as well as international bodies.67    

226. This reporting and petitioning government entities of ongoing criminal actions and thefts of the 

IP includes a Feb. 2009 Petition to the Office of President Barack Obama, the White House 

Counsel’s Office, US Attorney General’s Office, White Collar crime units of the FBI as well as 

several petitions to the SEC in 200968.  

227. One could say that greed was the motivating factor behind these IP crimes, “holy grail” and 

“priceless” evaluations from leading engineers worldwide, until one discovers that Christopher 

Wheeler (Proskauer), Brian G. Utley (IBM) and William Dick (Foley & Lardner and former 

IBM far eastern IP counsel) had secreted the fact that prior to joining the Iviewit companies 

they had worked together for a Florida philanthropist Monte Friedkin who had fired them all for 

attempting to steal intellectual properties from his company Diamond Turf Equipment Co, 

which he had to shutter and take a multimillion dollar loss after learning of their attempt to steal 

his IP.  On the biography of Utley that Wheeler sold to the Iviewit board it stated that the 

company had went on to be a leader in Turf Equipment due to Utley’s innovations instead.  

With this truth it became clear that a pattern and practice of IP theft was in play, nothing to do 

                                                 
67  Investigation Master Chart @  
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm 
68 February 13, 2009 Letter to Hon. President Barack Hussein Obama re Iviewit @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20Distric
t%20NY/20090213%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20LETTER%20OBAMA%20TO%20ENJOIN%
20US%20ATTORNEY%20FINGERED%20ORIGINAL%20MAIL%20l.pdf  
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with Iviewit or greed, a well greased group of players who were perfecting their crimes, in fact, 

the alleged Iviewit thefts mirror the Diamond Turf attempt with Wheeler, Utley and Dick all 

involved in similar acts.   

228. The veracity and truthfulness of Counter-Plaintiff’s statements and reporting of these crimes 

and thefts has never been challenged by any Federal authority including but not limited to the 

US Secret Service, the Capitol Police, the US Marshall’s Service, the FBI, the SEC, at least one 

Federal Judge and other related federal offices.   

229. In 1999 it was learned that IP counsel, Joao from PROSKAUER and Meltzer Lippe Goldstein & 

Schlissel, tampered with Iviewit IP applications and was also putting Iviewit IP into his own 

name, while retained as counsel for the companies. 

230. On or about 2000-2001 it was learned that the IP was fraudulently altered and that false 

inventors were inserted into various IP’s, that there were similarly named yet different IP 

applications filed some entirely missing the invention process being patented and that the 

companies formed were duplicated as part of an elaborate shell game to move the IP out of the 

Iviewit shareholders ownership and into others hands. 

231. As IP applications were seized from Brian Utley, who was acting as President / COO to Iviewit 

at the time, on referral from his friend Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. at PROSKAUER and 

William Dick, Esq. his business associate and patent counsel for IBM who was new IP counsel 

hired by Iviewit to replace Joao who was caught putting IP in his name.  Dick worked at 

FOLEY as of counsel.   

232. It was then learned that the IP was in the wrong names, the assignees/owners were all wrong 

according to Harry I. Moatz, the Director of Enrollment and Discipline at the US Patent Office, 

which led to Moatz directing Eliot to file with the Commissioner of Patents allegations that 
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FRAUD UPON THE US PATENT OFFICE had occurred and seeking suspension of the IP 

while Moatz and an FBI Agent from West Palm Beach, FL were investigating the matters.  

Suspensions were granted. 

233. Warner Bros. finds different  IP then Utley showed them and stated that their patent expert, 

Wayne Smith, Esq. had gone to the US Patent Office and what was on file did not capture the 

invention, nor is what Utley showed them when presenting them a Wachovia Private Placement 

and seeking investment funds. 

234. Shortly after Eliot and his friend, co-inventor and investor and executive at the Iviewit 

companies, James Armstrong, seized the IP applications and information from Utley and Eliot 

went back to California where he was opening a new HQ office in the Warner Bros. Advanced 

Tech Building in Glendale and taking over their video operations.  Eliot began preparing and 

filing federal and state complaints.  Utley then came unannounced to California and levied 

death threats to Eliot claiming that he and his friends Wheeler of PROSKAUER, Dick of 

FOLEY et al. were very powerful and their law firms were too and that if Eliot disclosed the 

findings to the board or others he would have to watch his back and the backs of his wife and 

kids back in Boca.  Eliot contacted the Rancho Palos Verdes Police and Long Beach, CA FBI 

office and reported the incident. 

235. After a board meeting with certain board members including Simon, LEWIN, Donald Kane of 

Goldman Sachs, H. Hickman Powell of Crossbow Ventures/Alpine regarding the threats by 

Utley it was determined that Eliot should stay in LA and his wife and kids would leave Florida 

overnight until things could be sorted out in FL with Utley, PROSKAUER, FOLEY, Wheeler, 

Dick et al. and deal with the threats on Eliot’s family lives that were made by Utley and 

reported to the proper authorities.   
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236. The result the Board members determined was to close the Boca Raton, Fl office and fire all the 

bad players involved, move Eliot’s family overnight to California, in what was just being 

learned to be an attempt to steal the IP by Iviewit’s attorneys at law hired to protect the IP. 

237. Upon information and belief, LABARGA, is presently the Chief Judge of the Florida State 

Supreme Court.  

238. On or about 2002-2003, LABARGA was a District Judge in Palm Beach County assigned to a 

“billing” lawsuit (undisclosed to the Iviewit shareholders, board members, executives and 

potential investors) brought by PROSKAUER after the PROSKAUER firm had done work for 

Eliot, Simon and the “Iviewit” companies and PROSKAUER gaining Confidential information 

about the “Iviewit” technologies and confidential information about their own clients and 

companies.  This lawsuit was also not known to Wachovia who was doing a PPM at the time. 

239. Upon information and belief, the source being actual and true Court pleadings filed with 

LABARGA by a Florida licensed and practicing attorney named Steven Selz, Esq. on or about 

2003 factual pleadings were made in a Counter-Complaint filed by said attorney Selz against 

the PROSKAUER and FOLEY before LABARGA in the “billing” case seeking damages 

against PROSKAUER and claiming the value of the “Iviewit” technologies as $10 Billion or 

greater as of that time in 2003 based upon review and statements of one Gerald Stanley, 

Engineer at Real 3d Inc.69 and others. 

240. These leading Engineers deemed the Iviewit Technologies and IP as “priceless”.  

241. Florida Licensed attorney Steven Selz pled in said Counter-Complaint against PROSKAUER in 

LABARGA’s court as follows:  

                                                 
69  Janurary 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint in Labarga Court - See Par. 29 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Complaint%20Filed.p
df  
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“As a direct and proximate result of the actions of the Counter Defendant, 
Counter Plaintiffs have been damaged in a sum estimated to be greater than 
$10,000,000,000.00, based on projections by Gerald Stanley, CEO of Real 3-D 
(a consortium of Lockheed, Silicone Graphics and Intel) as to the value of the 
technologies and their applications to current and future uses together with the 
loss of funding from Crossbow Ventures as a result of such conduct.”  See Par. 
29,  Jan. 28, 2003 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Compl
aint%20Filed.pdf 
 

242. According to wikipedia,  

“Real3D, Inc. was a maker of arcade graphics boards, a spin-off from Lockheed 
Martin. . . . The majority of Real3D was formed by research and engineering 
divisions originally part of GE Aerospace. Their experience traces its way back 
to the Project Apollo Visual Docking Simulator, the first full-color 3D computer 
generated image system.[1]” 70 

 
243. Prior to the PROSKAUER “Billing” lawsuit before LABARGA, back in June 30, 1999, Gerald 

W. Stanley as Chairman, President and CEO of Real 3d, Inc., wrote to Simon Bernstein as CEO 

of Iviewit, Inc., opining favorably on the Iviewit technologies, yet documents start emerging by 

PROSKAUER partners and Brian Utley where the “Iviewit” company name is changed as 

licensing and partnership deals are being signed and finalized and where Timothy P. Donnelly, 

Director of Engineering of Real 3d Inc, even writes to PROSKAUER partner Chris Wheeler 

about providing Eliot an “original signature” on the agreement with Real3d.71 

244. Just prior to this in on or about April 26, 1999 PROSKAUER Partner Christopher Wheeler 

wrote to counsel Richard Rosman, Esq. at Lewinter & Rosman law firm who was acting on 

behalf of Hassan Miah who was brought in by Sky Dylan Dayton, the CEO of Earthlink to 

evaluate the technologies as he was the leading expert in the field of digital video and imaging 

at the time who founded the Creative Artist Agency ( CAA ) / Intel Media lab, the first major 

                                                 
70 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D 
71 June 30, 1999 Real 3D Letter @  
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Real%203D%20Opinion%20and%20Licensing%20Info.p
df 
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collaboration between Hollywood and Silicon Valley in the early days of the Internet whereby 

PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler not only indicates PROSKAUER is coordinating the corporate 

and intellectual property matters for Iviewit but also describes the Iviewit process as “novel” 

and “far superior to anything presently available with what they are familiar”72. Proskauer 

would later try and claim they did no IP work despite their IP partners billing for services 

rendered and more. 

245. Hassan Miah was also CEO of Xing Technology Corporation and from and between 2002-2006 

was managing Director of Media and Entertainment for the Intel Corporation.73 

246. Hassan Miah was one of the first Experts to declare the Iviewit technologies as “The Holy Grail 

of the Internet.” 

247. On or about May 30, 1999, expert Hassan Miah was emailing Eliot saying the Iviewit project 

“is very exciting to me,” providing his home phone number to Eliot, being impressed with Ken 

Rubenstein of PROSKAUER (who was the sole patent evaluator for the MPEGLA LLC 

company and MPEG patent pooling scheme now controlled by PROSKAUER through 

Rubenstein) and indicating Hassan’s own company Xing was a licensee under the MPEG patent 

pool at the time74.  

                                                 
72April 22, 1999 Wheeler Letter to Richard Rosman, Esq. re Hassan Miah, 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2004%2026%20Wheeler%20Letter%20to%20Ros
man%20re%20Rubenstein%20opinion.pdf  
73 Hassan Miah Linkedin https://www.linkedin.com/in/hassanmiah  
74 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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248. The Intel Corporation acquired Real 3d Inc. (Lockheed, SGI & Intel interests), in 1999 which 

was under NDA, licensing and other agreements with the Iviewit companies regarding the 

Iviewit technologies.75 

249. As referenced in the March 25, 2009 SEC complaint regarding Intel76 and a massive accounting 

fraud which has now been specifically reported to the Philadelphia Office of the SEC that 

recently prosecuted SPALLINA and TESCHER in a separate case from this action but where 

SPALLINA and TESCHER are immersed in fraud and mis-accountings in this action:  

“Not only did Intel later acquire in whole the R3D company which was 
intimately involved in the early phases of this matter and under signed 
agreements with my company, but specific members of Intel/ R3D staff were 
present during key meetings in the early phases and otherwise involved in these 
matters including but not limited to, Lawrence Palley (Director of Business 
Development @ Intel), Gerald W. Stanley (Chairman of the Board, President & 
Chief Executive Officer @ R3D a consortium of Intel, Lockheed and SGI), 
David Bolton (Corporate Counsel @ R3D & Lockheed Martin), Steven A. 
Behrens (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer @ R3D), Rosalie Bibona 
(Program Manager @ R3D), Timothy P. Connolly (Director, Engineering @ 
R3D), Richard Gentner (Director of Scalable Graphics Systems @ R3D), Connie 
Martin (Director, Software Development @ R3D), Diane H. Sabol (Director and 
Corporate Controller Finance & Administration @ R3D), Rob Kyanko (Intel), 
Michael Silver (@ ?), Ryan Huisman (@ R3D), Matt Johannsen (@ R3D), 
Hassan Miah (@ Intel), Dennis Goo (Manager, Digital Home Content for the 
Americas @ Intel), Rajeev Kapur (Chief of Staff, Enterprise Product Group @ 
Intel) and Kostas Katsohirakis (Business Development Manager @ Intel). 
 

250. On or about June 1, 1999, Donald G. Kane (Managing Director) who worked at Goldman Sachs 

with LISA’s husband, Jeffrey Friedstein and his father Sheldon Friedstein (Managing Director 

                                                 
75 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D  
76 March 25, 2009 Iviewit Intel SEC Complaint @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20District%20NY/2
0090325%20FINAL%20Intel%20SEC%20Complaint%20SIGNED2073.pdf  
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at Goldman Sachs), was emailing to Eliot about setting up a Royalty Agreement for Eliot and 

his family giving a “priority return ahead of other shareholders.”77 ( emphasis added ).  

251. By the summer of 2000, Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. a Partner at PROSKAUER, authors a 

Marketing letter showing the broad value of the Iviewit technologies and the ability to profit 

from same as 2.5% Shareholders together with a Representative Client List of Proskauer that 

can benefit from the Iviewit technologies including but not limited to AT&T, ABC, Inc., NBC, 

CBS,  the NBA, NHL, Citibank, Columbia Pictures, Inc., Bear Stearns, HBO, Time Warner, 

The Chase Manhattan Bank, JPM, MGM, Oppenheimer and many others.  

252. PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler goes on to say as follows in his letter:  

Dear Colleagues,  
 
As a firm, we are in a unique position to impact the effectiveness of the Internet 
and to profit from the same. The firm of iviewit.com, Inc. is one of my clients 
and Proskauer, Rose, LLP. is a 2.5% shareholder. I have worked closely with 
iviewit, for the past 18 months, establishing and fine-tuning their corporate 
structure. My objective with this letter is to introduce you to this forward-
thinking company and to ask for your support and assistance. The Internet is 
quickly evolving from a text-based medium that users have been forced to read, 
into a multimedia platform that users can begin to experience. The importance 
that this evolution has to e-commerce has been likened to the impact felt by 
television when it was embraced as a marketing and communications tool. 
iviewit’s intellectual property positions them as a leader in the streaming video, 
streaming audio and virtual imaging online markets. Their technologies have 
broad ranging applications for many different industries including: 
entertainment, auctions, education, healthcare and retail. Because of the 
extensive applicability of iviewit’s products, the vast majority of Proskauer’s 
client relationships represent potential clients for iviewit. Please join me as I 
endeavor to introduce my clients to iviewit and, in the process, help those clients 
to gain a competitive advantage through the utilization of iviewit’s technologies. 
Please contact me with any opportunities that you identify and I will arrange an 
introduction to a member of iviewit’s management team. I have enclosed a 
descriptive flyer from iviewit and a multimedia CD-ROM that will serve as an 
introduction to iviewit. Additional information can be found at their website, 

                                                 
77 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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www.iviewit.com. Thank you for your time and attention. I look forward to 
working together to help this valued client and to further enhance the value of 
our equity position in iviewit.  
 
Sincerely,  
Christopher C. Wheeler”78 

 
253. According to this PROSKAUER Partner Chris Wheeler letter of 2000, PROSKAUER was 

already representing OPPENHEIMER and JPM as of 2000 while representing Eliot, Simon 

Bernstein and the Iviewit companies with OPPENHEIMER and JPM being NDA signers and 

then later being just two of the places where Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s wealth was placed.  

254. Upon information and belief, history shows that attempted murder such as the car bombing of 

Eliot’s family minivan in Boynton Beach, Florida and possible murder such as the possible 

murder of his father Simon Bernstein, as alleged by Theodore Bernstein on the day of Simon’s 

death, have been carried out for far less than a 30% Interest in the IP and Technologies valued at 

least at $10 Billion or more by leading experts back in 2003.  

255. As indicated, Eliot’s father, Simon Bernstein was a 30% shareholder in the Iviewit Intellectual 

Properties and companies formed, with PROSKAUER centrally involved in the drafting and 

planning of said companies, drafting and filing of intellectual properties, distributing stock to 

various shareholders and drafting and executing dispositive estate and trust documents 

regarding Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s Estate planning.   

256. Estate planning with PROSKAUER was done by both Simon and Eliot in direct preparation of 

an Initial Public Offering to be done by Goldman Sachs through an advisor to the company and 

shareholder, Donald Kane who was a Managing Director at Goldman Sachs & Co.  The IPO 

was to follow a Wachovia Private Placement and the estate and trust work done by 

                                                 
78 July 22, 2000 - Christopher Wheeler Letter to All Proskauer Partners Re Iviewit Techs @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Armstrong%20Wheeler%20Client%20letter%20with%20
highlights.pdf  
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PROSKAUER was to transfer interests in the Iviewit companies prior to their growth in Eliot 

and Simon’s estates, to their children’s estates to avoid having to transfer them later and suffer 

the estate taxes on the growth of the stock.   

257. These estate plans were executed and then later revoked by both Simon and Eliot, once it was 

alleged that PROSKAUER was involved in frauds against the companies and shareholders and 

PROSKAUER was TERMINATED as counsel.  

258. Yet, somehow, just like this original Insurance litigation in Illinois where litigation is filed by 

Trustees that change overnight from SPALLINA to TED and the Trust remains to this day 

missing with NO executed copies put forth and drafts found months after the lawsuit was 

instigated that appear without any identification of who the draftee is and have no legal force 

and even the Insurance contracts and policies underlying the claims in this Breach of Contract 

lawsuit are missing (not even the insurers have put forth a bona fide copy) and critical business 

documents are missing that any Insurer and Estate planner would have to legally maintain and 

likewise records from PROSKAUER, FOLEY and other involved Estate planners involving 

Simon and Shirley Bernstein are allegedly all “missing” as well and where finally evidence of 

Fraud has been now proven and further alleged regarding the dispositive documents and other 

crimes have been reported ranging from Extortion to TED’s claim on the day his father died that 

he was poisoned.  

259. Back in 2003, LABARGA, however, never afforded Eliot and the Iviewit companies the due 

process opportunity to be heard on their Counter-Complaint, and instead denied the Counter-

Complaint altogether. In a bizarre twist at a scheduled Trial Eliot and counsel showed up to an 

empty courtroom of Labarga and at the trial rescheduling Labarga dismissed two law firms 

representing the Iviewit companies simultaneously on Petitions for Withdrawal whereby both 
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law firms, Steven Selz PA and Schiffrin and Barroway both claimed the other would be 

representing the Iviewit companies at trial and then both walked out, one after the other and left 

the Iviewit companies without counsel.  Approximately 45 days later Labarga ruled a default for 

the company's failure to retain replacement counsel. 

260. Yet upon information and belief, LABARGA also never sanctioned nor reported attorney Selz 

for misconduct or frivolity in making this factual allegation regarding the value of the Iviewit 

technologies.  

261. One of the wrongful “tactics” employed by various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants in the recent years against Eliot in and out of the Courtroom has been to question 

his sanity and ability care for his own children by attacking his claims regarding the car 

bombing of his family minivan and claims about the value of Iviewit IP,  yet even Florida 

Licensed attorney Steven Selz who was representing Plaintiff at the time before LABARGA in 

2003 himself filed a factual pleading stating, 

 “That PROSKAUER  billed IVIEWIT for legal services related to corporate, 
patent, trademark and other work in a sum of approximately $800,000.00” and 
further “ That based on the over-billing by PROSKAUER, IVIEWIT paid a sum 
in of approximately $500,000.00 plus together with a 2.5% interest in IVIEWIT, 
which sums and interest in IVIEWIT was received and accepted by 
PROSKAUER.” 

 
262. See, Paragraphs 24 and 27 of 2003 filed and proposed Counter-Complaint filed by attorney Selz 

in the LABARGA/PROSKAUER billing lawsuit, again this Counter-Complaint never being 

heard by LABARGA.79 

263. Then immediately following Selz, LABARGA then heard a Withdrawal as Counsel motion 

filed by Schiffrin & Barroway that claimed that another law firm, Selz would be representing 

the Iviewit companies and LABARGA approved this withdrawal knowing he had moments 

                                                 
79 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf   
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earlier let Selz out as counsel and then calling Eliot to the stand to advise him that the Iviewit 

companies no longer had counsel and Eliot, a non party to the action would have to obtain new 

counsel in  a short period of time or else default, thus denying counsel to Eliot and the proper 

Iviewit interests under fraudulent circumstances by the machinery of the Courts as continues to 

today. 

264. Eliot was unable to reach either Selz or Schiffrin & Barroway to obtain court files and records 

during the period he had to obtain new counsel and finally after showing up to Selz’s offices 

unannounced was able to recover some of the files and where Eliot attempted to get more time 

from LABARGA who refused. 

265. When Eliot could not get counsel in time, LABARGA ruled against the Iviewit companies and 

issued a default. 

266. Later it would be learned that many of the companies sued by Proskauer in their billing lawsuit, 

who did not have retainers with the Iviewit companies, where duplicated companies involved in 

an attempt to move IP out of the companies and inventors hands and into the hands of improper 

fraudulent inventors.  

267. Thus, while various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party Defendants may simply wrongfully 

claim “Iviewit” was a failed dot.com, it only raises substantial questions as to why 

PROSKAUER would “Bill” close to $1 million, take a 2.5 percent interest in royalties and stock 

in the Iviewit companies, file numerous Intellectual Properties (Patents, Trademarks, 

Copyrights and Tradesecrets, worldwide), recruit their clients to sign agreements with Iviewit, 

issue Stock to Shareholders of numerous companies and do exhaustive Estate planning for 

Simon, Shirley and Eliot Bernstein including protecting Simon’s 30% interest and Eliot’s 70% 

interest in the IP at that time.   
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268. As part of the same practice and pattern which continues in the Estate proceedings of Shirley 

and Simon Bernstein and the Insurance litigation in this Illinois federal district court, 

PROSKAUER schemed in 2001 to tortiously interfere with business relationships and financial 

relationships that would benefit Eliot and advance the technologies by interfering with a 

financing deal going on with Warner Bros. / AOL at the time which would have brought $10-

$20 Million in capital to the Iviewit companies which had already began a licensing and 

operational agreement with them.  

269. Florida licensed attorney Selz filed a specific counter-complaint against PROSKAUER in the 

“billing lawsuit” being heard by LABARGA who denied hearing the Countercomplaint which 

alleged as follows:  

“COUNT IV- TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH AN ADVANTAGEOUS 
BUSINESS  RELATIONSHIP 
 
This is an action for tortious interference with an advantageous business 
relationship within the jurisdiction of this Court. 
 
Counter Plaintiff re-alleges and hereby incorporates that allegations  of 
Paragraphs I through 30 as if fully set forth herein. 
 
Counter Plaintiff was engaged in negotiations of technology agreements with 
both Warner Bros. and AOLTime-Warner as to the possible use of the 
Technologies of the Counter Plaintiffs and investment in Counter Plaintiffs as a 
strategic partner. 
 
That despite the prior representations of RUBENSTEIN, at a meeting held on or 
about November l , 2000, by and between UTLEY, RUBENSTEIN and 
representatives of Warner Bros. as to the Technology of IVIEWIT and the 
efficacy, novelty and unique methodology of the Technology, RUBENSTEIN 
refused to subsequently make the same statements to representatives of AOL and 
Warner Bros., taking the position that since Warner Bros./AOL is "now a big 
client of Proskauer, I can't comment on the technologies of lviewit." or words to 
that effect in response to inquiry from Warner Brother/AOL's counsel as to the 
status and condition of the pending patents on the intellectual property. 
 
That RUBENSTEIN, having served as an advisor to the Board of Directors for 
IVIEWIT, was aware of the fact that at the time of the making of the statements 
set forth in Paragraph 50, above, IVIEWIT was in the midst of negotiations with 
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AOL/Warner Bros. as to the possible funding of the operations of IVIEWIT in 
and sum of between $10,000,000.00 and $20,000,000.00. 
 
Further, RUBENSTEIN as a partner of PROSKAUER, and despite his clear 
prior actions in representing the interests of IVIEWIT, refused to answer 
questions as to the enforcement of the Technology of IVIEWIT, with the intent 
and knowledge that such refusal would lead to the cessation of the business 
relationship by and between IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL and other clients 
familiar with the Warner Bros./AOL technology group then in negotiations with 
IVIEWIT, including, but not limited to Sony Corporation, Paramount, MGM and 
Fox. 
 
That the actions of RUBENSTEIN were and constituted an intentional and 
unjustified interference with the relationship by and between IVIEWIT and 
Warner Bros./AOL designed to harm such relationship and further motivated by 
the attempts to "cover-up" the conflict of interest in PROSKAUER's 
representation of both IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL. 
That indeed, as a direct and proximate result of the conduct of RUBENSTEIN, 
Warner Bros./AOL ceased business relations with IVIEWIT to the damage and 
detriment of Counter Plaintiffs.80” 
 

270. Yet somehow PROSKAUER and FOLEY being powerful international law firms have virtually 

no records of the Estate Planning work done or IP work done for Simon Bernstein nor did 

TESCHER and SPALLINA allegedly obtain this prior work from PROSKAUER or FOLEY or 

Attorney at Law Steven Greenwald, Esq. of Florida before embarking on similar Estate 

Planning work for Simon and Shirley Bernstein.  Especially where Simon believed the IP to the 

largest assets of his estate requiring special Estate planning from the outset for the IP. 

271. Yet, TESCHER and SPALLINA had a public relationship with PROSKAUER in the Boca 

Raton, Florida community being hosted at Bar events and similar events.81  TESCHER and 

SPALLINA directly know and are close friends with PROSKAUER Partner GORTZ of the 

                                                 
80 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf  
81 March 27, 2012 Jewish Federation Mitzvah Society - Proskauer, Tescher & Spallina @ 
http://jewishboca.org/departments/foundation/pac/caring_estate_planning_professionals_to_honor_dona
ld_r_tescher_esq_at_mitzvah_society_reception_on_march_27/  
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PROSKAUER Boca Raton Office in Florida who was the first lawyer that accountant Third 

Party Defendant LEWIN introduced Simon and Eliot too to seek IP protection.  

272. GORTZ of PROSKAUER was directly involved in the Iviewit matters and Bernstein Estate 

matters dating back to 1998, and in fact he was the first person that LEWIN took the 

technologies to for IP protection for the benefit of  Eliot and Simon Bernstein.  

273. In the original underlying Illinois life insurance litigation herein, SPALLINA was in 

communication with GORTZ of PROSKAUER.  See email dated February 18, 2013 from 

SPALLINA to Eliot’s children’s counsel Christine Yates from SPALLINA TESCHER 

PRODUCTION Bates No. TS004461-TS004463.  

274. This pattern of established law firms involved in the technologies failing basic record keeping 

for client files like PROSKAUER and FOLEY allegedly not having important Estate and 

related records like the missing Trusts and Insurance policies in the underlying original action is 

further support for a preliminary injunction at this time.  

275. Eliot, members of the board, investors, prospective investors and management of Iviewit first 

learned of this “billing” lawsuit by PROSKAUER in Palm Beach County while in the middle of 

Financing negotiations for the Iviewit companies with Warner Bros. ( AOL-Time Warner) for 

approximately a $10 to $20 Million Capital infusion for the Iviewit companies while other 

financing activities were underway with a Private Placement Memorandum through Wachovia 

bank.   

276. Eliot had already opened a new Iviewit HQ inside the Warner Advanced Technology building 

on Brand in Glendale, Ca. and had taken over encoding of all Internet content creation of their 

digital video library and had revenue and royalty contracts signed. 
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277. Eliot also learned at the same time that an “Involuntary Bankruptcy” had been filed in Florida 

against companies similarly named to “Iviewit” companies being filed by Brian G. Utley, 

Real3D, Inc./Intel/RYJO, Michael Reale and Raymond Hersh the CFO82.  

278. Eliot also learned on or about the same time from a Arthur Andersen audit conducted on behalf 

of Crossbow Ventures, the largest investor at that time in the IP, that two similarly named 

companies, Iviewit Holdings existed with only one set of books available. 

279. Raymond Hersh claimed that LEWIN’s daughter, Erika Lewin, the in-house accountant at 

Iviewit was accused of misleading the Andersen auditors in her representation of the corporate 

structures put together by LEWIN and PROSKAUER.  Andersen was suddenly removed from 

the audit and replaced by Ernst & Young on a referral from LEWIN to complete the audit for 

Crossbow.  

280. ELIOT also learned on or about the same time that the Iviewit companies President and Chief 

Operating Officer, a one Brian G. Utley, had in his possession a second set of almost identical 

Intellectual Property applications and one set had different inventors, including Utley as sole 

inventor on critical imaging IP such as “Zoom and Pan on a Digital Camera” which was 

invented by Eliot and others almost a year before even hiring Utley, where Utley lists himself as 

the sole (soulless) inventor. 

281. Eliot also learned on or about the same time more information that Joao who represented 

himself as a Proskauer Partner when in fact he was not, had put over 90 patents in his name, 

many  with of the Iviewit IP technologies at the heart of them and taken from business plans and 

other IP related materials JOAO accessed as IP Counsel.   Later it would be learned that Joao 

left PROSKAUER/MELTZER LIPPE GOLDSTEIN & SCHLISSEL to work for Ruskin, 

                                                 
82 Iviewit Involuntary Bankruptcy Files @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Utley%20Reale%20Hersh%20RYJO%20Bankruptcy%20nonsense.pdf  
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Moscou, Evans & Faltischek where Dean Skelos the New York Senator currently in ongoing 

corruption proceedings and convicted on all counts against him, putting up a defense of 

business as usual, which failed to vindicate him. 

282. That it is also learned that Joao later goes to the law firm of Dreier & Barritz LLP, where the 

now infamous attorney Marc Drier was sentenced in a “Ponzi” scheme thereafter.  

283. Eliot also learned on or about the same time that the Intellectual Properties represented by Utley 

to potential investors, investors and the financial institutions funding the Iviewit companies and 

those raising funds were not the ones that actually were filed with the US Patent Office. 

284. This exposure of the Intellectual Property crimes that were committed to the authorities and 

others began a terroristic mob style pattern and practice of orchestrated schemes to harm and 

potentially murder Eliot and his family by primarily lawyers, to deny him monetization of his 

inventions, deny him access to capital and even basic access to counsel to pursue his rights and 

claims and a full blunt force denial of due process in the courts and state and federal agencies 

through a series of conflicts of interests with the attorneys at law infiltrating and interfering 

improperly in virtually all of Eliot’s legal actions, as they do name very large law firms, 

legislators, judges and prosecutors as the perpetrators of the IP thefts as filed in his RICO and 

ANTITRUST lawsuit.  

285. This same pattern and practice continues to this day in both Florida Trust and Estate cases and 

this Illinois insurance litigation which should be viewed by this Court as nothing but a 

furtherance of a scheme to secret away monies and assets and deny any basic funds or monies to 

Plaintiff and his family literally to the point of basic survival as Plaintiff has been; a) forced on 

govt. Food Stamps to feed his 3 minor children who were supposed to be protected and 

provided for in Simon and Shirley’s Estate planning WITHOUT INTERRUPTION; b) had 
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home Security systems cut off; c) electric shut off and repeatedly threatened with shut off; d) 

homeowners insurance lapsed; e) health insurance lapsed, and other acts to deprive Counter 

Plaintiff of income and more.  

286. That after the death of his father Simon Eliot and his family’s worlds were literally blown apart 

financially, when the funds that were supposed to flow to Eliot and his family to protect them 

were intentionally and with scienter cut off, their kids were ripped from private school on the 

second day of classes and where the tuitions were funded by Simon and Shirley while living and 

despite a COLIN court order to pay the tuitions to keep them in school, TED and his counsel 

ROSE failed to comply and COLIN upon learning of this catastrophe did nothing despite 

claiming he was very upset and would deal with it shortly.  

287. That due to TED”S allegation that his father was murdered via poisoning Eliot and his family 

live in fear that this may be true, especially after an autopsy done a year or more after Simon’s 

death revealed elevated (beyond reportable levels in some instances) heavy metal toxins, 

including Arsenic and Cadmium. 

288. Simon and Shirley Bernstein in fact while living set up for Eliot through special planning efforts 

exclusively for Eliot and his family’s protection, vehicles designed and funded while living that 

provided income and security, including a paid for home and expenses for the home and family 

paid monthly all this careful planning for Eliot and his family resulting from the very real 

efforts to harm Eliot and his family, especially after viewing the car bombing and learning of 

death threats against their son and his family.   

289. That the probate crimes not only shut down all Eliot’s family income streams but further TED, 

TESCHER and SPALLINA then shut down a company that Simon had invested in, Telenet 
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Systems, LLC, that provided income to both Eliot and his lovely wife Candice at the time of 

Simon’s death.  

290. Without any income from the point of Simon’s death to now, as income for the family at 

Simon’s death was to be continued through the Estates and Trusts and other vehicles set up for 

Eliot and his family such as his Telenet interest and where the crimes were directly intended to 

leave Eliot and his family instead homeless and denied of their inheritancy with scienter and 

further bury the Iviewit stock and IP held by Simon and defeat the careful estate plans 

SPALLINA and TESCHER and others were contracted to protect. 

291. That it is alleged that the probate crimes were orchestrated in advance of Simon’s death when 

Simon refused to make changes to the plans of he and Shirley and never did so while living and 

so fraudulent documents were submitted to Courts and others to make it appear that Simon had 

changed he and his wife’s estate plans and allow TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED to seize 

Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts through FRAUD and begin looting of the assets 

with impunity with the cover and aid of the state court actors, all acting outside the color of law.   

292. That Shirley’s Trust was changed admittedly by SPALLINA Post Mortem and it is alleged this 

fraud was in order to execute a scheme to not only change beneficiaries illegally but more 

importantly to take fiduciary and legal control of the Estates and Trusts to enable them to steal 

off with the assets and convert funds to improper parties, all the while failing to provide legally 

required accountings and document transparency to beneficiaries and again through these 

crimes leave Eliot and his family with virtually nothing since the time of Simon’s death.  

293. As this Court is or should be aware, Eliot and his minor children were not even named as 

Necessary parties to this original Illinois insurance litigation even though all original parties 
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knew and should have known Eliot and his children were beneficiaries with interests in the case 

including Attorneys at Law and Fiduciaries TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED e.  

SPALLINA ADMITS NEW STATE AND FEDERAL CRIMES AT A “VALIDITY 
HEARING” BEFORE JUDGE PHILLIPS INCLUDING NEW ADMISSIONS OF 

FRAUD ON THE COURT AND MORE AND VIOLATES A CONSENT ORDER HE IS 
UNDER WITH THE SEC 

294. On or about September 28, 2015, the SEC out of Washington, DC publicly announced Insider 

Trading and related charges in a separate action against Florida attorneys and Third-Party 

Defendants herein SPALLINA and TESCHER.  

295. That SPALLINA pled guilty of criminal misconduct and the SEC Consent signed by 

SPALLINA states,  

“2. Defendant has agreed to plead guilty to criminal conduct relating to certain 
matters alleged in the complaint in this action and acknowledges that his conduct 
violated the federal securities laws.  Specifically, Defendant has agreed to plead 
guilty to a one count information which charges him with committing securities 
fraud involving insider trading in the securities of Pharmasset, Inc. in a matter to 
be filed in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, (the 
“Criminal Action”).” 
 

296. Yet, in a December 15, 2015 hearing under sworn oath as a witness in a Validity Hearing before 

Judge PHILLIPS, SPALLINA stated the following from the hearing transcript Page 93 Lines 

14-2283; 

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can answer the question, which 
15· · · · is, did you plead to a felony? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sorry, sir. 
17· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Next question. 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Have you pled guilty to a misdemeanor? 
21· · · · A.· ·I have not. 
22· · · · Q.· ·Were you involved in a insider trading case? 
23· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 

                                                 
83 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
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24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained.· Next question. 
 

297. Further, in the SEC Consent signed by SPALLINA reads, 

“12. Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the term of 17 C.P.R. f 
202,S(e). which provides in part that it is the Commission's policy ''not to permit 
a defendant or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a 
sanction while denying the allegations in the complaint or order for 
proceedings." As part of Defendant's agreement to comply with the terms of 
Section 202.5(e), Defendant acknowledges that he has agreed to plead guilty for 
related conduct as described in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not take any 
action or make or permit to be made any public statement denying, directly or 
indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the 
complaint is without factual basis; (ii) will not make or permit to be made any 
public statement to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the 
complaint, or that this Consent contains no admission of the allegations; (iii) 
upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in 
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; aud (iv) 
stipulates for purposes of exceptions to discharge sot forth in Section 523 of the 
Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the allegations in the complaint are 
true…” 

 

298. SPALLINA further states under sworn testimony at the Validity Hearing regarding the trust 

documents he created being valid admits to fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust Document and 

sending to Attorney at Law Christine Yates, Esq. representing the minor children of Eliot via 

the mail,  

Page 95 Lines 14-25 and Page 96 Line 1-19, 

14· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, have you been in discussion with 
15· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office regarding the 
16· ·Bernstein matters? 
17· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
19· · · · · · ·You can answer that. 
20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I have. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·And did you state to them that you 
23· ·fraudulently altered a Shirley trust document and then 
24· ·sent it through the mail to Christine Yates? 
25· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Have you been charged with that by the Palm 
·2· ·Beach County Sheriff yet? 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 104 of 132 PageID #:3738

BATES NO. EIB 000337 
02/27/2017



Page 104 of 132 

·3· · · · A.· ·No, I have not. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times were you interviewed by 
·5· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff? 
·6· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 8· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Did you mail a fraudulently signed document to 
10· ·Christine Yates, the attorney for Eliot Bernstein's 
11· ·minor children? 
12· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes. 
15· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
16· · · · Q.· ·And when did you acknowledge that to the 
17· ·courts or anybody else?· When's the first time you came 
18· ·about and acknowledged that you had committed a fraud? 
19· · · · A.· ·I don't know that I did do that. 

 
299. Further, SPALLINA perjures himself in self contradiction when he tries to claim that his law 

firm did not mail Fraudulent documents to the court and commit further FRAUD ON THE 

COURT and then slips up and admits that they sent the fraudulent documents back to the court 

when he states; 

 
10· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11· · · · Q.· ·And what was she convicted for? 
12· · · · A.· ·She had notarized the waiver releases of 
13· ·accounting that you and your siblings had previously 
14· ·provided, and we filed those with the court. 
15· · · · Q.· ·We filed those with the court. 
16· · · · · · ·Your law firm submitted fraudulent documents 
17· ·to the court? 
18· · · · A.· ·No.· We filed -- we filed your original 
19· ·documents with the court that were not notarized, and 
20· ·the court had sent them back. 
21· · · · Q.· ·And then what happened? 
22· · · · A.· ·And then Kimberly forged the signatures and 
23· ·notarized those signatures and sent them back. 
 

300. That not only does SPALLINA admit to Felony criminal that have not yet been investigated but 

admits that his office members are also involved in proven Fraudulent Creation of a Shirley 

Trust and where MORAN has already admitted six counts of forgery for six separate parties 
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(including for a deceased Simon and one for Eliot) and fraudulent notarizations of such 

documents.  Spallina states in the hearing Pages 102-103, 

102 
20· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sure. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·You've testified here about Kimberly Moran. 
23· · · · · · ·Can you describe your relationship with her? 
24· · · · A.· ·She's been our long-time assistant in the 
25· ·office. 
 
103 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was she convicted of felony fraudulent 
·2· ·notarization in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·3· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
·5· · · · · · ·You're asking if she was convicted of a felony 
·6· · · · with respect to the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·7· · · · · · ·You can answer the question. 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Correct. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I believe she was. 

 

301. SPALLINA then claims that it is standard practice for he and his clients to sign sworn Final 

Waivers under penalty of perjury with knowingly and irrefutably false statements.  Then 

SPALLINA had a deceased Simon file that alleged sworn document with the Court as Personal 

Representative on a date after his death while acting as Personal Representative as part of a 

Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Interested Parties.  SPALLINA states in 

testimony as follows, 

Pages 108-110 
17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you aware of an April 9th full 
18· ·waiver that was allegedly signed by Simon and you? 
19· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· That was the waiver that he had signed. 
20· ·And then in the May meeting, we discussed the five of 
21· ·you, all the children, getting back the waivers of the 
22· ·accountings. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in that April 9th full waiver you 
24· ·used to close my mother's estate, does Simon state that 
25· ·he has all the waivers from all of the parties? 
·1· · · · A.· ·He does.· We sent out -- he signed that, and 
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·2· ·we sent out the waivers to all of you. 
·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So on April 9th of 2012, Simon signed, 
·4· ·with your presence, because your signature's on the 
·5· ·document, a document stating he had all the waivers in 
·6· ·his possession from all of his children. 
·7· · · · · · ·Had you sent the waivers out yet as of 
·8· ·April 9th? 
… 
20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·April 9th, 2012, you have a signed full waiver 
22· ·of Simon's that says that he is in possession of all of 
23· ·the signed waivers of all of the parties? 
24· · · · A.· ·Standard operating procedure, to have him 
25· ·sign, and then to send out the documents to the kids. 
·.. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was Simon in possession -- because it's a 
·2· ·sworn statement of Simon saying, I have possession of 
·3· ·these waivers of my children on today, April 9th, 
·4· ·correct, the day you two signed that? 
·5· · · · · · ·Okay.· So if you hadn't sent out the waivers 
·6· ·yet to the -- 
·7· · · · A.· ·I'm not certain when the waivers were sent 
·8· ·out. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Were they sent out after the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·I did not send them out. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· More importantly, when did you receive 
12· ·those?· Was it before April 9th or on April 9th? 
13· · · · A.· ·We didn't receive the first one until May. 
14· ·And it was your waiver that we received. 
15· · · · Q.· ·So how did you allow Simon, as his attorney, 
16· ·to sign a sworn statement saying he had possession of 
17· ·all of the waivers in April if you didn't get mine 'til 
18· ·May? 
19· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· I think it's relevance 
20· · · · and cumulative.· He's already answered. 
21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What's the relevance? 
22· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Oh, this is very relevant. 
23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What is the relevance on the issue 
24· · · · that I have to rule on today? 
25· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· On the validity?· Well, it's 
1· · · · relevant.· If any of these documents are relevant, 
·2· · · · this is important if it's a fraud. 
·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'll sustain the objection. 
·4· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Okay.· Can I -- okay. 
·5· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·6· · · · Q.· ·When did you get -- did you get back prior to 
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·7· ·Simon's death all the waivers from all the children? 
·8· · · · A.· ·No, we did not. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·So in Simon's April 9th document where he 
10· ·says, he, Simon, on April 9th has all the waivers from 
11· ·his children while he's alive, and you didn't even get 
12· ·one 'til after he passed from one of his children, how 
13· ·could that be a true statement? 
14· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance.· Cumulative. 
15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 

 

302. SPALLINA also perjures himself under sworn oath at the hearing when testifying to the status 

of his Florida Bar license, which at this time he is listed as “ineligible84” to practice law in the 

state of Florida, when he states in the December 15, 2015 hearing, 

Page 91 
7· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·8· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, you were called today to provide 
·9· ·some expert testimony, correct, on the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·No, I was not. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Oh, okay.· You're just going based on your 
12· ·doing the work as Simon Bernstein's attorney and Shirley 
13· ·Bernstein's attorney? 
14· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you still an attorney today? 
16· · · · A.· ·I am not practicing. 
17· · · · Q.· ·Can you give us the circumstances regarding 
18· ·that? 
19· · · · A.· ·I withdrew from my firm. 
 
Pages 120-121 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Did you -- are you a member of the Florida 
21· ·Bar? 
22· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Currently? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You said before you surrendered your 
·1· ·license. 
·2· · · · A.· ·I said I withdrew from my firm.· It wasn't 

                                                 
84 Florida Bar Robert Spallina Inelligble to Practice Law 
https://www.floridabar.org/wps/portal/flbar/home/attysearch/mprofile/!ut/p/a1/jc_LDoIwEAXQT-
pthRaWo6mkRazxgdCNYUWaKLowfr_42LioOrtJzs3cYZ41zA_dLfTdNZyH7vjYvTxACM3dBrawxEHlOl3
ZqgSEHEE7girnxJMMNktoDlOr2qgtF7RM_8sjMoRf-T3zn8RJNQO5BXKtp0AxeYNIRTj-
HTx_eJ2Il7ycdg2C6e8_WXgh/dl5/d5/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/?flag=Y&mid=497381  
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·3· ·that I was not practicing. 
 

303. Spallina further Perjures his testimony when asked if the Fraudulent Shirley Trust he created by 

Post Mortem fraudulently altering a Shirley Amendment and disseminated through the mail 

attempted to change the beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and he answered no.  Yet, the 

following analysis shows different; 

22· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
23· · · · Q.· ·Did the fraudulently altered document change 
24· ·the beneficiaries that were listed in Shirley's trust? 
25· · · · A.· ·They did not. 

304. Now comparing the language in the two documents the Court can see that this statement is 

wholly untrue.  From the alleged Shirley Trust document,  

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, as I have adequately provided for them during my 
lifetime, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, TED S. 
BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM'), and their respective lineal 
descendants shall be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse 
and me, provided, however, if my children, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL !ANTONI and 
LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my 
spouse and me, then TED and PAM, and their respective lineal descendants shall not be 
deemed to have predeceased me and shall be eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the 
dispositions made hereunder.”85 

 
305. Then the language from the fraudulent amendment states; 

 
2.    I hereby amend the last sentence of Paragraph E. of Article III. to read as follows: 
  
"Notwithstanding the foregoing, as my spouse and I have adequately provided for them 
during our lifetimes, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, 
TED S. BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM '), shall be deemed to 
have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me, provided, however, if my children, 
ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their respective 
lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my spouse and me, then TED and PAM 

                                                 
85 Shirley Trust Page 7 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent%20amend
ment%202.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 109 of 132 PageID #:3743

BATES NO. EIB 000342 
02/27/2017



Page 109 of 132 

shall not be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me and shall 
become eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the dispositions made hereunder.86" 

 
306. Clearly the fraudulent amendment attempts to remove from the predeceased language TED and 

PAMELA’s lineal descendants from being excluded by removing them from the original trust 

language through a fraudulent amendment as being considered predeceased and thus change the 

beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and this perjury changed the outcome of the validity hearing 

adding cause for a rehearing and voiding the Order that resulted, which was already void and of 

no effect since Judge Phillips should have already voluntarily mandatorily disqualified himself 

from the proceedings prior to holding hearings.  

307. That in relation to this very case before the Federal Court in SPALLINA’s testimony under oath 

at the Validity Hearing SPALLINA states, 

Pages 154-55 

20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·You referenced an insurance policy earlier, 
22· ·life insurance policy, that you said you never saw; is 
23· ·that correct? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
25· · · · Q.· ·And was that part of the estate plans? 
1· · · · A.· ·We never did any planning with that.· That was 
·2· ·an insurance policy that your father had taken out 
·3· ·30 years before.· He had created a trust in 1995 for 
·4· ·that.· That was not a part of any of the planning that 
·5· ·we did for him. 
·6· · · · Q.· ·Did you file a death benefit claim on behalf 
·7· ·of that policy? 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevancy. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 

308. This statement of SPALLINA’s that he had nothing to do with the “planning with that” makes 

his actions in the insurance matters before this Court questionable, as if he had nothing to do 

                                                 
86 Spallina Fraudulent Shirley Trust Page 30 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent
%20amendment%202.pdf 
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with the planning of the policy and the lost and missing trust involved in this action alleged to 

be the beneficiary, how in the world did Spallina file an insurance death benefit claim87 for the 

policy benefits acting and singing as the claimant on the policy, in the fiduciary capacity of 

“Trustee” of the 1995 Missing, Lost or Suppressed Trust and acting as the Policy Beneficiary, 

which appears now to be part of the alleged Insurance Fraud, Mail and Wire Fraud alleged in 

Petitioner’s pleadings that is now further supported by his perjurious statement in the Florida 

court denying any involvement. 

309. The Court should note that while SPALLINA was filing a death benefit claim as Trustee for the 

lost and missing trust he claims to have had no involvement with, while he was simultaneously 

claiming to Eliot that a Florida Probate Court order88 would be necessary to determine who the 

trustee, beneficiaries, etc. of a lost and missing trust would be89, he was secretly and in conspire 

with others filing claims for the Policy and when that failed filing this Lawsuit, without 

notifying Eliot or the Creditor or the Probate Court of this action and failing to including Eliot 

as part of the legal action, all as part of a complex insurance fraud against Eliot and 

Beneficiaries of the Estate and the Creditor of the Estate, STANSBURY, and attempting to have 

the insurance money deposited to his law firm’s trust account acting as the Beneficiary of the 

Policy he claims to have nothing to do with, acting as Trustee of the lost trust he claims to have 

                                                 
87 Spallina Fraudulent Insurance Claim Form He Signs as Beneficiary of the Policy as Trust of a Trust 
and Policy he has claimed he had nothing to do with, which is DECLINED by Heritage -  See Page 05 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121101%20Heritage%20Claim%20Form%20Spa
llina%20Insurance%20Fraud.pdf , Spallina also represents in the correspondences to the carrier that he 
is Trustee of LaSalle National Trust, NA, which he is not but that is because LaSalle is the Primary 
Beneficiary. 
88January 22, 2013 SPALLINA Letter Re Insurance 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130122%20Ted%20Letter%20and%20Spallina%
20Letter%20re%20Insurance.pdf  
89 TESCHER & SPALLINA Prepared Settlement Regarding Insurance Policy 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/EXHIBIT%205%20-
%2020130205%20Eliot%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Analysis%20of%20
SAMR.pdf  
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never seen and impersonating himself as the Primary Beneficiary of the Policy, as Trustee of the 

LaSalle National Trust NA, of which he is none of. 

310. That the fraudulent claim filed by SPALLINA is what led to this Federal Lawsuit being filed as 

a breach of contract lawsuit for HERITAGE failing to pay the claim to SPALLINA until he 

could prove the trust and that he was Trustee, of the trust he claims in court under sworn 

testimony to have had NOTHING to do with. 

311. That the Court must question where Judge PHILLIPS was during the hearing where confessions 

to new crimes of Fraud on the Court, Mail Fraud, Fraud on the Beneficiaries (and Eliot’s minor 

children’s counsel, Christine Yates of Tripp Scott law firm) and more are being admitted to on 

the record by an Officer of the Court SPALLINA, a former Co-Trustee and Co-Personal 

Representative along with his partner in the crime and the ringleader another former Co-Trustee 

and Co-Personal Representative, TESCHER who also is under an SEC Consent Order for 

Insider Trading and one look at the transcript will find Judge PHILLIPS “doodling” (Page 138 

Line 1) during the hearing and more interested in threatening Candice Bernstein with contempt 

of court repeatedly, even removing her from the defense table and sending her to the audience 

section and yet failing to force SPALLINA to show cause regarding the crimes he committed 

and admitted to the court, in fact sustaining Eliot from probing these serious felony admissions 

including Fraud on the Court and Beneficiaries in the validity matters SPALLINA was 

testifying about and where SPALLINA’s felonies were far more serious in nature than 

Candice’s alleged contempt for asking ROSE in the hearing to turn an exhibit for all to see and 

handing Eliot a document (Page 24 Lines 12-23 and Page 127 Lines 3-7).  

312. Further, the Court must question and call to account for what Judge PHILLIPS did after 

learning of these crimes of the star witness of the “validity” hearing, some admitted by 
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SPALLINA to have not been investigated or reported by him at the time and thus ripe for 

prosecution and now having pleadings which show the perjured statements in violation of his 

SEC Consent Order, did he take control to find out how and who the fraudulent documents were 

posited in the Court as part of newly admitted FRAUDS ON THE COURT and has Judge 

PHILLIPS contacted the SEC to report the violation of SPALLINA’s consent order or did he 

contact and report the crimes of Fraud on the Court to the IG of the Court or the Chief Judge or 

did he contact the Federal Bureau of Investigations regarding the admitted mail fraud or did he 

have his bailiff, a member of the Palm Beach County Sheriff deputies arrest SPALLINA on the 

spot?   

313. Judge PHILLIPS appears to have done nothing but take SPALLINA’s sole testimony to the 

validity of the documents (some which SPALLINA admitted in the hearing he and others had 

fraudulently created) and in a bizarre ruling that defies logic and appears outside the color of 

law, then  ruled that the documents were valid with no other parties present to confirm the 

perjurious Felon’s testimony whose Hands are Unclean, credibility shattered and one certainly 

must ask why the Trustee TED did not call ANY of the other witnesses or multiple notaries and 

instead choose SPALLINA his business associate and TED’s counsel as ALLEGED PR and 

Trustee who admitted to PBSO that he committed fraud that altered documents to benefit TED’s 

family, which had been wholly considered PREDECEASED prior to the fraud in Shirley Trust.  

TED filed for the validity hearing after his counsel committed fraud to benefit him and his only 

witness is his counsel that has committed fraud and TED in his own words stated under sworn 

oath at the Validity hearing, 

Page 206-210 

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Ted, you were made aware of Robert 
1· ·Spallina's fraudulent alteration of a trust document of 
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·2· ·your mother's when? 
·3· · · · A.· ·I believe that was in the early 2013 or '14. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And when you found out, you were the 
·5· ·fiduciary of Shirley's trust, allegedly? 
·6· · · · A.· ·I'm not sure I understand the question. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·When you found out that there was a fraudulent 
·8· ·altercation [sic] of a trust document, were you the 
·9· ·fiduciary in charge of Shirley's trust? 
10· · · · A.· ·I was trustee, yes.· I am trustee, yes. 
11· · · · Q.· ·And your attorneys, Tescher and Spallina, and 
12· ·their law firm are the one who committed that fraud, 
13· ·correct, who altered that document? 
14· · · · A.· ·That's what's been admitted to by them, 
15· ·correct. 
16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you became aware that your counsel 
17· ·that you retained as trustee had committed a fraud, 
18· ·correct? 
19· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
20· · · · Q.· ·What did you do immediately after that? 
21· · · · A.· ·The same day that I found out, I contacted 
22· ·counsel.· I met with counsel on that very day.· I met 
23· ·with counsel the next day.· I met with counsel the day 
24· ·after that. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Which counsel? 
·1· · · · A.· ·Alan Rose. 
… 
P 209-210 
24· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25· · · · Q.· ·Have you seen the original will and trust of 
·1· ·your mother's? 
·2· · · · A.· ·Can you define original for me? 
·3· · · · Q.· ·The original. 
·4· · · · A.· ·The one that's filed in the court? 
·5· · · · Q.· ·Original will or the trust. 
·6· · · · A.· ·I've seen copies of the trusts. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Have you done anything to have any of the 
·8· ·documents authenticated since learning that your 
·9· ·attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10· ·documents that you were in custody of? 
11· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
14· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15· · · · Q.· ·So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16· ·validate these documents; is that correct? 
17· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
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314. TED further shows he is an incompetent Trustee at his validity hearing where he admits having 

not seen the original documents, not bringing any of them to the hearing to prove them valid 

and that he did “NOTHING” to validate them and did not even have them forensically analyzed 

or request the originals back from his former disgraced counsel after their admission of 

fraudulent created trusts and forged documents posited into the court record in his mother’s 

estate and elsewhere and the admitted fraudulent use of his deceased father by his former 

counsel to commit fraud upon the court, fraud upon the beneficiaries and close his deceased 

mother’s estate (despite a COURT ORDER for TESCHER and SPALLINA to turn over “ALL” 

RECORDS) . 

315. The formal Complaint filed by the SEC contains breaches of fiduciary duties by SPALLINA 

and TESCHER that are almost identical to the claims Eliot has made in the Florida Probate 

Courts of Palm Beach County since at least on or about May of 201390 and91and92and93.   

316. Multiple requests for Discovery from TED in the Florida Probate Courts  have been made 

including by short term counsel Brendan Pratt, Esq.94 but no voluntary compliance by TED has 

occurred and no voluntary Discovery by TED produced.   

                                                 
90 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER 
TRADING CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys 
and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
91 September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
92 October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 
2015 and TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
93 May 06, 2013 Bernstein Emergency Petition Florida Probate Simon and Shirley Estate Cases 
@ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20P
etition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf 
94 November 01, 2013 Production Request Ted Bernstein 
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NY Moreland Commission and Other Related Info 

317. Eliot had made inquiry to the Moreland Commission to testify and had submitted information 

regarding Public Office Corruption in both the State of New York and State of Florida, 

including information regarding Public Office Complaints against members of the Florida 

Supreme Court, including former 15th Judicial Judge Jorge Labarga who was the main 

complained of party in Eliot’s Court Corruption complaints and Bar Complaints in Florida and 

who is now Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court and Florida Bar Members (including 

members of Brian O’Connell’s firm Ciklin a one Jerald Beer, Esq. 

318. The Honorable Preet Bharara who has now taken down several of the most prominent 

Lawmakers from both parties in a New York Corruption Probe unparalleled and gaining 

worldwide recognition and applause, has recently revealed that he has seized the Moreland 

Commission inquiries for further investigation and where it is presumed that Eliot’s inquiry has 

also been acquired by US Attorney’s. 

U.S. Attorneys » Southern District of New York » News » Press Releases 
Department of Justice 
U.S. Attorney’s Office 
Southern District of New York 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Monday, January 11, 2016 
Statement Of U.S. Attorney Preet Bharara Relating To Moreland Commission 
Investigation 
  
“After a thorough investigation of interference with the operation of the Moreland 
Commission and its premature closing, this Office has concluded that, absent any 
additional proof that may develop, there is insufficient evidence to prove a federal crime.  
We continue to have active investigations related to substantive inquiries that were being 
conducted by the Moreland Commission at the time of its closure.” 
  
16-009 
USAO - New York, Southern 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20TED%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf  
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Updated January 11, 2016 
http://www.justice.gov/usao-sdny/pr/statement-us-attorney-preet-bharara-relating-
moreland-commission-investigation 
 

319. That the knowledge that Bharara has taken over the Moreland inquiries to the US Attorney's 

Office may provide an answer as to why the Florida Courts are denying due process to Eliot and 

participating in a massive court controlled conspiracy against his rights, involving many of the 

same parties as were in his prior complaints now presumed to be before the US Attorney.  This 

may also explain the need to cover up the current Fraud on the Court, Fraud by the Court and 

Fraud on Eliot and his family at all costs at this time and explain the retaliation and abuse of 

process against Eliot’s family. 

320. Due to the Palm Beach Posts Guardianship series exposing widespread Guardianship abuses 

Eliot and Candice fear that judge Phillips may abuse the Guardianship process to gain control 

over Eliot’s children and where there is already volumes of online complaints95 against Judge 

Phillips this becomes even more frightening.   

                                                 
95 “Florida Judge is Taking Children from Good Mothers and Placing Them with Abusers”  
Daily Kos Sunday Jul 20, 2014 · 9:10 AM EDT 
http://www.dailykos.com/story/2014/7/20/1315240/-Florida-Judge-is-Taking-Children-from-Good-
Mothers-and-Placing-Them-with-Abusers  
and 
Families Against Court Travesties, Inc. - John L. Phillips’ Cases 
 C.C.S.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/c-c-s/  
 B.D.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/b-d/  
 E.C.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/e-c/ 

J.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/j-j/ 
M.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
M.M.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
T.R.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/t-r/  
https://factscourtwatch.com/john-l-phillips-cases/  

and 
John. L Phillips Racist and Biased Judge John L. Phillips Palm Beach Gardens Florida 
http://www.ripoffreport.com/r/John-L-Phillips/Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida/John-L-Phillips-Racist-and-
Biased-Judge-John-L-Phillips-Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida-1177334  
and 
Judge John Phillips rules Elderly People Incapacitated Violating the Elderly Rights of Due Process 
http://ireport.cnn.com/docs/DOC-163498  
and 
Judge John L. Phillips from Palm Beach Garden is a lose cannon a Prejudicial biased Judge that is 
hurting our families. 
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321. That Eliot has been a thorn in the side of these lawyers and judges for many years and with their 

knowledge that if Eliot succeeds at some point in breaking through the corruption to have a fair 

and impartial hearing and honest investigations that they may lose everything and many of them 

may end up in prison on very serious counts including alleged attempted murder and murder 

according to Ted and others of Simon and thus all of these crimes in the Florida Probate matters 

may be carefully planned attacks on Eliot and his family to suppress and destroy all records and 

evidence of Eliot and Simon’s relating to Iviewit before investigators can prosecute them. 

322. Eliot has reason to fear that the there is no due process in Florida and in fact the opposite, a 

massive Obstruction by attorneys and judges and other State Agencies96 Eliot has complained of 

working hand in hand, allowing years of records to disappear from Simon, allowing forged and 

fraudulently notarized documents to be submitted to the courts to further the scheme and 

nothing done when they are caught by the self regulating legal system that has failed, Judge 

Colin directly interfering with state criminal investigations to shutter them from investigating 

the Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court Officers and Judges alleged and proven in some 

instances already. 

323. Therefore this Court and the US Attorneys with Eliot’s Moreland Complaint may not only lose 

value production documents necessary to prove the truth of this lawsuit but if the Florida 

Probate Court continues to remove Eliot’s rights as a beneficiary, standing and pleadings, this 

Court may lose Eliot as material and fact witness and all Eliot’s records as they try and 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.avvo.com/legal-answers/judge-john-l--phillips-from-palm-beach-garden-is-a-1626549.html  
and 
Judge John Phillips of West Palm Florida Probate courts does nothing to end the wall of corruption in the 
Florida Probate Courts. Ted Bernstein Life Insurance Concepts, Judge Martin Colin, Donald Tescher 
Florida Attorney; Florida Probate Courts. 
http://tedbernsteinreport.blogspot.com/2016/02/judge-john-phillips-of-west-palm.html  
 
96Iviewit Investigation Master List  
www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm   
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repeatedly charge Eliot with contempt and more in efforts to have him imprisoned and his 

children placed in unnecessary and illegal guardianships obtained through fraud on the court 

and fraud by the court as is the case in tomorrows hearing before Judge Phillips and while jailed 

may move to evict his family from their home and destroy all records in his possession.   

324. Finally, due to the heavy metal poison results of his father and the attempted car bombing of his 

family, Eliot fears that with the US Attorney now involved they may rush to finally perfect their 

attempt and murder Eliot and his family.  The Court’s injunctive power could be no greater to 

protect its authority and protect the main witness to the facts in this Court’s case and where 

Eliot is a Whistleblower on the Court Corruption he is in need of Federal protection of his life 

and properties, all important to this Court’s determination of the matters before it and all being 

intentionally interfered with by the Florida Court State Actors who have no immunity for such 

egregious and criminal misconduct in efforts to thwart Eliot’s due process rights and interfere 

with this Court’s matter as well. 

325. Eliot apologizes to the Court for any filing errors in advance but this is an emergency situation 

where my life and the life of my wife and children and all of our properties appear in imminent 

danger and this Court must act instantly to preserve the powers of this Court despite any 

technical drafting errors by a Pro Se party.   

326. There are so many due process violations and obstructions occurring rapidly that it would take a 

several hundred page pleading to attempt to deal with all of this ongoing criminal misconduct 

and civil torts.   

327. In seeking leave to amend the counter complaint I will try and put the remainder of items in a 

proper pleading within two weeks so the Court can further assess the merits of the case. 
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Parties and Claims to be Added on Leave to Amend for Declaratory Judgment, 42 USC 
Sec. 1983 and other Fiduciary, tortious interference, negligence and State Claims - See 

Exhibit A 
 

I respectfully seek Leave to file an Amended Complaint / Counter-Cross Complaint however 

properly labeled adding parties and claims as set forth above.  

 

  

WHEREFORE, Eliot I. Bernstein, Pro Se Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff 
respectfully prays for an Order:  
 

1. Immediate Injunctive Relief under the All Writs Act,  Anti-Injunction Act and 

FRCP against Ted Bernstein and counsel and representatives acting on his 

behalf specifically including but not limited to attorney Alan M. Rose, against 

the Estate of Simon Bernstein acting by and through local Illinois counsel and 

by Florida PRs Brian O’Connell and Joy Foglietta, against Pamela Simon, 

David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Bernstein-Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein, and against 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts of Palm Beach County and other 

parties deemed proper by this Court, temporarily enjoining said parties from 

further proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts herein until further order of 

this Court, from disposing, selling, transferring, encumbering or in any way 

disposing of any assets, properties as specified herein, and further preserving 

any and all evidence, documents, files, notes, bills, statements, mail, emails, 

and other evidence herein;  

2. Specifically Enjoining at least Temporarily Florida Probate Court Judge 

Phillips on Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 PM EST until further Order of this 
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Court;  

3. Permitting the Amendment of the original counter-complaint filed herein to add 

claims under 42 USC Sec. 1983 and other pendant state law claims including 

but not limited to tortious interference with rights of expectancy and 

inheritance;  

4. Granting appropriate leave to further Amend said complaint to add specified 

known parties and have said parties served by the US Marshal service or 

agency determined by this Court;  

5. Granting leave to Amend to include a Declaratory Judgment on specified 

counts pertaining to Trusts, Wills, Instruments, and the Validity and 

Construction thereof; 

6. Waiving any requirement for Bonding by Eliot I. Bernstein under extra-

ordinary circumstances and imposing the requirement of bonding against 

specified wrongdoers herein if necessary.   

7. Such other and further relief as to this Court may seem just and proper.   

 
 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
 

DATED: Wednesday, February 24, 2016 
  
Note: All URL EXHIBITS contained herein are hereby incorporated by reference in 
entirety herein.  The Court should consider printing these URL exhibits as recent hacking 
of Eliot’s website and mail have caused his site to repeatedly be shut down at critical times 
making drafting and filing of complaints even more difficult.  To ensure the court that 
these links do not disappear copying them down and printing them is requested. 
 
 

         /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
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                                                           Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
                      
  

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on Wednesday, February 24, 2016 I electronically filed the 
foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing is being 
served this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of 
Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner. 
  
  
        /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
 

SERVICE LIST 
 

James J. Stamos and 
Kevin Horan 
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP 
One East Wacker Drive, Third 
Floor 
Chicago, IL 60601 
Attorney for Intervenor, 
Estate of Simon Bernstein 

Adam Simon, Esq.
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 

Ted Bernstein,  
880 Berkeley 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.c
om 
 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD
, ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS & 
WEISS, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
arose@pm-law.com 
and 
arose@mrachek-law.com 

Pamela Simon 
President 
STP Enterprises, Inc. 
303 East Wacker Drive 
Suite 210 
Chicago IL 60601-5210 
psimon@stpcorp.com 
 

Estate of Simon Bernstein 
Personal Representative 
Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and 
Joielle Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell 
515 N Flagler Drive 
20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com 
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Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
Lisa@friedsteins.com 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

David B. Simon, Esq. 
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 
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EXHIBIT A - LIST OF COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS TO BE INCLUDED 

IN THE AMENDED COMPLAINT 
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EXHIBIT A  

COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS / PARTIES 
 
COUNTER-DEFENDANTS/THIRD PARTY DEFENDANTS FOR AMENDED 
COMPLAINT AND PARTY DESIGNATIONS 

 
1. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, professionally; 
2. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, personally;  
3. Judge Martin Colin, professionally; 
4. Judge Martin Colin, personally; 
5. Judge David French, professionally; 
6. Judge David French, personally; 
7. Judge Howard Coates, professionally; 
8. Judge Howard Coates, personally; 
9. Judge John Phillips, professionally; 
10. Judge John Phillips, personally; 
11. The State of Florida; 
12. The Florida Supreme Court; 
13. The 4th District Court of Appeals; 
14. Palm Beach County Probate and Circuit Courts; 
15. The County of Palm Beach; 
16. The Palm Beach County Sheriff; 
17. Detective Ryan Miller; 
18. Detective David Groover; 
19. Detective Andrew Panzer; 
20. Captain Carol Gregg; 
21. Theodore Bernstein, personally; 
22. Theodore Bernstein, as alleged Trustee of the Shirley Trust; 
23. Theodore Bernstein as Personal Representative of the Shirley Estate; 
24. Theodore Bernstein as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance 

Trust Dtd. 6/21/95;  
25. Theodore Bernstein, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein;  
26. Pamela Beth Simon, personally; 
27. Pamela Beth Simon, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein; 
28. Lisa Sue Friedstein, personally; 
29. Lisa Sue Friedstein, as Natural Guardian of minor CF; 
30. Jill Marla Iantoni, personally; 
31. Jill Marla Iantoni, as Natural Guardian of minor JI; 
32. David B. Simon, Esq., professionally; 
33. David B. Simon, Esq., personally; 
34. Adam Simon, Esq., professionally; 
35. Adam Simon, Esq., personally; 
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36. The Simon Law Firm and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;   

37. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., personally; 
38. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., professionally; 
39. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust; 
40. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
41. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. personally; 
42. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. professionally; 
43. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust;   
44. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
45. Gutter Chaves Josepher Rubin Forman Fleisher Miller PA F.K.A. Tescher Gutter 

Chaves Josepher Rubin Ruffin & Forman PA and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

46. Tescher & Spallina, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

47. T&S Registered Agents, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

48. Kimberly Francis Moran, personally; 
49. Kimberly Francis Moran, professionally; 
50. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, personally; 
51. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, professionally; 
52. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – personally; 
53. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – professionally; 
54. Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald & Rose, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

55. Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

56. Brian O’Connell, Esq., personally;  
57. Brian O’Connell, Esq., professionally; 
58. Brian O’Connell, Esq., fiduciary;  
59. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esq., personally; 
60. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., professionally; 
61. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., fiduciary; 
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62. Albert Gortz, Esq., personally; 
63. Albert Gortz, Esq., professionally; 
64. Proskauer Rose, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

65. Hopkins & Sutter and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

66. Foley & Lardner LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

67. Greenberg Traurig, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

68. Jon Swergold, Esq., personally; 
69. Jon Swergold, Esq., professionally; 
70. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, personally; 
71. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, professionally; 
72. CBIZ, Inc. (NYSE: CBZ) and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

73. John Morrissey, Esq., personally; 
74. John Morrissey, Esq., professionally; 
75. John P. Morrissey, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

76. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., personally; 
77. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., professionally; 
78. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

79. Pankauski Law Firm PLLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

80. John J. Pankauski, Esq., personally; 
81. John J. Pankauski, Esq., professionally; 
82. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., personally; 
83. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., professionally; 
84. GrayRobinson, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

85. GUNSTER and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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86. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., personally; 
87. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., professionally; 
88. Huth & Pratt  and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

89. Stanford Financial Group and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers, Receivers and Fiduciaries; 

90. Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

91. Oppenheimer Trust Company of Delaware and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

92. Janet Craig, personally; 
93. Janet Craig, professionally; 
94. Janet Craig, fiduciary; 
95. Huntington Worth, personally; 
96. Huntington Worth, professionally; 
97. Huntington Worth, fiduciary; 
98. William McCabe, Esq., personally; 
99. William McCabe, Esq., professionally; 
100. Legacy Bank of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

101. JP Morgan Chase & Co. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

102. LaSalle National Trust, NA and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

103. Chicago Title Land Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

104. Heritage Union Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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105. Jackson National Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

106. Reassure America Life Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

107. WiltonRe and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

108. First Arlington National Bank as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death 
Benefit Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

109. United Bank of Illinois and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

110. Bank of America, Alleged successor in interest to LaSalle National Trust, N.A.  and  its 
current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, 
Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, 
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;  

111. Wilmington Trust Company and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

112. Regency Title dba US Title of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

113. Old Republic National Title Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

114. Nestler Poletto Sotheby's International Realty and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

115. Bernstein Family Realty, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

116. Bernstein Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

117. Bernstein Family Investments, LLLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
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Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

118. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc., and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

119. S.B. Lexington, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

120. National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives;  

121. Life Insurance Concepts, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

122. LIC Holdings, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

123. LIC Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

124. Arbitrage International Management LLC and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

125. Arbitrage International Marketing, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

126. Arbitrage International Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

127. National Services Pension Plan and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

128. Arbitrage International Marketing Inc. 401 (k) Plan and  its current and former 
Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors 
Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, 
Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

129. Simon L. Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 130 of 132 PageID #:3764

BATES NO. EIB 000363 
02/27/2017



Page 130 of 132 

130. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

131. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2008) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

132. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

133. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

134. Wilmington Trust 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

135. Estate and Will of Shirley Bernstein (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

136. Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries 
and counsel; 

137. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

138. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995 (currently missing and 
legally nonexistent) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

139. Shirley Bernstein Marital Trust and Family Trust created under the Shirley Bernstein 
Trust (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

140. S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(C)(9) VEBA TRUST and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

141. Trust f/b/o Joshua Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;  

142. Trust f/b/o Daniel Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

143. Trust f/b/o Jake Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

144. Eliot Bernstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

145. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

146. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

147. Joshua Z. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

148. Traci Kratish, Fiduciary; 
149. Christopher Prindle, personally; 
150. Christopher Prindle, professionally; 
151. Peter Montalbano, personally; 
152. Peter Montalbano, professionally; 
153. Steven Greenwald, personally; 
154. Steven Greenwald, professionally; 
155. Louis B. Fournet; professionally; 
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156. Louis B. Fourner, personally; 
157. Alexandra Bernstein; 
158. Michael Bernstein; 
159. Eric Bernstein; 
160. Molly Simon; 
161. Max Friedstein; 
162. John and Jane Doe State Defendants,  

 
EXHIBIT A - LIST OF POTENTIAL DEFENDANTS TO BE ADDED TO COUNTER 
COMPLAINT BASED ON NEED TO OBTAIN DISCOVERY AND POTENTIAL 
COMPANY - VEHICLE TO HIDE-MOVE ASSETS ETC  
 

163. John Hancock 
164. Delray Medical Center; 
165. Ronald V. Alvarez, Esquire, is a mediator; 
166. CFC of Delaware, LLC. 
167. Life Insurance Connection, Inc. 
168. TSB Holdings, LLC 
169. TSB Investments LLLP 
170. Life Insurance Concepts, LLC 
171. Life Insurance Innovations, Inc. 
172. National Service Association, Inc.  (of Florida)  
173. Total Brokerage Solutions LLC 
174. Cambridge Financing Company 
175. National Service Association, Inc. 
176. National Service Corp (FLORIDA)  
177. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06 
178. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06  
179. Simon Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000) 
180. Shirley Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000)  
181. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Simon L. Bernstein 
182. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Shirley Bernstein 
183. Jill Iantoni Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
184. Lisa Friedstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
185. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 049738 
186. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
187. Joshua Z Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
188. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 6/21/95 
189. Simon Bernstein Trust, NA  
190. S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust 
191. Simon Bernstein Trust Agreement dated May 13, 2008 
192. Saint Andrews School Boca Raton 
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911:
SUTCIDE * *
STGNAL CODE: 32 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT
ZONE: C21 ffiID: DEPUTY I.D.: 7571 NAI'18: PEREZ,
OCCURRED BES9IEEN DAIF-: O2/22/L5 , 22OO HOURS AND DATE:
EXCEPTION TYPE:
INCIDENT LOCATION: ?020 LIONS HEAD

CITY: BOCA RATON STATE: F].
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*
CODE: 9532 05/L3/16 TUESDAY
M. ASSIST: TIME D 1510 A 1629 C 0119
02/23/15 , 1730 HOURS

LA APT. 1i50. :

ztPz 33496

PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFE''S OE'FTCE PAGE 1

CASENO. L6O4246O SUPPLEMENT 4 OEFENSE REPORT CASENO. L6O4246O
DISPOSITIONi ZULV

DIVISION: DETECTIVE

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OEAENDERS: UK NO. 1IEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PRE}'fISES ENIERED:
LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINe?.r FAI{IIY
NO. \IICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESfED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0

ON MAY 24, 2076, AT APPROXIMATEIY 1830 HOI'RS I MET WITH TED BERNSTEIN
(WHI"E MAI.E, 08/27/1959' WIIO PROVIDED ME WITH A STATEMENT. THE FOLLOWING TS
A SYNOPSIS OF TEDIS STATEMENT. TED STATED THAT ON THE DAY OEMITCH'S DEATH
HE TEXTED MITCH SOMETIME BETWEEN 8:30 A.M. AND 9:00 A.M. IN REEERENCE ?O
SCHEDUI,ING A MEETING; HO},EVER/ MITCH DlD NOT RESPOND. TED STATED THAT AT
APPROXIMATELY 3:30 P.U. HE Gc|,f e CAI.L FB.OM DEBORAH AND SHE SOUNDED PANICKED.
TED STATED TIIAT DEBOR,AII MENTIONED THAT MITCH'S STUFF WAS HERE AND SHE HASNIT
HEARD FROM HIM. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH ASKED IF HE AND MITCH HAD MET, OR IF
TED KNEW OF'ANY MEETINGS AND TED RESPONDED NO.

TED STATED THAT A COUPLE OF HOI'RS I.ATER, PBSO CAITED AND ASKED HIM TO
COME TO THE HOUSE. ?ED STATED THAT HE ARRI\IED AT THE HOUSE A}ID LEARNED OF
MITCH I S DE-ATH. TED STATED TEAT DEBOR,AE SENT HIM A MESSAGE ASKTNG HIM TO STAY
AND HE WAITED FOR AAOUT 40 MTNUTES BEtr.ORE LE,AVING. TED STATED THAT SHORTIY
AT'TER ARRIVING HOME DEBOR,AIi CAILED HIM AND IIE RETURNED TO THE SCENE
ACCOMPANTED BY HIS WIFE. TED STATED THAT IIE DROI/E DEBORAH TO HIS HOUSE WHERE
SHE SPENT THE NIGHT.

?ED DESCRIBES DEBOR,AI{ AS BEING IN SHOCK AND BEING CONCERNED ABOUT
MITCE'S ],EGACY. TED S?ATED THAT DEBORAH DIDNIT IiANT PAOPT,E THAT KNEW HIM TO
FTND OUT TTIAT MITCH T@K HIS OWN LIFE. TED STATED TITAT DEBORAH MENTIONED
RECENTIX IIAVTNG A E'ACIAI I.ASER PEEL DONE WHICH HE BELIE\IED TO HAVE CAUSED AN
EXTREME REACTTON ON HER FACE. TED DESCRTBED IT AS LOOKTNG PAINF'I'T AND THAT
THAT I{AS TtrE ONLY MARKS TIIAT HE NOTICED ON DEBORAH. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH
STAYED AI IIIS HOME 3-4 DAYS AND DURING THAT TI}4E iIE BRIEELY },IET ONE OF
MITCH'S STSTERS, A BROTHER-IN-I,AII AND DEBORAH'S SON. TED STATED THAT HE
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DISPOSITION: ZIJLU

TRIED TO GM THEM PRMCY AND STAY OUT OE TEE liAY SO HE DOESN'T KNOI.I IF
THEY WERE ARGUING OR THE TOPICS OF THEIR CONVERSATIONS.

TED STATED T}IAT PRIOR TO THIS INCIDENT T8E I.AST TIME HE SPOKE TO
DEBORAH I{AS AROUND THE HOLIDAYS. TED STATED THAI PRIOR TO THE INCIDENT HE

SPOKE WITH MITCH ON THE MOI{DAY OR TI'ESDAY BEFORE AND THAT THEY TAIKED ABOUT
TEE EOUSE REMODEL/ THE MOLD AND INSURANCE ADJUSTERS. TED STATED TITAT THEY
AISO TAI,KED ABOUT MITCH NOT WANTING TO BE INCLUDED IN OITI.INE BLOGS AND MITCH
OFFERED TO EEIP TED I S ONLINE I}.4AGE.

TED STATED THAT HE HAS KNOWN MTTCH SINCE AUGUST OR SSPTEMBER THROUGH
EMAILS ABOUT THE HOUSE; HOWEVER/ THEY DIDNI? MEET T,NTI], OCTOBER. TED STATED
THAT AIL OE'TIIE CONVERSATIONS WERE IN REFERENCE TO THE HOUSE. TED STATED
THAT HE DID IOT }IOTICE ANY SIGNS OF MENTAI ILLNESS BUT THAT EE DID NOT KNOW

MITCH WELL ENOUGII TO NOTICE. TED STATED THAT THEY DID DEVELOP }, F'RIENDSHIP,
A!{D THAT HE REMEMBERS BEING IMPRESSED THAT MTTCH DID NOT BI^AME HIM I'OR THE
EXTENSIVE PROB],EMS IITTH THE HOUSE. TED STATED THAT MITCH AND HE !iOUI.D TAIK
2-3 TIMES A WEEK.

TED STATED THAT HE DTDN'T BELIEVE TI]AT HIS BROTHER ELLIOT KNEW MITCH'S
IDENTITY I'NTIL AFTER THE DEATH AND TTIAT UP TO THIS POINT MITCH HAD NOT BEEN
MENTIONED IN ET.T.IOT'S BLOC AND MITCH WAI{TED TO KEEP IT THAT WAY. TED STATED
THAT THIS IS THE REASON TEE I.AND TRUST I.{AS USED TO PURCHASE THE HOME.

TED STATED THAT HIS PARENTS IEFT ASSETS TO THEIR GRANDCHILDREN AND TITAT
HE DIDNIT STAIqD TO BENEFIT ANYITHING FB,OM THE PT'RCEASE. TED STATED THAT
BECAUSE OF HTS BROTHER ELLIOT/ TED USES A I.AWYER FOR EVERYTHING IN ORDER TO
PROTECT HIMSELF.

TED STATED THAT HE A}ID MITCH GOT TO KNOW E.ACH OTHER AND THAT MITCH
V{ANTED TO HELP HIS REPUTATION. TED STATED TIIAT MITCH THOUGHT GOING INTO
BUSINESS TOGETHER I{OI'LD HELP BUT THAT THEY NEYER SPOKE OF MONEY AFTER THE

CLOSING OF THE HOUSE.
TED STATED THAT MITCH DID NOT REACH OUT TO TED FOR HE],P AND THAT MITCH

DID NOT APPEAR TO BE DEPRESSED. TED DESCRIBED MITCH TO BE UPBEAT AND HE WAS

NO DIFEERENT TWO DAYS BEEORE.
THIS CONCLIJDED TED'S STATEMENT.
ON },IAY 25TH AT APPROXII'IATEIY 15OO HOI'RS I MET TTTIT MTCEAEL A].TSHI'LER

(taHrTE D4ArE, 10/11/1956). MTCEAET. PROVTDED ME WrTg A S!iORN STATEMEN? WHrCH
I.IAS MEIiTORIALIZED ON A DIGITAL RECORDING DEVICE, THE EOLIJOWING IS A SYNOPSIS
OE MICEAELIS STATEMENT/ FOR SPECIFIC DETAITS PLEASE RET'ER TO THE CD LOCATED
IN PBSO EVIDENCE. MICHAEL STATED THAT ON THE DAY OE' MITCIIIS DEATH HE WAS

SUPPOSED TO }TEET WITH MITCH AT THE GYM INSIDE OF MITCH'S DEVEIOPMENT.
MICHAEl STATED IIIAT HE ARRMD AT THE COMMUNITY GYM ARoUND 7:00 P.M. AND
EHAT THIS HAD BEE}iI PI.ANNED SEVERAI. DAYS IN ADVANCE. MICIIAEI SIITED TEAT HE
MET MITCH AT A SEMINAR AND THAT THEY HAVE KNOWN EACH OTHER FOR 3-4 MONTHS.
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                               VOLUME:    I

                               PAGES:     1-165

                               EXHIBITS:  1-15, A

    IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL

    CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

                     NO. 502012CP004391XXXXSB

                     CP - Probate

_______________________________

IN RE:                         )

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN   )

_______________________________)

                 TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION of DONALD R.

TESCHER, called as a witness by and on behalf of

Ted S. Bernstein, pursuant to the applicable

provisions of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure,

before P. Jodi Ohnemus, RPR, RMR, CRR, CA-CSR

#13192, NH-LCR #91, MA-CSR #123193, and Notary

Public, within and for the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts, at the Hampton Inn & Suites, 10

Plaza Way, Plymouth, Massachusetts, on Wednesday, 9

July, 2014, commencing at 2:38 p.m.
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1 nor did Mr. Spallina bring it to the attention of

2 anybody; is that --

3     A.   We couldn't, because we weren't aware of

4 it.

5     Q.   Okay.  And when you became aware of it in

6 2013, did you think it appropriate at that time to

7 resign as copersonal representative from the estate

8 of Simon Bernstein?

9     A.   No.

10     Q.   Now, did there come a time, however, when

11 you did resign -- you and Mr. Spallina -- as

12 copersonal representatives of the Simon Bernstein

13 estate; correct?

14     A.   That is correct.

15     Q.   Do you recall when that was?

16     A.   January of 2014.

17     Q.   And what was the incident at that time

18 that then caused you to resign as copersonal

19 representatives of the estate of Simon Bernstein?

20     A.   It came to light -- it was brought to my

21 attention that the -- there was an amendment --

22 there was an altered document altering the

23 amendment to Shirley Bernstein's revocable trust,

24 which document had been forwarded to Christine

25 Yates, who was then serving as counsel to Eliot
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1 Bernstein's children; and that document added a

2 provision.

3     Q.   All right.  And how did that document come

4 to light -- the altered document?

5     A.   It was brought to my attention by someone

6 in my office.

7     Q.   Okay.  Now, the -- you identified the

8 altered document as what again -- the Shirley

9 Bernstein Trust?

10     A.   The Amendment to Shirley Bernstein's

11 Revocable Trust Agreement.

12     Q.   Okay.  And who in your office brought that

13 to your attention?

14     A.   Our associate.

15     Q.   And who is that?

16     A.   Lauren Galvani.

17     Q.   And when did that take place?

18     A.   January 2013.

19     Q.   Okay.  And there is a document that's

20 attached to your affidavit, which is the -- I

21 believe an amendment to the Shirley Bernstein

22 Trust; is that correct?

23     A.   Hold on one moment.  Let me get to that.

24     Q.   Is that Exhibit C?

25     A.   I believe that's C, if I'm not mistaken.
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1 Hold on one moment.

2          (Witness reviews document.)  Yeah.  That's

3 Exhibit C.

4     Q.   Okay.  All right.

5          Now, Exhibit C, is that the altered

6 document or the unaltered document?

7     A.   That is the unaltered document.

8     Q.   And what did the altered first amendment

9 to the Shirley Bernstein trust say?

10     A.   I don't have it in front of me, but

11 essentially what it did was there was a -- you see

12 how it's numbered now 1 and 3?  There were -- you

13 know, somebody had messed up when it had been

14 originally prepared, and it got numbered --

15 paragraph No. 1, paragraph No. 3.

16          A paragraph No. 2 was inserted between 1

17 and 3.

18     Q.   And when did that take place?

19     A.   I don't know.

20     Q.   Was it -- did it take place sometime in

21 2012?

22     A.   I don't know.

23     Q.   Did it take -- well, how did your

24 associate suddenly come across it in January of

25 2014?
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1     A.   You'll have to ask her.

2     Q.   Did you ever ask her how she came across

3 it that then subsequently caused you to resign as

4 copersonal representative?

5     A.   She noticed that the amendment that had

6 been included in the letter to Christine Yates was

7 different than Exhibit -- the exhibit that's here

8 attached to my affidavit.

9     Q.   And in that letter to Christine Yates,

10 what was the date of that letter?

11     A.   I think it was January of 2013 -- I think.

12     Q.   Okay.  And so that was after the death of

13 Simon Bernstein; correct?

14     A.   Yes, it was.

15     Q.   So then that altered document contained in

16 a document dated January 11, 2013 could very well

17 have been prepared while Ted Bernstein was the

18 successor personal representative and successor

19 trustee to the Shirley Bernstein estate and trust;

20 correct?

21     A.   No.  Probably -- well...

22          Probably -- I'm not sure, to be honest,

23 Peter.  I'm not a hundred percent certain on the

24 timing.

25     Q.   Okay.  And how did a year go by between
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1 the time of the January 11th, 2013 letter in which

2 the altered document was produced to the attorneys

3 for Eliot Bernstein and then the discovery that it

4 was, in fact, an altered document?  What happened

5 in that 12-month time that caused you, or your

6 associate, or your office to discover that, in

7 fact, what had been supplied to counsel for Eliot

8 Bernstein was, in fact, a forged document or

9 altered document?

10     A.   I can't answer that question, actually --

11 'cause I don't know.

12     Q.   All right.  And -- and who in your firm

13 would be in the best position to know that -- if

14 it's not the general manager -- the managing

15 partner of the firm?

16     A.   Mr. Spallina or Ms. Galvani.

17     Q.   You were the managing partner at that time

18 still; correct?

19     A.   I was the president.

20     Q.   Okay.  And what did the altered document

21 say in paragraph 2?

22     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front

23 of me.

24     Q.   And the one attached to your affidavit?

25     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front
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1 of me.

2     Q.   I apologize if I'm being repetitive on

3 that score.

4     A.   Yeah, I don't have --

5     Q.   Your best recollection.

6     A.   Yeah.  Peter, I don't have it here.

7          It dealt with the definition of children

8 and lineals.

9          MR. ROSE:  Peter, I don't want to ruin

10 your momentum that you're building up, but I need

11 to take a bathroom break.  Could we take -- we've

12 been going at it for a little more than an hour.

13 Can we take like a five-minute break?

14          MR. FEAMAN:  Sure.  I'm moving on to the

15 next item anyway.

16          MR. ROSE:  No more than five -- maybe as

17 little as two minutes.  I'll be right back.

18          MR. FEAMAN:  No problem.

19          (Recess was taken.)

20     Q.   Mr. Tescher, I'd like you to take a look

21 at what's been premarked as Exhibit 3.

22          MR. FEAMAN:  Madam Court Reporter, would

23 you hand that to the witness.

24          COURT REPORTER:  Okay.

25          MR. FEAMAN:  Thank you.
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IN nm UNITBD STATBS DISTB.ICI' COURT 
POll THB DJSTRICT OP NBW J.BRSBY 

SECUJUTIBS AND BXCHANGB COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff; 

v. 

~BER.TL. SPALLINA. et al, 

CONSENT OF DBRNDANT ROBERT L SPALLINA 

J. Dofmdant lt.obort L Spallina ("Dofondant') waivea service of a summona aJid tho 

complah.lt in this action, onten a pneral appearanco, and admits tho Comt•a jmiacliction over 

l>Ofondant and over the subject matter of this action. 

2.. Dofcndant 1lal &peed to plead guilty to crimmal conduct re1adJ2g to certain 

} matters alleged In the eomplaint it> this action and acbowledgea that his conduct violated the 

federal securities law& Speciti~y, Defendant has aarecd to plead guilty to a one count 

informatiOD which charges him with committiq securitios fraud involvina insider trading in tho 

aooaritioa of Pharmasset. lno. in a matter to be filed in tho United States District Court to1 tho 

District of New Jeney.(tbe ''CrimJnal Action"). 

3. Defendant .horoby co~ts to tbe entry of tho Pinal Judgment in the form attached 

hereto (the "Pinal Judgment') and incolpOtlted by refenmco herein, which, among other things: 

(a) J>ermanentty restrains and eqjoina Deteodant Jiom violation of Secdom 

· lO(b) mid 14(o) of the Securities Bxchinp Act.of 1934 C'Bxchango Act") 

, 

I 
. f 

! 
~ 
i 
i 
f 
j 

~ 

I 
I . 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 12   Filed 10/01/15   Page 1 of 18 PageID: 205

BATES NO. EIB 000381 
02/27/2017



Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 3 Filed 09/28/15 Page 2of12 PagelD: 30 

[15 U.S.~. §I 78j(b) and 7~n(o)] and Rules lOb-S and 14c>l thereunder 

[17 C.P.R. §§ 240.tOb-S md 240.14e-3); 

(b) orders Dofendant to pay disgorpmeat in the amount of$39,156, plus 

prejudgment interest dJoreoa in the amount of Sl,794; provided, however, 

• that $39,1545 shall be deemed sadafled in 1igbt of Defendant's conaont to 

tho entry of a bfoitare money judgment in the amount of $39,156 iD . 

cmmeodon with the Criminal Aationt and 

(c) otdors Ddmdaat to pay a ctvil penalty in tho amount of $39,156 under 

Seodon 21A of die Bxchanp Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 

4. Defondant agrees that ho ahall not seek or accept,.~ or indirecdy, 
. 

ceimbutlemeDt or indcnmitl<Jation &om any SOUl'cet includina but not limited to payment made 

pursuant to any insunmQe policy, with regard to any cM1 penalty amounts that Dofcndant pays 

pursuant to the Pinal 1uclpient, rlpdel8 of whotbar such penalty 8IJlOUDia or ay put thereof 

ans added to a diatribution but or odaonrise used for the bone& of investors. Defendant tbrther 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to _any 

fedenJ, state, or IOOld tax for any penalty amounts that Dcfendmt pays pursuant U> the Final 

Judgment, regardless of whedler such penalty amounts or any part thereof aro added to a 

distribution fimd or odterwise used for tbe benefit of inveaton. 

S. Dofondanl waives the entry of ftndinp of fact and conclusiona of law pursuant to 

.Rulo 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.. 

6. Dofondant waivca the right. if any, to a jury trial and to appeal ftom the entry of 

the PJnal 1udplmt. 

2 
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. . 
7. Defendant enters into this Consent vohmtarily and represents that no tbreotB, 

.• 
of:fen, promisea. or induOOJDelda of any kind have been made by the Commission or any 

mombor, offtoer, employee, •• or representative of tho Commiasion to induce Defendant to 

enter {Dto this Consent. 

8. Dofeadant agrees that this Consent shall bo incorpomt.ed into the F~ J'vdgmcmt 

with· tho aame fcm:e and ctrect aa Jf fblly set forth therein. 

9. Defandant will D0t oppo80 tho enforcement of tho Pinal Judgment OD fho p.xmd, 

·if my exists, that it tails to comply with llule 6S(d) of the Pederal ltules of Civil Proceduro, and . 

ltenby waivel any objection baaed tbm:on. 

10. Dofondant waives aervico of the Pinal Judgment and aamcs that entry of tho Pinal 

ludgment by tho Coult and~ with the aert of tho Comt will constitute notice to Defendant 

of ita teaaa and conditions. Dofendant i\uther aareea to provide counael tor the Commiuion, 

within tbirr.y da11 after the Pinal ludgmODt fa filed witll the Clerk of the Court, with an atndavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant bu recoived ~read a copy of the Pinal Judgment. 

11. Consistmt with 17 c.F.R. I 202.5(1), thfs Consent resolves only the claims 

asserted against Defendant fn this civil proceedfng. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or 

representation has been made by the Commission or any mmnber, o~cer, employee, agent, or 

representative oftbo CommissJon with mprd to any oriminal liability that may haw er.inn or 
• • t 

may arlae ftom the factl underlying tbJ.a action or immunity ftom any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy bued upo~ the settlement of this pmceeding, 

including tho imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Dofendant Jbrther acknowledges 

that the Court's entry of a ~ent ID;unctioa may have collateral conaequencea under federal 

or state law and ihe rules and regulations of self.regulatory organizadons, Ucensing boards, and 
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other regulatory orpnindons. Such collateral consequences include, but aro not limited to, a 

. slatufOl'y disqualificadon with respect to membership or participation in, or aasociadon wi1h a 

member o~ a~~ Tlda statutory diaqualiftoation baa consequencea that 

are soparate from any aancdon imposed in ID~ pmceedlng. In addition, in any 

discJplfnary proceeding before the Commission baaed on tho entl)' of the injunction in this 

action, Defendant undonbm.da that ho abal1 not bo ponniued to contest the factual allejationa of 

the complaint ill tbia action. 

12. Defendant understands and apees to comply with tho tenm of 17 C.P.R. 

f 202,S(e). whlcb provides in part that it ia tho Commisaion'a poliO)' ''nc>t to permit a dofendaat 

or respolideDt to consent to a judgment or older that impose8 a sanction while denyins the . ' 

aJleptiom in the complaint or OJder for pmc:eedlnp." Aa part of Defendant's agreemant to 

comply with tho klm8 of Section 2015(0), Dofendaat acknowledges that bo has aJD*I to plead 

gufhy tor rolatec1 conduct as deacribcd in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not tab any action or 

make or permit to be made any pablio statement denying directly or indirectly, any allegation in 

~e complamt or creating the impieaslon that the complaint la without W basis; (If) will not 

maim or permit to be made any pubHc statement to tho effect that Defendant does not admit tho 

al1epd.ona of the complaint, or that this Conseat contains no admission of the allepticms; (iii) 

upon the filing of tbia Consent. Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in this action to tbe 

extent that they dmy ~Y aDeption in the complaint; aud (iv) sdpul,iea for putpOaOS of 

aceptiona to diacbarge sot forth in Section 523 of the Bantrvptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the 

allegations in the complahlt are true. and ibrtbo.r, that any dobt tor diagorgement. prejudgsnent 

intoreat, civil penalty or other amounts duo by Defendant under the Final Judgment or any other 

judgment, order, consent order, decree or aottJeaDent agreement entered in connection with this 
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proceeding, ia a debt tbr the violation by Defendant of tho federal securities laws or any 

regulation or order issued under IUCb laws, aa sct forth in Section S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy 

Code, 11 u.s.c. tS23(aX19). Jf Defondant broaches 1hil asreememt, the Commisaion may 
petition the Court to vacate the Pinal Judgment and reatoro tblt action to 111 active cfoclcot. 

Nothilig in tbia paragraph affocti Dofe.adant'r. (i) testimonial obliptlona; or (H) tight to take 

lept or factual positions in litiption or other lesal proceedings in which the Commission ia not 

apady. 

13. . Dofendant hereby wafvea any righta under tho Bqua1 Accoaa to Justice Act, 1ho 

SmaD BUlhtesa Regulatory Bnfomement Faimeaa Act of 1996, or any other provision Of Jaw to 

uek tiom the United Statea, or·any agency, or any oftloial of tho United States acdng Jn his or 

· her oftlcial capacity, dlrecdy or indirectly, reimbursement of attomof s fees or other fees, 

oxpenses, or coats expanded by Dofondant to defend allafnst tlda acdon. Por tbcmo pUq>oaes, . 

Ddmdant agnea that Ddmdant ii not the prevailing party ill thl8 action sinco the parties have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

14. Jn connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative 

pmceeding ot Jnvesdpdon commonced by the Commlaafon or to which the Commission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agnea to appear and be il1teniewed by Commission staff at such dmea and 

pllcoa as tllo atatr requeata upon reasonable noticoi (ll) will accept service by mail or filcsimilo 

uanamiaaion of noticee or nbpoenu iaaued by the Commiaaion for dooumeata or toadmony at 

depoaidoDa, heulnp, or trials. or In cmmoodon with any related investigation by Coinmi.,.tcm 

~ (Jii) appoim Dofendant'a undendped attorney as. apnt to receive service of such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such nodces and aubpoo.ou, waives the terri~ limits on 

service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Pro_ceduro and any a}iplicable tOcal 
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rules, j>rovided chat the party requesdng the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodgina, and 

subsisteacO egpeasoa at the then-provailing U.S. Govemment per diem rates;·anct (v) conacmta to · 

peraonaljurisdiction over Defendant ia any United States Diatrict Couri for'pmpoaes of 

· enforolng any noh ~ 

15. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Pinal J'udgment ·to the 

Comt for aipatuN and entzy without Auther notico. 

16. Defendant agrees chat tbi8 Court ahall retain jurisdiction over this matter for tho 
I 

puq>ose of enforcing the terms of the Pinal Judgment. 

Approved II to form: 

~~ Gibbobs ... 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 
Counsel for Robert L Spallina 

~CQ~ 
· Commiaion expim: 

Q) Alexa Collevecldo .... ' ..... .......... 
WIWMDllOTAIY.001 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SPALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circUinStances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14( e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while m possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender off er; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities and Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 12   Filed 10/01/15   Page 10 of 18 PageID: 214

BATES NO. EIB 000390 
02/27/2017



Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 3 Filed 09/28/15 Page 11 of 12 PagelD: 39 

and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

N. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(l9) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a){l9). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SP ALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

IO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert.or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F .. R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to kn.ow has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of$39,156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities a.nd Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities a.nd Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that paymentis made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO~T 
·DISTRICT OF NBW JBRSBlj 

SBCURITJBS AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

· Plaintiff, 
C.A.·No. _._ 

v. 
1· • 

DONAW R. TBSCHBR. et al, 

. ..1 

·CONS~ OJ' DEFENDANT DONALD.IL TE~ 

· 1. Defendant Donald R. Tescher ("Defendant") waives service of a summons aDd . 

,: 

herein in paragraph ·12 and. except as to~ and subject matter jlJdsdiction, which 

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby eonsents to the emry of the final Judgment in the fomi 
II " . .r 
• • .. ~ • + 

attached hereto (the "Fmal J~eat") and incorporated~ refinnce henDn. which, among other 

(a) 
' . 

tO(b) and 14(e) of die Securities ~change Mt of 1934 ("Rxchange Act'? .. · 
.. 

[lS U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78n{e)] and Rules 101>-S ind 14&-3 tbereunder 

[17 C.F.R:. ·-§ 240.lOb-S and.240.14e-3); 

(b) · orders DefeDdapt to pay disgorpment in the amount of $9,937, plus · 

prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $690; and 

1. 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 1 of 22 PageID: 143

BATES NO. EIB 000399 
02/27/2017



· Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 7 Filed 09/28/15 Page 2 of 14 PagelD: 105 

. , 

(c) orders De~ to pay a civil penalty in 1he amount of $9,937 under · 
. . 

Section 21A oftbe Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 
. " 

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not~ or accept, dii'ectly or indirectly, 

reimbqrsemmt or jndemnJficatioo from any source, includhig but not limited to payment made . . 

pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defimdant pays 

pursuant to the Final Judgment. regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereo~ 

are added to a ctistributicm fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investon. · DefeDdant fbrther 

agrees that be shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax ciectit with regard to apay 

·federal, stale, or local tax for any penalty .amo~ that Defendant pays pursuant. to the Final 
, < 

·.Judplent, ~ess of wbetber·sUch penalty amOUDts ~any part thereof are added to a 

dimibUti~ fund or otherwise used for.the benefit of investors.. 

4. Defendant ~tectP that the Court is not imposing a ci~ penalty in excess 

· ofS9,937 based on DefeQdant's cooperation in a Commi•on inwsdgation and/or mated 
~. ' • •· ·. ' •· • ......... ;,,,. a ' ' •"· '- '. ·•· .. ' • • ' ... · •... • • ' ' "'-' • • • • • ' ,., • • , .. • ·• ' • • . .; ,,;, ;, ; ' -~• ' ,., "" ' •. ,.., •• ' ,., • 

~action. ~ consems that if at an)' ame followina the eJltr)' of the irma1 
~ . (• . . 

Judpient ~ Commiaion obtains intomuttion indicatiq that Defendant knowinalJ JJl1;Mded 

materially false or mislead~ infonnation or materials to the Commission or in a related 
. . . 

Pmceectina. the Commission may, at its sole ~on ana without prior notice to the Defendant;. 

petition the ~·for an order requiring Defendant·to pay an additional civil penalty.. In 

. . ·connection with the Commission's motion for civil penalties, and at any hcsarin1 held on such a 

motion: (a) Defendant Will be preCtuded from arguing that he did not viol8te the federal 

securities Jaws as alleged in the Complamt; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the 

Judpient, this Consent, or any related Undertakings; (c) the~ of the cOmp• solely 

for~ purposes of'~ motion, sb8n be accepted as and deemed 1rue by the Court; and (d) the 

. 2 
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Cour_t may deterinine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of atlidavits, declarations, 

excerpts of sworn deposi~ or investigative testimony, and documentary evidence without 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained. in Rule S6(c) of the Federil Rules of 

Civil Procedme. Under these circumstances, the parties may take discovery, including discovery . 

·-
S. Defendant waives die entry of findinp of fact and conclusiom of law pursuant to 

Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedme. 

6. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury 1l;ia1 and to appeat from the entry of. 

the Final Judgment. 

7. Defendant ente.rs into this Consent voluntarily and 1epieseats that no tbreafs, 

o1fers, promises, or inducementa of any kind haw been made by the Commission or any e _, II 

member, ofticer, employee, apnt, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

8. Defendant 111W 1hat this Consent shall be incorporatecl into the Final Jtufp1ent 

with the same fome and effect u if fully set forth therein. 

9. · Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground, 
, .. 

if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Rules of CiW Procedure. and 

hereby waiws any objection based thereon. .. 

1 O. Defendant waives service of the F'mal Judgment and agfees that entry of the Pinal 

Judgment by the Court and fillna with the Clerk: of the Court wiD comf:itute notice to Defendant . 

of its terms and conditions. Defendant further aarees to provide counsel for the Comminion, 

within thirty days after the Final Judpent is tiled with the Clerk of the Court, with an aftidavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Fmal Judgment. 

3 
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' . 
11. Consistent with 17 C.P .R. § 202.S(f), tbis. ConsCnt resQ.lves only the claims 

asserted agiun&t Defendnt in this. civil ~Ing ~ adato~ that no promise or 
. . : . . ; ... 

•• • ,. > • .. ... 

. ·~on has been made by the Commission or any .member, ofiicer, Cmployee, agent, 0r 

~ve of tlle·CommissiO.n with regmd to any criminal lilbility that may have arisen or 
, ..... 

. . 
· may arise ftOm the facts underlyina this aCtion or immuDity from any~ criniinal liability. 

Defendant waives any.claim ofDouble·Jeopardy ~upon the ~ent.ofthis ~ng. 

including the imposition of miy xeinedy or civil penalty berehi. Defenctant ~ 8cbowf~. 

that die Court's entry of a permanent ~n may have colllteial ~~under federal 
' .. ~ . 

or state law and the rules and iegulatiOns of self-regulatory orpniDtions, licensina boards. and 

other regulatory~ Such collateral consequences ~ but are·n~ limited to, a 

statutoij-with·respect to~ or participation in, 0r _.ad.on wi1h a · 
··- . .. . ·~ . . . .. . . ·. . . . .... - . 

mem~ot; a.Self~.~ ~ sbdutm)'.~llas CODJOqUeDCeldwt 

·are se.r)arate ·&om any ~on imposed in in administDative pmcWcHna . .In addition, in any . 
. : . • ~. '"~·"' '"":'''""~"·,~ .. ;.: ·• .; . ·"·: .,·~·.·"'\"•':'':,;:,.;:..·.~,; • .,.,;, ... :·· ... : .. , ·!'·· '""·' ........... ;., .... ~ .. , .. ,<', ....... ~ ......... ., .... , .. :)'"'·: ,, . ; .. ,, ":'""''' ,: ,,·,, .. 

disciplbiary pr0crofin1beforethoCommissionbased0n the.emry of the injunction in this 
~- ' .. 

action. Defendant 1Dldentands that he shall not be permitted to comest the factual allegations of 
. . . .. . 

the cOmplaint in this actiOn. .. 
12. · Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the~ of 17 c.F.R. 

•. 

§ 202.S(e), which provides in part 1hat it is fhe· Commission's policy "not to permit a defmdmit . 

or respondent to consent to a judgment 0r order that imPoses a sanction wbUe denying the 
f ~ • • • 

·alleged~ in the complaint or Older for proceedinp." and "a retbsal to admit the allegations is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or mpondent stama that he neither admits nor denies 

the allegatiom.'' ~ part of Defendant's agreeinellt to comj>ly witl;l the terms of Section 202.S(e), 

· Defendant: (i) wm ·not~'·~ ~on or make or permit to bo IP8de any public statement 

4 
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' . 
denyin& dhecdy or ~y. ~allegation in the complaint or~ the~ that the 

~is withoqt·factuat ·basis; (h)willnot mate ~pciamit _:,·be made anypublic·'statemem 
' . . .. ~ . . : . .. . . . . _.: ; 

' 
to the etfect that DefeDdaat does not admit the alleptions of the qomplaint. or.that this ·Consent. 

· ~no admission of the an9d~ without aliO stadDg that~ does not deny the. 
" ' ..... . "... .;, 

thi8 actiontO the~ that the, clCnY any allegation in the Com,tamt; am (iv)·~ solely 
• • ' -11' • 

for pmp1&ei ·of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of-the Bankruptcy Code, 11 . 

. u~s.~. §523, that the anepdom in die complaint a true, and~. that mi, debt ror . 
. disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amoums d1_le by Defimdant under~ \ : 

.{ ... · 

Fin:81 Juctlmeni or q. other judgmellt, order, consent order, decree or:~~ .. 

· ~ ia cmmedioD ~~:~is a debt ibrtl)e vio1atlOa ~~of tho iildeial 

secmitics Jawa or any regulation, or Order issUed ~ suCh laws, u set forth in Section · 

S23CaX19)oftbo Bankruptcy Code, 11 u.s.C. §523(aj(t9). IfDcfendaat breaches this 
..•.... ~ •.. ..,,:..,. ~-"?·· l' .•. ~., .... ,. ... , •. ;.,; ....... 1 .............. '·-·:· .. ,. ..... ,,........ ..• ..... ,. ~ : ' '. , . .,, .. , . . ·-~·········'·" •'' '''." ,: . ·~ ........ ··. :·~.· .. ,..,.... .. ~ " ; 

agreem«;nt, the Commission maj petition the~ to vacate 1he Final J1utgmeut and JeStore this · . 
. ,. . ' _., . 

. . 

· obligations; or (ti) right to take lel:'1 or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedinp · 

· in which. the Commission is not a party. 

13. Defendant 'hereby waives~ rights under the~ Access to Justice Act, the 

Small B•'Siness Regulatory EnforcementFairneas.Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to 
. . 

seek ftOm. the United States. 0r any agency, ~any ofli~ of the United States acting~ his or · 

her official capacity, directly or indirectly,~ of attomey•i fees or other~ 

. eXpenses. or costs eX.,ended by Defen,dant to defend apinst this action. For theaO pmposes,. 

s 
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.>"' • 

. . . 
: , " ' . ~,'. . . . 

. Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing' party in this action smce tho parties have 
{ ' ' > , ... • • • .. 

;~·aoQ4-~\ 
14. ln-~oowithtbis d~ and anyielatecl~ill or~ 

,. . . . . .. . ' ·''· . . . . . ·. . . ~ 

procee<ting or inWitigadon Coininenceci by the Commission or to which1be Comniission is a 
. . ,· . . . .. . .- . 

party, Defendant (i) ....... tolppear and· be interviewed by Cotnrft(ssi~strdf at .. times and . 

places_• the statr~ Qpo~reas0nal)le notice;.(h)will~ ~ by.~or ~ile 
' . . ,. 

tnmsmission.of D01ices or subpoenas issued by tho Commission.for~- or testimony at 

sta&;· (lh) appoints Defendant's undersip.ed attomey • agent to receive selvice of such notices 
. ,. . ' 

and subpoenas; (IV) with respect to such'. notices ~subpoenas, waives tho territorial limits OD 
. ~ , . 

seMce contafu.ed in Rule 4S.Of the Federal ~-of Civil~ and any applicable~ 
, ·>. • ,. 

. rules. pmvideclthattbepmiy·~ the ~reimburses~· uavel,. lodgtn& and 
. . 

suhsislmce mr.pemes at_,~ U.S. GoVflDlrieDt per dieauatm; and (v) comrmta to 
' '~ ,.,,...., ,' :"'<" "''' ,;"".._'"'f':'• '·• ,);, .... '' ... (,>o • r"""•) •' r•' "'\';,,. 

0
•0 ·,,;, • : •,;,.~.•••· o.( .... , 0 ••<• ••. ;Jll.. '' ( •• ~~' ' ''' "'' ":-'"''' ')Ito.'''./"·'• • • ' •• '•'•· j,'·'' • '<• • '•• •·'••<• '- • • •• • ,,. '< <'°H H• ; , » , ... , 0 , ,., , <f o( •• 

personal jmisdiction over·~ant in any u~ States Diitrict Court for purposes°" 
enfOJdng aity such subpoena. . 

· · ts. Defendant ap. that the Commission inay paent the Final Jud&inem to the 

· Comt for sipaiure and entry without fbrther notice.; 

: 
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. : " 

: : : :::J~µg)of;e.of~~orcing;.th~tl,11h~l-of the Finaliudgme11t.\ · 
.... · - .h. ... :. .. . ,,· ·.• . . ·.' ,, . · .. •··· 
.:· ~ . -: .. 

Approved as to form: 
. . . 

· .. '. H:au~?t41/l()t~ 
. J·{~A·M~!li~ •. ~, --·• ~. f/ .. 

· Moscowitz & MoscowitZ, P.A 
· Sabadell Financial Center. · 
· lll lBrickell Ave.,. Suite 2050 
Miami, FL 33131 

7 

..... 

'· 

--··.· ....... · .. ·.· .. 
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UNITEO: S'fA'fBS DISTIUCT COURT 
. DISTIUCT OP·mw JER.sBY •.. 

'• - .. 

SBCURITJES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON. · 

Plain~. 
C.ANo._-_ 

v. 

DONALD R. TBSCHER et al., 

Defendants. 

·,. .- . 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT DONALD R. TESCBER ... · 
-f • • • , • ,- : • .. . . • . . : ..• ,·. 

. . . . .. . 

Donald R. Tescher ("Defendanf') havilig-enterecl a general appearance;_consented to the Court's 

juriSdiction over Defendant and the subjectmatter of this action; consented to: entry ·of this Fir)al 
.. . . l ·.. .. . . . .. . ' ·• . . ·. . . . . · . 

.,, .. ·,· ··- . -...... ,.;<··' ~-:. •: -·~--·····~ . . . ' .• -· .. .•.. :~ .,. .•.. ··:. ~ ';~. , .• 

Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except :as otherwise provided herein in paragraph VI); waived findings of fa.et 

and· conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final JU:dgment: 

I. 
. . .. . 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and. 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attomeys, and all persons_ in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service·or 

otherwi$C are permanently restrained and enjoined n:Qm violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

l~) of the Secmities Bxchange Actof 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [lS 11.s.c. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulg~ thereun~er (17 c~F.R. § 240.tOb-5], by using any means or :' 
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··.;·. 

secUrlties exe~e, in·Connection witttthe Pme~ ot sale of an)' securiti: . : 
. . ..... , ... - . , .·. :;· •, ..... ··:······ ·- ·· .. · .. • . ········-· 

(a) · ·~~Of anydevie8,~~artificeto~ 
.. 

. ·. (b) · to ~ake any untrue stat~ebt orlilllaterial,factot tO oJllit u> std, atnatoriaJ &ct· .. 
,.i 

· .···.~.inontcr::io·111a¥~:~~-rnade,:ut:theii&htotim,e~ees .. · 
.·"· ··:';' .. 

. . : 

( e) . to engage i~ any act. practice, O?'cOUl'Se of business which optTaies or woul~ 

operate as a frawfor deeeit upon any penon. 
\. 

: IL 

... rr1sHEREB:vFOR•:oRDEREP. AJ>JUPGBD. AND vECREaPfhall>ofmidmt. 
: . ' ~- . ' . . . . . ' .. . ... · .·· . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . ... . . '. . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . 

. and Defendant's agents;~, empl~yee'S, attOmeys, and allpersons in active conCert or' . . . . . 

. participation with them who i=eive a~tual'~tiee of.this F~ Judgment by penomd service or 

.'·.·: .. <>f#enYiSO&re.l>eiiDanettu1~·•~<feiij0ine<t.&om.ViotltiD1'8Ceti08·14(e)or~··&cb8D&e· 

.Act [JSU.S.C. § 78ii{e)] SndRuleJ4e·l[l7 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]pomulgated thereunder, in 

Connection with any tender offer or request~ invitation. for tenders, from enpging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or.~pulative act .or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
.. . . . . ... .. . . .. 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or, 

exchangeable for any
1 

such 'securitie& or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possessiOn of material . . . . . . . . ·. 

infonnation relating to such tender offer.that l)efendant knows or has. , 
; : . . .,. .. · . . . 

-~ ~ '" 

reason to know is nonpublic and kno\vs or has reason to know has been 

2 
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. . . ,.· . . . ... . . .. ·:-. ·. .. .. 
• • •h • • • • • • • • • • • 

. . . . . . . . 

. ·.·.··· ... ac:ct~~~or.~)'fniinthe.~~t¥~ofthcl ··. ·• 
. . ., . . : . : ·:·: .. < .: < :. ::~ -:: ':. . ; ·· .. -~:: . 

securities soiigh,t or to bi soiig\U by such tender offer; or any officer, 

. :._:. difector,parlnef J~P.t~yee ~r ()therpet10~ lcimll till.~haltoithe o~g­
. per&on or such i~, unles$·within a re&SOn8bteJil11e pri0r to any such-: 

. . . . ': . . . . ., 

. ,·. ' . . . , 

·.· purchase or sale stidt uuomMltion and m source are publicly,disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or · 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 
. . . 

. -· . which Defendant knows C>r has reason to know is nonpublic and knoWl or 
. ~-

. · -has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly ftom the 
' , . , . . . ' . .. . : . . . . . ... ~ . . : . . . ' . : . : . . . : . . : . . . . . . . . . . :. . . 

· • o~ person; ,tJ,te i~ e>(the ~ti"5 Sought oflo ~ ~p&bt,by stlch:. · · 
... '~der otiet; or -~otli~~ ~' ~t cmlpfoy~'.ad~;:or ot1tei< .. · . 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in wllich it is reasonably foreseeable that such _ 
• • • .... ,. • • : • • • • • • • • • •• , • • • •• • • • ., ,, '. ._.,..' • ·'" •• ·~· • ., :' ••• ,. - • ., • • • • ••• : ' ":" ~; ,· ••• ; • .:. •• • • •• • • ". ~ •••• "'· y •• ,;: ; •• ' .... : ':' ·-·· •••••• ·--:: •• ~ ••• "• ' 

. . . . ' 

. _ commµnication, is.likely to result in the puichase_ m_Sale of ~Curities. in the 
. . . . 

ma.triter desCribed in subparagraph (a) above; excc:pi that thiS paragtaph 

shall not apply .to a communication made in good faith. 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or.advi8ors or to.other persons· involved in the 

3' 
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- - . . ' . . . 

P~& fitutri<:in&· ~~fiPJtQf el(.~Qtt. qf ttle .. 
. •. - .. ' . . ·.··· ' .. 

. acti~ti~ of the issllet with res~'tO .s~li.tmder otrer, or 

(iii) ·. to>any J)er$>n ~uant t0 a ~~,~tany statUte or 
~~ or.te~ation }>tODlulgatai th•dOT.. · 
: ·' _: 

. :m .. 

IT IS FUR1HER ORDERED, ADJUOOEJ?, AND_DECREED tblltl>efendantis liable· 

fo. r disgorgemeot of $9,937~ representing profits g~ed as a result of the eondiici an.· eged in the , . . . . . .. . -- ' 

. - . .. ' . 

CompJaUrt. ~·with pn!judgmellt ~thereon in the amount of $690, and a ci\rll penattf · 
. . . 

· -··· · • , : • · inJhe amount'.of$9,937 pu?suantto S~~; 2tAoftlle Exclumge Act(lS:U.S~C. § 18u-11~ . 
. . . .. _ ·.,:' ... ~;· .· .. - .-~-~- .::-. -~ ... . .. ;:> .: .. ·.. _:\,··::;.:_ ... · . .· ,•:.. .· ·_ .· .. ; .::->.·· ,··.· .. · ... 

Defefid1Ifi·Sli~1~:Sfy,;t11is:(,bli~~·WP:.i~$20,s64•iO·~··~~uritiel:llJld·~·~···•.•-·: -.. 

. . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . 

. DefendaDt 111ay ~ paymentelectronically to the Commission, ~ch Will provide 

•...• detiil~ACH·~~~WiJi, ~~iJPi>iiieQ• 1,aYiDe1itm:aY;IJiobe·li18de~ 
ftoJJ1 a bank accou11fyia Pay.go'V thrOUjh ~SBC Website it 

- . -

htg>://ww\v.Sec~gov/a]>Qut/ofti~oftn.htm. Defendant'rltay also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier'~ cheek, or United States postal money onJer payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~fon, which shall be delivered or mailed to 
. . ' 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK.73169' · .. • 

- ' 

and shall ~ ~panled by a letter identifyirig tbO case title, civil action n~, Ind_ Dant~ of 
. . . .. . ' . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ 

'purswmt t0this Final Judgment. _· 

4 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying inf~on to the Commission's counselin tbis action. By making this payment, .. , 
~ . . . ,_ . . : . . 

Defendant relinquishes ·all legal and equitable right, title, and.interest in such (Unds and. no part 
. ,· . . . .. . ·. . 

.. of the fbnds sba~tlbe ~to oer~t.. The ~()~On S~ send the ~ds paid puisuant . ... 
t0 this Final JudgrA~t to_ the United SU\teS Tteasuri .... 

. The con1nliSsion may enforce the. Co~·sj~ganent for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures miihorized by 

law) at any time * 14 days following entry of this Pinal Judgment. Defendant smill pay post .· 

judgment interest on. any delinquent amounts pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 1961 •.. · 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY FURUIER .ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEcR.EED that based on 

Defendant's cooperatl~ in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement ·action,. the 

·co\lrt"is nOi"ol'deniil~ttOpay.a ciVii PeDlliY iD ex~sl""of$~,937~; Irat any"tmie· . 

following the·entry of tho~ Final Judgment me Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that . 
• 0 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading information or materials to the 

Commission or in a related proceeding, the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requiring Defendant to pay an 

additional civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any h~g held on sUch a 
~ • ' '<. 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom arguing that he did not violate the federal 

securitiei laws ~ alleged m the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of~ Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the 

5 
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CQurt may det~ the issues raised in the motion on the buis of affidaVits, declaratiollS, 

excerpts of SWOm deposition or investigative testimony,-~ documentary .evidence without 
'• A ' ', • )' '•' ' :, • 

. . . . . 

regard to the standards for summary judament containCd in Rulo ?6Cc) of the Federal Rules o~ · 
. . . . . . . 

Civil Pr®edure. Under.these-circumstances, tile parties ~Y t.ako diseovery, hicluding discovery . 

from 1ppro1>riate non-parties. · 
'. 

v. 
IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

. . . 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. and that Defendant 

shall comply;with all of the undertakinp and agreements set foi:th therein. 

VI. 

IT IS F{ffl.TIIER ORDER.ED, ADJUDGEµ, AND DECREED that, solely for purpoSes of 

.. ex~ns to diSchatge set forth ilt Section S~ of.the Bankruptcy Code_ ll U.S.C._._ §523, the ... 

allegations in the Complaint are tnie and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

diSgorgement, prej~gmen~ interest, oiVn penalty or other amowits due by ~endant under this 

F"mal Judgment or any other judgment,· order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with. this proceeding, is adebt for the violation by Def~ of the federal 
. . j . 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued lDlder such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23(a)(19). 

VIL 

IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purpo&es of enforcing the tenns of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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' ' vm. 
. There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil .. 

. . 
~rocedure, the Clerk is ordetcd to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without fmther n0tice. 

· ....... ~···· Datt.d;&d-1 . 2J) /h . . 

. ' . 

7· 
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UNITED; S1'ATES DISTJUCT C()URT 
.. DI~TIUC'f OF·~WJEIJ.s'.BY ·.· 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON, . · 

Plain~. . . . 

C.A. No. • --v. 

DONALD R. TESCHER et al., 

.Defendants • 

•.. FINAL.~ooMENT.~ TOD~.-\N'f DoNALD a. TESCBEa •.. 
The $~ties·and Exchange C<!mmission having filed· a Complaint Ind Defendani: : .. 

"• 

Donald It Tescher ("Defendanf') Jtavhia entered·~ gener8l appearan~; consented to the Court's. 
" . . . .. . : . . . . . . .. · ·.· . ··' . . .· . . 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of tms action; consentecUo entry of this Final. 
. ··." . . . . ' . . . . . .. " 

Judgment withoUt. admitting' or denying the a11egations of die comJ;iliht (ucept as t0 .. 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided hetein in paragraphVI); waived findings of fact 

and· conclusions of law; Ind waived any right to appCal fiom this Final Jll;dgment: 

I. 

IT IS ·HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREEf? that Defendant anf! 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attorneys. and all persons.in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive ~tual notice of'this Final Judgment by personal service or 
. , 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and.enjoined ~m violating,.directly orindllectly,.Section 
. . . '. . . . 

l~) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [1511.s.c. § 78j(b)] and. 

Rule lOb-5 promul~ thereunder (17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or• .. 
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. . . , . 

. instrunlentaJityof i1:'~ CO~~ ()I'. of the.~ or of any facility.of an)'. national·• 
''('. 

securities exehaltge, fu.connectfoJ1 with thei)urChase or Sale of an)' security~'· 
•' ·· .. ·, ::.· ;,; : .· - . - ... _._. . .· ... •.·- .. ·. ·- . : 

·.·. . ,· .. · :. " . . ,' .. . . . .. 

, (b) , , to tnab any un1rUe $tiltenlent of ll'Materi.i fact or to oJDittO state .fl material fact 

~saey in onter~ Uia1ce:thC sta~ts 1l'lade, hi theli&ht of thl' (:l~- .· , 

Under which they were·~· not muleading; or 

( c) . to engage irt any ~ practice, or·caurse of business which opemles or would 
, , 

, , 

operate as a fraud 'or deceit upon ally person. 

. . -. ' 

IL . 

· ·ITIS:ilmmBYFUR'tHER ORDERED, AJ;lJUDOED, AND DECREED that t>efeiidant .. ·. 
•.-.· . ,. . . ·.· .. ·. ·,. . .· ·.. . :· . . : ...... ·.·.. . . . 

·and Defendant's agents, ~ employees, attorneys, and all persons in activ~ concert.or 

participation with them whQ receive actualnotl~ of_this Final Judgment by penonat service or 
. ' . . ! ··: . . . . 

' . . . . 

.·····•.·<>~sc;an,·~·~·m,if etiJofuea·ifamvit>tltiiia··s~<>r.·I4<e>' orthe.:&chlnae . 
. ,' . . ' 

Act [IS U$.C. § 78ii(e)] and.Rulel4e·3· (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]promulgated thereunder, in 

oonnection with any tender offer or request o~ invitation' for tenders, .from engaging in.any 

fraudulent, deceptive, oun~pulative act _or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selliDg or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
> • • • ... ... • .. • 

sought or to be sought in such tendet offer, securities convertible into or. 

exchangeable for any 'such ,securitiel or any opuon or rigb.ho obtain or 

~of any. of the foregoing securities while·~ possessian of material 
, , , 

information l'f!udina. to such.tender offer·~ Pefendant .knows or has. ·. . 
:··· 

... ... .... 

reason to know is nonpublic and mows or h.as reason to know bas beell 

2 

\ . 
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: . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . : ·. ~ : . : . . . . . . : : ' . . . ... : : . . . . . . . . . : . ; . 

······~~~t~·~fn>nl·fhcl~~~tb,e~Of~··.· .. · 
. . . .::.::>· : ... -..:._.:::.;::·: ,,·. ,: ... ·.·. :,-:' ; : ;-:· .. ~··<. :.·(' .·:; 

seCurities So~.Ol'.fO 1*' sought by such~.~~"OI' any officet, 

····.··.·,···i;: ditedor, ~~:ern~1~;~.<>l"·Other:~~:,lo~*·•·c>tt,~fudi.ortbe•<>treiini 
.. person or sucll i~uer, tlritea.within a re&,on8b1e time prior to any such 

. . ... ' . . . . . . 
. . . . . ·. .... ': . . . ·... ' . . . .. . 

.· purcMse or sale stich iJllonilation and lts source are pubUCJydisclosed by. 

press release or otherwliJe; or 
' ' ' 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information. relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is.nonpublic .nd tcnows·or · 

'. ' has, reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly·fi:om the 
' . ' . 

·.·. •, . . . . . . ,. . : ' . .· '' .· ... ,· ·. .' ,· .. 

· · · oflering pers<>ii; the issUer of the .securities Sought ot to J,)e sou&lttby such · · 
: .- : . : . ·. . . ' .. . ' .. . . . .' .. :'. ·, ..... •. ;: : .· ... : .. . " , . · .. : :.'· .. :_. . . . ; ... . . . : ,,' . :, .· ·• . :. , __ .. : . ", . . · .. ·. . . . . . ·~. ' 

·· ~daotreti~~~~~.~.~.etnPtill'el.~~~orhther ·. 
person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

· ·under circumstances in which it is reuonably foreseeable that such 
,. :" ·., ... , •, . . ., ',•,·,. ..·.· . ' . · ...... ,... "=-:-<·· .,, ... ~... :·· ·' : · .. , .... ·:······ .. : ···':' '·'"'. ·"'•· · .. •·' . "••"•.' .:·;··· ;'· "'·"··' ''• •''• .... ···.'·" :. 

' ' ' 

commllbicatio~.is likely to• result in the purchase, or.s&le o(~Curities in the 
' ' • I 

~er <Iesaibed in subparagr. . · aph (a) above; except that this paragtaph· 
' , ' 

shall not apply to a communication made in gQOd faith . 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning,. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its ofticen, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to. other persons involved in the 

3 
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. . ' . . . . . 

. . pl8nn4t& fin&Jic:ing, P"'Paratlf.ll1OJ~ewtjc>n9f d\e .. 
. . . .::·;~: :. ·:::.;· .·:.:··· ··.: · __ . .. ··: :· ... ···· -. . .. >: :_ : . ·::· ··~ :· ._ .. - ':·:... . ... ; ' ..... ·.: ... ·:: ··:·.'" .· .' . . . 

~\lities O.tthe issum with respect to.S.Ucli ~offer;: or 
.. . : . . . ..·... '· .. ·.. , •. . 

(iii) to' anY person pursuant to. a requiteme~ ~fanY statute or . 
·, 

. . . . . . . . . .. .. 

nil~ e>r ~plation promulpted theretJrl •• --. 

-·1u. 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUOO~, AND.DECREED that Defendant is liable, 

for disgorgem~ of $9,937~ representing profits gained as a result of the condUct alleged in the 

· · Complllint, togdher with prejudgmenliDter~tthereon in tM .amount of $690, and ~ ciVil penatty_ ·. 
. . 

..• · • in tho amountof $9~931,ursuant to ~ll 21A of the &change J.ct[lS tJ~s.c. § 78u-1J; . 
... ,:, .. ·. :,·· ,· ., 

. .. ~el1dcmisiW1::8'ii$1)r.-this.obti~Qii·.,Yp1yjlla·s20,s~ to•.tlle--s~\lti~~•-aP<t···~-cbltrij,.· · 
: : ~· .. 

•" 

. .. . . . . . ' . . .. . . . . . . 

_ Defendant niay ~payment elc:ctronicallY to the Commission, Which Will provide:· 

······~.ACH~edWiie~~-~ P~-1i!ii·IJ$0~made~y··. 
from a bank ICCOunt·:vi& Pay.g()v thrOUSh aie.sB~ website it . 

httP://www.Sec;~govl@l><>utJofti~ofm .. hqn. Detendanf~y also pay by certified check, bank . · 

cashier'~ check,. or United States postal money or4ef payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~on, which shall be dellverec:' or ~led to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accowits Receivable Branch 
6SOO·South-MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 ·. : .·. 

. and shall be ~oomPmlied by aJeU. identifying tit~ case title, ci'Vil action number, 8nd lUune of. 
. . . . . . :: ... -. .. .. . • . . ,· ... >. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . , . . . . _, .·. : . . . ·. ~ . . . : ~ 

· this eolll"t; Do~a-R. rCSClier .as a <Jei~dant m tliis action; arid specHYinltfiat payttlent.:is ~ade· .. 
•. . . •• = :. -· •.•. ,:':' • : •. • . ·• : •. .·.·.·; 

'pursua11t tO this Final Judgment. · . 

4 
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. ,, 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying info1'1D8tion to thO Commission•s counsel in this action.· By mating this .,ayment, 

Defendant relinquishes.-11 legal and equitable right, .tide, anc1·mterest in such rjmds. aru1·no part 

. · Ofthe funds·sJMdfbe returned to Defe~. The ~oJJUDission shall sCmf t.he. ~ds paid puisuant 

tO this Final Jwtlm.e!U ~~United S,Ultes TteasmY.. ::'. 
. ... .. ,.' 

;· The conlDlb;~ion may enforce the ~·s judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures aUtborized by 

law) at any time ·.aftel'.14 days following entry of this Final Jildgment. Defendant shall pay post ,~ 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts·pursuant to 28 ·u.s~c. § 1961 •.. 

IV. 
. . . . .· . . . 

. . 

IT IS HEREBY FURTI.IER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that based on 

Defendant's cooperation in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement action, the 

·. ,.CoUrt is n0toraenil115etenaanttopay.a;civll peDaltfm ex~Sl''of$9~37:;·.•Ilat ali,'ume'• 

following the entry of theFinll Judgment the Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading infonnation or materials to the 

Commission or in a re~ proceeding.. the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requirinl Defendant to pay an 

additional. civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any heari~g held oi:a such a 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom araWna that he did not violate the. federal 

securities laws ~ alleged hi the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of tl,le.Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as Ind deemed true by ·the Court;· and (d) the 

s 
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Court may d~ the issues raised in the motion on tll" basis of ~davits, declarations, 
. . . . . . 

excerpts of swom deposition or investigative testimony, and dOCl.imentary .evidence without. 
... . . " . 

,' . . ' 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained in Rule ?6( c) ·of the Federal Rules of 
. . . 

Civil Procedure. Under these circumstances, the parties .-y take disCovery, hicluding discovery 

. from ·appropriate non-parties. , 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force an~ effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply· with all of the tmdertaldngs and agreements set fo~ therein. 

VI. 

IT IS ~THBR ORDER.SD, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purpo9es of 

ex~D$ to discharge set forth in SectionS~3 of tm Bankruptcy .. Code.1 l u.s.c. §.-523, the. 

allegations in the•Complaint are ~e and admitted by Defendant,.·and further, .&DY debt·for 

disgorgem=t, preju<fgmen~ interest, ciVn penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

·entered in connection with this ~eeding, is adebt for the violation by Defenda,nt of the federal 
> . 

secwities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the BanlQuptcy Code, 11U.S.C.§523(aX19) .. 

vn. 

· IT IS FURnIER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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Case 3:15-cv~07118-AET-LHG Document 7-1 Filed 09/28/1-5 Page 7of7 PagelD: 124 

vm. 
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil 

~cedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthWith and without further ootice • 

. ·.·~·:· 

t/~ 

7· 

' ' . 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA, IN AND 
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

IN RE:      Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN, 

Deceased. 

________________________________/ 

MOTION IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO (i) APPROVE 
COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT, (ii) APPOINT A TRUSTEE FOR THE TRUSTS 

CREATED FOR D.B., JA.B. AND JO.B., AND (iii) DETERMINE COMPENSATION 
FOR GUARDIAN AD LITEM (2) CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE 

 
1. I am an “interested person” and named beneficiary in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein and 

Simon Bernstein and contrary to the filings and positions of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose, I do in fact have “Standing” to be heard in all of these cases and am a 

named beneficiary in the dispositive documents and Object to all of these motions which 

require evidentiary hearings to be heard at a UMC hearing and respectfully request that 

proper Special Set Hearings be calendared after Dec. 15, 2016 as I remain under Medical 

Care as all the parties are aware.  See attached Exhibit 1 - MD Note.  

2. There is no Order issued on the “standing” issue in the case of the Estate of Shirley 

Bernstein and Simon Bernstein despite the misleading claims of Alan Rose to this Court 

in his pleading in further attempts to obstruct justice. 

3. I file these Objections for all 3 cases in which Ted Bernstein and attorney Alan Rose have 

recently moved this Court for relief on November 22, 2016 improperly moved for relief 

at UMC Hearings under Case Numbers: 

a. Case # 502012CP004391XXXXSB – Simon Bernstein Estate 

Filing # 49176982 E-Filed 11/21/2016 07:13:30 PM
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b. Case # 502011CP000653XXXXSB – Shirley Bernstein Estate 

c. Case # 502014CP003698XXXXNB – Shirley Trust Construction 

4. Both Ted Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose are well aware of the Serious Medical 

conditions I am under and have been provided copies on multiple occasions from a 

Florida Licensed Doctor of Doctor’s Instructions to Avoid Stress, which could result in 

life threatening injury.  Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose have known this for many weeks 

now as this condition has been raised in filings at the 4th District Court of Appeals.  

5. I made a written request by email and asked attorney Alan Rose to voluntarily 

Reschedule these motions off the Nov. 22nd calendar based on the ongoing Medical 

treatment and instructions until after December 15th, 2016 but Mr. Rose has refused to do 

so. Proof of the Medical Treatment and Ongoing Care was attached to my request.  See 

Attached Exhibit 2 - Email to Rose re Reschedule Hearings.  

6. I reserve the right to file more detailed Objections to all of the relief requested by Ted 

Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose in these 3 cases and seek an Extension of Time and 

/ Or Continuance to do so based upon Serious Medical conditions and the failure to be 

properly served in these matters.  

7. This Court is notified that virtually every Order in all of the cases of prior Judges Colin 

and Phillips are subject to being vacated under Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 1.540(b) 

on Fraud grounds but because of my medical conditions and the limited amount of time I 

can dedicate each day that it will take me 30 days to prepare and file proper motions for 

each case, which is subject to schedule change as in addition to repeated “sharp 

practices” by multiple attorneys including Alan Rose for Ted Bernstein and Steve Lessne 

for the Oppenheimer Trust case I am regularly faced with having to respond to 
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improperly Noticed motions and hearings and then subject to “tag teaming” motions in 

the 15th Judicial Court cases timed to coincide with Appeal deadlines at the 4th DCA.  

For example on this day, Nov. 22, 2016, I am hit with 3 hearings in this Court and 3 

briefs due at the 4th DCA and all while all parties have full notice of the dangers of stress 

medically to me at this time.  

8. Further, that both attorney Alan Rose and his client Ted Bernstein have mislead the prior 

Courts and are now misleading this Court under newly Assigned Judge Scher  through an 

elaborate evolving “storyline” that changes over time but will not withstand proper 

Evidentiary hearings after proper Discovery.  

9. Unraveling the multi-year elaborate scheme takes time which is further why I request an 

Extension and Continuance to file further Objections as in some instances there are 

contradictory statements from Ted Bernstein, Alan Rose and others from statements 

made to the PBSO, in some instances the statements are contradictory to prior Testimony 

in the cases, in other instances contradictory to other filings and so on.   

10. In the Notice of Administration document filed in the Shirley Bernstein case, I am in fact 

listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are nowhere Noticed or listed in this 

Document. Attached Exhibit 3- Shirley Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

11.  In the Notice of Administration document sworn to and filed by attorneys Tescher & 

Spallina in the Estate of Simon Bernstein under Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXSB, 

once again I am listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are never Noticed or 

mentioned.  Attached Exhibit 4 - Simon Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

12. In addition to “Standing” having never been determined by any Order in the Shirley 

Bernstein Estate case, the “Standing” issues were never determined by Judge Phillips at 
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any Evidentiary Hearing or after any Construction hearing, as none has ever been held, 

but instead was determined at a Non-evidentiary UMC Hearing and my “standing” was 

removed in several of the cases based on the fact that I could not quote the proper Statute 

section during a UMC hearing despite my stating that I was a named beneficiary in the 

documents, an interested party and guardian for my children.  

13. The alleged “Validity Trial” which is on Appeal to the 4th District Court of Appeals not 

only was Ordered in an improper case after Judge Phillips was mislead or just went along 

with Alan Rose, but even the “Validity” trial hearings held were not hearings on the 

“construction” of the alleged documents and no standing hearing occurred nor any 

construction hearing.  

14. This Court is Noticed that just one of the misleading acts of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose is failing to notify Judge Phillips at an alleged Guardianship hearing 

conducted improperly without proper Recordings and procedure that the Dead body of 

one Mitchell Huhem, age 45, was found at one of the very properties from these Estate 

and Trust cases being the primary residence of my parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein 

at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl shortly after moving into the home after a 

contested Probate Sale, being allegedly found on or around FEB. 23rd,  2015 after 

discovering likely Felony Fraud in the Incorporation and setup of a Land Trust to transfer 

this property by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose and that the Dead body was allegedly from 

Gunshot wounds to the head so gruesome that allegedly Mitchell Huhem’s wife Debra 

Huhem did not even look at the body.  

15.  This improperly conducted Guardianship hearing with Judge Phillips came after a 

Motion Hearing the same day in the US District Court of Illinois in relation to litigation 
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over “missing” Life Insurance policies of Simon Bernstein and missing Trusts where I 

had filed a Motion for Injunctive relief under the All Writs Act in the federal Court due to 

the extensive and pervasive fraud in the cases, Missing Discovery, Missing Documents 

and Missing “Millions” unaccounted for in these cases where it was known several days 

before to parties involved with Mitch Huhem that I would be reporting the fraud 

discovered in the Incorporation of the Land Trust to federal authorities and into the 

federal court.  

16. That home furnishings in the home where all property of Shirley Bernstein’s Estate when 

she died and none are listed on the Shirley Bernstein Inventory and therefore as it was her 

Personal Property it should have been inventoried at her death. 

17.  Despite the All Writs act Injunction Petition showing the Missing “Millions” and 

Missing documents and evidence in the related cases which also notified the Federal 

Court of the newly discovered fraud in the Incorporation of the Land Trust allegedly used 

to improperly transfer Trust and Estate property to Mitchell Huhem and his wife 

Deborah, neither Ted Bernstein nor the attorneys acting for him on this day notified the 

Federal Court that Mitchell Huhem’s dead body had just been found at the Lions Head 

lane property allegedly 2 days before the Court hearing in federal Court.  

18. While the US District Court did not grant the immediate Injunctive relief sought in that 

Court, it also did not strike the Petition and issued a Minute Order denying to strike the 

Petition from the federal court proceeding.  

19. Yet, later the same day, Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose show up at Judge Phillip’s Court 

for the improperly heard Guardianship proceeding failing to Notify the State Court that 

one of the parties that Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose were doing Estate and Trust property 
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business with alleged as fraudulent by myself was now Dead allegedly by Gun Wounds 

to the head at the very same property.  

20. Attached as Exhibit 5 is the All Writs Act injunction Petition which I incorporate herein 

by reference and can be used as a roadmap to this Court on the extensive frauds, conflicts 

of interests, Missing Documents, Missing evidence, Missing records and Missing 

“Millions” such that all motions by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose should be denied at this 

time and a continuance or extension granted to file completed motions with this Court 

and schedule necessary Evidentiary hearings after Discovery and even Depositions.  

21.  This Court is further notified that Ted Bernstein’s sworn Petition attempting to close this 

Estate conflicts in part with prior Hearings even with Judge Colin and an extension 

granted for further motions to be filed herein.  

22. Upon information and belief, the source being documents and information obtained 

through the Freedom of Information laws of Florida from the Palm Beach County 

Sheriff’s Office (“PBSO”) and Palm Beach County Medical Examiner’s Office in the 

Mitch Huhem Death case at the Lions Head Lane property, Ted Bernstein is the ONLY 

Central witness who apparently Refused to have his Statement Recorded by the PBSO 

in the Huhem Investigation despite allegedly being Scheduled to Meet with Mitch Huhem 

on the day in question when the Dead body was Discovered with the gruesome Gun Shot 

wounds to the head.  

23. In fact, despite being scheduled for a Business Meeting with Mitch Huhem on the very 

day in question, Ted Bernstein’s “statement” was not taken by the PBSO until several 

months after the body was found. See, Attached Exhibit 6 - Ted Bernstein Statement 

Huhem PBSO Homicide Investigation..  
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24. While thus far the PBSO has ruled the death a Suicide, there are Open Internal Affairs 

investigations not only relating to the crimes alleged in these Estate and Trust cases by 

Ted Bernstein and others but also an Open part in relation to the Huhem investigation 

where upon information and belief there are contradictory records and statements about 

when the body was first discovered and by who and the time of death and other.  

25.  This Court is also notified that Ted Bernstein has testified at the Validity Trial to never 

having seen or been in possession of any ORIGINALS of the Dispositive Documents in 

these cases while attorney Alan Rose is mixed up in the chain of custody of other certain 

“originals” and should be conflicted out as a Witness at this time.  See Attached Exhibit 5 

-  All Writs.  

26. The Court should further be aware that there have already been Admissions to fraud and 

forgery in the Shirley Estate case by Tescher & Spallina employee and Notary Kimberly 

Moran. 

27. Further, that lead Partner Donald Tescher on the Simon and Shirley Estates and Trusts 

plans admitted in Depositions that other frauds were discovered in the case committed by 

his Partner Robert Spallina but his firm kept silent for nearly a year on their wrongdoing, 

Spallina even denying knowledge of further misconduct to this Court while knowing of 

frauds he committed. See Attached Exhibit 7 - Deposition Tescher1  

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709TescherDepositionAndE
xhibits.pdf  

28. This Court is further Notified that attorneys Tescher and Spallina entered into Consent 

Orders with the SEC in relation to improper Fiduciary conduct in an Insider Trading case 

which upon information and belief still has an Open FBI Investigation to one of the 

                                                 
1 Donald Tescher Deposition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20E
xhibits.pdf  
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central Fiduciaries from these Estate and Trust cases. See, Attached Exhibit 8 - SEC 

Consent Orders for Robert Spallina, Esq. and Donald Tescher, Esq.  

29.  Further, that serious Due process issues are also raised in relation to the improperly held 

“Validity” Trial which includes but is certainly not limited to Missing Discovery and 

absence of standard Pre-Trial and improperly limiting such Trial to preclude necessary 

Witnesses such as Donald Tescher and Kimberly Moran and others.  

30. I make reference to a series of Filings that have not been properly heard in these 

proceedings and that related to the widespread fraud alleged and already proven in certain 

instances and that these should be considered for further Scheduling in all of these cases: 

a. May 2013 Emergency Hearing Fraud Simon and Shirley Estate and Trust Cases - 

Injunction 

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20S

IGNED%20Petition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf  

b. All Writs Motion on Judge Colin’s Disqualification and as a Necessary Material 
Fact Witness 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20R
EDO%20All%20Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%2
0Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20ST
AMPED%20COPY.pdf  

c. Disqualification Motion Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTARIZED%20Disqualification%20of%20Florida%20Circuit%20
Court%20Judge%20John%20L%20Phillips%20ECF%20STAMPED.pdf  
Notice of Corrections to Phillips Disqualification 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20141204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTICE%20OF%20CORRECTIONS%20DISQUALIFICATION%
20JUDGE%20PHILLIPS.pdf  
Motion for New Trial Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20E
SIGNED%20MOTION%20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTI
ON%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
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31. In the Dec 15, 2015 hearing Spallina admits further new frauds regarding the estate and 

trusts of Shirley Bernstein, including federal mail fraud and fraudulent creation of a 

Shirley Trust Agreement and dissemination of the document to my minor children’s 

counsel, Christine C. Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott law firm. 

32. The April 09, 2012 Petition for Discharge is fraudulent and already exposed as fraudulent 

by Colin, who proffered at the time, in a September 13, 2013 hearing upon discovery that 

the April 09, 2012 document was deposited with the Court fraudulently POST MORTEM 

for Simon Bernstein by Ted Bernstein’s counsel, Tescher & Spallina, PA and therefore 

was  yet another not legally valid document, constituting enough evidence at the time of 

fraud on the court and fraud on the beneficiaries for Colin to state he had enough 

evidence from their admissions to read Ted Bernstein, Robert Spallina, Donald Tescher 

and Mark Manceri their Miranda rights.   

33. Colin made this statement regarding Miranda’s twice in that hearing, once in regard to 

the Moran six fraudulently notarized and forged filings for six separate parties, including 

my father Post Mortem and once in regard to the April 09, 2012 document fraud in 

attorney Spallina filing documents using my father’s identity to close the estate of my 

mother at a long after he was dead, without noticing the Court or properly electing a 

successor PR to have filed closing documents legally.  This was all part of an ongoing 

fraud that continues in this renewed effort to close the Shirley estate through further false 

and misleading pleadings where it was the frauds and forgeries that led to my mother’s 

estate being reopened. 

34. The estate cannot be reclosed at this time as no objections to accountings and inventories 

have been heard that are filed and it is now known that approximately $1,000,000.00 or 
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more of assets was not included in Shirley’s inventory (a fully paid for Bentley, a 

$250,000.00 wedding ring and furnishings, art and more)  and these items have not been 

amended to Shirley’s inventory, despite Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being made fully 

aware of their existence for several years. 

35. Eliot Bernstein does not waive any rights to accountings in any of these 3 cases and 

believes a full audited Final Accounting starting from the date of death forward must be 

completed. 

36. Eliot Bernstein was not properly noticed of this hearing and all parties could not have 

consented to the Motion proposed, as I, Eliot Ivan Bernstein have not, nor have my 

children. 

37. No Guardian was appointed in this case and thus Diana Lewis acting as Guardian in this 

matter to give consent to the Motion filed by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose is invalid and 

deserving of sanctions and criminal legal action for attempted financial exploitation of a 

minor.  Diana Lewis should be instantly removed from this case and all cases and cease 

any illegal interference and obstruction. 

38. On information and belief, Joshua Ennio Zander Bernstein is an adult and no legal 

guardianship has ever been obtained for him as such and therefore he also has not granted 

consent to any Motion filed to Reclose the Estate of his grandmother Shirley Bernstein.  

Diana Lewis is aware that Joshua was an adult when an improper guardianship was 

issued to her representing him falsely as a minor to the Court and again this may be 

further criminal misconduct. 

39. That the Court has an obligation under Judicial Canons and Law to report these alleged 

serious felony acts of Obstruction, fraudulent and misleading pleadings of attorneys, 
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guardians and judges involved in these matters and more to the proper state ethical and 

criminal authorities. 

40. It is respectfully submitted that a Case Management Conference is proper for each case 

so that Hearings can be scheduled after Discover is opened and Depositions of Ted 

Bernstein, Donald Tescher, Robert Spallina, Kimberly Moran, Alan Rose and others are 

completed,  

Wherefore, it is respectfully prayed for an Order denying the Motions filed by Ted 

Bernstein and Alan Rose in each of these 3 cases and denying said relief at a UMC Hearing and 

granting and extension and or continuance as appropriate for Eliot Bernstein to file complete 

objections and motions to vacate as appropriate and who further seeks reimbursement of all court 

costs including $120.00 for Court Call that they said could not be waived for indigent parties.  

Due to Fraud on the Court in these cases proven and further alleged, Pro Se Indigent Eliot 

Bernstein is seeking an Order of this Court to VideoTape or Audio Record and Transcript all 

hearings, UMC, Evidentiary, etc. to prevent and preclude further sharp practices and violations 

of law without record.  Since the Fraud has taken place on and in the Court by Court Appointed 

Officers (Attorneys and Fiduciaries) it should be on the Court’s own motion to ensure the 

preclusion of further fraud and protect the litigants. 

Dated: November 21th, 2016 

 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished to counsel of 

record and the proper parties on the attached Service List via the Court's e-portal system or 

Email Service on this 21st day of November, 2016. 

. 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
  

SERVICE LIST 

Theodore Stuart Bernstein 
Life Insurance Concepts 
950 Peninsula Corporate Circle, Suite 
3010 
Boca Raton, Florida 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.co
m 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald 
& Rose, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, 
Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
33401 
(561) 355‐6991 
arose@pm‐law.com  
and 
arose@mrachek‐law.com  

John J. Pankauski, Esq. 
Pankauski Law Firm PLLC 
120 South Olive Avenue  
7th Floor  
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 514‐0900 
courtfilings@pankauskilawfirm.co
m 
john@pankauskilawfirm.com  
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Robert L. Spallina, Esq.,  
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
rspallina@tescherspallina.com  
kmoran@tescherspallina.com 
ddustin@tescherspallina.com 

Irwin J. Block, Esq. 
The Law Office of Irwin J. 
Block PL 
700 South Federal 
Highway 
Suite 200 
Boca Raton, Florida 
33432 
ijb@ijblegal.com  
lamb@kolawyers.com  

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., and 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.,  
2929 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 702 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 
mrmlaw@comcast.net  
mrmlaw1@gmail.com 

Donald Tescher, Esq., Tescher & 
Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com  

Peter Feaman, Esquire 
Peter M. Feaman, P.A. 
3695 W. Boynton Beach 
Blvd. 
Suite #9 
Boynton Beach, FL 33436 
Tel:  561.734.5552 
Fax: 561.734.5554 
pfeaman@feamanlaw.co
m  
service@feamanlaw.com 
mkoskey@feamanlaw.co
m 

Benjamin Brown, Esq., 
Thornton B Henry, Esq., and 
Peter Matwiczyk 
Matwiczyk & Brown, LLP 
625 No. Flagler Drive 
Suite 401 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
bbrown@matbrolaw.com  
attorneys@matbrolaw.com 
bhenry@matbrolaw.com  
pmatwiczyk@matbrolaw.com  

William H. Glasko, Esq. 
Golden Cowan, P.A. 
1734 South Dixie Highway 
Palmetto Bay, FL 33157 
bill@palmettobaylaw.com  
eservice@palmettobaylaw.com  
tmealy@gcprobatelaw.com  

Alexandra Bernstein 
3000 Washington Blvd, 
Apt 424 
Arlington, VA, 22201 
alb07c@gmail.com  

Kimberly Moran 
kmoran@tescherspallina.com  
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Michael Bernstein 
2231 Bloods Grove Circle 
Delray Beach, FL 33445 
mchl_bernstein@yahoo.com  

John P Morrissey. Esq.  
John P. Morrissey, P.A. 
330 Clematis Street 
Suite 213  
West Palm Beach, FL 
33401 
john@jmorrisseylaw.com  

Joshua, Jacob and Daniel 
Bernstein, Minors 
c/o Eliot and Candice Bernstein, 
Parents and Natural Guardians 
2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 
iviewit@iviewit.tv  

Julia Iantoni, a Minor 
c/o Guy and Jill Iantoni, 
Her Parents and Natural Guardians 
210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Carley & Max Friedstein, 
c/o Jeffrey and Lisa 
Friedstein 
Parents and Natural 
Guardians 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 6003 
Lisa@friedsteins.com   
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 

Molly Simon 
1731 N. Old Pueblo Drive 
Tucson, AZ 85745 
molly.simon1203@gmail.com 

Brian M. O'Connell, Esq. 
Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell 
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561‐832‐5900‐Telephone 
561‐833‐4209 ‐ Facsimile 
Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com; 
ifoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com; 
service@ciklinlubitz.com; 
slobdell@ciklinliibitz.com 

Pamela Beth Simon 
950 N. Michigan Avenue 
Apartment 2603 
Chicago, IL 60611 
psimon@stpcorp.com 

Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 
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Lisa Sue Friedstein 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

   

EXHIBITS 
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EXHIBIT 1 - MD NOTE 

BATES NO. EIB 000439 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000440 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000441 
02/27/2017



BATES NO. EIB 000442 
02/27/2017



 

EXHIBIT 2 - Email to Rose re Reschedule Hearings 

 

  

BATES NO. EIB 000443 
02/27/2017



1

Eliot Bernstein

From: Eliot Bernstein <iviewit5@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2016 1:05 PM
To: Alan B. Rose Esq. (mchandler@mrachek-law.com); Alan B. Rose Esq. @ Mrachek, 

Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A. (arose@mrachek-law.com); Brian M. 
O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell   
(boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com); Don Tescher; Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ 
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. (dtescher@tescherspallina.com); Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ 
Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & 
O'Connell (jfoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com); Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A. (mrmlaw@comcast.net); Peter Feaman (mkoskey@feamanlaw.com); Peter Feaman, 
Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A. (pfeaman@feamanlaw.com); Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
(rspallina@tescherspallina.com); Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A.  (steven.lessne@gray-robinson.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. 
(eservice@gunster.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. (jhoppel@gunster.com); Steven A. 
Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. (slessne@gunster.com)

Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ 
Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein 
(tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock-It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 
'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc R. 
Garber Esq.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP'

Subject: Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose Reply - RE: CORRECTION OF DATE - Voluntary Request to 
Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

Mr. Rose and Ted Bernstein,  
 
Your fraud and the frauds of all of cases you both are involved in will be fairly heard and determined.  
 
The Damages and Harm you and your Client and others have caused to the Estates and Trusts and proper Beneficiaries 
will be fairly heard and fully determined.  
 
Your words are and have been basically meaningless, except of course where you have demonstrated fraud and other 
misconduct, those words will prove to have serious meaning.  
 
Do you or your client currently Own any real property as I believe that Homestead will not be protected for fiducial 
violations, if so please attach the addresses of each?  
 
I notice and make a record on this Friday, November 11, 2016, that you continue to FAIL to provide copies of any of the 
alleged Trusts and originals you speak about.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Eliot Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot Bernstein as POA for Josh Bernstein Eliot Bernstein as Trustee for the Eliot Bernstein Family Trust 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek‐law.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 11:45 PM 

BATES NO. EIB 000444 
02/27/2017



2

To: 'Eliot Ivan Bernstein'; Marie Chandler; 'Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell '; 'Don 
Tescher'; 'Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit 
Technologies, Inc.'; 'Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell'; 'Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.'; 'Peter Feaman'; 'Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.'; 'Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Robert Spallina'; 'Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A. '; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & 
Stewart, P.A.' 
Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein (tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It 
Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc 
R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: RE: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
You have been determined to lack standing, and are in no position to object to a settlement between the 
trustees/beneficiaries of trusts, including the court‐appointed Guardian ad Litem.  
 
You have caused lengthy delays.  I already reset this for Mr. Feaman, and we intend to proceed on the settlement 
motion as set. 
 
I also am not inclined to move the status conference, but will confer with Mr. O'Connell and let you know if we are 
willing to move that hearing. 
 
 
 
    Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
    arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 
    561.355.6991 
 
 
    505 South Flagler Drive 
    Suite 600  
    West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
    561.655.2250 Phone 
    561.655.5537 Fax 
                                                           
      
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY PRIVILEGED AND 
CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS 
MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR 
COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E‐MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service (Circular 
230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments), unless 
otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the 
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue Code or (2) promoting, marketing or 
recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If you 
have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat Reader, 
available at: http://www.adobe.com 
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‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Eliot Ivan Bernstein [mailto:iviewit11@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 10:31 PM 
To: Marie Chandler; Alan Rose; Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell ; Don Tescher; 
Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; 
Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell; Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A.; Peter Feaman; Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.; Robert L. Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney 
at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ GrayRobinson, P.A. ; Steven A. 
Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
Cc: Kevin R. Hall; Barbara Stone; JoAnne M. Denison Esq.; Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline 
Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; iviewit@gmail.com; 'Marc R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster 
Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Please note the date in the subject line of the email had an incorrect date for the hearing at issue which is corrected to 
Nov 22, 2016.  Thank You, Eliot 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
 
Subject:  Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2015 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Mr. Alan Rose,  
 
I am requesting that your office voluntarily reschedule and remove from the Nov. 22, 2016 calendar your Motion in 
CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH until after Dec. 15, 2016.   
 
I have attached an updated Medical Instruction from a proper Dr. in Florida prescribing avoiding all stress until Dec. 
15th, 2016 and follow‐up care.  Your office is more than aware of this situation from the motions filed at the 4th District 
Court of Appeals.  
 
I am certain that Peter Feaman, Esq. will consent and agree on behalf of William Stansbury.  
 
Your continued "sharp practices" in general were noted and observed in your recent actions in the presently separate 
William Stansbury case under Case NO. 50 2012 CA 013933 MB AN where you filed late and improper Notice on a Friday 
afternoon for a Hearing on the following Monday and proper corrective efforts for that case are underway as well.  
 
A proper Motion in CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH will be made in the absence of your voluntary rescheduling.  
All acts of fraud will be addressed.  Eventually the wheel always comes around.  
 
Further, please provide copies of Any and All Trusts referred to in your recent motion together with a statement under 
oath as a currently licensed Florida attorney on the entire chain of custody leading to your office having possession of 
such Trust documents with an entire time line and each link in the chain of custody addressed.   
 
Thank you.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
Eliot I. Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot I. Bernstein, POA Josh Bernstein  
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL 

IN RE: EST A TE OF PROBATE DIVISION 

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, FileNo. 6'DdOll (!fOa?{p-:; 3X)(X'X~ 

Deceased. 

PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATION 
(testate Florida resident) 

Petitioner, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, alleges: ?.;~ ·-· 

::i:=. 

I . Petitioner has an interest in the above estate as the named personal repres~ntative uncer the 
co 

decedent's Will. The Petitioner's address is 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and.ftie name 
a 

and office address of petitioners attorney are set forth at the end of this Petition. 

2. Decedent, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, whose last known address was 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton, Florida 33496, whose age was 71, and whose social security number is xxx-x.x-9749, died on 

December 8, 20 I 0, at her home at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and on the date of 

death decedent was domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

3. So far as is known, the names of the beneficiaries of this estate and of decedent 's surviving 

spouse, if any, their addresses and relationship to decedent, and the dates of birth of any who are minors, are: 

NAME ADDRESS RELA TIONSHI BIRTH DATE 
p (if Minor) 

Simon L. Bernstein 7020 Lions Head Lane husband adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33496 

Ted S. Bernstein 880 Berkeley Street son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 

Pamela B. Simon 950 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 2603 daughter adult 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Eliot Bernstein 2753 NW 34th St. son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

8J.t fotm t:o. J>.).0100 

C Florid.1 Uvo~cn Stipp0n Scn"ica. 11:11::. 
Rn~'Cd Oaobc:1 I. 1991 

- I -
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Jill lantoni 

Lisa S. Friedstein 

210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 

2142 Churchill Lane 
highland Park, IL 60035 

daughter adult 

daughter adult 

4. Venue of this proceeding is in this county because decedent was a resident of Palm Beach 

County at the time of her death. 

5. Simon L. Bernstein, whose address is listed above, and who is qualified under the laws of 

the State of Florida to serve as personal representative of the decedent's estate is entitled to preference in 

appointment as personal representative because he is the person designated to serve as personal 

representative under the decedent's Will. 

6. The nature and approximate value of the assets in this estate are: tangible and intangib le 

assets with an approximate value of less than $_·Ti~ ..... 8~b _____ _ 
7. This estate will not be required to file a federal estate tax return. 

8. The original of the decedent's last will, dated May 20, 2008, is being filed simultaneously 

with this Petition with the Clerk of the Court for Palm Beach County, Florida. 

9. Petitioner is unaware of any unrevoked will or codicil of decedent other than as set forth in 

paragraph 8 . 

Petitioner requests that the decedent's Will be admitted to probate and that Simon L. 

Bernstein be appointed as personal representative of the estate of the decedent. 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing Petition for 

Adm;n;strnt;on, and the facts all~ are tru{j to the best 071nowledge and behef. 

Signed on re!] Z f I 
~ ~ ct~ 

Anomey for Pe1i1ioncr 
Florida Bar No. 0497381 
4855 Technology Way, Ste. 720 
Boca Ralon, FL 33431 
561-997-7008 

S:at Fonn No. p .. J.0100 
e F1orid:.t l..w')aJ Soppon .SC,,.ica., lot. 

Rn~al Octottr I. 1991 

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Petitioner 

- 2 -
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
  

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE  ) 
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,         ) 
                                                                     ) 
Plaintiff,                                                       )        Case No. 13 cv 3643 

                                                                     )        Honorable John Robert Blakey 

v.                                                                  )        Magistrate Mary M. Rowland 

                                                                     ) 
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE ) 
COMPANY, Eliot I. Bernstein,   ) 
Individually, and on behalf of the Minor ) 
Children JEZB, JNAB, and DEAOB, ) 
ET AL.                                 ) 
                                                                     )          

)        PETITION-MOTION FOR 

) INJUNCTION:  
)        Under the All Writs Act ( AWA ),       
)        Anti-Injunction Act ( AIA ) and Other  
)        relief  
)  
)          Third-Party Plaintiffs / Counter- 
)        Plaintiffs-Petitioners Eliot I. Bernstein,  
)         Individually and On behalf of Minor 

)         Children 

)         
)         
)         
)               

) 
                                                                     )        Filers: 

       )        Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Third-Party  
) Defendant and Counter-Plaintiff. 

 
 
 

Comes now Eliot Ivan Bernstein, being duly sworn, declares and says under oath and 
penalties of perjury as follows, on information and belief:  
 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 1 of 132 PageID #:3635

BATES NO. EIB 000454 
02/27/2017



Page 1 of 132 

INTRODUCTION  
 

1. I am over the age of 18 years and reside at 2753 NW 34th St, Boca Raton, Florida 33434, and 

am acting pro se herein.  

2. I make this Affidavit-Petition in good faith in support of an Emergency Motion for Injunctive 

Relief against all parties this District Court presently has jurisdiction over and for at least 

temporarily restraining the Florida Probate Court of Judge John Phillips by an appropriately 

tailored Order under the Anti-Injunction Act and All Writs Act under 28 USC Sec. 2283 and 28 

USC Sec. 1651(a) respectively until such time as this Court holds a Hearing and or Conference 

where Orderly Production of Discovery, Preservation of evidence, documents, records is 

obtained and where other issues such as the conflicts of interest and potential misconduct by the 

parties before this Court can be determined, determination of “side agreements” impacting the 

integrity of this Court’s litigation such as discussed in Winkler v Eli Lilly can be heard, and 

such other matters as to this Court seems just and proper.  

3. As this Court will see, with the newly discovered fraudulent company Lions Head Land Trust, 

Inc., with at least Ted Bernstein and his counsel Alan Rose who appeared for Ted Bernstein at a 

Deposition held for this Court just being discovered last week Feb. 18, 2016 as another vehicle 

of fraud to hide and secret away the transfer of assets valued in the millions is present, along 

with a series of orchestrated proceedings in the parallel litigation in the State Court including 

but not limited to attorneys Alan Rose and Steven Lessne submitting motions at a 5 Minute 

UMC motion calendar for attorneys fees in the hundreds of thousands without submitting any 

Billing statements to support, and being a flurry of motions to “wrap up” the Probate cases 

despite literally millions of dollars in assets never being accounted for there is a very real and 

imminent danger that the critical evidence, documents, records and Discovery necessary in aid 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 2 of 132 PageID #:3636
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of this Court’s own jurisdiction and integrity of this Court’s own proceedings will be 

permanently lost thus requiring this Court to now act with an appropriately tailored injunctive 

Order herein against parties already under this Court’s jurisdiction. 

4. I am specifically seeking to enjoin the parties under this Court’s jurisdiction, Ted Bernstein, 

Brian O’Connell and the Estate of Simon Bernstein, Alan Rose as Ted Bernstein’s attorney who 

represented him at a federal court Deposition herein and remains his Palm Beach attorney, 

Pamela Simon, David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein and Florida State 

Probate Judge John Phillips of the North Branch of Palm Beach County temporarily pending 

further Order of this Court and at least until proper evidence, documents and Discovery are both 

preserved and produced, until this Court sorts out conflicts of interest as set out herein and 

exercises its inherent powers to probe “side deals” compromising the integrity of this Court’s 

Jurisdiction and that such injunction should specifically include but not be limited to enjoining 

proceedings before Judge Phillips in Palm Beach County this Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 

PM Est and as this Court further deems proper.  

5. I further assert in good faith that this Court should find sufficient cause for such extra-ordinary 

exercise of the injunctive powers at least by the time it reaches that part of this complaint that 

describes  the new fraudulent company Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose are involved in secreting 

and hiding from the public record secreting multi-million dollar asset listed at $3.4 million 

allegedly sold for $1.1 Million by recent deed transfer to a false company titled Lions Head 

Land Trust, Inc, although there are further sections which describe with specificity and by  

“piece-meal” discovery the Millions in assets presently unaccounted for by these parties herein 

further justifying injunctive relief to schedule Orderly and proper discovery proceedings. 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 3 of 132 PageID #:3637
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6. Just one “piece-meal” disclosed item of documentary evidence shown later herein documents 

approximately $2.8 Million in just one of Simon Bernstein’s accounts at the time of his passing 

which to this day has never been accounted for which also does not include millions from 

other accounts and the millions of worth of Shirley Bernstein where in 5 years there has never 

been an accounting yet the core parties who brought this original action to your Court try to 

portray my parents as virtual paupers where all their records and financials and critical 

documents are “lost” which is a fraud itself.  

7. As shown throughout this complaint, the Discovery Abuses in the parallel State proceedings 

which justify exercise of this Court’s injunctive powers at this time are such that there has never 

been any coherent, complete disclosure of “Original” Trusts, Wills and related instruments nor 

any coherent presentation of the Estates and how these were managed despite sophisticated 

lawyers working in these cases Billing hundreds of thousands of dollars a clip.  

8. I submit that the naked human eye upon reviewing the piece-meal production of “copies” and 

magically timed surfacing of alleged “duplicate Originals” of the operative Trusts and other 

instruments herein can detect multiple signatures that appear “too identical’, “too evenly 

placed” on the page and multiple “identical” “Initials” such as “SB” that appear to be too 

perfectly aligned such that preservation of Original documents and all evidence becomes even 

more important in a case where proven, admitted to, documented fraud and forgery of important 

instruments in the Florida Court has already been established yet instead of the Court notifying 

any investigative authorities I am retaliated against for seeking truth and integrity in these 

proceedings.  

9. Because the amount and level of fraud is so pervasive and complex that is alleged to take place 

in and upon the Florida Court by Court Officers, Fiduciaries and Counsel and can not be stated 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 4 of 132 PageID #:3638
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in a few sentences and takes painstaking time to address, the remaining sections provide of this 

case while also supporting the motion for use of the Injunctive powers of this court also further 

provides background facts to the depth of the assets at stake, the depth of the fraud and claims 

and part of the basis upon which I will respectfully seek further Leave of this Court to amend 

my counter-cross complaints filed herein September 22, 2013 and further leave to Add parties 

but due to the continuing nearly daily distractions by the sharp, abuse of process practices in the 

Probate Court my proposed Amendments to my Cross-counterclaims are presently only in draft 

form and I respectfully seek leave of this Court to file and submit a proposed Amended 

Counter-cross complaint which not only seeks to add claims such as claims under 42 USC Sec. 

1983 but also parties as well.  

10. I ask this Court to note, however, that even in the process of submitting this Motion-Petition-

Complaint herein, I have experienced significant “downtime” at my website where the host 

Service provider that always responded timely in the past now does not respond sometimes for 

days and where the basic internet services into my home have been “down” at critical times 

where deadlines are in play and thus even this submission has been significantly delayed.  

11. I further point out that Ted Bernstein who is the one that suggested at the hospital that our father 

Simon Bernstein may have been poisoned and murdered also said he would be handling things 

with the authorities and had friend attorneys to do so and was on calls with a lawyer both from 

Greenberg Traurig and Robert Spallina and where Ted’s “storyline” of how and why he is “in 

charge” as “Trustee” has changed from day one while the delay denial of operative documents 

began day one in a case where my father’s body goes “missing” for a week allegedly out for 

autopsy at one location and where Simon Bernstein’s home computer containing years of 

valuable business records alone is found “wiped clean” on the night of his passing and where 
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the Coroner’s Report comes back on a 113 yr old male while certainly Simon Bernstein was not 

that age at the time of passing. See, Email of Ted’s Calls Sept 14, 20121.  

12. As referenced later in this complaint herein, Greenberg Traurig has been publicly identified as 

being in the middle of major lawsuits for involvement in the multi-Billion Stanford Ponzi 

scheme where Stanford monies and accounts exceeding a Million dollars for my parents is just 

one of many items Unaccounted for where Discovery abuse has further occurred.  

13. I have attempted to organize this complex set of facts in the most logical and orderly manner 

under these emergency circumstances where my family grows in increasing imminent danger as 

described herein.     

14. I have read the Local Rules and believe I have complied in good faith and provided advance 

Notice of this Emergency Application to the involved parties Electronically by Email on Friday, 

Feb. 19, 2016 as follows:  

Service Case #13-cv-03643 - Notice per Local Rule of Application on Emergency 
Motion / Injunction US District Court Hon. John Robert Blakey 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
  
Parties, Attorneys and To Whom It May Concern: 
  
I am writing to give you all as current parties and / or attorneys and representatives for 
current parties in the Illinois federal court litigation and other parties to be added to the 
federal court litigation as much advance reasonable notice as possible that I intend to 
contact  Judge Blakey’s Courtroom Deputy, Gloria Lewis, at (312) 818-6699, to make a 
request to set a hearing on an emergency motion which will seek Injunctive relief 
against all parties currently under jurisdiction of the District Court of Illinois with a 
further request to enjoin at least temporarily all proceedings in the Court of Probate 
Judge John Phillips and also add other parties to the action and other relief. 
 
I will be requesting that this application be heard no later than this Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016 Motion Calendar in Judge Blakey's Court and since my actual filings may not be 
electronically uploaded until later today and over the weekend that such request be 
deemed an Emergency and thus appropriate to hear as soon as practical. 

                                                 
1September 14, 2012 Emails Ted Tescher Spallina and Greenberg Traurig’s Jon Swergold  
www.iviewit.tv/20120914SpallinaTescherTedGreenbergTraurigSwergoldDayAfterSimonDies.pdf  
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Please advise of your availability to hear this motion for this coming Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016. 
 
Eliot I. Bernstein 
Inventor 
Iviewit Holdings, Inc. – DL 
2753 N.W. 34th St. 
Boca Raton, Florida  33434-3459 
(561) 245.8588 (o) 
(561) 886.7628 (c) 
(561) 245-8644 (f) 
iviewit@iviewit.tv 
http://www.iviewit.tv  
 

15. I assert in good faith that hearing this Motion on an Emergency basis is proper due to a series of 

extortive, abusive, orchestrated actions of continued abuse of process in the Florida Probate 

Courts and by the Florida Probate Courts in conspiracy and or acting in concert with fiduciaries, 

counsel and others that are interfering and threaten to further interfere with this Court’s 

jurisdiction and the ability to orderly decide the claims before it as there is a real and serious 

imminent threat and danger that critical evidence, documents, records, Discovery and real and 

personal properties will be permanently lost imminently preventing this Court from properly 

adjudicating claims before it while these parties are simultaneously hiding millions of dollars of 

assets as shown later herein wholly Unaccounted for  and retaliating against and threatening 

myself with the Baker Act, Jail, Contempt and now a Guardianship on my children simply for 

seeking my inheritance, seeking the truth, reporting crimes as discovered against the fiduciaries 

and counsel primarily and now the Florida Courts are in high gear retaliating against the 

exercise of my First Amendment rights to suppress my whistleblowing that has uncovered and 

proven massive frauds against me committed on and by the Florida courts and its officers, 

fiduciaries and others.  
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16. I respectfully remind this Court and Your Honor that it is my original fingerprint on the 

February 2009 Petition to the White House, White House Counsel’s Office2. USAG, FBI and a 

other investigative agencies and further that I have been interviewed with federal agents 

including but not limited to now “missing” FBI Agent Stephen Luchessi originally out of West 

Palm Beach FBI in Florida who went missing with the Iviewit case files causing my case to be 

elevated to the former Inspector General of the Department of Justice Glenn A. Fine who 

assigned a Miami field agent to my case, Harry I, Moatz the former Director of the Office of 

Enrollment of the US Patent Office who had me file charges of Fraud on the US Patent Office 

committed by my IP counsel that were members of the Federal Patent Bar that have led to a 

multi year suspension of my Intellectual Properties while investigations continue) and other 

federal agents like Ron Gardella out of the US Attorney’s Office in the SDNY ( now retired, I 

believe ), others in the SDNY US Attorney’s offices and other investigative bodies as well.  

17. The purpose for reminding Your Honor of these matters is to demonstrate that I have never been 

charged by any of these federal authorities for making a false frivolous statement or received 

adverse treatment yet in the Palm Beach County Probate proceedings I am being vilified and 

retaliated against just for pursuing my rights and those of my children of our inheritance herein 

and Technology rights while certain parties under this Court’s jurisdiction have attempted to 

have CPS take my children on a false report that came back unfounded which was initiated on 

the same day I notified this Court last May 2015 of threats against my life and this Court 

referred me to 9/11 services,  attempted through threat to Baker Act me for reporting/discussing 

fraud and crime to a “Mediator” out of Judge Phillips Court, and now are seeking to jail me and 

impose Guardianship against me this Thursday for topics like the Car bombing of my Mini-Van 

                                                 
2 February 13, 2009 Letter to Honorable President Barrack Obama 
http://www.scribd.com/doc/255176532/February-13-2009-Iviewit-Letter-to-Barrack-Obama-to-Join-Us-
Attorney-Eric-Holder-in-Iviewit-Federal-RICO-Shira-Scheindlin#scribd  
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in 2005 which was reported to the FBI and other authorities and other matters that have been 

reported to federal authorities thus retaliating against me being a Whistleblower of the Fraud on 

the Court and Fraud by the Court and its officers et al. and exercising First Amendment rights.  

18.   There have also been threats to take the home that my parents provided for my wife and 

children under a specific agreement to relocate to Boca Raton, Fl from California to be close to 

my parents and thus it is not unreasonable to suggest if I am falsey Baker acted or jailed the 

likely next moves are to take the home while I am cast away leaving my wife and children alone 

while I somehow have lost my “standing” at a 5 Minute UMC hearing in the State Court where 

no Construction Hearing has ever occurred on any of the operative documents and has elevated 

to even being blocked from filing responses to the motions in the Florida Probate Court, 

meanwhile literally years of no Accountings and Abusive discovery and “lost” items from 

sophisticated parties continues.  

Emergency: Imminent Permanent Loss of Critical Evidence. Documents, Discovery 
Necessary in Aid of this Court’s Jurisdiction: 

Status in the District Court, New and Recent Discovery of Undisclosed Conflicts of 
Interest, Feb. 18, 2016 Discovery of Fraudulent “Shell” Company to Hide Assets-Owner 

etc.  
19. While the parties are awaiting determination from this Court on the Summary Judgement 

motions filed by Plaintiffs, at least 2 scheduled Court Conferences with this Court have been re-

scheduled, yet still remaining before this Court even aside from the Summary Judgment 

motions are Petitioner Eliot Bernstein’s Answer and Counterclaims filed September 22, 2013 

asserting causes of action in Fraud, Fraud upon the Beneficiaries and Court, Abuse of Legal 

Process, Civil Conspiracy and Breach of Fiduciary Duties amongst others.  

20. On Jan. 13, 2014 in Docket Entry 71, prior Judge St. Eve issued a Minute Entry Order which 

provided in part as follows, “Discovery is hereby stayed until the proper Trustee is determined” 

thus acknowledging that determination of a “proper Trustee” is an issue in the case, which 
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remains disputed. The Trustee/Trust/Beneficiaries/Policy issues remains undetermined presently 

and this Court’s jurisdiction is imminently threatened by the permanent loss of evidence, 

documents and discovery by the parties orchestrating proceedings in Florida where this 

evidence and the parties in possession of such evidence should be enjoined herein.  

21. This Court itself, Hon. John G. Blakey, presiding, issued a Minute Entry Order on May 22, 

2015 under Docket Entry 185 that further provided in part as follows, “Bernstein's 

representations to the contrary notwithstanding, at this time the Court is unable to say that 

anyone has a clear right to the proceeds deposited by Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, 

let alone what each interested party's share should be.“ 

22. The same core parties and nucleus of operative facts are present in this US District Court 

litigation as the Probate matters in Florida and I further seek leave to file for Declaratory relief 

herein on the Trusts and Operating companies which are non-probate, and suggest judicial 

economy in this complex case with parties from multiple jurisdictions will ultimately be served 

by this Court taking jurisdiction over the Construction and validity of all the Trusts herein 

which are non-probate anyway and for Construction and Validity of the operative Wills as will 

be shown if I am granted leave to Amend my cross-counter complaint.   

23. As will be shown, just on Discovery abuses alone where Discovery and the Denial of Discovery 

has been used as a “weapon”  by the Plaintiffs and other parties in the related proceedings in the 

State Probate Court of Florida, there is a real and imminent danger that the Integrity of this 

Court’s judgment and path to judgment will be fundamentally impaired by the permanent loss 

of evidence and discovery materials justifying the exercise of the extra-ordinary relief under the 

All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act. 
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24. This evidence and documents and Discovery which “should answer” the outstanding questions 

before this Court of where the Original Trusts are, where the Original Policies are, where the 

Original records and where business records are that go along with Simon Bernstein’s life who 

made millions per year in the Insurance industry for decades and all items are directly relevant 

to the Life Insurance claim and  my counter-crossclaims.  

25. Instead, in the Florida Probate Court Simon Bernstein is falsely being portrayed as nearly a 

“pauper” with virtually no assets left and “Missing” and “losing” all ( or substantially all )  

Business documents and dispositive documents meticulously kept for Decades, at least 

according to Plaintiffs and the counsels working with Plaintiffs.  

26. Yet proper Discovery and Depositions would and should prove the contrary which is why this 

Court must act to preserve this evidence in the hands of multiple parties and some unknown 

parties where Discovery is necessary to specify the appropriate party and entity.  

27. Further, that sufficient evidence will be shown to justify this Court exercising its inherent 

powers to make inquiry of the parties and respective counsels about“side agreements” and other 

“agreements” outside the record of any proceedings impairing the integrity of proceedings in 

this Court similar to the inquiry discussed in Winkler v. Eli Lilly & Co., 101 F.3d 1196, 1202 

(7th Cir. 1996).  

28. This Court should be well aware of the “missing” and “lost” Trusts and Policies and business 

records which surround the original claim filed in this Court by the core party Plaintiffs and 

attorneys acting on their behalf which itself cut out Eliot Bernstein and his children as named, 

necessary parties tortiously attempting to deprive and deny rights of inheritance and expectancy 

to Eliot Bernstein and his children without their knowledge, which will be established as a 

pattern and practice that started the minute Simon Bernstein passed.  
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29. The need for proper Discovery and production and depositions should be plain and obvious to 

further aid this Court in it’s own exercise of  jurisdiction rendering a properly tailored 

Injunction under the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act proper at this time.  

Florida Probate Proceedings Scheduled for Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016, Judge Phillips at 3:15 
PM EST on Guardianship, Gag Orders, Jail-Contempt against Eliot etc Should be 

Temporarily Enjoined under All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act 
30. While I respectfully assert to this Court that ultimately the entirety and or virtual entirety of 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts are part of an orchestrated series of abusive and 

Constitutionally defective set of actions including continuing and ongoing Discovery abuse, this 

immediate appearance before Judge John L. Phillips in the North Branch of Palm Beach County 

should now be at least temporarily enjoined for all the reasons set forth herein until further 

Order of this Court.  

31. As will be shown herein, the entirety of these parallel proceedings in the Florida State Probate 

Court has been ripe with Discovery Abuse each step of the way, where documents, discovery 

and evidence are either completely denied and ignored, substantially delayed for years, 

fraudulently altered and forged and entered into the record and turned over in a “piece-meal” 

orchestrated fashion thwarting and frustrating any fair justice where, like in this District Court 

with the same core parties  where “magical” draft trust documents appear at critical times yet 

No Originals turned over for inspection or comparison and no law firms can be identified to 

have produced them.  

32. It is further noted that the original Curator attorney Ben Brown of the Simon Bernstein Estate 

never received Original productions from resigning attorneys Tescher & Spallina except for 

documents on Eliot Bernstein’s home and Ben Brown specifically complained about the piece-
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meal fashion records were turned over such as records from JP Morgan etc. and unsigned tax 

returns.   See, Ben Brown emails on Production and missing TPP.3  

33. Tescher & Spallina did turn over 7,000+ ( seven-thousand ) plus pages Bate Stamped copies of 

alleged documents but these were copies on a Zip drive turned over to the Curator at least 

according to Spallina after Judge Colin orchestrated for them to have at least 10 months to 

create / fabricate/ forge, redact records and evidence after my original May 6, 2013 Emergency 

Motion4 to seize all Records was filed after a series of fraudulent documents were discovered in 

the Estate of my mother Shirley Bernstein. The Emergency Motion of May 2013 was 

incorporated by reference in my September 2013 Answer and Cross-Counter claims in this 

District Court where I specifically pleaded for Discovery5.    

34. Many of these documents were “fluff” pages where the actual Account Statements were 

missing, not in sequential order etc and where several instances of irregularities in the Bates 

Stamps numbers themselves exist.  

35. Further, that Ben Brown had claimed to have obtained IRS Certified Returns he ordered months 

earlier for Simon Bernstein as Curator in 2014 and then suddenly died at a young age of 50 after 

resigning as Curator and to this day, successor PR Brian O’Connell’s office has Never obtained 

or Disclosed such IRS records from Ben Brown or independently obtained these from the IRS 

despite claiming they had ordered them months ago upon his getting his Letters as these records 

are critical as shown herein, just another example of Discovery Abuse throughout this case 

justifying use of the All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act at this time.  
                                                 
3Ben Brown Emails Re TPP, JP Morgan and Production  
www.iviewit.tv/BenBrownEmailsForFedInjunctionBlakey.pdf  
4May 06, 2013 Emergency Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20Petition%20F
reeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20LOW.pdf  
5September 22, 2013 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130922%20Eliot%20Answer%20and%20Cross%
20Claim%20Northern%20District%20Illinois%20Simon%20v%20Heritage%20Jackson%20Insurance.pdf  
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36. Such records are critical for a variety of reasons and it is asserted such Discovery will help 

show the manipulation and frauds upon even this District Court by the core parties herein under 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

New Conflicts of Interest emerge showing prior Judge Colin with substantial business 
interests with La Salle Bank-Trust who should be added to the District Court action and 
further Undisclosed Conflicts with PR Brian O’Connell for the Simon Bernstein Estate 

who is already under this Court’s Jurisdiction  
37. New evidence has only recently been discovered in these last weeks January-February 2016 as a 

result of investigations by the Palm Beach Post and Investigative Reporter John Pacenti6 into 

conflicts of interest and improper seizing of persons and property under Guardianship / Probate 

programs run by Palm Beach Judges Martin Colin and David French7 in other cases also 

involving Brian O’Connell and a former attorney for Ted named John Pankauski alleging a host 

of criminal and civil misconduct, which have revealed Judicial Financial Disclosures of Judge 

Martin Colin demonstrating a long term financial business relationship during all relevant years 

herein and involving several hundred thousand dollars of Loans with LaSalle Bank / LaSalle 

Trust which were never Disclosed in the underlying Probate cases related herein. 

38. La Salle Bank -Trust and-or whoever is the proper “successor” is directly implicated in the 

actions presently before this federal Court where I have raised in Summary Judgement that La 

Salle should be added as a party and Discovery is needed with respect to the original Life 

Insurance policy on the breach of contract action as La Salle is named as the Primary 

                                                 
6 January 14, 2016 “Judge’s finances show history of unpaid debt, IRS liens, foreclosures” By John 
Pacenti - Palm Beach Post Staff Writer 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/news/news/judges-finances-show-history-of-unpaid-debt-irs-li/np4rH/  
7Guardianship Series - Guardianship a Broken Trust http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-
colin-savitt/  
and Guardianship Probate Series Palm Beach Post Compiled PDF 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Pacenti%20Articles%20Compiled%20as%20of%20Feb%2002%202016L.pdf (Large 
and Sun Sentinel re Colin and wife Savitt 
http://www.sun-sentinel.com/opinion/editorials/fl-editorial-guardianship-law-20160129-
story.html#ifrndnlocgoogle  
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Beneficiary of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy owned by deceased Simon Bernstein 

brought to this Court by the same operative parties who have conveniently left LaSalle out of 

these federal proceedings in the same manner I and my minor children were left out as 

necessary parties in the action before this federal court. See, Summary Judgement Eliot 

Bernstein8.  

39. I note that the carrier Jackson in this Court suggested that Bank of America was the proper 

“successor” in interest in this case and information shows Bank of America is the entity that 

acquired LaSalle Bank where Judge Colin is shown by his own Financial Disclosures to have 

hundreds of thousands in Loans with La Salle at least for years 2008 to the end of 2014 thus 

during all relevant times herein.  

40. In the recent weeks leading up to the present, a series of Investigative Journal articles have been 

published by the Palm Beach Post showing a widespread abuse in the Palm Beach Court system 

specifically involving Judge Martin Colin where allegations of Double-billing by “inside” law 

firms, the “taking” of Guardian’s Assets “prior to Court approval”, and Undisclosed conflicts 

of interest are alleged.  

41. The allegations by the Palm Beach Post are remarkably similar to claims I have made for years 

while orchestrated Discovery abuses have occurred from the first days after my father Simon 

Bernstein’s passing.  

“The savings of incapacitated seniors flow into the household of Palm Beach 
County Circuit Judge Martin Colin. This occurs courtesy of Colin’s wife — 
Elizabeth “Betsy” Savitt. She serves as a professional guardian, appointed by 
judges to make decisions for adults who no longer can take care of themselves. . . 
. . . . . . . Savitt has taken money from the elderly people whose lives she 
controls without first getting a judge’s approval as well as double-billed their 
accounts, a Palm Beach Post investigation has uncovered in court records. 

                                                 
820150608 Amended Redo Summary Judgement 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150608%20FINAL%20AMENDED%20REDO%2
0Response%20to%20Summary%20Judgement%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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Families of some of the seniors say the judge’s wife and her attorneys drum up 
unnecessary litigation that runs up fees, benefiting herself, the judge and her 
lawyers. Savitt doesn’t appear before her husband, but Judge Colin does oversee 
other guardianship cases where he is responsible for safeguarding the finances 
and well-being of these “wards” of the court. Colin’s colleague, Circuit Judge 
David French who lunches with him regularly, has overseen almost two-thirds of 
Savitt’s cases. Some lawyers who have opposed Savitt in Judge French’s 
courtroom say he didn’t disclose that Savitt is the wife of a fellow judge or his 
social connections to the couple. . . . . . . . .The lawyers Savitt has hired to 
represent her also practiced before her husband in other cases, where he had the 
power to approve their fees. A former Florida Supreme Court chief justice and a 
law professor say this constitutes, at minimum, an appearance of impropriety and 
should be investigated. 
“This conflict puts the whole courthouse under a cloud because it raises so many 
questions and there are no answers forthcoming. And that is why we have a 
judicial canon on the appearance of impropriety, so there are no questions like 
this,” Nova Southeastern law Professor Robert Jarvis said.” See,  

“His wife’s job as a professional guardian leaves Judge Colin compromised, 
handcuffing him from fully doing his job, The Post found. He’s recused himself 
from 115 cases that involve his wife’s lawyers in the last six months of 2015 
after The Post started asking questions in its investigation. 

“When you have a judge suddenly recuse himself of so many cases, it certainly 
sends up a red flag,” Jarvis said. “How did a judge allow himself to be put in 
such a position? I have never heard of a judge doing such a thing.” 

“Savitt often hires attorneys Hazeltine, Ellen Morris and John Pankauski  prolific 
practitioners in elder law. They or members of their firms practiced in front of 
Colin before he began recusing himself from their cases last year. From 2009 to 
2014, Colin’s recusals totaled 30. Since the beginning of July, he’s taken himself 
off 133 cases — 115 involving his wife’s lawyers. 

Hazeltine, Morris and Pankauski or their firms — as well as the guardians they 
represent — have had fees in non-Savitt cases repeatedly approved by Judge 
Colin, The Post found.” 

“Judge Colin and his wife have socialized with one of the judges she appears in 
front of regularly, The Post has learned. 

Colin and Circuit Judge David French eat lunch together nearly every day. Colin 
and French co-hosted a trivia night9 in May for the South Palm Beach Bar 
Association. The event was co-sponsored by Pankauski’s firm. French did not 
return repeated attempts for comment.10” 

                                                 
9 Trivia Night Invatation https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/2623271-trivia-night.html and 
http://www.bellersmith.com/blog/4th-annual-trivia-night  
10  February 02, 2016 Palm Beach Post Series “Guardianship a Broken Trust” by Reporter John Pacenti 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin/   
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http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin  

42. In this case, BOTH Judges Colin and French were involved in the underlying Estates with Judge 

Colin “assigned” to the Shirley Bernstein case and Judge French originally “assigned” to the 

Estate of Simon Bernstein case and where later the French case was improperly assigned to 

Colin by Colin with no necessary hearing to transfer had by French, as it was scheduled on the 

day before Christmas when the court was closed, leaving Eliot and Candice at an empty court 

building and then when rescheduled Colin appeared in French’s stead and ruled for French to 

transfer the case to himself.  

43. In another blatant conflict, I consulted extensively with attorney Pankauski also mentioned in 

the Post articles as involved in cases with Judge Colin’s wife Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine 

regarding the estate and trust cases and was in the process of trying to raise a Retainer when 

Pankauski turned around and showed up at a Hearing with Ted Bernstein and continued to 

represent Ted Bernstein in front of Judge Colin for several months. Judge Colin had denied a 

motion to Disqualify attorney Pankauski written by attorney Peter Feaman, Pankauski being 

prominently mentioned above in the Palm Beach articles11.   

44. Even more important is that when I first filed my original May 6, 2015 “Emergency Motion” 

after first learning of the extensive Fraudulent documents being used in the Shirley Bernstein 

Estate case involving attorneys Tescher & Spallina and their paralegal Kimberly Moran, Judge 

Colin who was only “assigned” to Shirley Bernstein’s case simultaneously came in and Denied 

the Motion as an Emergency in both the Shirley Bernstein case and then “stepped over” to 

                                                 
11 June 23, 2014 Motion Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140623%20FINAL%20SINGED%20PRINTED%2
0Motion%20to%20Remove%20Rose%20Theodore%20and%20Pankauski%20Low.pdf  
and 
June 30, 2014 Motion to Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140630%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0MOTION%20TO%20REMOVE%20JOHN%20PANKAUSKI%20ESQ.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 17 of 132 PageID #:3651

BATES NO. EIB 000470 
02/27/2017



Page 17 of 132 

Judge French’s case for Simon Bernstein and issued the Order denying this Motion12 as an 

Emergency in the Simon Bernstein case.  

45. Despite filing this Emergency Motion in May of 2013 in the State Probate Court in Florida to in 

part seize and obtain the DISCOVERY and DOCUMENTS in the case to be secured for 

forensic review, over 3.5 years later the Documents and Records and evidence have not been 

fully produced or seized or disclosed and to this day there are named Trusts in existing Trusts 

that I have never seen before and Trusts for my children created on the day my father died that I 

am being sued as Trustee of in the Shirley Trust case under which I have never seen nor have 

they ever been produced.   

46. This Emergency Motion of May 2013 was incorporated by reference into my Answer and 

Counterclaims13 filed with this US District Court in September of 2013 and the evidence and 

documents therein are necessary in aid of this Court’s jurisdiction and my counter-cross claims 

expressly plead for Discovery in this Court which is in jeopardy of being permanently lost from 

the actions of the State actors and courts.   

47. This relationship between Judge Colin and French and Judge Colin “stepping over” into Judge 

French’s case to Deny my Emergency is directly relevant to proceedings herein as it relates to 

when Judge Colin had “knowledge” that Simon Bernstein was Deceased which relates to the 

Fraud exposed in his court committed by Tescher & Spallina and their legal assistant and notary 

public Kimberly Moran with Ted Bernstein involved with Tescher & Spallina at all times 

relevant therein and Spallina and Tescher acting as his counsel in his alleged roles as fiduciary 

                                                 
12May 08, 2013 Order Denying Emergency in Simon Estate signed by wrong Judge Colin instead of 
French and Order Denying Emergency in Shirley Estate 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130508%20Order%20Denying%20Petition
%20and%20Amended%20Order%20Denying%20Petit.pdf 
13September 21, 2013 Answer and Cross Claim Illinois Federal Court Judge Amy St, Eve 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130921%20FINAL%20Eliot%20Answer%20Jack
son%20Natl%20Simon%20Estate%20Heritage%20Spallina188287%20HIGH.pdf  
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in Shirley’s estate and trust and also being big clients of each other, where Ted brought Spallina 

and Tescher to Simon Bernstein in order to secure life insurance clients in return from Tescher 

and Spallina.  

Undisclosed Conflicts of PR Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta involved in cases with 
Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and Savitt’s attorney Hazeltine at same time 

O’Connell is Recommended as Successor PR by Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman 

48. Recent records obtained as a result of the Palm Beach Post Investigation show that attorneys 

Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta where Brian O’Connell became appointed in the Simon 

Bernstein Estate as the new PR upon recommendation of Creditor William Stansbury’s attorney 

Peter Feaman on or around June of 2014 now show that Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta 

were involved in that same time frame with at least one case involving Judge Martin Colin’s 

wife Elizabeth Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine in the Probate Case of Albert Vasallo14,  CASE 

N0.:502014MH001432XXXXSB .  

49. Said conflicts of interest were never Disclosed by Judge Martin Colin, Brian O’Connell, Joielle 

Foglietta nor Creditor attorney Peter Feaman, Esq., IF Mr. Feaman knew of this which is 

presently unknown.   

50. As this District Court is or should be aware, attorney Brian O’Connell is under this Court’s 

jurisdiction having been granted Intervenor status in the Illinois Life Insurance Litigation on 

behalf of the Estate of Simon Bernstein.  

51. Yet instead of taking diligent action to secure and obtain Original records, documents, evidence 

and Discovery by Brian O’Connell which was Ordered by Judge Colin Feb. 18, 2014, and 

despite the issues in the Illinois litigation involving the “Missing” Trusts, “Missing” Insurance 

policies, and “Missing” business records that would or should show or lead to the truth of 

                                                 
14 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
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matters, the O’Connell office has sat silent obtaining virtually no Discovery and records while 

acting as PR, denying Eliot production requests and opposing motions for discovery and all the 

while stating he has been working on a voluminous production request to send from the day he 

was commissioned and which remains incomplete as of this day and never sent out to the 

parties.  

52. O’Connell also failed to do a court ordered inventorying of Simon’s office possessions at his 

office location and it was later learned that Ted had been evicted and was found loading trucks 

in the night by the landlord and nothing remains at that site and the items of Personal Property 

are now missing with Alan Rose turning over to O’Connell two boxes of plaques of Simon’s 

claiming that was all there was after 3 years that no one had ever inventoried his businesses, his 

computer files, records and personal properties for multiple companies.  I am aware of several 

items of personal property that are missing and were not inventoried that were in Simon’s 

office, including but not limited to, gifts from me and William Stansbury to Simon. 

53. Meanwhile, as shown in the Summary Judgment process before this Court, LaSalle Bank where 

it is now newly Discovered that Judge Colin has hundreds of thousands of dollars in business-

mortgage loans, was allegedly never contacted in the Life Insurance process despite being 

named as Primary Beneficiary all the while Judge Martin Colin “controlled” actions in the 

Probate Court somehow forcing Creditor William Stansbury to pay for the costs of Illinois 

litigation on behalf of the Estate, which could or should be a Conflict situation from the start, 

while simultaneously playing some “sham” of a game that Stansbury otherwise has no 

“Standing” to be in the Florida Probate cases and file petitions to remove Ted as an unqualified 

not validly serving trustee based on alleged criminal misconduct, major breaches of fiduciary 

duties and more.  
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54. A flurry of motions were filed in the State Court to discontinue William Stansbury’s obligation 

to pay for the Estate’s federal Illinois counsel and enter into a new “top-loaded” retainer by the 

Estate for the federal Illinois litigation right around the times this Court’s was about to hold a 

Scheduled conference reflective of some form of undisclosed “agreement” between the 

O’Connell firm, Peter Feaman, the Illinois counsel and likely Alan Rose-Ted Bernstein (again 

wholly excluding Eliot on any proposed settlements or other agreements) while the same 

attorneys were orchestrating other State Court proceedings so that a “Validity” Trial would 

proceed with no licensed attorney to challenge Alan Rose and Ted Bernstein despite the fact 

that Peter Feaman had written to O’Connell in Aug. 201415 advising him of his “absolute duty” 

to move the court to Remove Ted Bernstein as trustee for waste of assets, unaccounted for 

assets and other. See Feaman and O’Connell Motions on Payment of Illinois Litigation.  

55. Yet, attorney Feaman never took any follow-up with O’Connell to this date some 19 Months 

later and O’Connell failed to participate in an orchestrated “one-day” “Validity” trial on 

Simon’s Estate documents leaving the Estate without representation and failing to prosecute the 

already filed Answer to the Trust Construction/Validity Complaint  stating Ted Bernstein. was 

not a validly serving Trustee under the Simon Trust, as stated,  

“AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE 

1. First Affirmative Defense- Lack of Standing- Ted Bernstein lacks the 
requisite standing as he is not validly serving as Trustee of the Simon Trust, is 
not a beneficiary of the Simon Trust, and is not representing any minor child 
that is a beneficiary of the Simon Trust.16”  
 

                                                 
15 August 29, 2014, Feaman Letter to O’Connell Regarding Ted 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140829%20Feaman%20Stansbury%20Letter%2
0to%20Brian%20O'Connell.pdf  
16 February 17, 2015 O’Connell Answer Affirmative Defense Ted is not a validly serving Trustee 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150217%20Answer%20%20Affirmative%20Defe
nses%20O'Connell%20States%20Ted%20is%20NOT%20VALID%20TRUSTEE.pdf  
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56. Ted was allegedly appointed Successor Trustee by Spallina and Tescher after they resigned after 

admitting fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust that benefited Ted directly and while acting as 

Ted’s counsel and where the Shirley Trust Successor provision Tescher and Spallina drafted 

states that the Successor can not be related to the issuer Simon and where further the Trust 

states that TED IS PREDECEASED FOR ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 

TRUST.  

57. These facts alone fundamentally compromise and call into question the actions of the parties 

and attorneys before this US District Court justifying use of the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act injunctive powers and the Inherent Powers doctrine to at minimum Enjoin the 

parties and Florida case until Orderly proceedings and Conference and Inquiry made be made 

by this District Court.  

Discovery Abuse - Tescher & Spallina Records never properly turned over in excess of 2 
years with no action taken by O’Connell, Foglietta  

 

58.  Despite Judge Colin having actual knowledge of Fraud upon his Court involving Spallina and 

Tescher in the Shirley Bernstein case and having to have Actual knowledge that Simon 

Bernstein was Deceased at least as of May 2013 when Judge Colin “steps into” Judge French’s 

shoes to Deny my Emergency Motion in the Simon Bernstein case where Judge French was the 

assigned Judge, Judge Colin fails to Order for several months any Inquiry of the Attorneys and 

parties before his Court and denies further motions by Eliot Bernstein until finally it becomes 

known that Tescher & Spallina paralegal and employee Kimberly Moran is under investigation 

and has made admissions about the forgery and fraud17 and finally Orders a hearing for Sept. 

13, 2013.  

                                                 
17September 04, 2013 Motion to Freeze et al.  
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59. Yet the bulk of the Hearing is a sham where Judge Colin “dances” around the issue of when it 

becomes known that Simon Bernstein had been Deceased at the time the fraudulent filings were 

made, dances around who filed what and why and proceeds to let Robert Spallina off the hook 

from answering virtually any direct questions of his involvement in the fraud of using  

Deceased Simon Bernstein to act in the present to Close the Estate of Shirley Bernstein while 

simultaneously permitting Ted Bernstein to appear as a “Trustee” for Shirley Bernstein on this 

date. 

60. Yet Judge Colin had to have knowledge that Ted Bernstein knew of the Fraud or learned of the 

fraud since Ted Bernstein had not signed ANY Waiver prior to the April 9, 2012 date when 

Robert Spallina fraudulently creates a Petition for Discharge allegedly signed by Simon 

Bernstein on that date which could not have been possible or true since the Petition references 

Waivers being obtained as Signed Waivers that clearly that had not yet been signed (one not 

until after Simon passed) and Ted also knew that he had never notarized the Waiver that 

Kimberly Moran had fraudulently notarized and forged in his name and yet Judge Colin took no 

action to even inquire of Ted Bernstein and permits him to continue to act as “Trustee” and 

even after stating he had enough evidence of fraud to read Ted and his counsel Tescher and 

Spallina their Miranda Warnings at the first hearing, and then promotes Ted after to Personal 

Representative in the Shirley Estate which was reopened by Colin due to the fraud committed 

by Ted’s counsel and which fraud benefited Ted and his family directly.  Ted had been acting  

without Letters from the Court as PR at the time his mother’s estate was closed by his deceased 

father illegally and acting without letters from September 12, 2012 until October 2013 when 

Letters of Administration were issued and when he found out what his attorneys did in forging 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130904%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINT
ED%20FILED%20Motion%20to%20Freeze%20Estates%20of%20Shirley%20Due%20to%20Admitted%
20Notary%20Fraud.pdf  
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and fraudulently notarizing documents and submitting them to the Court as part of a Fraud on 

the Court, Ted took no actions to report the matters or seize all pertinent and relevant 

documents for analysis and to this day claims never to have the original trusts and wills he 

operates under and that he did nothing to validate the authenticity of them.  See Dec. 15, 2015 

Transcript18. 

61. Ted is close personal friends and business associates with Tescher and Spallina who brought his 

counsel Tescher and Spallina into the Bernstein family in order to get insurance business clients 

from them.  

62. Yet all of this begs the question and should have forced Judge Colin to question that IF Ted 

Bernstein was in Fact the Trustee and PR of Shirley’s Estate after Simon Bernstein passed 

shown by some proper Original operative document, then Why wasn’t Ted Bernstein acting 

after Simon passed with the Tescher Spallina firm to “close” the Estate or take whatever action 

was necessary instead of fraudulently using Deceased Simon Bernstein on documents to do so?  

63. It is noted for this US District Court that on or about Nov. 5, 2012, the same day an Ex Parte 

communication from Judge Colin is memorialized to attorney Robert Spallina’s office regarding 

filings in the Shirley Bernstein Estate, my attorney Christine Yates was attempting to get 

Documents from Robert Spallina’s Office relating to the Trusts, Wills, standard documents that 

Beneficiaries are entitled to19 yet Christine Yates is told by Spallina’s Office that there was no 

Bernstein case or client?  

                                                 
18 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
19November 06, 2012 Christine Yates Letter Stating Spallina claimed he did not know Bernstein despite 
several months of meetings with Bernstein family. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121106%20Yates%20letter%20re%20Spallina%
20claiming%20he%20does%20not%20know%20Bernstein.pdf  
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64. It is noted for this US District Court that this is an ongoing pattern and practice to deny me Eliot 

Bernstein and my children Counsel of our choice as each time I have had an attorney such as 

Yates there is Discovery Abuse in getting documents to review and handle the case with Yates 

being so bullied by the Spallina office that she later resigned or where such as Pankauski I end 

up consulting with an attorney that ends up working for and with Ted Bernstein or as with 

Branden Pratt who attends an evidentiary hearing regarding the fraudulent documents of Moran 

and states he and others do not want to put Moran on the stand despite her being present as they 

did not want to throw her under the bus, the exact opposite strategy Pratt had recommended 

immediately prior to and in preparation for the hearing.  

65. A similar event happened with Steven Lessne himself who is now pursuing a Guardianship 

against me with Alan Rose before Judge Phillips on February 25, 2016 at 3:15pm where Lessne 

obtained confidential valuable information from myself when we first spoke without fully 

disclosing who he was really working for and in fact concealing and lying about his 

representation of my family and ended up being counsel to Janet Craig, Manager of BFR for 

Oppenheimer and Trustee for the children’s trusts, all of these attorneys whom should be added 

to the District Court case on an amended complaint for good and just cause.  

66. That part of the improper basis for Guardianship itself is the fact that I have refused for myself 

and children to take funds which are Part of a Fraud such as funds from the sale of the Shirley 

Condo when Ted Bernstein had not been approved as any Trustee at the time of sale and not 

only had Original documents never been turned over but no proper Validity hearing had ever 

occurred and still has never occurred and thus imposed reasonable conditions on any funds that 

I would accept that neither I nor my children would be immersed in nor further fraud nor would 

we be liable as a result for accepting such funds. Yet for this type of action the parties are now 
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trying to take further control and block me off from Any ability to file and get Discovery by 

seeking a Guardianship and denying me standing and attempting to now claim I am not a 

beneficiary with no hearings to determine such and where I am clearly a beneficiary in the 

Shirley IRREVOCABLE Trust.   

67. This Ex Parte Communication of Nov. 5, 2012 was somehow not Docketed with Judge Colin’s 

Court until Nov. 6, 2012 as prominently noted in my May 2015 Motion for Mandatory 

Disqualification of Judge Colin20 and voiding of his Orders in part due to Fraud On and Fraud 

By his court, which was denied as legally insufficient by Colin but then leading to the sua 

sponte “Recusal” within 24 hours that further entails Judge Colin “steering” the Transfer and 

Re-Assignment of the case to the North Branch of Palm Beach County after his recusal.  

68. As shown in the mandatory Disqualification Motion against Judge Colin, Colin had proceeded 

for 2 years since my original May 2013 Emergency Motion, never holding Validity hearings, 

never requiring Accountings which to this day have never occurred in the Shirley Bernstein case 

and are incomplete missing years of accounting in Simon, never addressing Ted Bernstein’s 

involvement and knowledge  in the Tescher Spallina frauds while meanwhile using what now 

appears as the Standard Modus Operandi by attempting to “Force” me to take Distributions 

from the improper Sale of Shirley’s Condo sold by Ted Bernstein even before the Sept. 2013 

hearing, thus the standard M.O. of “taking” and “disposing” of the assets first, then trying to 

retroactively “approve” by Court order.  This occurred even where what is claimed as the 

Shirley Bernstein Trust specifically states that Ted is considered PREDECEASED FOR ALL 

PURPOSES OF DISPOSITIONS of the trust.  

                                                 
20 May 14, 2015 Mandatory Disqualification Motion Judge Martin Colin 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150514%20FINAL%20Motion%20for
%20Disqualification%20Colin%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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69. I thereafter filed a Petition for All Writs in the nature of Prohibition and Mandamus21 about 

these actions of Judge Colin in improperly “steering” the case as a Material Fact Witness and 

Potential Counter Defendant which ultimately lead to the case going to one Judge Coates who 

not only happened to be a former Proskauer Rose partner but later file review shows that as a 

Proskauer Partner Coates himself had “Billed22” as part of the original Iviewit - Proskauer 

“Billing case before Judge Labarga” whereby Coates billed to Eliot’s companies for time 

relating to SEC work after learning the Iviewit technologies had been deemed the “Holy Grail” 

and “Priceless” worth billions upon billions of dollars, claimed by by leading engineers at a 

company, Real 3D, Inc. (Intel, Lockheed and Silicon Graphics owned) that Proskauer 

introduced Iviewit to for a technology review.  

70. Before this, however, several more months passed by after Colin held the sham Sept. 2013 

hearings knowing of serious fraud in his court where six counts of forgery occur where Tescher 

& Spallina are allowed by Colin to remain in Custody and Control of all of the Documents, 

Originals, Evidence of Simon and Shirley Bernstein after Spallina claimed in the September 13, 

2013 hearing that he knew of no other frauds in the estates and trusts than the forgeries and 

fraudulent notarizations that Moran did.  

                                                 
21 ORIGINAL ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf   
REDO OF ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%20Writs%2
0Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20D
isqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
22 Judge Coates Billing Iviewit as Proskauer Rose Partner for Securities Work and Estate Planning of 
Stock 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Coates%20Billing%20Iviewit%20Holdings%20as%2
0Proskauer%20Partner%20on%20Iviewit%20Clean.pdf  
and  
Proskauer notes referring to Coates involvement with Iviewit 
www.iviewit.tv/ProskauerCoatesTriggs.pdf  
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71. Yet Spallina concealed from the Hearing Record on Sept. 13, 2013  other frauds he had done 

and that were later admitted to by Spallina to the Palm Beach Sheriff’s23 where he admits 

having fraudulently altered Shirley’s Trust to benefit Ted’s family and for months moved the 

court and retaliated against Eliot in pleading after pleading and finally under PBSO 

investigation admitted his felony alteration and creation of a Fraudulent Shirley Trust.   

72. Despite having admitted to fraudulently altering a Trust document and being directly involved 

with fraudulent documents filed in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein before Judge Colin through 

his law firm, ultimately in January of 2014 Judge Colin simply lets Tescher & Spallna “resign” 

after they admitted to the Bernstein family that they had fraudulently altered the Shirley Trust 

document and mailed it to Eliot’s minor children’s counsel24 (making fraudulent changes to 

include Ted’s children as beneficiaries despite Ted and his lineal descendants being considered 

Predeceased for all purposes of the Shirley Trust) . 

73. On February 18, 2014 Judge Colin issues an Order for Tescher & Spallina as follows: “By 

March 4, 2014 the resigning co-Personal Representatives shall deliver to the successor 

fiduciary all property of the Estate, real, personal, tangible or intangible, all of the documents 

and records of the Estate and all records associated with any property of the Estate, 

                                                 
23 PBSO Sheriff Report Page 1-8 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140912%20Sheriff%20and%20Coroner%20Repo
rts.pdf 
24 Attorney Christine Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott had to be hired by Eliot to get Estate and Trust 
Documents from Tescher and Spallina due to their refusal to give such documents to Beneficiaries or 
Interested Parties from day one and when they were finally forced months later by Yates to turn over 
records they sent documents that have been proven and admitted to be forged and fraudulently 
notarized by their offices and some of those submitted to the Florida probate court as part of an 
elaborate fraud on the court to seize Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts of Simon and 
Shirley, fraudulently alter documents and begin to loot the estates of millions upon millions of dollars, in 
complex legal frauds and all the while refusing documents, losing documents, stealing documents from 
the estate, no transparency and no accountings.  . 
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regardless of whether such property has been previously distributed, transferred, abandoned, 

or otherwise disposed of.” ( emphasis added ) See, Feb. 18, 2014 Order of Judge Colin25.    

74. It is clear from the Vasallo records herein26 that Brian O’Connell was already working closely 

with Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and attorney Hazeltine by the time Brian O’Connell 

was appointed successor PR by Judge Colin over Simon Bernstein’s Estate in July of 2014 or at 

least on or about the same time. 

O’Connell, Foglietta Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses intertwined with Alan Rose 
and Steven Lessne, also Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses; Intertwined with 

Spallina, Colin fraud and the Stanford Ponzi fraud; Orchestration to avoid Discovery and 
Original Documents before Judge Phillips 

75. It is clear that compliance with the Feb. 2014 Order against Tescher & Spallina was never 

determined by the time O’Connell was appointed as PR and to this very day there still has been 

no Compliance hearing on this Discovery tantamount to continuing Discovery Abuse and 

Discovery as a Weapon justifying exercise of powers under the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act.  

76. I have made and filed multiple requests for Discovery27 and production throughout the Florida 

State Court litigation which has been denied to such an extent as to be Abuse of Discovery. 

                                                 
25February 18, 2014 Order Judge Colin Tescher and Spallina to turn over ALL records. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20PETITION%20F
OR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP004391XXXXSB%20SIMO
N.pdf  
26 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
27November 01, 2013 Production Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf 
and 
November 01, 2013 Interrogatories Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN%92S%20FI
RST%20SET%20OF%20INTERROGATORIES%20PRPONDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20BERNST
EIN.pdf  
and 
May 12, 2014 Production Request Benjamin Brown Curator 
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While the proceedings before this US District Court were in essentially a hold pattern with the 

submissions of the Summary Judgement motions and while my Petition for All Writs at the 

Florida Supreme Court was pending regarding Judge Colin as a Necessary and Material Fact 

witness which further sought a Stay by the Florida Supreme Court and preservation of evidence, 

documents and discovery, after Judge Coates who worked at Proskauer and had billed Iviewit 

on SEC matters Recused from the Florida case after the improper Transfer from Colin whereby 

he gained confidential court records while initially denying he had conflicts or knew of Eliot or 

Iviewit, the case was then assigned to the current Probate Judge John Phillips.  

77. The Petition for All Writs28 at the Florida Supreme Court further brought up for review the very 

process by which Judge Colin “poisoned” the transfer and steered the case to the North Branch 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140512%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN'S%20FffiST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20BENJAMIN%20BROWN.pdf  
and 
January 20, 2015 Motion for Production from Brian O’Connell 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150120%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Request%20for%20Production%20Brian%20O'Connell%20ECF%20COPY.pdf  
and 
February 27, 2015 Motion in Opposition to Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150227%20Motion%20in%20Opposition%20to%
20PR%20Motion%20to%20Strike%20Production%20ECF%20Copy.pdf  
and 
November 09, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. request to Spallina and Tescher for Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20120909%20Letter%20Yates%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Information%20Request.pdf 
and 
December 21, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. to Spallina 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121221%20Yates%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Simon%20Shirley%20Estate%20info.pdf  
and 
June 13, 2013 Letter Marc Garber, Esq. to Christine Yates re Spallina and Tescher 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130613%20Marc%20Garber%20Letter%20re%2
0Christine%20Yates%20termination%20Spallina%20etc.pdf  
28 June 10, 2015 All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
and 
July 01, 2015 Amended All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%2
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in his Sua Sponte Recusal29 just one day after denying a Mandatory Disqualification based in 

part on Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court.  

78. Joielle Foglietta of the O’Connell firm then filed for a Status Conference30 which was held on 

July 15, 2015 during which time I raised the pending Writ with Judge Phillips who indicated 

twice on the record I would “be heard” on this at the next appearance.  

79. While I had written to Joielle Foglietta by email to ascertain the proposed Schedule of 

proceedings, none was forthcoming however the O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta team filed for 

a Case Management Conference in the SIMON Bernstein Case which was scheduled and held 

Sept. 15, 2015.  

80. After close of business hours on the Eve of the Conference, attorney Alan Rose on behalf of 

Ted Bernstein submitted a filing seeking to co-opt the Conference and impose a Guardianship 

on me before Judge Phillips at that time without disclosing that hearings had already been held 

and even Judge Colin had denied this repeated demand for guardians, contempt hearings, 

requests for gag orders and arrest of Eliot.  

81. As shown by the Transcript of Conference of Sept. 15, 2015 and my subsequent Motions for 

Mandatory Disqualification of Judge Phillips, Phillips fundamentally denied me a Due Process 

Opportunity to be heard on this day despite saying my Writ application would be addressed 

cutting me off at each attempt to be heard yet allowing Alan Rose to begin moving Judge 

Phillips to schedule a Trial in the Shirley Bernstein case which was NOT Noticed for the 

Conference that day and ultimately Judge Phillips Ordered a Pre-determined, prejudged “One-
                                                                                                                                                         
0Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Ma
rtin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
29May 19, 2015 Colin Sua Sponte Recusal and Steering of the Cases 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150519%20Colin%20Recusals%20Clerk%20Rea
ssigns.pdf  
30August 03, 2015 Case Management Conference Notice of Hearing in SIMON ESTATE ONLY  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150803%20Notice%20of%20Hearing%20for%20
Sept%2015%202015%20930am%20Case%20Management.pdf  
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day” Validity Trial for Dec. 15, 2015 in a case not even Noticed for Conference that day. See 

Sept. 15, 2015 Transcript31.  

82. Licensed attorneys O’Connell acting as PR for Simon’s estate, Foglietta and Creditor attorney 

Peter Feaman sat by idly watching as this occurred without raising any questions on Discovery, 

production or standard pre-trial issues as the record reflects they barely said a word at a hearing 

both have vested interest in.   

83. It should be noted that this occurred after Judge Phillips “pre-judged” any matters relating to 

Judge Colin expressing his “love” for Judge Colin on the Record and his friendships with all the 

attorneys and stating I was the only one he knew nothing of in an angry tone and indicating he 

would not find Colin had done anything wrong without even having the Due process 

Opportunity to make or state a case while falsely representing he had no powers to do so when 

Florida law allows for prior Orders to be vacated. See, Transcript of Case Management 

Conference Sept. 15, 201532.  

84. Florida Rules of Civil Procedure provide in part:  

RULE 1.200. PRETRIAL PROCEDURE (a) Case Management Conference. At 
any time after responsive pleadings or motions are due, the court may order, or a 
party, by serving a notice, may convene, a case management conference. The 
matter to be considered shall be specified in the order or notice setting the 
conference. At such a conference the court may: (1) schedule or reschedule the 
service of motions, pleadings, and other papers; (2) set or reset the time of trials, 
subject to rule 1.440(c); (3) coordinate the progress of the action if the complex 
litigation factors contained in rule 1.201(a)(2)(A)–(a)(2)(H) are present; (4) limit, 
schedule, order, or expedite discovery; (5) consider the possibility of obtaining 
admissions of fact and voluntary exchange of documents and electronically stored 
information, and stipulations regarding authenticity of documents and 
electronically stored information; (6) consider the need for advance rulings from 

                                                 
31 September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
32September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
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the court on the admissibility of documents and electronically stored information; 
(7) discuss as to electronically stored information, the possibility of agreements 
from the parties regarding the extent to which such evidence should be preserved, 
the form in which such evidence should be produced, and whether discovery of 
such information should be conducted in phases or limited to particular 
individuals, time periods, or sources; (8) schedule disclosure of expert witnesses 
and the discovery of facts known and opinions held by such experts; (9) schedule 
or hear motions in limine; (10) pursue the possibilities of settlement; March 16, 
2015 Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 36 (11) require filing of preliminary 
stipulations if issues can be narrowed; (12) consider referring issues to a 
magistrate for findings of fact; and (13) schedule other conferences or determine 
other matters that may aid in the disposition of the action.  
 

85. Yet, despite knowing that this Rule provides, “The matter to be considered shall be specified in 

the order or notice setting the conference”, licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta and 

Feaman took no action during or after to correct the pre-judged “one day” Validity Trial 

scheduled in the wrong case, Shirley Bernstein, which was Not noticed for Conference on this 

date.  

86. Such attorneys further took No Action to raise DISCOVERY COMPLIANCE prior to to the 

Trial despite the outstanding Order of Judge Colin of Feb. 2014 nor was I allowed a Due 

Process opportunity to raise Discovery issues, the need for Experts due to the fraud already 

determined in dispositive documents nor the need for a longer trial period based upon multiple 

Witnesses needed nor the need for Pre-Trial Depositions and the record will reflect that as I 

tried to make claims I was rudely shut down repeatedly by rude and angry Judge Phillips.  

87. To backtrack slightly which shows the continuing pattern of Discovery Abuse in the State 

Court, by the time of the Sept. 13, 2013 Hearing33 after the fraud and forgeries in Judge Colin’s 

Court were Discovered, over 3 Years Ago now Judge Colin had been notified on the Record 

during that Sept. 2013 hearing that as of a Year After my father Simon Bernstein passed away I 

                                                 
33 September 13, 2013 (one year to the date of Simon’s passing Colin Hearing 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130913%20TRANSCRIPT%20Emergency%20H
earing%20Colin%20Spallina%20Tescher%20Ted%20Manceri.pdf  
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still had NO proper Documents on the Trusts and Wills  including the Oppenheimer Trusts yet 

attorney Steven Lessne is now seeking a Guardianship against me before Phillips even though 

Lessne represents Oppenheimer who is a “Resigned” Trustee with no standing.  I notified Judge 

Colin on the Record  as follows from the September 13, 2013 hearing footnoted herein:  

Page 06 
12 THE COURT: Okay. So the bills that they 
13 were paying for you were what bills? 
14 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
15 THE COURT: All the bills. 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Health insurance, 
17 electricity, water, food, clothing, everything, 
18 100�percent. 
19 THE COURT: When did the emergency take 
20 place? 
21 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: On August 28th. 
22 They told me if I didn't sign releases that 
23 Robert wanted me to sign and turn the money 
24 over to my brother, the remaining corpus of the 
25 trust, that they were going to shut the funds 
Page 7 
1 off as of that day. 
2 THE COURT: And they did? 
3 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: I'm not 100�percent 
4 sure, because then I asked them for their 
5 operating documents that Mr. Spallina had sent 
6 them, and once again we've got un�notarized 
7 documents �� 
8 THE COURT: We'll talk about the notary 
9 thing in a second. 
10 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay. Then we have 
11 new improperly notarized documents authorizing 
12 the trust to operate, and they sent me 
13 incomplete documents which are unsigned on 
14 every page of the trust agreement, so they're 
15 telling me and I've asked them three times if 
16 they have signed copies and three times they've 
17 sent me unsigned copies. 
18 THE COURT: Okay, but what bills today �� 
19 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
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88. Previously in this Hearing Judge Colin is further shown how Spallina was Not Notifying certain 

banks such as Legacy that Simon Bernstein had passed away and is “moving” funds around 

from different accounts as follows;  

Page 05 
13 THE COURT: Okay. So tell me how that �� 
14 what evidence is there that this is an 
15 emergency along those lines? 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay, the estate 
17 representatives when my parents died told us 
18 that they were understanding the special 
19 circumstances me and my three children are in, 
20 and that funds had been set aside and not to 
21 worry, there would be no delay of paying their 
22 living costs and everything that my father and 
23 mother had been paying for years to take care 
24 of them, and then they were paying that out of 
25 a bank account at Legacy Bank. 
1 THE COURT: Who is they? 
2 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Mr. Spallina had 
3 directed Rachel Walker to pay the expenses of a 
4 Legacy bank account. It was being paid. And 
5 then Mr. Spallina stated that I should or that 
6 Rachel should �� she was fired, she should now 
7 turn the accounts over to my wife to start 
8 writing checks out of an account we've never 
9 seen. 
10 So I said I didn't feel comfortable 
11 writing checks out of an account, especially 
12 where it appeared my dad was the signer, so I 
13 called Legacy Bank with Rachel and they were 
14 completely blown away that checks had been 
15 being written out of a dead person's account. 
16 Nobody had notified them that Simon had 
17 deceased. And that no �� by under no means 
18 shall I write checks out of that account, and 
19 so then Mr. Spallina told me to turn the 
20 accounts over to Janet Craig of Oppenheimer, 
21 and Oppenheimer was going to pay the bills as 
22 it had been done by Rachel in the past. And so 
23 we sent her the Legacy account. We thought all 
24 that was how things were being done and, you 
25 know, he doesn't give us any documents 
1 whatsoever in the estate, so we don't know, you 
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2 know, what he's operating out of, but 
3 Oppenheimer then started to pay the things �� 
4 first they said, wait a minute, these are 
5 school trust funds �� well, they actually said 
6 that after they started paying, and they were a 
Page 06 
7 little hesitant that these funds were being 
8 used for personal living expenses of everybody, 
9 which the other Legacy account had been paying 
10 for through an agreement between and my 
11 parents. And then what happened was 
12 Mr. Spallina directed them to continue, stating 
13 he would replenish and replace the funds if he 
14 didn't get these other trusts he was in the 
15 process of creating for my children in place 
16 and use that money he would replenish and 
17 replace it. 
18 So the other week or two weeks or a few 
19 week ago Janet Craig said that funds are 
20 running low and she contacted Mr. Spallina who 
21 told her that he's not putting any money into 
22 those trusts and that there's nothing there for 
23 me, and that basically when that money runs out 
24 the kids' insurance, school, their home 
25 electricity and everything else I would 
1 consider an emergency for three minor children 
2 will be cut off, and that was not �� 

 

STEVEN LESSNE DISQUALIFIED AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS 

89. Thus it is clear that the Oppenheimer Trusts are just another set of Trusts and Documents and 

evidence where Discovery Abuse has occurred and huge delays in getting Any proper Operative 

documents has occurred which continues to this day, yet Lessne is moving for Guardianship 

against me before Phillips for a second time after law of the case was established in virtually an 

identical filing whereby Guardianship was denied and it was determined that after Lessne 

finished an accounting, if the Successor Trustee wanted to bring such charges they could but 

that he had no standing.   
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90. Mr. Lessne becomes a Material Fact Witness in the Chain of Custody of documents and 

Originals involving various Trusts and what the Trusts should say or provide where he claims as 

an Attorney in a sworn Filing before Judge Colin filed June 20, 2014 as follows:  

“Oppenheimer's Appointment, Service and Resignation As Trustee  
5. Gerald R. Lewin was the initial trustee of the Trusts. 6. On September 5, 2007,  
Mr. Lewin resigned as trustee and appointed Stanford Trust Company as his successor 
pursuant to Section 5 .3 of the Trusts. “ 
Lessne filing June 20, 201434.  
 

91. This sworn Statement, however, is contradicted by Multiple other documents and filings herein, 

however, demonstrating exactly why Injunctive relief for preservation and Orderly Production 

of Discovery is Necessary for this US District Court in furtherance of its jurisdiction.  

92. In what was Allegedly Filed in the Palm Beach County Courthouse by Robert Spallina claimed 

to be filed on July 7, 2010 is an alleged Petition to Appoint Successor Trustee dated June 18, 

201035 which claims one TRACI KRATISH and not Gerry Lewin as Lessne claims was the 

TRUSTEE of the Children’s Trusts who allegedly Resigned Sept. 12, 2007 whereupon it claims 

the STANFORD TRUST took over and then purports to be a Petition of me and my wife 

Candice authorizing OPPENHEIMER to take over as Trustee from Stanford yet this document 

appears to have Robert Spallina’s signature on it yet where my wife and Candice Bernstein have 

Reported this Document as Fraud and a Forgery to the Court and Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 

as not only had we never signed this document but had never even met Robert Spallina as of 

2010 and this was Reported to Judge Colin during the June 2014 hearings with Oppenheimer 

                                                 
34June 20, 2014 Oppenheimer Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140620%20Oppenheimer%20v.%20Eliot%20Can
dice%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20Daniel%20Case%20No%20502104cp00281xxxxsb%20Summon
s%20and%20Complaint%20Eliot%20Service%20Low.pdf  
35June 19, 2010 Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20100619AllegedForgedEliotCandicePetitiontoAppo
intSuccessorTrusteeJoshuaJacobandDaniel.pdf  
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and Lessne, yet fell on deaf ears.  See, Petition under Spallina’s Signature in 2010 alleged as 

Fraud to Palm Beach Sheriff and Court  by Eliot and Candice Bernstein.  

93. Thus Lessne is a material fact witness as to who the Real Trustee is and what the operative 

documents actually say.  

94. Further, there is a significant issue as to whether Trusts were Transferred from Oppenheimer to 

JP Morgan where Lessne, Oppenheimer and Janet Craig of Oppenheimer all should be 

witnesses thus making the Discovery Abuse as a Weapon even more harmful since there is 

never any clear, orderly picture of what is taking place when and by who.  

ALAN ROSE AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS  

95. To further complicate the frauds in what should make Alan Rose a Material Fact Witness, in 

May of 2015 Alan Rose magically comes out with an alleged ORIGINAL of the Trusts which 

he allegedly “Finds” left at the 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca Raton, Fl St. Andrew’s Home of 

Simon Bernstein after his passing yet by this point in time the ENTIRETY of the St. Andrews’s 

Home had already been Seized and Inventoried by Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta’s 

Offices as of March 2015, several months before and before that by Benjamin Brown the 

Curator.  

96. Alan Rose somehow amazingly tries to claim after allegedly finding and removing from the 

Estate without authorization from O’Connell who has custody over them, 3 “Originals” of my 

Children’s Trusts that somehow these were Unimportant and Discounted and “Overlooked” by 

the O’Connell Foglietta team who are fully aware of the problems with the trusts in the 

Oppenheimer case and who Already had allegedly Fully Inventoried and seized Custody of all 

these items at the St. Andrews Home in March 2015 two months before in a case where 
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substantial Document fraud had already been demonstrated and Discovery abuses going on 

continually, Emailing on May, 20, 201536 as follows:  

From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek-law.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 2:14 PM 
To: Lessne, Steven; Eliot Ivan Bernstein; Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
Cc: Ted Bernstein; O'Connell, Brian M.; Foglietta, Joy A 
Subject: Original signed "Oppenheimer" Trusts 
  
Mr. Lessne and Mr. Eliot Bernstein: 
  
I am writing to advise that we located some files in drawers in Simon’s private office in 
his home at Lions Head, as we were trying to assess the complexity of things that must 
happen between now and the closing of Lions Head.  My primary reason was to visually 
inspect  the  three chandeliers  that have been  the subject of PR emails  in  the past  few 
days. 
  
In  any  event,  and  although  these  files  likely  were  examined  and  discounted  as 
unimportant by the PRs after Simon’s death and likely meant nothing if and when they 
were  catalogued  or  viewed  during  the  O’Connell  as  PR  re‐appraisal/re‐inspection,  I 
noticed a folder marked as the jake bernstein trust.   Looking more closely, there were 
three green folders labeled with Eliot’s childrens names and inside are what appear to 
be the original signed Irrevocable Trust Agreements for the Trusts which Oppenheimer 
formerly  served.  These  may  be  relevant  or  important  to  the  ongoing  Oppenheimer 
case,  so  I  bring  them  to  your  attention.    There  also  are  what  appears  to  some  tax 
returns and Stanford Account Statements.  Simply because I have attended some of the 
Oppenheimer hearings, I understand that Eliot claims at least one of the Trusts does not 
exist.    As  an  officer  of  the  court,  and  because  these  may  be  relevant,  I  have  taken 
temporary custody of  the documents.    I will hold  them pending  joint  instructions or a 
court  order,  but  would  prefer  to  deliver  them  to  Steve  Lessne  as  Oppenheimer’s 
counsel.  These have no economic value and have no bearing on the estate, so I doubt 
Brian O’Connell would want them, but  I did not want to see them lost or discarded  in 
the impending move.  To facilitate your review, I have scanned the first and last page of 
each trust, and scanned the first page of the ancillary documents, and attach that in .pdf 
format.  
  
I am sure that people have looked through these files before, and there did not appear 
to be anything else of significance.  (I did notice a few folders with other grandchildrens 
names,  not  Eliot’s  kids,  but  left  those  papers  in  place  because  I  understand  that 
everyone  except  Eliot  has  fully  cooperated  with  Oppenheimer  in  resolving  these 
matters.) 

                                                 
36May 20, 2015 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter re Finding New Documents and removing them illegally from 
Simon’s Estate and whereby the records were in the custody of Brian O’Connell at that time and Rose 
took them from the Estate without authorization. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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I also have had occasion to re‐look through a small box of trust documents which I have 
been holding, which came from  Simon’s former work office.  Inside file folders in a desk 
drawer, Simon retained duplicate originals of the trust agreements relevant to my cases.  
When  I  was  looking  to  reexamine  these  documents  –  duplicate  originals  of  the  2008 
Trusts and the 2012 Trust (the true originals remain with Tescher & Spallina who drafted 
them)  –  I  noticed  a  copy  of  the  three  separate  irrevocable  trust  documents.    Again, 
these would not have caught my eye originally because I would have never guessed that 
Eliot would claim the trusts were not valid.  I only recently had occasion to notice these 
in looking for the duplicate trust originals for Simon and Shirley.  The three Irrevocable 
Trusts appear to be signed and witnessed on page 17, but the individual pages are not 
initialed.  Again, these were only copies, but now having looked at the originals included 
in the attached scan, I note (although not a handwriting expert) that the attached copies 
appear to be absolutely identical to the originals just found in Simon’s personal office. 
  
These copies include IRS forms under which Traci Kratish PA, as Trustee appears to have 
applied  for  and  obtained  a  Taxpayer  ID  number  for  each  trust,  and  obviously  she 
provided these to Simon.  Each of the Trust documents is signed by Simon Bernstein, as 
Settlor, and by Traci Kratish PA as the initial Trustee, and the signatures are witnessed 
by  two  people.    Simon’s  is  witnessed  by  Jocelyn  Johnson  and  someone  else.    I  am 
advised  that  Jocelyn  was  an  employee  of  Simon’s,  as  presumably  was  the  second 
witness  and  also  the  initial  Trustee,  Traci  Kratish,  who  was  in  house  counsel  for  the 
companies Simon owned part of. 
  
Although  this  was  long  before  any  involvement  on my  part,  Traci  Kratish  appears  to 
have been the initial trustee (there is a typo elsewhere naming Steven Greenwald).   I do 
not  know  Steven  Greenwald,  but  I  have  confirmed  that  that  these  trusts  were  not 
created by Tescher & Spallina.  If they had been, I’m sure they would have retained the 
original and given Simon duplicate originals as they did for all of the trust documents for 
the 2008 and 2012 Trusts  they prepared.    I do not know  if Greenwald prepared these 
and made a typo leaving his name on a later section, or if Kratish prepared these from a 
boilerplate Greenwald form and made the typo.  Either way, and it does not matter to 
me, the fact that this was a simple and ordinary typo should be obvious to all. 
  
Eventually,  Traci  Kratish  left  the  employ  as  the  in‐house  counsel  for  the  companies.  
Sometime before or  at  the  time of her  leaving,  she  resigned and appointed  someone 
else,  and  eventually  these  trusts  accounts  along with  similar  trusts  for  Simon’s  other 
seven  grandchildren  and much  of  Simon’s  personal wealth,  were moved  to  Stanford.  
After Stanford’s collapse amid word that it was a Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon lost upwards of 
$2 million of his own funds in the Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon directed the transfer of the his 
and these trust accounts to Oppenheimer.  Simon selected Oppenheimer; paid Tescher’s 
firm to do the necessary documents to appoint Oppenheimer as successor trustee; took 
the documents  from Tescher  and had  them  signed  by  all  children,  including  Eliot  and 
Candice; and returned the documents to Tescher for filing.   I presume that Simon paid 
all  of  these  legal  fees,  because  that  is  the  right  thing  to  do  from  an  estate  planning 
strategy and as a favor to his grandkids.    I now have seen copies of the filed Petitions, 
and again without being a handwriting expert, it certainly looks like Eliot’s and Candice’s 
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signature on them, regardless of whether they had ever met Tescher or Spallina before 
their parents’ deaths. 
  
Eliot and Candice reaped the benefits of Oppenheimer’s services, and in any event there 
is no reason to believe that Candice and Eliot did not sign these Petitions for the benefit 
of their children.  If Eliot now suggests that his and his wife’s signatures do not appear 
on  the  June  2010  Petitions  appointing  Oppenheimer  2010  allegation,  which  is  highly 
doubtful  just  looking at the three sets of signatures, that would mean Eliot  is accusing 
Simon of being a forger.  Eliot already is supportive of Bill Stansbury, who accuses Simon 
of committing a fraud on Stansbury.  I would be shocked by any accusation that Simon 
did  not  obtain  from  Eliot  and  Candice  their  genuine  signatures  on  the  June  2010 
Petitions, and particularly shocked that Eliot, who received so much of his father’s (and 
mother’s)  largesse  during  their  lifetimes,  would  now malign  Simon’s  name  in  such  a 
manner.  
  
Anyway,  I’m not sure  if either of you needs these any  longer, but  if you do, here they 
are. 
  
  

  Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 

      561.355.6991 
 505 South Flagler Drive 
 Suite 600 
     West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
     561.655.2250 Phone 
     561.655.5537 Fax 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY 
NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE 
HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPYING OF THIS 
COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E-MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service 
(Circular 230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any 
attachments), unless otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, 
by any taxpayer for the purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue 
Code or (2) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed 
herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If 
you have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat 
Reader, available at:http://www.adobe.com 

 

97. Thus, Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta, Alan Rose and Steven Lessne are all Material Fact 

Witnesses on this Chain of Custody alone which all is critical evidence for this Court as it 

relates to the production of Valid and Original Trusts and documents at issue and my Cross-

Counterclaims  and thus Injunctive relief should now issue.   
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98. Lessne, nor Rose (a Counter Defendant in the Stayed Counter Complaint in the Oppenheimer 

case), has yet to turn these alleged new documents into the Court and where since the lawsuit 

was based on other documents filed this would seem to materially affect the whole case. 

99. It should be noted that in the days and weeks leading up to this “magical” Discovery by Alan 

Rose that the O’Connell and Foglietta team had issued substantial billings for communications 

with Alan Rose37 even though O’Connell had filed an Answer claiming Alan Rose’s client Ted 

Bernstein was Invalid as a Trustee although the Petition had not been heard.  

100. Alan Rose and Brian O’Connell are again tied up as material fact witnesses just a few weeks 

later when Judge Coates briefly came into the case wherein Alan Rose now “magically” has 

“Originals” of the Shirley Trust and related documents that he allegedly scanned onto a CD and 

while his Letter indicates he was “Transferring” this CD to me in person at Court he actually 

used Brian O’Connell to “pass me” the CD.  

101. Rose claims these are “Originals” or “Duplicate Originals” scanned onto the CD but provides 

No Chain of Custody of how, when, where or why these come into his possession making him a 

Material Fact Witness on the Chain of Custody of documents. See, Alan Rose Letter of June 4, 

201538.  As noted, here is where “Originals” appear to be signed in Different Color Ink from the 

“Original” Originals and where the naked human eye can detect too many identical signatures 

identically or virtually identically placed in the some place on the documents and too many 

initials placed in the same place.  

                                                 
37Ciklin/O’Connell Billing Statements 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
and 
Rose and O’Connell billing excerpts from Ciklin bills 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf  
38 June 04, 2015 Rose Letter Regarding CD of Newly Discovered Estate and Trust documents 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150604%20Rose%20Letter%20with%20CD%20
of%20Simon%20Shirley%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20Will%20Documents.pdf  
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102. Yet, on or about August 11, 2015, I physically appeared and went to the O’Connell law office 

per arrangements with Joielle Foglietta and was directed to some Staff member I will call “Jane 

Doe” for now, although other records may disclose her name, whereupon I was supposed to be 

able to finally “view” and “inspect” all of Simon’s Business Records, Documents, etc that the 

O’Connell firm had obtained and am shocked to be placed into a Conference Room with 4 

Banker Boxes that were half-full for my father who had been a successful Insurance business 

person for Decades with multiple bank accounts, corporations, trust companies and tons of other 

personal records.  One of the boxes had allegedly been dropped off by Alan Rose and only had 

a few miscellaneous “wall hangings” from his Business Office and the other 3 boxes are 

allegedly what the O’Connell firm had taken out of the St. Andrew’s home.  

103. Yet these were partially filled boxes and the Jane Doe staff member indicated she had retrieved 

“everything”, “everything” from the St. Andrew’s home on or around June 4, 2015 which 

contradicts what Joielle Foglietta had claimed in March 2015 about taking custody of the 

Business documents and files and further contradicts what Alan Rose “finds” in May of 2014, 

thus rendering all of these individuals Material Fact Witnesses on Chain of Custody and 

possession. Miraculously these documents appear days before Sheriff deputies are contacting 

Kratish regarding the prior documents and allegations of fraud in the prior documents. 

104. This item further ties up Judge Colin, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, Gerry LEWIN, 

SPALLINA and TESCHER as more intertwined in the fraud.  

105. Both Judge Colin and the PBSO are aware that Eliot and his wife Candice have claimed they 

never signed a Petition that SPALLINA “Witnessed” in 2010 relating to the Trust which 
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SPALLINA apparently deposited with Colin’s court in June of 201039 and that Colin is alleged 

to have signed.  

106. The Document provided by ROSE as an “original” however, purports to be a Trust signed Sept. 

7, 2006 and allegedly witnessed by one Traci Kratish.  

107. However, in her statement to the PBSO40, Traci Kratish, a lawyer and accountant, says she did 

not begin work with Eliot’s father until Sept. 10, 2006 and was not brought in Pre-Stanford 

Trust and has no independent recollection of signing this Trust which is further ripe with errors 

such as referring to Traci Kratish as a “he” instead of “she”, having a different trustee Steven 

Greenwald identified later in the document as the “Trustee,” no reference to the law firm who 

allegedly prepared the Trusts, missing initials on the pages and other obvious errors.  

108. Still further, LEWIN prepares and has Tax documents ( copies, not Originals )  saying the Trust 

was created on Sept. 1, 2006, not Sept. 7th and further that Stanford was the Trustee from the 

beginning and not Traci Kratish as alleged by SPALLINA in the June 2010 Petition claiming 

the Trusts went from Kratish to Stanford and then Oppenheimer with this Petition allegedly 

signed by Eliot and his wife which they have denied signing or seeing prior to it being produced 

in the matters to the the PBSO and COLIN and reported as fraud41.  

109. Despite the PBSO and PANZER knowing all the fraud admitted to date and SPALLINA who 

was not forthcoming in his first interview, PBSO illegally steers this part of the fraud and 

criminal investigation away from following up with Spallina and the involved parties and 

                                                 
39July 08, 2010 Alleged Forged Petition for Children’s Trusts Oppenheimer @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Exhibit%20E%2020100619%20Alleged%20Eliot%2
0Candice%20Petition%20to%20Appoint%20Successor%20Trustee%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20D
aniel.pdf  
40 May 21, 2015 Traci Kratish PBSO Interview statements @ 
www.iviewit.tv/Simon and Shirley Estate/Kratish Statements to PBSO.pdf 
41 May 20, 2015 Alan Rose Email Claiming to have found New Trust Documents @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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attempted to close the case in a rush with admitted felony crimes of Spallina not being 

prosecuted and thus committing misprision of felony and aiding and abetting the fraud by 

failure to report the admitted crime to prosecutors and which is currently under a second 

Internal Affairs review, the first review after Judge Colin interfered with the criminal 

investigations and had them close the case of Fraud on the Court stating he would handle those 

and forcing Eliot to IA to have the cases reopened due to the improper interference, which led to 

subsequent interviews where Spallina confessed to Felony misconduct..  

110. By TESCHER SPALLINA Bates42 No. TS000815 Spallina falsely writes to Christopher Prindle 

of Wachovia/Stanford/Oppenheimer/JP Morgan on July 1, 2010 who is intimately involved in 

the Financial Accounts of Simon Bernstein claiming he has:  “certified Final Orders on 

Petitions to Appoint Successor Trustee designating Oppenheimer Trust Company as 

Successor Trustee of the following trusts: 1. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 2. Carly Esther Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 3. Jake 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 4. Max Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 5. Julie Iantoni Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 6. Joshua Z. 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 “ all as of July 1, 2010. 

                                                 
42 Tescher & Spallina Bates Numbered Court Ordered Production  
It should be noted that while the documents are bates stamped they were never tendered by Spallina 
and Tescher to the court and no document originals were tendered to successors despite court order to 
turn over “ALL” records, whereby all copies of alleged documents in the Tescher and Spallina production 
are therefore alleged fraudulent and part of an ongoing fraud to cover up and maintain the prior frauds 
they have been caught in and further continue the frauds. 
***FOR ALL FURTHER REFERENCES HEREIN of SPALLINA and TESCHER Bates Stamped 
Documents please refer to the following link which contains the entire file of Bates stamped documents 
Total Pages 7,202 with gaps in the bates numbering and search for the Bates numbers listed in this 
filing. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140602%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUME
NTS%20SIMON%20ESTATE%20BY%20COURT%20ORDER%20TO%20BEN%20BROWN%20CURA
TOR%20DELIVERED%20BY%20TESCHER%20AND%20SPALLINA.pdf  (File is large and takes time 
to download) 
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111. Yet on the same date of July 1, 2010, by  TS000831  SPALLINA writes to Margaret Brown at 

Baker Botts saying:  

From: Robert Spallina [mailto:rspallina@tescherspallina.com]  
Sent: Thursday, July 01, 2010 9:14 AM  
To: Brown, Margaret  
Subject: Bernstein  
Dear Margaret - we finally received the last of the signed petitions for the minor 
grandchildren and will be walking through the petitions next week to get the 
orders designating Oppenheimer as successor Trustee to Stanford. Attached are 
copies of the signed petitions we are filing for your records.  
 

112. The close relationship with SPALLINA and COLIN is shown by the casual manner SPALLINA 

is simply going to “walk through” over at the Court to get the Orders he has told key Financial 

person Christopher Prindle he already has in Certified form as of the same date.  

113. The alleged Orders do appear to be “Certified” and signed by COLIN but not until July 8, 2010, 

a week after he tells Prindle these are done by the Court already which SPALLINA writes to 

Margaret Brown again about on July 8, 2010, see TESCHER SPALLINA PRODUCTION 

Bates No.TS000829. 

114. This pattern and practice of false information even shown by the TESCHER SPALLINA 

production is further reason to Enjoin and Restrain the parties and the evidence in further aid of 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

115. Moreover, because there are NO Accountings from TESCHER SPALLINA in the year and half 

plus of their involvement as fiduciaries (NO accountings in Shirley for FIVE years and 

INCOMPLETE ACCOUNTING FOR SIMON ONLY RECENTLY TURNED OVER after 

almost three years after Simon’s Passing) where millions were likely moved between accounts 

or converted without any accounting, Records and accounts of Christopher Prindle, Stanford, JP 

Morgan and Oppenheimer should further be enjoined when the Court has proper jurisdiction 

over these parties.  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 46 of 132 PageID #:3680

BATES NO. EIB 000499 
02/27/2017



Page 46 of 132 

116. Note that the Curator Ben Brown of the Estate of Simon Bernstein purported to have obtained 

actual signed Tax returns from the IRS herein for Simon’s Estate and quietly died at a young 

age shortly thereafter upon information and belief before turning them over and according to 

O’Connell he never received them and immediately ordered new ones immediately after gaining 

Letters of Administration but still has not received them to the best of my belief and certainly 

has not turned them over to me as promised.  

117. Yet, current PR of the Simon Bernstein Estate Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta of the 

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell law firm have Never obtained or provided any Signed Tax 

Documents or actual originals in the 18 months in the case yet repeatedly bills the Estate for 

calls with Alan Rose, including many redacted Billing entries43and44.  

118. The 2007-2008 LIC Tax statements where Simon Bernstein was 45 % owner shows 2 

consecutive years of revenue exceeding $30 Million per year and where Renewals on insurance 

should still be coming in but where TED, ROSE and the PRs claim estates and trusts virtually 

empty while denying discovery and production45, with Simon taking several million dollars in 

income in just these years prior to his death.  

119. Yet, the O’Connell and Foglietta team claim the Estate is out of money and even proceeded to 

demand a payment of $750 approximately from myself to obtain copies of the bare records in 3 

partially filled boxes the PRs have obtained to date that they stated copies would be ready for 

me to pick up when I went to their offices and were not, then later when I was forced to 

                                                 
43 Alan B. Rose and Brian O’Connell Billing Excerpts from Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Bills @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf 
44 O’CONNELL and Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Billing Statements @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
45 2007-2008 Unsigned Tax Returns LIC prepared by Gerald Lewin CPA 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/tax%20returns%202007%202008%
20LIC.pdf  
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repeatedly ask for them to be sent they changed their tune demanding payment for the meager 

records they had obtained and further have repeatedly denied access to even visually Inspect 

the alleged Storage unit where all the TPP allegedly is.  

120. As will be shown later herein, Millions remain Unaccounted for in the cases further justifying 

an Injunction at this time.  

“Orchestration” of the “One-day” “Validity” Trial by the Fiduciaries, Lawyers and Judge 

Phillips 

121. Despite this tortured background, the licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta, Rose and Feaman 

allow matters to proceed along course to a “one-day” Validity Trial with Judge Phillips held 

Dec. 15, 2015.  

122. In the weeks before this, Creditor attorney Peter Feaman expressly stated in a phone call with 

myself, William Stansbury and others that there was a deliberate “conspiracy” against me by the 

parties with money and connections or words to that effect.  

123. Attorney Peter Feaman also acknowledged that Florida Courts do have traditional Pre-Trial and 

Trial procedures, none of which were followed.  

124. No pre-trial Discovery compliance was ever determined, no Pre-trial Depositions were 

determined, and I was provided no Due Process opportunity to speak about the Necessary 

Witnesses that should be at Trial which would make the Trial go beyond one day and the 

importance of having the hearings to remove Ted first to determine if he would even be able to 

conduct validity hearings, especially where there was document fraud with the documents being 

validated committed by his attorneys representing him as fiduciary and where the fraud directly 

benefited Ted’s family, slight conflicts that should have forced Ted from holding the hearings.  

Ted also being considered Predeceased for ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 
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SHIRLEY TRUST certainly could not hold a validity hearing as it regards disposition of the 

trust.  Yet, Phillips refused both Feaman and my request to have that hearing first.  

125. Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman had previously in August of 2014 written a specific letter to 

Brian O’Connell indicating he had an “absolute duty” to take up the baton to remove Ted 

Bernstein noting the waste of assets, lack of accountings, conflicts of interest and other items, 

although attorney Feaman would take no action to prevent or participate in the “Validity Trial” 

despite the fact that the only 2 Witnesses that were called, Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

(both involved in the Fraudulent Documents submitted to the court and others) were Both 

parties that Creditor William Stansbury had sued although that case was before a separate 

Judge.  

126. Despite the Fraud shown with Colin who should be a Material fact witness and should have 

disqualified once he knew there was Fraud Upon His Court and he was involved in the matters, 

Feaman took no action to assert and re-argue if necessary Stansbury’s “standing” which had 

been denied in the case by Colin although Stansbury was “in the case” for purposes of Paying 

for the Illinois litigation before Your Honor which all appears to be part of “orchestration” 

where Stansbury and Feaman are “in” on some issues but not in on others.  

127. Feaman had “confirmed” that O’Connell as the PR was going to Participate at the one day 

Validity Trial as O’Connell had filed an Answer to remove Ted Bernstein at Trial as an Invalid 

Trustee yet “at the last minute” it was announced O’Connell and Ted Bernstein’s attorney Alan 

Rose had some form of “consultation” deal where it was decided O’Connell would not 

participate in the Validity Trial despite the fact that his Office had been Billing the Estate for 

nearly 2 years based upon Ted as Trustee including many billings with Alan Rose on behalf of 
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Ted Bernstein all of which is compromised if a proper Trial showed the documents to be invalid 

and/or Ted Bernstein should be removed.  

128. When Feaman brought O’Connell into the cases after being denied standing to remove Ted, 

Feaman had Eliot withdraw a hearing to remove Ted that day telling him that he spoke to 

O’Connell and O’Connell would file the motion Feaman filed that was denied for standing and 

that I would have a much better chance of success with O’Connell filing.  To this date, despite 

being given Feaman’s filing to put his name on and repeatedly stating he would file it, 

O’Connell has failed to file despite knowing Ted is “not a validly serving Trustee” or in other 

words that Ted and Alan are committing a Fraud knowing Ted cannot be Trustee but pulling yet 

another Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Creditor. 

129. Thus, the Estate of Simon Bernstein was Unrepresented and did not participate in the Phillips 

“Validity” Trial of the Simon documents and where the Governor Rick Scott’s office already 

found defects in the notarizations of Simon’s Estate and Trust documents that O’Connell was 

made aware of prior and where if they were not validated as Rose wanted them, O’Connell 

could have been knocked out and Stansbury could have become the Successor as was the case 

only a few weeks before Simon died when allegedly new improperly notarized documents are 

said to have been signed.  

130. Alan Rose was motioned by my counsel Candice Schwager of Texas who was seeking to come 

into Florida pro hac vice46 for a 30 day Continuance47 and to get the Documents necessary to be 

able to represent my children properly and determine if any conflicts existed that prevented her 

                                                 
46December 12, 2015 Candice Schwager Pro Hac Vice Letter to Court and Alan Rose, Esq. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151212%20Candice%20Schwager%20Pro%20H
ac%20Vice%20ECF%20Filing%20Stamped%20Copy.pdf  
4720151215 Motion for Stay  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20ESIGNED%20Phillips%20Trial%20St
ay%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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from representing both myself and my children but both Rose and Judge Phillips denied the 

continuance and denied her access to documents48 leaving my children unrepresented at the 

Validity “trial” as well.  

131. The notice and motion further indicated Alan Rose should be Disqualified as a Material fact 

witness for the reasons set out above.  

132. Thus the Trial was orchestrated so no Attorneys were present to Cross-examine the only 2 

Witnesses produced by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

himself.  

133. It is noted that there were no Pre-Trial Depositions allowed of Robert Spallina or Ted Bernstein 

and thus acting Pro Se I did all I could do at the Trial which still revealed remarkable 

information and confessions of new crimes, including federal mail fraud by Spallina, who also 

violated his SEC consent order by misrepresenting his SEC consent deal and further 

misrepresented his standing with the Florida Bar as the record reflects.  Spallina also admitted 

to using a deceased Simon acting as PR to close Shirley’s Estate and depositing further 

fraudulent documents with the court, while admitting he had not to that date told anyone about 

these crimes, while Phillips ignored all these admissions and since has done nothing to notify 

proper authorities of these new and damning admissions of crimes and violations of SEC 

consent orders, despite repeated requests by myself for him to do so.  

134. It is further noted that no Inspection or Comparison of the “duplicate” and other alleged 

“originals” was allowed pre-trial or during trial as these Documents and evidence simply were 

                                                 
48January 06, 2016 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter to Attorney for Minor Children and Eliot denying access to file 
or even to speak despite her being retained counsel in need of documents to evaluate cases. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160106%20Rose%20Denying%20to%20talk%20
or%20give%20information%20to%20Attorney%20Schwager.pdf  
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not produced or made available at the hearing for inspection and have never been forensically 

examined.  

135. It is respectfully asserted to this Court that not only would proper production and Discovery be 

reflective of actual value and worth of assets at stake, but further relevant to Undue influence 

and pressures that were on Simon Bernstein at all relevant times herein.  The potential for undue 

influence should have been clear just by the April 9, 2012 fraudulent Petition for Discharge 

allegedly signed by Simon on this date and Witnessed by Spallina since if this is Simon’s 

signature he  absolutely knew the Waivers referenced in the Petition had not even been received 

by some of the parties by this date much less Signed and returned and signing such a document 

falsely would have been totally out of character and practice for the decades he had been in 

business.  This Court should now issue an Injunction.  

No Concern for Original Documents, Rose, Spallina, Ted Bernstein or Judge Phillips  

136. I believe the following passage from the Validity “Trial” makes clear that an Injunction should 

issue since no one seems to know where the Originals are, and the many Duplicate originals and 

Ted Bernstein claims to have only seen “copies” of the Trusts although it is noted for this US 

District Court there are other Trusts that are referenced in the produced Trusts where copies 

have been provided that not only were the other referenced Trusts never “Served” with Process 

for the Validity hearing but these referenced Trusts  have never been produced to this day such 

as: 

Page 137 of linked PDF document @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20P
hillips%20Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
 
Transcript Page 121 
Spallina Witness ‐ Eliot Cross Examining 
 
4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ In the chain of custody of these 
∙5∙ ∙documents, you stated that there were three copies made? 
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∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Do you have those three original trust copies 
∙8∙ ∙here? 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I do not. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Does anybody? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Do you have any other questions of 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the witness? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah.∙ I wanted to ask him 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ some questions on the original documents. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ Keep going. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So the original documents aren't in the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't have them. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your firm is not in possession of any of the 
21∙ ∙original documents? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure.∙ I'm not at the firm anymore. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙When you left the firm, were there documents 
24∙ ∙still at the firm? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes, there were. 
 
Page 122 
‐1‐ Q.∙ ∙Were you ordered by the court to turn those 
∙2∙ ∙documents over to the curator, Benjamin Brown? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Can he clarify the 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ question, which documents?∙ Because I believe the 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ curator was for the estate, and the original will 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ was already in file, and the curator would have no 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ interest in the trust ‐‐ 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Which documents?∙ When you say 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ "those documents," which ones are you referring to? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Any of the trusts and estate 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ That's been clarified. 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙You can answer, if you can. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe that he was given ‐‐ I 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ believe all the documents were copied by 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Mr. Pollock's office, and that he was given some 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ type of zip drive with everything.∙ I'm not sure, 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ though.∙ I couldn't ‐‐ 
20∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did the zip drive contain the original 
22∙ ∙documents? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Did not.∙ I believe the original documents 
24∙ ∙came back to our office.∙ Having said that, we would 
25∙ ∙only have ‐‐ when we made and had the client execute 
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 Page 123 
∙1∙  three documents, two originals of those documents would 
∙2∙ ∙remain with the client, and then we would keep one 
∙3∙ ∙original in our file, except ‐‐ including, most of the 
∙4∙ ∙time, the original will, which we put in our safe 
∙5∙ ∙deposit box.∙ So we would have one original of every 
∙6∙ ∙document that they had executed, including the original 
∙7∙ ∙will, and they would keep two originals of everything, 
∙8∙ ∙except for the will, which we would give them conformed 
∙9∙ ∙copies of, because there was only one original will. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ I asked a specific question.∙ Did your 
11∙ ∙firm, after the court order of Martin Colin, retain 
12∙ ∙documents, original documents? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Sorry.∙ I should have 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ let him finish. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ ‐‐ original documents? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe ‐‐ 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Relevance and misstates the ‐‐ 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ there's no such order. 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, the question is, Did your 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ firm retain the original documents? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Is that the question? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yes, sir. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Answer, please. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe we had original 
 
Page 124 
∙1∙ documents. 
∙2∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙After the date you were court ordered to 
∙4∙ ∙produce them to the curator? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Object ‐‐ that's the part I object 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ to. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
∙9∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙To your knowledge ‐‐ so, to your knowledge, 
11∙ ∙the documents can't all be here since they may be at 
12∙ ∙your firm today? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't practice at the firm anymore, so I'm 
14∙ ∙not sure where the documents are. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ And you said you made copies of all the 
16∙ ∙documents that you turned over to the curator?∙ Did you 
17∙ ∙turn over any original documents as ordered by the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Same objection. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ There's no court order requiring an original 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ document be turned over. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ What order are you referring to? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Judge Colin ordered when they 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ resigned due to the fraudulent alteration of the 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents that they turn over – 
  
Page 125 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ I just said, what order are you 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ referring to? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ It's an order Judge Colin 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ordered. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ All right.∙ Well, produce that 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ order so I can see it, because Judge Colton's [sic] 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ been retired for six or seven years. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay.∙ I don't have it with 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ me, but... 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, Judge Colton's a retired 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ judge.∙ He may have served in some other capacity, 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ but he doesn't enter orders, unless he's sitting as 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ a replacement judge.∙ And that's why I'll need to 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ see the order you're talking about, so I'll know if 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ he's doing that.∙ Okay.∙ Thanks.∙ Next question. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Has anyone, to the best of your 
18∙ ∙knowledge, seen the originals while you were in custody 
19∙ ∙of them? 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Who? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I believe Ken Pollock's firm was ‐‐ Ken 
23∙ ∙Pollock's firm was the firm that took the documents for 
24∙ ∙purposes of copying them. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did anybody ask you, refer copies to inspect 
  
Page 126 
1∙ ∙the documents? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Other than Ken Pollock's office, I don't 
∙3∙ ∙recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did I ask you? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Perhaps you did. 
  
 Page 170 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙But it does say on the document that the 
15∙ ∙original will's in your safe, correct? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙For your mother's document, it showed that. 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Oh, for my father's ‐‐ where are the originals 
18∙ ∙of my father's? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Your father's original will was deposited in 
20∙ ∙the court.∙ As was your mother's. 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙How many copies of it were there that were 
22∙ ∙original? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Only one original.∙ I think Mr. Rose had 
24∙ ∙stated on the record that he requested a copy from the 
25∙ ∙clerk of the court of your father's original will, to 
  
  
Page 171 
∙1∙ ∙make a copy of it. 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Certified? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure if he said it was certified or 
∙4∙ ∙not. 
  
 TED BERNSTEIN WITNESS ‐ ELIOT BERNSTEIN CROSS EXAM 
  
Page 209 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah. 
24∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you seen the original will and trust of 
  
Page 210 
1∙ ∙your mother's? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you define original for me? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙The original. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙The one that's filed in the court? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Original will or the trust. 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I've seen copies of the trusts. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you done anything to have any of the 
∙8∙ ∙documents authenticated since learning that your 
∙9∙ ∙attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10∙ ∙documents that you were in custody of? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Relevance. 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I have not. 
14∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16∙ ∙validate these documents; is that correct? 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Correct. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Why is that? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not an expert on the validity of 
20∙ ∙documents. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you contract a forensic analyst? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm retained by counsel, and I've got counsel 
23∙ ∙retained for all of this.∙ So I'm not an expert on the 
24∙ ∙validity of the documents. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙You're the fiduciary.∙ You're the trustee. 
  
Page 211 
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∙1∙ ∙You're the guy in charge.∙ You're the guy who hires your 
∙2∙ ∙counsel.∙ You tell them what to do. 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙So you found out that your former attorneys 
∙4∙ ∙committed fraud.∙ And my question is simple.∙ Did you do 
∙5∙ ∙anything, Ted Bernstein, to validate these documents, 
∙6∙ ∙the originals? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ That's already been answered in 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the negative.∙ I wrote it down.∙ Let's keep going. 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
10∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙As you sit here today, if the documents in 
12∙ ∙your mother's ‐‐ in the estates aren't validated and 
13∙ ∙certain documents are thrown out if the judge rules them 
14∙ ∙not valid, will you or your family gain or lose any 
15∙ ∙benefit in any scenario? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you repeat that for me, please?∙ I'm not 
17∙ ∙sure I'm understanding. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙If the judge invalidates some of the documents 
19∙ ∙here today, will you personally lose money, interest in 
20∙ ∙the estates and trusts as the trustee, your family, you? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I will not. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your family? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙My ‐‐ my children will. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So that's your family? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
  
Page 212 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So do you find that as a fiduciary to 
∙2∙ ∙be a conflict? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ No. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ I think it calls for a legal 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ conclusion. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
  
Page 215 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original will 
22∙ ∙of your father or mother that were in the Tescher & 
23∙ ∙Spallina vaults? 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I have no access, no. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original 
  
Page 216 
∙1∙ ∙copies of the trusts that Mr. Spallina testified were 
∙2∙ ∙sitting in their firm's file cabinets or vaults? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did not. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Now, did you find in your father's possessions 
∙5∙ ∙the duplicate originals of the trusts of him and your 
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∙6∙ ∙mother that we've talked about? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙And do you have any reason to believe that 
∙9∙ ∙they aren't valid, genuine and signed by your father on 
10∙ ∙the day that he ‐‐ your father and your mother on the 
11∙ ∙days that it says they signed them? 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙None whatsoever. 
  

Predetermined Trial, Missing Witnesses, Missing Originals and Discovery:  

137. Trial Transcript makes it crystal clear the Result of the “Trial” was predetermined by Phillips as 

alleged in post-trial motions49 and motions for Disqualification50. 

138. Missing Witnesses include Traci Kratish who gives contradictory statements to the Palm Beach 

Sheriff’s from the alleged Oppenheimer Trusts produced by Alan Rose and Steven Lessne and 

further contradicting filed documents by Robert Spallina in 2010 which are claimed as frauds, 

see above.  Kratish is allegedly also a Witness to certain operative Trusts/Wills/Instruments so 

an adverse inference against the core parties and in favor of this Petition should be drawn by the 

failure to produce Traci Kratish at the alleged Validity trial.  

139. Phillips made it clear, however, that he was not going to go beyond his “one day” trial thus fully 

prejudging the case and denies me from calling Alan Rose as a witness with 11 minutes 

remaining despite his direct involvement in the break of the chain of custody of dispositive 

documents and more and where Rose is also a served Counter Defendant in the Counter 

Complaint51 stayed by Colin in the Shirley Trust case and where Colin is also listed as a 

Material and Fact Witness and Potential Counter Defendant in the Party Heading in the case.  

                                                 
49 December 31, 2015 Motion for New Trial Stay Injunction 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20MOTION%
20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTION%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20CO
PY.pdf  
50 December 28, 2015 2nd Petition for Disqualification of Phillips  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151228%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20NOTARIZED
%20Second%20Disqualification%20of%20Judge%20Phillips%20after%20Validity%20Hearing%20on%2
0December%2015,%202015%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
51September 02, 2014 Stayed Counter Complaint 
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140. Other missing witnesses include: Kimberly Moran (arrested for 6 Fraudulent Notarizations and 

Admitted to 6 Forgies of Estate documents), Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, Diana Banks 

and others, who were all parties to various of the Estate and Trust documents. 

141. According to Peter Feaman and William Stansbury, Donald Tescher was “seen” at the 

Courthouse on Trial day but never called as a Witness.  

142. Spallina admits under oath at the hearing to having worked with Alan Rose in preparation for 

the trial. 

·3· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times have you spoken with 
·5· ·Alan Rose in the last three months? 
·6· · · · A.· ·Twice. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Did you prepare for this hearing in any way 
·8· ·with Alan Rose? 
·9· · · · A.· ·I did. 
10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Was that the two times you spoke to 
11· ·him? 
12· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
13· · · · Q.· ·Do you see any other of the parties that would 
14· ·be necessary to validate these trust documents in the 
15· ·court today? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Cumulative. 
17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 
December 15, 2015 Hearing Transcript Page 14952 

 

 , See Post‐Trial Motions and Disqualifications of Judge Phillips; see pending 4th DCA Writ of Prohibition 

appealing Original Phillips Denial of Disqualification53;  

 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140902%20Final%20Signed%20Printed%20Cou
nter%20Complaint%20Trustee%20Construction%20Lawsuit%20ECF%20Filing%20Copy.pdf 
52 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
53  
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Tescher‐Spallina Prosecuted by the SEC, yet Phillips, Rose, O’Connell, Foglietta, Ted 

Bernstein have left critical Originals, documents and evidence in their possession, thus this 

Court must now act:   

143. Other new evidence and facts have emerged during the relevant time this federal action has been 

waiting to come back on the calendar where the Estate Planning attorneys for my now deceased 

parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein, being attorneys Tescher & Spallina of Boca Raton, have 

been charged by the SEC with violations of federal Insider Trading and breaches of fiduciary 

duties to other clients and now entered into formal Consent Orders with the SEC54, and yet the 

involved judicial actors of the Florida Probate Courts, attorney Alan Rose, Ted Bernstein, and 

the PR attorneys Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta for the Simon Bernstein Estate have 

permitted years of “ORIGINAL” documents and business records relevant to this action to 

remain in the possession of Tescher and Spallina despite their being Court Ordered 

approximately 2 years ago to turn over “ALL”55 records upon their removal after admitting to 

fraudulently creating a Shirley Trust, thus creating an imminent danger that further vital 

Original documents and evidence relevant to this federal action will also go “ permanently lost” 

or be destroyed further justifying the need for an immediate injunction herein.  
                                                 
54 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER TRADING 
CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
AND 
September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
AND 
October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 2015 and 
TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
55 February 18, 2014 Order Demanding ALL TESCHER and SPALLINA records be turned over to the 
Replacement Curator Benjamin Brown 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20
PETITION%20FOR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP
004391XXXXSB%20SIMON.pdf  
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144. As this Court may recall from the Summary Judgment filings herein, attorney Robert Spallina 

sought to have the proceeds of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy paid to his office by 

signing a Death Benefit Claim as the Trustee of a Trust also “lost” and which he claims in 

testimony and other parole evidence obtained that he had nothing to with the trust or insurance 

policy, including stating this in his recent testimony at the Validity hearing and further he was 

being addressed in communications over several months by Heritage Union Life Insurance as 

“Trustee” of the “La Salle Trust” and yet the parties kept LaSalle out of this federal case where 

Financial Disclosures of Florida Probate Judge Martin Colin now publicly available due to the 

Palm Beach Post Investigative series show Judge Colin has had an ongoing financial business 

relationship with La Salle for all relevant years and yet never Disclosed this on the record 

despite knowing and having actual knowledge that La Salle was a Defendant in a counter-

complaint56 filed by myself in his Court as of July, 2014 in relation to an Oppenheimer Trust 

instigated lawsuit against Eliot’s children that Colin immediately stayed57 despite knowing of 

the conflict this represented as a potential Counter Defendant and as a Material and Fact 

Witness to certain fraud in and on and by his court.  

145. This Court must now act and use its Injunctive powers over the parties currently within its 

jurisdiction to restrain. obtain, produce and preserve the critical evidence, documents and 

records and Discovery necessary from all parties including the probate court files in aid of it’s 

own jurisdiction.  

Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose involved with New Fraud Company to hide Ownership of 
Assets at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl ; Further Need for Injunctive Relief  

                                                 
56July 30, 3014 Answer and Counter Complaint Oppenheimer lawsuit v Eliot Minor Children 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140730%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Answer%20and%20Counter%20Oppenheimer.pdf 
57 August 06, 2014 Oppenheimer Counter Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140806%20REFILED%2020140730%20PRINTE
D%20SIGNED%20ECF%20STAMPED%20Counter%20Complaint%20Oppenheimer%20Lawsuit-2.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 61 of 132 PageID #:3695

BATES NO. EIB 000514 
02/27/2017



Page 61 of 132 

 

146. On Feb. 18, 2016 I had a personal conversation with one Leilani Ochoada of Orlando, Florida 

after discovering information at the Florida Secretary of State website www.sunbiz.org 

regarding a false company set up as 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc., shown on a Deed 

purportedly signed and transferred by Ted Bernstein of the property at 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton which was my parent’s St. Andrews home. See, Deed signed by Ted Bernstein and 

Alan Rose58.  

147. The sunbiz.org website showed this 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc. company had a False and 

Inactive ( Dissolved ) company listed as it’s Registered Agent which according to Melanie 

Sellers at the Florida Division of Corporations should not have made it through the Secretary of 

State’s Office to be filed as the Registered Agent must be a valid and active company. See  

Document Number P15000049545 filed 6/4/15 which is the reference number on the Lions 

Head Land Trust Inc. filing.  See Document Number P1500004954559  

148. The Registered Agent is listed as ISL, Inc. with an address at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 which is also the address listed as the Principal Place of Business 

for Lions Head Land Trust, Inc.  

149. According to www.sunbiz.org  the ISL, Inc. company listed as Registered Agent by Lions Head 

Land Trust Inc. has been INACTIVE and Dissolved since 1997 according to Secretary of State 

Document Number P96000079975 and this has been confirmed by staff at the Division of 

                                                 
58 DEED 
www.iviewit.tv/DEEDLIONSHEADLANDTRUSTINC7020LIONSHEADLANEBOCARATONFLSALE.pdf  
 
59 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545Articles.pdf - Articles of Incorporation 

    www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545DetailsCorp.pdf - Detail of Corp 
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Corporations who were initiating inquiry and investigation. See, Document Number 

P9600007997560 

150. Upon information and belief, the actual licensed business at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 is Incorporating Services, LTD and the person at phone number 

(850) 656-7956 says there is no ISL, Inc. at that address and no company like Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc. has principal offices at the 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

address.  

151. Upon speaking to Leilani Ochoada who is listed as the “Incorporator” of Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc., using an Address on the Articles of Incorporation as 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca 

Raton, Fl 33496 Leilani says she will come forward with an Affidavit for federal and state court 

and Investigators as follows upon information and belief: 1) She has no knowledge of Lions 

Head Land Trust, Inc. at all ; 2) She never authorized anyone to use her name as an 

Incorporator; 3) Until Feb. 18th 2016 had no knowledge any entity was incorporated by filings 

at the Fla Secretary of State under her name and had no involvement with any land transaction 

involving 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, F; 4) She initially believed it was some form of 

identity theft when she got the call and looked into it further; 5) She  never lived at any Boca 

Raton, Fl address in general and never at 7020 Lions Head Land Trust Inc. and is from Orlando, 

Fl; 6) She found out an attorney that had an Office building where her company rented space in 

Orlando used her name as this Incorporator  without permission and never knew about any land 

deal with Mitch Huhem/ Laurence Pino or anything related to this property with Laurence Pino 

being the attorney who apparently did this expressly stating he was trying to hide Mitch Huhem 

from the public record as part of this transaction; 7) She knew absolutely nothing about the 

Articles of Incorporation and the addresses and companies named there using her name; 8) 
                                                 
60 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP96000079975.pdf - Details of Corp 
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Attorney Laurence Pino never had Leilani's permission to incorporate any entity using her name 

as an Incorporator either by signed document or Electronically ; 9)  Pino has not been able to 

produce any written document that she allegedly signed with his office; 10)  Pino's Exec 

Assistant Cathy can not find Any document signed by Leilani after reviewing the files 

supporting Leilani’s version of the events that she had no knowledge and no involvement.   

152. Thus, Ted Bernstein and Attorney Alan Rose knew and had to know by the most basic due 

diligence reviewing the company's data of Lion Head Land Trust, Inc. as the alleged “buyer” in 

this Real Estate transaction which was never approved or authorized by myself that the 

Company was False and Fraudulent as Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose knew and had to know 

Leilani Ochoada had never met them before and surely did not have an address at 7020 Lions 

Head Lane, Boca Raton Fl 33467 and thus Ted and Alan are again in the middle of fraud this 

time in a direct manner to SECRET away and HIDE ASSETS and this Court must now use its 

Injunctive powers herein.  

153. This US District Court clearly has jurisdiction over Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose has 

“appeared” in the federal case as Attorney for Ted Bernstein at a Deposition and thus this Court 

should also have proper power under the All Writs Act and Anti Injunction Act to reach Alan 

Rose as well until such time he is formally served with a Summons and Amended Complaint 

where he is among several parties I am seeking to add to this action herein and should now be 

enjoined until further Order of this Court from all actions on behalf of Ted Bernstein and related 

to the matters herein.   

Sharp, Fraudulent practices and Abuse of Process, sham hearings, Alan Rose, Steven Lessnee, Judge 
Phillips wherein this Court should at least Temporarily Enjoin proceedings before Judge Phillips 
specifically including a Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 proceeding this week at 3:15 PM EST until further 

Order of this Court:  
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In addition to the grounds set forth above where Alan Rose and Steven Lessne both should be Disqualified 

from representation as Material fact witnesses in the Stanford-Oppenheimer-JP Morgan Trust documents 

involving Gerald Lewin, Traci Kratish and others, both attorneys have engaged in Sharp and abusive practices 

by:  

1. filing motions with minimal Notice during times I have Noticed as Unavailable for medical reasons;  
2. seeking to hear at 5 Minute UMC Motion dates complex matters knowingly requiring Hearings;  
3. seeking to have Ordered at such Motion dates hundreds of thousands of dollars in attorneys fees 

without providing ANY Billing statements;  
4. Falsely presenting to the Florida Courts knowing misrepresentations of claimed Injunctions against 

me by SDNY Judge Shira Scheindlin and directly misrepresenting the truth and actual language;  
5. pursuing Guardianship as a retaliatory tool against seeking truth and disclosure and justice.  

 
This Court should now Enjoin and Restrain Alan Rose who is under this Court’s jurisdiction as having 

appeared in a federal court deposition for Ted Bernstein who is under the Court’s jurisdiction,  or at least 

enjoining Ted Bernstein and the Probate Court of Judge Phillips at least temporarily.  

 
“Side-Deals” and “Agreements” Thwarting and Impairing this Court’s Jurisdiction  

 
It is expressly known that “some form” of side deal - agreement is in place where somehow Creditor William 

Stansbury has some “settlement” with Ted Bernstein yet the terms are completely unknown and should be 

fully disclosed and while William Stansbury has been very helpful to myself and my family in many ways the 

actions of his attorney Peter Feaman in not pursuing avenues of relief combined with the orchestrated actions 

of O’Connell and Rose demand this Court exercise it’s injunctive and inherent powers to determine how such 

off record agreements are manipulating the integrity of both federal and state proceedings and the court 

should further act upon and resolve the conflicts of interests of the attorneys and for those not under the 

Court’s jurisdiction I pray for leave to Amend to add parties and claims herein.  

 

Piece-Meal Documentary Proof of “Missing Millions” and “Missing Files-Records”  
 

154. While it is presently unknown to Eliot when COLIN first gained knowledge of the sizable 

holdings of Simon and Shirley Bernstein or when COLIN first had involvement in Bernstein 

family matters inside or outside the Courthouse, Court records and documentary evidence show 

COLIN becoming involved in both the Estate cases of Shirley and Simon Bernstein in at least 
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2010 for Shirley Bernstein and 2012 for Simon Bernstein when he took over his Estate case 

from FRENCH. 

155. From the minimal records and Discovery obtained by Eliot via Court Ordered Production of 

Tescher & Spallina, PA upon their removal, Simon Bernstein had assets and holdings of over 

$13 Million plus in Investments Accounts, Private Banking Accounts, checking accounts, 

retirement accounts etc since 2008 when Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA 

were doing Estate Family Planning for Simon and Shirley Bernstein plus over $5 Million in real 

estate based upon Listings of the properties weeks prior to Simon’s passing.   

156. That the Tescher & Spallina PA, production documents which are Not Originals are not 

transferred to the replacement Curator, Benjamin Brown, Esq. until on or about June 02, 2014, 

nearly a year after Eliot first reported to the COLIN court that Fraud Upon the Court had taken 

place and approximately nine months since the September 13, 2013 hearing before COLIN 

where he had admissions from the lawyers and fiduciaries that Fraudulent Documents had been 

submitted to the Court by Tescher & Spallina PA.   

157. The failure of COLIN to seize the records of all parties involved that committed Fraud Upon his 

court allowed the parties involved to begin to prepare further alleged fraudulent documents to 

attempt to cover up for the crimes exposed in Eliot’s May 2013 pleading, subsequent pleadings 

and criminal complaints they were then being investigated in. 

158. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the multitude 

of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 

c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 
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d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years,  

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was tendered to the 

Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s children’s home that 

was never filed with the courts. 

159. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction and despite Eliot being allowed to be 

present at any inventory of the office, Eliot was never contacted to appear. 

160. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records. 

161. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters home for lighting issue and alleges to have 

discovered and then removed documents and trust documents included from the home, despite 

that he had no legal authority to remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

162. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 
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representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was virtually no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

163. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS001503-TS001506, by Letter 

dated June 25, 2013 from Grant Thornton, under Primary Express Account 309513, Payee 

Bernstein Family Investments LLP, regarding a claim against Stanford Bank International 

Limited ( “the Company”), a Claim was allowed for $1,062,734.50 in the Antiguan Estate.  

The Letter references that there may be “more letters of notification in order to 

incorporate all CDs.” Where the CD’s my father held on information and belief were only 

a small fraction, one to two percent of his holdings. 

164. However, by Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS003734 the STANFORD Simon & 

Shirley Bernstein Valuations as of 5/28/2008 reflect a Net Worth for that Statement at    

$6, 928,933.52 ( Million ) with $839,362.12 in Cash Available.  

165. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS004808 by Statement dated 

Aug. 31, 2012 (two weeks before Simon’s death) in the Wilmington Trust Investment 

Details for 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrev TR the Grand Total $2,829,961.66, thus 

this nearly $3 Million remains wholly Unaccounted for and according to William 

Stansbury this value may be doubled to Over $6 Million when Shirley Bernstein’s 49% of 

this account is factored in, which also remains Unaccounted for.   
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166. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production already exhibited herein TED allegedly settled 

Simon’s $2,000,000.00 of CD’s with Stanford with Grant Thornton for $1,062,734.50. There is 

no complete accounting.  

167. From Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS005459 Simon Bernstein BankOne checking 

activity Acct MI/FL/Ga Checking XXXX7231 $67,402.08 was the available Balance in that 

account as of 10/15/12 just after Simon Bernstein’s passing with $109,456.67 available as of 

Sept. 7, 2012 just a short time before his passing for that account.   

168. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS005478 JP Morgan Bernstein Family 

Investment LLP Acct. W32635000 showed $1,872,810.91 for a 49.5% interest in the total 

Market Value with Accruals with $807,289.79 Cash included for Statement covering 

8/1/12-8/31/12 just weeks before Simon Bernstein’s passing.  

169. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004765 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Account No. 

000000849197231 showing Total Payments & Transfers of $97,793.74 for the period 8/10/12 to 

9/12/12 up to Simon’s passing.  

170. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004820 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Trust Robert 

M. Spallina Donald L. Tescher Trustees Primary Account 000000478018083 Dec. 20, 2013 

Balance $150,177.17 with an “Internal Transfer” of $100,000.00 on Dec. 20, 2015. It is 

unknown what this “Internal Transfer” was for that occurred over a year after Simon’s passing. 

171. By email dated Feb. 8, 2013 Victoria Roraff, Registered Client Service Associate of 

OPPENHEIMER of the Boca Raton, Florida office writing to SPALLINA she admits she does 

not have a File on all of the STANFORD Accounts but provides how some of the accounts 
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air without any distribution at all to Eliot and his family who are beneficiaries under any 

beneficiary scenario asserted by any party and they have provided No accountings that show the 

total holdings from the date of the decedents’ deaths to date, in violation of Probate Rules and 

Regulations and fail to show where the vanished holdings have gone in 2.5 years justifying a 

preliminary injunction at this time.   

173. These numbers from the minimal bare discovery obtained to date do not include and are without 

any accounting for the value of Simon’s holdings in the Intellectual Properties of “Iviewit” 

which propels the Estate and Trust to one of the largest in the country when royalties are finally 

monetized. 

174. The value of the VEBA which is already part of this federal litigation involving the Illinois life 

insurance is but one of many unknown assets in this case and it is unknown what happened to 

the VEBA assets once the VEBA was unwound as alleged by Counter-Defendants and Third-

Party Defendants.  

175. Certain documentary evidence shows the VEBA may have been worth $50 Million or more 

with Simon and Shirley as primary plan participants, yet this asset and these funds have also 

allegedly disappeared and vanished according to Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants PAMELA, TED, D. SIMON, A. SIMON and other defendants and again with no 

accountings and no records provided to beneficiaries or this Court.61  Where the VEBA Trust 

Trustee LASALLE is according to all parties the named PRIMARY BENEFICIARY of the 

missing insurance policy underlying this action. 

S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A 

Employer Identification Number (EIN) 363479122

                                                 
61 S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A Information 
http://www.nonprofitfacts.com/IL/S-B-Lexington-Inc-Death-Benefit-Plan-United-Bank-Of-
Illinois-N-A.html  
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Name of Organization S B Lexington Inc Death Benefit Plan United Bank Of Illinois N A

Address 120 W State St, Rockford, IL 61101-1125 
Subsection Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (Non-Govt. Emps.)

Foundation All organizations except 501(c)(3) 
Organization Corporation

Exempt Organization Status Unconditional Exemption 
Tax Period 2009

Assets $50,000,000 to greater 
Income $10,000,000 to $49,999,999 

Filing Requirement 990 - Required to file Form 990-N - Income less than $25,000 per year

Asset Amount $0

Amount of Income $0

Form 990 Revenue Amount $0

 

176. On or about September 2012, Eliot discovered that his father Simon Bernstein’s home office 

computers had been virtually wiped clean of data, dispositive documents removed from the 

home by a one Rachel Walker minutes after Simon died causing reasonable and great suspicion 

when considering the sudden and alleged suspicious manner of passing, the allegations of 

Simon’s being poisoned made by his brother TED and others and the millions of dollars in 

holdings Simon Bernstein had after decades of being in business thus beginning a continuing 

and ongoing pattern of missing documents, missing information, missing trusts, missing IRA 

beneficiaries, missing insurance policies and missing evidence which now must be halted and 

enjoined. 

177. Thus, the destruction and loss of vital business records and account records began by the time of 

Simon’s passing in 2012 if not earlier. 

178. On or about Nov. 1, 2013 and Dec. 10, 2013 Eliot pro se filed a motion to Produce against TED 

as the Personal Representative in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein yet no such production has 

been forthcoming by TED to date. 
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179. That Eliot also filed an extensive production request of O’Connell the Personal Representative 

of the Estate of Simon now and O’Connell challenged the routine request and the court has not 

yet made determination, thereby further denying Eliot necessary documentation of the Estate of 

Simon and making it impossible to have Validity or Construction hearings without either 

obtaining the records or having a statement as to where they are. 

180. The Court should note that despite having a court order from COLIN to inventory Simon’s 

home and office business records and produce the inventory to beneficiaries and interested 

parties, despite reassurances from O’Connell that the documents and records would be 

inventoried, no such inventory was produced.  It was later learned that O’CONNELL nor his 

office inventoried Simon’s business address for records as court ordered and by the time this 

was learned it was also learned that TED had been evicted from the office and removed all the 

records from that address before the court ordered inventorying could be done. 

181. The Court should note that COLIN ordered a re-inventorying of assets as it was learned that 

Personal Property from the Shirley Condo sale was missing and where TED claimed it was 

moved to the garages of his father’s primary home and months later when the re-inventorying 

was done it was found that all these items were missing and the garages were empty.  Despite 

learning of this O’CONNELL has taken no action to report the missing Personal Property that is 

in his custody to the proper authorities and further took possession of remaining items and 

moved them to an undisclosed location. 

182. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the 

multitude of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 
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c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 

d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, 

Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon 

owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years, 

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was 

tendered to the Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s 

children’s home that was never filed with the courts. 

183. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction. 

184. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records 

and he failed to inventory all of the Personal Property as required, stating they were out of time. 

185. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters the home for alleged lighting issues and alleges to 

have discovered and then removed illegally documents and trust documents included from the 
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home which were under the custody of O’Connell, despite that he had no legal authority to 

remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

186. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 

representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

187. That Simon had almost a fifty year career in the insurance industry and had multiple active 

companies, including having had multiple trust companies for various of his products he 

invented and Simon was a meticulous record keeper and had massive office space housing 

records prior to his death.  Simon had computer records dating back 20 years and all these 

records and data now appear missing.   

188. Mail from the day he died and prior to his death appears missing, including bank statements, 

insurance records for home, life and property insurances, insurance commission checks, 

insurance policy records, credit card statements and virtually all of his mail is unaccounted for.  

Years of personal finance records of his many Private Banking Accounts and Statements all 

missing from his records for accounts held at Oppenheimer, Stanford, JP Morgan, Sabadell 

Bank, Legacy Bank, Wilmington Trust, Wells Fargo, etc.  Tax Returns missing. Trust 

Documents Missing. Insurance Policies Missing for both he and Shirley. IRA account histories 

missing.  Pension account information missing.  According to O’Connell Simon and Shirley’s 

business and personal finance records were in less than three banker boxes.  No hard drives 
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have been recovered and data from them produced.  All records of his 17 year involvement with 

the Iviewit Technology Companies, including his stock in the companies and copies of 

Intellectual Property Filings and more, which I had seen at his office only a few months prior to 

his death are all missing, including thousands of emails regarding the companies and other 

pertinent information that Simon was safekeeping after it was seized from the companies on or 

about 2000-2001.  Overall the contents of Simon’s home and office records should have 

amounted to over 100 banker boxes filled and gigabytes of data. 

Ted Bernstein, Greenberg Traurig, Stanford Trust, Robert Spallina, Proskauer Rose  

189. TED is the oldest son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, now deceased.  

190. Simon Bernstein passed away in Sept. of 2012, having predeceased his wife Shirley Bernstein 

who passed away in Dec. 2010.  

191. Ted was the last person in possession of my Mini-van before it was turned over to the body 

company where it was burglarized with wires taken out and a PD report generated and then 

taken to another company where it was Car-bombed.  

192. While Ted Bernstein had been asked to come forward to the FBI about the circumstances of the 

Car-bombing he has never done so to my knowledge.  

193. TED was living in the home of Simon Bernstein pulling his life together prior to the Car-

bombing of Eliot’s family vehicle in 2005.  

194. TED soon thereafter was commingling with PROSKAUER, LEWIN and Greenberg Traurig  

and suddenly gets a Multi-million dollar home on the intra-coastal waters.62 TED has other 

insurance business relationships with Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA right 

                                                 
62 Zillow Listing TED Home @ http://www.zillow.com/homes/880-Berkeley-St-Boca-Raton-FL-
33487_rb/?fromHomePage=true&shouldFireSellPageImplicitClaimGA=false  
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from the outset of their involvement in Simon and Shirley’s Estate Planning and TED brings 

them to his father claiming they will be a rich source of referrals for him.  

195. Greenberg Traurig (“GT”) who was involved with the Iviewit IP and Iviewit Bar Complaints 

and Federal RICO and ANTITRUST lawsuit of Eliot, also represented TED personally in the 

lawsuit that also involves the Estates and Trusts of Simon and Shirley with Stansbury - GT main 

defendant with PROSKAUER in the STANFORD litigation. 

196. TESCHER under deposition can not remember why he gets checks of $55k twice from one of 

TED companies.63  

197. STANFORD is one fund that Simon Bernstein invested substantial monies in and eventually  

STANFORD broke open as a major Ponzi scheme on or about Feb. 2009 and is claimed as a $7 

Billion plus ponzi scheme, See, SEC public Announcement Feb. 17, 2009: 

“ SEC Charges R. Allen Stanford, Stanford International Bank for Multi-
Billion Dollar Investment Scheme FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 2009-26: 
Washington, D.C., Feb. 17, 2009 — The Securities and Exchange Commission 
today charged Robert Allen Stanford and three of his companies for 
orchestrating a fraudulent, multi-billion dollar investment scheme centering on 
an $8 billion CD program.64”   
 

198. According to the SEC public statement,  

“Rose Romero, Regional Director of the SEC's Fort Worth Regional Office, 
added, "We are alleging a fraud of shocking magnitude that has spread its 
tentacles throughout the world.”  
 

                                                 
63 July 09, 2014 Tescher Deposition by Florida counsel Peter Feaman on behalf of William 
Stansbury 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20
Exhibits.pdf  
64 February 07, 2009 SEC PRESS REPORT ALLEN STANFORD PONZI 
https://www.sec.gov/news/press/2009/2009-26.htm 
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199. According to public articles, PROSKAUER and GREENBERG TRAURIG are centrally 

involved in the Stanford Ponzi and are being sued for the entire scheme65.   

200. Upon information and belief, William Stansbury has not able to get info on the Retirement 

Plans from TED even as a Co-Trustee and Stansbury’s lawyer Peter Feaman has no response 

from ROSE .  

201. According to Stansbury, approximately $6500 or so per each minor child that should have been 

paid out and not gone through Estate. 

202. Further, upon information and belief,  TED is under Dept of Labor Investigation and has been  

non responsive to beneficiaries and again with no accountings the numbers seem strikingly low.  

Simon Bernstein’s “Missing Iviewit Shares, Proskauer Iviewit Files and Iviewit”, “Missing Estate 

Planning” from Proskauer Rose and Foley Lardner 
 

203. Eliot is the natural son of Simon and Shirley Bernstein, who both resided in Boca Raton, Florida 

within Palm Beach county at relevant times herein.  

204. Shortly after the birth of their first son in California, Joshua, Eliot and Candice Bernstein were 

about to move into a new home with their child. 

205. That Simon and Shirley however had taken ill at the time and traveling to California was 

burdensome at the time and Eliot and Candice proposed moving to Florida and Candice would 

move from her hometown of Newport Beach/Corona Del Mar where her and her family lived 

and where she had met and married Eliot.  Candice willing to give up everything to be with 

Eliot’s parents and have her baby with them and so they moved. 

                                                 
65 July 27, 2015 Proskauer Rose, Greenberg Traurig and Chadbourne sued in STANFORD PONZI 
Judge refuses to dismiss 
http://www.americanlawyer.com/id=1202732467400/Judge-Declines-to-Dismiss-Claims-Against-
Proskauer-and-Chadbourne?slreturn=20151101125935  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 78 of 132 PageID #:3712

BATES NO. EIB 000531 
02/27/2017



Page 78 of 132 

206. Simon and Shirley were elated to have their son, his wife and grandson close to them and they 

gave Eliot and Candice a $100,000.00 wedding gift as a deposit at a Condominium on Mizner 

Boulevard in Boca Raton and where decorating it prior to Eliot and Candice’s arrival. 

207. Where the owner of the building, a one James Cohen was a client of Simon’s and so it was a 

spectacular deal on a brand new trio of buildings in the heart of Boca, which property had 

fantastic growth in a short time. 

208. Life was great in Boca working with Simon for the first time in his life in the same city, every 

week like clockwork Eliot, Candice and the children had brunch on Sunday, dinner at least once 

a week with them and then golf or a movie.  A second son was born, JNAB.  

209. At all relevant times herein, since on or about 1998, Eliot is the actual and true Owner and 

Inventor of Intellectual Properties ( hereinafter referred to as “IP” ) and the technologies 

hereinafter referred to as the “Iviewit” technologies were technologies heralded by leading 

experts as the “Holy Grail” of the Internet, being backbone technologies used around the globe 

for digital imaging, having major and significant “government” uses such as used on the Hubble 

Space telescope, for a mass of defense applications such as, Space and Flight Simulators, 

Drones, Medical Imaging applications and much much more.      

210. Once the technologies were discovered Simon and Eliot formed companies and secured 

Intellectual Properties through LEWIN and PROSKAUER, raised seed capital from H. Wayne 

Huizenga, Crossbow Ventures and many other seed investors, had a Private Placement with 

Wachovia and already had Goldman Sachs referring clients and getting the companies ready for 

an IPO that some claimed would make the companies larger than Microsoft, as the IP would 

become the backbone technologies to virtually all digital imaging and video content creation 

and distribution software and hardware and more. 
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211. The “Iviewit” technologies were tested used and validated by leading engineers and companies 

including but not limited to Gerald Stanley of Real3d Inc., engineers at Lockheed Martin, the 

Intel Corporation, Silicon Graphics, Inc., AOLTW ( America Online-Time Warner), Sony and 

Warner Bros., with the IP having been valued in the Billions to Trillions of dollars over the life 

of the IP.  

212. Hundreds of signed Non-Disclosure Agreements, Licensing and Strategic Alliance Agreements 

were obtained on behalf of the technologies involving Fortune 500 companies, financial 

institutions and others such as Lockheed Martin, the Intel Corporation Inc., Goldman Sachs, 

Wachovia, JPM, Chase, IBM, AT&T, Warner Bros, Sony, Inc., Dell Inc, and many others, all 

currently and since that time using Inventor Bernstein’s Scaling Technologies IP without paying 

royalties to the true and proper inventors and violating their contracts.  

213. The Internet would not have rich video or imaging and cable television would have 75% less 

channel bandwidth available without these technologies. 

214. Simon L. Bernstein was a lifelong successful Life Insurance salesman growing many businesses 

and gaining substantial wealth during his lifetime, earning millions in income yearly such that 

he was a “Private Banking” client of leading US and International Banks, and he and his wife 

had a fully paid multi-million dollar home in Boca Raton, Fl, at the leading country golf club 

Saint Andrews and a fully paid multi-million dollar beachfront Condominium on Ocean Blvd. 

in Boca Raton, Fl. with their own private floor and elevator.   

215. On or about 1997, Simon L. Bernstein an original seed capital investor in Counter Plaintiff’s 

novel technologies and IP, which later became known as the “Iviewit” technologies and Simon 

Bernstein became a 30 percent shareholder of company stock issued for operational and holding 

companies for the Intellectual Properties and 30 percent owner of the Intellectual Properties and 
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he also became the Chairman of the Board, all companies originally formed by PROSKAUER 

and accountant LEWIN.  

216. PROSKAUER and LEWIN were both not only intimately involved in the “Iviewit” Company 

operations and were stockholders on gifts Eliot gave Proskauer and Lewin’s family, but further 

provided Estate and Family Planning advice to Simon who had now become a 30% shareholder 

in the Iviewit IP and Iviewit companies.  

217. PROSKAUER prepared Wills, Trusts and other Estate Planning instruments for Simon and 

Shirley Bernstein while PROSKAUER was simultaneously acting as Counsel, including 

Intellectual Property Counsel for the Iviewit companies.  

218. With the “Iviewit” Technologies having been valued by leading Experts in the billions of 

dollars by Proskauer referred technology companies, since on or about 2001 to the present, Eliot 

and his wife Candice and their minor children have experienced an ongoing pattern and practice 

of extortionate actions, threats, death threats so real as to include but not be limited to the car-

bombing of the family mini-van in Boynton Beach, Florida on or about March 14, 2005.  

  

This image cannot currently be displayed.

This image cannot currently be displayed.
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courts and fraudulent documents sent to private institutional banking and trust companies, 

fraudulent creation of similarly named companies and similarly named IP in efforts to move the 

IP into other people’s names, one patent attorney, Raymond Joao, who misrepresented himself 

with his partner Kenneth Rubenstein as being partners of PROSKAUER when actually at that 

time they were with Meltzer, Lippe, Goldstein, Wolf & Schlissel, P.C. and where Joao put 90+ 

patents in his own name66 and when this was discovered he left his law firm and went to work 

for New York Senator Dean Skelos’ law firm Ruskin, Moscou, Evans & Faltischek and where 

Skelos and his son are currently on trial in NY with charges of corruption by US Attorney Preet 

Bharara), all combined to further the fraud and maintain control of the IP for the perpetrators. 

222. Joao further worked after Iviewit with the now infamous Ponzi schemer Marc Stuart Dreier, 

sentenced to 20 years by the Department of Justice at the law firm Dreier & Barritz LLP.   

223. The Perpetrators of the frauds alleged herein are primarily composed of criminals with law 

degrees acting in concert and Misusing the law while acting as Private and Public Attorneys at 

Law in their various capacities.   

224. That the reason Eliot’s complaints are full of Attorneys at Law and Judges is that the crimes 

alleged in both the Probate Court and those regarding the IP crimes are both sophisticated legal 

crimes that require a legal degree and bar association license to commit and involve misusing 

the Courts and Government Agencies to implement the crimes,  Then to protect the alleged 

criminals from prosecution the victims are then further victimized through denial of due process 

and where legal process appears controlled by the criminals and infiltrate at will through 

conflicts and more, and finally claiming that because of their legal positions they are “immune” 

from their criminal and civil acts because they are acting as Attorneys at Law or Judges.  Where 

                                                 
66 April 22, 2002 Article Iviewit Patent Attorney Raymond Joao, Esq. has 90+ patents in his name 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Joao%20Article%2090%20patents%20clean.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 83 of 132 PageID #:3717

BATES NO. EIB 000536 
02/27/2017



Page 83 of 132 

in fact it should be the opposite to protect the public and where those who violate their ethics 

should be charged with treble damages instead. 

225. Since on or about 1999 Eliot has consistently and diligently reported criminal actions relating to 

the crimes committed against the Iviewit shareholders, investors, patent interest owners, himself 

and his family relating to their IP rights, crimes committed primarily by lawyers, to a host of 

federal, state and local authorities as well as international bodies.67    

226. This reporting and petitioning government entities of ongoing criminal actions and thefts of the 

IP includes a Feb. 2009 Petition to the Office of President Barack Obama, the White House 

Counsel’s Office, US Attorney General’s Office, White Collar crime units of the FBI as well as 

several petitions to the SEC in 200968.  

227. One could say that greed was the motivating factor behind these IP crimes, “holy grail” and 

“priceless” evaluations from leading engineers worldwide, until one discovers that Christopher 

Wheeler (Proskauer), Brian G. Utley (IBM) and William Dick (Foley & Lardner and former 

IBM far eastern IP counsel) had secreted the fact that prior to joining the Iviewit companies 

they had worked together for a Florida philanthropist Monte Friedkin who had fired them all for 

attempting to steal intellectual properties from his company Diamond Turf Equipment Co, 

which he had to shutter and take a multimillion dollar loss after learning of their attempt to steal 

his IP.  On the biography of Utley that Wheeler sold to the Iviewit board it stated that the 

company had went on to be a leader in Turf Equipment due to Utley’s innovations instead.  

With this truth it became clear that a pattern and practice of IP theft was in play, nothing to do 

                                                 
67  Investigation Master Chart @  
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm 
68 February 13, 2009 Letter to Hon. President Barack Hussein Obama re Iviewit @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20Distric
t%20NY/20090213%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20LETTER%20OBAMA%20TO%20ENJOIN%
20US%20ATTORNEY%20FINGERED%20ORIGINAL%20MAIL%20l.pdf  
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with Iviewit or greed, a well greased group of players who were perfecting their crimes, in fact, 

the alleged Iviewit thefts mirror the Diamond Turf attempt with Wheeler, Utley and Dick all 

involved in similar acts.   

228. The veracity and truthfulness of Counter-Plaintiff’s statements and reporting of these crimes 

and thefts has never been challenged by any Federal authority including but not limited to the 

US Secret Service, the Capitol Police, the US Marshall’s Service, the FBI, the SEC, at least one 

Federal Judge and other related federal offices.   

229. In 1999 it was learned that IP counsel, Joao from PROSKAUER and Meltzer Lippe Goldstein & 

Schlissel, tampered with Iviewit IP applications and was also putting Iviewit IP into his own 

name, while retained as counsel for the companies. 

230. On or about 2000-2001 it was learned that the IP was fraudulently altered and that false 

inventors were inserted into various IP’s, that there were similarly named yet different IP 

applications filed some entirely missing the invention process being patented and that the 

companies formed were duplicated as part of an elaborate shell game to move the IP out of the 

Iviewit shareholders ownership and into others hands. 

231. As IP applications were seized from Brian Utley, who was acting as President / COO to Iviewit 

at the time, on referral from his friend Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. at PROSKAUER and 

William Dick, Esq. his business associate and patent counsel for IBM who was new IP counsel 

hired by Iviewit to replace Joao who was caught putting IP in his name.  Dick worked at 

FOLEY as of counsel.   

232. It was then learned that the IP was in the wrong names, the assignees/owners were all wrong 

according to Harry I. Moatz, the Director of Enrollment and Discipline at the US Patent Office, 

which led to Moatz directing Eliot to file with the Commissioner of Patents allegations that 
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FRAUD UPON THE US PATENT OFFICE had occurred and seeking suspension of the IP 

while Moatz and an FBI Agent from West Palm Beach, FL were investigating the matters.  

Suspensions were granted. 

233. Warner Bros. finds different  IP then Utley showed them and stated that their patent expert, 

Wayne Smith, Esq. had gone to the US Patent Office and what was on file did not capture the 

invention, nor is what Utley showed them when presenting them a Wachovia Private Placement 

and seeking investment funds. 

234. Shortly after Eliot and his friend, co-inventor and investor and executive at the Iviewit 

companies, James Armstrong, seized the IP applications and information from Utley and Eliot 

went back to California where he was opening a new HQ office in the Warner Bros. Advanced 

Tech Building in Glendale and taking over their video operations.  Eliot began preparing and 

filing federal and state complaints.  Utley then came unannounced to California and levied 

death threats to Eliot claiming that he and his friends Wheeler of PROSKAUER, Dick of 

FOLEY et al. were very powerful and their law firms were too and that if Eliot disclosed the 

findings to the board or others he would have to watch his back and the backs of his wife and 

kids back in Boca.  Eliot contacted the Rancho Palos Verdes Police and Long Beach, CA FBI 

office and reported the incident. 

235. After a board meeting with certain board members including Simon, LEWIN, Donald Kane of 

Goldman Sachs, H. Hickman Powell of Crossbow Ventures/Alpine regarding the threats by 

Utley it was determined that Eliot should stay in LA and his wife and kids would leave Florida 

overnight until things could be sorted out in FL with Utley, PROSKAUER, FOLEY, Wheeler, 

Dick et al. and deal with the threats on Eliot’s family lives that were made by Utley and 

reported to the proper authorities.   
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236. The result the Board members determined was to close the Boca Raton, Fl office and fire all the 

bad players involved, move Eliot’s family overnight to California, in what was just being 

learned to be an attempt to steal the IP by Iviewit’s attorneys at law hired to protect the IP. 

237. Upon information and belief, LABARGA, is presently the Chief Judge of the Florida State 

Supreme Court.  

238. On or about 2002-2003, LABARGA was a District Judge in Palm Beach County assigned to a 

“billing” lawsuit (undisclosed to the Iviewit shareholders, board members, executives and 

potential investors) brought by PROSKAUER after the PROSKAUER firm had done work for 

Eliot, Simon and the “Iviewit” companies and PROSKAUER gaining Confidential information 

about the “Iviewit” technologies and confidential information about their own clients and 

companies.  This lawsuit was also not known to Wachovia who was doing a PPM at the time. 

239. Upon information and belief, the source being actual and true Court pleadings filed with 

LABARGA by a Florida licensed and practicing attorney named Steven Selz, Esq. on or about 

2003 factual pleadings were made in a Counter-Complaint filed by said attorney Selz against 

the PROSKAUER and FOLEY before LABARGA in the “billing” case seeking damages 

against PROSKAUER and claiming the value of the “Iviewit” technologies as $10 Billion or 

greater as of that time in 2003 based upon review and statements of one Gerald Stanley, 

Engineer at Real 3d Inc.69 and others. 

240. These leading Engineers deemed the Iviewit Technologies and IP as “priceless”.  

241. Florida Licensed attorney Steven Selz pled in said Counter-Complaint against PROSKAUER in 

LABARGA’s court as follows:  

                                                 
69  Janurary 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint in Labarga Court - See Par. 29 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Complaint%20Filed.p
df  
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“As a direct and proximate result of the actions of the Counter Defendant, 
Counter Plaintiffs have been damaged in a sum estimated to be greater than 
$10,000,000,000.00, based on projections by Gerald Stanley, CEO of Real 3-D 
(a consortium of Lockheed, Silicone Graphics and Intel) as to the value of the 
technologies and their applications to current and future uses together with the 
loss of funding from Crossbow Ventures as a result of such conduct.”  See Par. 
29,  Jan. 28, 2003 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/2003%2001%2028%20Counter%20Compl
aint%20Filed.pdf 
 

242. According to wikipedia,  

“Real3D, Inc. was a maker of arcade graphics boards, a spin-off from Lockheed 
Martin. . . . The majority of Real3D was formed by research and engineering 
divisions originally part of GE Aerospace. Their experience traces its way back 
to the Project Apollo Visual Docking Simulator, the first full-color 3D computer 
generated image system.[1]” 70 

 
243. Prior to the PROSKAUER “Billing” lawsuit before LABARGA, back in June 30, 1999, Gerald 

W. Stanley as Chairman, President and CEO of Real 3d, Inc., wrote to Simon Bernstein as CEO 

of Iviewit, Inc., opining favorably on the Iviewit technologies, yet documents start emerging by 

PROSKAUER partners and Brian Utley where the “Iviewit” company name is changed as 

licensing and partnership deals are being signed and finalized and where Timothy P. Donnelly, 

Director of Engineering of Real 3d Inc, even writes to PROSKAUER partner Chris Wheeler 

about providing Eliot an “original signature” on the agreement with Real3d.71 

244. Just prior to this in on or about April 26, 1999 PROSKAUER Partner Christopher Wheeler 

wrote to counsel Richard Rosman, Esq. at Lewinter & Rosman law firm who was acting on 

behalf of Hassan Miah who was brought in by Sky Dylan Dayton, the CEO of Earthlink to 

evaluate the technologies as he was the leading expert in the field of digital video and imaging 

at the time who founded the Creative Artist Agency ( CAA ) / Intel Media lab, the first major 

                                                 
70 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D 
71 June 30, 1999 Real 3D Letter @  
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Real%203D%20Opinion%20and%20Licensing%20Info.p
df 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 88 of 132 PageID #:3722

BATES NO. EIB 000541 
02/27/2017



Page 88 of 132 

collaboration between Hollywood and Silicon Valley in the early days of the Internet whereby 

PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler not only indicates PROSKAUER is coordinating the corporate 

and intellectual property matters for Iviewit but also describes the Iviewit process as “novel” 

and “far superior to anything presently available with what they are familiar”72. Proskauer 

would later try and claim they did no IP work despite their IP partners billing for services 

rendered and more. 

245. Hassan Miah was also CEO of Xing Technology Corporation and from and between 2002-2006 

was managing Director of Media and Entertainment for the Intel Corporation.73 

246. Hassan Miah was one of the first Experts to declare the Iviewit technologies as “The Holy Grail 

of the Internet.” 

247. On or about May 30, 1999, expert Hassan Miah was emailing Eliot saying the Iviewit project 

“is very exciting to me,” providing his home phone number to Eliot, being impressed with Ken 

Rubenstein of PROSKAUER (who was the sole patent evaluator for the MPEGLA LLC 

company and MPEG patent pooling scheme now controlled by PROSKAUER through 

Rubenstein) and indicating Hassan’s own company Xing was a licensee under the MPEG patent 

pool at the time74.  

                                                 
72April 22, 1999 Wheeler Letter to Richard Rosman, Esq. re Hassan Miah, 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2004%2026%20Wheeler%20Letter%20to%20Ros
man%20re%20Rubenstein%20opinion.pdf  
73 Hassan Miah Linkedin https://www.linkedin.com/in/hassanmiah  
74 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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248. The Intel Corporation acquired Real 3d Inc. (Lockheed, SGI & Intel interests), in 1999 which 

was under NDA, licensing and other agreements with the Iviewit companies regarding the 

Iviewit technologies.75 

249. As referenced in the March 25, 2009 SEC complaint regarding Intel76 and a massive accounting 

fraud which has now been specifically reported to the Philadelphia Office of the SEC that 

recently prosecuted SPALLINA and TESCHER in a separate case from this action but where 

SPALLINA and TESCHER are immersed in fraud and mis-accountings in this action:  

“Not only did Intel later acquire in whole the R3D company which was 
intimately involved in the early phases of this matter and under signed 
agreements with my company, but specific members of Intel/ R3D staff were 
present during key meetings in the early phases and otherwise involved in these 
matters including but not limited to, Lawrence Palley (Director of Business 
Development @ Intel), Gerald W. Stanley (Chairman of the Board, President & 
Chief Executive Officer @ R3D a consortium of Intel, Lockheed and SGI), 
David Bolton (Corporate Counsel @ R3D & Lockheed Martin), Steven A. 
Behrens (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer @ R3D), Rosalie Bibona 
(Program Manager @ R3D), Timothy P. Connolly (Director, Engineering @ 
R3D), Richard Gentner (Director of Scalable Graphics Systems @ R3D), Connie 
Martin (Director, Software Development @ R3D), Diane H. Sabol (Director and 
Corporate Controller Finance & Administration @ R3D), Rob Kyanko (Intel), 
Michael Silver (@ ?), Ryan Huisman (@ R3D), Matt Johannsen (@ R3D), 
Hassan Miah (@ Intel), Dennis Goo (Manager, Digital Home Content for the 
Americas @ Intel), Rajeev Kapur (Chief of Staff, Enterprise Product Group @ 
Intel) and Kostas Katsohirakis (Business Development Manager @ Intel). 
 

250. On or about June 1, 1999, Donald G. Kane (Managing Director) who worked at Goldman Sachs 

with LISA’s husband, Jeffrey Friedstein and his father Sheldon Friedstein (Managing Director 

                                                 
75 Wikipedia Real 3D, Inc. 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Real3D  
76 March 25, 2009 Iviewit Intel SEC Complaint @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/United%20States%20District%20Court%20Southern%20District%20NY/2
0090325%20FINAL%20Intel%20SEC%20Complaint%20SIGNED2073.pdf  
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at Goldman Sachs), was emailing to Eliot about setting up a Royalty Agreement for Eliot and 

his family giving a “priority return ahead of other shareholders.”77 ( emphasis added ).  

251. By the summer of 2000, Christopher Clarke Wheeler, Esq. a Partner at PROSKAUER, authors a 

Marketing letter showing the broad value of the Iviewit technologies and the ability to profit 

from same as 2.5% Shareholders together with a Representative Client List of Proskauer that 

can benefit from the Iviewit technologies including but not limited to AT&T, ABC, Inc., NBC, 

CBS,  the NBA, NHL, Citibank, Columbia Pictures, Inc., Bear Stearns, HBO, Time Warner, 

The Chase Manhattan Bank, JPM, MGM, Oppenheimer and many others.  

252. PROSKAUER Partner Wheeler goes on to say as follows in his letter:  

Dear Colleagues,  
 
As a firm, we are in a unique position to impact the effectiveness of the Internet 
and to profit from the same. The firm of iviewit.com, Inc. is one of my clients 
and Proskauer, Rose, LLP. is a 2.5% shareholder. I have worked closely with 
iviewit, for the past 18 months, establishing and fine-tuning their corporate 
structure. My objective with this letter is to introduce you to this forward-
thinking company and to ask for your support and assistance. The Internet is 
quickly evolving from a text-based medium that users have been forced to read, 
into a multimedia platform that users can begin to experience. The importance 
that this evolution has to e-commerce has been likened to the impact felt by 
television when it was embraced as a marketing and communications tool. 
iviewit’s intellectual property positions them as a leader in the streaming video, 
streaming audio and virtual imaging online markets. Their technologies have 
broad ranging applications for many different industries including: 
entertainment, auctions, education, healthcare and retail. Because of the 
extensive applicability of iviewit’s products, the vast majority of Proskauer’s 
client relationships represent potential clients for iviewit. Please join me as I 
endeavor to introduce my clients to iviewit and, in the process, help those clients 
to gain a competitive advantage through the utilization of iviewit’s technologies. 
Please contact me with any opportunities that you identify and I will arrange an 
introduction to a member of iviewit’s management team. I have enclosed a 
descriptive flyer from iviewit and a multimedia CD-ROM that will serve as an 
introduction to iviewit. Additional information can be found at their website, 

                                                 
77 June 01, 1999 Hassan Miah Letter Forwarded to Iviewit Patent Counsel Kenneth Rubenstein of 
Proskauer Rose 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/1999%2006%2001%20HASSAN%20LETTER%20FOR
WARDED%20TO%20RUBENSTEIN.pdf  
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www.iviewit.com. Thank you for your time and attention. I look forward to 
working together to help this valued client and to further enhance the value of 
our equity position in iviewit.  
 
Sincerely,  
Christopher C. Wheeler”78 

 
253. According to this PROSKAUER Partner Chris Wheeler letter of 2000, PROSKAUER was 

already representing OPPENHEIMER and JPM as of 2000 while representing Eliot, Simon 

Bernstein and the Iviewit companies with OPPENHEIMER and JPM being NDA signers and 

then later being just two of the places where Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s wealth was placed.  

254. Upon information and belief, history shows that attempted murder such as the car bombing of 

Eliot’s family minivan in Boynton Beach, Florida and possible murder such as the possible 

murder of his father Simon Bernstein, as alleged by Theodore Bernstein on the day of Simon’s 

death, have been carried out for far less than a 30% Interest in the IP and Technologies valued at 

least at $10 Billion or more by leading experts back in 2003.  

255. As indicated, Eliot’s father, Simon Bernstein was a 30% shareholder in the Iviewit Intellectual 

Properties and companies formed, with PROSKAUER centrally involved in the drafting and 

planning of said companies, drafting and filing of intellectual properties, distributing stock to 

various shareholders and drafting and executing dispositive estate and trust documents 

regarding Simon and Shirley Bernstein’s Estate planning.   

256. Estate planning with PROSKAUER was done by both Simon and Eliot in direct preparation of 

an Initial Public Offering to be done by Goldman Sachs through an advisor to the company and 

shareholder, Donald Kane who was a Managing Director at Goldman Sachs & Co.  The IPO 

was to follow a Wachovia Private Placement and the estate and trust work done by 

                                                 
78 July 22, 2000 - Christopher Wheeler Letter to All Proskauer Partners Re Iviewit Techs @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Armstrong%20Wheeler%20Client%20letter%20with%20
highlights.pdf  
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PROSKAUER was to transfer interests in the Iviewit companies prior to their growth in Eliot 

and Simon’s estates, to their children’s estates to avoid having to transfer them later and suffer 

the estate taxes on the growth of the stock.   

257. These estate plans were executed and then later revoked by both Simon and Eliot, once it was 

alleged that PROSKAUER was involved in frauds against the companies and shareholders and 

PROSKAUER was TERMINATED as counsel.  

258. Yet, somehow, just like this original Insurance litigation in Illinois where litigation is filed by 

Trustees that change overnight from SPALLINA to TED and the Trust remains to this day 

missing with NO executed copies put forth and drafts found months after the lawsuit was 

instigated that appear without any identification of who the draftee is and have no legal force 

and even the Insurance contracts and policies underlying the claims in this Breach of Contract 

lawsuit are missing (not even the insurers have put forth a bona fide copy) and critical business 

documents are missing that any Insurer and Estate planner would have to legally maintain and 

likewise records from PROSKAUER, FOLEY and other involved Estate planners involving 

Simon and Shirley Bernstein are allegedly all “missing” as well and where finally evidence of 

Fraud has been now proven and further alleged regarding the dispositive documents and other 

crimes have been reported ranging from Extortion to TED’s claim on the day his father died that 

he was poisoned.  

259. Back in 2003, LABARGA, however, never afforded Eliot and the Iviewit companies the due 

process opportunity to be heard on their Counter-Complaint, and instead denied the Counter-

Complaint altogether. In a bizarre twist at a scheduled Trial Eliot and counsel showed up to an 

empty courtroom of Labarga and at the trial rescheduling Labarga dismissed two law firms 

representing the Iviewit companies simultaneously on Petitions for Withdrawal whereby both 
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law firms, Steven Selz PA and Schiffrin and Barroway both claimed the other would be 

representing the Iviewit companies at trial and then both walked out, one after the other and left 

the Iviewit companies without counsel.  Approximately 45 days later Labarga ruled a default for 

the company's failure to retain replacement counsel. 

260. Yet upon information and belief, LABARGA also never sanctioned nor reported attorney Selz 

for misconduct or frivolity in making this factual allegation regarding the value of the Iviewit 

technologies.  

261. One of the wrongful “tactics” employed by various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party 

Defendants in the recent years against Eliot in and out of the Courtroom has been to question 

his sanity and ability care for his own children by attacking his claims regarding the car 

bombing of his family minivan and claims about the value of Iviewit IP,  yet even Florida 

Licensed attorney Steven Selz who was representing Plaintiff at the time before LABARGA in 

2003 himself filed a factual pleading stating, 

 “That PROSKAUER  billed IVIEWIT for legal services related to corporate, 
patent, trademark and other work in a sum of approximately $800,000.00” and 
further “ That based on the over-billing by PROSKAUER, IVIEWIT paid a sum 
in of approximately $500,000.00 plus together with a 2.5% interest in IVIEWIT, 
which sums and interest in IVIEWIT was received and accepted by 
PROSKAUER.” 

 
262. See, Paragraphs 24 and 27 of 2003 filed and proposed Counter-Complaint filed by attorney Selz 

in the LABARGA/PROSKAUER billing lawsuit, again this Counter-Complaint never being 

heard by LABARGA.79 

263. Then immediately following Selz, LABARGA then heard a Withdrawal as Counsel motion 

filed by Schiffrin & Barroway that claimed that another law firm, Selz would be representing 

the Iviewit companies and LABARGA approved this withdrawal knowing he had moments 

                                                 
79 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf   
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earlier let Selz out as counsel and then calling Eliot to the stand to advise him that the Iviewit 

companies no longer had counsel and Eliot, a non party to the action would have to obtain new 

counsel in  a short period of time or else default, thus denying counsel to Eliot and the proper 

Iviewit interests under fraudulent circumstances by the machinery of the Courts as continues to 

today. 

264. Eliot was unable to reach either Selz or Schiffrin & Barroway to obtain court files and records 

during the period he had to obtain new counsel and finally after showing up to Selz’s offices 

unannounced was able to recover some of the files and where Eliot attempted to get more time 

from LABARGA who refused. 

265. When Eliot could not get counsel in time, LABARGA ruled against the Iviewit companies and 

issued a default. 

266. Later it would be learned that many of the companies sued by Proskauer in their billing lawsuit, 

who did not have retainers with the Iviewit companies, where duplicated companies involved in 

an attempt to move IP out of the companies and inventors hands and into the hands of improper 

fraudulent inventors.  

267. Thus, while various Counter-Defendants and Third-Party Defendants may simply wrongfully 

claim “Iviewit” was a failed dot.com, it only raises substantial questions as to why 

PROSKAUER would “Bill” close to $1 million, take a 2.5 percent interest in royalties and stock 

in the Iviewit companies, file numerous Intellectual Properties (Patents, Trademarks, 

Copyrights and Tradesecrets, worldwide), recruit their clients to sign agreements with Iviewit, 

issue Stock to Shareholders of numerous companies and do exhaustive Estate planning for 

Simon, Shirley and Eliot Bernstein including protecting Simon’s 30% interest and Eliot’s 70% 

interest in the IP at that time.   
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268. As part of the same practice and pattern which continues in the Estate proceedings of Shirley 

and Simon Bernstein and the Insurance litigation in this Illinois federal district court, 

PROSKAUER schemed in 2001 to tortiously interfere with business relationships and financial 

relationships that would benefit Eliot and advance the technologies by interfering with a 

financing deal going on with Warner Bros. / AOL at the time which would have brought $10-

$20 Million in capital to the Iviewit companies which had already began a licensing and 

operational agreement with them.  

269. Florida licensed attorney Selz filed a specific counter-complaint against PROSKAUER in the 

“billing lawsuit” being heard by LABARGA who denied hearing the Countercomplaint which 

alleged as follows:  

“COUNT IV- TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH AN ADVANTAGEOUS 
BUSINESS  RELATIONSHIP 
 
This is an action for tortious interference with an advantageous business 
relationship within the jurisdiction of this Court. 
 
Counter Plaintiff re-alleges and hereby incorporates that allegations  of 
Paragraphs I through 30 as if fully set forth herein. 
 
Counter Plaintiff was engaged in negotiations of technology agreements with 
both Warner Bros. and AOLTime-Warner as to the possible use of the 
Technologies of the Counter Plaintiffs and investment in Counter Plaintiffs as a 
strategic partner. 
 
That despite the prior representations of RUBENSTEIN, at a meeting held on or 
about November l , 2000, by and between UTLEY, RUBENSTEIN and 
representatives of Warner Bros. as to the Technology of IVIEWIT and the 
efficacy, novelty and unique methodology of the Technology, RUBENSTEIN 
refused to subsequently make the same statements to representatives of AOL and 
Warner Bros., taking the position that since Warner Bros./AOL is "now a big 
client of Proskauer, I can't comment on the technologies of lviewit." or words to 
that effect in response to inquiry from Warner Brother/AOL's counsel as to the 
status and condition of the pending patents on the intellectual property. 
 
That RUBENSTEIN, having served as an advisor to the Board of Directors for 
IVIEWIT, was aware of the fact that at the time of the making of the statements 
set forth in Paragraph 50, above, IVIEWIT was in the midst of negotiations with 
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AOL/Warner Bros. as to the possible funding of the operations of IVIEWIT in 
and sum of between $10,000,000.00 and $20,000,000.00. 
 
Further, RUBENSTEIN as a partner of PROSKAUER, and despite his clear 
prior actions in representing the interests of IVIEWIT, refused to answer 
questions as to the enforcement of the Technology of IVIEWIT, with the intent 
and knowledge that such refusal would lead to the cessation of the business 
relationship by and between IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL and other clients 
familiar with the Warner Bros./AOL technology group then in negotiations with 
IVIEWIT, including, but not limited to Sony Corporation, Paramount, MGM and 
Fox. 
 
That the actions of RUBENSTEIN were and constituted an intentional and 
unjustified interference with the relationship by and between IVIEWIT and 
Warner Bros./AOL designed to harm such relationship and further motivated by 
the attempts to "cover-up" the conflict of interest in PROSKAUER's 
representation of both IVIEWIT and Warner Bros./AOL. 
That indeed, as a direct and proximate result of the conduct of RUBENSTEIN, 
Warner Bros./AOL ceased business relations with IVIEWIT to the damage and 
detriment of Counter Plaintiffs.80” 
 

270. Yet somehow PROSKAUER and FOLEY being powerful international law firms have virtually 

no records of the Estate Planning work done or IP work done for Simon Bernstein nor did 

TESCHER and SPALLINA allegedly obtain this prior work from PROSKAUER or FOLEY or 

Attorney at Law Steven Greenwald, Esq. of Florida before embarking on similar Estate 

Planning work for Simon and Shirley Bernstein.  Especially where Simon believed the IP to the 

largest assets of his estate requiring special Estate planning from the outset for the IP. 

271. Yet, TESCHER and SPALLINA had a public relationship with PROSKAUER in the Boca 

Raton, Florida community being hosted at Bar events and similar events.81  TESCHER and 

SPALLINA directly know and are close friends with PROSKAUER Partner GORTZ of the 

                                                 
80 January 28, 2003 Steven Selz, Esq. Counter Complaint Labarga Case @ 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Counter%20Complaint%20in%20Order.pdf  
81 March 27, 2012 Jewish Federation Mitzvah Society - Proskauer, Tescher & Spallina @ 
http://jewishboca.org/departments/foundation/pac/caring_estate_planning_professionals_to_honor_dona
ld_r_tescher_esq_at_mitzvah_society_reception_on_march_27/  
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PROSKAUER Boca Raton Office in Florida who was the first lawyer that accountant Third 

Party Defendant LEWIN introduced Simon and Eliot too to seek IP protection.  

272. GORTZ of PROSKAUER was directly involved in the Iviewit matters and Bernstein Estate 

matters dating back to 1998, and in fact he was the first person that LEWIN took the 

technologies to for IP protection for the benefit of  Eliot and Simon Bernstein.  

273. In the original underlying Illinois life insurance litigation herein, SPALLINA was in 

communication with GORTZ of PROSKAUER.  See email dated February 18, 2013 from 

SPALLINA to Eliot’s children’s counsel Christine Yates from SPALLINA TESCHER 

PRODUCTION Bates No. TS004461-TS004463.  

274. This pattern of established law firms involved in the technologies failing basic record keeping 

for client files like PROSKAUER and FOLEY allegedly not having important Estate and 

related records like the missing Trusts and Insurance policies in the underlying original action is 

further support for a preliminary injunction at this time.  

275. Eliot, members of the board, investors, prospective investors and management of Iviewit first 

learned of this “billing” lawsuit by PROSKAUER in Palm Beach County while in the middle of 

Financing negotiations for the Iviewit companies with Warner Bros. ( AOL-Time Warner) for 

approximately a $10 to $20 Million Capital infusion for the Iviewit companies while other 

financing activities were underway with a Private Placement Memorandum through Wachovia 

bank.   

276. Eliot had already opened a new Iviewit HQ inside the Warner Advanced Technology building 

on Brand in Glendale, Ca. and had taken over encoding of all Internet content creation of their 

digital video library and had revenue and royalty contracts signed. 
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277. Eliot also learned at the same time that an “Involuntary Bankruptcy” had been filed in Florida 

against companies similarly named to “Iviewit” companies being filed by Brian G. Utley, 

Real3D, Inc./Intel/RYJO, Michael Reale and Raymond Hersh the CFO82.  

278. Eliot also learned on or about the same time from a Arthur Andersen audit conducted on behalf 

of Crossbow Ventures, the largest investor at that time in the IP, that two similarly named 

companies, Iviewit Holdings existed with only one set of books available. 

279. Raymond Hersh claimed that LEWIN’s daughter, Erika Lewin, the in-house accountant at 

Iviewit was accused of misleading the Andersen auditors in her representation of the corporate 

structures put together by LEWIN and PROSKAUER.  Andersen was suddenly removed from 

the audit and replaced by Ernst & Young on a referral from LEWIN to complete the audit for 

Crossbow.  

280. ELIOT also learned on or about the same time that the Iviewit companies President and Chief 

Operating Officer, a one Brian G. Utley, had in his possession a second set of almost identical 

Intellectual Property applications and one set had different inventors, including Utley as sole 

inventor on critical imaging IP such as “Zoom and Pan on a Digital Camera” which was 

invented by Eliot and others almost a year before even hiring Utley, where Utley lists himself as 

the sole (soulless) inventor. 

281. Eliot also learned on or about the same time more information that Joao who represented 

himself as a Proskauer Partner when in fact he was not, had put over 90 patents in his name, 

many  with of the Iviewit IP technologies at the heart of them and taken from business plans and 

other IP related materials JOAO accessed as IP Counsel.   Later it would be learned that Joao 

left PROSKAUER/MELTZER LIPPE GOLDSTEIN & SCHLISSEL to work for Ruskin, 

                                                 
82 Iviewit Involuntary Bankruptcy Files @ 
http://iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/Utley%20Reale%20Hersh%20RYJO%20Bankruptcy%20nonsense.pdf  
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Moscou, Evans & Faltischek where Dean Skelos the New York Senator currently in ongoing 

corruption proceedings and convicted on all counts against him, putting up a defense of 

business as usual, which failed to vindicate him. 

282. That it is also learned that Joao later goes to the law firm of Dreier & Barritz LLP, where the 

now infamous attorney Marc Drier was sentenced in a “Ponzi” scheme thereafter.  

283. Eliot also learned on or about the same time that the Intellectual Properties represented by Utley 

to potential investors, investors and the financial institutions funding the Iviewit companies and 

those raising funds were not the ones that actually were filed with the US Patent Office. 

284. This exposure of the Intellectual Property crimes that were committed to the authorities and 

others began a terroristic mob style pattern and practice of orchestrated schemes to harm and 

potentially murder Eliot and his family by primarily lawyers, to deny him monetization of his 

inventions, deny him access to capital and even basic access to counsel to pursue his rights and 

claims and a full blunt force denial of due process in the courts and state and federal agencies 

through a series of conflicts of interests with the attorneys at law infiltrating and interfering 

improperly in virtually all of Eliot’s legal actions, as they do name very large law firms, 

legislators, judges and prosecutors as the perpetrators of the IP thefts as filed in his RICO and 

ANTITRUST lawsuit.  

285. This same pattern and practice continues to this day in both Florida Trust and Estate cases and 

this Illinois insurance litigation which should be viewed by this Court as nothing but a 

furtherance of a scheme to secret away monies and assets and deny any basic funds or monies to 

Plaintiff and his family literally to the point of basic survival as Plaintiff has been; a) forced on 

govt. Food Stamps to feed his 3 minor children who were supposed to be protected and 

provided for in Simon and Shirley’s Estate planning WITHOUT INTERRUPTION; b) had 
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home Security systems cut off; c) electric shut off and repeatedly threatened with shut off; d) 

homeowners insurance lapsed; e) health insurance lapsed, and other acts to deprive Counter 

Plaintiff of income and more.  

286. That after the death of his father Simon Eliot and his family’s worlds were literally blown apart 

financially, when the funds that were supposed to flow to Eliot and his family to protect them 

were intentionally and with scienter cut off, their kids were ripped from private school on the 

second day of classes and where the tuitions were funded by Simon and Shirley while living and 

despite a COLIN court order to pay the tuitions to keep them in school, TED and his counsel 

ROSE failed to comply and COLIN upon learning of this catastrophe did nothing despite 

claiming he was very upset and would deal with it shortly.  

287. That due to TED”S allegation that his father was murdered via poisoning Eliot and his family 

live in fear that this may be true, especially after an autopsy done a year or more after Simon’s 

death revealed elevated (beyond reportable levels in some instances) heavy metal toxins, 

including Arsenic and Cadmium. 

288. Simon and Shirley Bernstein in fact while living set up for Eliot through special planning efforts 

exclusively for Eliot and his family’s protection, vehicles designed and funded while living that 

provided income and security, including a paid for home and expenses for the home and family 

paid monthly all this careful planning for Eliot and his family resulting from the very real 

efforts to harm Eliot and his family, especially after viewing the car bombing and learning of 

death threats against their son and his family.   

289. That the probate crimes not only shut down all Eliot’s family income streams but further TED, 

TESCHER and SPALLINA then shut down a company that Simon had invested in, Telenet 
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Systems, LLC, that provided income to both Eliot and his lovely wife Candice at the time of 

Simon’s death.  

290. Without any income from the point of Simon’s death to now, as income for the family at 

Simon’s death was to be continued through the Estates and Trusts and other vehicles set up for 

Eliot and his family such as his Telenet interest and where the crimes were directly intended to 

leave Eliot and his family instead homeless and denied of their inheritancy with scienter and 

further bury the Iviewit stock and IP held by Simon and defeat the careful estate plans 

SPALLINA and TESCHER and others were contracted to protect. 

291. That it is alleged that the probate crimes were orchestrated in advance of Simon’s death when 

Simon refused to make changes to the plans of he and Shirley and never did so while living and 

so fraudulent documents were submitted to Courts and others to make it appear that Simon had 

changed he and his wife’s estate plans and allow TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED to seize 

Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts through FRAUD and begin looting of the assets 

with impunity with the cover and aid of the state court actors, all acting outside the color of law.   

292. That Shirley’s Trust was changed admittedly by SPALLINA Post Mortem and it is alleged this 

fraud was in order to execute a scheme to not only change beneficiaries illegally but more 

importantly to take fiduciary and legal control of the Estates and Trusts to enable them to steal 

off with the assets and convert funds to improper parties, all the while failing to provide legally 

required accountings and document transparency to beneficiaries and again through these 

crimes leave Eliot and his family with virtually nothing since the time of Simon’s death.  

293. As this Court is or should be aware, Eliot and his minor children were not even named as 

Necessary parties to this original Illinois insurance litigation even though all original parties 
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knew and should have known Eliot and his children were beneficiaries with interests in the case 

including Attorneys at Law and Fiduciaries TESCHER, SPALLINA and TED e.  

SPALLINA ADMITS NEW STATE AND FEDERAL CRIMES AT A “VALIDITY 
HEARING” BEFORE JUDGE PHILLIPS INCLUDING NEW ADMISSIONS OF 

FRAUD ON THE COURT AND MORE AND VIOLATES A CONSENT ORDER HE IS 
UNDER WITH THE SEC 

294. On or about September 28, 2015, the SEC out of Washington, DC publicly announced Insider 

Trading and related charges in a separate action against Florida attorneys and Third-Party 

Defendants herein SPALLINA and TESCHER.  

295. That SPALLINA pled guilty of criminal misconduct and the SEC Consent signed by 

SPALLINA states,  

“2. Defendant has agreed to plead guilty to criminal conduct relating to certain 
matters alleged in the complaint in this action and acknowledges that his conduct 
violated the federal securities laws.  Specifically, Defendant has agreed to plead 
guilty to a one count information which charges him with committing securities 
fraud involving insider trading in the securities of Pharmasset, Inc. in a matter to 
be filed in the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, (the 
“Criminal Action”).” 
 

296. Yet, in a December 15, 2015 hearing under sworn oath as a witness in a Validity Hearing before 

Judge PHILLIPS, SPALLINA stated the following from the hearing transcript Page 93 Lines 

14-2283; 

14· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· You can answer the question, which 
15· · · · is, did you plead to a felony? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sorry, sir. 
17· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· Next question. 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Have you pled guilty to a misdemeanor? 
21· · · · A.· ·I have not. 
22· · · · Q.· ·Were you involved in a insider trading case? 
23· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 

                                                 
83 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
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24· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained.· Next question. 
 

297. Further, in the SEC Consent signed by SPALLINA reads, 

“12. Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the term of 17 C.P.R. f 
202,S(e). which provides in part that it is the Commission's policy ''not to permit 
a defendant or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a 
sanction while denying the allegations in the complaint or order for 
proceedings." As part of Defendant's agreement to comply with the terms of 
Section 202.5(e), Defendant acknowledges that he has agreed to plead guilty for 
related conduct as described in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not take any 
action or make or permit to be made any public statement denying, directly or 
indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the 
complaint is without factual basis; (ii) will not make or permit to be made any 
public statement to the effect that Defendant does not admit the allegations of the 
complaint, or that this Consent contains no admission of the allegations; (iii) 
upon the filing of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in 
this action to the extent that they deny any allegation in the complaint; aud (iv) 
stipulates for purposes of exceptions to discharge sot forth in Section 523 of the 
Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the allegations in the complaint are 
true…” 

 

298. SPALLINA further states under sworn testimony at the Validity Hearing regarding the trust 

documents he created being valid admits to fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust Document and 

sending to Attorney at Law Christine Yates, Esq. representing the minor children of Eliot via 

the mail,  

Page 95 Lines 14-25 and Page 96 Line 1-19, 

14· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, have you been in discussion with 
15· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office regarding the 
16· ·Bernstein matters? 
17· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
18· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
19· · · · · · ·You can answer that. 
20· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I have. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·And did you state to them that you 
23· ·fraudulently altered a Shirley trust document and then 
24· ·sent it through the mail to Christine Yates? 
25· · · · A.· ·Yes, I did. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Have you been charged with that by the Palm 
·2· ·Beach County Sheriff yet? 
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·3· · · · A.· ·No, I have not. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times were you interviewed by 
·5· ·the Palm Beach County Sheriff? 
·6· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·7· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 8· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Did you mail a fraudulently signed document to 
10· ·Christine Yates, the attorney for Eliot Bernstein's 
11· ·minor children? 
12· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
13· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
14· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes. 
15· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
16· · · · Q.· ·And when did you acknowledge that to the 
17· ·courts or anybody else?· When's the first time you came 
18· ·about and acknowledged that you had committed a fraud? 
19· · · · A.· ·I don't know that I did do that. 

 
299. Further, SPALLINA perjures himself in self contradiction when he tries to claim that his law 

firm did not mail Fraudulent documents to the court and commit further FRAUD ON THE 

COURT and then slips up and admits that they sent the fraudulent documents back to the court 

when he states; 

 
10· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11· · · · Q.· ·And what was she convicted for? 
12· · · · A.· ·She had notarized the waiver releases of 
13· ·accounting that you and your siblings had previously 
14· ·provided, and we filed those with the court. 
15· · · · Q.· ·We filed those with the court. 
16· · · · · · ·Your law firm submitted fraudulent documents 
17· ·to the court? 
18· · · · A.· ·No.· We filed -- we filed your original 
19· ·documents with the court that were not notarized, and 
20· ·the court had sent them back. 
21· · · · Q.· ·And then what happened? 
22· · · · A.· ·And then Kimberly forged the signatures and 
23· ·notarized those signatures and sent them back. 
 

300. That not only does SPALLINA admit to Felony criminal that have not yet been investigated but 

admits that his office members are also involved in proven Fraudulent Creation of a Shirley 

Trust and where MORAN has already admitted six counts of forgery for six separate parties 
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(including for a deceased Simon and one for Eliot) and fraudulent notarizations of such 

documents.  Spallina states in the hearing Pages 102-103, 

102 
20· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Sure. 
21· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
22· · · · Q.· ·You've testified here about Kimberly Moran. 
23· · · · · · ·Can you describe your relationship with her? 
24· · · · A.· ·She's been our long-time assistant in the 
25· ·office. 
 
103 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was she convicted of felony fraudulent 
·2· ·notarization in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·3· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
·4· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
·5· · · · · · ·You're asking if she was convicted of a felony 
·6· · · · with respect to the Estate of Shirley Bernstein? 
·7· · · · · · ·You can answer the question. 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Correct. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I believe she was. 

 

301. SPALLINA then claims that it is standard practice for he and his clients to sign sworn Final 

Waivers under penalty of perjury with knowingly and irrefutably false statements.  Then 

SPALLINA had a deceased Simon file that alleged sworn document with the Court as Personal 

Representative on a date after his death while acting as Personal Representative as part of a 

Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Interested Parties.  SPALLINA states in 

testimony as follows, 

Pages 108-110 
17· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you aware of an April 9th full 
18· ·waiver that was allegedly signed by Simon and you? 
19· · · · A.· ·Yeah.· That was the waiver that he had signed. 
20· ·And then in the May meeting, we discussed the five of 
21· ·you, all the children, getting back the waivers of the 
22· ·accountings. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And in that April 9th full waiver you 
24· ·used to close my mother's estate, does Simon state that 
25· ·he has all the waivers from all of the parties? 
·1· · · · A.· ·He does.· We sent out -- he signed that, and 
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·2· ·we sent out the waivers to all of you. 
·3· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So on April 9th of 2012, Simon signed, 
·4· ·with your presence, because your signature's on the 
·5· ·document, a document stating he had all the waivers in 
·6· ·his possession from all of his children. 
·7· · · · · · ·Had you sent the waivers out yet as of 
·8· ·April 9th? 
… 
20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·April 9th, 2012, you have a signed full waiver 
22· ·of Simon's that says that he is in possession of all of 
23· ·the signed waivers of all of the parties? 
24· · · · A.· ·Standard operating procedure, to have him 
25· ·sign, and then to send out the documents to the kids. 
·.. 
·1· · · · Q.· ·Was Simon in possession -- because it's a 
·2· ·sworn statement of Simon saying, I have possession of 
·3· ·these waivers of my children on today, April 9th, 
·4· ·correct, the day you two signed that? 
·5· · · · · · ·Okay.· So if you hadn't sent out the waivers 
·6· ·yet to the -- 
·7· · · · A.· ·I'm not certain when the waivers were sent 
·8· ·out. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·Were they sent out after the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·I did not send them out. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· More importantly, when did you receive 
12· ·those?· Was it before April 9th or on April 9th? 
13· · · · A.· ·We didn't receive the first one until May. 
14· ·And it was your waiver that we received. 
15· · · · Q.· ·So how did you allow Simon, as his attorney, 
16· ·to sign a sworn statement saying he had possession of 
17· ·all of the waivers in April if you didn't get mine 'til 
18· ·May? 
19· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· I think it's relevance 
20· · · · and cumulative.· He's already answered. 
21· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What's the relevance? 
22· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Oh, this is very relevant. 
23· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· What is the relevance on the issue 
24· · · · that I have to rule on today? 
25· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· On the validity?· Well, it's 
1· · · · relevant.· If any of these documents are relevant, 
·2· · · · this is important if it's a fraud. 
·3· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'll sustain the objection. 
·4· · · · · · ·MR. BERNSTEIN:· Okay.· Can I -- okay. 
·5· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·6· · · · Q.· ·When did you get -- did you get back prior to 
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·7· ·Simon's death all the waivers from all the children? 
·8· · · · A.· ·No, we did not. 
·9· · · · Q.· ·So in Simon's April 9th document where he 
10· ·says, he, Simon, on April 9th has all the waivers from 
11· ·his children while he's alive, and you didn't even get 
12· ·one 'til after he passed from one of his children, how 
13· ·could that be a true statement? 
14· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance.· Cumulative. 
15· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 

 

302. SPALLINA also perjures himself under sworn oath at the hearing when testifying to the status 

of his Florida Bar license, which at this time he is listed as “ineligible84” to practice law in the 

state of Florida, when he states in the December 15, 2015 hearing, 

Page 91 
7· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·8· · · · Q.· ·Mr. Spallina, you were called today to provide 
·9· ·some expert testimony, correct, on the -- 
10· · · · A.· ·No, I was not. 
11· · · · Q.· ·Oh, okay.· You're just going based on your 
12· ·doing the work as Simon Bernstein's attorney and Shirley 
13· ·Bernstein's attorney? 
14· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
15· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Are you still an attorney today? 
16· · · · A.· ·I am not practicing. 
17· · · · Q.· ·Can you give us the circumstances regarding 
18· ·that? 
19· · · · A.· ·I withdrew from my firm. 
 
Pages 120-121 
19· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
20· · · · Q.· ·Did you -- are you a member of the Florida 
21· ·Bar? 
22· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
23· · · · Q.· ·Currently? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes, I am. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· You said before you surrendered your 
·1· ·license. 
·2· · · · A.· ·I said I withdrew from my firm.· It wasn't 

                                                 
84 Florida Bar Robert Spallina Inelligble to Practice Law 
https://www.floridabar.org/wps/portal/flbar/home/attysearch/mprofile/!ut/p/a1/jc_LDoIwEAXQT-
pthRaWo6mkRazxgdCNYUWaKLowfr_42LioOrtJzs3cYZ41zA_dLfTdNZyH7vjYvTxACM3dBrawxEHlOl3
ZqgSEHEE7girnxJMMNktoDlOr2qgtF7RM_8sjMoRf-T3zn8RJNQO5BXKtp0AxeYNIRTj-
HTx_eJ2Il7ycdg2C6e8_WXgh/dl5/d5/L2dBISEvZ0FBIS9nQSEh/?flag=Y&mid=497381  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 108 of 132 PageID #:3742

BATES NO. EIB 000561 
02/27/2017



Page 108 of 132 

·3· ·that I was not practicing. 
 

303. Spallina further Perjures his testimony when asked if the Fraudulent Shirley Trust he created by 

Post Mortem fraudulently altering a Shirley Amendment and disseminated through the mail 

attempted to change the beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and he answered no.  Yet, the 

following analysis shows different; 

22· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
23· · · · Q.· ·Did the fraudulently altered document change 
24· ·the beneficiaries that were listed in Shirley's trust? 
25· · · · A.· ·They did not. 

304. Now comparing the language in the two documents the Court can see that this statement is 

wholly untrue.  From the alleged Shirley Trust document,  

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, as I have adequately provided for them during my 
lifetime, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, TED S. 
BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM'), and their respective lineal 
descendants shall be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse 
and me, provided, however, if my children, ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL !ANTONI and 
LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my 
spouse and me, then TED and PAM, and their respective lineal descendants shall not be 
deemed to have predeceased me and shall be eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the 
dispositions made hereunder.”85 

 
305. Then the language from the fraudulent amendment states; 

 
2.    I hereby amend the last sentence of Paragraph E. of Article III. to read as follows: 
  
"Notwithstanding the foregoing, as my spouse and I have adequately provided for them 
during our lifetimes, for purposes of the dispositions made under this Trust, my children, 
TED S. BERNSTEIN ("TED") and PAMELA B. SIMON ("PAM '), shall be deemed to 
have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me, provided, however, if my children, 
ELIOT BERNSTEIN, JILL IANTONI and LISA S. FRIEDSTEIN, and their respective 
lineal descendants all predecease the survivor of my spouse and me, then TED and PAM 

                                                 
85 Shirley Trust Page 7 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent%20amend
ment%202.pdf  
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shall not be deemed to have predeceased the survivor of my spouse and me and shall 
become eligible beneficiaries for purposes of the dispositions made hereunder.86" 

 
306. Clearly the fraudulent amendment attempts to remove from the predeceased language TED and 

PAMELA’s lineal descendants from being excluded by removing them from the original trust 

language through a fraudulent amendment as being considered predeceased and thus change the 

beneficiaries of the Shirley Trust and this perjury changed the outcome of the validity hearing 

adding cause for a rehearing and voiding the Order that resulted, which was already void and of 

no effect since Judge Phillips should have already voluntarily mandatorily disqualified himself 

from the proceedings prior to holding hearings.  

307. That in relation to this very case before the Federal Court in SPALLINA’s testimony under oath 

at the Validity Hearing SPALLINA states, 

Pages 154-55 

20· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21· · · · Q.· ·You referenced an insurance policy earlier, 
22· ·life insurance policy, that you said you never saw; is 
23· ·that correct? 
24· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
25· · · · Q.· ·And was that part of the estate plans? 
1· · · · A.· ·We never did any planning with that.· That was 
·2· ·an insurance policy that your father had taken out 
·3· ·30 years before.· He had created a trust in 1995 for 
·4· ·that.· That was not a part of any of the planning that 
·5· ·we did for him. 
·6· · · · Q.· ·Did you file a death benefit claim on behalf 
·7· ·of that policy? 
·8· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevancy. 
·9· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 

308. This statement of SPALLINA’s that he had nothing to do with the “planning with that” makes 

his actions in the insurance matters before this Court questionable, as if he had nothing to do 

                                                 
86 Spallina Fraudulent Shirley Trust Page 30 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Shirley%20Trust%20plus%20fraudulent
%20amendment%202.pdf 
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with the planning of the policy and the lost and missing trust involved in this action alleged to 

be the beneficiary, how in the world did Spallina file an insurance death benefit claim87 for the 

policy benefits acting and singing as the claimant on the policy, in the fiduciary capacity of 

“Trustee” of the 1995 Missing, Lost or Suppressed Trust and acting as the Policy Beneficiary, 

which appears now to be part of the alleged Insurance Fraud, Mail and Wire Fraud alleged in 

Petitioner’s pleadings that is now further supported by his perjurious statement in the Florida 

court denying any involvement. 

309. The Court should note that while SPALLINA was filing a death benefit claim as Trustee for the 

lost and missing trust he claims to have had no involvement with, while he was simultaneously 

claiming to Eliot that a Florida Probate Court order88 would be necessary to determine who the 

trustee, beneficiaries, etc. of a lost and missing trust would be89, he was secretly and in conspire 

with others filing claims for the Policy and when that failed filing this Lawsuit, without 

notifying Eliot or the Creditor or the Probate Court of this action and failing to including Eliot 

as part of the legal action, all as part of a complex insurance fraud against Eliot and 

Beneficiaries of the Estate and the Creditor of the Estate, STANSBURY, and attempting to have 

the insurance money deposited to his law firm’s trust account acting as the Beneficiary of the 

Policy he claims to have nothing to do with, acting as Trustee of the lost trust he claims to have 

                                                 
87 Spallina Fraudulent Insurance Claim Form He Signs as Beneficiary of the Policy as Trust of a Trust 
and Policy he has claimed he had nothing to do with, which is DECLINED by Heritage -  See Page 05 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121101%20Heritage%20Claim%20Form%20Spa
llina%20Insurance%20Fraud.pdf , Spallina also represents in the correspondences to the carrier that he 
is Trustee of LaSalle National Trust, NA, which he is not but that is because LaSalle is the Primary 
Beneficiary. 
88January 22, 2013 SPALLINA Letter Re Insurance 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130122%20Ted%20Letter%20and%20Spallina%
20Letter%20re%20Insurance.pdf  
89 TESCHER & SPALLINA Prepared Settlement Regarding Insurance Policy 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/EXHIBIT%205%20-
%2020130205%20Eliot%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Analysis%20of%20
SAMR.pdf  
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never seen and impersonating himself as the Primary Beneficiary of the Policy, as Trustee of the 

LaSalle National Trust NA, of which he is none of. 

310. That the fraudulent claim filed by SPALLINA is what led to this Federal Lawsuit being filed as 

a breach of contract lawsuit for HERITAGE failing to pay the claim to SPALLINA until he 

could prove the trust and that he was Trustee, of the trust he claims in court under sworn 

testimony to have had NOTHING to do with. 

311. That the Court must question where Judge PHILLIPS was during the hearing where confessions 

to new crimes of Fraud on the Court, Mail Fraud, Fraud on the Beneficiaries (and Eliot’s minor 

children’s counsel, Christine Yates of Tripp Scott law firm) and more are being admitted to on 

the record by an Officer of the Court SPALLINA, a former Co-Trustee and Co-Personal 

Representative along with his partner in the crime and the ringleader another former Co-Trustee 

and Co-Personal Representative, TESCHER who also is under an SEC Consent Order for 

Insider Trading and one look at the transcript will find Judge PHILLIPS “doodling” (Page 138 

Line 1) during the hearing and more interested in threatening Candice Bernstein with contempt 

of court repeatedly, even removing her from the defense table and sending her to the audience 

section and yet failing to force SPALLINA to show cause regarding the crimes he committed 

and admitted to the court, in fact sustaining Eliot from probing these serious felony admissions 

including Fraud on the Court and Beneficiaries in the validity matters SPALLINA was 

testifying about and where SPALLINA’s felonies were far more serious in nature than 

Candice’s alleged contempt for asking ROSE in the hearing to turn an exhibit for all to see and 

handing Eliot a document (Page 24 Lines 12-23 and Page 127 Lines 3-7).  

312. Further, the Court must question and call to account for what Judge PHILLIPS did after 

learning of these crimes of the star witness of the “validity” hearing, some admitted by 
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SPALLINA to have not been investigated or reported by him at the time and thus ripe for 

prosecution and now having pleadings which show the perjured statements in violation of his 

SEC Consent Order, did he take control to find out how and who the fraudulent documents were 

posited in the Court as part of newly admitted FRAUDS ON THE COURT and has Judge 

PHILLIPS contacted the SEC to report the violation of SPALLINA’s consent order or did he 

contact and report the crimes of Fraud on the Court to the IG of the Court or the Chief Judge or 

did he contact the Federal Bureau of Investigations regarding the admitted mail fraud or did he 

have his bailiff, a member of the Palm Beach County Sheriff deputies arrest SPALLINA on the 

spot?   

313. Judge PHILLIPS appears to have done nothing but take SPALLINA’s sole testimony to the 

validity of the documents (some which SPALLINA admitted in the hearing he and others had 

fraudulently created) and in a bizarre ruling that defies logic and appears outside the color of 

law, then  ruled that the documents were valid with no other parties present to confirm the 

perjurious Felon’s testimony whose Hands are Unclean, credibility shattered and one certainly 

must ask why the Trustee TED did not call ANY of the other witnesses or multiple notaries and 

instead choose SPALLINA his business associate and TED’s counsel as ALLEGED PR and 

Trustee who admitted to PBSO that he committed fraud that altered documents to benefit TED’s 

family, which had been wholly considered PREDECEASED prior to the fraud in Shirley Trust.  

TED filed for the validity hearing after his counsel committed fraud to benefit him and his only 

witness is his counsel that has committed fraud and TED in his own words stated under sworn 

oath at the Validity hearing, 

Page 206-210 

25· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Ted, you were made aware of Robert 
1· ·Spallina's fraudulent alteration of a trust document of 
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·2· ·your mother's when? 
·3· · · · A.· ·I believe that was in the early 2013 or '14. 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· And when you found out, you were the 
·5· ·fiduciary of Shirley's trust, allegedly? 
·6· · · · A.· ·I'm not sure I understand the question. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·When you found out that there was a fraudulent 
·8· ·altercation [sic] of a trust document, were you the 
·9· ·fiduciary in charge of Shirley's trust? 
10· · · · A.· ·I was trustee, yes.· I am trustee, yes. 
11· · · · Q.· ·And your attorneys, Tescher and Spallina, and 
12· ·their law firm are the one who committed that fraud, 
13· ·correct, who altered that document? 
14· · · · A.· ·That's what's been admitted to by them, 
15· ·correct. 
16· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· So you became aware that your counsel 
17· ·that you retained as trustee had committed a fraud, 
18· ·correct? 
19· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
20· · · · Q.· ·What did you do immediately after that? 
21· · · · A.· ·The same day that I found out, I contacted 
22· ·counsel.· I met with counsel on that very day.· I met 
23· ·with counsel the next day.· I met with counsel the day 
24· ·after that. 
25· · · · Q.· ·Which counsel? 
·1· · · · A.· ·Alan Rose. 
… 
P 209-210 
24· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25· · · · Q.· ·Have you seen the original will and trust of 
·1· ·your mother's? 
·2· · · · A.· ·Can you define original for me? 
·3· · · · Q.· ·The original. 
·4· · · · A.· ·The one that's filed in the court? 
·5· · · · Q.· ·Original will or the trust. 
·6· · · · A.· ·I've seen copies of the trusts. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Have you done anything to have any of the 
·8· ·documents authenticated since learning that your 
·9· ·attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10· ·documents that you were in custody of? 
11· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Relevance. 
12· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Overruled. 
13· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· I have not. 
14· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15· · · · Q.· ·So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16· ·validate these documents; is that correct? 
17· · · · A.· ·Correct. 
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314. TED further shows he is an incompetent Trustee at his validity hearing where he admits having 

not seen the original documents, not bringing any of them to the hearing to prove them valid 

and that he did “NOTHING” to validate them and did not even have them forensically analyzed 

or request the originals back from his former disgraced counsel after their admission of 

fraudulent created trusts and forged documents posited into the court record in his mother’s 

estate and elsewhere and the admitted fraudulent use of his deceased father by his former 

counsel to commit fraud upon the court, fraud upon the beneficiaries and close his deceased 

mother’s estate (despite a COURT ORDER for TESCHER and SPALLINA to turn over “ALL” 

RECORDS) . 

315. The formal Complaint filed by the SEC contains breaches of fiduciary duties by SPALLINA 

and TESCHER that are almost identical to the claims Eliot has made in the Florida Probate 

Courts of Palm Beach County since at least on or about May of 201390 and91and92and93.   

316. Multiple requests for Discovery from TED in the Florida Probate Courts  have been made 

including by short term counsel Brendan Pratt, Esq.94 but no voluntary compliance by TED has 

occurred and no voluntary Discovery by TED produced.   

                                                 
90 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER 
TRADING CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys 
and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
91 September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
92 October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 
2015 and TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
93 May 06, 2013 Bernstein Emergency Petition Florida Probate Simon and Shirley Estate Cases 
@ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20P
etition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf 
94 November 01, 2013 Production Request Ted Bernstein 
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NY Moreland Commission and Other Related Info 

317. Eliot had made inquiry to the Moreland Commission to testify and had submitted information 

regarding Public Office Corruption in both the State of New York and State of Florida, 

including information regarding Public Office Complaints against members of the Florida 

Supreme Court, including former 15th Judicial Judge Jorge Labarga who was the main 

complained of party in Eliot’s Court Corruption complaints and Bar Complaints in Florida and 

who is now Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court and Florida Bar Members (including 

members of Brian O’Connell’s firm Ciklin a one Jerald Beer, Esq. 

318. The Honorable Preet Bharara who has now taken down several of the most prominent 

Lawmakers from both parties in a New York Corruption Probe unparalleled and gaining 

worldwide recognition and applause, has recently revealed that he has seized the Moreland 

Commission inquiries for further investigation and where it is presumed that Eliot’s inquiry has 

also been acquired by US Attorney’s. 

U.S. Attorneys » Southern District of New York » News » Press Releases 
Department of Justice 
U.S. Attorney’s Office 
Southern District of New York 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Monday, January 11, 2016 
Statement Of U.S. Attorney Preet Bharara Relating To Moreland Commission 
Investigation 
  
“After a thorough investigation of interference with the operation of the Moreland 
Commission and its premature closing, this Office has concluded that, absent any 
additional proof that may develop, there is insufficient evidence to prove a federal crime.  
We continue to have active investigations related to substantive inquiries that were being 
conducted by the Moreland Commission at the time of its closure.” 
  
16-009 
USAO - New York, Southern 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20TED%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf  
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Updated January 11, 2016 
http://www.justice.gov/usao-sdny/pr/statement-us-attorney-preet-bharara-relating-
moreland-commission-investigation 
 

319. That the knowledge that Bharara has taken over the Moreland inquiries to the US Attorney's 

Office may provide an answer as to why the Florida Courts are denying due process to Eliot and 

participating in a massive court controlled conspiracy against his rights, involving many of the 

same parties as were in his prior complaints now presumed to be before the US Attorney.  This 

may also explain the need to cover up the current Fraud on the Court, Fraud by the Court and 

Fraud on Eliot and his family at all costs at this time and explain the retaliation and abuse of 

process against Eliot’s family. 

320. Due to the Palm Beach Posts Guardianship series exposing widespread Guardianship abuses 

Eliot and Candice fear that judge Phillips may abuse the Guardianship process to gain control 

over Eliot’s children and where there is already volumes of online complaints95 against Judge 

Phillips this becomes even more frightening.   

                                                 
95 “Florida Judge is Taking Children from Good Mothers and Placing Them with Abusers”  
Daily Kos Sunday Jul 20, 2014 · 9:10 AM EDT 
http://www.dailykos.com/story/2014/7/20/1315240/-Florida-Judge-is-Taking-Children-from-Good-
Mothers-and-Placing-Them-with-Abusers  
and 
Families Against Court Travesties, Inc. - John L. Phillips’ Cases 
 C.C.S.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/c-c-s/  
 B.D.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/b-d/  
 E.C.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/e-c/ 

J.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/j-j/ 
M.J.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
M.M.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/m-j/ 
T.R.’s Story - https://factscourtwatch.com/t-r/  
https://factscourtwatch.com/john-l-phillips-cases/  

and 
John. L Phillips Racist and Biased Judge John L. Phillips Palm Beach Gardens Florida 
http://www.ripoffreport.com/r/John-L-Phillips/Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida/John-L-Phillips-Racist-and-
Biased-Judge-John-L-Phillips-Palm-Beach-Gardens-Florida-1177334  
and 
Judge John Phillips rules Elderly People Incapacitated Violating the Elderly Rights of Due Process 
http://ireport.cnn.com/docs/DOC-163498  
and 
Judge John L. Phillips from Palm Beach Garden is a lose cannon a Prejudicial biased Judge that is 
hurting our families. 
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321. That Eliot has been a thorn in the side of these lawyers and judges for many years and with their 

knowledge that if Eliot succeeds at some point in breaking through the corruption to have a fair 

and impartial hearing and honest investigations that they may lose everything and many of them 

may end up in prison on very serious counts including alleged attempted murder and murder 

according to Ted and others of Simon and thus all of these crimes in the Florida Probate matters 

may be carefully planned attacks on Eliot and his family to suppress and destroy all records and 

evidence of Eliot and Simon’s relating to Iviewit before investigators can prosecute them. 

322. Eliot has reason to fear that the there is no due process in Florida and in fact the opposite, a 

massive Obstruction by attorneys and judges and other State Agencies96 Eliot has complained of 

working hand in hand, allowing years of records to disappear from Simon, allowing forged and 

fraudulently notarized documents to be submitted to the courts to further the scheme and 

nothing done when they are caught by the self regulating legal system that has failed, Judge 

Colin directly interfering with state criminal investigations to shutter them from investigating 

the Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court Officers and Judges alleged and proven in some 

instances already. 

323. Therefore this Court and the US Attorneys with Eliot’s Moreland Complaint may not only lose 

value production documents necessary to prove the truth of this lawsuit but if the Florida 

Probate Court continues to remove Eliot’s rights as a beneficiary, standing and pleadings, this 

Court may lose Eliot as material and fact witness and all Eliot’s records as they try and 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.avvo.com/legal-answers/judge-john-l--phillips-from-palm-beach-garden-is-a-1626549.html  
and 
Judge John Phillips of West Palm Florida Probate courts does nothing to end the wall of corruption in the 
Florida Probate Courts. Ted Bernstein Life Insurance Concepts, Judge Martin Colin, Donald Tescher 
Florida Attorney; Florida Probate Courts. 
http://tedbernsteinreport.blogspot.com/2016/02/judge-john-phillips-of-west-palm.html  
 
96Iviewit Investigation Master List  
www.iviewit.tv/CompanyDocs/INVESTIGATIONS%20MASTER.htm   
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repeatedly charge Eliot with contempt and more in efforts to have him imprisoned and his 

children placed in unnecessary and illegal guardianships obtained through fraud on the court 

and fraud by the court as is the case in tomorrows hearing before Judge Phillips and while jailed 

may move to evict his family from their home and destroy all records in his possession.   

324. Finally, due to the heavy metal poison results of his father and the attempted car bombing of his 

family, Eliot fears that with the US Attorney now involved they may rush to finally perfect their 

attempt and murder Eliot and his family.  The Court’s injunctive power could be no greater to 

protect its authority and protect the main witness to the facts in this Court’s case and where 

Eliot is a Whistleblower on the Court Corruption he is in need of Federal protection of his life 

and properties, all important to this Court’s determination of the matters before it and all being 

intentionally interfered with by the Florida Court State Actors who have no immunity for such 

egregious and criminal misconduct in efforts to thwart Eliot’s due process rights and interfere 

with this Court’s matter as well. 

325. Eliot apologizes to the Court for any filing errors in advance but this is an emergency situation 

where my life and the life of my wife and children and all of our properties appear in imminent 

danger and this Court must act instantly to preserve the powers of this Court despite any 

technical drafting errors by a Pro Se party.   

326. There are so many due process violations and obstructions occurring rapidly that it would take a 

several hundred page pleading to attempt to deal with all of this ongoing criminal misconduct 

and civil torts.   

327. In seeking leave to amend the counter complaint I will try and put the remainder of items in a 

proper pleading within two weeks so the Court can further assess the merits of the case. 
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Parties and Claims to be Added on Leave to Amend for Declaratory Judgment, 42 USC 
Sec. 1983 and other Fiduciary, tortious interference, negligence and State Claims - See 

Exhibit A 
 

I respectfully seek Leave to file an Amended Complaint / Counter-Cross Complaint however 

properly labeled adding parties and claims as set forth above.  

 

  

WHEREFORE, Eliot I. Bernstein, Pro Se Third Party Defendant/Cross Plaintiff 
respectfully prays for an Order:  
 

1. Immediate Injunctive Relief under the All Writs Act,  Anti-Injunction Act and 

FRCP against Ted Bernstein and counsel and representatives acting on his 

behalf specifically including but not limited to attorney Alan M. Rose, against 

the Estate of Simon Bernstein acting by and through local Illinois counsel and 

by Florida PRs Brian O’Connell and Joy Foglietta, against Pamela Simon, 

David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Bernstein-Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein, and against 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts of Palm Beach County and other 

parties deemed proper by this Court, temporarily enjoining said parties from 

further proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts herein until further order of 

this Court, from disposing, selling, transferring, encumbering or in any way 

disposing of any assets, properties as specified herein, and further preserving 

any and all evidence, documents, files, notes, bills, statements, mail, emails, 

and other evidence herein;  

2. Specifically Enjoining at least Temporarily Florida Probate Court Judge 

Phillips on Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 PM EST until further Order of this 
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Court;  

3. Permitting the Amendment of the original counter-complaint filed herein to add 

claims under 42 USC Sec. 1983 and other pendant state law claims including 

but not limited to tortious interference with rights of expectancy and 

inheritance;  

4. Granting appropriate leave to further Amend said complaint to add specified 

known parties and have said parties served by the US Marshal service or 

agency determined by this Court;  

5. Granting leave to Amend to include a Declaratory Judgment on specified 

counts pertaining to Trusts, Wills, Instruments, and the Validity and 

Construction thereof; 

6. Waiving any requirement for Bonding by Eliot I. Bernstein under extra-

ordinary circumstances and imposing the requirement of bonding against 

specified wrongdoers herein if necessary.   

7. Such other and further relief as to this Court may seem just and proper.   

 
 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 
 

DATED: Wednesday, February 24, 2016 
  
Note: All URL EXHIBITS contained herein are hereby incorporated by reference in 
entirety herein.  The Court should consider printing these URL exhibits as recent hacking 
of Eliot’s website and mail have caused his site to repeatedly be shut down at critical times 
making drafting and filing of complaints even more difficult.  To ensure the court that 
these links do not disappear copying them down and printing them is requested. 
 
 

         /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
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                                                           Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
                      
  

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on Wednesday, February 24, 2016 I electronically filed the 
foregoing with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing is being 
served this day on all counsel of record identified below via transmission of Notices of 
Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner. 
  
  
        /s/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

                                                         2753 NW 34th St. 
                                                         Boca Raton, FL 33434 

                                                         Telephone (561) 245-8588 

                                                         iviewit@iviewit.tv 

                                                         www.iviewit.tv 
 

SERVICE LIST 
 

James J. Stamos and 
Kevin Horan 
STAMOS & TRUCCO LLP 
One East Wacker Drive, Third 
Floor 
Chicago, IL 60601 
Attorney for Intervenor, 
Estate of Simon Bernstein 

Adam Simon, Esq.
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 

Ted Bernstein,  
880 Berkeley 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.c
om 
 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
PAGE,MRACHEK,FITZGERALD
, ROSE, KONOPKA, THOMAS & 
WEISS, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
arose@pm-law.com 
and 
arose@mrachek-law.com 

Pamela Simon 
President 
STP Enterprises, Inc. 
303 East Wacker Drive 
Suite 210 
Chicago IL 60601-5210 
psimon@stpcorp.com 
 

Estate of Simon Bernstein 
Personal Representative 
Brian M. O'Connell, Partner and 
Joielle Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O’Connell 
515 N Flagler Drive 
20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com 
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Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Lisa Friedstein

2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
Lisa@friedsteins.com 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

David B. Simon, Esq. 
#6205304 
303 East Wacker Drive, Suite 2725 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 
(312) 819-0730 
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EXHIBIT A - LIST OF COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS TO BE INCLUDED 

IN THE AMENDED COMPLAINT 
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EXHIBIT A  

COUNTER COMPLAINT DEFENDANTS / PARTIES 
 
COUNTER-DEFENDANTS/THIRD PARTY DEFENDANTS FOR AMENDED 
COMPLAINT AND PARTY DESIGNATIONS 

 
1. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, professionally; 
2. Hon. Jorge Labarga, Chief Justice of the Florida Supreme Court, personally;  
3. Judge Martin Colin, professionally; 
4. Judge Martin Colin, personally; 
5. Judge David French, professionally; 
6. Judge David French, personally; 
7. Judge Howard Coates, professionally; 
8. Judge Howard Coates, personally; 
9. Judge John Phillips, professionally; 
10. Judge John Phillips, personally; 
11. The State of Florida; 
12. The Florida Supreme Court; 
13. The 4th District Court of Appeals; 
14. Palm Beach County Probate and Circuit Courts; 
15. The County of Palm Beach; 
16. The Palm Beach County Sheriff; 
17. Detective Ryan Miller; 
18. Detective David Groover; 
19. Detective Andrew Panzer; 
20. Captain Carol Gregg; 
21. Theodore Bernstein, personally; 
22. Theodore Bernstein, as alleged Trustee of the Shirley Trust; 
23. Theodore Bernstein as Personal Representative of the Shirley Estate; 
24. Theodore Bernstein as alleged Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance 

Trust Dtd. 6/21/95;  
25. Theodore Bernstein, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein;  
26. Pamela Beth Simon, personally; 
27. Pamela Beth Simon, acting in any fiduciary capacity, corporate and company capacity 

and trustee capacity relevant herein; 
28. Lisa Sue Friedstein, personally; 
29. Lisa Sue Friedstein, as Natural Guardian of minor CF; 
30. Jill Marla Iantoni, personally; 
31. Jill Marla Iantoni, as Natural Guardian of minor JI; 
32. David B. Simon, Esq., professionally; 
33. David B. Simon, Esq., personally; 
34. Adam Simon, Esq., professionally; 
35. Adam Simon, Esq., personally; 
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36. The Simon Law Firm and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;   

37. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., personally; 
38. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., professionally; 
39. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust; 
40. Robert L. Spallina, Esq., former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
41. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. personally; 
42. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. professionally; 
43. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Trustee of the Simon Bernstein Trust;   
44. Donald R. Tescher, Esq. former alleged Co-Personal Representative of the Simon 

Bernstein Estate; 
45. Gutter Chaves Josepher Rubin Forman Fleisher Miller PA F.K.A. Tescher Gutter 

Chaves Josepher Rubin Ruffin & Forman PA and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

46. Tescher & Spallina, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

47. T&S Registered Agents, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

48. Kimberly Francis Moran, personally; 
49. Kimberly Francis Moran, professionally; 
50. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, personally; 
51. Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, professionally; 
52. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – personally; 
53. Alan B. Rose, Esq. – professionally; 
54. Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald & Rose, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

55. Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

56. Brian O’Connell, Esq., personally;  
57. Brian O’Connell, Esq., professionally; 
58. Brian O’Connell, Esq., fiduciary;  
59. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esq., personally; 
60. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., professionally; 
61. Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta Esq., fiduciary; 
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62. Albert Gortz, Esq., personally; 
63. Albert Gortz, Esq., professionally; 
64. Proskauer Rose, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

65. Hopkins & Sutter and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

66. Foley & Lardner LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

67. Greenberg Traurig, LLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

68. Jon Swergold, Esq., personally; 
69. Jon Swergold, Esq., professionally; 
70. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, personally; 
71. Gerald R. Lewin, CPA, professionally; 
72. CBIZ, Inc. (NYSE: CBZ) and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

73. John Morrissey, Esq., personally; 
74. John Morrissey, Esq., professionally; 
75. John P. Morrissey, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

76. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., personally; 
77. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., professionally; 
78. Mark R. Manceri, Esq., P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 

Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

79. Pankauski Law Firm PLLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

80. John J. Pankauski, Esq., personally; 
81. John J. Pankauski, Esq., professionally; 
82. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., personally; 
83. Steven A. Lessne, Esq., professionally; 
84. GrayRobinson, P.A. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

85. GUNSTER and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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86. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., personally; 
87. Brandan J. Pratt, Esq., professionally; 
88. Huth & Pratt  and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

89. Stanford Financial Group and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers, Receivers and Fiduciaries; 

90. Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

91. Oppenheimer Trust Company of Delaware and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives, Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

92. Janet Craig, personally; 
93. Janet Craig, professionally; 
94. Janet Craig, fiduciary; 
95. Huntington Worth, personally; 
96. Huntington Worth, professionally; 
97. Huntington Worth, fiduciary; 
98. William McCabe, Esq., personally; 
99. William McCabe, Esq., professionally; 
100. Legacy Bank of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 

Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

101. JP Morgan Chase & Co. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

102. LaSalle National Trust, NA and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

103. Chicago Title Land Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

104. Heritage Union Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 
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105. Jackson National Life and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

106. Reassure America Life Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

107. WiltonRe and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, 
Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, 
Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

108. First Arlington National Bank as Trustee of S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death 
Benefit Trust and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

109. United Bank of Illinois and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

110. Bank of America, Alleged successor in interest to LaSalle National Trust, N.A.  and  its 
current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, 
Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, 
Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives;  

111. Wilmington Trust Company and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

112. Regency Title dba US Title of Florida and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

113. Old Republic National Title Insurance Company and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

114. Nestler Poletto Sotheby's International Realty and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

115. Bernstein Family Realty, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

116. Bernstein Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

117. Bernstein Family Investments, LLLP and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
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Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

118. S.T.P. Enterprises, Inc., and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives, 
Attorneys, Insurers and Fiduciaries; 

119. S.B. Lexington, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

120. National Service Association, Inc. (of Illinois) and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives;  

121. Life Insurance Concepts, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

122. LIC Holdings, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

123. LIC Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, 
Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, 
Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

124. Arbitrage International Management LLC and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

125. Arbitrage International Marketing, Inc. and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

126. Arbitrage International Holdings, LLC and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

127. National Services Pension Plan and  its current and former Divisions, Affiliates, 
Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, Assigns, 
Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, Administrators, 
Representatives; 

128. Arbitrage International Marketing Inc. 401 (k) Plan and  its current and former 
Divisions, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors 
Assignors, Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, 
Agents, Administrators, Representatives; 

129. Simon L. Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 
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130. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

131. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2008) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

132. Simon L. Bernstein Estate and Will of Simon L. Bernstein (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

133. Simon L. Bernstein Amended and Restated Trust Agreement (2012) and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

134. Wilmington Trust 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

135. Estate and Will of Shirley Bernstein (2008) and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

136. Shirley Bernstein Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries 
and counsel; 

137. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust Agreement (2008) and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

138. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Insurance Trust dated 6/21/1995 (currently missing and 
legally nonexistent) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

139. Shirley Bernstein Marital Trust and Family Trust created under the Shirley Bernstein 
Trust (2008) and its current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

140. S.B. Lexington, Inc. 501(C)(9) VEBA TRUST and  its current and former Divisions, 
Affiliates, Subsidiaries, Stockholders, Parents, Predecessors, Successors Assignors, 
Assigns, Partners, Members, Officers, Directors, Trustees, Employees, Agents, 
Administrators, Representatives; 

141. Trust f/b/o Joshua Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel;  

142. Trust f/b/o Daniel Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

143. Trust f/b/o Jake Bernstein under the Simon L. Bernstein Trust dtd 9/13/2012 and its 
current and former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

144. Eliot Bernstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 and its current and former trustees, 
fiduciaries and counsel; 

145. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

146. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and former 
trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

147. Joshua Z. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 07, 2006 and its current and 
former trustees, fiduciaries and counsel; 

148. Traci Kratish, Fiduciary; 
149. Christopher Prindle, personally; 
150. Christopher Prindle, professionally; 
151. Peter Montalbano, personally; 
152. Peter Montalbano, professionally; 
153. Steven Greenwald, personally; 
154. Steven Greenwald, professionally; 
155. Louis B. Fournet; professionally; 
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156. Louis B. Fourner, personally; 
157. Alexandra Bernstein; 
158. Michael Bernstein; 
159. Eric Bernstein; 
160. Molly Simon; 
161. Max Friedstein; 
162. John and Jane Doe State Defendants,  

 
EXHIBIT A - LIST OF POTENTIAL DEFENDANTS TO BE ADDED TO COUNTER 
COMPLAINT BASED ON NEED TO OBTAIN DISCOVERY AND POTENTIAL 
COMPANY - VEHICLE TO HIDE-MOVE ASSETS ETC  
 

163. John Hancock 
164. Delray Medical Center; 
165. Ronald V. Alvarez, Esquire, is a mediator; 
166. CFC of Delaware, LLC. 
167. Life Insurance Connection, Inc. 
168. TSB Holdings, LLC 
169. TSB Investments LLLP 
170. Life Insurance Concepts, LLC 
171. Life Insurance Innovations, Inc. 
172. National Service Association, Inc.  (of Florida)  
173. Total Brokerage Solutions LLC 
174. Cambridge Financing Company 
175. National Service Association, Inc. 
176. National Service Corp (FLORIDA)  
177. Simon L. Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06 
178. Shirley Bernstein Irrevocable Trust U/A 9/7/06  
179. Simon Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000) 
180. Shirley Bernstein 2000 Insurance Trust (dated august 15, 2000)  
181. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Simon L. Bernstein 
182. 2000 Last Will and Testament of Shirley Bernstein 
183. Jill Iantoni Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
184. Lisa Friedstein Family Trust dated May 20, 2008 
185. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 049738 
186. Jake Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
187. Joshua Z Bernstein Irrevocable Trust 07-JUL-10 0497381 
188. Simon Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 6/21/95 
189. Simon Bernstein Trust, NA  
190. S.B. Lexington, Inc. Employee Death Benefit Trust 
191. Simon Bernstein Trust Agreement dated May 13, 2008 
192. Saint Andrews School Boca Raton 
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SUTCIDE * *
STGNAL CODE: 32 CRIME CODE: NON CRIME CODE: OT
ZONE: C21 ffiID: DEPUTY I.D.: 7571 NAI'18: PEREZ,
OCCURRED BES9IEEN DAIF-: O2/22/L5 , 22OO HOURS AND DATE:
EXCEPTION TYPE:
INCIDENT LOCATION: ?020 LIONS HEAD

CITY: BOCA RATON STATE: F].
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*
CODE: 9532 05/L3/16 TUESDAY
M. ASSIST: TIME D 1510 A 1629 C 0119
02/23/15 , 1730 HOURS

LA APT. 1i50. :

ztPz 33496

PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFE''S OE'FTCE PAGE 1

CASENO. L6O4246O SUPPLEMENT 4 OEFENSE REPORT CASENO. L6O4246O
DISPOSITIONi ZULV

DIVISION: DETECTIVE

NO. OFFENSES: 00 NO. OEAENDERS: UK NO. 1IEHICLES STOLEN: 0 NO. PRE}'fISES ENIERED:
LOCATION: RESIDENCE - SINe?.r FAI{IIY
NO. \IICTIMS: 00 NO. ARRESfED: 0 FORCED ENTRY: 0

ON MAY 24, 2076, AT APPROXIMATEIY 1830 HOI'RS I MET WITH TED BERNSTEIN
(WHI"E MAI.E, 08/27/1959' WIIO PROVIDED ME WITH A STATEMENT. THE FOLLOWING TS
A SYNOPSIS OF TEDIS STATEMENT. TED STATED THAT ON THE DAY OEMITCH'S DEATH
HE TEXTED MITCH SOMETIME BETWEEN 8:30 A.M. AND 9:00 A.M. IN REEERENCE ?O
SCHEDUI,ING A MEETING; HO},EVER/ MITCH DlD NOT RESPOND. TED STATED THAT AT
APPROXIMATELY 3:30 P.U. HE Gc|,f e CAI.L FB.OM DEBORAH AND SHE SOUNDED PANICKED.
TED STATED TIIAT DEBOR,AII MENTIONED THAT MITCH'S STUFF WAS HERE AND SHE HASNIT
HEARD FROM HIM. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH ASKED IF HE AND MITCH HAD MET, OR IF
TED KNEW OF'ANY MEETINGS AND TED RESPONDED NO.

TED STATED THAT A COUPLE OF HOI'RS I.ATER, PBSO CAITED AND ASKED HIM TO
COME TO THE HOUSE. ?ED STATED THAT HE ARRI\IED AT THE HOUSE A}ID LEARNED OF
MITCH I S DE-ATH. TED STATED TEAT DEBOR,AE SENT HIM A MESSAGE ASKTNG HIM TO STAY
AND HE WAITED FOR AAOUT 40 MTNUTES BEtr.ORE LE,AVING. TED STATED THAT SHORTIY
AT'TER ARRIVING HOME DEBOR,AIi CAILED HIM AND IIE RETURNED TO THE SCENE
ACCOMPANTED BY HIS WIFE. TED STATED THAT IIE DROI/E DEBORAH TO HIS HOUSE WHERE
SHE SPENT THE NIGHT.

?ED DESCRIBES DEBOR,AI{ AS BEING IN SHOCK AND BEING CONCERNED ABOUT
MITCE'S ],EGACY. TED S?ATED THAT DEBORAH DIDNIT IiANT PAOPT,E THAT KNEW HIM TO
FTND OUT TTIAT MITCH T@K HIS OWN LIFE. TED STATED TITAT DEBORAH MENTIONED
RECENTIX IIAVTNG A E'ACIAI I.ASER PEEL DONE WHICH HE BELIE\IED TO HAVE CAUSED AN
EXTREME REACTTON ON HER FACE. TED DESCRTBED IT AS LOOKTNG PAINF'I'T AND THAT
THAT I{AS TtrE ONLY MARKS TIIAT HE NOTICED ON DEBORAH. TED STATED THAT DEBORAH
STAYED AI IIIS HOME 3-4 DAYS AND DURING THAT TI}4E iIE BRIEELY },IET ONE OF
MITCH'S STSTERS, A BROTHER-IN-I,AII AND DEBORAH'S SON. TED STATED THAT HE

printed by W)7oyee Id #: 6480 on tle 22, 2076 70:07:37AL!

http://oqs.pbso.org/index.cfm?fa:dspCase&fromrec:1&srhta:58c9 aa64db43633b-77879... 612212016BATES NO. EIB 000587 
02/27/2017



OQS - Viewing Case Number 16042460

cAsE NO. 16042460
PALM BEACH

SUPPLEME}IT 4

Page 15 of 17

COUN:rY SHERIFF'S OFFICE PAGE 2
OFE'ENSE REPORT CASENO.]-6042460

DISPOSITION: ZIJLU

TRIED TO GM THEM PRMCY AND STAY OUT OE TEE liAY SO HE DOESN'T KNOI.I IF
THEY WERE ARGUING OR THE TOPICS OF THEIR CONVERSATIONS.

TED STATED T}IAT PRIOR TO THIS INCIDENT T8E I.AST TIME HE SPOKE TO
DEBORAH I{AS AROUND THE HOLIDAYS. TED STATED THAI PRIOR TO THE INCIDENT HE

SPOKE WITH MITCH ON THE MOI{DAY OR TI'ESDAY BEFORE AND THAT THEY TAIKED ABOUT
TEE EOUSE REMODEL/ THE MOLD AND INSURANCE ADJUSTERS. TED STATED TITAT THEY
AISO TAI,KED ABOUT MITCH NOT WANTING TO BE INCLUDED IN OITI.INE BLOGS AND MITCH
OFFERED TO EEIP TED I S ONLINE I}.4AGE.

TED STATED THAT HE HAS KNOWN MTTCH SINCE AUGUST OR SSPTEMBER THROUGH
EMAILS ABOUT THE HOUSE; HOWEVER/ THEY DIDNI? MEET T,NTI], OCTOBER. TED STATED
THAT AIL OE'TIIE CONVERSATIONS WERE IN REFERENCE TO THE HOUSE. TED STATED
THAT HE DID IOT }IOTICE ANY SIGNS OF MENTAI ILLNESS BUT THAT EE DID NOT KNOW

MITCH WELL ENOUGII TO NOTICE. TED STATED THAT THEY DID DEVELOP }, F'RIENDSHIP,
A!{D THAT HE REMEMBERS BEING IMPRESSED THAT MTTCH DID NOT BI^AME HIM I'OR THE
EXTENSIVE PROB],EMS IITTH THE HOUSE. TED STATED THAT MITCH AND HE !iOUI.D TAIK
2-3 TIMES A WEEK.

TED STATED THAT HE DTDN'T BELIEVE TI]AT HIS BROTHER ELLIOT KNEW MITCH'S
IDENTITY I'NTIL AFTER THE DEATH AND TTIAT UP TO THIS POINT MITCH HAD NOT BEEN
MENTIONED IN ET.T.IOT'S BLOC AND MITCH WAI{TED TO KEEP IT THAT WAY. TED STATED
THAT THIS IS THE REASON TEE I.AND TRUST I.{AS USED TO PURCHASE THE HOME.

TED STATED THAT HIS PARENTS IEFT ASSETS TO THEIR GRANDCHILDREN AND TITAT
HE DIDNIT STAIqD TO BENEFIT ANYITHING FB,OM THE PT'RCEASE. TED STATED THAT
BECAUSE OF HTS BROTHER ELLIOT/ TED USES A I.AWYER FOR EVERYTHING IN ORDER TO
PROTECT HIMSELF.

TED STATED THAT HE A}ID MITCH GOT TO KNOW E.ACH OTHER AND THAT MITCH
V{ANTED TO HELP HIS REPUTATION. TED STATED TIIAT MITCH THOUGHT GOING INTO
BUSINESS TOGETHER I{OI'LD HELP BUT THAT THEY NEYER SPOKE OF MONEY AFTER THE

CLOSING OF THE HOUSE.
TED STATED THAT MITCH DID NOT REACH OUT TO TED FOR HE],P AND THAT MITCH

DID NOT APPEAR TO BE DEPRESSED. TED DESCRIBED MITCH TO BE UPBEAT AND HE WAS

NO DIFEERENT TWO DAYS BEEORE.
THIS CONCLIJDED TED'S STATEMENT.
ON },IAY 25TH AT APPROXII'IATEIY 15OO HOI'RS I MET TTTIT MTCEAEL A].TSHI'LER

(taHrTE D4ArE, 10/11/1956). MTCEAET. PROVTDED ME WrTg A S!iORN STATEMEN? WHrCH
I.IAS MEIiTORIALIZED ON A DIGITAL RECORDING DEVICE, THE EOLIJOWING IS A SYNOPSIS
OE MICEAELIS STATEMENT/ FOR SPECIFIC DETAITS PLEASE RET'ER TO THE CD LOCATED
IN PBSO EVIDENCE. MICHAEL STATED THAT ON THE DAY OE' MITCIIIS DEATH HE WAS

SUPPOSED TO }TEET WITH MITCH AT THE GYM INSIDE OF MITCH'S DEVEIOPMENT.
MICHAEl STATED IIIAT HE ARRMD AT THE COMMUNITY GYM ARoUND 7:00 P.M. AND
EHAT THIS HAD BEE}iI PI.ANNED SEVERAI. DAYS IN ADVANCE. MICIIAEI SIITED TEAT HE
MET MITCH AT A SEMINAR AND THAT THEY HAVE KNOWN EACH OTHER FOR 3-4 MONTHS.
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                               PAGES:     1-165

                               EXHIBITS:  1-15, A

    IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL

    CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

                     NO. 502012CP004391XXXXSB

                     CP - Probate

_______________________________

IN RE:                         )

ESTATE OF SIMON L. BERNSTEIN   )

_______________________________)

                 TELEPHONIC DEPOSITION of DONALD R.

TESCHER, called as a witness by and on behalf of

Ted S. Bernstein, pursuant to the applicable

provisions of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure,

before P. Jodi Ohnemus, RPR, RMR, CRR, CA-CSR

#13192, NH-LCR #91, MA-CSR #123193, and Notary

Public, within and for the Commonwealth of

Massachusetts, at the Hampton Inn & Suites, 10

Plaza Way, Plymouth, Massachusetts, on Wednesday, 9

July, 2014, commencing at 2:38 p.m.
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1 nor did Mr. Spallina bring it to the attention of

2 anybody; is that --

3     A.   We couldn't, because we weren't aware of

4 it.

5     Q.   Okay.  And when you became aware of it in

6 2013, did you think it appropriate at that time to

7 resign as copersonal representative from the estate

8 of Simon Bernstein?

9     A.   No.

10     Q.   Now, did there come a time, however, when

11 you did resign -- you and Mr. Spallina -- as

12 copersonal representatives of the Simon Bernstein

13 estate; correct?

14     A.   That is correct.

15     Q.   Do you recall when that was?

16     A.   January of 2014.

17     Q.   And what was the incident at that time

18 that then caused you to resign as copersonal

19 representatives of the estate of Simon Bernstein?

20     A.   It came to light -- it was brought to my

21 attention that the -- there was an amendment --

22 there was an altered document altering the

23 amendment to Shirley Bernstein's revocable trust,

24 which document had been forwarded to Christine

25 Yates, who was then serving as counsel to Eliot
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1 Bernstein's children; and that document added a

2 provision.

3     Q.   All right.  And how did that document come

4 to light -- the altered document?

5     A.   It was brought to my attention by someone

6 in my office.

7     Q.   Okay.  Now, the -- you identified the

8 altered document as what again -- the Shirley

9 Bernstein Trust?

10     A.   The Amendment to Shirley Bernstein's

11 Revocable Trust Agreement.

12     Q.   Okay.  And who in your office brought that

13 to your attention?

14     A.   Our associate.

15     Q.   And who is that?

16     A.   Lauren Galvani.

17     Q.   And when did that take place?

18     A.   January 2013.

19     Q.   Okay.  And there is a document that's

20 attached to your affidavit, which is the -- I

21 believe an amendment to the Shirley Bernstein

22 Trust; is that correct?

23     A.   Hold on one moment.  Let me get to that.

24     Q.   Is that Exhibit C?

25     A.   I believe that's C, if I'm not mistaken.
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1 Hold on one moment.

2          (Witness reviews document.)  Yeah.  That's

3 Exhibit C.

4     Q.   Okay.  All right.

5          Now, Exhibit C, is that the altered

6 document or the unaltered document?

7     A.   That is the unaltered document.

8     Q.   And what did the altered first amendment

9 to the Shirley Bernstein trust say?

10     A.   I don't have it in front of me, but

11 essentially what it did was there was a -- you see

12 how it's numbered now 1 and 3?  There were -- you

13 know, somebody had messed up when it had been

14 originally prepared, and it got numbered --

15 paragraph No. 1, paragraph No. 3.

16          A paragraph No. 2 was inserted between 1

17 and 3.

18     Q.   And when did that take place?

19     A.   I don't know.

20     Q.   Was it -- did it take place sometime in

21 2012?

22     A.   I don't know.

23     Q.   Did it take -- well, how did your

24 associate suddenly come across it in January of

25 2014?
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1     A.   You'll have to ask her.

2     Q.   Did you ever ask her how she came across

3 it that then subsequently caused you to resign as

4 copersonal representative?

5     A.   She noticed that the amendment that had

6 been included in the letter to Christine Yates was

7 different than Exhibit -- the exhibit that's here

8 attached to my affidavit.

9     Q.   And in that letter to Christine Yates,

10 what was the date of that letter?

11     A.   I think it was January of 2013 -- I think.

12     Q.   Okay.  And so that was after the death of

13 Simon Bernstein; correct?

14     A.   Yes, it was.

15     Q.   So then that altered document contained in

16 a document dated January 11, 2013 could very well

17 have been prepared while Ted Bernstein was the

18 successor personal representative and successor

19 trustee to the Shirley Bernstein estate and trust;

20 correct?

21     A.   No.  Probably -- well...

22          Probably -- I'm not sure, to be honest,

23 Peter.  I'm not a hundred percent certain on the

24 timing.

25     Q.   Okay.  And how did a year go by between
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1 the time of the January 11th, 2013 letter in which

2 the altered document was produced to the attorneys

3 for Eliot Bernstein and then the discovery that it

4 was, in fact, an altered document?  What happened

5 in that 12-month time that caused you, or your

6 associate, or your office to discover that, in

7 fact, what had been supplied to counsel for Eliot

8 Bernstein was, in fact, a forged document or

9 altered document?

10     A.   I can't answer that question, actually --

11 'cause I don't know.

12     Q.   All right.  And -- and who in your firm

13 would be in the best position to know that -- if

14 it's not the general manager -- the managing

15 partner of the firm?

16     A.   Mr. Spallina or Ms. Galvani.

17     Q.   You were the managing partner at that time

18 still; correct?

19     A.   I was the president.

20     Q.   Okay.  And what did the altered document

21 say in paragraph 2?

22     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front

23 of me.

24     Q.   And the one attached to your affidavit?

25     A.   I told you that I don't have that in front

BATES NO. EIB 000595 
02/27/2017



1-888-311-4240

WWW.USLEGALSUPPORT.COM

57

1 of me.

2     Q.   I apologize if I'm being repetitive on

3 that score.

4     A.   Yeah, I don't have --

5     Q.   Your best recollection.

6     A.   Yeah.  Peter, I don't have it here.

7          It dealt with the definition of children

8 and lineals.

9          MR. ROSE:  Peter, I don't want to ruin

10 your momentum that you're building up, but I need

11 to take a bathroom break.  Could we take -- we've

12 been going at it for a little more than an hour.

13 Can we take like a five-minute break?

14          MR. FEAMAN:  Sure.  I'm moving on to the

15 next item anyway.

16          MR. ROSE:  No more than five -- maybe as

17 little as two minutes.  I'll be right back.

18          MR. FEAMAN:  No problem.

19          (Recess was taken.)

20     Q.   Mr. Tescher, I'd like you to take a look

21 at what's been premarked as Exhibit 3.

22          MR. FEAMAN:  Madam Court Reporter, would

23 you hand that to the witness.

24          COURT REPORTER:  Okay.

25          MR. FEAMAN:  Thank you.
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EXHIBIT 8 - SEC Consent Orders for Robert Spallina, Esq. and Donald Tescher, Esq.  
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IN nm UNITBD STATBS DISTB.ICI' COURT 
POll THB DJSTRICT OP NBW J.BRSBY 

SECUJUTIBS AND BXCHANGB COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff; 

v. 

~BER.TL. SPALLINA. et al, 

CONSENT OF DBRNDANT ROBERT L SPALLINA 

J. Dofmdant lt.obort L Spallina ("Dofondant') waivea service of a summona aJid tho 

complah.lt in this action, onten a pneral appearanco, and admits tho Comt•a jmiacliction over 

l>Ofondant and over the subject matter of this action. 

2.. Dofcndant 1lal &peed to plead guilty to crimmal conduct re1adJ2g to certain 

} matters alleged In the eomplaint it> this action and acbowledgea that his conduct violated the 

federal securities law& Speciti~y, Defendant has aarecd to plead guilty to a one count 

informatiOD which charges him with committiq securitios fraud involvina insider trading in tho 

aooaritioa of Pharmasset. lno. in a matter to be filed in tho United States District Court to1 tho 

District of New Jeney.(tbe ''CrimJnal Action"). 

3. Defendant .horoby co~ts to tbe entry of tho Pinal Judgment in the form attached 

hereto (the "Pinal Judgment') and incolpOtlted by refenmco herein, which, among other things: 

(a) J>ermanentty restrains and eqjoina Deteodant Jiom violation of Secdom 

· lO(b) mid 14(o) of the Securities Bxchinp Act.of 1934 C'Bxchango Act") 

, 
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[15 U.S.~. §I 78j(b) and 7~n(o)] and Rules lOb-S and 14c>l thereunder 

[17 C.P.R. §§ 240.tOb-S md 240.14e-3); 

(b) orders Dofendant to pay disgorpmeat in the amount of$39,156, plus 

prejudgment interest dJoreoa in the amount of Sl,794; provided, however, 

• that $39,1545 shall be deemed sadafled in 1igbt of Defendant's conaont to 

tho entry of a bfoitare money judgment in the amount of $39,156 iD . 

cmmeodon with the Criminal Aationt and 

(c) otdors Ddmdaat to pay a ctvil penalty in tho amount of $39,156 under 

Seodon 21A of die Bxchanp Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 

4. Defondant agrees that ho ahall not seek or accept,.~ or indirecdy, 
. 

ceimbutlemeDt or indcnmitl<Jation &om any SOUl'cet includina but not limited to payment made 

pursuant to any insunmQe policy, with regard to any cM1 penalty amounts that Dofcndant pays 

pursuant to the Pinal 1uclpient, rlpdel8 of whotbar such penalty 8IJlOUDia or ay put thereof 

ans added to a diatribution but or odaonrise used for the bone& of investors. Defendant tbrther 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to _any 

fedenJ, state, or IOOld tax for any penalty amounts that Dcfendmt pays pursuant U> the Final 

Judgment, regardless of whedler such penalty amounts or any part thereof aro added to a 

distribution fimd or odterwise used for tbe benefit of inveaton. 

S. Dofondanl waives the entry of ftndinp of fact and conclusiona of law pursuant to 

.Rulo 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.. 

6. Dofondant waivca the right. if any, to a jury trial and to appeal ftom the entry of 

the PJnal 1udplmt. 

2 
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. . 
7. Defendant enters into this Consent vohmtarily and represents that no tbreotB, 

.• 
of:fen, promisea. or induOOJDelda of any kind have been made by the Commission or any 

mombor, offtoer, employee, •• or representative of tho Commiasion to induce Defendant to 

enter {Dto this Consent. 

8. Dofeadant agrees that this Consent shall bo incorpomt.ed into the F~ J'vdgmcmt 

with· tho aame fcm:e and ctrect aa Jf fblly set forth therein. 

9. Defandant will D0t oppo80 tho enforcement of tho Pinal Judgment OD fho p.xmd, 

·if my exists, that it tails to comply with llule 6S(d) of the Pederal ltules of Civil Proceduro, and . 

ltenby waivel any objection baaed tbm:on. 

10. Dofondant waives aervico of the Pinal Judgment and aamcs that entry of tho Pinal 

ludgment by tho Coult and~ with the aert of tho Comt will constitute notice to Defendant 

of ita teaaa and conditions. Dofendant i\uther aareea to provide counael tor the Commiuion, 

within tbirr.y da11 after the Pinal ludgmODt fa filed witll the Clerk of the Court, with an atndavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant bu recoived ~read a copy of the Pinal Judgment. 

11. Consistmt with 17 c.F.R. I 202.5(1), thfs Consent resolves only the claims 

asserted against Defendant fn this civil proceedfng. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or 

representation has been made by the Commission or any mmnber, o~cer, employee, agent, or 

representative oftbo CommissJon with mprd to any oriminal liability that may haw er.inn or 
• • t 

may arlae ftom the factl underlying tbJ.a action or immunity ftom any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy bued upo~ the settlement of this pmceeding, 

including tho imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Dofendant Jbrther acknowledges 

that the Court's entry of a ~ent ID;unctioa may have collateral conaequencea under federal 

or state law and ihe rules and regulations of self.regulatory organizadons, Ucensing boards, and 
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other regulatory orpnindons. Such collateral consequences include, but aro not limited to, a 

. slatufOl'y disqualificadon with respect to membership or participation in, or aasociadon wi1h a 

member o~ a~~ Tlda statutory diaqualiftoation baa consequencea that 

are soparate from any aancdon imposed in ID~ pmceedlng. In addition, in any 

discJplfnary proceeding before the Commission baaed on tho entl)' of the injunction in this 

action, Defendant undonbm.da that ho abal1 not bo ponniued to contest the factual allejationa of 

the complaint ill tbia action. 

12. Defendant understands and apees to comply with tho tenm of 17 C.P.R. 

f 202,S(e). whlcb provides in part that it ia tho Commisaion'a poliO)' ''nc>t to permit a dofendaat 

or respolideDt to consent to a judgment or older that impose8 a sanction while denyins the . ' 

aJleptiom in the complaint or OJder for pmc:eedlnp." Aa part of Defendant's agreemant to 

comply with tho klm8 of Section 2015(0), Dofendaat acknowledges that bo has aJD*I to plead 

gufhy tor rolatec1 conduct as deacribcd in paragraph 2 above, and: (i) will not tab any action or 

make or permit to be made any pablio statement denying directly or indirectly, any allegation in 

~e complamt or creating the impieaslon that the complaint la without W basis; (If) will not 

maim or permit to be made any pubHc statement to tho effect that Defendant does not admit tho 

al1epd.ona of the complaint, or that this Conseat contains no admission of the allepticms; (iii) 

upon the filing of tbia Consent. Defendant hereby withdraws any papers filed in this action to tbe 

extent that they dmy ~Y aDeption in the complaint; aud (iv) sdpul,iea for putpOaOS of 

aceptiona to diacbarge sot forth in Section 523 of the Bantrvptcy Code, 11 U.S.C.. §523. that the 

allegations in the complahlt are true. and ibrtbo.r, that any dobt tor diagorgement. prejudgsnent 

intoreat, civil penalty or other amounts duo by Defendant under the Final Judgment or any other 

judgment, order, consent order, decree or aottJeaDent agreement entered in connection with this 

4 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 12   Filed 10/01/15   Page 4 of 18 PageID: 208

BATES NO. EIB 000604 
02/27/2017



Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 3 Filed 09/28/15 Page 5of12 PagelD: 33 

proceeding, ia a debt tbr the violation by Defendant of tho federal securities laws or any 

regulation or order issued under IUCb laws, aa sct forth in Section S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy 

Code, 11 u.s.c. tS23(aX19). Jf Defondant broaches 1hil asreememt, the Commisaion may 
petition the Court to vacate the Pinal Judgment and reatoro tblt action to 111 active cfoclcot. 

Nothilig in tbia paragraph affocti Dofe.adant'r. (i) testimonial obliptlona; or (H) tight to take 

lept or factual positions in litiption or other lesal proceedings in which the Commission ia not 

apady. 

13. . Dofendant hereby wafvea any righta under tho Bqua1 Accoaa to Justice Act, 1ho 

SmaD BUlhtesa Regulatory Bnfomement Faimeaa Act of 1996, or any other provision Of Jaw to 

uek tiom the United Statea, or·any agency, or any oftloial of tho United States acdng Jn his or 

· her oftlcial capacity, dlrecdy or indirectly, reimbursement of attomof s fees or other fees, 

oxpenses, or coats expanded by Dofondant to defend allafnst tlda acdon. Por tbcmo pUq>oaes, . 

Ddmdant agnea that Ddmdant ii not the prevailing party ill thl8 action sinco the parties have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

14. Jn connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative 

pmceeding ot Jnvesdpdon commonced by the Commlaafon or to which the Commission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agnea to appear and be il1teniewed by Commission staff at such dmea and 

pllcoa as tllo atatr requeata upon reasonable noticoi (ll) will accept service by mail or filcsimilo 

uanamiaaion of noticee or nbpoenu iaaued by the Commiaaion for dooumeata or toadmony at 

depoaidoDa, heulnp, or trials. or In cmmoodon with any related investigation by Coinmi.,.tcm 

~ (Jii) appoim Dofendant'a undendped attorney as. apnt to receive service of such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with respect to such nodces and aubpoo.ou, waives the terri~ limits on 

service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Pro_ceduro and any a}iplicable tOcal 
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rules, j>rovided chat the party requesdng the testimony reimburses Defendant's travel, lodgina, and 

subsisteacO egpeasoa at the then-provailing U.S. Govemment per diem rates;·anct (v) conacmta to · 

peraonaljurisdiction over Defendant ia any United States Diatrict Couri for'pmpoaes of 

· enforolng any noh ~ 

15. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Pinal J'udgment ·to the 

Comt for aipatuN and entzy without Auther notico. 

16. Defendant agrees chat tbi8 Court ahall retain jurisdiction over this matter for tho 
I 

puq>ose of enforcing the terms of the Pinal Judgment. 

Approved II to form: 

~~ Gibbobs ... 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 
Counsel for Robert L Spallina 

~CQ~ 
· Commiaion expim: 

Q) Alexa Collevecldo .... ' ..... .......... 
WIWMDllOTAIY.001 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SPALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circUinStances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14( e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while m possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender off er; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of $39, 156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities and Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

N. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(l9) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a){l9). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ROBERT L. SP ALLINA, et al., 

Defendants. 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT ROBERT L. SP ALLINA 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant 

Robert L. Spallina having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's jurisdiction 

over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment; 

waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; waived any right to appeal from this Final 

Judgment; and Defendant having admitted the facts set forth in the Consent of Robert L. Spallina 

and acknowledged that his conduct violated the federal securities laws: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

IO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule 1 Ob-5 promulgated thereunder [ 17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

( c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert.or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F .. R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to kn.ow has been 

2 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 

3 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of$39,156, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $1, 794; provided, 

however, that $39,156 shall be deemed satisfied in light of Defendant's consent to the entry of a 

forfeiture money judgment in the amount of$39,156 in connection with the resolution of a 

parallel criminal action instituted in this Court; and a civil penalty in the amount of $39,156 

pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u-1]. Defendant shall satisfy this 

obligation by paying $40,950 to the Securities a.nd Exchange Commission within 14 days after 

entry of this Final Judgment. 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/F edwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities a.nd Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

4 
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and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Robert L. Spallina as a defendant in this action; and specifying that paymentis made 

pursuant to this Final Judgment. 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

5 
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Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19). 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

6 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT CO~T 
·DISTRICT OF NBW JBRSBlj 

SBCURITJBS AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

· Plaintiff, 
C.A.·No. _._ 

v. 
1· • 

DONAW R. TBSCHBR. et al, 

. ..1 

·CONS~ OJ' DEFENDANT DONALD.IL TE~ 

· 1. Defendant Donald R. Tescher ("Defendant") waives service of a summons aDd . 

,: 

herein in paragraph ·12 and. except as to~ and subject matter jlJdsdiction, which 

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby eonsents to the emry of the final Judgment in the fomi 
II " . .r 
• • .. ~ • + 

attached hereto (the "Fmal J~eat") and incorporated~ refinnce henDn. which, among other 

(a) 
' . 

tO(b) and 14(e) of die Securities ~change Mt of 1934 ("Rxchange Act'? .. · 
.. 

[lS U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78n{e)] and Rules 101>-S ind 14&-3 tbereunder 

[17 C.F.R:. ·-§ 240.lOb-S and.240.14e-3); 

(b) · orders DefeDdapt to pay disgorpment in the amount of $9,937, plus · 

prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $690; and 

1. 
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. , 

(c) orders De~ to pay a civil penalty in 1he amount of $9,937 under · 
. . 

Section 21A oftbe Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-1]. 
. " 

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not~ or accept, dii'ectly or indirectly, 

reimbqrsemmt or jndemnJficatioo from any source, includhig but not limited to payment made . . 

pursuant to any insurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defimdant pays 

pursuant to the Final Judgment. regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereo~ 

are added to a ctistributicm fund or otherwise used for the benefit of investon. · DefeDdant fbrther 

agrees that be shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax ciectit with regard to apay 

·federal, stale, or local tax for any penalty .amo~ that Defendant pays pursuant. to the Final 
, < 

·.Judplent, ~ess of wbetber·sUch penalty amOUDts ~any part thereof are added to a 

dimibUti~ fund or otherwise used for.the benefit of investors.. 

4. Defendant ~tectP that the Court is not imposing a ci~ penalty in excess 

· ofS9,937 based on DefeQdant's cooperation in a Commi•on inwsdgation and/or mated 
~. ' • •· ·. ' •· • ......... ;,,,. a ' ' •"· '- '. ·•· .. ' • • ' ... · •... • • ' ' "'-' • • • • • ' ,., • • , .. • ·• ' • • . .; ,,;, ;, ; ' -~• ' ,., "" ' •. ,.., •• ' ,., • 

~action. ~ consems that if at an)' ame followina the eJltr)' of the irma1 
~ . (• . . 

Judpient ~ Commiaion obtains intomuttion indicatiq that Defendant knowinalJ JJl1;Mded 

materially false or mislead~ infonnation or materials to the Commission or in a related 
. . . 

Pmceectina. the Commission may, at its sole ~on ana without prior notice to the Defendant;. 

petition the ~·for an order requiring Defendant·to pay an additional civil penalty.. In 

. . ·connection with the Commission's motion for civil penalties, and at any hcsarin1 held on such a 

motion: (a) Defendant Will be preCtuded from arguing that he did not viol8te the federal 

securities Jaws as alleged in the Complamt; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the 

Judpient, this Consent, or any related Undertakings; (c) the~ of the cOmp• solely 

for~ purposes of'~ motion, sb8n be accepted as and deemed 1rue by the Court; and (d) the 

. 2 
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Cour_t may deterinine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of atlidavits, declarations, 

excerpts of sworn deposi~ or investigative testimony, and documentary evidence without 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained. in Rule S6(c) of the Federil Rules of 

Civil Procedme. Under these circumstances, the parties may take discovery, including discovery . 

·-
S. Defendant waives die entry of findinp of fact and conclusiom of law pursuant to 

Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedme. 

6. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury 1l;ia1 and to appeat from the entry of. 

the Final Judgment. 

7. Defendant ente.rs into this Consent voluntarily and 1epieseats that no tbreafs, 

o1fers, promises, or inducementa of any kind haw been made by the Commission or any e _, II 

member, ofticer, employee, apnt, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

8. Defendant 111W 1hat this Consent shall be incorporatecl into the Final Jtufp1ent 

with the same fome and effect u if fully set forth therein. 

9. · Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the Final Judgment on the ground, 
, .. 

if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Federal Rules of CiW Procedure. and 

hereby waiws any objection based thereon. .. 

1 O. Defendant waives service of the F'mal Judgment and agfees that entry of the Pinal 

Judgment by the Court and fillna with the Clerk: of the Court wiD comf:itute notice to Defendant . 

of its terms and conditions. Defendant further aarees to provide counsel for the Comminion, 

within thirty days after the Final Judpent is tiled with the Clerk of the Court, with an aftidavit 

or declaration stating that Defendant has received and read a copy of the Fmal Judgment. 

3 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 3 of 22 PageID: 145

BATES NO. EIB 000621 
02/27/2017



• Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 7 Filed 09/28/15 Page 4of14 PagelD: 107 · 

' . 
11. Consistent with 17 C.P .R. § 202.S(f), tbis. ConsCnt resQ.lves only the claims 

asserted agiun&t Defendnt in this. civil ~Ing ~ adato~ that no promise or 
. . : . . ; ... 

•• • ,. > • .. ... 

. ·~on has been made by the Commission or any .member, ofiicer, Cmployee, agent, 0r 

~ve of tlle·CommissiO.n with regmd to any criminal lilbility that may have arisen or 
, ..... 

. . 
· may arise ftOm the facts underlyina this aCtion or immuDity from any~ criniinal liability. 

Defendant waives any.claim ofDouble·Jeopardy ~upon the ~ent.ofthis ~ng. 

including the imposition of miy xeinedy or civil penalty berehi. Defenctant ~ 8cbowf~. 

that die Court's entry of a permanent ~n may have colllteial ~~under federal 
' .. ~ . 

or state law and the rules and iegulatiOns of self-regulatory orpniDtions, licensina boards. and 

other regulatory~ Such collateral consequences ~ but are·n~ limited to, a 

statutoij-with·respect to~ or participation in, 0r _.ad.on wi1h a · 
··- . .. . ·~ . . . .. . . ·. . . . .... - . 

mem~ot; a.Self~.~ ~ sbdutm)'.~llas CODJOqUeDCeldwt 

·are se.r)arate ·&om any ~on imposed in in administDative pmcWcHna . .In addition, in any . 
. : . • ~. '"~·"' '"":'''""~"·,~ .. ;.: ·• .; . ·"·: .,·~·.·"'\"•':'':,;:,.;:..·.~,; • .,.,;, ... :·· ... : .. , ·!'·· '""·' ........... ;., .... ~ .. , .. ,<', ....... ~ ......... ., .... , .. :)'"'·: ,, . ; .. ,, ":'""''' ,: ,,·,, .. 

disciplbiary pr0crofin1beforethoCommissionbased0n the.emry of the injunction in this 
~- ' .. 

action. Defendant 1Dldentands that he shall not be permitted to comest the factual allegations of 
. . . .. . 

the cOmplaint in this actiOn. .. 
12. · Defendant understands and agrees to comply with the~ of 17 c.F.R. 

•. 

§ 202.S(e), which provides in part 1hat it is fhe· Commission's policy "not to permit a defmdmit . 

or respondent to consent to a judgment 0r order that imPoses a sanction wbUe denying the 
f ~ • • • 

·alleged~ in the complaint or Older for proceedinp." and "a retbsal to admit the allegations is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or mpondent stama that he neither admits nor denies 

the allegatiom.'' ~ part of Defendant's agreeinellt to comj>ly witl;l the terms of Section 202.S(e), 

· Defendant: (i) wm ·not~'·~ ~on or make or permit to bo IP8de any public statement 

4 

Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG   Document 9   Filed 10/01/15   Page 4 of 22 PageID: 146

BATES NO. EIB 000622 
02/27/2017



' 
• · Case 3:15-cv-07118-AET-LHG Document 7. Filed 09/28/15 Page 5of14 Page~D: 108 

' . 
denyin& dhecdy or ~y. ~allegation in the complaint or~ the~ that the 

~is withoqt·factuat ·basis; (h)willnot mate ~pciamit _:,·be made anypublic·'statemem 
' . . .. ~ . . : . .. . . . . _.: ; 

' 
to the etfect that DefeDdaat does not admit the alleptions of the qomplaint. or.that this ·Consent. 

· ~no admission of the an9d~ without aliO stadDg that~ does not deny the. 
" ' ..... . "... .;, 

thi8 actiontO the~ that the, clCnY any allegation in the Com,tamt; am (iv)·~ solely 
• • ' -11' • 

for pmp1&ei ·of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of-the Bankruptcy Code, 11 . 

. u~s.~. §523, that the anepdom in die complaint a true, and~. that mi, debt ror . 
. disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amoums d1_le by Defimdant under~ \ : 

.{ ... · 

Fin:81 Juctlmeni or q. other judgmellt, order, consent order, decree or:~~ .. 

· ~ ia cmmedioD ~~:~is a debt ibrtl)e vio1atlOa ~~of tho iildeial 

secmitics Jawa or any regulation, or Order issUed ~ suCh laws, u set forth in Section · 

S23CaX19)oftbo Bankruptcy Code, 11 u.s.C. §523(aj(t9). IfDcfendaat breaches this 
..•.... ~ •.. ..,,:..,. ~-"?·· l' .•. ~., .... ,. ... , •. ;.,; ....... 1 .............. '·-·:· .. ,. ..... ,,........ ..• ..... ,. ~ : ' '. , . .,, .. , . . ·-~·········'·" •'' '''." ,: . ·~ ........ ··. :·~.· .. ,..,.... .. ~ " ; 

agreem«;nt, the Commission maj petition the~ to vacate 1he Final J1utgmeut and JeStore this · . 
. ,. . ' _., . 

. . 

· obligations; or (ti) right to take lel:'1 or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedinp · 

· in which. the Commission is not a party. 

13. Defendant 'hereby waives~ rights under the~ Access to Justice Act, the 

Small B•'Siness Regulatory EnforcementFairneas.Act of 1996, or any other provision of law to 
. . 

seek ftOm. the United States. 0r any agency, ~any ofli~ of the United States acting~ his or · 

her official capacity, directly or indirectly,~ of attomey•i fees or other~ 

. eXpenses. or costs eX.,ended by Defen,dant to defend apinst this action. For theaO pmposes,. 

s 
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.>"' • 

. . . 
: , " ' . ~,'. . . . 

. Defendant agrees that Defendant is not the prevailing' party in this action smce tho parties have 
{ ' ' > , ... • • • .. 

;~·aoQ4-~\ 
14. ln-~oowithtbis d~ and anyielatecl~ill or~ 

,. . . . . .. . ' ·''· . . . . . ·. . . ~ 

procee<ting or inWitigadon Coininenceci by the Commission or to which1be Comniission is a 
. . ,· . . . .. . .- . 

party, Defendant (i) ....... tolppear and· be interviewed by Cotnrft(ssi~strdf at .. times and . 

places_• the statr~ Qpo~reas0nal)le notice;.(h)will~ ~ by.~or ~ile 
' . . ,. 

tnmsmission.of D01ices or subpoenas issued by tho Commission.for~- or testimony at 

sta&;· (lh) appoints Defendant's undersip.ed attomey • agent to receive selvice of such notices 
. ,. . ' 

and subpoenas; (IV) with respect to such'. notices ~subpoenas, waives tho territorial limits OD 
. ~ , . 

seMce contafu.ed in Rule 4S.Of the Federal ~-of Civil~ and any applicable~ 
, ·>. • ,. 

. rules. pmvideclthattbepmiy·~ the ~reimburses~· uavel,. lodgtn& and 
. . 

suhsislmce mr.pemes at_,~ U.S. GoVflDlrieDt per dieauatm; and (v) comrmta to 
' '~ ,.,,...., ,' :"'<" "''' ,;"".._'"'f':'• '·• ,);, .... '' ... (,>o • r"""•) •' r•' "'\';,,. 

0
•0 ·,,;, • : •,;,.~.•••· o.( .... , 0 ••<• ••. ;Jll.. '' ( •• ~~' ' ''' "'' ":-'"''' ')Ito.'''./"·'• • • ' •• '•'•· j,'·'' • '<• • '•• •·'••<• '- • • •• • ,,. '< <'°H H• ; , » , ... , 0 , ,., , <f o( •• 

personal jmisdiction over·~ant in any u~ States Diitrict Court for purposes°" 
enfOJdng aity such subpoena. . 

· · ts. Defendant ap. that the Commission inay paent the Final Jud&inem to the 

· Comt for sipaiure and entry without fbrther notice.; 

: 
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. : " 

: : : :::J~µg)of;e.of~~orcing;.th~tl,11h~l-of the Finaliudgme11t.\ · 
.... · - .h. ... :. .. . ,,· ·.• . . ·.' ,, . · .. •··· 
.:· ~ . -: .. 

Approved as to form: 
. . . 

· .. '. H:au~?t41/l()t~ 
. J·{~A·M~!li~ •. ~, --·• ~. f/ .. 

· Moscowitz & MoscowitZ, P.A 
· Sabadell Financial Center. · 
· lll lBrickell Ave.,. Suite 2050 
Miami, FL 33131 

7 

..... 

'· 

--··.· ....... · .. ·.· .. 
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UNITEO: S'fA'fBS DISTIUCT COURT 
. DISTIUCT OP·mw JER.sBY •.. 

'• - .. 

SBCURITJES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON. · 

Plain~. 
C.ANo._-_ 

v. 

DONALD R. TBSCHER et al., 

Defendants. 

·,. .- . 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT DONALD R. TESCBER ... · 
-f • • • , • ,- : • .. . . • . . : ..• ,·. 

. . . . .. . 

Donald R. Tescher ("Defendanf') havilig-enterecl a general appearance;_consented to the Court's 

juriSdiction over Defendant and the subjectmatter of this action; consented to: entry ·of this Fir)al 
.. . . l ·.. .. . . . .. . ' ·• . . ·. . . . . · . 

.,, .. ·,· ··- . -...... ,.;<··' ~-:. •: -·~--·····~ . . . ' .• -· .. .•.. :~ .,. .•.. ··:. ~ ';~. , .• 

Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except :as otherwise provided herein in paragraph VI); waived findings of fa.et 

and· conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final JU:dgment: 

I. 
. . .. . 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and. 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attomeys, and all persons_ in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service·or 

otherwi$C are permanently restrained and enjoined n:Qm violating, directly or indirectly, Section 

l~) of the Secmities Bxchange Actof 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [lS 11.s.c. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulg~ thereun~er (17 c~F.R. § 240.tOb-5], by using any means or :' 
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··.;·. 

secUrlties exe~e, in·Connection witttthe Pme~ ot sale of an)' securiti: . : 
. . ..... , ... - . , .·. :;· •, ..... ··:······ ·- ·· .. · .. • . ········-· 

(a) · ·~~Of anydevie8,~~artificeto~ 
.. 

. ·. (b) · to ~ake any untrue stat~ebt orlilllaterial,factot tO oJllit u> std, atnatoriaJ &ct· .. 
,.i 

· .···.~.inontcr::io·111a¥~:~~-rnade,:ut:theii&htotim,e~ees .. · 
.·"· ··:';' .. 

. . : 

( e) . to engage i~ any act. practice, O?'cOUl'Se of business which optTaies or woul~ 

operate as a frawfor deeeit upon any penon. 
\. 

: IL 

... rr1sHEREB:vFOR•:oRDEREP. AJ>JUPGBD. AND vECREaPfhall>ofmidmt. 
: . ' ~- . ' . . . . . ' .. . ... · .·· . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . ... . . '. . : . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . . . . . . . . 

. and Defendant's agents;~, empl~yee'S, attOmeys, and allpersons in active conCert or' . . . . . 

. participation with them who i=eive a~tual'~tiee of.this F~ Judgment by penomd service or 

.'·.·: .. <>f#enYiSO&re.l>eiiDanettu1~·•~<feiij0ine<t.&om.ViotltiD1'8Ceti08·14(e)or~··&cb8D&e· 

.Act [JSU.S.C. § 78ii{e)] SndRuleJ4e·l[l7 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]pomulgated thereunder, in 

Connection with any tender offer or request~ invitation. for tenders, from enpging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or.~pulative act .or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
.. . . . . ... .. . . .. 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or, 

exchangeable for any
1 

such 'securitie& or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possessiOn of material . . . . . . . . ·. 

infonnation relating to such tender offer.that l)efendant knows or has. , 
; : . . .,. .. · . . . 

-~ ~ '" 

reason to know is nonpublic and kno\vs or has reason to know has been 

2 
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. . . ,.· . . . ... . . .. ·:-. ·. .. .. 
• • •h • • • • • • • • • • • 

. . . . . . . . 

. ·.·.··· ... ac:ct~~~or.~)'fniinthe.~~t¥~ofthcl ··. ·• 
. . ., . . : . : ·:·: .. < .: < :. ::~ -:: ':. . ; ·· .. -~:: . 

securities soiigh,t or to bi soiig\U by such tender offer; or any officer, 

. :._:. difector,parlnef J~P.t~yee ~r ()therpet10~ lcimll till.~haltoithe o~g­
. per&on or such i~, unles$·within a re&SOn8bteJil11e pri0r to any such-: 

. . . . ': . . . . ., 

. ,·. ' . . . , 

·.· purchase or sale stidt uuomMltion and m source are publicly,disclosed by 

press release or otherwise; or · 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information relating to a tender offer, 
. . . 

. -· . which Defendant knows C>r has reason to know is nonpublic and knoWl or 
. ~-

. · -has reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly ftom the 
' , . , . . . ' . .. . : . . . . . ... ~ . . : . . . ' . : . : . . . : . . : . . . . . . . . . . :. . . 

· • o~ person; ,tJ,te i~ e>(the ~ti"5 Sought oflo ~ ~p&bt,by stlch:. · · 
... '~der otiet; or -~otli~~ ~' ~t cmlpfoy~'.ad~;:or ot1tei< .. · . 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in wllich it is reasonably foreseeable that such _ 
• • • .... ,. • • : • • • • • • • • • •• , • • • •• • • • ., ,, '. ._.,..' • ·'" •• ·~· • ., :' ••• ,. - • ., • • • • ••• : ' ":" ~; ,· ••• ; • .:. •• • • •• • • ". ~ •••• "'· y •• ,;: ; •• ' .... : ':' ·-·· •••••• ·--:: •• ~ ••• "• ' 

. . . . ' 

. _ commµnication, is.likely to result in the puichase_ m_Sale of ~Curities. in the 
. . . . 

ma.triter desCribed in subparagraph (a) above; excc:pi that thiS paragtaph 

shall not apply .to a communication made in good faith. 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partners, 

employees or.advi8ors or to.other persons· involved in the 

3' 
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- - . . ' . . . 

P~& fitutri<:in&· ~~fiPJtQf el(.~Qtt. qf ttle .. 
. •. - .. ' . . ·.··· ' .. 

. acti~ti~ of the issllet with res~'tO .s~li.tmder otrer, or 

(iii) ·. to>any J)er$>n ~uant t0 a ~~,~tany statUte or 
~~ or.te~ation }>tODlulgatai th•dOT.. · 
: ·' _: 

. :m .. 

IT IS FUR1HER ORDERED, ADJUOOEJ?, AND_DECREED tblltl>efendantis liable· 

fo. r disgorgemeot of $9,937~ representing profits g~ed as a result of the eondiici an.· eged in the , . . . . . .. . -- ' 

. - . .. ' . 

CompJaUrt. ~·with pn!judgmellt ~thereon in the amount of $690, and a ci\rll penattf · 
. . . 

· -··· · • , : • · inJhe amount'.of$9,937 pu?suantto S~~; 2tAoftlle Exclumge Act(lS:U.S~C. § 18u-11~ . 
. . . .. _ ·.,:' ... ~;· .· .. - .-~-~- .::-. -~ ... . .. ;:> .: .. ·.. _:\,··::;.:_ ... · . .· ,•:.. .· ·_ .· .. ; .::->.·· ,··.· .. · ... 

Defefid1Ifi·Sli~1~:Sfy,;t11is:(,bli~~·WP:.i~$20,s64•iO·~··~~uritiel:llJld·~·~···•.•-·: -.. 

. . .. . . . . . . .. . . . . . 

. DefendaDt 111ay ~ paymentelectronically to the Commission, ~ch Will provide 

•...• detiil~ACH·~~~WiJi, ~~iJPi>iiieQ• 1,aYiDe1itm:aY;IJiobe·li18de~ 
ftoJJ1 a bank accou11fyia Pay.go'V thrOUjh ~SBC Website it 

- . -

htg>://ww\v.Sec~gov/a]>Qut/ofti~oftn.htm. Defendant'rltay also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier'~ cheek, or United States postal money onJer payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~fon, which shall be delivered or mailed to 
. . ' 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK.73169' · .. • 

- ' 

and shall ~ ~panled by a letter identifyirig tbO case title, civil action n~, Ind_ Dant~ of 
. . . .. . ' . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ 

'purswmt t0this Final Judgment. _· 

4 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying inf~on to the Commission's counselin tbis action. By making this payment, .. , 
~ . . . ,_ . . : . . 

Defendant relinquishes ·all legal and equitable right, title, and.interest in such (Unds and. no part 
. ,· . . . .. . ·. . 

.. of the fbnds sba~tlbe ~to oer~t.. The ~()~On S~ send the ~ds paid puisuant . ... 
t0 this Final JudgrA~t to_ the United SU\teS Tteasuri .... 

. The con1nliSsion may enforce the. Co~·sj~ganent for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures miihorized by 

law) at any time * 14 days following entry of this Pinal Judgment. Defendant smill pay post .· 

judgment interest on. any delinquent amounts pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 1961 •.. · 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY FURUIER .ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DEcR.EED that based on 

Defendant's cooperatl~ in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement ·action,. the 

·co\lrt"is nOi"ol'deniil~ttOpay.a ciVii PeDlliY iD ex~sl""of$~,937~; Irat any"tmie· . 

following the·entry of tho~ Final Judgment me Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that . 
• 0 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading information or materials to the 

Commission or in a related proceeding, the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requiring Defendant to pay an 

additional civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any h~g held on sUch a 
~ • ' '<. 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom arguing that he did not violate the federal 

securitiei laws ~ alleged m the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of~ Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the 

5 
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CQurt may det~ the issues raised in the motion on the buis of affidaVits, declaratiollS, 

excerpts of SWOm deposition or investigative testimony,-~ documentary .evidence without 
'• A ' ', • )' '•' ' :, • 

. . . . . 

regard to the standards for summary judament containCd in Rulo ?6Cc) of the Federal Rules o~ · 
. . . . . . . 

Civil Pr®edure. Under.these-circumstances, tile parties ~Y t.ako diseovery, hicluding discovery . 

from 1ppro1>riate non-parties. · 
'. 

v. 
IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

. . . 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein. and that Defendant 

shall comply;with all of the undertakinp and agreements set foi:th therein. 

VI. 

IT IS F{ffl.TIIER ORDER.ED, ADJUDGEµ, AND DECREED that, solely for purpoSes of 

.. ex~ns to diSchatge set forth ilt Section S~ of.the Bankruptcy Code_ ll U.S.C._._ §523, the ... 

allegations in the Complaint are tnie and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

diSgorgement, prej~gmen~ interest, oiVn penalty or other amowits due by ~endant under this 

F"mal Judgment or any other judgment,· order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with. this proceeding, is adebt for the violation by Def~ of the federal 
. . j . 

securities laws or any regulation or order issued lDlder such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23(a)(19). 

VIL 

IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purpo&es of enforcing the tenns of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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' ' vm. 
. There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil .. 

. . 
~rocedure, the Clerk is ordetcd to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without fmther n0tice. 

· ....... ~···· Datt.d;&d-1 . 2J) /h . . 

. ' . 

7· 
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UNITED; S1'ATES DISTJUCT C()URT 
.. DI~TIUC'f OF·~WJEIJ.s'.BY ·.· 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS~ON, . · 

Plain~. . . . 

C.A. No. • --v. 

DONALD R. TESCHER et al., 

.Defendants • 

•.. FINAL.~ooMENT.~ TOD~.-\N'f DoNALD a. TESCBEa •.. 
The $~ties·and Exchange C<!mmission having filed· a Complaint Ind Defendani: : .. 

"• 

Donald It Tescher ("Defendanf') Jtavhia entered·~ gener8l appearan~; consented to the Court's. 
" . . . .. . : . . . . . . .. · ·.· . ··' . . .· . . 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of tms action; consentecUo entry of this Final. 
. ··." . . . . ' . . . . . .. " 

Judgment withoUt. admitting' or denying the a11egations of die comJ;iliht (ucept as t0 .. 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided hetein in paragraphVI); waived findings of fact 

and· conclusions of law; Ind waived any right to appCal fiom this Final Jll;dgment: 

I. 

IT IS ·HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREEf? that Defendant anf! 

Defendant's agents, servants,. employees, attorneys. and all persons.in active concert or 

· participation with them who receive ~tual notice of'this Final Judgment by personal service or 
. , 

otherwise are pennanently restrained and.enjoined ~m violating,.directly orindllectly,.Section 
. . . '. . . . 

l~) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Actj [1511.s.c. § 78j(b)] and. 

Rule lOb-5 promul~ thereunder (17 C.F .R. § 240.1 Ob-5], by using any means or• .. 
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. . . , . 

. instrunlentaJityof i1:'~ CO~~ ()I'. of the.~ or of any facility.of an)'. national·• 
''('. 

securities exehaltge, fu.connectfoJ1 with thei)urChase or Sale of an)' security~'· 
•' ·· .. ·, ::.· ;,; : .· - . - ... _._. . .· ... •.·- .. ·. ·- . : 

·.·. . ,· .. · :. " . . ,' .. . . . .. 

, (b) , , to tnab any un1rUe $tiltenlent of ll'Materi.i fact or to oJDittO state .fl material fact 

~saey in onter~ Uia1ce:thC sta~ts 1l'lade, hi theli&ht of thl' (:l~- .· , 

Under which they were·~· not muleading; or 

( c) . to engage irt any ~ practice, or·caurse of business which opemles or would 
, , 

, , 

operate as a fraud 'or deceit upon ally person. 

. . -. ' 

IL . 

· ·ITIS:ilmmBYFUR'tHER ORDERED, AJ;lJUDOED, AND DECREED that t>efeiidant .. ·. 
•.-.· . ,. . . ·.· .. ·. ·,. . .· ·.. . :· . . : ...... ·.·.. . . . 

·and Defendant's agents, ~ employees, attorneys, and all persons in activ~ concert.or 

participation with them whQ receive actualnotl~ of_this Final Judgment by penonat service or 
. ' . . ! ··: . . . . 

' . . . . 

.·····•.·<>~sc;an,·~·~·m,if etiJofuea·ifamvit>tltiiia··s~<>r.·I4<e>' orthe.:&chlnae . 
. ,' . . ' 

Act [IS U$.C. § 78ii(e)] and.Rulel4e·3· (17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3]promulgated thereunder, in 

oonnection with any tender offer or request o~ invitation' for tenders, .from engaging in.any 

fraudulent, deceptive, oun~pulative act _or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selliDg or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 
> • • • ... ... • .. • 

sought or to be sought in such tendet offer, securities convertible into or. 

exchangeable for any 'such ,securitiel or any opuon or rigb.ho obtain or 

~of any. of the foregoing securities while·~ possessian of material 
, , , 

information l'f!udina. to such.tender offer·~ Pefendant .knows or has. ·. . 
:··· 

... ... .... 

reason to know is nonpublic and mows or h.as reason to know bas beell 

2 

\ . 
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: . . . . . . . . . . . . . : . : ·. ~ : . : . . . . . . : : ' . . . ... : : . . . . . . . . . : . ; . 

······~~~t~·~fn>nl·fhcl~~~tb,e~Of~··.· .. · 
. . . .::.::>· : ... -..:._.:::.;::·: ,,·. ,: ... ·.·. :,-:' ; : ;-:· .. ~··<. :.·(' .·:; 

seCurities So~.Ol'.fO 1*' sought by such~.~~"OI' any officet, 

····.··.·,···i;: ditedor, ~~:ern~1~;~.<>l"·Other:~~:,lo~*·•·c>tt,~fudi.ortbe•<>treiini 
.. person or sucll i~uer, tlritea.within a re&,on8b1e time prior to any such 

. . ... ' . . . . . . 
. . . . . ·. .... ': . . . ·... ' . . . .. . 

.· purcMse or sale stich iJllonilation and lts source are pubUCJydisclosed by. 

press release or otherwliJe; or 
' ' ' 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic information. relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is.nonpublic .nd tcnows·or · 

'. ' has, reason to know has been acquired directly or indirectly·fi:om the 
' . ' . 

·.·. •, . . . . . . ,. . : ' . .· '' .· ... ,· ·. .' ,· .. 

· · · oflering pers<>ii; the issUer of the .securities Sought ot to J,)e sou&lttby such · · 
: .- : . : . ·. . . ' .. . ' .. . . . .' .. :'. ·, ..... •. ;: : .· ... : .. . " , . · .. : :.'· .. :_. . . . ; ... . . . : ,,' . :, .· ·• . :. , __ .. : . ", . . · .. ·. . . . . . ·~. ' 

·· ~daotreti~~~~~.~.~.etnPtill'el.~~~orhther ·. 
person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

· ·under circumstances in which it is reuonably foreseeable that such 
,. :" ·., ... , •, . . ., ',•,·,. ..·.· . ' . · ...... ,... "=-:-<·· .,, ... ~... :·· ·' : · .. , .... ·:······ .. : ···':' '·'"'. ·"'•· · .. •·' . "••"•.' .:·;··· ;'· "'·"··' ''• •''• .... ···.'·" :. 

' ' ' 

commllbicatio~.is likely to• result in the purchase, or.s&le o(~Curities in the 
' ' • I 

~er <Iesaibed in subparagr. . · aph (a) above; except that this paragtaph· 
' , ' 

shall not apply to a communication made in gQOd faith . 

(i) to the officers, directors, ~ or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning,. financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its ofticen, directors, partners, 

employees or advisors or to. other persons involved in the 

3 
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. . ' . . . . . 

. . pl8nn4t& fin&Jic:ing, P"'Paratlf.ll1OJ~ewtjc>n9f d\e .. 
. . . .::·;~: :. ·:::.;· .·:.:··· ··.: · __ . .. ··: :· ... ···· -. . .. >: :_ : . ·::· ··~ :· ._ .. - ':·:... . ... ; ' ..... ·.: ... ·:: ··:·.'" .· .' . . . 

~\lities O.tthe issum with respect to.S.Ucli ~offer;: or 
.. . : . . . ..·... '· .. ·.. , •. . 

(iii) to' anY person pursuant to. a requiteme~ ~fanY statute or . 
·, 

. . . . . . . . . .. .. 

nil~ e>r ~plation promulpted theretJrl •• --. 

-·1u. 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUOO~, AND.DECREED that Defendant is liable, 

for disgorgem~ of $9,937~ representing profits gained as a result of the condUct alleged in the 

· · Complllint, togdher with prejudgmenliDter~tthereon in tM .amount of $690, and ~ ciVil penatty_ ·. 
. . 

..• · • in tho amountof $9~931,ursuant to ~ll 21A of the &change J.ct[lS tJ~s.c. § 78u-1J; . 
... ,:, .. ·. :,·· ,· ., 

. .. ~el1dcmisiW1::8'ii$1)r.-this.obti~Qii·.,Yp1yjlla·s20,s~ to•.tlle--s~\lti~~•-aP<t···~-cbltrij,.· · 
: : ~· .. 

•" 

. .. . . . . . ' . . .. . . . . . . 

_ Defendant niay ~payment elc:ctronicallY to the Commission, Which Will provide:· 

······~.ACH~edWiie~~-~ P~-1i!ii·IJ$0~made~y··. 
from a bank ICCOunt·:vi& Pay.g()v thrOUSh aie.sB~ website it . 

httP://www.Sec;~govl@l><>utJofti~ofm .. hqn. Detendanf~y also pay by certified check, bank . · 

cashier'~ check,. or United States postal money or4ef payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commi~on, which shall be dellverec:' or ~led to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accowits Receivable Branch 
6SOO·South-MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 ·. : .·. 

. and shall be ~oomPmlied by aJeU. identifying tit~ case title, ci'Vil action number, 8nd lUune of. 
. . . . . . :: ... -. .. .. . • . . ,· ... >. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . , . . . . _, .·. : . . . ·. ~ . . . : ~ 

· this eolll"t; Do~a-R. rCSClier .as a <Jei~dant m tliis action; arid specHYinltfiat payttlent.:is ~ade· .. 
•. . . •• = :. -· •.•. ,:':' • : •. • . ·• : •. .·.·.·; 

'pursua11t tO this Final Judgment. · . 

4 

, .. 
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. ,, 

Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence o~payment and case 
. . 

identifying info1'1D8tion to thO Commission•s counsel in this action.· By mating this .,ayment, 

Defendant relinquishes.-11 legal and equitable right, .tide, anc1·mterest in such rjmds. aru1·no part 

. · Ofthe funds·sJMdfbe returned to Defe~. The ~oJJUDission shall sCmf t.he. ~ds paid puisuant 

tO this Final Jwtlm.e!U ~~United S,Ultes TteasmY.. ::'. 
. ... .. ,.' 

;· The conlDlb;~ion may enforce the ~·s judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through o~ collection procedures aUtborized by 

law) at any time ·.aftel'.14 days following entry of this Final Jildgment. Defendant shall pay post ,~ 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts·pursuant to 28 ·u.s~c. § 1961 •.. 

IV. 
. . . . .· . . . 

. . 

IT IS HEREBY FURTI.IER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that based on 

Defendant's cooperation in a Commission investigation and/or related enforcement action, the 

·. ,.CoUrt is n0toraenil115etenaanttopay.a;civll peDaltfm ex~Sl''of$9~37:;·.•Ilat ali,'ume'• 

following the entry of theFinll Judgment the Commission obtains ~onnation indicating that 

Defendant knowingly provided materially false or misleading infonnation or materials to the 

Commission or in a re~ proceeding.. the <;ommission may, at its sole discretion ~ without 

prior notice to the Defendant, petition the Court for an order requirinl Defendant to pay an 

additional. civil penalty: In connection with any such petition and at any heari~g held oi:a such a 

·motion: (a) Defendant will be precluded ftom araWna that he did not violate the. federal 

securities laws ~ alleged hi the Complaint;. (b) ~fendant may not challenge the validity of the 

JUdgment, this Consent, or any. ~lated Undertakings; (c) the allegations of tl,le.Complaint, solely 

for the purposes of such motion, shall be accepted as Ind deemed true by ·the Court;· and (d) the 

s 
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Court may d~ the issues raised in the motion on tll" basis of ~davits, declarations, 
. . . . . . 

excerpts of swom deposition or investigative testimony, and dOCl.imentary .evidence without. 
... . . " . 

,' . . ' 

regard to the standards for summary judgment contained in Rule ?6( c) ·of the Federal Rules of 
. . . 

Civil Procedure. Under these circumstances, the parties .-y take disCovery, hicluding discovery 

. from ·appropriate non-parties. , 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force an~ effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply· with all of the tmdertaldngs and agreements set fo~ therein. 

VI. 

IT IS ~THBR ORDER.SD, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purpo9es of 

ex~D$ to discharge set forth in SectionS~3 of tm Bankruptcy .. Code.1 l u.s.c. §.-523, the. 

allegations in the•Complaint are ~e and admitted by Defendant,.·and further, .&DY debt·for 

disgorgem=t, preju<fgmen~ interest, ciVn penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

·entered in connection with this ~eeding, is adebt for the violation by Defenda,nt of the federal 
> . 

secwities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, ~ set forth in Section 

523(a)(19) of the BanlQuptcy Code, 11U.S.C.§523(aX19) .. 

vn. 

· IT IS FURnIER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

6 

\. 

\ 
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vm. 
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal .Rules of C~vil 

~cedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthWith and without further ootice • 

. ·.·~·:· 

t/~ 

7· 

' ' . 
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 13             MR. MANCERI:  But before I make my
 14        presentation, I would just like to apologize
 15        for Mr. Tescher's absence.  He's out of town
 16        for the holiday.
 17             THE COURT:  Okay.  Who are the PR's that
 18        you represent?
 19             MR. MANCERI:  Well, Shirley Bernstein
 20        there is no technically any PR because we had
 21        the estate closed.
 22             THE COURT:  Okay.
 23             MR. MANCERI:  And what emanated from
 24        Mr. Bernstein's 57‐page filing, which falls
 25        lawfully short of any emergency, was a petition
�
00024
  1        to reopen the estate, so technically nobody has
  2        letters right now.
  3             Simon Bernstein, your Honor, who died a
  4        year ago today as you heard, survived his wife,
  5        Shirley Bernstein, who died December 10, 2010.
  6        Simon Bernstein was the PR of his wife's
  7        estate.
  8             As a result of his passing, and in attempt
  9        to reopen the estate we're looking to have the
 10        estate reopened.  So nobody has letters right
 11        now, Judge.  The estate was closed.
 12             THE COURT:  So you agree that in Shirley's
 13        estate it was closed January of this year,
 14        there was an order of discharge, I see that.
 15        Is that true?
 16             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I don't know.
 17             THE COURT:  Do you know that that's true?
 18             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes, I believe.
 19             THE COURT:  So final disposition and the
 20        order got entered that Simon, your father ‐‐
 21             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes, sir.
 22             THE COURT:  ‐‐ he came to court and said I
 23        want to be discharged, my wife's estate is
 24        closed and fully administered.
 25             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  No.  I think it
�
00025
  1        happened after ‐‐
  2             THE COURT:  No, I'm looking at it.
  3             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  What date did that
  4        happen?
  5             THE COURT:  January 3, 2013.
  6             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  He was dead.
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  7             MR. MANCERI:  That's when the order was
  8        signed, yes, your Honor.
  9             THE COURT:  He filed it, physically came
 10        to court.
 11             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Oh.
 12             THE COURT:  So let me see when he actually
 13        filed it and signed the paperwork.  November.
 14        What date did your dad die?
 15             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  September.  It's
 16        hard to get through.  He does a lot of things
 17        when he's dead.
 18             THE COURT:  I have all of these waivers by
 19        Simon in November.  He tells me Simon was dead
 20        at the time.
 21             MR. MANCERI:  Simon was dead at the time,
 22        your Honor.  The waivers that you're talking
 23        about are waivers from the beneficiaries, I
 24        believe.
 25             THE COURT:  No, it's waivers of
�
00026
  1        accountings.
  2             MR. MANCERI:  Right, by the beneficiaries.
  3             THE COURT:  Discharge waiver of service of
  4        discharge by Simon, Simon asked that he not
  5        have to serve the petition for discharge.
  6             MR. MANCERI:  Right, that was in his
  7        petition.  When was the petition served?
  8             THE COURT:  November 21st.
  9             MR. SPALLINA:  Yeah, it was after his date
 10        of death.
 11             THE COURT:  Well, how could that happen
 12        legally?  How could Simon ‐‐
 13             MR. MANCERI:  Who signed that?
 14             THE COURT:  ‐‐ ask to close and not serve
 15        a petition after he's dead?
 16             MR. MANCERI:  Your Honor, what happened
 17        was is the documents were submitted with the
 18        waivers originally, and this goes to
 19        Mr. Bernstein's fraud allegation.  As you know,
 20        your Honor, you have a rule that you have to
 21        have your waivers notarized.  And the original
 22        waivers that were submitted were not notarized,
 23        so they were kicked back by the clerk.  They
 24        were then notarized by a staff person from
 25        Tescher and Spallina admittedly in error.  They
�
00027
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  1        should not have been notarized in the absentia
  2        of the people who purportedly signed them.  And
  3        I'll give you the names of the other siblings,
  4        that would be Pamela, Lisa, Jill, and Ted
  5        Bernstein.
  6             THE COURT:  So let me tell you because I'm
  7        going to stop all of you folks because I think
  8        you need to be read your Miranda warnings.
  9             MR. MANCERI:  I need to be read my Miranda
 10        warnings?
 11             THE COURT:  Everyone of you might have to
 12        be.
 13             MR. MANCERI:  Okay.
 14             THE COURT:  Because I'm looking at a
 15        formal document filed here April 9, 2012,
 16        signed by Simon Bernstein, a signature for him.
 17             MR. MANCERI:  April 9th, right.
 18             THE COURT:  April 9th, signed by him, and
 19        notarized on that same date by Kimberly.  It's
 20        a waiver and it's not filed with The Court
 21        until November 19th, so the filing of it, and
 22        it says to The Court on November 19th, the
 23        undersigned, Simon Bernstein, does this, this,
 24        and this.  Signed and notarized on April 9,
 25        2012.  The notary said that she witnessed Simon
�
00028
  1        sign it then, and then for some reason it's not
  2        filed with The Court until after his date of
  3        death with no notice that he was dead at the
  4        time that this was filed.
  5             MR. MANCERI:  Okay.
  6             THE COURT:  All right, so stop, that's
  7        enough to give you Miranda warnings.  Not you
  8        personally ‐‐
  9             MR. MANCERI:  Okay.
 10             THE COURT:  Are you involved?  Just tell
 11        me yes or no.
 12             MR. SPALLINA:  I'm sorry?
 13             THE COURT:  Are you involved in the
 14        transaction?
 15             MR. SPALLINA:  I was involved as the
 16        lawyer for the estate, yes.  It did not come to
 17        my attention until Kimberly Moran came to me
 18        after she received a letter from the Governor's
 19        Office stating that they were investigating
 20        some fraudulent signatures on some waivers that
 21        were signed in connection with the closing of
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 22        the estate.
 23             THE COURT:  What about the fact, counsel,
 24        let me see who signed this.  Okay, they're all
 25        the same as to ‐‐ so let me ask this, I have a
�
00029
  1        document where Eliot, you're Eliot, right?
  2             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes, sir.
  3             THE COURT:  Where you purportedly waived
  4        accounting, agreed to a petition to discharge
  5        on May 15th, and you signed that.  Do you
  6        remember doing that?  Do you remember that or
  7        not?  I'm looking at it.
  8             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I remember signing
  9        it and sending it with a disclaimer that I was
 10        signing it because my father was under duress
 11        and only to relieve this stress that he was
 12        being ‐‐
 13             THE COURT:  Well, I don't care ‐‐ I'm not
 14        asking you why you signed it.
 15             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I also signed it
 16        with the expressed ‐‐ when I signed it I was
 17        coned by Mr. Spallina that he was going to send
 18        me all the documents of the estate to review.
 19        I would have never lied on this form when I
 20        signed it.  It's saying that I saw and I never
 21        saw ‐‐
 22             THE COURT:  Let me ask you ‐‐
 23             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I lied.
 24             THE COURT:  Did you have your signature
 25        notarized?
�
00030
  1             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  No.
  2             THE COURT:  Kimberly Moran never signed or
  3        notarized his signature?
  4             MR. MANCERI:  Yes, your Honor, and that's
  5        been addressed with the Governor's office.
  6             THE COURT:  You need to address this with
  7        me.
  8             MR. MANCERI:  I am going to address it
  9        with you.
 10             THE COURT:  Here's what I don't understand
 11        because this is part of the problem here, is
 12        that Shirley has an estate that's being
 13        administered by Simon.
 14             MR. MANCERI:  Correct.
 15             THE COURT:  There comes a time where they

Page 17

BATES NO. EIB 000644 
02/27/2017



In Re_  The Estate of Shirley Bernstein.txt
 16        think it's time to close out the estate.
 17             MR. MANCERI:  Correct.
 18             THE COURT:  Waivers are sent out, that's
 19        kind of SOP, and people sign off on that.
 20             MR. MANCERI:  Right.
 21             THE COURT:  And why are they held up for
 22        six months, and when they're filed it's after
 23        Simon is already deceased?
 24             MR. MANCERI:  They were originally filed
 25        away, your Honor, under the signature of the
�
00031
  1        people.
  2             THE COURT:  No, they weren't filed, that's
  3        the whole thing.  I'm looking at the file date,
  4        filed with The Court.
  5             MR. MANCERI:  No, they were returned by
  6        the clerk because they didn't have
  7        notarization.  We have affidavits from all
  8        those people, Judge.
  9             THE COURT:  Well you may have that they
 10        got sent up here.
 11             MR. MANCERI:  We have affidavits from all
 12        of those people.
 13             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Including Simon?
 14             THE COURT:  Slow down.  You know how we
 15        know something is filed?  We see a stamp.
 16             MR. MANCERI:  It's on the docket sheet, I
 17        understand.
 18             THE COURT:  So it's stamped in as filed in
 19        November.  The clerk doesn't have ‐‐ now, they
 20        may have rejected it because it wasn't
 21        notarized, and that's perhaps what happened,
 22        but if in the meantime waiting cured the
 23        deficiency of the document, two things happen
 24        you're telling me, one, Simon dies.
 25             MR. MANCERI:  Correct.
�
00032
  1             THE COURT:  And when those documents are
  2        filed with the clerk eventually in November
  3        they're filed and one of the documents says, I,
  4        Simon, in the present.
  5             MR. MANCERI:  Of Ms. Moran.
  6             THE COURT:  No, not physically present, I
  7        Simon, I would read this in November Simon
  8        saying I waive ‐‐ I ask that I not have to have
  9        an accounting and I want to discharge, that
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 10        request is being made in November.
 11             MR. MANCERI:  Okay.
 12             THE COURT:  He's dead.
 13             MR. MANCERI:  I agree, your Honor.
 14             THE COURT:  Who filed that document?
 15             MR. MANCERI:  Robert, do you know who
 16        filed that document in your office?
 17             MR. SPALLINA:  I would assume Kimberly
 18        did.
 19             MR. MANCERI:  Ms. Moran.
 20             THE COURT:  Who is she?
 21             MR. MANCERI:  She's a staff person at
 22        Tescher and Spallina.
 23             THE COURT:  When she filed these, and one
 24        would think when she filed these the person who
 25        purports to be the requesting party is at least
�
00033
  1        alive.
  2             MR. MANCERI:  Understood, Judge.
  3             THE COURT:  Not alive.  So, well ‐‐ we're
  4        going to come back to the notary problem in a
  5        second.
  6             MR. MANCERI:  Okay.
  7             THE COURT:  In the meantime, based upon
  8        all that I discharge the estate, it's closed.
  9             Here's what I don't understand on your
 10        side, you're representing yourself, but the
 11        rules still apply.  You then file, Eliot
 12        Bernstein, emergency petitions in this closed
 13        estate, it's closed.
 14             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  You reopened it.
 15             THE COURT:  When did I reopen it?
 16             MR. MANCERI:  No, it hasn't been reopened,
 17        your Honor.
 18             THE COURT:  There's an order that I
 19        entered in May of 2013 denying an emergency
 20        petition to freeze assets.  You filed this one
 21        in May.  Do you remember doing that?
 22             MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I believe so.
 23             THE COURT:  And what you said was there's
 24        an emergency in May, you want to freeze the
 25        estate assets appointing you PR, investigate
�
00034
  1        the fraud documents, and do a whole host of
  2        other things, and the estate had been closed.
  3        The reason why it was denied among other
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1      BE IT REMEMBERED, that the following

2 proceedings were taken in the above-styled cause

3 before Honorable JOHN PHILLIPS, at the Palm Beach

4 County Courthouse, 3188 PGA Blvd., Palm Beach

5 Gardens, County of Palm Beach, State of Florida, on

6 Tuesday, the 15th day of September, 2015, to wit:

7

8           THE COURT:  We're here on the Simon

9      Bernstein case; is that right?

10           MS. FOGLIETTA:  Yes, Judge.

11           THE COURT:  This ended up in this division

12      of the Court because of a recusal from somebody

13      else in another division of the Court, right?

14           MR. FEAMAN:  That raises an interesting

15      point.  Peter Feaman on behalf of William

16      Stansbury, a creditor of the estate.  I was

17      late coming in.  Mr. O'Connell is late.  All

18      the attorneys and the litigants are either in

19      West Palm or south.  I respectfully don't

20      understand how we ended up here in the north

21      branch.  Should we set it back to the main

22      branch?

23           THE COURT:  No.  That would be judge

24      shopping.  When somebody recuses themselves

25      then it's randomly reassigned.  I was verifying
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1      this isn't a case that started out with me.

2      It's a case that started out with somebody

3      else.

4           MR. FEAMAN:  Judge Colin, actually,

5      specifically said in his recusal order north

6      branch, which I didn't understand.

7           THE COURT:  That's what the 4th DCA is

8      for.  I'm not here to question some other

9      judge's order.  You won't have me saying he was

10      wrong.  I'm not the appellate judge.  If

11      somebody made a mistake and you all think

12      there's relief that should be granted to

13      correct his mistake that's what the 4th is for.

14      Please have a seat.

15           We're here because somebody else is not

16      the judge in the case anymore and I am, right?

17           MR. FEAMAN:  Right.

18           THE COURT:  We'll go to the next step.

19      This is a case management conference.  What is

20      it that I need to do to manage the case?  I

21      received the trustees' status report which is

22      lengthy and comprehensive.  I've read that.

23           Other than being brought up to speed by

24      having read that report what else needs to be

25      resolved to get this case done?
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1           MR. ROSE:  Good morning.  I'm Alan Rose.

2      Can I speak from here?

3           THE COURT:  You can.

4           MR. ROSE:  I'm not planning on doing the

5      whole hearing, but briefly there are,

6      technically, four other cases that all were

7      assigned.  I think we've noticed a status

8      conference in all four cases.

9           There are two estates.  The Simon

10      Bernstein that Your Honor mentioned, he died in

11      2012.

12           THE COURT:  Then there's the wife who

13      pre-deceased him, has a case, and I've been

14      asked to consider -- one of the things that

15      needs to be done is the closing of that estate.

16           MR. ROSE:  Correct.  She died in 2010.

17      Each of those estates builds into a trust, so

18      there's technically four pieces of pending

19      litigation; an estate of Shirley, a Shirley

20      trust construction, and an estate of Simon and

21      claim in the Simon trusts for the removal of my

22      client.  Those are the four separate matters.

23      And then we came before you -- when Judge Colin

24      recused himself there were pending motions

25      counsel thought best to come and get some sort
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1      of order.

2           The one thing that we believe, at least

3      which was in the status report which should be

4      addressed fairly early on, is whether we're

5      going to have a guardian ad litem for the three

6      minor children that are represented by Eliot

7      Bernstein, and try to bring some order to this

8      case which I think was a little bit out of

9      control in Judge Colin's courtroom.

10           THE COURT:  Is there a motion for

11      appointment of a GAL?  Has a motion been filed

12      by someone?

13           MR. ROSE:  I think the -- my understanding

14      is the beneficiaries were about to file one.  I

15      don't think they filed yet.  There is a pending

16      motion to appoint an attorney for the children.

17      It's sort of a similar issue.  Maybe

18      Mr. O'Connell can -- it's on one of his lists

19      of motions.

20           And then there's -- I think the main thing

21      we need to discuss is what order we're going to

22      do the hearings in because along with the

23      guardian ad litem it's our position the first

24      thing we should decide, since almost every

25      motion you're going to hear on Mr. O'Connell's
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1      list is filed by Eliot Bernstein, is he's not a

2      beneficiary.  We have a one-count complaint to

3      determine the validity of the documents.  And

4      under the documents, as drafted, he's

5      disinherited.  He's not a beneficiary under any

6      way and if you remove his standing then I

7      believe we can go to mediation and resolve

8      almost all of these motions without taking up,

9      probably, two or three weeks of the Court's

10      time.

11           THE COURT:  Well, I noticed in the

12      trustee's status report that there was

13      mentioned several times that he's not a

14      beneficiary.  So has there been an order that

15      establishes that or is that just the position

16      that's being argued by the --

17           MR. ROSE:  Well, the documents themselves,

18      the operative document, for example, Simon

19      Bernstein's will -- the sole beneficiary is the

20      trust.  Simon Bernstein's trust the soul

21      beneficiaries are his ten grandchildren.

22      Shirley Bernstein's will, the sole beneficiary

23      is her trust.  Shirley Bernstein's trust gave

24      Simon Bernstein the power of appointment to

25      appoint and he appointed to his grandchildren.
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1      So what we filed was a one-count complaint to

2      determine those documents.  We actually filed a

3      trust construction action.  Judge Colin advised

4      us to file -- to add a count.  We added one

5      count to determine the validity of those

6      documents.  It's been answered by everybody,

7      and what Judge Colin did was he severed that

8      one count from everything else and he stayed

9      everything else until we resolved that one

10      count.  That's the issue that we believe, if

11      you resolve that issue first, a lot of the

12      stuff would go away and that was part of the

13      purpose of the status conference.  The parties

14      can't, among themselves, agree what issues

15      should be heard first.  If you did that issue,

16      either if he has standing or he doesn't, if he

17      doesn't have standing we'll good through

18      hundreds of thousands of dollars of legal fees

19      resolving motions that he filed if he lacked

20      standing.

21           I think if you couple it with a motion for

22      a guardian ad litem there is a motion pending

23      in a fifth case, the Oppenheimer case, that's

24      also before you, not today, for a guardian ad

25      litem.  Judge Colin deferred on that.  I
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1      believe Mr. Morrissey's clients are going to

2      move for a guardian ad litem.  I believe Mr.

3      Eliot Bernstein, in his papers, has indicated

4      that he has a conflict with his children and

5      they should have a lawyer and a guardian

6      representing them.  He can speak for himself to

7      that point.

8           Those are the two issues we think should

9      go first.  If it happens first this case would

10      become much more manageable and can even be

11      resolved because, as we indicated in our

12      report, these are relatively small estates.

13           There was a belief that's driving this

14      that there was $100 million left behind but

15      they left behind modest estates.  Over time

16      we've been trying to sell property and trying

17      to narrow things and all we've been doing is

18      spending attorneys' fees between a curator --

19           THE COURT:  I just want to figure out

20      what's on the judicial plate that needs to be

21      addressed.

22           MR. ROSE:  That's what we think should

23      happen first, those two issues, and everything

24      else will fall into place.

25           THE COURT:  What is the name or where is
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1      the document to be found that has this single

2      count for determination of validity of estate

3      documents or trust documents that was severed

4      out by Judge Colin?

5           MR. ROSE:  It's in case 5020143698 --

6           THE COURT:  What are the two letters in

7      between the 14 and the 36 --

8           MR. ROSE:  I'm sorry, CP003698XXX and now

9      --

10           THE COURT:  I don't need that stuff.

11      What's the docket entry number?

12           MS. FOGLIETTA:  The filing number?

13           THE COURT:  I want to know where to find

14      this thing that seems to be one of the first

15      things --

16           MS. FOGLIETTA:  Are you talking about the

17      amended complaint?  I have a copy.

18           MR. ROSE:  Just the docket entry, if you

19      don't mind.

20           THE COURT:  I have a computer here so

21      don't think I'm being rude if I look away from

22      you all.

23           MR. ROSE:  It was filed October 3, 2013.

24           MS. FOGLIETTA:  I have a copy.

25           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Can I make an
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1      objection?

2           THE COURT:  Who are you?

3           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I'm Eliot Bernstein.

4           THE COURT:  You can't object yet.

5           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Can I make a

6      statement?

7           THE COURT:  Not yet.  I'm looking at this

8      computer screen trying to find the docket.

9      Everybody, please be seated.  You're making me

10      nervous.

11           I'm just scrolling through the attorneys.

12      I haven't even gotten to the pleadings yet.

13      I'm looking for a pleading or an order entered

14      October 3rd.

15           MR. ROSE:  An amended complaint.

16           THE COURT:  I have an amended complaint by

17      Ted Bernstein.

18           MR. ROSE:  Yes.

19           THE COURT:  And in that amended complaint

20      is the count that was referred to.  It's Count

21      II?

22           MR. ROSE:  I believe it is, Sir.

23           THE COURT:  All right.

24           MR. ROSE:  Page 13 is the actual -- the

25      count itself incorporates the allegations and
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1      the documents.

2           THE COURT:  All right.  Count II starts at

3      Paragraph 79 of the document?

4           MR. ROSE:  Yes, sir.

5           THE COURT:  All right.  And then at some

6      point in time you say Judge Colin severed out

7      this count and said it should be heard

8      separately.  Is that --

9           MR. ROSE:  He severed it and stayed --

10           THE COURT:  Do you know when the order was

11      entered on that?

12           MR. ROSE:  10-6 according to the chart

13      from --

14           THE COURT:  10-6-14?

15           MR. ROSE:  Yes.  It says order on

16      amendments to pleadings.  There might be an

17      order that predates that.

18           MS. FOGLIETTA:  I do have a copy of it.

19           THE COURT:  The other is almost the very

20      next docket entry.  The amended petition is

21      Docket Entry 26.  The order is Docket Entry 27.

22           MR. ROSE:  Specifically Paragraph 3 on

23      Page 2.

24           THE COURT:  There was a response filed by

25      Mr. Bernstein and the other defendants.  Are
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1      those things that happened?

2           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  What case?  Is this

3      Shirley Bernstein --

4           THE COURT:  Case Number 14CP3698.

5           MR. ROSE:  Everyone has either answered or

6      been defaulted and I noticed the case for

7      trial.

8           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Are we here for

9      Simon Bernstein?  I'm confused.  I'm not

10      prepared for Shirley Bernstein's case today.

11      Can I raise another point, Your Honor?

12           THE COURT:  I only do one thing at a time.

13      You must stop.

14           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  What?

15           THE COURT:  You must stop.  I do one thing

16      at a time.  You're not that thing yet.

17           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Okay.

18           THE COURT:  This is a case management

19      conference.  I'm not deciding anything.  I do

20      decide that I'm the one that runs this

21      courtroom so I don't have people jumping up and

22      blurting things out.  That doesn't help me

23      orderly go through figuring out what the

24      problem is and how to attack and resolve the

25      problem.  My specialty is wrestling stuff to
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1      the ground and resolving it.  That's what I'm

2      going to do in this case and that's what I do

3      in every case.  This is a bigger one to wrestle

4      to the ground than some other ones but there's

5      no octopus case that I've ever met that I

6      haven't been able to figure out sooner or

7      later.  The only way I can do that is talk to

8      one person at a time.  We'll figure out one

9      thing at a time.  I'm not a smart guy but I'm

10      persistent.  All these guys know me.  I'm

11      looking you in the eye because you haven't met

12      me before, right?  Sir, yes, you haven't met

13      me?

14           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes, sir.

15           THE COURT:  Okay.  So you don't know me.

16      These other attorneys do because they're in

17      court in front of me on other cases where I've

18      done the same thing.  I'm too stupid to --

19      well, I'm stupid.  I take one thing at a time

20      and I make sure I know what I'm doing and I go

21      to the next thing.  I try to be courteous to

22      everybody.  I try to make sure everybody is

23      heard.  I demand that people be courteous to me

24      in return.  I don't take any crap.  In that

25      method of proceeding we get through whatever is
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1      uncomfortable, whatever is messed up, whatever

2      is complex.  We simplify it down enough for me

3      to understand it and then we resolve it.

4      That's what is going to happen in this case.

5           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  So my question is --

6           THE COURT:  I told you I'm not talking to

7      you yet.  I was talking to you to tell you what

8      I'm doing so you're not mystified, but now you

9      sit silently until it's my time to talk to you.

10      Right now I'm talking to some other people.

11           Okay, so --

12           MR. ROSE:  May I approach --

13           THE COURT:  -- the trustees believe the

14      first thing that needs to be done is the

15      resolution of this order that was entered by

16      Judge Colin severing out the count and the

17      amended complaint that deals with the validity

18      of the testamentary documents, correct?

19           MR. ROSE:  Yes, sir.

20           THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody

21      object to that issue being resolved first in

22      the order of events in this sequence of cases?

23           MR. O'CONNELL:  Are you ready for me?

24           THE COURT:  Yeah, I just want to know if

25      there's any objection to having that issue
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1      heard and resolved first.  That's the issue

2      that I'm chewing on right now.

3           MR. O'CONNELL:  Okay.  I wouldn't call it

4      an objection, but I'd like to be able to

5      explain my role in it and these other motions.

6           THE COURT:  Well, first I want to know if

7      there's any reason I should attack this as the

8      first order of business in setting a trial or

9      hearing to have it resolved.  Do you have any

10      objection?

11           MR. O'CONNELL:  I wouldn't object to that.

12           THE COURT:  All right.  Does anybody else

13      seated at the tables have any objection?

14           MR. FEAMAN:  May it please the Court.

15      Peter Feaman on behalf of William Stansbury.

16      He's a $2.5 million creditor of the estate of

17      Simon Bernstein.

18           We're here in the estate of Simon

19      Bernstein and it's the position of

20      Mr. Stansbury that a removal of Ted Bernstein

21      as successor trustee should be heard first.

22           THE COURT:  Okay.  Why?

23           MR. FEAMAN:  The reason for that is if

24      that issue is determined one way or the other

25      we believe that is the linchpin to then
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1      resolving probably all the other issues in this

2      case.

3           THE COURT:  The trustee believes the issue

4      to resolving many of the issues is to determine

5      whether Eliot -- I'm using first names, I'm

6      sorry.  Is it Mr. Bernstein, Eliot Bernstein?

7           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  You can call me

8      Eliot.

9           THE COURT:  Okay.  I don't mean to be

10      disrespectful.  I don't want to do that.

11           The trustee's thought is that resolving

12      whether Eliot has any standing to be involved

13      in the litigation is key.  You're saying that's

14      not key, it's something else that's key?  What

15      else is it that you're suggesting is the key

16      issue to be resolved?

17           MR. FEAMAN:  Because that's the Shirley

18      Bernstein trust.  The matter that is before

19      Your Honor today is the estate of Simon

20      Bernstein, and Simon Bernstein had a separate

21      trust which was different from the Shirley

22      Bernstein trust and the -- most of the assets

23      are in the Simon Bernstein trust which then had

24      the pour-over will into -- most of the assets

25      are in the Simon Bernstein estate and then had
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1      the pour-over will into the trust and that's --

2      that's the matter that is the most significant,

3      in my humble opinion, that is before Your Honor

4      is the Simon Bernstein estate and the Simon

5      Bernstein trust.  It's the opinion of

6      Mr. Stansbury that Mr. Ted Bernstein, as a

7      successor trustee to the Simon Bernstein trust,

8      should be heard first.

9           THE COURT:  Let me ask this:  How is it

10      that there is an order by Judge Colin severing

11      out this count about the validity of some

12      estate documents in the Simon Bernstein case if

13      the documents in question were filed in a

14      different estate?  Maybe the trustee can

15      address that.

16           MR. ROSE:  Sure.

17           THE COURT:  What's up with that?

18           MR. ROSE:  We have a trust construction

19      count that was to determine the validity and

20      then the construction of the Shirley Bernstein

21      trust.  Within that claim, because there's an

22      overlap of issues there, the standing issue is

23      the same in both.  What Judge Colin ordered me

24      to do was to file an additional count into that

25      complaint.  Everyone was properly noticed.  We
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1      already had the jurisdiction over all the

2      beneficiaries, those that answered, those that

3      did not.  Nobody moved to dismiss upon the

4      ground that it's not properly in one case, and

5      so because there's a direct overlap between

6      documents that were executed and the validity

7      of those documents, and the validity of the

8      will of Simon directly relates to the validity

9      of the exercise of power of appointment because

10      he exercised his power through his will.  So

11      what Judge Colin did was he ordered me to file

12      a simple one-count complaint, as simple as it

13      could be, list the four documents and allege

14      that they're all valid and enforceable.  In the

15      context of trying that issue you will decide

16      whether, for example, Simon Bernstein was

17      unduly influenced, if that's an allegation, to

18      execute the power of appointment.  The power of

19      appointment is what deprives Mr. Eliot

20      Bernstein of standing.  Judge Colin ordered us

21      all put it all in this count.  He then stayed

22      everything else and severed that and we're

23      supposed to try that and we get bogged down

24      constantly in --

25           THE COURT:  Don't get sidetracked or I'll
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1      get confused and disaster happens.

2           Mr. Bernstein, Eliot Bernstein, you've got

3      an objection to the trial of the issue about

4      the validity of the estate documents that's

5      just been discussed?

6           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes, sir.

7           THE COURT:  What's your objection?

8           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Several, with that

9      being the first thing.  The first part is that

10      Mr. O'Connell has filed with the court in the

11      Simon Bernstein estate nothing to be done with

12      Ted Bernstein as trustee because Mr. O'Connell

13      and Mr. Feaman, two prominent lawyers that you

14      know, have claimed that the document itself

15      that they're operating under precludes Ted

16      Bernstein from being a trustee.  The language

17      says he can't be a related party --

18           THE COURT:  You got to get back to my

19      question.

20           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Here's the problem

21      --

22           THE COURT:  No.  I'm the one that's

23      telling you the question I'd like you to

24      answer.  Remember I told you I chew on one tiny

25      thing at a time.  I don't want to get confused.
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1      I might make a mistake if I get confused.

2           This is the thing I'm trying to establish

3      in my mind now:  What is your objection to

4      trying the issue about the validity of the

5      estate documents that are found in Count II of

6      the amended petition, Docket Entry Number 26?

7           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  My problem is is

8      that if Ted is not a trustee properly serving,

9      and a fraudulent trustee as they're claiming

10      and he's acting improperly, to have a hearing

11      where Ted's arguing validity where he's

12      conflicted, I mean if he doesn't argue

13      successfully, his entire family and children

14      are cut out of everything.  So he's got a

15      conflict in arguing a construction --

16           THE COURT:  You're not even addressing my

17      question.  Thank you.  Please be seated.

18           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I did answer your

19      question because how can we have -- how can we

20      hear his --

21           THE COURT:  You're asking me a question.

22      Your question started with how do we do

23      something.  I don't know.

24           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I'm saying we can't

25      hear --
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1           THE COURT:  Stop.  Please be seated.  You

2      failed to answer my question.  You got

3      something else on your mind that doesn't

4      address what I'm trying to figure out.

5           Is it true that Judge Colin issued a stay

6      order on the other parts of the litigation and

7      it intended -- somehow he manifested an

8      intention to resolve the validity of the estate

9      documents?  Is there an order that says that

10      somewhere?

11           MR. ROSE:  I think that goes too far.

12      There are multiple proceedings.  He severed

13      this count --

14           THE COURT:  I got that.

15           MR. ROSE:  It's our view that that should

16      be what is decided --

17           THE COURT:  I know.  But you said a minute

18      ago that he stayed other proceedings.  Is there

19      an order that says that?  Where do I find that

20      order?

21           MR. ROSE:  It's the one that you looked

22      at, October 6th.  It stays the rest of the

23      proceedings inside the Shirley Bernstein trust

24      construction case.  It doesn't stay everything

25      in the Simon Bernstein side.
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1           THE COURT:  Okay.

2           MR. ROSE:  That's what I was clarifying.

3           THE COURT:  Okay.  You've been living with

4      these cases for several years.

5           MR. ROSE:  Yes.

6           THE COURT:  I've been living with them for

7      30 minutes so I'm not as intimately familiar

8      with the ins and outs of what's going on here.

9      I'm not even familiar with everybody's names,

10      so I apologize to you for that.

11           Well, then there's no reason for me not to

12      set a trial on that Count II of the amended

13      complaint, right?  I'll do that whether

14      everybody wants me to do or not that way I'll

15      get something done and that way we'll move down

16      the road.  That will be done.  Court to order

17      set.  How much time you think we need to try

18      that?

19           MR. ROSE:  Normally I would think we can

20      try the case within a day.

21           THE COURT:  Okay.  Anybody think we need a

22      different amount of time?

23           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yeah.  I think it

24      will take several days.

25           THE COURT:  Why?
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1           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Well, you're going

2      to have to first start with is Ted Bernstein a

3      valid trustee to argue the case.  So that's --

4           THE COURT:  No, I won't have to decide

5      that.

6           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  You want somebody to

7      argue who's not valid --

8           THE COURT:  What else?  Any other issue?

9      Is there any other issue that's going to take

10      more than a day?

11           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Well, it's very

12      complicated.

13           THE COURT:  No, this isn't going to be

14      complicated.

15           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Okay.

16           THE COURT:  It's not.  There's documents,

17      pieces of paper that somebody claims were

18      executed or not executed.

19           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  There's been fraud

20      in the document.

21           THE COURT:  I was explaining to you

22      something.  If you interrupt me you can be held

23      in contempt.  If I interrupt you I'm keeping

24      order in my courtroom.  You see the difference

25      there?  This is not a conversation.  Okay.  No
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1      need for me to explain anything further.  I

2      intend to set this for trial.  I intend to set

3      it for a day.  I intend that issue of the

4      validity of the estate documents will be

5      resolved in that trial.  Is there any reason to

6      not think I can do that in a day other than

7      what Mr. Eliot Bernstein has mentioned?

8           MR. FEAMAN:  On behalf of Mr. Stansbury we

9      have no involvement in the Shirley Bernstein

10      estate.

11           THE COURT:  So you don't care what I do.

12           MR. ROSE:  Mr. O'Connell is a party, he's

13      intervening because of the overlap of the power

14      of appointment.  I can't speak for him but I

15      want to make sure he agrees that a day is

16      enough.  We are all bad estimators.

17           THE COURT:  I asked this question to the

18      entire courtroom.  If anybody thinks

19      differently then what I'm getting ready to do

20      you're supposed to say something.  He hasn't

21      said anything.

22           MR. MORRISSEY:  Judge, John Morrissey.  I

23      represent four of the adult grandchildren who

24      will ultimately be beneficiaries under the

25      trust document.
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1           THE COURT:  Okay.

2           MR. MORRISSEY:  So certainly my clients

3      have an interest here in what's going on.  I

4      just want to let Your Honor know, because I

5      don't think -- I hope Mr. Feaman is not

6      misleading the Court.  On two occasions so far

7      he said that he represents a creditor of the

8      estate, that's incorrect.

9           THE COURT:  William Stansbury.

10           MR. MORRISSEY:  Correct.  William

11      Stansbury is not a creditor of the estate.

12      He's someone who filed a claim in the estate.

13      An objection was filed by the personal

14      representative, or counsel for the personal

15      representative, which means that Mr. Stansbury

16      had 30 days to run off and file his lawsuit

17      which he's done.  He's not done anything with

18      that separate civil litigation.  It's not been

19      reduced to a judgment.  He is not a creditor,

20      therefore, Judge, he does not have standing not

21      only with respect to the validity of the

22      documents but with respect to anything else in

23      these various litigations.

24           THE COURT:  That's not helping me figure

25      out how much time I need to set aside for this
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1      trial.

2           MR. MORRISSEY:  I'm sorry.

3           THE COURT:  When I'm telling you I'm a

4      simple guy I'm not being modest.  I'm just

5      being truthful.  That's where I'm at.  I'm

6      going to write down what I do next when I leave

7      this room.  What I do next when I leave this

8      room is tell my judicial assistant to reserve a

9      day, set this trial date, send you notices.

10      Bang.  That thing is done.  So that's why I

11      want to stick with this.  Do you have any

12      objection to that?

13           MR. MORRISSEY:  No.

14           THE COURT:  Okay.  Great.  This is the way

15      I intend to proceed -- I love Marty Colin.

16      This guy is a judge that's been around a long

17      time.  I know him.  He's an entirely different

18      guy than me.  I expect that your experience

19      with Judge Colin has been different than

20      sitting here with me.  Am I right?  I never

21      appeared in front of him as a judge -- I never

22      appeared in front of him while he's a judge and

23      while I was a lawyer.  He appeared in front of

24      me while he was a lawyer and I was a judge.  I

25      don't know how he is as a judge but I am pretty
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1      sure he's a different guy than me.  Nice guy.

2      I like him.  But we're different judges.  Your

3      experiences with Judge Colin, put them aside.

4      You're having an experience with me now.  We

5      have to do it the way I do it or else I'll mess

6      up.

7           The second thing I have on my list of

8      things to ask you about that I've been jotting

9      down here is this request for guardian ad

10      litem.  I think I remember asking and being

11      told that no one has filed a formal request for

12      appointment of a guardian ad litem; is that

13      correct?

14           MR. O'CONNELL:  Correct.

15           MR. ROSE:  In these four cases no one has

16      done that yet.

17           THE COURT:  Okay.  Am I going to?

18           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I believe they have,

19      actually.

20           THE COURT:  When was it filed?  What

21      docket entry?

22           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I don't know.  It

23      was denied a long time ago by Tescher and

24      Spallina, the guys that were removed for fraud

25      in the court.  They tried to put guardians on
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1      --

2           THE COURT:  No, no, no.  You see I don't

3      want all the other baggage.  I just want the

4      answer to that question.  When was it filed?

5           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I don't know.  At

6      the beginning.

7           THE COURT:  At the beginning.  That takes

8      me to the bottom.  That slows down progress on

9      our case management conference.  I will go

10      through it.  What was the title of the

11      pleading?

12           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I don't know.  I

13      don't think Joy's records went back that far.

14           MS. FOGLIETTA:  We pulled things that were

15      pending, Judge.  I don't have that.

16           MR. MORRISSEY:  On behalf of the four

17      adult grandchildren it's our intention to file

18      one.  We were hoping to file one before today's

19      hearing.

20           THE COURT:  Okay.  Since that hasn't been

21      filed then I'm not taking action on it.  That's

22      my practice.  If there's something filed I'll

23      move towards getting it resolved.  If it's not

24      been filed and it's just in somebody's mind I

25      find that it's difficult to take any action.
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1      I'm crossing that off my list.

2           There's a pending motion to appoint

3      attorneys -- an attorney for the children.  Is

4      that an attorney ad litem?

5           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  An attorney for my

6      children.

7           THE COURT:  Who filed that motion?

8           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Me.

9           THE COURT:  When did you file?

10           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Just to pay the fees

11      for counsel for my children.

12           THE COURT:  When did you file it is what

13      I'm trying to figure it out.

14           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  A while ago.

15           THE COURT:  Any closer estimate than that?

16           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  I've been filing

17      that since the first petition in this case in

18      May of 2013 which still isn't heard.

19           THE COURT:  May of 2013 is when you filed

20      it?

21           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yeah.

22           MR. O'CONNELL:  We think we found one

23      August 28, 2014 in the Simon Bernstein estate.

24           THE COURT:  The Simon Bernstein estate is

25      the only one I got up on the computer.  The

BATES NO. EIB 000676 
02/27/2017



31

PLEASANTON, GREENHILL, MEEK & MARSAA
561/833.7811

1      only thing that happened on August 20th is an

2      order by Judge Colin maybe.

3           MR. O'CONNELL:  28th, sorry, Your Honor,

4      2-8.

5           THE COURT:  Okay.  I just got my trifocals

6      reissued.  These are the old ones so an 8 and a

7      0 look alike.  I'm moving my head and trying to

8      focus.  Bear with me a second.

9           I don't see anything anywhere near the

10      28th of August of '14.  Is that the year, '14?

11           MR. O'CONNELL:  Yes.  It says, "Motion to

12      compel estates of Simon and Shirley to pay

13      counsel for Eliot and his minor children."

14           MS. FOGLIETTA:  That's in case number --

15           THE COURT:  Well, I don't see any motion

16      with that description.  Perhaps the Court

17      doesn't have it scanned in or something.  Who

18      knows.  Anybody have a paper copy of it that I

19      can look at?

20           MS. FOGLIETTA:  I do.

21           THE COURT:  I wouldn't mind looking at a

22      paper copy if you got one handy.

23           MR. O'CONNELL:  Sure.

24           THE COURT:  And was there a ruling on this

25      motion for having the estate pay for attorneys

BATES NO. EIB 000677 
02/27/2017



32

PLEASANTON, GREENHILL, MEEK & MARSAA
561/833.7811

1      for Eliot and his minor children?  Has there

2      been an order on this?

3           MR. O'CONNELL:  Not that I'm aware of,

4      Your Honor.

5           THE COURT:  Was there ever a hearing?

6           MR. ROSE:  I don't believe it was set for

7      hearing.  That was alluded to that

8      Mr. Bernstein had requested an attorney for his

9      children and I would suggest that -- subject

10      to -- I don't think there was an objection from

11      anyone -- it's not appropriate to appoint an

12      attorney for his children.  If you appoint a

13      guardian ad litem to represent his children

14      then the guardian ad litem has the power to go

15      out and retain counsel and to accomplish the

16      relief that's sought.  We don't believe it's

17      appropriate though for Mr. Bernstein himself,

18      but certainly his children who are

19      beneficiaries should have --

20           THE COURT:  All right.  It looks like this

21      motion just asks for money.  It's not asking

22      for the appointment of counsel.  Mr. Eliot is

23      seeking the issuance of money from the trust

24      for the estate.  He alludes to the children

25      needing an attorney but he doesn't ask for one
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1      to be appointed.  He asks if he can be given

2      money.

3           There's an order I see, Docket Entry 24,

4      where Judge Colin prohibits any new filings.

5      I've not read the order yet but I see the title

6      of the order takes up 20 lines of docket entry

7      here in our computer program.  I hope the order

8      is shorter than the title.

9           MR. O'CONNELL:  We got it for Your Honor.

10                      (Handing)

11           THE COURT:  Now are these copies ones I

12      should return to you all or can I keep these?

13           MS. FOGLIETTA:  You can keep them.

14           THE COURT:  Thanks.  Judge Colin had a

15      case management conference.  It's a case

16      management order.  How about that.  It's a

17      great order.  He must have been having problems

18      with the progress of this case to issue an

19      order like that.  That was at Docket Entry

20      Number 24 which leads me to ask this question,

21      perhaps foolishly, and that's the question if

22      this order was entered by Judge Colin in

23      September of 2014 at Docket Entry Number 24 how

24      come we're up to 82 docket entries and other

25      petitions and things and stuff being filed?
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1      Did he disregard the order, because I think

2      it's a great order, or did something else

3      happen that I don't know about that changed the

4      order, or did he retract the order?

5           MR. O'CONNELL:  Let me try to help there.

6      Just so you can get my position in all this, I

7      want to explain.  I am a successor personal

8      representative in the Simon Bernstein estate,

9      so that's my universe in terms of this matter.

10      I got over a year at this point that I've been

11      involved in that capacity.  With regard to that

12      particular order the way everyone has

13      interpreted it is it has to do with anyone to

14      institute new litigation, a new adversary

15      matter they would have to go before Judge

16      Colin, because we certainly have filed, on an

17      administrative level, a number of motions of

18      things that needed to happen.

19           THE COURT:  Administrative stuff is

20      allowed to happen.

21           MR. O'CONNELL:  To go to your good

22      question, well, why are there so many items,

23      not that we filed a ton of motions and

24      petitions but certainly, on my behalf, there

25      are definitely some that we have filed.
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1           THE COURT:  Docket Entry Number 41 there

2      is a petition to remove Theodore Stuart

3      Bernstein as alleged successor trustee filed by

4      Eliot Bernstein.  How did that get filed?  Did

5      Judge Colin approved that?

6           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  He directed that.

7           THE COURT:  Say that again?

8           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  He directed that.

9           THE COURT:  So there was a hearing that he

10      authorized this petition to be filed?

11           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Yes.  And then a new

12      case was started.  He ordered a new case to

13      remove Ted and we're in the middle of that.

14      That's one of the cases.

15           Just to clarify something, I'm still

16      confused, the first part about the hearing

17      you're ordering, that's not --

18           THE COURT:  We're not on that subject.

19           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Are we on Simon's

20      case or Shirley's case?  I'm confused by that.

21           THE COURT:  I'm confused too.  Welcome to

22      my world.

23           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Welcome to mine.

24           THE COURT:  We're going to eliminate some

25      of the confusion by trying some of these things
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1      pled in this case and one of them that's been

2      pled is Count II of the amended petition of

3      Docket Entry 26 that Judge Colin severed out

4      and said is going to be tried separately.

5           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  That's in Shirley.

6           THE COURT:  I'm telling you what I'm

7      doing.  You asked me what I'm doing, to clarify

8      what I'm doing.  I just told you.

9           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  Okay.

10           MR. ROSE:  If I can, just briefly with

11      that, what Judge Colin was doing is you can fax

12      him the motion or bring it to his attention --

13           THE COURT:  He uses fax?  Okay.  He is a

14      dinosaur.

15           MR. ROSE:  He would give permission that

16      something could be filed or not filed.  We had

17      to go through the extra step of sending him in

18      advance, or asking permission if I wanted to

19      file a motion to approve a sale or whatever we

20      had to get his permission in advance.

21           THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  I find

22      there's no pending motion for appointment of

23      attorneys for the children so I'm striking that

24      off my list.

25           Now back to the William Stansbury claim
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1      regarding the estate of Simon Bernstein.  What

2      is the pleading that sets up any claim that

3      needs to be adjudicated in that case that was

4      not already set?  It's the one thing that

5      you're not involved in.  What about the claim

6      you said that William Stansbury has?

7           MR. FEAMAN:  That's a separate action that

8      was filed and is pending before Judge Blanc in

9      the general jurisdiction division.

10           THE COURT:  Okay.  So Blanc will figure

11      that one out, right?

12           MR. FEAMAN:  And the estate is a

13      defendant.

14           THE COURT:  I'm trying to figure out what

15      I have to set.  Blanc has that one, right?

16           MR. FEAMAN:  Yes, yes, Your Honor.

17           The only thing, with regard to

18      Mr. Stansbury, I believe, is Mr. Stansbury has

19      filed a motion to discharge him from

20      responsibility for funding the estate's

21      participation in some Chicago litigation, and

22      that should be borne by the estate, but that's

23      already set before Your Honor on October 20th

24      in the special set hearing.

25           THE COURT:  When was that set?  When did
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1      the document hit the court records when --

2      setting that hearing?

3           MR. FEAMAN:  I'd say ten days ago.  It was

4      set for the day after tomorrow and it had to be

5      reset at my request due to a conflict, and then

6      it was set October 20, 2015 pursuant to a

7      notice of hearing I believe our office sent

8      out, I believe, ten days ago, approximately.

9           THE COURT:  That would be in case number

10      what?

11           MR. FEAMAN:  That would be case Number

12      124391CP -- 12 -- 2012CP4391.

13           THE COURT:  Okay.  So that's a different

14      case than I have on the computer screen.  Let

15      me get that one up.

16           MR. FEAMAN:  That's the case number that

17      actually brings us here today pursuant to

18      notice of hearing filed by Mr. O'Connell, the

19      personal representative of the estate.

20           THE COURT:  Just a second.  I've been

21      looking at, apparently, the trust case,

22      14CP3698.

23           MS. FOGLIETTA:  Judge, that's the Shirley

24      trust.

25           THE COURT:  Did you ever see Colin use a
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1      computer in court?

2           MR. O'CONNELL:  Not really.

3           THE COURT:  That's why I call him a

4      dinosaur.  I'd say it to his face trying to get

5      him to be more tech savvy.

6           I'm scrolling, okay.  You see me scrolling

7      with my finger.  I've scrolled through all the

8      attorneys.  This is more like it.  We're up to

9      386, and roughly ten days ago there was some

10      sort of hearing set.  A re-notice of hearing.

11           MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN:  That was an

12      objection to an accounting that I filed timely.

13           THE COURT:  The notice of hearing,

14      Mr. Feaman, that you scheduled, or you sent out

15      that I'm referring to is called the fifth

16      re-notice of hearing and it sets hearing on the

17      motion of creditor William Stansbury for a

18      hearing on October 20.

19           MR. FEAMAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

20           THE COURT:  You set aside a 15-minute

21      period of time for that.  Judge Blanc has got

22      the litigation that you referred to in his

23      court and he'll figure that out.

24           MR. FEAMAN:  Correct.

25           THE COURT:  All right.
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1           MR. FEAMAN:  But there's also, with

2      regard, if I may, Your Honor, to

3      Mr. Stansbury's claim, Mr. O'Connell has also

4      filed a motion to enter and approve a

5      settlement agreement between the estate and

6      Mr. Stansbury which is still out there.  But

7      related to that is a motion by Mr. O'Connell

8      filed on 7-20-2015 to have Simon Bernstein

9      declared the beneficiary of the JP Morgan IRA

10      account, and the reason it relates to

11      Mr. Stansbury is because the settlement money

12      contemplated to be paid to Mr. Stansbury would

13      come out of that account and there's a question

14      whether that is actually money that should be

15      part of the estate or not so before we actually

16      wanted to fund the settlement we wanted to -- I

17      don't mean to speak for Mr. O'Connell -- we

18      wanted to make sure that that would be

19      appropriate source of funds to fund the

20      settlement so there would be no clawback claims

21      either against Mr. Stansbury or the estate

22      subsequent to the consummation of the

23      settlement.

24           THE COURT:  Is that petition at issue?

25           MR. FEAMAN:  It -- Mr. O'Connell?
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1           MR. O'CONNELL:  I don't think it was filed

2      as an adversary matter.  It's a free-standing

3      petition.

4           THE COURT:  Okay.

5           MR. O'CONNELL:  Everybody has been served

6      with it.

7           MR. ROSE:  For the record we have no

8      objection to that motion being granted.  I

9      don't know if anybody objects to the motion.

10      That's certainly something that should be heard

11      if it's objected to very early.

12           THE COURT:  Unless somebody notices it up

13      for hearing, get ready for that.

14           We've used up all the time I set aside for

15      the Bernstein case.  It would sure be nice to

16      spend the rest of my career talking to you

17      about this but I have other people scheduled at

18      10:30 and I must see them now.  Thanks a lot.

19      I'll do my work on setting the trial on the one

20      thing we got and we'll see what happens next.

21           MR. O'CONNELL:  Thank you.

22           THE COURT:  It was fun and look forward to

23      a long list of hearings as well.

24 (Whereupon, the hearing is concluded at 10:32 a.m.)

25
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA, IN AND 
FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

IN RE:      Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

ESTATE OF SIMON BERNSTEIN, 

Deceased. 

________________________________/ 

MOTION IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO (i) APPROVE 
COMPROMISE AND SETTLEMENT, (ii) APPOINT A TRUSTEE FOR THE TRUSTS 

CREATED FOR D.B., JA.B. AND JO.B., AND (iii) DETERMINE COMPENSATION 
FOR GUARDIAN AD LITEM (2) CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE 

 
1. I am an “interested person” and named beneficiary in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein and 

Simon Bernstein and contrary to the filings and positions of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose, I do in fact have “Standing” to be heard in all of these cases and am a 

named beneficiary in the dispositive documents and Object to all of these motions which 

require evidentiary hearings to be heard at a UMC hearing and respectfully request that 

proper Special Set Hearings be calendared after Dec. 15, 2016 as I remain under Medical 

Care as all the parties are aware.  See attached Exhibit 1 - MD Note.  

2. There is no Order issued on the “standing” issue in the case of the Estate of Shirley 

Bernstein and Simon Bernstein despite the misleading claims of Alan Rose to this Court 

in his pleading in further attempts to obstruct justice. 

3. I file these Objections for all 3 cases in which Ted Bernstein and attorney Alan Rose have 

recently moved this Court for relief on November 22, 2016 improperly moved for relief 

at UMC Hearings under Case Numbers: 

a. Case # 502012CP004391XXXXSB – Simon Bernstein Estate 

Filing # 49176982 E-Filed 11/21/2016 07:13:30 PM
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b. Case # 502011CP000653XXXXSB – Shirley Bernstein Estate 

c. Case # 502014CP003698XXXXNB – Shirley Trust Construction 

4. Both Ted Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose are well aware of the Serious Medical 

conditions I am under and have been provided copies on multiple occasions from a 

Florida Licensed Doctor of Doctor’s Instructions to Avoid Stress, which could result in 

life threatening injury.  Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose have known this for many weeks 

now as this condition has been raised in filings at the 4th District Court of Appeals.  

5. I made a written request by email and asked attorney Alan Rose to voluntarily 

Reschedule these motions off the Nov. 22nd calendar based on the ongoing Medical 

treatment and instructions until after December 15th, 2016 but Mr. Rose has refused to do 

so. Proof of the Medical Treatment and Ongoing Care was attached to my request.  See 

Attached Exhibit 2 - Email to Rose re Reschedule Hearings.  

6. I reserve the right to file more detailed Objections to all of the relief requested by Ted 

Bernstein and his attorney Alan Rose in these 3 cases and seek an Extension of Time and 

/ Or Continuance to do so based upon Serious Medical conditions and the failure to be 

properly served in these matters.  

7. This Court is notified that virtually every Order in all of the cases of prior Judges Colin 

and Phillips are subject to being vacated under Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 1.540(b) 

on Fraud grounds but because of my medical conditions and the limited amount of time I 

can dedicate each day that it will take me 30 days to prepare and file proper motions for 

each case, which is subject to schedule change as in addition to repeated “sharp 

practices” by multiple attorneys including Alan Rose for Ted Bernstein and Steve Lessne 

for the Oppenheimer Trust case I am regularly faced with having to respond to 
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improperly Noticed motions and hearings and then subject to “tag teaming” motions in 

the 15th Judicial Court cases timed to coincide with Appeal deadlines at the 4th DCA.  

For example on this day, Nov. 22, 2016, I am hit with 3 hearings in this Court and 3 

briefs due at the 4th DCA and all while all parties have full notice of the dangers of stress 

medically to me at this time.  

8. Further, that both attorney Alan Rose and his client Ted Bernstein have mislead the prior 

Courts and are now misleading this Court under newly Assigned Judge Scher  through an 

elaborate evolving “storyline” that changes over time but will not withstand proper 

Evidentiary hearings after proper Discovery.  

9. Unraveling the multi-year elaborate scheme takes time which is further why I request an 

Extension and Continuance to file further Objections as in some instances there are 

contradictory statements from Ted Bernstein, Alan Rose and others from statements 

made to the PBSO, in some instances the statements are contradictory to prior Testimony 

in the cases, in other instances contradictory to other filings and so on.   

10. In the Notice of Administration document filed in the Shirley Bernstein case, I am in fact 

listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are nowhere Noticed or listed in this 

Document. Attached Exhibit 3- Shirley Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

11.  In the Notice of Administration document sworn to and filed by attorneys Tescher & 

Spallina in the Estate of Simon Bernstein under Case No. 502012CP004391XXXXSB, 

once again I am listed as a Beneficiary and the 10 grandchildren are never Noticed or 

mentioned.  Attached Exhibit 4 - Simon Bernstein Estate Notice of Administration.  

12. In addition to “Standing” having never been determined by any Order in the Shirley 

Bernstein Estate case, the “Standing” issues were never determined by Judge Phillips at 
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any Evidentiary Hearing or after any Construction hearing, as none has ever been held, 

but instead was determined at a Non-evidentiary UMC Hearing and my “standing” was 

removed in several of the cases based on the fact that I could not quote the proper Statute 

section during a UMC hearing despite my stating that I was a named beneficiary in the 

documents, an interested party and guardian for my children.  

13. The alleged “Validity Trial” which is on Appeal to the 4th District Court of Appeals not 

only was Ordered in an improper case after Judge Phillips was mislead or just went along 

with Alan Rose, but even the “Validity” trial hearings held were not hearings on the 

“construction” of the alleged documents and no standing hearing occurred nor any 

construction hearing.  

14. This Court is Noticed that just one of the misleading acts of Ted Bernstein and his 

attorney Alan Rose is failing to notify Judge Phillips at an alleged Guardianship hearing 

conducted improperly without proper Recordings and procedure that the Dead body of 

one Mitchell Huhem, age 45, was found at one of the very properties from these Estate 

and Trust cases being the primary residence of my parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein 

at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl shortly after moving into the home after a 

contested Probate Sale, being allegedly found on or around FEB. 23rd,  2015 after 

discovering likely Felony Fraud in the Incorporation and setup of a Land Trust to transfer 

this property by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose and that the Dead body was allegedly from 

Gunshot wounds to the head so gruesome that allegedly Mitchell Huhem’s wife Debra 

Huhem did not even look at the body.  

15.  This improperly conducted Guardianship hearing with Judge Phillips came after a 

Motion Hearing the same day in the US District Court of Illinois in relation to litigation 

BATES NO. EIB 000701 
02/27/2017



over “missing” Life Insurance policies of Simon Bernstein and missing Trusts where I 

had filed a Motion for Injunctive relief under the All Writs Act in the federal Court due to 

the extensive and pervasive fraud in the cases, Missing Discovery, Missing Documents 

and Missing “Millions” unaccounted for in these cases where it was known several days 

before to parties involved with Mitch Huhem that I would be reporting the fraud 

discovered in the Incorporation of the Land Trust to federal authorities and into the 

federal court.  

16. That home furnishings in the home where all property of Shirley Bernstein’s Estate when 

she died and none are listed on the Shirley Bernstein Inventory and therefore as it was her 

Personal Property it should have been inventoried at her death. 

17.  Despite the All Writs act Injunction Petition showing the Missing “Millions” and 

Missing documents and evidence in the related cases which also notified the Federal 

Court of the newly discovered fraud in the Incorporation of the Land Trust allegedly used 

to improperly transfer Trust and Estate property to Mitchell Huhem and his wife 

Deborah, neither Ted Bernstein nor the attorneys acting for him on this day notified the 

Federal Court that Mitchell Huhem’s dead body had just been found at the Lions Head 

lane property allegedly 2 days before the Court hearing in federal Court.  

18. While the US District Court did not grant the immediate Injunctive relief sought in that 

Court, it also did not strike the Petition and issued a Minute Order denying to strike the 

Petition from the federal court proceeding.  

19. Yet, later the same day, Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose show up at Judge Phillip’s Court 

for the improperly heard Guardianship proceeding failing to Notify the State Court that 

one of the parties that Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose were doing Estate and Trust property 
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business with alleged as fraudulent by myself was now Dead allegedly by Gun Wounds 

to the head at the very same property.  

20. Attached as Exhibit 5 is the All Writs Act injunction Petition which I incorporate herein 

by reference and can be used as a roadmap to this Court on the extensive frauds, conflicts 

of interests, Missing Documents, Missing evidence, Missing records and Missing 

“Millions” such that all motions by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose should be denied at this 

time and a continuance or extension granted to file completed motions with this Court 

and schedule necessary Evidentiary hearings after Discovery and even Depositions.  

21.  This Court is further notified that Ted Bernstein’s sworn Petition attempting to close this 

Estate conflicts in part with prior Hearings even with Judge Colin and an extension 

granted for further motions to be filed herein.  

22. Upon information and belief, the source being documents and information obtained 

through the Freedom of Information laws of Florida from the Palm Beach County 

Sheriff’s Office (“PBSO”) and Palm Beach County Medical Examiner’s Office in the 

Mitch Huhem Death case at the Lions Head Lane property, Ted Bernstein is the ONLY 

Central witness who apparently Refused to have his Statement Recorded by the PBSO 

in the Huhem Investigation despite allegedly being Scheduled to Meet with Mitch Huhem 

on the day in question when the Dead body was Discovered with the gruesome Gun Shot 

wounds to the head.  

23. In fact, despite being scheduled for a Business Meeting with Mitch Huhem on the very 

day in question, Ted Bernstein’s “statement” was not taken by the PBSO until several 

months after the body was found. See, Attached Exhibit 6 - Ted Bernstein Statement 

Huhem PBSO Homicide Investigation..  
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24. While thus far the PBSO has ruled the death a Suicide, there are Open Internal Affairs 

investigations not only relating to the crimes alleged in these Estate and Trust cases by 

Ted Bernstein and others but also an Open part in relation to the Huhem investigation 

where upon information and belief there are contradictory records and statements about 

when the body was first discovered and by who and the time of death and other.  

25.  This Court is also notified that Ted Bernstein has testified at the Validity Trial to never 

having seen or been in possession of any ORIGINALS of the Dispositive Documents in 

these cases while attorney Alan Rose is mixed up in the chain of custody of other certain 

“originals” and should be conflicted out as a Witness at this time.  See Attached Exhibit 5 

-  All Writs.  

26. The Court should further be aware that there have already been Admissions to fraud and 

forgery in the Shirley Estate case by Tescher & Spallina employee and Notary Kimberly 

Moran. 

27. Further, that lead Partner Donald Tescher on the Simon and Shirley Estates and Trusts 

plans admitted in Depositions that other frauds were discovered in the case committed by 

his Partner Robert Spallina but his firm kept silent for nearly a year on their wrongdoing, 

Spallina even denying knowledge of further misconduct to this Court while knowing of 

frauds he committed. See Attached Exhibit 7 - Deposition Tescher1  

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709TescherDepositionAndE
xhibits.pdf  

28. This Court is further Notified that attorneys Tescher and Spallina entered into Consent 

Orders with the SEC in relation to improper Fiduciary conduct in an Insider Trading case 

which upon information and belief still has an Open FBI Investigation to one of the 

                                                 
1 Donald Tescher Deposition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140709%20Tescher%20Deposition%20and%20E
xhibits.pdf  
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central Fiduciaries from these Estate and Trust cases. See, Attached Exhibit 8 - SEC 

Consent Orders for Robert Spallina, Esq. and Donald Tescher, Esq.  

29.  Further, that serious Due process issues are also raised in relation to the improperly held 

“Validity” Trial which includes but is certainly not limited to Missing Discovery and 

absence of standard Pre-Trial and improperly limiting such Trial to preclude necessary 

Witnesses such as Donald Tescher and Kimberly Moran and others.  

30. I make reference to a series of Filings that have not been properly heard in these 

proceedings and that related to the widespread fraud alleged and already proven in certain 

instances and that these should be considered for further Scheduling in all of these cases: 

a. May 2013 Emergency Hearing Fraud Simon and Shirley Estate and Trust Cases - 

Injunction 

http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20S

IGNED%20Petition%20Freeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20Large.pdf  

b. All Writs Motion on Judge Colin’s Disqualification and as a Necessary Material 
Fact Witness 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20R
EDO%20All%20Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%2
0Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20ST
AMPED%20COPY.pdf  

c. Disqualification Motion Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTARIZED%20Disqualification%20of%20Florida%20Circuit%20
Court%20Judge%20John%20L%20Phillips%20ECF%20STAMPED.pdf  
Notice of Corrections to Phillips Disqualification 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20141204%20FINAL%20S
IGNED%20NOTICE%20OF%20CORRECTIONS%20DISQUALIFICATION%
20JUDGE%20PHILLIPS.pdf  
Motion for New Trial Phillips 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20E
SIGNED%20MOTION%20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTI
ON%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
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31. In the Dec 15, 2015 hearing Spallina admits further new frauds regarding the estate and 

trusts of Shirley Bernstein, including federal mail fraud and fraudulent creation of a 

Shirley Trust Agreement and dissemination of the document to my minor children’s 

counsel, Christine C. Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott law firm. 

32. The April 09, 2012 Petition for Discharge is fraudulent and already exposed as fraudulent 

by Colin, who proffered at the time, in a September 13, 2013 hearing upon discovery that 

the April 09, 2012 document was deposited with the Court fraudulently POST MORTEM 

for Simon Bernstein by Ted Bernstein’s counsel, Tescher & Spallina, PA and therefore 

was  yet another not legally valid document, constituting enough evidence at the time of 

fraud on the court and fraud on the beneficiaries for Colin to state he had enough 

evidence from their admissions to read Ted Bernstein, Robert Spallina, Donald Tescher 

and Mark Manceri their Miranda rights.   

33. Colin made this statement regarding Miranda’s twice in that hearing, once in regard to 

the Moran six fraudulently notarized and forged filings for six separate parties, including 

my father Post Mortem and once in regard to the April 09, 2012 document fraud in 

attorney Spallina filing documents using my father’s identity to close the estate of my 

mother at a long after he was dead, without noticing the Court or properly electing a 

successor PR to have filed closing documents legally.  This was all part of an ongoing 

fraud that continues in this renewed effort to close the Shirley estate through further false 

and misleading pleadings where it was the frauds and forgeries that led to my mother’s 

estate being reopened. 

34. The estate cannot be reclosed at this time as no objections to accountings and inventories 

have been heard that are filed and it is now known that approximately $1,000,000.00 or 
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more of assets was not included in Shirley’s inventory (a fully paid for Bentley, a 

$250,000.00 wedding ring and furnishings, art and more)  and these items have not been 

amended to Shirley’s inventory, despite Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being made fully 

aware of their existence for several years. 

35. Eliot Bernstein does not waive any rights to accountings in any of these 3 cases and 

believes a full audited Final Accounting starting from the date of death forward must be 

completed. 

36. Eliot Bernstein was not properly noticed of this hearing and all parties could not have 

consented to the Motion proposed, as I, Eliot Ivan Bernstein have not, nor have my 

children. 

37. No Guardian was appointed in this case and thus Diana Lewis acting as Guardian in this 

matter to give consent to the Motion filed by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose is invalid and 

deserving of sanctions and criminal legal action for attempted financial exploitation of a 

minor.  Diana Lewis should be instantly removed from this case and all cases and cease 

any illegal interference and obstruction. 

38. On information and belief, Joshua Ennio Zander Bernstein is an adult and no legal 

guardianship has ever been obtained for him as such and therefore he also has not granted 

consent to any Motion filed to Reclose the Estate of his grandmother Shirley Bernstein.  

Diana Lewis is aware that Joshua was an adult when an improper guardianship was 

issued to her representing him falsely as a minor to the Court and again this may be 

further criminal misconduct. 

39. That the Court has an obligation under Judicial Canons and Law to report these alleged 

serious felony acts of Obstruction, fraudulent and misleading pleadings of attorneys, 
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guardians and judges involved in these matters and more to the proper state ethical and 

criminal authorities. 

40. It is respectfully submitted that a Case Management Conference is proper for each case 

so that Hearings can be scheduled after Discover is opened and Depositions of Ted 

Bernstein, Donald Tescher, Robert Spallina, Kimberly Moran, Alan Rose and others are 

completed,  

Wherefore, it is respectfully prayed for an Order denying the Motions filed by Ted 

Bernstein and Alan Rose in each of these 3 cases and denying said relief at a UMC Hearing and 

granting and extension and or continuance as appropriate for Eliot Bernstein to file complete 

objections and motions to vacate as appropriate and who further seeks reimbursement of all court 

costs including $120.00 for Court Call that they said could not be waived for indigent parties.  

Due to Fraud on the Court in these cases proven and further alleged, Pro Se Indigent Eliot 

Bernstein is seeking an Order of this Court to VideoTape or Audio Record and Transcript all 

hearings, UMC, Evidentiary, etc. to prevent and preclude further sharp practices and violations 

of law without record.  Since the Fraud has taken place on and in the Court by Court Appointed 

Officers (Attorneys and Fiduciaries) it should be on the Court’s own motion to ensure the 

preclusion of further fraud and protect the litigants. 

Dated: November 21th, 2016 

 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished to counsel of 

record and the proper parties on the attached Service List via the Court's e-portal system or 

Email Service on this 21st day of November, 2016. 

. 

By: /S/ Eliot Ivan Bernstein 

Pro Se 

2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

561.245.8588 

iviewit@iviewit.tv 
  

SERVICE LIST 

Theodore Stuart Bernstein 
Life Insurance Concepts 
950 Peninsula Corporate Circle, Suite 
3010 
Boca Raton, Florida 33487 
tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.co
m 

Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
Page, Mrachek, Fitzgerald 
& Rose, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, 
Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 
33401 
(561) 355‐6991 
arose@pm‐law.com  
and 
arose@mrachek‐law.com  

John J. Pankauski, Esq. 
Pankauski Law Firm PLLC 
120 South Olive Avenue  
7th Floor  
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 514‐0900 
courtfilings@pankauskilawfirm.co
m 
john@pankauskilawfirm.com  
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Robert L. Spallina, Esq.,  
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
rspallina@tescherspallina.com  
kmoran@tescherspallina.com 
ddustin@tescherspallina.com 

Irwin J. Block, Esq. 
The Law Office of Irwin J. 
Block PL 
700 South Federal 
Highway 
Suite 200 
Boca Raton, Florida 
33432 
ijb@ijblegal.com  
lamb@kolawyers.com  

Mark R. Manceri, Esq., and 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.,  
2929 East Commercial Boulevard 
Suite 702 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 
mrmlaw@comcast.net  
mrmlaw1@gmail.com 

Donald Tescher, Esq., Tescher & 
Spallina, P.A. 
Boca Village Corporate Center I 
4855 Technology Way 
Suite 720 
Boca Raton, FL 33431 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com 
dtescher@tescherspallina.com  

Peter Feaman, Esquire 
Peter M. Feaman, P.A. 
3695 W. Boynton Beach 
Blvd. 
Suite #9 
Boynton Beach, FL 33436 
Tel:  561.734.5552 
Fax: 561.734.5554 
pfeaman@feamanlaw.co
m  
service@feamanlaw.com 
mkoskey@feamanlaw.co
m 

Benjamin Brown, Esq., 
Thornton B Henry, Esq., and 
Peter Matwiczyk 
Matwiczyk & Brown, LLP 
625 No. Flagler Drive 
Suite 401 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
bbrown@matbrolaw.com  
attorneys@matbrolaw.com 
bhenry@matbrolaw.com  
pmatwiczyk@matbrolaw.com  

William H. Glasko, Esq. 
Golden Cowan, P.A. 
1734 South Dixie Highway 
Palmetto Bay, FL 33157 
bill@palmettobaylaw.com  
eservice@palmettobaylaw.com  
tmealy@gcprobatelaw.com  

Alexandra Bernstein 
3000 Washington Blvd, 
Apt 424 
Arlington, VA, 22201 
alb07c@gmail.com  

Kimberly Moran 
kmoran@tescherspallina.com  
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Michael Bernstein 
2231 Bloods Grove Circle 
Delray Beach, FL 33445 
mchl_bernstein@yahoo.com  

John P Morrissey. Esq.  
John P. Morrissey, P.A. 
330 Clematis Street 
Suite 213  
West Palm Beach, FL 
33401 
john@jmorrisseylaw.com  

Joshua, Jacob and Daniel 
Bernstein, Minors 
c/o Eliot and Candice Bernstein, 
Parents and Natural Guardians 
2753 NW 34th Street 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 
iviewit@iviewit.tv  

Julia Iantoni, a Minor 
c/o Guy and Jill Iantoni, 
Her Parents and Natural Guardians 
210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 

Carley & Max Friedstein, 
c/o Jeffrey and Lisa 
Friedstein 
Parents and Natural 
Guardians 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 6003 
Lisa@friedsteins.com   
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 

Molly Simon 
1731 N. Old Pueblo Drive 
Tucson, AZ 85745 
molly.simon1203@gmail.com 

Brian M. O'Connell, Esq. 
Joielle A. Foglietta, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell 
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561‐832‐5900‐Telephone 
561‐833‐4209 ‐ Facsimile 
Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com; 
ifoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com; 
service@ciklinlubitz.com; 
slobdell@ciklinliibitz.com 

Pamela Beth Simon 
950 N. Michigan Avenue 
Apartment 2603 
Chicago, IL 60611 
psimon@stpcorp.com 

Jill Iantoni 
2101 Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
jilliantoni@gmail.com 
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Lisa Sue Friedstein 
2142 Churchill Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
lisa.friedstein@gmail.com 
lisa@friedsteins.com 

   

EXHIBITS 
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Eliot Bernstein

From: Eliot Bernstein <iviewit5@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, November 11, 2016 1:05 PM
To: Alan B. Rose Esq. (mchandler@mrachek-law.com); Alan B. Rose Esq. @ Mrachek, 

Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A. (arose@mrachek-law.com); Brian M. 
O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell   
(boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com); Don Tescher; Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ 
Tescher & Spallina, P.A. (dtescher@tescherspallina.com); Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ 
Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & 
O'Connell (jfoglietta@ciklinlubitz.com); Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A. (mrmlaw@comcast.net); Peter Feaman (mkoskey@feamanlaw.com); Peter Feaman, 
Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A. (pfeaman@feamanlaw.com); Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A. 
(rspallina@tescherspallina.com); Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A.  (steven.lessne@gray-robinson.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. 
(eservice@gunster.com); Steven A. Lessne Esq. (jhoppel@gunster.com); Steven A. 
Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. (slessne@gunster.com)

Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ 
Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein 
(tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock-It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 
'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc R. 
Garber Esq.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP'

Subject: Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose Reply - RE: CORRECTION OF DATE - Voluntary Request to 
Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH 

Mr. Rose and Ted Bernstein,  
 
Your fraud and the frauds of all of cases you both are involved in will be fairly heard and determined.  
 
The Damages and Harm you and your Client and others have caused to the Estates and Trusts and proper Beneficiaries 
will be fairly heard and fully determined.  
 
Your words are and have been basically meaningless, except of course where you have demonstrated fraud and other 
misconduct, those words will prove to have serious meaning.  
 
Do you or your client currently Own any real property as I believe that Homestead will not be protected for fiducial 
violations, if so please attach the addresses of each?  
 
I notice and make a record on this Friday, November 11, 2016, that you continue to FAIL to provide copies of any of the 
alleged Trusts and originals you speak about.  
 
Thank you.  
 
Eliot Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot Bernstein as POA for Josh Bernstein Eliot Bernstein as Trustee for the Eliot Bernstein Family Trust 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek‐law.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 11:45 PM 
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To: 'Eliot Ivan Bernstein'; Marie Chandler; 'Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell '; 'Don 
Tescher'; 'Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit 
Technologies, Inc.'; 'Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell'; 'Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ 
Mark R. Manceri, P.A.'; 'Peter Feaman'; 'Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.'; 'Robert L. 
Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.'; 'Robert Spallina'; 'Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ 
GrayRobinson, P.A. '; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq.'; 'Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & 
Stewart, P.A.' 
Cc: 'Kevin R. Hall'; 'Barbara Stone'; 'JoAnne M. Denison Esq.'; 'Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm'; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Ted Bernstein (tbernstein@lifeinsuranceconcepts.com)'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It 
Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; 'iviewit@gmail.com'; 'Marc 
R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: RE: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
You have been determined to lack standing, and are in no position to object to a settlement between the 
trustees/beneficiaries of trusts, including the court‐appointed Guardian ad Litem.  
 
You have caused lengthy delays.  I already reset this for Mr. Feaman, and we intend to proceed on the settlement 
motion as set. 
 
I also am not inclined to move the status conference, but will confer with Mr. O'Connell and let you know if we are 
willing to move that hearing. 
 
 
 
    Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
    arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 
    561.355.6991 
 
 
    505 South Flagler Drive 
    Suite 600  
    West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
    561.655.2250 Phone 
    561.655.5537 Fax 
                                                           
      
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY PRIVILEGED AND 
CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS 
MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR 
COPYING OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E‐MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service (Circular 
230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any attachments), unless 
otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the 
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue Code or (2) promoting, marketing or 
recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If you 
have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat Reader, 
available at: http://www.adobe.com 
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‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Eliot Ivan Bernstein [mailto:iviewit11@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2016 10:31 PM 
To: Marie Chandler; Alan Rose; Brian M. O'Connell PA ~ Partner @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell ; Don Tescher; 
Donald R. Tescher ~ Attorney at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Eliot I. Bernstein, Inventor ~ Iviewit Technologies, Inc.; 
Joielle "Joy" A. Foglietta, Esquire @ Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell; Mark R. Manceri, Esquere @ Mark R. Manceri, 
P.A.; Peter Feaman; Peter Feaman, Esq. ~ Attorney at Law @ Peter M. Feaman, P.A.; Robert L. Spallina, Esq. ~ Attorney 
at Law @ Tescher & Spallina, P.A.; Robert Spallina; Steven A. Lessne ~ Shareholder @ GrayRobinson, P.A. ; Steven A. 
Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq.; Steven A. Lessne Esq. @ Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
Cc: Kevin R. Hall; Barbara Stone; JoAnne M. Denison Esq.; Candice Schwager @ Schwager Law Firm; 'William "Bill" 
Stansbury'; 'William "Bill" Stansbury'; 'Andrew Dietz @ Rock‐It Cargo USA, Inc.'; 'CANDICE BERNSTEIN'; 'Caroline 
Prochotska Rogers Esq.'; 'Eliot I. Bernstein'; iviewit@gmail.com; 'Marc R. Garber Esq.'; 'Marc R. Garber Esq. @ Flaster 
Greenberg P.C.'; 'Michele M. Mulrooney ~ Partner @ Venable LLP' 
Subject: CORRECTION OF DATE ‐ Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2016 Hearing CASE NO. 
502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Please note the date in the subject line of the email had an incorrect date for the hearing at issue which is corrected to 
Nov 22, 2016.  Thank You, Eliot 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
 
Subject:  Voluntary Request to Alan Rose to Reschedule Nov. 22, 2015 Hearing CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH  
 
Mr. Alan Rose,  
 
I am requesting that your office voluntarily reschedule and remove from the Nov. 22, 2016 calendar your Motion in 
CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH until after Dec. 15, 2016.   
 
I have attached an updated Medical Instruction from a proper Dr. in Florida prescribing avoiding all stress until Dec. 
15th, 2016 and follow‐up care.  Your office is more than aware of this situation from the motions filed at the 4th District 
Court of Appeals.  
 
I am certain that Peter Feaman, Esq. will consent and agree on behalf of William Stansbury.  
 
Your continued "sharp practices" in general were noted and observed in your recent actions in the presently separate 
William Stansbury case under Case NO. 50 2012 CA 013933 MB AN where you filed late and improper Notice on a Friday 
afternoon for a Hearing on the following Monday and proper corrective efforts for that case are underway as well.  
 
A proper Motion in CASE NO. 502012CP004391XXXXNBIH will be made in the absence of your voluntary rescheduling.  
All acts of fraud will be addressed.  Eventually the wheel always comes around.  
 
Further, please provide copies of Any and All Trusts referred to in your recent motion together with a statement under 
oath as a currently licensed Florida attorney on the entire chain of custody leading to your office having possession of 
such Trust documents with an entire time line and each link in the chain of custody addressed.   
 
Thank you.  
 
Respectfully,  
 
Eliot I. Bernstein, Individually 
Eliot I. Bernstein, POA Josh Bernstein  
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL 

IN RE: EST A TE OF PROBATE DIVISION 

SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, FileNo. 6'DdOll (!fOa?{p-:; 3X)(X'X~ 

Deceased. 

PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATION 
(testate Florida resident) 

Petitioner, SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, alleges: ?.;~ ·-· 

::i:=. 

I . Petitioner has an interest in the above estate as the named personal repres~ntative uncer the 
co 

decedent's Will. The Petitioner's address is 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and.ftie name 
a 

and office address of petitioners attorney are set forth at the end of this Petition. 

2. Decedent, SHIRLEY BERNSTEIN, whose last known address was 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton, Florida 33496, whose age was 71, and whose social security number is xxx-x.x-9749, died on 

December 8, 20 I 0, at her home at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Florida 33496, and on the date of 

death decedent was domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

3. So far as is known, the names of the beneficiaries of this estate and of decedent 's surviving 

spouse, if any, their addresses and relationship to decedent, and the dates of birth of any who are minors, are: 

NAME ADDRESS RELA TIONSHI BIRTH DATE 
p (if Minor) 

Simon L. Bernstein 7020 Lions Head Lane husband adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33496 

Ted S. Bernstein 880 Berkeley Street son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33487 

Pamela B. Simon 950 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 2603 daughter adult 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Eliot Bernstein 2753 NW 34th St. son adult 
Boca Raton, FL 33434 

8J.t fotm t:o. J>.).0100 

C Florid.1 Uvo~cn Stipp0n Scn"ica. 11:11::. 
Rn~'Cd Oaobc:1 I. 1991 

- I -
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Jill lantoni 

Lisa S. Friedstein 

210 I Magnolia Lane 
Highland Park, IL 60035 

2142 Churchill Lane 
highland Park, IL 60035 

daughter adult 

daughter adult 

4. Venue of this proceeding is in this county because decedent was a resident of Palm Beach 

County at the time of her death. 

5. Simon L. Bernstein, whose address is listed above, and who is qualified under the laws of 

the State of Florida to serve as personal representative of the decedent's estate is entitled to preference in 

appointment as personal representative because he is the person designated to serve as personal 

representative under the decedent's Will. 

6. The nature and approximate value of the assets in this estate are: tangible and intangib le 

assets with an approximate value of less than $_·Ti~ ..... 8~b _____ _ 
7. This estate will not be required to file a federal estate tax return. 

8. The original of the decedent's last will, dated May 20, 2008, is being filed simultaneously 

with this Petition with the Clerk of the Court for Palm Beach County, Florida. 

9. Petitioner is unaware of any unrevoked will or codicil of decedent other than as set forth in 

paragraph 8 . 

Petitioner requests that the decedent's Will be admitted to probate and that Simon L. 

Bernstein be appointed as personal representative of the estate of the decedent. 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have read the foregoing Petition for 

Adm;n;strnt;on, and the facts all~ are tru{j to the best 071nowledge and behef. 

Signed on re!] Z f I 
~ ~ ct~ 

Anomey for Pe1i1ioncr 
Florida Bar No. 0497381 
4855 Technology Way, Ste. 720 
Boca Ralon, FL 33431 
561-997-7008 

S:at Fonn No. p .. J.0100 
e F1orid:.t l..w')aJ Soppon .SC,,.ica., lot. 

Rn~al Octottr I. 1991 

SIMON L. BERNSTEIN, Petitioner 

- 2 -
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
  

SIMON BERNSTEIN IRREVOCABLE  ) 
INSURANCE TRUST DTD 6/21/95,         ) 
                                                                     ) 
Plaintiff,                                                       )        Case No. 13 cv 3643 

                                                                     )        Honorable John Robert Blakey 

v.                                                                  )        Magistrate Mary M. Rowland 

                                                                     ) 
HERITAGE UNION LIFE INSURANCE ) 
COMPANY, Eliot I. Bernstein,   ) 
Individually, and on behalf of the Minor ) 
Children JEZB, JNAB, and DEAOB, ) 
ET AL.                                 ) 
                                                                     )          

)        PETITION-MOTION FOR 

) INJUNCTION:  
)        Under the All Writs Act ( AWA ),       
)        Anti-Injunction Act ( AIA ) and Other  
)        relief  
)  
)          Third-Party Plaintiffs / Counter- 
)        Plaintiffs-Petitioners Eliot I. Bernstein,  
)         Individually and On behalf of Minor 

)         Children 

)         
)         
)         
)               

) 
                                                                     )        Filers: 

       )        Eliot Ivan Bernstein, Third-Party  
) Defendant and Counter-Plaintiff. 

 
 
 

Comes now Eliot Ivan Bernstein, being duly sworn, declares and says under oath and 
penalties of perjury as follows, on information and belief:  
 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 1 of 132 PageID #:3635
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INTRODUCTION  
 

1. I am over the age of 18 years and reside at 2753 NW 34th St, Boca Raton, Florida 33434, and 

am acting pro se herein.  

2. I make this Affidavit-Petition in good faith in support of an Emergency Motion for Injunctive 

Relief against all parties this District Court presently has jurisdiction over and for at least 

temporarily restraining the Florida Probate Court of Judge John Phillips by an appropriately 

tailored Order under the Anti-Injunction Act and All Writs Act under 28 USC Sec. 2283 and 28 

USC Sec. 1651(a) respectively until such time as this Court holds a Hearing and or Conference 

where Orderly Production of Discovery, Preservation of evidence, documents, records is 

obtained and where other issues such as the conflicts of interest and potential misconduct by the 

parties before this Court can be determined, determination of “side agreements” impacting the 

integrity of this Court’s litigation such as discussed in Winkler v Eli Lilly can be heard, and 

such other matters as to this Court seems just and proper.  

3. As this Court will see, with the newly discovered fraudulent company Lions Head Land Trust, 

Inc., with at least Ted Bernstein and his counsel Alan Rose who appeared for Ted Bernstein at a 

Deposition held for this Court just being discovered last week Feb. 18, 2016 as another vehicle 

of fraud to hide and secret away the transfer of assets valued in the millions is present, along 

with a series of orchestrated proceedings in the parallel litigation in the State Court including 

but not limited to attorneys Alan Rose and Steven Lessne submitting motions at a 5 Minute 

UMC motion calendar for attorneys fees in the hundreds of thousands without submitting any 

Billing statements to support, and being a flurry of motions to “wrap up” the Probate cases 

despite literally millions of dollars in assets never being accounted for there is a very real and 

imminent danger that the critical evidence, documents, records and Discovery necessary in aid 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 2 of 132 PageID #:3636
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of this Court’s own jurisdiction and integrity of this Court’s own proceedings will be 

permanently lost thus requiring this Court to now act with an appropriately tailored injunctive 

Order herein against parties already under this Court’s jurisdiction. 

4. I am specifically seeking to enjoin the parties under this Court’s jurisdiction, Ted Bernstein, 

Brian O’Connell and the Estate of Simon Bernstein, Alan Rose as Ted Bernstein’s attorney who 

represented him at a federal court Deposition herein and remains his Palm Beach attorney, 

Pamela Simon, David Simon, Adam Simon, Jill Iantoni, Lisa Friedstein and Florida State 

Probate Judge John Phillips of the North Branch of Palm Beach County temporarily pending 

further Order of this Court and at least until proper evidence, documents and Discovery are both 

preserved and produced, until this Court sorts out conflicts of interest as set out herein and 

exercises its inherent powers to probe “side deals” compromising the integrity of this Court’s 

Jurisdiction and that such injunction should specifically include but not be limited to enjoining 

proceedings before Judge Phillips in Palm Beach County this Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 at 3:15 

PM Est and as this Court further deems proper.  

5. I further assert in good faith that this Court should find sufficient cause for such extra-ordinary 

exercise of the injunctive powers at least by the time it reaches that part of this complaint that 

describes  the new fraudulent company Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose are involved in secreting 

and hiding from the public record secreting multi-million dollar asset listed at $3.4 million 

allegedly sold for $1.1 Million by recent deed transfer to a false company titled Lions Head 

Land Trust, Inc, although there are further sections which describe with specificity and by  

“piece-meal” discovery the Millions in assets presently unaccounted for by these parties herein 

further justifying injunctive relief to schedule Orderly and proper discovery proceedings. 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 3 of 132 PageID #:3637
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6. Just one “piece-meal” disclosed item of documentary evidence shown later herein documents 

approximately $2.8 Million in just one of Simon Bernstein’s accounts at the time of his passing 

which to this day has never been accounted for which also does not include millions from 

other accounts and the millions of worth of Shirley Bernstein where in 5 years there has never 

been an accounting yet the core parties who brought this original action to your Court try to 

portray my parents as virtual paupers where all their records and financials and critical 

documents are “lost” which is a fraud itself.  

7. As shown throughout this complaint, the Discovery Abuses in the parallel State proceedings 

which justify exercise of this Court’s injunctive powers at this time are such that there has never 

been any coherent, complete disclosure of “Original” Trusts, Wills and related instruments nor 

any coherent presentation of the Estates and how these were managed despite sophisticated 

lawyers working in these cases Billing hundreds of thousands of dollars a clip.  

8. I submit that the naked human eye upon reviewing the piece-meal production of “copies” and 

magically timed surfacing of alleged “duplicate Originals” of the operative Trusts and other 

instruments herein can detect multiple signatures that appear “too identical’, “too evenly 

placed” on the page and multiple “identical” “Initials” such as “SB” that appear to be too 

perfectly aligned such that preservation of Original documents and all evidence becomes even 

more important in a case where proven, admitted to, documented fraud and forgery of important 

instruments in the Florida Court has already been established yet instead of the Court notifying 

any investigative authorities I am retaliated against for seeking truth and integrity in these 

proceedings.  

9. Because the amount and level of fraud is so pervasive and complex that is alleged to take place 

in and upon the Florida Court by Court Officers, Fiduciaries and Counsel and can not be stated 

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 4 of 132 PageID #:3638
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in a few sentences and takes painstaking time to address, the remaining sections provide of this 

case while also supporting the motion for use of the Injunctive powers of this court also further 

provides background facts to the depth of the assets at stake, the depth of the fraud and claims 

and part of the basis upon which I will respectfully seek further Leave of this Court to amend 

my counter-cross complaints filed herein September 22, 2013 and further leave to Add parties 

but due to the continuing nearly daily distractions by the sharp, abuse of process practices in the 

Probate Court my proposed Amendments to my Cross-counterclaims are presently only in draft 

form and I respectfully seek leave of this Court to file and submit a proposed Amended 

Counter-cross complaint which not only seeks to add claims such as claims under 42 USC Sec. 

1983 but also parties as well.  

10. I ask this Court to note, however, that even in the process of submitting this Motion-Petition-

Complaint herein, I have experienced significant “downtime” at my website where the host 

Service provider that always responded timely in the past now does not respond sometimes for 

days and where the basic internet services into my home have been “down” at critical times 

where deadlines are in play and thus even this submission has been significantly delayed.  

11. I further point out that Ted Bernstein who is the one that suggested at the hospital that our father 

Simon Bernstein may have been poisoned and murdered also said he would be handling things 

with the authorities and had friend attorneys to do so and was on calls with a lawyer both from 

Greenberg Traurig and Robert Spallina and where Ted’s “storyline” of how and why he is “in 

charge” as “Trustee” has changed from day one while the delay denial of operative documents 

began day one in a case where my father’s body goes “missing” for a week allegedly out for 

autopsy at one location and where Simon Bernstein’s home computer containing years of 

valuable business records alone is found “wiped clean” on the night of his passing and where 
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the Coroner’s Report comes back on a 113 yr old male while certainly Simon Bernstein was not 

that age at the time of passing. See, Email of Ted’s Calls Sept 14, 20121.  

12. As referenced later in this complaint herein, Greenberg Traurig has been publicly identified as 

being in the middle of major lawsuits for involvement in the multi-Billion Stanford Ponzi 

scheme where Stanford monies and accounts exceeding a Million dollars for my parents is just 

one of many items Unaccounted for where Discovery abuse has further occurred.  

13. I have attempted to organize this complex set of facts in the most logical and orderly manner 

under these emergency circumstances where my family grows in increasing imminent danger as 

described herein.     

14. I have read the Local Rules and believe I have complied in good faith and provided advance 

Notice of this Emergency Application to the involved parties Electronically by Email on Friday, 

Feb. 19, 2016 as follows:  

Service Case #13-cv-03643 - Notice per Local Rule of Application on Emergency 
Motion / Injunction US District Court Hon. John Robert Blakey 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
  
Parties, Attorneys and To Whom It May Concern: 
  
I am writing to give you all as current parties and / or attorneys and representatives for 
current parties in the Illinois federal court litigation and other parties to be added to the 
federal court litigation as much advance reasonable notice as possible that I intend to 
contact  Judge Blakey’s Courtroom Deputy, Gloria Lewis, at (312) 818-6699, to make a 
request to set a hearing on an emergency motion which will seek Injunctive relief 
against all parties currently under jurisdiction of the District Court of Illinois with a 
further request to enjoin at least temporarily all proceedings in the Court of Probate 
Judge John Phillips and also add other parties to the action and other relief. 
 
I will be requesting that this application be heard no later than this Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016 Motion Calendar in Judge Blakey's Court and since my actual filings may not be 
electronically uploaded until later today and over the weekend that such request be 
deemed an Emergency and thus appropriate to hear as soon as practical. 

                                                 
1September 14, 2012 Emails Ted Tescher Spallina and Greenberg Traurig’s Jon Swergold  
www.iviewit.tv/20120914SpallinaTescherTedGreenbergTraurigSwergoldDayAfterSimonDies.pdf  
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Please advise of your availability to hear this motion for this coming Tuesday, Feb. 23, 
2016. 
 
Eliot I. Bernstein 
Inventor 
Iviewit Holdings, Inc. – DL 
2753 N.W. 34th St. 
Boca Raton, Florida  33434-3459 
(561) 245.8588 (o) 
(561) 886.7628 (c) 
(561) 245-8644 (f) 
iviewit@iviewit.tv 
http://www.iviewit.tv  
 

15. I assert in good faith that hearing this Motion on an Emergency basis is proper due to a series of 

extortive, abusive, orchestrated actions of continued abuse of process in the Florida Probate 

Courts and by the Florida Probate Courts in conspiracy and or acting in concert with fiduciaries, 

counsel and others that are interfering and threaten to further interfere with this Court’s 

jurisdiction and the ability to orderly decide the claims before it as there is a real and serious 

imminent threat and danger that critical evidence, documents, records, Discovery and real and 

personal properties will be permanently lost imminently preventing this Court from properly 

adjudicating claims before it while these parties are simultaneously hiding millions of dollars of 

assets as shown later herein wholly Unaccounted for  and retaliating against and threatening 

myself with the Baker Act, Jail, Contempt and now a Guardianship on my children simply for 

seeking my inheritance, seeking the truth, reporting crimes as discovered against the fiduciaries 

and counsel primarily and now the Florida Courts are in high gear retaliating against the 

exercise of my First Amendment rights to suppress my whistleblowing that has uncovered and 

proven massive frauds against me committed on and by the Florida courts and its officers, 

fiduciaries and others.  
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16. I respectfully remind this Court and Your Honor that it is my original fingerprint on the 

February 2009 Petition to the White House, White House Counsel’s Office2. USAG, FBI and a 

other investigative agencies and further that I have been interviewed with federal agents 

including but not limited to now “missing” FBI Agent Stephen Luchessi originally out of West 

Palm Beach FBI in Florida who went missing with the Iviewit case files causing my case to be 

elevated to the former Inspector General of the Department of Justice Glenn A. Fine who 

assigned a Miami field agent to my case, Harry I, Moatz the former Director of the Office of 

Enrollment of the US Patent Office who had me file charges of Fraud on the US Patent Office 

committed by my IP counsel that were members of the Federal Patent Bar that have led to a 

multi year suspension of my Intellectual Properties while investigations continue) and other 

federal agents like Ron Gardella out of the US Attorney’s Office in the SDNY ( now retired, I 

believe ), others in the SDNY US Attorney’s offices and other investigative bodies as well.  

17. The purpose for reminding Your Honor of these matters is to demonstrate that I have never been 

charged by any of these federal authorities for making a false frivolous statement or received 

adverse treatment yet in the Palm Beach County Probate proceedings I am being vilified and 

retaliated against just for pursuing my rights and those of my children of our inheritance herein 

and Technology rights while certain parties under this Court’s jurisdiction have attempted to 

have CPS take my children on a false report that came back unfounded which was initiated on 

the same day I notified this Court last May 2015 of threats against my life and this Court 

referred me to 9/11 services,  attempted through threat to Baker Act me for reporting/discussing 

fraud and crime to a “Mediator” out of Judge Phillips Court, and now are seeking to jail me and 

impose Guardianship against me this Thursday for topics like the Car bombing of my Mini-Van 

                                                 
2 February 13, 2009 Letter to Honorable President Barrack Obama 
http://www.scribd.com/doc/255176532/February-13-2009-Iviewit-Letter-to-Barrack-Obama-to-Join-Us-
Attorney-Eric-Holder-in-Iviewit-Federal-RICO-Shira-Scheindlin#scribd  
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in 2005 which was reported to the FBI and other authorities and other matters that have been 

reported to federal authorities thus retaliating against me being a Whistleblower of the Fraud on 

the Court and Fraud by the Court and its officers et al. and exercising First Amendment rights.  

18.   There have also been threats to take the home that my parents provided for my wife and 

children under a specific agreement to relocate to Boca Raton, Fl from California to be close to 

my parents and thus it is not unreasonable to suggest if I am falsey Baker acted or jailed the 

likely next moves are to take the home while I am cast away leaving my wife and children alone 

while I somehow have lost my “standing” at a 5 Minute UMC hearing in the State Court where 

no Construction Hearing has ever occurred on any of the operative documents and has elevated 

to even being blocked from filing responses to the motions in the Florida Probate Court, 

meanwhile literally years of no Accountings and Abusive discovery and “lost” items from 

sophisticated parties continues.  

Emergency: Imminent Permanent Loss of Critical Evidence. Documents, Discovery 
Necessary in Aid of this Court’s Jurisdiction: 

Status in the District Court, New and Recent Discovery of Undisclosed Conflicts of 
Interest, Feb. 18, 2016 Discovery of Fraudulent “Shell” Company to Hide Assets-Owner 

etc.  
19. While the parties are awaiting determination from this Court on the Summary Judgement 

motions filed by Plaintiffs, at least 2 scheduled Court Conferences with this Court have been re-

scheduled, yet still remaining before this Court even aside from the Summary Judgment 

motions are Petitioner Eliot Bernstein’s Answer and Counterclaims filed September 22, 2013 

asserting causes of action in Fraud, Fraud upon the Beneficiaries and Court, Abuse of Legal 

Process, Civil Conspiracy and Breach of Fiduciary Duties amongst others.  

20. On Jan. 13, 2014 in Docket Entry 71, prior Judge St. Eve issued a Minute Entry Order which 

provided in part as follows, “Discovery is hereby stayed until the proper Trustee is determined” 

thus acknowledging that determination of a “proper Trustee” is an issue in the case, which 
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remains disputed. The Trustee/Trust/Beneficiaries/Policy issues remains undetermined presently 

and this Court’s jurisdiction is imminently threatened by the permanent loss of evidence, 

documents and discovery by the parties orchestrating proceedings in Florida where this 

evidence and the parties in possession of such evidence should be enjoined herein.  

21. This Court itself, Hon. John G. Blakey, presiding, issued a Minute Entry Order on May 22, 

2015 under Docket Entry 185 that further provided in part as follows, “Bernstein's 

representations to the contrary notwithstanding, at this time the Court is unable to say that 

anyone has a clear right to the proceeds deposited by Heritage Union Life Insurance Company, 

let alone what each interested party's share should be.“ 

22. The same core parties and nucleus of operative facts are present in this US District Court 

litigation as the Probate matters in Florida and I further seek leave to file for Declaratory relief 

herein on the Trusts and Operating companies which are non-probate, and suggest judicial 

economy in this complex case with parties from multiple jurisdictions will ultimately be served 

by this Court taking jurisdiction over the Construction and validity of all the Trusts herein 

which are non-probate anyway and for Construction and Validity of the operative Wills as will 

be shown if I am granted leave to Amend my cross-counter complaint.   

23. As will be shown, just on Discovery abuses alone where Discovery and the Denial of Discovery 

has been used as a “weapon”  by the Plaintiffs and other parties in the related proceedings in the 

State Probate Court of Florida, there is a real and imminent danger that the Integrity of this 

Court’s judgment and path to judgment will be fundamentally impaired by the permanent loss 

of evidence and discovery materials justifying the exercise of the extra-ordinary relief under the 

All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act. 
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24. This evidence and documents and Discovery which “should answer” the outstanding questions 

before this Court of where the Original Trusts are, where the Original Policies are, where the 

Original records and where business records are that go along with Simon Bernstein’s life who 

made millions per year in the Insurance industry for decades and all items are directly relevant 

to the Life Insurance claim and  my counter-crossclaims.  

25. Instead, in the Florida Probate Court Simon Bernstein is falsely being portrayed as nearly a 

“pauper” with virtually no assets left and “Missing” and “losing” all ( or substantially all )  

Business documents and dispositive documents meticulously kept for Decades, at least 

according to Plaintiffs and the counsels working with Plaintiffs.  

26. Yet proper Discovery and Depositions would and should prove the contrary which is why this 

Court must act to preserve this evidence in the hands of multiple parties and some unknown 

parties where Discovery is necessary to specify the appropriate party and entity.  

27. Further, that sufficient evidence will be shown to justify this Court exercising its inherent 

powers to make inquiry of the parties and respective counsels about“side agreements” and other 

“agreements” outside the record of any proceedings impairing the integrity of proceedings in 

this Court similar to the inquiry discussed in Winkler v. Eli Lilly & Co., 101 F.3d 1196, 1202 

(7th Cir. 1996).  

28. This Court should be well aware of the “missing” and “lost” Trusts and Policies and business 

records which surround the original claim filed in this Court by the core party Plaintiffs and 

attorneys acting on their behalf which itself cut out Eliot Bernstein and his children as named, 

necessary parties tortiously attempting to deprive and deny rights of inheritance and expectancy 

to Eliot Bernstein and his children without their knowledge, which will be established as a 

pattern and practice that started the minute Simon Bernstein passed.  
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29. The need for proper Discovery and production and depositions should be plain and obvious to 

further aid this Court in it’s own exercise of  jurisdiction rendering a properly tailored 

Injunction under the All Writs Act and Anti-Injunction Act proper at this time.  

Florida Probate Proceedings Scheduled for Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016, Judge Phillips at 3:15 
PM EST on Guardianship, Gag Orders, Jail-Contempt against Eliot etc Should be 

Temporarily Enjoined under All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act 
30. While I respectfully assert to this Court that ultimately the entirety and or virtual entirety of 

proceedings in the Florida Probate Courts are part of an orchestrated series of abusive and 

Constitutionally defective set of actions including continuing and ongoing Discovery abuse, this 

immediate appearance before Judge John L. Phillips in the North Branch of Palm Beach County 

should now be at least temporarily enjoined for all the reasons set forth herein until further 

Order of this Court.  

31. As will be shown herein, the entirety of these parallel proceedings in the Florida State Probate 

Court has been ripe with Discovery Abuse each step of the way, where documents, discovery 

and evidence are either completely denied and ignored, substantially delayed for years, 

fraudulently altered and forged and entered into the record and turned over in a “piece-meal” 

orchestrated fashion thwarting and frustrating any fair justice where, like in this District Court 

with the same core parties  where “magical” draft trust documents appear at critical times yet 

No Originals turned over for inspection or comparison and no law firms can be identified to 

have produced them.  

32. It is further noted that the original Curator attorney Ben Brown of the Simon Bernstein Estate 

never received Original productions from resigning attorneys Tescher & Spallina except for 

documents on Eliot Bernstein’s home and Ben Brown specifically complained about the piece-
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meal fashion records were turned over such as records from JP Morgan etc. and unsigned tax 

returns.   See, Ben Brown emails on Production and missing TPP.3  

33. Tescher & Spallina did turn over 7,000+ ( seven-thousand ) plus pages Bate Stamped copies of 

alleged documents but these were copies on a Zip drive turned over to the Curator at least 

according to Spallina after Judge Colin orchestrated for them to have at least 10 months to 

create / fabricate/ forge, redact records and evidence after my original May 6, 2013 Emergency 

Motion4 to seize all Records was filed after a series of fraudulent documents were discovered in 

the Estate of my mother Shirley Bernstein. The Emergency Motion of May 2013 was 

incorporated by reference in my September 2013 Answer and Cross-Counter claims in this 

District Court where I specifically pleaded for Discovery5.    

34. Many of these documents were “fluff” pages where the actual Account Statements were 

missing, not in sequential order etc and where several instances of irregularities in the Bates 

Stamps numbers themselves exist.  

35. Further, that Ben Brown had claimed to have obtained IRS Certified Returns he ordered months 

earlier for Simon Bernstein as Curator in 2014 and then suddenly died at a young age of 50 after 

resigning as Curator and to this day, successor PR Brian O’Connell’s office has Never obtained 

or Disclosed such IRS records from Ben Brown or independently obtained these from the IRS 

despite claiming they had ordered them months ago upon his getting his Letters as these records 

are critical as shown herein, just another example of Discovery Abuse throughout this case 

justifying use of the All Writs Act, Anti-Injunction Act at this time.  
                                                 
3Ben Brown Emails Re TPP, JP Morgan and Production  
www.iviewit.tv/BenBrownEmailsForFedInjunctionBlakey.pdf  
4May 06, 2013 Emergency Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130506%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20Petition%20F
reeze%20Estates%20Orginal%20LOW.pdf  
5September 22, 2013 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130922%20Eliot%20Answer%20and%20Cross%
20Claim%20Northern%20District%20Illinois%20Simon%20v%20Heritage%20Jackson%20Insurance.pdf  
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36. Such records are critical for a variety of reasons and it is asserted such Discovery will help 

show the manipulation and frauds upon even this District Court by the core parties herein under 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

New Conflicts of Interest emerge showing prior Judge Colin with substantial business 
interests with La Salle Bank-Trust who should be added to the District Court action and 
further Undisclosed Conflicts with PR Brian O’Connell for the Simon Bernstein Estate 

who is already under this Court’s Jurisdiction  
37. New evidence has only recently been discovered in these last weeks January-February 2016 as a 

result of investigations by the Palm Beach Post and Investigative Reporter John Pacenti6 into 

conflicts of interest and improper seizing of persons and property under Guardianship / Probate 

programs run by Palm Beach Judges Martin Colin and David French7 in other cases also 

involving Brian O’Connell and a former attorney for Ted named John Pankauski alleging a host 

of criminal and civil misconduct, which have revealed Judicial Financial Disclosures of Judge 

Martin Colin demonstrating a long term financial business relationship during all relevant years 

herein and involving several hundred thousand dollars of Loans with LaSalle Bank / LaSalle 

Trust which were never Disclosed in the underlying Probate cases related herein. 

38. La Salle Bank -Trust and-or whoever is the proper “successor” is directly implicated in the 

actions presently before this federal Court where I have raised in Summary Judgement that La 

Salle should be added as a party and Discovery is needed with respect to the original Life 

Insurance policy on the breach of contract action as La Salle is named as the Primary 

                                                 
6 January 14, 2016 “Judge’s finances show history of unpaid debt, IRS liens, foreclosures” By John 
Pacenti - Palm Beach Post Staff Writer 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/news/news/judges-finances-show-history-of-unpaid-debt-irs-li/np4rH/  
7Guardianship Series - Guardianship a Broken Trust http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-
colin-savitt/  
and Guardianship Probate Series Palm Beach Post Compiled PDF 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Pacenti%20Articles%20Compiled%20as%20of%20Feb%2002%202016L.pdf (Large 
and Sun Sentinel re Colin and wife Savitt 
http://www.sun-sentinel.com/opinion/editorials/fl-editorial-guardianship-law-20160129-
story.html#ifrndnlocgoogle  
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Beneficiary of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy owned by deceased Simon Bernstein 

brought to this Court by the same operative parties who have conveniently left LaSalle out of 

these federal proceedings in the same manner I and my minor children were left out as 

necessary parties in the action before this federal court. See, Summary Judgement Eliot 

Bernstein8.  

39. I note that the carrier Jackson in this Court suggested that Bank of America was the proper 

“successor” in interest in this case and information shows Bank of America is the entity that 

acquired LaSalle Bank where Judge Colin is shown by his own Financial Disclosures to have 

hundreds of thousands in Loans with La Salle at least for years 2008 to the end of 2014 thus 

during all relevant times herein.  

40. In the recent weeks leading up to the present, a series of Investigative Journal articles have been 

published by the Palm Beach Post showing a widespread abuse in the Palm Beach Court system 

specifically involving Judge Martin Colin where allegations of Double-billing by “inside” law 

firms, the “taking” of Guardian’s Assets “prior to Court approval”, and Undisclosed conflicts 

of interest are alleged.  

41. The allegations by the Palm Beach Post are remarkably similar to claims I have made for years 

while orchestrated Discovery abuses have occurred from the first days after my father Simon 

Bernstein’s passing.  

“The savings of incapacitated seniors flow into the household of Palm Beach 
County Circuit Judge Martin Colin. This occurs courtesy of Colin’s wife — 
Elizabeth “Betsy” Savitt. She serves as a professional guardian, appointed by 
judges to make decisions for adults who no longer can take care of themselves. . . 
. . . . . . . Savitt has taken money from the elderly people whose lives she 
controls without first getting a judge’s approval as well as double-billed their 
accounts, a Palm Beach Post investigation has uncovered in court records. 

                                                 
820150608 Amended Redo Summary Judgement 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150608%20FINAL%20AMENDED%20REDO%2
0Response%20to%20Summary%20Judgement%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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Families of some of the seniors say the judge’s wife and her attorneys drum up 
unnecessary litigation that runs up fees, benefiting herself, the judge and her 
lawyers. Savitt doesn’t appear before her husband, but Judge Colin does oversee 
other guardianship cases where he is responsible for safeguarding the finances 
and well-being of these “wards” of the court. Colin’s colleague, Circuit Judge 
David French who lunches with him regularly, has overseen almost two-thirds of 
Savitt’s cases. Some lawyers who have opposed Savitt in Judge French’s 
courtroom say he didn’t disclose that Savitt is the wife of a fellow judge or his 
social connections to the couple. . . . . . . . .The lawyers Savitt has hired to 
represent her also practiced before her husband in other cases, where he had the 
power to approve their fees. A former Florida Supreme Court chief justice and a 
law professor say this constitutes, at minimum, an appearance of impropriety and 
should be investigated. 
“This conflict puts the whole courthouse under a cloud because it raises so many 
questions and there are no answers forthcoming. And that is why we have a 
judicial canon on the appearance of impropriety, so there are no questions like 
this,” Nova Southeastern law Professor Robert Jarvis said.” See,  

“His wife’s job as a professional guardian leaves Judge Colin compromised, 
handcuffing him from fully doing his job, The Post found. He’s recused himself 
from 115 cases that involve his wife’s lawyers in the last six months of 2015 
after The Post started asking questions in its investigation. 

“When you have a judge suddenly recuse himself of so many cases, it certainly 
sends up a red flag,” Jarvis said. “How did a judge allow himself to be put in 
such a position? I have never heard of a judge doing such a thing.” 

“Savitt often hires attorneys Hazeltine, Ellen Morris and John Pankauski  prolific 
practitioners in elder law. They or members of their firms practiced in front of 
Colin before he began recusing himself from their cases last year. From 2009 to 
2014, Colin’s recusals totaled 30. Since the beginning of July, he’s taken himself 
off 133 cases — 115 involving his wife’s lawyers. 

Hazeltine, Morris and Pankauski or their firms — as well as the guardians they 
represent — have had fees in non-Savitt cases repeatedly approved by Judge 
Colin, The Post found.” 

“Judge Colin and his wife have socialized with one of the judges she appears in 
front of regularly, The Post has learned. 

Colin and Circuit Judge David French eat lunch together nearly every day. Colin 
and French co-hosted a trivia night9 in May for the South Palm Beach Bar 
Association. The event was co-sponsored by Pankauski’s firm. French did not 
return repeated attempts for comment.10” 

                                                 
9 Trivia Night Invatation https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/2623271-trivia-night.html and 
http://www.bellersmith.com/blog/4th-annual-trivia-night  
10  February 02, 2016 Palm Beach Post Series “Guardianship a Broken Trust” by Reporter John Pacenti 
http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin/   
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http://www.mypalmbeachpost.com/guardianships-martin-colin  

42. In this case, BOTH Judges Colin and French were involved in the underlying Estates with Judge 

Colin “assigned” to the Shirley Bernstein case and Judge French originally “assigned” to the 

Estate of Simon Bernstein case and where later the French case was improperly assigned to 

Colin by Colin with no necessary hearing to transfer had by French, as it was scheduled on the 

day before Christmas when the court was closed, leaving Eliot and Candice at an empty court 

building and then when rescheduled Colin appeared in French’s stead and ruled for French to 

transfer the case to himself.  

43. In another blatant conflict, I consulted extensively with attorney Pankauski also mentioned in 

the Post articles as involved in cases with Judge Colin’s wife Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine 

regarding the estate and trust cases and was in the process of trying to raise a Retainer when 

Pankauski turned around and showed up at a Hearing with Ted Bernstein and continued to 

represent Ted Bernstein in front of Judge Colin for several months. Judge Colin had denied a 

motion to Disqualify attorney Pankauski written by attorney Peter Feaman, Pankauski being 

prominently mentioned above in the Palm Beach articles11.   

44. Even more important is that when I first filed my original May 6, 2015 “Emergency Motion” 

after first learning of the extensive Fraudulent documents being used in the Shirley Bernstein 

Estate case involving attorneys Tescher & Spallina and their paralegal Kimberly Moran, Judge 

Colin who was only “assigned” to Shirley Bernstein’s case simultaneously came in and Denied 

the Motion as an Emergency in both the Shirley Bernstein case and then “stepped over” to 

                                                 
11 June 23, 2014 Motion Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140623%20FINAL%20SINGED%20PRINTED%2
0Motion%20to%20Remove%20Rose%20Theodore%20and%20Pankauski%20Low.pdf  
and 
June 30, 2014 Motion to Remove Pankauski 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140630%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0MOTION%20TO%20REMOVE%20JOHN%20PANKAUSKI%20ESQ.pdf  
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Judge French’s case for Simon Bernstein and issued the Order denying this Motion12 as an 

Emergency in the Simon Bernstein case.  

45. Despite filing this Emergency Motion in May of 2013 in the State Probate Court in Florida to in 

part seize and obtain the DISCOVERY and DOCUMENTS in the case to be secured for 

forensic review, over 3.5 years later the Documents and Records and evidence have not been 

fully produced or seized or disclosed and to this day there are named Trusts in existing Trusts 

that I have never seen before and Trusts for my children created on the day my father died that I 

am being sued as Trustee of in the Shirley Trust case under which I have never seen nor have 

they ever been produced.   

46. This Emergency Motion of May 2013 was incorporated by reference into my Answer and 

Counterclaims13 filed with this US District Court in September of 2013 and the evidence and 

documents therein are necessary in aid of this Court’s jurisdiction and my counter-cross claims 

expressly plead for Discovery in this Court which is in jeopardy of being permanently lost from 

the actions of the State actors and courts.   

47. This relationship between Judge Colin and French and Judge Colin “stepping over” into Judge 

French’s case to Deny my Emergency is directly relevant to proceedings herein as it relates to 

when Judge Colin had “knowledge” that Simon Bernstein was Deceased which relates to the 

Fraud exposed in his court committed by Tescher & Spallina and their legal assistant and notary 

public Kimberly Moran with Ted Bernstein involved with Tescher & Spallina at all times 

relevant therein and Spallina and Tescher acting as his counsel in his alleged roles as fiduciary 

                                                 
12May 08, 2013 Order Denying Emergency in Simon Estate signed by wrong Judge Colin instead of 
French and Order Denying Emergency in Shirley Estate 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130508%20Order%20Denying%20Petition
%20and%20Amended%20Order%20Denying%20Petit.pdf 
13September 21, 2013 Answer and Cross Claim Illinois Federal Court Judge Amy St, Eve 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130921%20FINAL%20Eliot%20Answer%20Jack
son%20Natl%20Simon%20Estate%20Heritage%20Spallina188287%20HIGH.pdf  
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in Shirley’s estate and trust and also being big clients of each other, where Ted brought Spallina 

and Tescher to Simon Bernstein in order to secure life insurance clients in return from Tescher 

and Spallina.  

Undisclosed Conflicts of PR Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta involved in cases with 
Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and Savitt’s attorney Hazeltine at same time 

O’Connell is Recommended as Successor PR by Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman 

48. Recent records obtained as a result of the Palm Beach Post Investigation show that attorneys 

Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta where Brian O’Connell became appointed in the Simon 

Bernstein Estate as the new PR upon recommendation of Creditor William Stansbury’s attorney 

Peter Feaman on or around June of 2014 now show that Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta 

were involved in that same time frame with at least one case involving Judge Martin Colin’s 

wife Elizabeth Savitt and her attorney Hazeltine in the Probate Case of Albert Vasallo14,  CASE 

N0.:502014MH001432XXXXSB .  

49. Said conflicts of interest were never Disclosed by Judge Martin Colin, Brian O’Connell, Joielle 

Foglietta nor Creditor attorney Peter Feaman, Esq., IF Mr. Feaman knew of this which is 

presently unknown.   

50. As this District Court is or should be aware, attorney Brian O’Connell is under this Court’s 

jurisdiction having been granted Intervenor status in the Illinois Life Insurance Litigation on 

behalf of the Estate of Simon Bernstein.  

51. Yet instead of taking diligent action to secure and obtain Original records, documents, evidence 

and Discovery by Brian O’Connell which was Ordered by Judge Colin Feb. 18, 2014, and 

despite the issues in the Illinois litigation involving the “Missing” Trusts, “Missing” Insurance 

policies, and “Missing” business records that would or should show or lead to the truth of 

                                                 
14 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
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matters, the O’Connell office has sat silent obtaining virtually no Discovery and records while 

acting as PR, denying Eliot production requests and opposing motions for discovery and all the 

while stating he has been working on a voluminous production request to send from the day he 

was commissioned and which remains incomplete as of this day and never sent out to the 

parties.  

52. O’Connell also failed to do a court ordered inventorying of Simon’s office possessions at his 

office location and it was later learned that Ted had been evicted and was found loading trucks 

in the night by the landlord and nothing remains at that site and the items of Personal Property 

are now missing with Alan Rose turning over to O’Connell two boxes of plaques of Simon’s 

claiming that was all there was after 3 years that no one had ever inventoried his businesses, his 

computer files, records and personal properties for multiple companies.  I am aware of several 

items of personal property that are missing and were not inventoried that were in Simon’s 

office, including but not limited to, gifts from me and William Stansbury to Simon. 

53. Meanwhile, as shown in the Summary Judgment process before this Court, LaSalle Bank where 

it is now newly Discovered that Judge Colin has hundreds of thousands of dollars in business-

mortgage loans, was allegedly never contacted in the Life Insurance process despite being 

named as Primary Beneficiary all the while Judge Martin Colin “controlled” actions in the 

Probate Court somehow forcing Creditor William Stansbury to pay for the costs of Illinois 

litigation on behalf of the Estate, which could or should be a Conflict situation from the start, 

while simultaneously playing some “sham” of a game that Stansbury otherwise has no 

“Standing” to be in the Florida Probate cases and file petitions to remove Ted as an unqualified 

not validly serving trustee based on alleged criminal misconduct, major breaches of fiduciary 

duties and more.  
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54. A flurry of motions were filed in the State Court to discontinue William Stansbury’s obligation 

to pay for the Estate’s federal Illinois counsel and enter into a new “top-loaded” retainer by the 

Estate for the federal Illinois litigation right around the times this Court’s was about to hold a 

Scheduled conference reflective of some form of undisclosed “agreement” between the 

O’Connell firm, Peter Feaman, the Illinois counsel and likely Alan Rose-Ted Bernstein (again 

wholly excluding Eliot on any proposed settlements or other agreements) while the same 

attorneys were orchestrating other State Court proceedings so that a “Validity” Trial would 

proceed with no licensed attorney to challenge Alan Rose and Ted Bernstein despite the fact 

that Peter Feaman had written to O’Connell in Aug. 201415 advising him of his “absolute duty” 

to move the court to Remove Ted Bernstein as trustee for waste of assets, unaccounted for 

assets and other. See Feaman and O’Connell Motions on Payment of Illinois Litigation.  

55. Yet, attorney Feaman never took any follow-up with O’Connell to this date some 19 Months 

later and O’Connell failed to participate in an orchestrated “one-day” “Validity” trial on 

Simon’s Estate documents leaving the Estate without representation and failing to prosecute the 

already filed Answer to the Trust Construction/Validity Complaint  stating Ted Bernstein. was 

not a validly serving Trustee under the Simon Trust, as stated,  

“AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE 

1. First Affirmative Defense- Lack of Standing- Ted Bernstein lacks the 
requisite standing as he is not validly serving as Trustee of the Simon Trust, is 
not a beneficiary of the Simon Trust, and is not representing any minor child 
that is a beneficiary of the Simon Trust.16”  
 

                                                 
15 August 29, 2014, Feaman Letter to O’Connell Regarding Ted 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140829%20Feaman%20Stansbury%20Letter%2
0to%20Brian%20O'Connell.pdf  
16 February 17, 2015 O’Connell Answer Affirmative Defense Ted is not a validly serving Trustee 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150217%20Answer%20%20Affirmative%20Defe
nses%20O'Connell%20States%20Ted%20is%20NOT%20VALID%20TRUSTEE.pdf  
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56. Ted was allegedly appointed Successor Trustee by Spallina and Tescher after they resigned after 

admitting fraudulently altering a Shirley Trust that benefited Ted directly and while acting as 

Ted’s counsel and where the Shirley Trust Successor provision Tescher and Spallina drafted 

states that the Successor can not be related to the issuer Simon and where further the Trust 

states that TED IS PREDECEASED FOR ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 

TRUST.  

57. These facts alone fundamentally compromise and call into question the actions of the parties 

and attorneys before this US District Court justifying use of the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act injunctive powers and the Inherent Powers doctrine to at minimum Enjoin the 

parties and Florida case until Orderly proceedings and Conference and Inquiry made be made 

by this District Court.  

Discovery Abuse - Tescher & Spallina Records never properly turned over in excess of 2 
years with no action taken by O’Connell, Foglietta  

 

58.  Despite Judge Colin having actual knowledge of Fraud upon his Court involving Spallina and 

Tescher in the Shirley Bernstein case and having to have Actual knowledge that Simon 

Bernstein was Deceased at least as of May 2013 when Judge Colin “steps into” Judge French’s 

shoes to Deny my Emergency Motion in the Simon Bernstein case where Judge French was the 

assigned Judge, Judge Colin fails to Order for several months any Inquiry of the Attorneys and 

parties before his Court and denies further motions by Eliot Bernstein until finally it becomes 

known that Tescher & Spallina paralegal and employee Kimberly Moran is under investigation 

and has made admissions about the forgery and fraud17 and finally Orders a hearing for Sept. 

13, 2013.  

                                                 
17September 04, 2013 Motion to Freeze et al.  
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59. Yet the bulk of the Hearing is a sham where Judge Colin “dances” around the issue of when it 

becomes known that Simon Bernstein had been Deceased at the time the fraudulent filings were 

made, dances around who filed what and why and proceeds to let Robert Spallina off the hook 

from answering virtually any direct questions of his involvement in the fraud of using  

Deceased Simon Bernstein to act in the present to Close the Estate of Shirley Bernstein while 

simultaneously permitting Ted Bernstein to appear as a “Trustee” for Shirley Bernstein on this 

date. 

60. Yet Judge Colin had to have knowledge that Ted Bernstein knew of the Fraud or learned of the 

fraud since Ted Bernstein had not signed ANY Waiver prior to the April 9, 2012 date when 

Robert Spallina fraudulently creates a Petition for Discharge allegedly signed by Simon 

Bernstein on that date which could not have been possible or true since the Petition references 

Waivers being obtained as Signed Waivers that clearly that had not yet been signed (one not 

until after Simon passed) and Ted also knew that he had never notarized the Waiver that 

Kimberly Moran had fraudulently notarized and forged in his name and yet Judge Colin took no 

action to even inquire of Ted Bernstein and permits him to continue to act as “Trustee” and 

even after stating he had enough evidence of fraud to read Ted and his counsel Tescher and 

Spallina their Miranda Warnings at the first hearing, and then promotes Ted after to Personal 

Representative in the Shirley Estate which was reopened by Colin due to the fraud committed 

by Ted’s counsel and which fraud benefited Ted and his family directly.  Ted had been acting  

without Letters from the Court as PR at the time his mother’s estate was closed by his deceased 

father illegally and acting without letters from September 12, 2012 until October 2013 when 

Letters of Administration were issued and when he found out what his attorneys did in forging 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130904%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINT
ED%20FILED%20Motion%20to%20Freeze%20Estates%20of%20Shirley%20Due%20to%20Admitted%
20Notary%20Fraud.pdf  

Case: 1:13-cv-03643 Document #: 214 Filed: 02/24/16 Page 23 of 132 PageID #:3657

BATES NO. EIB 000750 
02/27/2017



Page 23 of 132 

and fraudulently notarizing documents and submitting them to the Court as part of a Fraud on 

the Court, Ted took no actions to report the matters or seize all pertinent and relevant 

documents for analysis and to this day claims never to have the original trusts and wills he 

operates under and that he did nothing to validate the authenticity of them.  See Dec. 15, 2015 

Transcript18. 

61. Ted is close personal friends and business associates with Tescher and Spallina who brought his 

counsel Tescher and Spallina into the Bernstein family in order to get insurance business clients 

from them.  

62. Yet all of this begs the question and should have forced Judge Colin to question that IF Ted 

Bernstein was in Fact the Trustee and PR of Shirley’s Estate after Simon Bernstein passed 

shown by some proper Original operative document, then Why wasn’t Ted Bernstein acting 

after Simon passed with the Tescher Spallina firm to “close” the Estate or take whatever action 

was necessary instead of fraudulently using Deceased Simon Bernstein on documents to do so?  

63. It is noted for this US District Court that on or about Nov. 5, 2012, the same day an Ex Parte 

communication from Judge Colin is memorialized to attorney Robert Spallina’s office regarding 

filings in the Shirley Bernstein Estate, my attorney Christine Yates was attempting to get 

Documents from Robert Spallina’s Office relating to the Trusts, Wills, standard documents that 

Beneficiaries are entitled to19 yet Christine Yates is told by Spallina’s Office that there was no 

Bernstein case or client?  

                                                 
18 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
19November 06, 2012 Christine Yates Letter Stating Spallina claimed he did not know Bernstein despite 
several months of meetings with Bernstein family. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121106%20Yates%20letter%20re%20Spallina%
20claiming%20he%20does%20not%20know%20Bernstein.pdf  
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64. It is noted for this US District Court that this is an ongoing pattern and practice to deny me Eliot 

Bernstein and my children Counsel of our choice as each time I have had an attorney such as 

Yates there is Discovery Abuse in getting documents to review and handle the case with Yates 

being so bullied by the Spallina office that she later resigned or where such as Pankauski I end 

up consulting with an attorney that ends up working for and with Ted Bernstein or as with 

Branden Pratt who attends an evidentiary hearing regarding the fraudulent documents of Moran 

and states he and others do not want to put Moran on the stand despite her being present as they 

did not want to throw her under the bus, the exact opposite strategy Pratt had recommended 

immediately prior to and in preparation for the hearing.  

65. A similar event happened with Steven Lessne himself who is now pursuing a Guardianship 

against me with Alan Rose before Judge Phillips on February 25, 2016 at 3:15pm where Lessne 

obtained confidential valuable information from myself when we first spoke without fully 

disclosing who he was really working for and in fact concealing and lying about his 

representation of my family and ended up being counsel to Janet Craig, Manager of BFR for 

Oppenheimer and Trustee for the children’s trusts, all of these attorneys whom should be added 

to the District Court case on an amended complaint for good and just cause.  

66. That part of the improper basis for Guardianship itself is the fact that I have refused for myself 

and children to take funds which are Part of a Fraud such as funds from the sale of the Shirley 

Condo when Ted Bernstein had not been approved as any Trustee at the time of sale and not 

only had Original documents never been turned over but no proper Validity hearing had ever 

occurred and still has never occurred and thus imposed reasonable conditions on any funds that 

I would accept that neither I nor my children would be immersed in nor further fraud nor would 

we be liable as a result for accepting such funds. Yet for this type of action the parties are now 
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trying to take further control and block me off from Any ability to file and get Discovery by 

seeking a Guardianship and denying me standing and attempting to now claim I am not a 

beneficiary with no hearings to determine such and where I am clearly a beneficiary in the 

Shirley IRREVOCABLE Trust.   

67. This Ex Parte Communication of Nov. 5, 2012 was somehow not Docketed with Judge Colin’s 

Court until Nov. 6, 2012 as prominently noted in my May 2015 Motion for Mandatory 

Disqualification of Judge Colin20 and voiding of his Orders in part due to Fraud On and Fraud 

By his court, which was denied as legally insufficient by Colin but then leading to the sua 

sponte “Recusal” within 24 hours that further entails Judge Colin “steering” the Transfer and 

Re-Assignment of the case to the North Branch of Palm Beach County after his recusal.  

68. As shown in the mandatory Disqualification Motion against Judge Colin, Colin had proceeded 

for 2 years since my original May 2013 Emergency Motion, never holding Validity hearings, 

never requiring Accountings which to this day have never occurred in the Shirley Bernstein case 

and are incomplete missing years of accounting in Simon, never addressing Ted Bernstein’s 

involvement and knowledge  in the Tescher Spallina frauds while meanwhile using what now 

appears as the Standard Modus Operandi by attempting to “Force” me to take Distributions 

from the improper Sale of Shirley’s Condo sold by Ted Bernstein even before the Sept. 2013 

hearing, thus the standard M.O. of “taking” and “disposing” of the assets first, then trying to 

retroactively “approve” by Court order.  This occurred even where what is claimed as the 

Shirley Bernstein Trust specifically states that Ted is considered PREDECEASED FOR ALL 

PURPOSES OF DISPOSITIONS of the trust.  

                                                 
20 May 14, 2015 Mandatory Disqualification Motion Judge Martin Colin 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150514%20FINAL%20Motion%20for
%20Disqualification%20Colin%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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69. I thereafter filed a Petition for All Writs in the nature of Prohibition and Mandamus21 about 

these actions of Judge Colin in improperly “steering” the case as a Material Fact Witness and 

Potential Counter Defendant which ultimately lead to the case going to one Judge Coates who 

not only happened to be a former Proskauer Rose partner but later file review shows that as a 

Proskauer Partner Coates himself had “Billed22” as part of the original Iviewit - Proskauer 

“Billing case before Judge Labarga” whereby Coates billed to Eliot’s companies for time 

relating to SEC work after learning the Iviewit technologies had been deemed the “Holy Grail” 

and “Priceless” worth billions upon billions of dollars, claimed by by leading engineers at a 

company, Real 3D, Inc. (Intel, Lockheed and Silicon Graphics owned) that Proskauer 

introduced Iviewit to for a technology review.  

70. Before this, however, several more months passed by after Colin held the sham Sept. 2013 

hearings knowing of serious fraud in his court where six counts of forgery occur where Tescher 

& Spallina are allowed by Colin to remain in Custody and Control of all of the Documents, 

Originals, Evidence of Simon and Shirley Bernstein after Spallina claimed in the September 13, 

2013 hearing that he knew of no other frauds in the estates and trusts than the forgeries and 

fraudulent notarizations that Moran did.  

                                                 
21 ORIGINAL ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf   
REDO OF ALL WRITS 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%20Writs%2
0Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20D
isqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
22 Judge Coates Billing Iviewit as Proskauer Rose Partner for Securities Work and Estate Planning of 
Stock 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Coates%20Billing%20Iviewit%20Holdings%20as%2
0Proskauer%20Partner%20on%20Iviewit%20Clean.pdf  
and  
Proskauer notes referring to Coates involvement with Iviewit 
www.iviewit.tv/ProskauerCoatesTriggs.pdf  
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71. Yet Spallina concealed from the Hearing Record on Sept. 13, 2013  other frauds he had done 

and that were later admitted to by Spallina to the Palm Beach Sheriff’s23 where he admits 

having fraudulently altered Shirley’s Trust to benefit Ted’s family and for months moved the 

court and retaliated against Eliot in pleading after pleading and finally under PBSO 

investigation admitted his felony alteration and creation of a Fraudulent Shirley Trust.   

72. Despite having admitted to fraudulently altering a Trust document and being directly involved 

with fraudulent documents filed in the Estate of Shirley Bernstein before Judge Colin through 

his law firm, ultimately in January of 2014 Judge Colin simply lets Tescher & Spallna “resign” 

after they admitted to the Bernstein family that they had fraudulently altered the Shirley Trust 

document and mailed it to Eliot’s minor children’s counsel24 (making fraudulent changes to 

include Ted’s children as beneficiaries despite Ted and his lineal descendants being considered 

Predeceased for all purposes of the Shirley Trust) . 

73. On February 18, 2014 Judge Colin issues an Order for Tescher & Spallina as follows: “By 

March 4, 2014 the resigning co-Personal Representatives shall deliver to the successor 

fiduciary all property of the Estate, real, personal, tangible or intangible, all of the documents 

and records of the Estate and all records associated with any property of the Estate, 

                                                 
23 PBSO Sheriff Report Page 1-8 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140912%20Sheriff%20and%20Coroner%20Repo
rts.pdf 
24 Attorney Christine Yates, Esq. of Tripp Scott had to be hired by Eliot to get Estate and Trust 
Documents from Tescher and Spallina due to their refusal to give such documents to Beneficiaries or 
Interested Parties from day one and when they were finally forced months later by Yates to turn over 
records they sent documents that have been proven and admitted to be forged and fraudulently 
notarized by their offices and some of those submitted to the Florida probate court as part of an 
elaborate fraud on the court to seize Dominion and Control of the Estates and Trusts of Simon and 
Shirley, fraudulently alter documents and begin to loot the estates of millions upon millions of dollars, in 
complex legal frauds and all the while refusing documents, losing documents, stealing documents from 
the estate, no transparency and no accountings.  . 
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regardless of whether such property has been previously distributed, transferred, abandoned, 

or otherwise disposed of.” ( emphasis added ) See, Feb. 18, 2014 Order of Judge Colin25.    

74. It is clear from the Vasallo records herein26 that Brian O’Connell was already working closely 

with Judge Colin’s wife Elizabeth Savitt and attorney Hazeltine by the time Brian O’Connell 

was appointed successor PR by Judge Colin over Simon Bernstein’s Estate in July of 2014 or at 

least on or about the same time. 

O’Connell, Foglietta Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses intertwined with Alan Rose 
and Steven Lessne, also Disqualified as Material Fact Witnesses; Intertwined with 

Spallina, Colin fraud and the Stanford Ponzi fraud; Orchestration to avoid Discovery and 
Original Documents before Judge Phillips 

75. It is clear that compliance with the Feb. 2014 Order against Tescher & Spallina was never 

determined by the time O’Connell was appointed as PR and to this very day there still has been 

no Compliance hearing on this Discovery tantamount to continuing Discovery Abuse and 

Discovery as a Weapon justifying exercise of powers under the All Writs Act and Anti-

Injunction Act.  

76. I have made and filed multiple requests for Discovery27 and production throughout the Florida 

State Court litigation which has been denied to such an extent as to be Abuse of Discovery. 

                                                 
25February 18, 2014 Order Judge Colin Tescher and Spallina to turn over ALL records. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20PETITION%20F
OR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP004391XXXXSB%20SIMO
N.pdf  
26 Palm Beach Post Articles and Court Filings Posted re Vassallo case. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Vassallo%20Case%20Palm%20Beach%20Post%2
0O'Connell%20Savitt%20Pankauski.pdf  
27November 01, 2013 Production Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEINS%20FIRST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20AND%20THINGS%20PROP
OUNDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20S%20%20BERNSTEIN.pdf 
and 
November 01, 2013 Interrogatories Request 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20131101%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN%92S%20FI
RST%20SET%20OF%20INTERROGATORIES%20PRPONDED%20ON%20THEODORE%20BERNST
EIN.pdf  
and 
May 12, 2014 Production Request Benjamin Brown Curator 
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While the proceedings before this US District Court were in essentially a hold pattern with the 

submissions of the Summary Judgement motions and while my Petition for All Writs at the 

Florida Supreme Court was pending regarding Judge Colin as a Necessary and Material Fact 

witness which further sought a Stay by the Florida Supreme Court and preservation of evidence, 

documents and discovery, after Judge Coates who worked at Proskauer and had billed Iviewit 

on SEC matters Recused from the Florida case after the improper Transfer from Colin whereby 

he gained confidential court records while initially denying he had conflicts or knew of Eliot or 

Iviewit, the case was then assigned to the current Probate Judge John Phillips.  

77. The Petition for All Writs28 at the Florida Supreme Court further brought up for review the very 

process by which Judge Colin “poisoned” the transfer and steered the case to the North Branch 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140512%20ELIOT%20BERNSTEIN'S%20FffiST
%20REQUEST%20FOR%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUMENTS%20BENJAMIN%20BROWN.pdf  
and 
January 20, 2015 Motion for Production from Brian O’Connell 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150120%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Request%20for%20Production%20Brian%20O'Connell%20ECF%20COPY.pdf  
and 
February 27, 2015 Motion in Opposition to Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150227%20Motion%20in%20Opposition%20to%
20PR%20Motion%20to%20Strike%20Production%20ECF%20Copy.pdf  
and 
November 09, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. request to Spallina and Tescher for Production 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20120909%20Letter%20Yates%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Information%20Request.pdf 
and 
December 21, 2012 Christine Yates, Esq. to Spallina 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20121221%20Yates%20Letter%20to%20Spallina%
20re%20Simon%20Shirley%20Estate%20info.pdf  
and 
June 13, 2013 Letter Marc Garber, Esq. to Christine Yates re Spallina and Tescher 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130613%20Marc%20Garber%20Letter%20re%2
0Christine%20Yates%20termination%20Spallina%20etc.pdf  
28 June 10, 2015 All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150609%20FINAL%20All%20Writs%20Mandam
us%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Martin%20Colin%20Disqualifica
tionECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
and 
July 01, 2015 Amended All Writ Filed with the Florida Supreme Court @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150630%20FINAL%20REDO%20All%2
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in his Sua Sponte Recusal29 just one day after denying a Mandatory Disqualification based in 

part on Fraud on the Court and Fraud by the Court.  

78. Joielle Foglietta of the O’Connell firm then filed for a Status Conference30 which was held on 

July 15, 2015 during which time I raised the pending Writ with Judge Phillips who indicated 

twice on the record I would “be heard” on this at the next appearance.  

79. While I had written to Joielle Foglietta by email to ascertain the proposed Schedule of 

proceedings, none was forthcoming however the O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta team filed for 

a Case Management Conference in the SIMON Bernstein Case which was scheduled and held 

Sept. 15, 2015.  

80. After close of business hours on the Eve of the Conference, attorney Alan Rose on behalf of 

Ted Bernstein submitted a filing seeking to co-opt the Conference and impose a Guardianship 

on me before Judge Phillips at that time without disclosing that hearings had already been held 

and even Judge Colin had denied this repeated demand for guardians, contempt hearings, 

requests for gag orders and arrest of Eliot.  

81. As shown by the Transcript of Conference of Sept. 15, 2015 and my subsequent Motions for 

Mandatory Disqualification of Judge Phillips, Phillips fundamentally denied me a Due Process 

Opportunity to be heard on this day despite saying my Writ application would be addressed 

cutting me off at each attempt to be heard yet allowing Alan Rose to begin moving Judge 

Phillips to schedule a Trial in the Shirley Bernstein case which was NOT Noticed for the 

Conference that day and ultimately Judge Phillips Ordered a Pre-determined, prejudged “One-
                                                                                                                                                         
0Writs%20Mandamus%20Prohibition%20and%20Restraining%20Order%20Stay%20re%20Ma
rtin%20Colin%20Disqualification%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf 
29May 19, 2015 Colin Sua Sponte Recusal and Steering of the Cases 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150519%20Colin%20Recusals%20Clerk%20Rea
ssigns.pdf  
30August 03, 2015 Case Management Conference Notice of Hearing in SIMON ESTATE ONLY  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150803%20Notice%20of%20Hearing%20for%20
Sept%2015%202015%20930am%20Case%20Management.pdf  
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day” Validity Trial for Dec. 15, 2015 in a case not even Noticed for Conference that day. See 

Sept. 15, 2015 Transcript31.  

82. Licensed attorneys O’Connell acting as PR for Simon’s estate, Foglietta and Creditor attorney 

Peter Feaman sat by idly watching as this occurred without raising any questions on Discovery, 

production or standard pre-trial issues as the record reflects they barely said a word at a hearing 

both have vested interest in.   

83. It should be noted that this occurred after Judge Phillips “pre-judged” any matters relating to 

Judge Colin expressing his “love” for Judge Colin on the Record and his friendships with all the 

attorneys and stating I was the only one he knew nothing of in an angry tone and indicating he 

would not find Colin had done anything wrong without even having the Due process 

Opportunity to make or state a case while falsely representing he had no powers to do so when 

Florida law allows for prior Orders to be vacated. See, Transcript of Case Management 

Conference Sept. 15, 201532.  

84. Florida Rules of Civil Procedure provide in part:  

RULE 1.200. PRETRIAL PROCEDURE (a) Case Management Conference. At 
any time after responsive pleadings or motions are due, the court may order, or a 
party, by serving a notice, may convene, a case management conference. The 
matter to be considered shall be specified in the order or notice setting the 
conference. At such a conference the court may: (1) schedule or reschedule the 
service of motions, pleadings, and other papers; (2) set or reset the time of trials, 
subject to rule 1.440(c); (3) coordinate the progress of the action if the complex 
litigation factors contained in rule 1.201(a)(2)(A)–(a)(2)(H) are present; (4) limit, 
schedule, order, or expedite discovery; (5) consider the possibility of obtaining 
admissions of fact and voluntary exchange of documents and electronically stored 
information, and stipulations regarding authenticity of documents and 
electronically stored information; (6) consider the need for advance rulings from 

                                                 
31 September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
32September 15, 2015 Judge Phillips Status Conference Transcript 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150915%20Judge%20Phillips%20Hearing%20Tr
anscript%20-%20Estate%20of%20%20Simon%20Bernstein.pdf  
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the court on the admissibility of documents and electronically stored information; 
(7) discuss as to electronically stored information, the possibility of agreements 
from the parties regarding the extent to which such evidence should be preserved, 
the form in which such evidence should be produced, and whether discovery of 
such information should be conducted in phases or limited to particular 
individuals, time periods, or sources; (8) schedule disclosure of expert witnesses 
and the discovery of facts known and opinions held by such experts; (9) schedule 
or hear motions in limine; (10) pursue the possibilities of settlement; March 16, 
2015 Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 36 (11) require filing of preliminary 
stipulations if issues can be narrowed; (12) consider referring issues to a 
magistrate for findings of fact; and (13) schedule other conferences or determine 
other matters that may aid in the disposition of the action.  
 

85. Yet, despite knowing that this Rule provides, “The matter to be considered shall be specified in 

the order or notice setting the conference”, licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta and 

Feaman took no action during or after to correct the pre-judged “one day” Validity Trial 

scheduled in the wrong case, Shirley Bernstein, which was Not noticed for Conference on this 

date.  

86. Such attorneys further took No Action to raise DISCOVERY COMPLIANCE prior to to the 

Trial despite the outstanding Order of Judge Colin of Feb. 2014 nor was I allowed a Due 

Process opportunity to raise Discovery issues, the need for Experts due to the fraud already 

determined in dispositive documents nor the need for a longer trial period based upon multiple 

Witnesses needed nor the need for Pre-Trial Depositions and the record will reflect that as I 

tried to make claims I was rudely shut down repeatedly by rude and angry Judge Phillips.  

87. To backtrack slightly which shows the continuing pattern of Discovery Abuse in the State 

Court, by the time of the Sept. 13, 2013 Hearing33 after the fraud and forgeries in Judge Colin’s 

Court were Discovered, over 3 Years Ago now Judge Colin had been notified on the Record 

during that Sept. 2013 hearing that as of a Year After my father Simon Bernstein passed away I 

                                                 
33 September 13, 2013 (one year to the date of Simon’s passing Colin Hearing 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20130913%20TRANSCRIPT%20Emergency%20H
earing%20Colin%20Spallina%20Tescher%20Ted%20Manceri.pdf  
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still had NO proper Documents on the Trusts and Wills  including the Oppenheimer Trusts yet 

attorney Steven Lessne is now seeking a Guardianship against me before Phillips even though 

Lessne represents Oppenheimer who is a “Resigned” Trustee with no standing.  I notified Judge 

Colin on the Record  as follows from the September 13, 2013 hearing footnoted herein:  

Page 06 
12 THE COURT: Okay. So the bills that they 
13 were paying for you were what bills? 
14 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
15 THE COURT: All the bills. 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Health insurance, 
17 electricity, water, food, clothing, everything, 
18 100�percent. 
19 THE COURT: When did the emergency take 
20 place? 
21 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: On August 28th. 
22 They told me if I didn't sign releases that 
23 Robert wanted me to sign and turn the money 
24 over to my brother, the remaining corpus of the 
25 trust, that they were going to shut the funds 
Page 7 
1 off as of that day. 
2 THE COURT: And they did? 
3 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: I'm not 100�percent 
4 sure, because then I asked them for their 
5 operating documents that Mr. Spallina had sent 
6 them, and once again we've got un�notarized 
7 documents �� 
8 THE COURT: We'll talk about the notary 
9 thing in a second. 
10 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay. Then we have 
11 new improperly notarized documents authorizing 
12 the trust to operate, and they sent me 
13 incomplete documents which are unsigned on 
14 every page of the trust agreement, so they're 
15 telling me and I've asked them three times if 
16 they have signed copies and three times they've 
17 sent me unsigned copies. 
18 THE COURT: Okay, but what bills today �� 
19 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: All of them. 
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88. Previously in this Hearing Judge Colin is further shown how Spallina was Not Notifying certain 

banks such as Legacy that Simon Bernstein had passed away and is “moving” funds around 

from different accounts as follows;  

Page 05 
13 THE COURT: Okay. So tell me how that �� 
14 what evidence is there that this is an 
15 emergency along those lines? 
16 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Okay, the estate 
17 representatives when my parents died told us 
18 that they were understanding the special 
19 circumstances me and my three children are in, 
20 and that funds had been set aside and not to 
21 worry, there would be no delay of paying their 
22 living costs and everything that my father and 
23 mother had been paying for years to take care 
24 of them, and then they were paying that out of 
25 a bank account at Legacy Bank. 
1 THE COURT: Who is they? 
2 MR. ELIOT BERNSTEIN: Mr. Spallina had 
3 directed Rachel Walker to pay the expenses of a 
4 Legacy bank account. It was being paid. And 
5 then Mr. Spallina stated that I should or that 
6 Rachel should �� she was fired, she should now 
7 turn the accounts over to my wife to start 
8 writing checks out of an account we've never 
9 seen. 
10 So I said I didn't feel comfortable 
11 writing checks out of an account, especially 
12 where it appeared my dad was the signer, so I 
13 called Legacy Bank with Rachel and they were 
14 completely blown away that checks had been 
15 being written out of a dead person's account. 
16 Nobody had notified them that Simon had 
17 deceased. And that no �� by under no means 
18 shall I write checks out of that account, and 
19 so then Mr. Spallina told me to turn the 
20 accounts over to Janet Craig of Oppenheimer, 
21 and Oppenheimer was going to pay the bills as 
22 it had been done by Rachel in the past. And so 
23 we sent her the Legacy account. We thought all 
24 that was how things were being done and, you 
25 know, he doesn't give us any documents 
1 whatsoever in the estate, so we don't know, you 
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2 know, what he's operating out of, but 
3 Oppenheimer then started to pay the things �� 
4 first they said, wait a minute, these are 
5 school trust funds �� well, they actually said 
6 that after they started paying, and they were a 
Page 06 
7 little hesitant that these funds were being 
8 used for personal living expenses of everybody, 
9 which the other Legacy account had been paying 
10 for through an agreement between and my 
11 parents. And then what happened was 
12 Mr. Spallina directed them to continue, stating 
13 he would replenish and replace the funds if he 
14 didn't get these other trusts he was in the 
15 process of creating for my children in place 
16 and use that money he would replenish and 
17 replace it. 
18 So the other week or two weeks or a few 
19 week ago Janet Craig said that funds are 
20 running low and she contacted Mr. Spallina who 
21 told her that he's not putting any money into 
22 those trusts and that there's nothing there for 
23 me, and that basically when that money runs out 
24 the kids' insurance, school, their home 
25 electricity and everything else I would 
1 consider an emergency for three minor children 
2 will be cut off, and that was not �� 

 

STEVEN LESSNE DISQUALIFIED AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS 

89. Thus it is clear that the Oppenheimer Trusts are just another set of Trusts and Documents and 

evidence where Discovery Abuse has occurred and huge delays in getting Any proper Operative 

documents has occurred which continues to this day, yet Lessne is moving for Guardianship 

against me before Phillips for a second time after law of the case was established in virtually an 

identical filing whereby Guardianship was denied and it was determined that after Lessne 

finished an accounting, if the Successor Trustee wanted to bring such charges they could but 

that he had no standing.   
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90. Mr. Lessne becomes a Material Fact Witness in the Chain of Custody of documents and 

Originals involving various Trusts and what the Trusts should say or provide where he claims as 

an Attorney in a sworn Filing before Judge Colin filed June 20, 2014 as follows:  

“Oppenheimer's Appointment, Service and Resignation As Trustee  
5. Gerald R. Lewin was the initial trustee of the Trusts. 6. On September 5, 2007,  
Mr. Lewin resigned as trustee and appointed Stanford Trust Company as his successor 
pursuant to Section 5 .3 of the Trusts. “ 
Lessne filing June 20, 201434.  
 

91. This sworn Statement, however, is contradicted by Multiple other documents and filings herein, 

however, demonstrating exactly why Injunctive relief for preservation and Orderly Production 

of Discovery is Necessary for this US District Court in furtherance of its jurisdiction.  

92. In what was Allegedly Filed in the Palm Beach County Courthouse by Robert Spallina claimed 

to be filed on July 7, 2010 is an alleged Petition to Appoint Successor Trustee dated June 18, 

201035 which claims one TRACI KRATISH and not Gerry Lewin as Lessne claims was the 

TRUSTEE of the Children’s Trusts who allegedly Resigned Sept. 12, 2007 whereupon it claims 

the STANFORD TRUST took over and then purports to be a Petition of me and my wife 

Candice authorizing OPPENHEIMER to take over as Trustee from Stanford yet this document 

appears to have Robert Spallina’s signature on it yet where my wife and Candice Bernstein have 

Reported this Document as Fraud and a Forgery to the Court and Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 

as not only had we never signed this document but had never even met Robert Spallina as of 

2010 and this was Reported to Judge Colin during the June 2014 hearings with Oppenheimer 

                                                 
34June 20, 2014 Oppenheimer Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140620%20Oppenheimer%20v.%20Eliot%20Can
dice%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20Daniel%20Case%20No%20502104cp00281xxxxsb%20Summon
s%20and%20Complaint%20Eliot%20Service%20Low.pdf  
35June 19, 2010 Petition 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20100619AllegedForgedEliotCandicePetitiontoAppo
intSuccessorTrusteeJoshuaJacobandDaniel.pdf  
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and Lessne, yet fell on deaf ears.  See, Petition under Spallina’s Signature in 2010 alleged as 

Fraud to Palm Beach Sheriff and Court  by Eliot and Candice Bernstein.  

93. Thus Lessne is a material fact witness as to who the Real Trustee is and what the operative 

documents actually say.  

94. Further, there is a significant issue as to whether Trusts were Transferred from Oppenheimer to 

JP Morgan where Lessne, Oppenheimer and Janet Craig of Oppenheimer all should be 

witnesses thus making the Discovery Abuse as a Weapon even more harmful since there is 

never any clear, orderly picture of what is taking place when and by who.  

ALAN ROSE AS MATERIAL FACT WITNESS  

95. To further complicate the frauds in what should make Alan Rose a Material Fact Witness, in 

May of 2015 Alan Rose magically comes out with an alleged ORIGINAL of the Trusts which 

he allegedly “Finds” left at the 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca Raton, Fl St. Andrew’s Home of 

Simon Bernstein after his passing yet by this point in time the ENTIRETY of the St. Andrews’s 

Home had already been Seized and Inventoried by Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta’s 

Offices as of March 2015, several months before and before that by Benjamin Brown the 

Curator.  

96. Alan Rose somehow amazingly tries to claim after allegedly finding and removing from the 

Estate without authorization from O’Connell who has custody over them, 3 “Originals” of my 

Children’s Trusts that somehow these were Unimportant and Discounted and “Overlooked” by 

the O’Connell Foglietta team who are fully aware of the problems with the trusts in the 

Oppenheimer case and who Already had allegedly Fully Inventoried and seized Custody of all 

these items at the St. Andrews Home in March 2015 two months before in a case where 
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substantial Document fraud had already been demonstrated and Discovery abuses going on 

continually, Emailing on May, 20, 201536 as follows:  

From: Alan Rose [mailto:ARose@mrachek-law.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2015 2:14 PM 
To: Lessne, Steven; Eliot Ivan Bernstein; Eliot Ivan Bernstein 
Cc: Ted Bernstein; O'Connell, Brian M.; Foglietta, Joy A 
Subject: Original signed "Oppenheimer" Trusts 
  
Mr. Lessne and Mr. Eliot Bernstein: 
  
I am writing to advise that we located some files in drawers in Simon’s private office in 
his home at Lions Head, as we were trying to assess the complexity of things that must 
happen between now and the closing of Lions Head.  My primary reason was to visually 
inspect  the  three chandeliers  that have been  the subject of PR emails  in  the past  few 
days. 
  
In  any  event,  and  although  these  files  likely  were  examined  and  discounted  as 
unimportant by the PRs after Simon’s death and likely meant nothing if and when they 
were  catalogued  or  viewed  during  the  O’Connell  as  PR  re‐appraisal/re‐inspection,  I 
noticed a folder marked as the jake bernstein trust.   Looking more closely, there were 
three green folders labeled with Eliot’s childrens names and inside are what appear to 
be the original signed Irrevocable Trust Agreements for the Trusts which Oppenheimer 
formerly  served.  These  may  be  relevant  or  important  to  the  ongoing  Oppenheimer 
case,  so  I  bring  them  to  your  attention.    There  also  are  what  appears  to  some  tax 
returns and Stanford Account Statements.  Simply because I have attended some of the 
Oppenheimer hearings, I understand that Eliot claims at least one of the Trusts does not 
exist.    As  an  officer  of  the  court,  and  because  these  may  be  relevant,  I  have  taken 
temporary custody of  the documents.    I will hold  them pending  joint  instructions or a 
court  order,  but  would  prefer  to  deliver  them  to  Steve  Lessne  as  Oppenheimer’s 
counsel.  These have no economic value and have no bearing on the estate, so I doubt 
Brian O’Connell would want them, but  I did not want to see them lost or discarded  in 
the impending move.  To facilitate your review, I have scanned the first and last page of 
each trust, and scanned the first page of the ancillary documents, and attach that in .pdf 
format.  
  
I am sure that people have looked through these files before, and there did not appear 
to be anything else of significance.  (I did notice a few folders with other grandchildrens 
names,  not  Eliot’s  kids,  but  left  those  papers  in  place  because  I  understand  that 
everyone  except  Eliot  has  fully  cooperated  with  Oppenheimer  in  resolving  these 
matters.) 

                                                 
36May 20, 2015 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter re Finding New Documents and removing them illegally from 
Simon’s Estate and whereby the records were in the custody of Brian O’Connell at that time and Rose 
took them from the Estate without authorization. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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I also have had occasion to re‐look through a small box of trust documents which I have 
been holding, which came from  Simon’s former work office.  Inside file folders in a desk 
drawer, Simon retained duplicate originals of the trust agreements relevant to my cases.  
When  I  was  looking  to  reexamine  these  documents  –  duplicate  originals  of  the  2008 
Trusts and the 2012 Trust (the true originals remain with Tescher & Spallina who drafted 
them)  –  I  noticed  a  copy  of  the  three  separate  irrevocable  trust  documents.    Again, 
these would not have caught my eye originally because I would have never guessed that 
Eliot would claim the trusts were not valid.  I only recently had occasion to notice these 
in looking for the duplicate trust originals for Simon and Shirley.  The three Irrevocable 
Trusts appear to be signed and witnessed on page 17, but the individual pages are not 
initialed.  Again, these were only copies, but now having looked at the originals included 
in the attached scan, I note (although not a handwriting expert) that the attached copies 
appear to be absolutely identical to the originals just found in Simon’s personal office. 
  
These copies include IRS forms under which Traci Kratish PA, as Trustee appears to have 
applied  for  and  obtained  a  Taxpayer  ID  number  for  each  trust,  and  obviously  she 
provided these to Simon.  Each of the Trust documents is signed by Simon Bernstein, as 
Settlor, and by Traci Kratish PA as the initial Trustee, and the signatures are witnessed 
by  two  people.    Simon’s  is  witnessed  by  Jocelyn  Johnson  and  someone  else.    I  am 
advised  that  Jocelyn  was  an  employee  of  Simon’s,  as  presumably  was  the  second 
witness  and  also  the  initial  Trustee,  Traci  Kratish,  who  was  in  house  counsel  for  the 
companies Simon owned part of. 
  
Although  this  was  long  before  any  involvement  on my  part,  Traci  Kratish  appears  to 
have been the initial trustee (there is a typo elsewhere naming Steven Greenwald).   I do 
not  know  Steven  Greenwald,  but  I  have  confirmed  that  that  these  trusts  were  not 
created by Tescher & Spallina.  If they had been, I’m sure they would have retained the 
original and given Simon duplicate originals as they did for all of the trust documents for 
the 2008 and 2012 Trusts  they prepared.    I do not know  if Greenwald prepared these 
and made a typo leaving his name on a later section, or if Kratish prepared these from a 
boilerplate Greenwald form and made the typo.  Either way, and it does not matter to 
me, the fact that this was a simple and ordinary typo should be obvious to all. 
  
Eventually,  Traci  Kratish  left  the  employ  as  the  in‐house  counsel  for  the  companies.  
Sometime before or  at  the  time of her  leaving,  she  resigned and appointed  someone 
else,  and  eventually  these  trusts  accounts  along with  similar  trusts  for  Simon’s  other 
seven  grandchildren  and much  of  Simon’s  personal wealth,  were moved  to  Stanford.  
After Stanford’s collapse amid word that it was a Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon lost upwards of 
$2 million of his own funds in the Ponzi scheme ‐‐ Simon directed the transfer of the his 
and these trust accounts to Oppenheimer.  Simon selected Oppenheimer; paid Tescher’s 
firm to do the necessary documents to appoint Oppenheimer as successor trustee; took 
the documents  from Tescher  and had  them  signed  by  all  children,  including  Eliot  and 
Candice; and returned the documents to Tescher for filing.   I presume that Simon paid 
all  of  these  legal  fees,  because  that  is  the  right  thing  to  do  from  an  estate  planning 
strategy and as a favor to his grandkids.    I now have seen copies of the filed Petitions, 
and again without being a handwriting expert, it certainly looks like Eliot’s and Candice’s 
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signature on them, regardless of whether they had ever met Tescher or Spallina before 
their parents’ deaths. 
  
Eliot and Candice reaped the benefits of Oppenheimer’s services, and in any event there 
is no reason to believe that Candice and Eliot did not sign these Petitions for the benefit 
of their children.  If Eliot now suggests that his and his wife’s signatures do not appear 
on  the  June  2010  Petitions  appointing  Oppenheimer  2010  allegation,  which  is  highly 
doubtful  just  looking at the three sets of signatures, that would mean Eliot  is accusing 
Simon of being a forger.  Eliot already is supportive of Bill Stansbury, who accuses Simon 
of committing a fraud on Stansbury.  I would be shocked by any accusation that Simon 
did  not  obtain  from  Eliot  and  Candice  their  genuine  signatures  on  the  June  2010 
Petitions, and particularly shocked that Eliot, who received so much of his father’s (and 
mother’s)  largesse  during  their  lifetimes,  would  now malign  Simon’s  name  in  such  a 
manner.  
  
Anyway,  I’m not sure  if either of you needs these any  longer, but  if you do, here they 
are. 
  
  

  Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
arose@Mrachek‐Law.com 

      561.355.6991 
 505 South Flagler Drive 
 Suite 600 
     West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
     561.655.2250 Phone 
     561.655.5537 Fax 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS TRANSMISSION IS LEGALLY 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL, INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY 
NAMED ABOVE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE 
HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY DISSEMINATION, DISTRIBUTION, OR COPYING OF THIS 
COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU RECEIVE A COPY OF THIS COMMUNICATION IN 
ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY (1) REPLY BY E-MAIL TO US, AND (2) DELETE THIS MESSAGE. 
TAX DISCLOSURE NOTE:  To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Service 
(Circular 230), we inform and advise you that any tax advice contained in this communication (including any 
attachments), unless otherwise specifically stated, was not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, 
by any taxpayer for the purpose of (1) avoiding penalties that may be imposed under the Internal Revenue 
Code or (2) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transactions or matters addressed 
herein. 
If there any documents attached to this email with the suffix ,pdf, those documents are in Adobe PDF format,  If 
you have difficulty viewing these attachments, you may need to download the free version of Adobe Acrobat 
Reader, available at:http://www.adobe.com 

 

97. Thus, Brian O’Connell, Joielle Foglietta, Alan Rose and Steven Lessne are all Material Fact 

Witnesses on this Chain of Custody alone which all is critical evidence for this Court as it 

relates to the production of Valid and Original Trusts and documents at issue and my Cross-

Counterclaims  and thus Injunctive relief should now issue.   
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98. Lessne, nor Rose (a Counter Defendant in the Stayed Counter Complaint in the Oppenheimer 

case), has yet to turn these alleged new documents into the Court and where since the lawsuit 

was based on other documents filed this would seem to materially affect the whole case. 

99. It should be noted that in the days and weeks leading up to this “magical” Discovery by Alan 

Rose that the O’Connell and Foglietta team had issued substantial billings for communications 

with Alan Rose37 even though O’Connell had filed an Answer claiming Alan Rose’s client Ted 

Bernstein was Invalid as a Trustee although the Petition had not been heard.  

100. Alan Rose and Brian O’Connell are again tied up as material fact witnesses just a few weeks 

later when Judge Coates briefly came into the case wherein Alan Rose now “magically” has 

“Originals” of the Shirley Trust and related documents that he allegedly scanned onto a CD and 

while his Letter indicates he was “Transferring” this CD to me in person at Court he actually 

used Brian O’Connell to “pass me” the CD.  

101. Rose claims these are “Originals” or “Duplicate Originals” scanned onto the CD but provides 

No Chain of Custody of how, when, where or why these come into his possession making him a 

Material Fact Witness on the Chain of Custody of documents. See, Alan Rose Letter of June 4, 

201538.  As noted, here is where “Originals” appear to be signed in Different Color Ink from the 

“Original” Originals and where the naked human eye can detect too many identical signatures 

identically or virtually identically placed in the some place on the documents and too many 

initials placed in the same place.  

                                                 
37Ciklin/O’Connell Billing Statements 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
and 
Rose and O’Connell billing excerpts from Ciklin bills 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf  
38 June 04, 2015 Rose Letter Regarding CD of Newly Discovered Estate and Trust documents 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150604%20Rose%20Letter%20with%20CD%20
of%20Simon%20Shirley%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20Will%20Documents.pdf  
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102. Yet, on or about August 11, 2015, I physically appeared and went to the O’Connell law office 

per arrangements with Joielle Foglietta and was directed to some Staff member I will call “Jane 

Doe” for now, although other records may disclose her name, whereupon I was supposed to be 

able to finally “view” and “inspect” all of Simon’s Business Records, Documents, etc that the 

O’Connell firm had obtained and am shocked to be placed into a Conference Room with 4 

Banker Boxes that were half-full for my father who had been a successful Insurance business 

person for Decades with multiple bank accounts, corporations, trust companies and tons of other 

personal records.  One of the boxes had allegedly been dropped off by Alan Rose and only had 

a few miscellaneous “wall hangings” from his Business Office and the other 3 boxes are 

allegedly what the O’Connell firm had taken out of the St. Andrew’s home.  

103. Yet these were partially filled boxes and the Jane Doe staff member indicated she had retrieved 

“everything”, “everything” from the St. Andrew’s home on or around June 4, 2015 which 

contradicts what Joielle Foglietta had claimed in March 2015 about taking custody of the 

Business documents and files and further contradicts what Alan Rose “finds” in May of 2014, 

thus rendering all of these individuals Material Fact Witnesses on Chain of Custody and 

possession. Miraculously these documents appear days before Sheriff deputies are contacting 

Kratish regarding the prior documents and allegations of fraud in the prior documents. 

104. This item further ties up Judge Colin, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, Gerry LEWIN, 

SPALLINA and TESCHER as more intertwined in the fraud.  

105. Both Judge Colin and the PBSO are aware that Eliot and his wife Candice have claimed they 

never signed a Petition that SPALLINA “Witnessed” in 2010 relating to the Trust which 
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SPALLINA apparently deposited with Colin’s court in June of 201039 and that Colin is alleged 

to have signed.  

106. The Document provided by ROSE as an “original” however, purports to be a Trust signed Sept. 

7, 2006 and allegedly witnessed by one Traci Kratish.  

107. However, in her statement to the PBSO40, Traci Kratish, a lawyer and accountant, says she did 

not begin work with Eliot’s father until Sept. 10, 2006 and was not brought in Pre-Stanford 

Trust and has no independent recollection of signing this Trust which is further ripe with errors 

such as referring to Traci Kratish as a “he” instead of “she”, having a different trustee Steven 

Greenwald identified later in the document as the “Trustee,” no reference to the law firm who 

allegedly prepared the Trusts, missing initials on the pages and other obvious errors.  

108. Still further, LEWIN prepares and has Tax documents ( copies, not Originals )  saying the Trust 

was created on Sept. 1, 2006, not Sept. 7th and further that Stanford was the Trustee from the 

beginning and not Traci Kratish as alleged by SPALLINA in the June 2010 Petition claiming 

the Trusts went from Kratish to Stanford and then Oppenheimer with this Petition allegedly 

signed by Eliot and his wife which they have denied signing or seeing prior to it being produced 

in the matters to the the PBSO and COLIN and reported as fraud41.  

109. Despite the PBSO and PANZER knowing all the fraud admitted to date and SPALLINA who 

was not forthcoming in his first interview, PBSO illegally steers this part of the fraud and 

criminal investigation away from following up with Spallina and the involved parties and 

                                                 
39July 08, 2010 Alleged Forged Petition for Children’s Trusts Oppenheimer @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/Exhibit%20E%2020100619%20Alleged%20Eliot%2
0Candice%20Petition%20to%20Appoint%20Successor%20Trustee%20Joshua%20Jacob%20and%20D
aniel.pdf  
40 May 21, 2015 Traci Kratish PBSO Interview statements @ 
www.iviewit.tv/Simon and Shirley Estate/Kratish Statements to PBSO.pdf 
41 May 20, 2015 Alan Rose Email Claiming to have found New Trust Documents @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20150520%20Alan%20Rose%20Letter%20to%20El
iot%20et%20al%20Regarding%20Oppenheimer%20Trust%20documents%20and%20Tax%20Records
%20found.pdf  
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attempted to close the case in a rush with admitted felony crimes of Spallina not being 

prosecuted and thus committing misprision of felony and aiding and abetting the fraud by 

failure to report the admitted crime to prosecutors and which is currently under a second 

Internal Affairs review, the first review after Judge Colin interfered with the criminal 

investigations and had them close the case of Fraud on the Court stating he would handle those 

and forcing Eliot to IA to have the cases reopened due to the improper interference, which led to 

subsequent interviews where Spallina confessed to Felony misconduct..  

110. By TESCHER SPALLINA Bates42 No. TS000815 Spallina falsely writes to Christopher Prindle 

of Wachovia/Stanford/Oppenheimer/JP Morgan on July 1, 2010 who is intimately involved in 

the Financial Accounts of Simon Bernstein claiming he has:  “certified Final Orders on 

Petitions to Appoint Successor Trustee designating Oppenheimer Trust Company as 

Successor Trustee of the following trusts: 1. Daniel Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 2. Carly Esther Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 3. Jake 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 4. Max Friedstein Irrevocable Trust dated 

September 7, 2006 5. Julie Iantoni Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 6. Joshua Z. 

Bernstein Irrevocable Trust dated September 7, 2006 “ all as of July 1, 2010. 

                                                 
42 Tescher & Spallina Bates Numbered Court Ordered Production  
It should be noted that while the documents are bates stamped they were never tendered by Spallina 
and Tescher to the court and no document originals were tendered to successors despite court order to 
turn over “ALL” records, whereby all copies of alleged documents in the Tescher and Spallina production 
are therefore alleged fraudulent and part of an ongoing fraud to cover up and maintain the prior frauds 
they have been caught in and further continue the frauds. 
***FOR ALL FURTHER REFERENCES HEREIN of SPALLINA and TESCHER Bates Stamped 
Documents please refer to the following link which contains the entire file of Bates stamped documents 
Total Pages 7,202 with gaps in the bates numbering and search for the Bates numbers listed in this 
filing. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140602%20PRODUCTION%20OF%20DOCUME
NTS%20SIMON%20ESTATE%20BY%20COURT%20ORDER%20TO%20BEN%20BROWN%20CURA
TOR%20DELIVERED%20BY%20TESCHER%20AND%20SPALLINA.pdf  (File is large and takes time 
to download) 
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111. Yet on the same date of July 1, 2010, by  TS000831  SPALLINA writes to Margaret Brown at 

Baker Botts saying:  

From: Robert Spallina [mailto:rspallina@tescherspallina.com]  
Sent: Thursday, July 01, 2010 9:14 AM  
To: Brown, Margaret  
Subject: Bernstein  
Dear Margaret - we finally received the last of the signed petitions for the minor 
grandchildren and will be walking through the petitions next week to get the 
orders designating Oppenheimer as successor Trustee to Stanford. Attached are 
copies of the signed petitions we are filing for your records.  
 

112. The close relationship with SPALLINA and COLIN is shown by the casual manner SPALLINA 

is simply going to “walk through” over at the Court to get the Orders he has told key Financial 

person Christopher Prindle he already has in Certified form as of the same date.  

113. The alleged Orders do appear to be “Certified” and signed by COLIN but not until July 8, 2010, 

a week after he tells Prindle these are done by the Court already which SPALLINA writes to 

Margaret Brown again about on July 8, 2010, see TESCHER SPALLINA PRODUCTION 

Bates No.TS000829. 

114. This pattern and practice of false information even shown by the TESCHER SPALLINA 

production is further reason to Enjoin and Restrain the parties and the evidence in further aid of 

this Court’s jurisdiction.  

115. Moreover, because there are NO Accountings from TESCHER SPALLINA in the year and half 

plus of their involvement as fiduciaries (NO accountings in Shirley for FIVE years and 

INCOMPLETE ACCOUNTING FOR SIMON ONLY RECENTLY TURNED OVER after 

almost three years after Simon’s Passing) where millions were likely moved between accounts 

or converted without any accounting, Records and accounts of Christopher Prindle, Stanford, JP 

Morgan and Oppenheimer should further be enjoined when the Court has proper jurisdiction 

over these parties.  
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116. Note that the Curator Ben Brown of the Estate of Simon Bernstein purported to have obtained 

actual signed Tax returns from the IRS herein for Simon’s Estate and quietly died at a young 

age shortly thereafter upon information and belief before turning them over and according to 

O’Connell he never received them and immediately ordered new ones immediately after gaining 

Letters of Administration but still has not received them to the best of my belief and certainly 

has not turned them over to me as promised.  

117. Yet, current PR of the Simon Bernstein Estate Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta of the 

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell law firm have Never obtained or provided any Signed Tax 

Documents or actual originals in the 18 months in the case yet repeatedly bills the Estate for 

calls with Alan Rose, including many redacted Billing entries43and44.  

118. The 2007-2008 LIC Tax statements where Simon Bernstein was 45 % owner shows 2 

consecutive years of revenue exceeding $30 Million per year and where Renewals on insurance 

should still be coming in but where TED, ROSE and the PRs claim estates and trusts virtually 

empty while denying discovery and production45, with Simon taking several million dollars in 

income in just these years prior to his death.  

119. Yet, the O’Connell and Foglietta team claim the Estate is out of money and even proceeded to 

demand a payment of $750 approximately from myself to obtain copies of the bare records in 3 

partially filled boxes the PRs have obtained to date that they stated copies would be ready for 

me to pick up when I went to their offices and were not, then later when I was forced to 

                                                 
43 Alan B. Rose and Brian O’Connell Billing Excerpts from Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Bills @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20Rose%20O'Connell%20Legal%20Fe
es%20Bills%20Excerpts%20In%20Chronological%20Order.pdf 
44 O’CONNELL and Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Billing Statements @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151210%20MASTER%20O'Connell%20Ciklin%2
0Fees%20Billing.pdf  
45 2007-2008 Unsigned Tax Returns LIC prepared by Gerald Lewin CPA 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/tax%20returns%202007%202008%
20LIC.pdf  
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repeatedly ask for them to be sent they changed their tune demanding payment for the meager 

records they had obtained and further have repeatedly denied access to even visually Inspect 

the alleged Storage unit where all the TPP allegedly is.  

120. As will be shown later herein, Millions remain Unaccounted for in the cases further justifying 

an Injunction at this time.  

“Orchestration” of the “One-day” “Validity” Trial by the Fiduciaries, Lawyers and Judge 

Phillips 

121. Despite this tortured background, the licensed attorneys O’Connell, Foglietta, Rose and Feaman 

allow matters to proceed along course to a “one-day” Validity Trial with Judge Phillips held 

Dec. 15, 2015.  

122. In the weeks before this, Creditor attorney Peter Feaman expressly stated in a phone call with 

myself, William Stansbury and others that there was a deliberate “conspiracy” against me by the 

parties with money and connections or words to that effect.  

123. Attorney Peter Feaman also acknowledged that Florida Courts do have traditional Pre-Trial and 

Trial procedures, none of which were followed.  

124. No pre-trial Discovery compliance was ever determined, no Pre-trial Depositions were 

determined, and I was provided no Due Process opportunity to speak about the Necessary 

Witnesses that should be at Trial which would make the Trial go beyond one day and the 

importance of having the hearings to remove Ted first to determine if he would even be able to 

conduct validity hearings, especially where there was document fraud with the documents being 

validated committed by his attorneys representing him as fiduciary and where the fraud directly 

benefited Ted’s family, slight conflicts that should have forced Ted from holding the hearings.  

Ted also being considered Predeceased for ALL PURPOSES OF DISPOSITION OF THE 
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SHIRLEY TRUST certainly could not hold a validity hearing as it regards disposition of the 

trust.  Yet, Phillips refused both Feaman and my request to have that hearing first.  

125. Creditor Attorney Peter Feaman had previously in August of 2014 written a specific letter to 

Brian O’Connell indicating he had an “absolute duty” to take up the baton to remove Ted 

Bernstein noting the waste of assets, lack of accountings, conflicts of interest and other items, 

although attorney Feaman would take no action to prevent or participate in the “Validity Trial” 

despite the fact that the only 2 Witnesses that were called, Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

(both involved in the Fraudulent Documents submitted to the court and others) were Both 

parties that Creditor William Stansbury had sued although that case was before a separate 

Judge.  

126. Despite the Fraud shown with Colin who should be a Material fact witness and should have 

disqualified once he knew there was Fraud Upon His Court and he was involved in the matters, 

Feaman took no action to assert and re-argue if necessary Stansbury’s “standing” which had 

been denied in the case by Colin although Stansbury was “in the case” for purposes of Paying 

for the Illinois litigation before Your Honor which all appears to be part of “orchestration” 

where Stansbury and Feaman are “in” on some issues but not in on others.  

127. Feaman had “confirmed” that O’Connell as the PR was going to Participate at the one day 

Validity Trial as O’Connell had filed an Answer to remove Ted Bernstein at Trial as an Invalid 

Trustee yet “at the last minute” it was announced O’Connell and Ted Bernstein’s attorney Alan 

Rose had some form of “consultation” deal where it was decided O’Connell would not 

participate in the Validity Trial despite the fact that his Office had been Billing the Estate for 

nearly 2 years based upon Ted as Trustee including many billings with Alan Rose on behalf of 
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Ted Bernstein all of which is compromised if a proper Trial showed the documents to be invalid 

and/or Ted Bernstein should be removed.  

128. When Feaman brought O’Connell into the cases after being denied standing to remove Ted, 

Feaman had Eliot withdraw a hearing to remove Ted that day telling him that he spoke to 

O’Connell and O’Connell would file the motion Feaman filed that was denied for standing and 

that I would have a much better chance of success with O’Connell filing.  To this date, despite 

being given Feaman’s filing to put his name on and repeatedly stating he would file it, 

O’Connell has failed to file despite knowing Ted is “not a validly serving Trustee” or in other 

words that Ted and Alan are committing a Fraud knowing Ted cannot be Trustee but pulling yet 

another Fraud on the Court and Fraud on the Beneficiaries and Creditor. 

129. Thus, the Estate of Simon Bernstein was Unrepresented and did not participate in the Phillips 

“Validity” Trial of the Simon documents and where the Governor Rick Scott’s office already 

found defects in the notarizations of Simon’s Estate and Trust documents that O’Connell was 

made aware of prior and where if they were not validated as Rose wanted them, O’Connell 

could have been knocked out and Stansbury could have become the Successor as was the case 

only a few weeks before Simon died when allegedly new improperly notarized documents are 

said to have been signed.  

130. Alan Rose was motioned by my counsel Candice Schwager of Texas who was seeking to come 

into Florida pro hac vice46 for a 30 day Continuance47 and to get the Documents necessary to be 

able to represent my children properly and determine if any conflicts existed that prevented her 

                                                 
46December 12, 2015 Candice Schwager Pro Hac Vice Letter to Court and Alan Rose, Esq. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151212%20Candice%20Schwager%20Pro%20H
ac%20Vice%20ECF%20Filing%20Stamped%20Copy.pdf  
4720151215 Motion for Stay  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20ESIGNED%20Phillips%20Trial%20St
ay%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
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from representing both myself and my children but both Rose and Judge Phillips denied the 

continuance and denied her access to documents48 leaving my children unrepresented at the 

Validity “trial” as well.  

131. The notice and motion further indicated Alan Rose should be Disqualified as a Material fact 

witness for the reasons set out above.  

132. Thus the Trial was orchestrated so no Attorneys were present to Cross-examine the only 2 

Witnesses produced by Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose being Robert Spallina and Ted Bernstein 

himself.  

133. It is noted that there were no Pre-Trial Depositions allowed of Robert Spallina or Ted Bernstein 

and thus acting Pro Se I did all I could do at the Trial which still revealed remarkable 

information and confessions of new crimes, including federal mail fraud by Spallina, who also 

violated his SEC consent order by misrepresenting his SEC consent deal and further 

misrepresented his standing with the Florida Bar as the record reflects.  Spallina also admitted 

to using a deceased Simon acting as PR to close Shirley’s Estate and depositing further 

fraudulent documents with the court, while admitting he had not to that date told anyone about 

these crimes, while Phillips ignored all these admissions and since has done nothing to notify 

proper authorities of these new and damning admissions of crimes and violations of SEC 

consent orders, despite repeated requests by myself for him to do so.  

134. It is further noted that no Inspection or Comparison of the “duplicate” and other alleged 

“originals” was allowed pre-trial or during trial as these Documents and evidence simply were 

                                                 
48January 06, 2016 Alan Rose, Esq. Letter to Attorney for Minor Children and Eliot denying access to file 
or even to speak despite her being retained counsel in need of documents to evaluate cases. 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20160106%20Rose%20Denying%20to%20talk%20
or%20give%20information%20to%20Attorney%20Schwager.pdf  
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not produced or made available at the hearing for inspection and have never been forensically 

examined.  

135. It is respectfully asserted to this Court that not only would proper production and Discovery be 

reflective of actual value and worth of assets at stake, but further relevant to Undue influence 

and pressures that were on Simon Bernstein at all relevant times herein.  The potential for undue 

influence should have been clear just by the April 9, 2012 fraudulent Petition for Discharge 

allegedly signed by Simon on this date and Witnessed by Spallina since if this is Simon’s 

signature he  absolutely knew the Waivers referenced in the Petition had not even been received 

by some of the parties by this date much less Signed and returned and signing such a document 

falsely would have been totally out of character and practice for the decades he had been in 

business.  This Court should now issue an Injunction.  

No Concern for Original Documents, Rose, Spallina, Ted Bernstein or Judge Phillips  

136. I believe the following passage from the Validity “Trial” makes clear that an Injunction should 

issue since no one seems to know where the Originals are, and the many Duplicate originals and 

Ted Bernstein claims to have only seen “copies” of the Trusts although it is noted for this US 

District Court there are other Trusts that are referenced in the produced Trusts where copies 

have been provided that not only were the other referenced Trusts never “Served” with Process 

for the Validity hearing but these referenced Trusts  have never been produced to this day such 

as: 

Page 137 of linked PDF document @ 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20P
hillips%20Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
 
Transcript Page 121 
Spallina Witness ‐ Eliot Cross Examining 
 
4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ In the chain of custody of these 
∙5∙ ∙documents, you stated that there were three copies made? 
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∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Do you have those three original trust copies 
∙8∙ ∙here? 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I do not. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Does anybody? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Do you have any other questions of 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the witness? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah.∙ I wanted to ask him 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ some questions on the original documents. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ Keep going. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So the original documents aren't in the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't have them. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your firm is not in possession of any of the 
21∙ ∙original documents? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure.∙ I'm not at the firm anymore. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙When you left the firm, were there documents 
24∙ ∙still at the firm? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes, there were. 
 
Page 122 
‐1‐ Q.∙ ∙Were you ordered by the court to turn those 
∙2∙ ∙documents over to the curator, Benjamin Brown? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Can he clarify the 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ question, which documents?∙ Because I believe the 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ curator was for the estate, and the original will 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ was already in file, and the curator would have no 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ interest in the trust ‐‐ 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Which documents?∙ When you say 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ "those documents," which ones are you referring to? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Any of the trusts and estate 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Okay.∙ That's been clarified. 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙You can answer, if you can. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe that he was given ‐‐ I 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ believe all the documents were copied by 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Mr. Pollock's office, and that he was given some 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ type of zip drive with everything.∙ I'm not sure, 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ though.∙ I couldn't ‐‐ 
20∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did the zip drive contain the original 
22∙ ∙documents? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Did not.∙ I believe the original documents 
24∙ ∙came back to our office.∙ Having said that, we would 
25∙ ∙only have ‐‐ when we made and had the client execute 
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 Page 123 
∙1∙  three documents, two originals of those documents would 
∙2∙ ∙remain with the client, and then we would keep one 
∙3∙ ∙original in our file, except ‐‐ including, most of the 
∙4∙ ∙time, the original will, which we put in our safe 
∙5∙ ∙deposit box.∙ So we would have one original of every 
∙6∙ ∙document that they had executed, including the original 
∙7∙ ∙will, and they would keep two originals of everything, 
∙8∙ ∙except for the will, which we would give them conformed 
∙9∙ ∙copies of, because there was only one original will. 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ I asked a specific question.∙ Did your 
11∙ ∙firm, after the court order of Martin Colin, retain 
12∙ ∙documents, original documents? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Sorry.∙ I should have 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ let him finish. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ ‐‐ original documents? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe ‐‐ 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Relevance and misstates the ‐‐ 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ there's no such order. 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, the question is, Did your 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ firm retain the original documents? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Is that the question? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yes, sir. 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙Answer, please. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I believe we had original 
 
Page 124 
∙1∙ documents. 
∙2∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙After the date you were court ordered to 
∙4∙ ∙produce them to the curator? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Object ‐‐ that's the part I object 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ to. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
∙9∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙To your knowledge ‐‐ so, to your knowledge, 
11∙ ∙the documents can't all be here since they may be at 
12∙ ∙your firm today? 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I don't practice at the firm anymore, so I'm 
14∙ ∙not sure where the documents are. 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ And you said you made copies of all the 
16∙ ∙documents that you turned over to the curator?∙ Did you 
17∙ ∙turn over any original documents as ordered by the 
18∙ ∙court? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Same objection. 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ There's no court order requiring an original 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ document be turned over. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ What order are you referring to? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Judge Colin ordered when they 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ resigned due to the fraudulent alteration of the 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ documents that they turn over – 
  
Page 125 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ I just said, what order are you 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ referring to? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ It's an order Judge Colin 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ordered. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ All right.∙ Well, produce that 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ order so I can see it, because Judge Colton's [sic] 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ been retired for six or seven years. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay.∙ I don't have it with 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ me, but... 
10∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Well, Judge Colton's a retired 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ judge.∙ He may have served in some other capacity, 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ but he doesn't enter orders, unless he's sitting as 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ a replacement judge.∙ And that's why I'll need to 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ see the order you're talking about, so I'll know if 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ he's doing that.∙ Okay.∙ Thanks.∙ Next question. 
16∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Has anyone, to the best of your 
18∙ ∙knowledge, seen the originals while you were in custody 
19∙ ∙of them? 
20∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ Who? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I believe Ken Pollock's firm was ‐‐ Ken 
23∙ ∙Pollock's firm was the firm that took the documents for 
24∙ ∙purposes of copying them. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did anybody ask you, refer copies to inspect 
  
Page 126 
1∙ ∙the documents? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Other than Ken Pollock's office, I don't 
∙3∙ ∙recall. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did I ask you? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Perhaps you did. 
  
 Page 170 
14∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙But it does say on the document that the 
15∙ ∙original will's in your safe, correct? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙For your mother's document, it showed that. 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Oh, for my father's ‐‐ where are the originals 
18∙ ∙of my father's? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Your father's original will was deposited in 
20∙ ∙the court.∙ As was your mother's. 
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21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙How many copies of it were there that were 
22∙ ∙original? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Only one original.∙ I think Mr. Rose had 
24∙ ∙stated on the record that he requested a copy from the 
25∙ ∙clerk of the court of your father's original will, to 
  
  
Page 171 
∙1∙ ∙make a copy of it. 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Certified? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not sure if he said it was certified or 
∙4∙ ∙not. 
  
 TED BERNSTEIN WITNESS ‐ ELIOT BERNSTEIN CROSS EXAM 
  
Page 209 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Yeah. 
24∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you seen the original will and trust of 
  
Page 210 
1∙ ∙your mother's? 
∙2∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you define original for me? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙The original. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙The one that's filed in the court? 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Original will or the trust. 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I've seen copies of the trusts. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Have you done anything to have any of the 
∙8∙ ∙documents authenticated since learning that your 
∙9∙ ∙attorneys had committed fraud in altering dispositive 
10∙ ∙documents that you were in custody of? 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection.∙ Relevance. 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Overruled. 
13∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ I have not. 
14∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
15∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So you as the trustee have taken no steps to 
16∙ ∙validate these documents; is that correct? 
17∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Correct. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Why is that? 
19∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm not an expert on the validity of 
20∙ ∙documents. 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you contract a forensic analyst? 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I'm retained by counsel, and I've got counsel 
23∙ ∙retained for all of this.∙ So I'm not an expert on the 
24∙ ∙validity of the documents. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙You're the fiduciary.∙ You're the trustee. 
  
Page 211 
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∙1∙ ∙You're the guy in charge.∙ You're the guy who hires your 
∙2∙ ∙counsel.∙ You tell them what to do. 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙So you found out that your former attorneys 
∙4∙ ∙committed fraud.∙ And my question is simple.∙ Did you do 
∙5∙ ∙anything, Ted Bernstein, to validate these documents, 
∙6∙ ∙the originals? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ That's already been answered in 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ the negative.∙ I wrote it down.∙ Let's keep going. 
∙9∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. BERNSTEIN:∙ Okay. 
10∙ ∙BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
11∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙As you sit here today, if the documents in 
12∙ ∙your mother's ‐‐ in the estates aren't validated and 
13∙ ∙certain documents are thrown out if the judge rules them 
14∙ ∙not valid, will you or your family gain or lose any 
15∙ ∙benefit in any scenario? 
16∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Can you repeat that for me, please?∙ I'm not 
17∙ ∙sure I'm understanding. 
18∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙If the judge invalidates some of the documents 
19∙ ∙here today, will you personally lose money, interest in 
20∙ ∙the estates and trusts as the trustee, your family, you? 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I will not. 
22∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Your family? 
23∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙My ‐‐ my children will. 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙So that's your family? 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙Yes. 
  
Page 212 
∙1∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Okay.∙ So do you find that as a fiduciary to 
∙2∙ ∙be a conflict? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ Objection. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE WITNESS:∙ No. 
∙5∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙MR. ROSE:∙ I think it calls for a legal 
∙6∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ conclusion. 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ ∙THE COURT:∙ Sustained. 
  
Page 215 
21∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original will 
22∙ ∙of your father or mother that were in the Tescher & 
23∙ ∙Spallina vaults? 
24∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I have no access, no. 
25∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Did you ever have access to the original 
  
Page 216 
∙1∙ ∙copies of the trusts that Mr. Spallina testified were 
∙2∙ ∙sitting in their firm's file cabinets or vaults? 
∙3∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did not. 
∙4∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙Now, did you find in your father's possessions 
∙5∙ ∙the duplicate originals of the trusts of him and your 
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∙6∙ ∙mother that we've talked about? 
∙7∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙I did. 
∙8∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ Q.∙ ∙And do you have any reason to believe that 
∙9∙ ∙they aren't valid, genuine and signed by your father on 
10∙ ∙the day that he ‐‐ your father and your mother on the 
11∙ ∙days that it says they signed them? 
12∙ ∙ ∙ ∙ A.∙ ∙None whatsoever. 
  

Predetermined Trial, Missing Witnesses, Missing Originals and Discovery:  

137. Trial Transcript makes it crystal clear the Result of the “Trial” was predetermined by Phillips as 

alleged in post-trial motions49 and motions for Disqualification50. 

138. Missing Witnesses include Traci Kratish who gives contradictory statements to the Palm Beach 

Sheriff’s from the alleged Oppenheimer Trusts produced by Alan Rose and Steven Lessne and 

further contradicting filed documents by Robert Spallina in 2010 which are claimed as frauds, 

see above.  Kratish is allegedly also a Witness to certain operative Trusts/Wills/Instruments so 

an adverse inference against the core parties and in favor of this Petition should be drawn by the 

failure to produce Traci Kratish at the alleged Validity trial.  

139. Phillips made it clear, however, that he was not going to go beyond his “one day” trial thus fully 

prejudging the case and denies me from calling Alan Rose as a witness with 11 minutes 

remaining despite his direct involvement in the break of the chain of custody of dispositive 

documents and more and where Rose is also a served Counter Defendant in the Counter 

Complaint51 stayed by Colin in the Shirley Trust case and where Colin is also listed as a 

Material and Fact Witness and Potential Counter Defendant in the Party Heading in the case.  

                                                 
49 December 31, 2015 Motion for New Trial Stay Injunction 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151231%20FINAL%20ESIGNED%20MOTION%
20FOR%20NEW%20TRIAL%20STAY%20INJUNCTION%20PHILLIPS%20ECF%20STAMPED%20CO
PY.pdf  
50 December 28, 2015 2nd Petition for Disqualification of Phillips  
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151228%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20NOTARIZED
%20Second%20Disqualification%20of%20Judge%20Phillips%20after%20Validity%20Hearing%20on%2
0December%2015,%202015%20ECF%20STAMPED%20COPY.pdf  
51September 02, 2014 Stayed Counter Complaint 
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140. Other missing witnesses include: Kimberly Moran (arrested for 6 Fraudulent Notarizations and 

Admitted to 6 Forgies of Estate documents), Lindsay Baxley aka Lindsay Giles, Diana Banks 

and others, who were all parties to various of the Estate and Trust documents. 

141. According to Peter Feaman and William Stansbury, Donald Tescher was “seen” at the 

Courthouse on Trial day but never called as a Witness.  

142. Spallina admits under oath at the hearing to having worked with Alan Rose in preparation for 

the trial. 

·3· ·BY MR. BERNSTEIN: 
·4· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· How many times have you spoken with 
·5· ·Alan Rose in the last three months? 
·6· · · · A.· ·Twice. 
·7· · · · Q.· ·Did you prepare for this hearing in any way 
·8· ·with Alan Rose? 
·9· · · · A.· ·I did. 
10· · · · Q.· ·Okay.· Was that the two times you spoke to 
11· ·him? 
12· · · · A.· ·Yes. 
13· · · · Q.· ·Do you see any other of the parties that would 
14· ·be necessary to validate these trust documents in the 
15· ·court today? 
16· · · · · · ·MR. ROSE:· Objection.· Cumulative. 
17· · · · · · ·THE COURT:· Sustained. 
 
December 15, 2015 Hearing Transcript Page 14952 

 

 , See Post‐Trial Motions and Disqualifications of Judge Phillips; see pending 4th DCA Writ of Prohibition 

appealing Original Phillips Denial of Disqualification53;  

 

                                                                                                                                                         
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140902%20Final%20Signed%20Printed%20Cou
nter%20Complaint%20Trustee%20Construction%20Lawsuit%20ECF%20Filing%20Copy.pdf 
52 December 15, 2015 PHILLIPS VALIDITY HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20151215%20Hearing%20Transcript%20Phillips%2
0Validity%20Hearing.pdf  
53  
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Tescher‐Spallina Prosecuted by the SEC, yet Phillips, Rose, O’Connell, Foglietta, Ted 

Bernstein have left critical Originals, documents and evidence in their possession, thus this 

Court must now act:   

143. Other new evidence and facts have emerged during the relevant time this federal action has been 

waiting to come back on the calendar where the Estate Planning attorneys for my now deceased 

parents Simon and Shirley Bernstein, being attorneys Tescher & Spallina of Boca Raton, have 

been charged by the SEC with violations of federal Insider Trading and breaches of fiduciary 

duties to other clients and now entered into formal Consent Orders with the SEC54, and yet the 

involved judicial actors of the Florida Probate Courts, attorney Alan Rose, Ted Bernstein, and 

the PR attorneys Brian O’Connell and Joielle Foglietta for the Simon Bernstein Estate have 

permitted years of “ORIGINAL” documents and business records relevant to this action to 

remain in the possession of Tescher and Spallina despite their being Court Ordered 

approximately 2 years ago to turn over “ALL”55 records upon their removal after admitting to 

fraudulently creating a Shirley Trust, thus creating an imminent danger that further vital 

Original documents and evidence relevant to this federal action will also go “ permanently lost” 

or be destroyed further justifying the need for an immediate injunction herein.  
                                                 
54 September 28, 2015 SEC Press Release Regarding SPALLINA and TESCHER INSIDER TRADING 
CHARGES,  “SEC Charges Five With Insider Trading, Including Two Attorneys and an Accountant” 
http://www.sec.gov/news/pressrelease/2015-213.html  
AND 
September 28, 2015 SEC Government Complaint filed against TESCHER and SPALLINA @  
http://www.sec.gov/litigation/complaints/2015/comp-pr2015-213.pdf  
AND 
October 01, 2015 SEC Consent Orders Felony Insider Trading SPALLINA signed  September 16, 2015 and 
TESCHER signed June 15, 2014  
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/2015%20Spallina%20and%20Tesc
her%20SEC%20Settlement%20Consent%20Orders%20Insider%20Trading.pdf  
55 February 18, 2014 Order Demanding ALL TESCHER and SPALLINA records be turned over to the 
Replacement Curator Benjamin Brown 
http://www.iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140218%20ORDER%20ON%20
PETITION%20FOR%20DISCHARGE%20TESCHER%20SPALLINA%20Case%20502012CP
004391XXXXSB%20SIMON.pdf  
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144. As this Court may recall from the Summary Judgment filings herein, attorney Robert Spallina 

sought to have the proceeds of the alleged “lost” Life Insurance Policy paid to his office by 

signing a Death Benefit Claim as the Trustee of a Trust also “lost” and which he claims in 

testimony and other parole evidence obtained that he had nothing to with the trust or insurance 

policy, including stating this in his recent testimony at the Validity hearing and further he was 

being addressed in communications over several months by Heritage Union Life Insurance as 

“Trustee” of the “La Salle Trust” and yet the parties kept LaSalle out of this federal case where 

Financial Disclosures of Florida Probate Judge Martin Colin now publicly available due to the 

Palm Beach Post Investigative series show Judge Colin has had an ongoing financial business 

relationship with La Salle for all relevant years and yet never Disclosed this on the record 

despite knowing and having actual knowledge that La Salle was a Defendant in a counter-

complaint56 filed by myself in his Court as of July, 2014 in relation to an Oppenheimer Trust 

instigated lawsuit against Eliot’s children that Colin immediately stayed57 despite knowing of 

the conflict this represented as a potential Counter Defendant and as a Material and Fact 

Witness to certain fraud in and on and by his court.  

145. This Court must now act and use its Injunctive powers over the parties currently within its 

jurisdiction to restrain. obtain, produce and preserve the critical evidence, documents and 

records and Discovery necessary from all parties including the probate court files in aid of it’s 

own jurisdiction.  

Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose involved with New Fraud Company to hide Ownership of 
Assets at 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, Fl ; Further Need for Injunctive Relief  

                                                 
56July 30, 3014 Answer and Counter Complaint Oppenheimer lawsuit v Eliot Minor Children 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140730%20FINAL%20SIGNED%20PRINTED%2
0Answer%20and%20Counter%20Oppenheimer.pdf 
57 August 06, 2014 Oppenheimer Counter Complaint 
http://iviewit.tv/Simon%20and%20Shirley%20Estate/20140806%20REFILED%2020140730%20PRINTE
D%20SIGNED%20ECF%20STAMPED%20Counter%20Complaint%20Oppenheimer%20Lawsuit-2.pdf  
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146. On Feb. 18, 2016 I had a personal conversation with one Leilani Ochoada of Orlando, Florida 

after discovering information at the Florida Secretary of State website www.sunbiz.org 

regarding a false company set up as 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc., shown on a Deed 

purportedly signed and transferred by Ted Bernstein of the property at 7020 Lions Head Lane, 

Boca Raton which was my parent’s St. Andrews home. See, Deed signed by Ted Bernstein and 

Alan Rose58.  

147. The sunbiz.org website showed this 7020 Lions Head Land Trust, Inc. company had a False and 

Inactive ( Dissolved ) company listed as it’s Registered Agent which according to Melanie 

Sellers at the Florida Division of Corporations should not have made it through the Secretary of 

State’s Office to be filed as the Registered Agent must be a valid and active company. See  

Document Number P15000049545 filed 6/4/15 which is the reference number on the Lions 

Head Land Trust Inc. filing.  See Document Number P1500004954559  

148. The Registered Agent is listed as ISL, Inc. with an address at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 which is also the address listed as the Principal Place of Business 

for Lions Head Land Trust, Inc.  

149. According to www.sunbiz.org  the ISL, Inc. company listed as Registered Agent by Lions Head 

Land Trust Inc. has been INACTIVE and Dissolved since 1997 according to Secretary of State 

Document Number P96000079975 and this has been confirmed by staff at the Division of 

                                                 
58 DEED 
www.iviewit.tv/DEEDLIONSHEADLANDTRUSTINC7020LIONSHEADLANEBOCARATONFLSALE.pdf  
 
59 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545Articles.pdf - Articles of Incorporation 

    www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP15000049545DetailsCorp.pdf - Detail of Corp 
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Corporations who were initiating inquiry and investigation. See, Document Number 

P9600007997560 

150. Upon information and belief, the actual licensed business at 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE 

TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 is Incorporating Services, LTD and the person at phone number 

(850) 656-7956 says there is no ISL, Inc. at that address and no company like Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc. has principal offices at the 1540 GLENWAY DRIVE TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301 

address.  

151. Upon speaking to Leilani Ochoada who is listed as the “Incorporator” of Lions Head Land 

Trust, Inc., using an Address on the Articles of Incorporation as 7020 Lions Head Lane Boca 

Raton, Fl 33496 Leilani says she will come forward with an Affidavit for federal and state court 

and Investigators as follows upon information and belief: 1) She has no knowledge of Lions 

Head Land Trust, Inc. at all ; 2) She never authorized anyone to use her name as an 

Incorporator; 3) Until Feb. 18th 2016 had no knowledge any entity was incorporated by filings 

at the Fla Secretary of State under her name and had no involvement with any land transaction 

involving 7020 Lions Head Lane, Boca Raton, F; 4) She initially believed it was some form of 

identity theft when she got the call and looked into it further; 5) She  never lived at any Boca 

Raton, Fl address in general and never at 7020 Lions Head Land Trust Inc. and is from Orlando, 

Fl; 6) She found out an attorney that had an Office building where her company rented space in 

Orlando used her name as this Incorporator  without permission and never knew about any land 

deal with Mitch Huhem/ Laurence Pino or anything related to this property with Laurence Pino 

being the attorney who apparently did this expressly stating he was trying to hide Mitch Huhem 

from the public record as part of this transaction; 7) She knew absolutely nothing about the 

Articles of Incorporation and the addresses and companies named there using her name; 8) 
                                                 
60 www.iviewit.tv/DocumentP96000079975.pdf - Details of Corp 
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Attorney Laurence Pino never had Leilani's permission to incorporate any entity using her name 

as an Incorporator either by signed document or Electronically ; 9)  Pino has not been able to 

produce any written document that she allegedly signed with his office; 10)  Pino's Exec 

Assistant Cathy can not find Any document signed by Leilani after reviewing the files 

supporting Leilani’s version of the events that she had no knowledge and no involvement.   

152. Thus, Ted Bernstein and Attorney Alan Rose knew and had to know by the most basic due 

diligence reviewing the company's data of Lion Head Land Trust, Inc. as the alleged “buyer” in 

this Real Estate transaction which was never approved or authorized by myself that the 

Company was False and Fraudulent as Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose knew and had to know 

Leilani Ochoada had never met them before and surely did not have an address at 7020 Lions 

Head Lane, Boca Raton Fl 33467 and thus Ted and Alan are again in the middle of fraud this 

time in a direct manner to SECRET away and HIDE ASSETS and this Court must now use its 

Injunctive powers herein.  

153. This US District Court clearly has jurisdiction over Ted Bernstein and Alan Rose has 

“appeared” in the federal case as Attorney for Ted Bernstein at a Deposition and thus this Court 

should also have proper power under the All Writs Act and Anti Injunction Act to reach Alan 

Rose as well until such time he is formally served with a Summons and Amended Complaint 

where he is among several parties I am seeking to add to this action herein and should now be 

enjoined until further Order of this Court from all actions on behalf of Ted Bernstein and related 

to the matters herein.   

Sharp, Fraudulent practices and Abuse of Process, sham hearings, Alan Rose, Steven Lessnee, Judge 
Phillips wherein this Court should at least Temporarily Enjoin proceedings before Judge Phillips 
specifically including a Thursday, Feb. 25, 2016 proceeding this week at 3:15 PM EST until further 

Order of this Court:  
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In addition to the grounds set forth above where Alan Rose and Steven Lessne both should be Disqualified 

from representation as Material fact witnesses in the Stanford-Oppenheimer-JP Morgan Trust documents 

involving Gerald Lewin, Traci Kratish and others, both attorneys have engaged in Sharp and abusive practices 

by:  

1. filing motions with minimal Notice during times I have Noticed as Unavailable for medical reasons;  
2. seeking to hear at 5 Minute UMC Motion dates complex matters knowingly requiring Hearings;  
3. seeking to have Ordered at such Motion dates hundreds of thousands of dollars in attorneys fees 

without providing ANY Billing statements;  
4. Falsely presenting to the Florida Courts knowing misrepresentations of claimed Injunctions against 

me by SDNY Judge Shira Scheindlin and directly misrepresenting the truth and actual language;  
5. pursuing Guardianship as a retaliatory tool against seeking truth and disclosure and justice.  

 
This Court should now Enjoin and Restrain Alan Rose who is under this Court’s jurisdiction as having 

appeared in a federal court deposition for Ted Bernstein who is under the Court’s jurisdiction,  or at least 

enjoining Ted Bernstein and the Probate Court of Judge Phillips at least temporarily.  

 
“Side-Deals” and “Agreements” Thwarting and Impairing this Court’s Jurisdiction  

 
It is expressly known that “some form” of side deal - agreement is in place where somehow Creditor William 

Stansbury has some “settlement” with Ted Bernstein yet the terms are completely unknown and should be 

fully disclosed and while William Stansbury has been very helpful to myself and my family in many ways the 

actions of his attorney Peter Feaman in not pursuing avenues of relief combined with the orchestrated actions 

of O’Connell and Rose demand this Court exercise it’s injunctive and inherent powers to determine how such 

off record agreements are manipulating the integrity of both federal and state proceedings and the court 

should further act upon and resolve the conflicts of interests of the attorneys and for those not under the 

Court’s jurisdiction I pray for leave to Amend to add parties and claims herein.  

 

Piece-Meal Documentary Proof of “Missing Millions” and “Missing Files-Records”  
 

154. While it is presently unknown to Eliot when COLIN first gained knowledge of the sizable 

holdings of Simon and Shirley Bernstein or when COLIN first had involvement in Bernstein 

family matters inside or outside the Courthouse, Court records and documentary evidence show 

COLIN becoming involved in both the Estate cases of Shirley and Simon Bernstein in at least 
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2010 for Shirley Bernstein and 2012 for Simon Bernstein when he took over his Estate case 

from FRENCH. 

155. From the minimal records and Discovery obtained by Eliot via Court Ordered Production of 

Tescher & Spallina, PA upon their removal, Simon Bernstein had assets and holdings of over 

$13 Million plus in Investments Accounts, Private Banking Accounts, checking accounts, 

retirement accounts etc since 2008 when Tescher & Spallina, PA, TESCHER and SPALLINA 

were doing Estate Family Planning for Simon and Shirley Bernstein plus over $5 Million in real 

estate based upon Listings of the properties weeks prior to Simon’s passing.   

156. That the Tescher & Spallina PA, production documents which are Not Originals are not 

transferred to the replacement Curator, Benjamin Brown, Esq. until on or about June 02, 2014, 

nearly a year after Eliot first reported to the COLIN court that Fraud Upon the Court had taken 

place and approximately nine months since the September 13, 2013 hearing before COLIN 

where he had admissions from the lawyers and fiduciaries that Fraudulent Documents had been 

submitted to the Court by Tescher & Spallina PA.   

157. The failure of COLIN to seize the records of all parties involved that committed Fraud Upon his 

court allowed the parties involved to begin to prepare further alleged fraudulent documents to 

attempt to cover up for the crimes exposed in Eliot’s May 2013 pleading, subsequent pleadings 

and criminal complaints they were then being investigated in. 

158. TESCHER and SPALLINA’s production lacks all of the following; 

a. Historical and present Bank and other Financial Institutions statements for the multitude 

of Simon’s Personal and Financial Accounts, 

b. Post Mortem Personal and Corporate Mail, 

c. Mail from time periods prior to Simon’s passing, 
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d. Historical and current Business Records of Simon’s, 

e. Historical and current Insurance records i.e. Homeowners, Jewelry, Auto, Business, etc., 

f. Historical and current Corporate Records for any of the many companies Simon owned, 

g. Historical Signed Tax Returns, personal and corporate, for any years,  

h. Computer Data and Drives both personal and corporate, and, 

i. Tescher and Spallina despite Court Order to turn over records to Curator retained 

Original Dispositive Documents and all original documents, as what was tendered to the 

Curator had only one original alleged Promissory Note for Eliot’s children’s home that 

was never filed with the courts. 

159. What was left upon inspection by Eliot at O’Connell’s office of Simon’s personal and corporate 

records was 3 bankers boxes of files each only partially filled, for a man who ran multiple 

businesses, had multiple financial institution accounts and more.  On information and belief, 

despite O’Connell having a court order to inspect Simon’s offices with Eliot present, they failed 

to ever inventory Simon’s office prior to TED’s eviction and despite Eliot being allowed to be 

present at any inventory of the office, Eliot was never contacted to appear. 

160. That O’Connell was supposed to have inventories all of Simon’s home business records done by 

a professional appraiser and turn that appraisal over to Eliot and while the appraiser did come to 

Simon’s house to reinventory as court ordered, he failed to provide an inventory of the records. 

161. After O’Connell inventorying, Rose enters home for lighting issue and alleges to have 

discovered and then removed documents and trust documents included from the home, despite 

that he had no legal authority to remove any properties of the Estate of Simon. 

162. Where the Tescher & Spallina, PA production documents referenced herein are alleged to be 

part of an attempt to cover up crimes and are virtually all alleged to be fraudulent and not at all 
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representative of the law firm files of Simon Bernstein or the files that became part of Simon 

and Shirley’s Estates.  There was only 1 original document sent, not even the original 

dispositive documents were tendered to the Successor, no historical banking, tax or other 

business records and there was virtually no mail from the time of Simon’s death included in the 

production. 

163. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS001503-TS001506, by Letter 

dated June 25, 2013 from Grant Thornton, under Primary Express Account 309513, Payee 

Bernstein Family Investments LLP, regarding a claim against Stanford Bank International 

Limited ( “the Company”), a Claim was allowed for $1,062,734.50 in the Antiguan Estate.  

The Letter references that there may be “more letters of notification in order to 

incorporate all CDs.” Where the CD’s my father held on information and belief were only 

a small fraction, one to two percent of his holdings. 

164. However, by Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS003734 the STANFORD Simon & 

Shirley Bernstein Valuations as of 5/28/2008 reflect a Net Worth for that Statement at    

$6, 928,933.52 ( Million ) with $839,362.12 in Cash Available.  

165. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production, Bates Doc. No. TS004808 by Statement dated 

Aug. 31, 2012 (two weeks before Simon’s death) in the Wilmington Trust Investment 

Details for 088949-000 Simon L. Bernstein Irrev TR the Grand Total $2,829,961.66, thus 

this nearly $3 Million remains wholly Unaccounted for and according to William 

Stansbury this value may be doubled to Over $6 Million when Shirley Bernstein’s 49% of 

this account is factored in, which also remains Unaccounted for.   
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166. From Tescher & Spallina, PA Production already exhibited herein TED allegedly settled 

Simon’s $2,000,000.00 of CD’s with Stanford with Grant Thornton for $1,062,734.50. There is 

no complete accounting.  

167. From Tescher & Spallina, PA  Bates Doc. No. TS005459 Simon Bernstein BankOne checking 

activity Acct MI/FL/Ga Checking XXXX7231 $67,402.08 was the available Balance in that 

account as of 10/15/12 just after Simon Bernstein’s passing with $109,456.67 available as of 

Sept. 7, 2012 just a short time before his passing for that account.   

168. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS005478 JP Morgan Bernstein Family 

Investment LLP Acct. W32635000 showed $1,872,810.91 for a 49.5% interest in the total 

Market Value with Accruals with $807,289.79 Cash included for Statement covering 

8/1/12-8/31/12 just weeks before Simon Bernstein’s passing.  

169. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004765 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Account No. 

000000849197231 showing Total Payments & Transfers of $97,793.74 for the period 8/10/12 to 

9/12/12 up to Simon’s passing.  

170. By Tescher & Spallina, PA Bates Doc. No. TS004820 JP Morgan Simon Bernstein Trust Robert 

M. Spallina Donald L. Tescher Trustees Primary Account 000000478018083 Dec. 20, 2013 

Balance $150,177.17 with an “Internal Transfer” of $100,000.00 on Dec. 20, 2015. It is 

unknown what this “Internal Transfer” was for that occurred over a year after Simon’s passing. 

171. By email dated Feb. 8, 2013 Victoria Roraff, Registered Client Service Associate of 

OPPENHEIMER of the Boca Raton, Florida office writing to SPALLINA she admits she does 

not have a File on all of the STANFORD Accounts but provides how some of the accounts 
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